
 
 

Page 1 of  526 

President 
Mr. Dave Warren 
City of Placerville 
 
Treasurer 
Ms. Jen Lee 
City of Rio Vista  

Vice President 
Ms. Elizabeth Ehrenstrom 
City of Oroville 
 
Secretary 
Ms. Jennifer Styczynski  
City of Marysville  

 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

AGENDA 
 

DATE/TIME:  Thursday, June 23, 2022 at 10:00 a.m. 
 
LOCATION:    Rocklin Event Center – Garden Room  
                                 2650 Sunset Blvd  
                                 Rocklin, CA 95677 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
 
The Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund, or NCCSIF, is an association of municipalities 
joined to protect member resources by stabilizing risk costs in a reliable, economical and beneficial 
manner while providing members with broad coverage and quality services in risk management and 
claims management. 
 
 A. CALL TO ORDER   
     
 B. ROLL CALL   
     
 C. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

This time is reserved for members of the public to address the Board of 
Directors on matters pertaining to NCCSIF that are of interest to them. 

  

     
pg. 6 D. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the consent calendar are considered routine with no 
separate discussion necessary. Any member of the public or the Board of 
Directors may request any item to be considered separately. 

A 1 

pg. 7  1. Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - April 21, 2022   
pg. 17  2. Check Register from March 1, 2022 to May 31, 2022   
  3. Investment Reports   
pg. 20 
 
pg. 103 
pg. 104 

 a. Chandler Asset Management Short/Long Term - March 2021 to May 
2022 

b. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report as of March 31, 2021 
c. Treasurer’s Report as of March 31, 2022 

  

pg. 105  4. FY 22/23 Lexipol Fire Subscription Services pricing    
pg. 106  5. FY 22/23  Lexipol Law Enforcement Subscription Services pricing   
pg. 107  6. Crowe LLP Financial Auditing Services Engagement Letter    
pg. 121  7.  Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Quarterly Report as of June 2022   
pg. 126  8. Sedgwick Service Agreement for Administration of Claims Program    

A - Action 
I - Information 
 
1 - Attached 
2 - Hand Out 
3 - Separate Cover 
4 - Verbal 



 
 

Page 2 of  526 

President 
Mr. Dave Warren 
City of Placerville 
 
Treasurer 
Ms. Jen Lee 
City of Rio Vista  

Vice President 
Ms. Elizabeth Ehrenstrom 
City of Oroville 
 
Secretary 
Ms. Jennifer Styczynski  
City of Marysville  

     
     
     
pg.148 E. GENERAL RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 

This is an opportunity for a member to discuss a topic of interest or seek 
guidance and input from the group about a current issue, risk management 
topic or exposure the member is facing. 

I 1 

     
 F. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS I  
     
  1. President’s Report 

Dave Warren will address the Board on items pertaining to NCCSIF. 
 4 

     
  2. CJPRMA Update 

Elizabeth Ehrenstrom will update the Committee on CJPRMA matters 
pertinent to NCCSIF. Minutes of the meeting can be found at 
http://www.cjprma.org 

 4 

     
  3. Program Administrator’s Report 

Alliant will address the Board on items pertaining to NCCSIF. 
a. Service Provider Survey 
b. Member Training Fund  
c. Thank you to Dave Warren  

  

     
pg.181  4. Summary of the May 26, 2022 Executive Committee Meeting 

The Board will receive a summary of the actions taken at the May 26, 
2022 Executive Committee meeting. 

 1 

     
 G. FINANCIAL REPORTS   
     
pg.182   1. Quarterly Financial Report for Period Ending March 31, 2022 

James Marta & Company will present the quarterly financial report 
ending March 31, 2022 for the Board to Accept and File. 

A 1 

     
pg.219  2. Budget to Actual as of March 31, 2022 

The Board will receive an update on the Budget to Actual as of March 31, 
2022. 

I 1 

     
     
     
     
     
     



 
 

Page 3 of  526 

President 
Mr. Dave Warren 
City of Placerville 
 
Treasurer 
Ms. Jen Lee 
City of Rio Vista  

Vice President 
Ms. Elizabeth Ehrenstrom 
City of Oroville 
 
Secretary 
Ms. Jennifer Styczynski  
City of Marysville  

 H. JPA BUSINESS   
     
 
 
 
 
pg. 220 
 
 
pg. 233 

 1. FY 22/23 Memorandum of Coverage (MOC) 
Annually, the Board reviews NorCal Cities’ MOCs to approve or make 
changes to the current versions.  

 
a.  Liability MOC 

The Board will receive the Liability MOC for approval.  
 
b.     Workers’ Compensation MOC 

The Board will receive the Workers’ Compensation MOC for 
approval.  

A 1 

     
  2. FY 22/23 Property Program Renewal    

     
pg. 252  a. NCCSIF Property Renewal Proposal 

The Board will be asked to review and approve the renewal of the 
Property coverage with Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP). 

A 1 

     
pg. 342  b. APIP Pollution 

The Board will be asked to review and approve the renewal of the 
Pollution coverage with Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP). 

I 1 

     
pg. 360  c. APIP Cyber Coverage Renewals 

The Board will review and may approve the renewals of the APIP 
Cyber Coverage options. 

I 1 

     
pg. 370  d. APIP Claims Reporting Acknowledgements 

The Board will be provided with an outline and be asked to 
acknowledge the reporting procedure guidelines that should be 
followed immediately after a Property, Pollution or Cyber Liability loss 
or incident. 

I 1 

     
pg. 372  e. Alliant Deadly Weapon Response Program (ADWRP) 

The Board will review and may approve the renewal of the ADWRP 
coverage. 

A 1 

     
pg. 388  f. Flood Coverage 

Members will be reminded of the flood coverage available under the 
Property Program and interested members will receive optional quotes. 

I 1 

     
     



 
 

Page 4 of  526 

President 
Mr. Dave Warren 
City of Placerville 
 
Treasurer 
Ms. Jen Lee 
City of Rio Vista  

Vice President 
Ms. Elizabeth Ehrenstrom 
City of Oroville 
 
Secretary 
Ms. Jennifer Styczynski  
City of Marysville  

pg. 390  g. Excess Cyber Coverage Renewal 
The Board will review options for excess cyber coverage and may 
approve, reject, or provide direction.  

A 2 

     
pg. 391  3. FY 22/23 Crime Coverage Renewal 

The Board will review a proposal and options for Crime coverage with 
Alliant Crime Insurance Program (ACIP) for approval or direction.  

A 1 

     
pg. 406  4. FY 22/23 Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement Coverage Renewal 

The Board will review and may approve the renewal of ID Fraud 
Coverage for NCCSIF member employees. 

A 1 

     
pg.427  5. FY 22/23 Trustee Errors & Omissions (APPL) Coverage  

The Board is asked to approve the 22-23 APPL proposal as presented 
and previously recommended for purchase. 

A 1 

     
pg. 447  6. FY 22/23 NCCSIF Administrative Budget 

The Board will review and approve the Administration Budget as 
presented or amended. 

A 1 

     
 
pg. 450 
 
pg. 455 
 

 7. Adoption of FY 22/23 Program Budget 
a. Liability - Approval of the Deposit Calculations for the Liability 

Program. 
b. Workers’ Compensation -  Approval of the Deposit Calculations for 

the Workers’ Compensation Program. 

 
A 

 
 

A 

 
1 

 
 

1 

     
pg. 459  8. Conflict of Interest Code  

Review and approve the Conflict of Interest Code as done every even 
year.  

A 1 

     
pg. 463  9. Resolution 22-01 Authorizing Signers for the Investment of Monies in 

the Local Agency Investment Fund ( LAIF) 
Review and approve Resolution 22-01 Authorizing signers to transfer    
money to or from LAIF. 

A 1 

     
pg. 466  10. FY 22/23 Meeting Calendar 

The Board will be asked to approve the Preliminary FY 22/23 Meeting 
Calendar. 

A 1 

     
pg. 468  11.  Strategic Plan Update 

     The Board is presented the latest update to the strategic planning for 
review, discussion, and feedback or direction as needed.  

I 1 



Page 5 of  526 

President 
Mr. Dave Warren 
City of Placerville 

Treasurer 
Ms. Jen Lee 
City of Rio Vista 

Vice President 
Ms. Elizabeth Ehrenstrom 
City of Oroville 

Secretary 
Ms. Jennifer Styczynski  
City of Marysville  

pg. 471 I 1 

pg. 478 A 1 

pg. 480 

12. FY 22/23 Service Calendar
The Board is presented a service calendar to keep abreast with business 
items and their required completion dates.

13. Workers’ Compensation RFP & Ad Hoc Committee
The Board will review and provide feedback regarding the RFP process 
and schedule and appoint an Ad Hoc Committee to review the responses.

14. ACI Specialty Benefits
The Board will review and may authorize Dave Warren to sign the 
renewal engagement letter.

A 1 

pg. 498 I. INFORMATION ITEMS I 1 
pg. 499 1. Glossary of Terms
pg. 508 2. NorCal Cities Organizational Chart
pg. 509 3. NorCal Cities Resource Contact Guide
pg. 522 4. Sedgwick Who’s Who in Claims - WC and Liability Contacts
pg. 524 5. 2022 CAJPA Conference September 13-16, 2022
pg. 525 6. AB 1234 Ethics in Public Service – July 12, 2022
pg. 526 7. Travel Mileage Reimbursement Form

J. ADJOURNMENT

UPCOMING MEETINGS
Police Risk Management Committee Meeting - August 4, 2022
Claims Committee Meeting - September 22, 2022
Executive Committee Meeting - September 22, 2022
Risk Management Committee Meeting - October 20, 2022
Board of Directors Meeting - October 20, 2022
Police Risk Management Committee Meeting - November 3, 2022

Per Government Code 54954.2, persons requesting disability related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or 
services in order to participate in the meeting, are requested to contact Jenna Wirkner at Alliant Insurance Services at (916) 643-
2741. 

The Agenda packet will be posted on the NCCSIF website at www.nccsif.org. Documents and material relating to an open session 
agenda item that are provided to the NCCSIF Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to a regular meeting will be available for 
public inspection and copying at 2180 Harvard Street, Suite 460, Sacramento, CA 95815. 

Access to some buildings and offices may require routine provisions of identification to building security. However, NCCSIF does not 
require any member of the public to register his or her name or to provide other information, as a condition to attendance at any 
public meeting and will not inquire of building security concerning information so provided. See Government Code section 54953.3. 



BACK TO AGENDA  

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item D. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

ACTION ITEM 

ISSUE: Items on the Consent Calendar should be reviewed by the Board. If any item requires 
clarification or amendment, they may be pulled from the consent agenda for separate discussion. 

Items pulled from the Consent Calendar will be placed back on the agenda in an order determined by 
the President. 

RECOMMENDATION: Adoption of the Consent Calendar after review by the Board.  

FISCAL IMPACT: None. 

BACKGROUND: Routine items and those that may require no discussion are placed on the Consent 
Calendar for adoption. The Board may accept the Consent Calendar as presented or pull items for 
discussion and separate action while accepting the remaining items. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - April 21, 2022
2. Check Register from March 1, 2022 to May 31, 2022
3. Investment Reports

a. Chandler Asset Management Short/Long Term - March 2021 to May 2022
b. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report as of March 31, 2021
c. Treasurer’s Report as of March 31, 2022

4. FY 22/23 Lexipol Fire Subscription Services pricing
5. FY 22/23 Lexipol Law Enforcement Subscription Services pricing
6. Crowe LLP Financial Auditing Services Engagement Letter
7. Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Quarterly Report as of June 2022
8. Sedgwick Service Agreement for Administration of Claims Program

 
Page 6 of 526



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
APRIL 21, 2022  

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority

Page 1 of 10 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT 

Liz Cottrell, City of Anderson 
Ishrat Aziz- Khan, City of Colusa  
Jim Ramsey, City of Elk Grove   
Stephanie Van Steyn, City of Galt 
Michael Rock, City of Ione 

Nathan Bagwill, City of Auburn  
 Kristina Miller, City of Corning 
Allison Garcia, City of Folsom 
Elisa Arteaga, City of Gridley 
Dalacie Blankenship, City of Jackson 
Elizabeth Ehrenstrom, City of Oroville Jennifer Styczynski, City of Marysville  

Ross Gilb, Town of Paradise Dave Warren, City of Placerville 
City of Rocklin, Andrew Schiltz Marti Brown, City of Willows 
Natalie Springer, City of Yuba City

OTHER MEMBERS PRESENT 
Amanda Tonks, City of Rocklin

COMMITTEE MEMBERS ABSENT  
Rachel Ancheta, City of Dixon Yvonne Kimball, City of Jackson 
Veronica Rodriguez, City of Lincoln Sean Grayson, City of Nevada City  
Sandra Ryan, City of Red Bluff Spencer Morrison, City of Yuba City  

Jenna Wirkner, Alliant Insurance Services 
Erik Baumle, Sedgwick 
Summer Simpson, Sedgwick 
Ritesh Sharma, James Marta and Company  

CONSULTANTS & GUESTS 
Marcus Beverly, Alliant Insurance Services 
Conor Boughey, Alliant Insurance Services  
Eric Lucero, Sedgwick 
Mike Harrington, Bickmore  

A. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Dave Warren called the meeting to order at 12:03p.m. 

B. ROLL CALL

Roll call was made, and a majority of the members were present constituting a quorum. 

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were no public comments. 

D. CONSENT CALENDAR
1. Board Meeting Minutes – December 16, 2021
2. Check Register from December 2022 to March 21, 2022
3. Investment Reports

 
Page 7 of 526



 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
APRIL 21, 2022  

 

 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 Page 2 of 10 

4. Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Quarterly Claims Report   
5. 21/22 Alliant-Commission Opt-Out Letter dated November 15, 2022   
6. FY 21/22 NorCal Cities Liability Program Claims Audit and Sedgwick 

response 
  

7. Lintelio, LLC Master Subscription Agreement     

8. Alliant PE Pool Database Agreement and Flyer   
 
A motion was made to approve the consent calendar.  
 

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstrom  SECOND: Andy Schiltz  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer  
Nays: None.  
 
E. General Risk Management Issues  
 
Members discussed General Risk Management Issues.  
 
F.1.  President Report 
 
Mr. Dave Warren disused that Jose Jasso our current Vice President will be leaving and going to 
the City of Manteca.  
 
F.2. CJPRMA Update 
 
No update was provided.  
 
F.3. Program Administrator’s Report  
 
Members were reminded about the member training funds and Police Risk Management 
Committee Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

a. Chandler Asset Management Short/Long Term - December 2021 to 
March 2022 

b. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Report as of December 31, 
2021 

c. Treasurer’s Report as of December 31, 2021 

  

 
Page 8 of 526



 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
APRIL 21, 2022  

 

 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 Page 3 of 10 

F.4. SUMMARY OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING ON MARCH 24, 2022 
 
Mr. Beverly gave an overview of the Executive Committee meeting on March 24, 2022. 
 
F.5. FY 21/22 PRISM Member Annual Report 
 
Mr. Beverly gave an overview of the 21/22 PRISM Annual Report. 
 
G. FY 22/23 Officers and Executive Committee  
 
Mr. Beverly discussed the FY 22/23 Officer and Executive Committee Rotation. The FY 22/23 
Officers are President – Liz Cottrell (City of Anderson), Vice President – Rachel Ancheta (City of 
Dixon), Treasurer – Jen Lee (Rio Vista) and Secretary Jennifer Styczynski (City of Marysville).  
 
 
H.1. Quarterly Financial Report for Period Ending December 31, 2021 
 
Ritesh Sharma from James Marta and Company gave an overview of the quarterly financial report 
for period ending December 31, 2021. The financials don’t include the actuarial reports. The total 
asset for all layers is $28,853,536. Overall the Liability Programs are seeing an increase in the Net 
Position. The workers compensation program is in a good place. The change in net position (pg 
197). The hope is by the end of the year we will see positive outcome with the investment portfolio. 
Mr. Sharma discussed the usage reports for Risk Management Reserves and the Police Risk 
Mangement Reserves Funds.  
   
A motion was made to receive and file the December 31, 2021, Quarterly Financial Report.  
 

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstrom  SECOND: Jennifer Styczynski  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  
 
H.2. Budget to Actual as of December 31, 2021 
 
Mr. Beverly discussed the remaining funds in the Risk Reserve Funds and Police Risk 
Management Grant Funds.  
  
I. JPA Business 
 
I.1. FY 22/23 NCCSIF Administration Budget 
 
Mr. Beverly discussed the changes to the FY 22/23 NCCSIF Administration Budget.  

 
Page 9 of 526



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
APRIL 21, 2022  

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

Page 4 of 10 

I.2.a. Actuarial Study for Workers’ Compensation Program

Mike Harrington from Bickmore Actuarial gave an update on the Actuarial Study for the Workers 
‘Compensation Program.  The Actuarial Study is the Outstanding Liabilities for June 30, 2022, 
and the 22-23 Funding Guidelines. The program is well funded and moving in the right direction. 
All actuarial estimates for WC exclude 4850 SC and 4850 TD payments. The estimated payment 
for period ending 6/30/22 is $138, 911,300. To be 90% certain we have enough to cover the claims 
we should have $47,072,000. We project at the 80% confidence level. The shared layer is down. 
ultimate’s, Liabilities, and rates are down.   

I.2.b. Actuarial Study for Liability Program

Mr. Harrington gave an overview of the Actuarial Study for the Liability Program. The rate at the 
80% confidence level for the current $500,000 SIR is $2.923 per $100 of payroll, compared to 
$2.851 last year.  The SIR will be moving from $500,000 to $750,000 for FY 22/23, with total 
funding at the 80% confidence level estimated at $6,390,000, or $3.24 per $100 of member payroll. 
We are paying more in the pool but should be paying less for Excess Liability.  It is estimated that 
the Liability program will have total assets of approximately $19,088,000 on June 30, 2022, 
compared to $17,915,000 last year. The NCCSIF rate is increasing from $2.851 to $3.243, or 
13.7%, with a 50% SIR increase.  

A motion was made to receive and file the Liability and Workers Compensation Actuarial 
reports.  

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstron  SECOND: Andy Schiltz  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  

I.3. Workers Compensation Program

I.3.a. Annual Banking Plan Adjustments – James Marta & Company

Ritesh Sharma from James Marta and Company discussed the Annual Banking Plan Adjustments 
as of 12/30/21.  

Members had no discussion. 

A motion was made to approve the Annual Banking Plan Adjustments. 

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstron  SECOND: Dalacie Blankenship. MOTION CARRIED 

 
Page 10 of 526



 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
APRIL 21, 2022  

 

 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 Page 5 of 10 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  
 
I.3.b. Annual Shared Risk Plan Adjustments – Alliant Insurance Services 
 
Mr. Beverly discussed the Annual Shared Risk Plan Adjustments. We recommend a 25% refund 
or more of the available amount.  
 
A motion was made to approve a 25% refund.  
 

MOTION: Jim Ramsey  SECOND: Liz ehrenstron 
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  
 
 
I.3.c. FY 22/23 Deposit Premium Calculation 
 
Mr. Beverly gave an overview of the FY 22/23 Deposit Premium Calculations. The underlying 
rate is going down this year. The shared layer has a 35% increase. Use the relative loss rate to 
determine where you stand. The PRISM estimate for 22/23 is $2,269,000. 
 
A motion was made to approve the FY 22/23 WC Deposit Premium Calculations.  
 

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstrom SECOND: Jennifer Styczynski  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  
 
 
I.4. Liability Program 
 
I.4.a. Annual Banking Plan Adjustments – James Marta & Company 
 
Mr. Sharma gave an overview of the adjusted numbers after the actuarial study. The recommended 
dividend is 35% of the available Net Position. The assessment at 20% of the amount below the 
target is per the NCCSF Policy and Procedure A-1.  
 
A motion was made to recommend the board at 35% dividend of the available net position.   

 
Page 11 of 526



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
APRIL 21, 2022  

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

Page 6 of 10 

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstrom  SECOND: Kristina Millar 
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  

I.4.b. Annual Shared Risk Plan Adjustments – Alliant Insurance Services

Mr. Beverly discussed the Workers’ Compensation Annual Shared Risk Plan Adjustments.  Based 
on the most recent actuary report, the Fund is estimated to have available assets of $11,457,000 as 
of June 30,2022. This $4,144,000 above Outstanding Liabilities at the Expected Confidence Level 
(CL) and $1,870,000 over Liabilities at the 90% CL, compared to $26,000 last year. The
recommendation is to not make any refunds or assessments.

A motion was made for no refund or assessment. 

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstrom  SECOND: Andy Schiltz  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  

I.4.c. FY 22/23 Deposit Premium Calculations

Mr. Beverly discussed the FY 22/23 Deposit Premium Calculations. We will be moving to a 
$750,000 SIR for FY 22/23. This is accounting for 14% increase in the base rate. Total funding at 
an 80% Confidence Level (CL) and $750,000 SIR is estimated at $11,918,293 and increase of 25% 
over FY 21/22 funding. A payroll increase of 7%, excess coverage increases of 31%, and 14% 
increase in the base rate (with $25,000 SIR increase) are driving the funding. Recommending 
approve funding at an 80% CL with an SIR of $750,000. Approve variable 40% net cap on funding. 

A motion was made to approve the preliminary deposit premium calculations at 80% 
confidence level and a 40% cap.  

MOTION: Dalacie 
Blankenship 

SECOND: Kristina Millar
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  

 
Page 12 of 526



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
APRIL 21, 2022  

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

Page 7 of 10 

I.5. Consideration of Board E&O Coverage

Mr. Beverly discussed the consideration of Board E&O Coverage. This coverage for Board 
members if they were to get sued. This would protect the pool from paying out of the Liability 
Layer. 

A motion was made to request a formal quote. 

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstrom  SECOND: Kristina Millar 
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  

I.6. FY 22/23 Renewal Updates

Mr. Beverly gave an overview of the FY 22/23 Renewal Updates.  

Property Program – The estimated increase for FY 22/23 is 15%-25%. This is in addition to the 
inflation trend factors increasing the total insured values an average of 6% this year. Combined we 
are expecting 30%-35% increases in total premium.  

Cyber Insurance- The market is experiencing extreme rate increases, from 60% to 600%.  

Crime- Expecting 10%-15% increase overall for the coverage in the ACIP program.  
Individual Purchase Coverage-  

I.7. Appointment of CJPRMA Board Alternate and Nomination of NCCSIF Board Officers

Members discussed nominations.  

A motion was made to appoint Stephanie Van Steyn as the CJPRMA Board Alternate, elect 
FY 22-23 Officers Liz Cottrell President, Rachel Ancheta Vice President, Secretary Jennifer 
Styczynski, Treasurer Jen Lee, and Liz Ehrenstrom as the Vice President for the remainder 
for 21-22.  

MOTIN: Dave Warren  SECOND: Liz Ehrenstrom 
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  

 
Page 13 of 526



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
APRIL 21, 2022  

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

Page 8 of 10 

I.8. FY 22/23 Meeting Calendar

Mr. Beverly discussed the proposed FY 22/23 Meeting Calendar.  

A motion was made to approve the proposed FY 22/23 Meeting Calendar.  

MOTION: Liz Ehrenstrom  SECOND: Kristina Millar 
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  

I.9. Policy and Procedure Review

L-4. Formula for Determining Liability Annual Deposit –
The P&P has been revised to clean up the language describing the formulas for the Banking
Layer and Excess Insurance allocations and the allocation of administrative expenses, with no
changes to the formulas themselves.

A-2. Service provider performance evaluation-
This P&P has been updated to remove reference to the specific timing of the evaluation and use
of the NorCal Cities website. The latest survey questions are also added to update the Policy.

A-10. Annual Calendar of Reports, Audits and fillings
No updates are required for this Policy, and it will be noted as reviewed 9/16/21.

A motion was made to approve the updates to the Policy and Procedures. 

MOTION: Jim Ramsey SECOND: Elizabeth Ehrenstrom 
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  

I.10. Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Claims Administration Services Renewal
Agreement

Mr. Beverly discussed the Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Claims Administration Services 
Renewal Agreement. The fee for 7/1/22-6/30/23 $626, 645.  The PRISM and NCCSIF 

 
Page 14 of 526



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
APRIL 21, 2022  

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

Page 9 of 10 

performance standards are included in the renewal contract. Members do have access to Company 
Nurse if they complete the enrollment form.  

The recommendation from the EC is to renew the contract for 1 year with two optional terms.  

Members discussed approving the contract for first year and two optional years. We can do a 
survey in the fall to determine if we need to do and rfp in the fall. Member discussed that Sedgwick 
hasn’t been flexible with member requests.  

Members discussed the PRISM performance reviews and how they have gone down over the years. 
Members discussed issues with the adjusters and having to contact physical therapists.  

Members discussed doing and RFP. It will take at least 9 months to complete the RFP. We will 
need to have panel review.  

Members discussed frustrations with not receiving updates when they get a new adjuster. Adjusters 
are asking employees to make employees and find Drs.  

Members discussed doing the RFP now.  

Mr. Boughey recommended an AD HOC Committee.  
Amanda Tonks left the meeting at 2:17p.m.  

A motion was made to do a 1-year agreement with 2-year extension. We will go ahead with 
the RFP process and do a survey.  

MOTION: Jim Ramsey SECOND: Michael Rock  
MOTION CARRIED 

UNANIMOUSLY 
Ayes: Cottrell, Bagwill, Aziz-Khan, Miller, Ramsey, Garcia, Van Steyn, Arteaga, Rock, 
Blankenship, Styczynski, Ehrenstrom, Gilb, Warren, Schiltz, Brown, Springer 
Nays: None.  

Sedgwick returned to the meeting.  

J. Information Items
.

J. INFORMATION ITEMS
1. Glossary of Terms

2. NCCSIF Organizational Chart

3. NCCSIF 2021-2022 Meeting Calendar

 
Page 15 of 526



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 

ROCKLIN EVENT CENTER  
APRIL 21, 2022  

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

Page 10 of 10 

4. NCCSIF Resource Contact Guide

5. Sedgwick Who’s Who in Claims - WC and Liability Contacts

6. James Marta & Company Accounting team bio

7. ACI Training Flyer – Supporting Employees Mental Health – April 26th, 2022

8. Police Risk Management Training with Ed Obayashi – May 5th, 2022

9. ACI Training Flyer – Developing Team Relationships – May 24th, 2022

10. Travel Mileage Reimbursement Form

These items were provided as information only.

M. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 22:30 p.m.  

Next Meeting Date: April 21, 2022  

Respectfully Submitted, 

___________________________ 
Jennifer Styczynski, Secretary 

____________ 
Date 

 
Page 16 of 526



Company Name: NCCSIF
Report Name: NCCSIF Check Register Board Report
Created On: 3/21/2022
Check# Date Vendor Account Title Account Memo Amount

12045 3/4/2022 Sedgwick CMS Svcs Inc Claims Admin WC Only 52300 Feb 2022 WC Claims 50,699.33

12046 3/4/2022 City of Marysville Member Trng and RM 52207 11.15-19.21 CALPELRA Reg - N Moe 1,927.97
12047 3/4/2022 York Risk Svcs Grp Inc. On Site 52204 Safety and Risk Ctrl Svcs - Jan 2022 14,873.33
12048 3/4/2022 City of Galt Police RM Grant Funds 52209 Implement Body Worn Cameras Prog 21,210.00
12049 3/4/2022 Sedgwick CMS, Inc Claims Admin Liab ULAE 51135 Feb 2022 Liab Claims 21,813.00
12050 3/4/2022 JM and Co LLP Accounting Services 52403 Monthly Accth Svcs - Feb 2022 9,480.00
12051 3/4/2022 Alliant Ins Svcs Inc Program Admin Fee 52401 02/22 Monthly Installment 30,114.83
12052 3/4/2022 City of Yuba City Member Trng and RM 52207 2021 CalPELRA Conf- Loza, Springer 4,000.00
12053 3/4/2022 CAM, Inc. Investment Income 44040 Investment Income 5,222.23
12054 3/4/2022 CJPRMA Excess Dep/Prem Exp 54100 Corridor Deductible 7/13-6/16 123,916.05

3/4/2022 CJPRMA Other Insurance Exp 54150 Drone-Grid-1865161/68 948.00
12055 3/21/2022 City of Ione Police RM Grant Funds 52209 Reimb-New Body Cameras 1,584.00

3/21/2022 City of Ione Safety Grant Funds 54200 Reimb-New Body Cameras 4,514.00
12056 3/21/2022 City of Oroville Member Trng and RM 52207 2022 PARMA Conf and Trng/RM - EE 1,548.55
12057 3/21/2022 Sedgwick CMS Svcs Inc Claims Admin - Liab ALE 51136 2/22/2022 TE Peggy Pfahlert 281.75
12058 3/21/2022 City of Jackson Member Trng and RM 52207 2022 City Managers Conf 1,346.04

 
Page 17 of 526



Company Name: NCCSIF
Report Name: NCCSIF Check Register Board Report
Created On: 4/30/2022

Check# Date Vendor Account Title Account Memo Amount

8872 4/12/2022 Think Outside the Box, Inc Board Meetings 52503 04/21/22 Catering - BOD Mtg 580.00
12059 4/6/2022 CAM, Inc. Investment Income 44040 Investment Income 5,181.28
12060 4/6/2022 City of Dixon Member Trng and RM 52207 PARMA Anaheim 2022 1,608.45
12061 4/6/2022 York Risk Svcs Group Inc. On Site 52204 Safety and Risk Ctrl Svcs - 03/22 14,873.33
12062 4/6/2022 JM and Co., LLP Accounting Services 52403 Monthly Acctg Svcs - Mar 2022 9,480.00
12063 4/6/2022 Sedgwick CMS, Inc Claims Admin - Liab ULAE 51135 Mar 2022 Liab Claims 21,813.00
12064 4/6/2022 Sedgwick CMS, Inc Claims Admin -  WC Only 52300 Mar 2022 WC Claims 50,699.33
12065 4/6/2022 Alliant Ins Svcs Inc Program Admin Fee 52401 04/22 Monthly Installment 30,114.83
12066 4/6/2022 Prime Actuarial Consulting, LLC Actuarial Services 52104 Actuarial Rev - Self-Insurance 12,500.00
12067 4/20/2022 Gibbons and Conley Legal Services 52103 Gen Matters March 2022 1,268.43
12068 4/20/2022 Company Nurse, LLC Claims Admin Fee 52302 Custom Provider Alert 1,000.00
12069 4/20/2022 Jenna Wirkner Board Meetings 52503 Catering Reimb - Board Mtg 283.15

 
Page 18 of 526



Company Name: NCCSIF
Report Name: NCCSIF Check Register Board Report
Created On: 5/31/2022
Check# Date Vendor Account Title Account Memo Amount

12070 5/5/2022 Jenna Wirkner Board Meetings 52503 PRMC Mtg, Panera Lunch Reimb 5.6.22 430.24
52503 Catering Reimb 4.21.22 RMC BOD Mtg 15.36

12071 5/5/2022 CA Joint Powers RMA Other Ins Expense 54150 Drone - City of Rocklin - 1938915 319.00
54150 Drone - City of Lincoln - 1938913 940.00
54150 Drone - City of Rocklin - 1938910 1,519.00

12072 5/5/2022 Jim Ramsey BOD Long Range Planning 52509 12/21 RMC BOD Mtg 38.08
52509 4/22 RMC BOD Mtg 39.38

12073 5/5/2022 Kristina Miller BOD Long Range Planning 52509 4.21.22 BOD Mtg 98.28
12074 5/5/2022 Sedgwick CMS, Inc Claims Admin -  WC Only 52300 Apr 2022 WC Claims 50,699.33
12075 5/5/2022 York Risk Svcs Group Inc. On Site 52204 Safety and Risk Ctrl Svcs - Mar 2022 14,873.33
12076 5/5/2022 Liz Cottrell BOD Long Range Planning 52509 4.21.22 BOD Mtg 196.56
12077 5/5/2022 Liz Ehrenstrom BOD Long Range Planning 52509 4.21.22 RMC BOD Mtg 70.20
12078 5/5/2022 Sedgwick CMS, Inc Claims Admin - Liability ULAE 51135 Apr 2022 Liab Claims 21,813.00
12079 5/5/2022 Alliant Ins Svcs Inc Program Admin Fee 52401 05/22 Monthly Installment 30,114.83
12080 5/5/2022 James Marta and Co LLP Accounting Services 52403 Monthly Acctg Svcs - Apr 2022 9,480.00
12081 5/5/2022 CAM, Inc. Investment Income 44040 Investment Income 5,129.04
12082 5/23/2022 City of Anderson Member Trng and RM 52207 11/21 CALPELRA Reimb - L Cottrell 1,888.76

52207 11/21 CALPELRA Reimb - Kiser 1,945.60
12083 5/23/2022 Ross Gilb Board Meetings 52503 12.16.21 BOD Mtg 67.20

BOD Long Range Planning 52509 10.27.21 BOD Mtg 67.20
52509 4.21.22 BOD Mtg 70.20

12084 5/23/2022 Crystal Peters BOD Long Range Planning 52509 4.21.22 RMC and BOD Mtgs 93.60
12085 5/23/2022 Jenna Wirkner Board Meetings 52503 Reimb 5.5.22 PRMC Mtg 22.94
12086 5/23/2022 City of Elk Grove Police Risk Mgmt Grant Funds 52209 Wellness Program - Cordico PC 6,060.00
12087 5/23/2022 Natalie Springer Board Meetings 52503 4.21.22 BOD Mtg 37.44
12088 5/23/2022 Sheleen Loza Board Meetings 52503 4.21.22 RM Mtg 37.44
12089 5/23/2022 Stephanie Van Steyn Board Meetings 52503 4.21.22 RMC Mtg 54.17
12090 5/23/2022 City of Dixon Risk Mgmt Comm Services 52201 Reimb Covid Tests & Safety, Monitor 10,925.75

5/23/2022 City of Dixon Member Training and RM 52207 PARMA Anaheim 2022 K Staile 1,696.01

 
Page 19 of 526



��������	

�������	�������������
	�
����������������������������������	������� !"#$%&'(�)*�+,++�-(&./0(�$%&'(�1)*�+,++
23456789:53�;5398:3<=�><6<:3�:?�;534:=<39:8@A�B<�C6D<�E5C�95�;57F86<�9>:?�?989<7<39�95�9><�53<�E5C�6<;<:G<�4657�E5C6�HC8@:4:<=�;C?95=:83A�I@<8?<�?<<�27F569839�J:?;@5?C6<?AKLMNOPQR�STTUV�WSXSYUWUXVZ[\]̂ _̀a\bb̀cdZef


�g��������g�hijk�lmnopqjro�stjmp�ujmk�svvjmrp*�wxnson�vsxx�yz,,{�1)|}~|~|*jk�vjrpsvp�����g��������g�����g��������
������g��sr��j���n���jk��$nxxjr�smknr��n�rnky�,~{��~�})�)z
 

Page 20 of 526



����������		�
� ���������������������� ����������������������� !"#$�% &'# ()*+,(*,(( ()*(,-*(.(/00!'#1�23$#!#4$ --(*5.6 +5*5..78$ &�� !"#$�% &'# �9:;<=:9<� �>:>=<:��<2308?#�@ !3#1 (+*65A )A*(+5B83$CDE AF ! (6*(+5*.++ (6*)6(*5-,G88"�% &'# (6*)5(*65( (6*6H+*6A.B84$�% &'# (6*6(,*+A+ (6*.A)*HA.
��I�J����
�KLMNOPQNPR�LS�TPURNV�WRXRNY H-Z+[\NVNOX]�̂LQN�_LXP�̀LORaXaN�bLOc -6Z5[\NVNOX]�dXRULPX]�̀LORaXaN�eYYLf -HZ-[\NVNOX]�̂LQN�_LXP�gXPh 5ZA[iPR]�gXPh�jNfLP�XPV�kNMN]LcQNPR HZ6[K̀ �\UPXPfUX]�elRLQLmU]N�_NXYUPa HZ)[nLoLRX�egW HZH[gXPh�LS�eQNOUfX�bLOc -Z+[��p�� q9��r

I�
�s�tJ���u�
����
J��J��eMNOXaN�̀LVUSUNV�klOXRULP HZ6.eMNOXaN�bLlcLP -Z).[eMNOXaN�vlOfwXYN�xǹ -Z(5[eMNOXaN�̀XOhNR�xǹ HZ).[eMNOXaN�Wyvz̀LLVo�jXRUPa eezeX-eMNOXaN�\UPX]�̀XRlOURo HZ,5�oOYeMNOXaN�_USN HZ.6�oOY �
�{J��|��tJ���}�~I�	���
J���{J��
J���J�������
��tt����J��
I��p�������������/4�8��� !0�������������p���������p�������J����s��������p����effLlPR��-5A

I�
s�
	�����
��J�� ������������������������������ �	 �	 ��{ ��
 ��
� ��
� 9�
� �;�
� �������<<=dLORwNOP�be�bURUNY�WN]S�iPYZ�\lPV�WwLOR�nNOQ �-Z5.[ �(ZHH[ �(ZHH[ �(Z.A[ �-ZAH[ -Z-H[ -Z(+[ -ZH+[ (Z),[ib �gLSe�-�6�xO�TW�nONXYlOo�y�eaNPfo�iPVN¡ �-Z,.[ �(Z-.[ �(Z-.[ �(Z5-[ �-Z+-[ AZ+-[ -Z-6[ -ZA)[ (Z-,[ib �gLSe�-�6�xO�eee�e�TW�bLOc�y�KLMR�iPVN¡ �-Z,)[ �(ZHA[ �(ZHA[ �(Z5A[ �-Z.([ AZ++[ -ZH6[ -Z-.[ (ZH,[ ¡NflRULP�nUQN¢�)z(zHAHH�-¢A(¢)-�v̀bwXPV]NO�eYYNR�̀XPXaNQNPR���b£d\ik dnie_ vXaN�- 
Page 21 of 526



�������� 	��
���� �����
��������������� ������������ ��� !"#$%&'�(�������)*+��,��� ������������-��,��.�/����+�+�01�,2�.3����+�+�4����5���+5��,�������3��.,����������6�.����+�+��1��+�����������.1��5�7�.����+�(���������7�.�����+��,�8'&9������� ��� !"#$&�4����������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?��������-�����.1��A:B3�CD���*BA���� ��� !"#$E���,�4��&�,������� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$*����0A�,2�.)E���+�+�0A�,2�.&�,������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-F=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$A��2��G�*,,�4���,�� H=>��?����-IJ=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D�����,���K�4�� *0I8K0I1���:&:;-F@>��?����-FL=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D��4�����E�.������������ *�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$E����E��2��E�����C��.� M�+5��������+�1��N��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$E�����C��.� M�+5��������+�1��N��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$��+����1��DB� <=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$����D����7�,�����7B�4����-D����������6�.A��2B�4����� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$O*�C E�?��������N4������ ��� !"#$:�4��,5���*+�������� I������?��������-������.1���(�������*.(���� ��� !"#$K��5�1���. D�������4��7����.���,2�3,��(����1����P��21��.�3,����.�����3�4�����3������.4�������5�4�3'�D�3:�(������4��,5����+��������3��������..�4�����3��(����7�������-���+�������3����+�+�.���(�.3����������������4�3Q������������,,������,��������75��.����������-��(��������.���������.�����0%&B-D����������6�.E���+�+�;1��+������RDE;�SN��5,�������������4�,�7�,����'�E*3CMOED3��C�E*-K��,5����+��������+��,������������+��-&�,����������.��+�������5��7����71����N��+����(���+� ��� !"#$E�?K�������� @>4����������������������������?4��,���������.���5�4���,�3�?,��.��+%T&T+�(�������3�+��,�3��(�������4���3��.��������2��7��.� ��� !"#$E�?����E������� I=����� ��� !"#$

U���V��
��WXY��
X��X�X�Z	�WY[\
Z]��
̂�_]
�[	V���̀���ab# �cde�!"�f�� !"#$g"db$dhd#!hghijg"dbdb#�!"#idk$"il#$d�#id �!"fmn	������
��Y���oWX�
̂�p$�eqhcfbrstuvuu

 
Page 22 of 526



���������	�
	����������	���������������	 ������������������������� �!"#$%&'(�)$%#*+,", -./012345.6 �789"(�7+%:"'�;$9<�)$%#*+,", -0=61>33546 �789"(�7+%:"'�?89'%&@$'&89, ->5>> �!"#$%&'(�?89'%&@$'&89, ->5>> �!"#$%&'(�A%+9,B"%, ->5>>������CD������������� �E�FG���HH�E�I��J��������K�!"#$%&'(�!+L", -.M61=/6534K�789"(�7+%:"'�;$9<�!+L", -./012345.6K�77;�N&'*<%+O+L, ->5>>K�!"#$%&'(�N&'*<%+O+L, ->5>>K�!"#$%&'(�A%+9,B"%, ->5>>K�P'*"%�Q&,R8,&'&89, ->5>>K�7+'$%&'", ->5>>K�?+LL, ->5>>K�)%&9#&R+L�)+(<8O9, -.>14.M5=2������CD�I��J�������� �E���H��HG����S�T��UC����V���TW���� XK�Y"'�Z##%"'&89 [-41.>054.\ [-41.>054.\�C��V��������I��J�������� XK�]"+L&̂"<�_+&9X̀8,, [-/63564\ [-/63564\	�I������������	 ������a��G���G

��bc��
��b������b�dd�
e�	������������	 ��G�G�G�GG���������������������?89'%&@$'&89, ->5>>����������!"#$%&'(�!+L"�)%8#""<, -.M61=/6534����������Z##%$"<�f9'"%",'�]"#"&g"< -314=35=6����������f9'"%",'�]"#"&g"< -==10/05/4����������Q&g&<"9<�]"#"&g"< -4530����������)%&9#&R+L�89�7+'$%&'&", ->5>>����������f9'"%",'�89�7+'$%&'&", ->5>>����������?+LL,X]"<"hR'&89�[)%&9#&R+L\ ->5>>����������f9'"%",'�B%8h�?+LL,X]"<"hR'&89 ->5>>����������)%&9#&R+L�)+(<8O9 -.>14.M5=2���CD������������� �a�H�G����HI��J������������������N&'*<%+O+L, ->5>>����������!"#$%&'(�)$%#*+," -./012345.6����������Z##%$"<�f9'"%",'�)+&< ->5>>���CD�I��J�������� �F�a�����FH	�I������������	 �E�H���G��G


W�����D�C�����b�SSCTijk�lm�nopqr�stu�vwvv��T�xWT���CD�y�T��C�����W��bWDy����TC��W�z��{�bx�T���WTSZ##8$9'�|M2>

}~"#$'&89�A&h"��/X3X4>44�M�>3�/M�)7?*+9<L"%�Z,,"'�7+9+�"h"9'�K�?PY;fQ}YAfZ̀ )+�"�3 
Page 23 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8���� ;!CD112E)FG HIJ*IKIL	MI-N	),.+	OIPLI	QJ,L.	R2R2S)	)T0UDVW	X,I	0RY0CYR2RR 00ZG0TU22 20YR0YR2R20UDCW 00ZG00UV100ZG0RUGR 022U2T2U[0W 00ZG0GUD[[UC2 2U2TWVUR1 )PP	Y	)))\] 2U102U2VV11D[̂)XD +̂_-	XIIJI	̀a-IJ	QJ,L.	R20[S)	)TRU[0W	X,I	1Y01YR2RT 0VZD[0UT1 2GYRVYR2R22UDTW 0CZRDRUDC0VZ[C[UGT 022U0G0U0TW 0VZ[0VUDC0[URG 2U2VWbVVU1Dc )PP	Y	\]))) 0UT22U2[VTD0C\)FD d+-KP	),.+	]I*IefPghIL	QJ,L.	R20[ST	)T0U1DW	X,I	DY0CYR2RT G[ZV1GUTD 2DYR2YR20[0U1[W G[ZV1CUD2G[ZV1GUR[ 022U2D0UVDW G[ZCTTU[DCVU[G 2UR2WC1UG[ )PP	Y	)))\] 0UTD2UR[CD1G[i)FR HIJ*IKILSMI-N	),.+	OIPLI	QJ,L.	R2R2SM	)T2UVW	X,I	00Y0CYR2RT [2Z222U22 2[Y0CYR2R22UV2W D[Z[[CUVVD[Z[[DUVV [[UT[0U1RW D[ZVC2UGV0GU22 2URGWbCV1UD2c \]	Y	)))))) 0UGT2UVGV11D12)FT +̂_-	XIIJI	̀a-IJ	QJ,L.	R20[SM	)TRUR0W	X,I	0RY0CYR2RT RCZD2TUGV 21Y0GYR20[RURTW RCZ1[DU0GRCZD20UC0 022UR10URCW RCZD1RUVTRCUTV 2U2DW12U[R )PP	Y	\]))) 0U102URD[RTVD)))T jIJeN+-	̀a-IJ	QJ,L.	R20[SF	)0)0U[VW	X,I	VYRRYR2RV 12ZRTRU1G 02Y20YR20[0U[CW 12ZRR1UTC12ZRT2UT0 022U0T0UC[W 12ZTRTURRV0UGT 2UR2W[RU[0 \]	Y	)))))) RU2G2UTDGCV1[̂)XC \eLLP-	),.+	]I*IefPghIL	̀a-IJ	R20[SF	)T0U[TW	X,I	1Y0CYR2RV 022ZVGCU11 02Y0GYR20[0U[VW 022ZVG2UV1022ZVGTUR2 022U0[0UVRW 022ZGG2UT1DGU0D 2UR[W0[1U01 )PP	Y	)))\] RUR[2UTDVTD0TX)FR d+-KP	),.+	]I*IefPghIL	R2R2SR	)T2UDRW	X,I	1Y0CYR2RV GDZ1RTU[T 2CY0DYR2R22UDTW GDZ10DUCTGDZ1R2U[V [[UTR0U[[W GDZRCVUG0RCU2C 2UR2WbVGGUTTc )PP	Y	)))\] RUR[2UCDV11D[k)F1 +̂_-	XIIJI	̀a-IJ	QJ,L.	R2R2S)	)T0U0W	X,I	DY0CYR2RV 0T0ZD[GUTC jPJe+,L0URGW 0T0ZVG1UG00T0ZGC1URD [[UGD0UG[W 0T0ZV1DUT1GVUVD 2UTDWb01DU[0c )PP	Y	\]))) RUTD2UCTVTD0Tk)FG d+-KP	),.+	]I*IefPghIL	QJ,L.	R2R2ST	)T2UT1W	X,I	02Y0DYR2RV 0VCZ222U22 2[YRRYR2R22UTDW 0VVZ[1DU120VVZ[DDU[0 [DU1VRU0TW 0VTZ011UR00[UT1 2UVRWb0ZD00U12c \]	Y	)))))) RUCC2U10TGRGRl)FD mH	Ee-P-*ePh	),.+	OIPLI	QJ,L.	R2R0ST	)R2UT[W	X,I	02YR0YR2RV C[2Z222U22 jPJe+,L2U1TW CDGZG[CUT[CD1Z0TVUDD [1U0TRUCVW C1TZ2CVUGR12UT0 0UGGWb0VZ2D2URGc \]	Y	)))))) RUCG0UTCV11D1\)FT +̂_-	XIIJI	̀a-IJ	QJ,L.	R2R2SM	)T2UC0W	X,I	00Y0CYR2RV CTZ[T2U2[ 21Y0VYR2R22UCRW CTZ[R0UD1CTZ[RCUDG [DUD[RURRW CTZTR[UDC0RURR 2U0CWbC[GU20c )PP	Y	\]))) RUGT2UGC2[G[2))F1 MHn	jI_e*hI	OIPLI	QJ,L.	R2R0SR	)T2UTTW	X,I	0RYRGYR2RV DCZ222U22 2[Y2DYR2R02UTVW DVZ[[0URTDVZ[[TUTR [1UV[RUVTW DRZDGVUR[VUGD 2URVWbRZ0R[U2Tc )PP	Y	\]))) RU1V0UR2D[RTGl)F2 Q+o+.P	),.+	]I*IefPghIL	R2R2SX	)T2UTCW	X,I	0Y0CYR2RC 00CZ222U22 02Y2GYR2R22UTGW 00VZ[1DUCD00VZ[DCU[C [DUDCRU0VW 00TZG1GU0R01UD[ 2UTTWb0ZT2[UDTc \]	Y	)))))) RUD22UGVipI*,.e+-	QeqIr	VYTYR2RR	0r2TrV0	sHF_P-KhIJ	)LLI.	HP-PtIqI-.	S	F̀\EuXi\Qu)O sPtI	V 
Page 24 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8���� ;!CDDC2E))C FGHIJ+-	KL-GH	MH,N.	D2D2OE	)2PQ1R	S,G	DTD2TD2DU D2UV222P22 2WT2QTD2D22PQWR D2QVCUXPCUD2QVC1DPU2 CWPXDDP2CR D2DV0XUPX1DCPQQ 2PUCRYDVW2XPWZ[ )\\	T	]̂))) DPC22PWXZXDXU_)̀C a_	bI-\-*I\c	),.+	dG\NG	MH,N.	D2DDO0	)Z0PCR	S,G	ZTD2TD2DU DQ2V222P22 2DT0UTD2DD0PC0R DZCVCC1PCQDZCVCCWP2Q CWPW2DPUWR DZ1V00DPW20ZCPZZ 2PXCRYDVWWUPDQ[ )\\	T	]̂))) DPC10P1W2UX20e)̀Z E_f	FGgI*cG	dG\NG	MH,N.	D2DDO0	)Z0P0R	S,G	ZTDUTD2DU 00UV222P22 20T00TD2DD0P00R 00QVCWDPW000QVCWQPZX C1PU0DP1DR 00DV0ZCPWQD0P2W 2PZZRYDVWQQPUD[ ]̂	T	)))))) DPCC0PUUQZW0Za)̀U h+-i\	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D0O0	)Z2PD1R	S,G	QTD0TD2DU 12V222P22 2DT01TD2D02PD1R XCVCCWP1DXCVCCCP0W C1PCDDPUQR XWVUQ0PUUUPDU 2PD2RY0VQU1PXZ[ )\\	T	]̂))) ZP2X2PCDQQWC0̂)̀Q hl,-i\I	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D2Ò	)Z2PZWR	S,G	UT0UTD2DU 0U2V222P22 02TD2TD2D22PZCR 0QCVCXUPQU0QCVCW2PZX CWPDDDPZ0R 0Q1VZZQPZUDUPZZ 2PQZRYDVXQXP20[ ]̂	T	)))))) ZP0Z2PCDWCDQ2E)̀D M+l+.\	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	KL-GHN	D2D0O)	)Z2PDXR	S,G	UT0UTD2DU DUUV222P22 2DT2DTD2D02PD1R DUQVCUDPX1DUQVC12P0D CWP02DPDXR DU2V0XDPQ2DCPQ1 2P1ZRYQVW21P1D[ )\\	T	]̂))) ZP0Z2PCUQQCZZd)̀1 hl,-i\I	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D0O)	)Z2PZWR	S,G	CT0UTD2DU 0D2V222P22 2QTD2TD2D02PZWR 00CVCW1PZW00CVCC0PD0 C1PU2DPZQR 00XVCCCPWWD2PD1 2PZQRYDVCC0PZZ[ ]̂	T	)))))) ZPQX0PDCWCDZCE)̀U M+l+.\	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D0Ò	)Z2PQZR	S,G	0T0UTD2DX ZQ2V222P22 0DT01TD2D02PC0R ZZXVXUZP0ZZZXVC1DP2Z CXPZZZP2UR ZD1VUD1P1WXQPCW 2PCURYCVQQQPDU[ )\\	T	)))]̂ ZPW20PQDQZW0Ua)̀Z h+-i\	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D0OQ	)Z2PWWR	S,G	0TD0TD2DX CUV222P22 00T0XTD2D02PWCR CQVC1CPC1CQVCWDP0Z CXPWDDPUWR C0VCW0PWUDZPDD 2PD1RYZV222PDW[ )\\	T	]̂))) ZPW00PWCQ11WCm)̀Q n+g-	SGGHG	KL-GH	MH,N.	D2D0OE	)Z2PUDR	S,G	ZT0XTD2DX 00UV222P22 21T0ZTD2D02PUDR 00QVCWCP1Q00QVCC0P12 CUPWDDPWDR 002V0CDP11DXPUW 2PZDRYQV1CWPCZ[ )\\	T	]̂))) ZPCX0PWUWCDZWn)̀C M+l+.\	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D0OS	)Z2P10R	S,G	QT0UTD2DX WUV222P22 00T2CTD2D02P10R WQVCCWP0CWQVCCWPQ2 CXPDDDPWDR W0V1C2PQ2DXPWD 2PDQRYZVD2WP22[ ]̂	T	)))))) QP2Q0PW0QQCZUb)SX hl,-i\I	),.+	̂G*GIj\kcGN	MH,N.	D2D0Ò	)Z2P1QR	S,G	UT0UTD2DX XUV222P22 00T2CTD2D02P1UR XQVCWUPQCXQVCW1P0C CXP02DPWDR XDVQXQPW1D0PZW 2P0WRYDVUDDPZD[ ]̂	T	)))))) QP0Z0PC2opG*,.I+-	MIqGr	QTZTD2DD	0r2ZrQ0	s_g̀\-icGH	)NNG.	_\-\tGqG-.	O	̀K]buSo]Mu)d s\tG	U 
Page 25 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8���� ;!CDE0FG)HC I+-JK	),.+	LM*MNOKPQMR	ST,R.	U2UUV0	)D0WEEX	Y,M	FZ0FZU2U[ 0\2]222W22 2UZ0FZU2UU0WE\X 0E\]\10WCU0E\]\1UWDU \EWU0UW[EX 0E[]F\EW2F0FEW1[ 2WFCXD̂]D1CWU1_ )KK	Z	)))L̀ CW0DUWU[D[UFFC)H0 ab	cN-K-*NKQ	dM*,TN.NeMJ	SMTf	U2U0VC	)D2W[EX	Y,M	\Z0[ZU2U[ 12]222W22 02Z0DZU2U02W[EX [\]\\EWUU[\]\\EWCF \[W[2UW[1X [1][01W\10\WED 2WU2XÛ]DE2WCE_ )KK	Z	)))L̀ CWC10W1DC11E1g)HU g+h-	YMMTM	ij-MT	ST,R.	U2UUV)	)DUWDUX	Y,M	\Z0[ZU2U[ 0CF]222W22 2DZ02ZU2UUUWDCX 0CC]\[1W\D0CC]\[EWDD \EW12UW\0X 0CD]00\W[C0C2W01 2WCUX0̂]ECEW[\_ )KK	Z	̀L))) CWC1UWUUCCE\11)Y2 Ik,-JKN	),.+	LM*MNOKPQMR	ST,R.	U2UUV)	)DUWUUX	Y,M	02Z0FZU2U[ 0FF]222W22 2DZ2\ZU2UUUWUDX 0FC]\\CW2D0FC]\\CW00 \EW1FUW1\X 0FD]2[1W0F0CDWDE 2WCCX0̂]\U[W\[_ L̀	Z	)))))) CWFFUWU0DE20C[)HC ab	cN-K-*NKQ	),.+	LM*MNOKPQMR	U2UUV0	)D0WU[X	Y,M	00Z0[ZU2U[ 1F]222W22 20Z00ZU2UU0WU1X 1C]\\DWCE1C]\\DWE1 \[WE0DW2\X 1U][2EWDUD\WDE 2WU0XÛ]DEFWFF_ L̀	Z	)))))) CW[D0W1['��8�	 ;! lmnopmnqq$pr n$rr? lmnslmrto$rtlmnssmtnq$ll p$lp? qmrtrmoqp$tlumlnu$sl uu$ss?vtomntn$tnw  88	:	      q$usu$px @y��=D0DFa2S\C c̀b)	̀+.MUWD1FX	Y,M	0Z0\ZU2UD E2]222W22 2CZ00ZU20EUW10X 1E]EU2WE21\]E20W1E 022W[[0WFDX E2]FD0W1[DE2W22 2WUDX1U\W\E )KK	Z	))z))) 2WE02W1\D0D1{){L[ cI|bH	̀+.M2WD1FX	Y,M	FZFZU2UD FU2]222W22 2FZ2FZU2U22WD\X F0\]1E0W[2F0\]\U2WU1 \EWC00WEFX F00]1DCW[21\2WED 0WC\XÊ]0EFW[1_ )KK	Z	))z))) 0W020W2ED0D1{){̀F cI|bH	̀+.MUW1FX	Y,M	[Z0\ZU2UD F22]222W22 21ZU2ZU20EUWE[X C\1]C\2W22C\\]D1EW02 022W\[0W\FX F2C]1ECW22D]E\FWED 0WCEXF]C2FW\2 )KK	Z	))z))) 0WUU0W0\D0DFa2FaC c̀b)	̀+.M2WUFX	Y,M	1Z02ZU2UD UD2]222W22 21Z2EZU2U22WDUX UU\]F2FWF2UU\]1\2W20 \1WEF0W\1X UUF]2C[W1U0U\WDE 2W[FXĈ]1CDWU\_ )KK	Z	))z))) 0WUE0WU[D0D1{){}1 cI|bH	̀+.M2WUFX	Y,M	EZUCZU2UD DUF]222W22 2EZ0\ZU2U22WUEX DUC][[EWF2DUC]EC[W2U \1WC\UW2EX D0[]ECCW1EEDWF0 2W\UXÊ]220WUC_ )KK	Z	))z))) 0WC20WDED0DFa2~CD c̀b)	̀+.MUWE1FX	Y,M	\Z0UZU2UD F2F]222W22 2\Z0UZU20EUW\[X F2U]\U\WF2F2C]D\\WF0 020W21UW0UX F02]DEDWE01[[WU1 0WCEXF]\ECWD2 )KK	Z	))z))) 0WCF0WC0D0DFa2[I0 c̀b)	̀+.M2WUFX	Y,M	00ZU1ZU2UD 0F2]222W22 00ZUDZU2U22WU\X 0C\]EU\W220C\]\2FW[\ \[W\DUW0FX 0CF]D\1WC20U\W01 2WCUXĈ]F2EWU\_ )KK	Z	))z))) 0W[[0W[DD0D2)2c12 cI|G	̀+.MDWD1FX	Y,M	0UZEZU2UD CC2]222W22 20Z0[ZU20\UW1DX CFU]ECDW[2CCC]CU\WEU 020WEUUWU1X CCE]222W2EC][[0WUF 0WD0XD]F12WU[ )KK	Z	))z))) 0W[\0W[U{�M*,.N+-	SNfM�	CZDZU2UU	0�2D�C0	�bHhK-JQMT	)RRM.	bK-K�MfM-.	V	Hì c�Y{̀S�)| �K�M	[ 
Page 26 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8���� @C��=D0D2)EDF1 GFHE	I+.JKLD1MN	O,J	DPQPK2KR M22S222L22 2RPKTPK20TKLD1N M22S2DML22M22S20DLTM 022L0DKLD2N M22SUU0LM21MQLUQ 0LRMNUR1LMM )VV	P	))WIX 0LTR0LQQD0D2)0YZK GFHE	I+.JKLQ1MN	O,J	UP0RPK2KR R1MS222L22 2UP0QPK20T0LTUN RTMSMRQLUMRQRS21QLQM 020L20KLR2N R1TSQ2UL2MRS2MQLTM 0LR2N[RSK1KLQ2\ )VV	P	))WIX KLK0KL00D0DM]2̂1M GI_)	I+.J0L1MN	O,J	1PKPK2KR M22S222L22 0KPKKPK2K02LQRN M00SKQML22M02S21DLK1 TQL12KLDRN RTDSM02L22KS0UDL0T 0LRRN[0USMUDLK1\ )VV	P	))W))) KLKUKL0QD0D2)K̀aR GFHE	I+.JKLQ1MN	O,J	TP0DPK2KR RM2S222L22 2TP0DPK20T0L1TN R1DSD2MLM2RU0SRRQLDK 020L2MKLRDN RMRS1DQLTMURULQQ 0LDKN[US12TLD1\ )VV	P	))W))) KLRUKLDMD0DM]2aUU GI_)	I+.J0LUKMN	O,J	02P0MPK2KR K22S222L22 02P01PK20T0LUUN 0TTSUMQL220TTSQKUL22 TQL21KLR0N 0TUS0R2LK20SRTQLU0 2LM1N[DSUQMLQ2\ )VV	P	))W))) KLMMKLRMD0D2)bGR2 GFHE	I+.J0N	O,J	0KPK2PK2KR MM2S222L22 0KPK0PK2K00L2KN MRTSURKLM2MRTSU1ML0Q TULKDKLRRN MKTSKRTLU20SM0KLM2 0LMRN[K2SRKMLMQ\ )VV	P	))W))) KL1DKLUMD0DM]2YKR GI_)	I+.J0LUKMN	O,J	0P1PK2KM M2MS222L22 V̂cd+,e0LK0N M0RSQR2L2MM02SURDLTK T1L1DKLRQN RTDSMR0LMM0ST0RL1T 0LRRN[01S02KLD1\ )VV	P	))W))) KL1QKLU1D0D1f)fg2 GFH_h	I+.J0LMN	O,J	KP0KPK2KM U2MS222L22 2KP0DPK2K20LMKN U2RSMDRL0MU2RS1DKLRT T1LKTKLRTN MQQSU2KL2Q0SKDMLK0 0L10N[0US0D2LR0\ )VV	P	))W))) KLQ1KL11D0DM]2D̀M GI_)	I+.J2LUKMN	O,J	RPKKPK2KM R1MS222L22 2RPKKPK2K22LU1N R1RS2K0LM2R1RSR22L1Q TRLMMKLRTN RRTS2TULQD0SD00LK2 0LD0N[KMSD2DLTM\ )VV	P	))W))) DL2UKLTTD0DM]2RiD GI_)	I+.J2LMN	O,J	UP01PK2KM MUMS222L22 V̂cd+,e2LR1N MUMSM1RL0MMUMSRU2L10 TDLQRKLM0N MD2S01MLUUQ0UL00 0LMRN[DMSKQML2M\ )VV	P	))W))) DLKKDL0RD0D1f)f̀T GFH_h	I+.J2LD1MN	O,J	1PK0PK2KM DK2S222L22 21PK0PK2K22LRQN D0QSR2ULR2D0QSTRMLRU TDLDUKLRQN KTQS1RRLURKDDLDD 2LQ1N[K2SK22LQK\ )VV	P	))W))) DLD0DLKRD0DM]2MY1 GI_)	I+.J2LD1MN	O,J	QPKMPK2KM MU2S222L22 V̂cd+,e2LRUN MM1SQ20LK2MMQSR1TLQT TDL0QKLRQN MK0SQDKLURK02L22 0LM0N[DUSUR1LKM\ )VV	P	))W))) DLR0DLDRD0D1f)fYD GFH_h	I+.J2LD1MN	O,J	TPKDPK2KM MMMS222L22 V̂cd+,e2LRRN MMDSDMRLUMMMDSQDDLDD TKLTRKLM0N M0MS1TMLDURULKM 0LM2N[DQS2D1LT1\ )VV	P	))W))) DLRQDLR0D0DM]2U]D GI_)	I+.J2LMN	O,J	00P1PK2KM MUMS222L22 V̂cd+,e2LMUN MUDSRDRLT2MUDSQ1DLDD TDLKDKLRQN MKUS1D0LRK0S0D2L22 0LMDN[D1S0R0LT0\ )VV	P	))W))) DLU0DLMK'��8�	 ���56 jklmlknnn$nn o$pq? jkqrmkron$oljkqnmkjlq$qs p$rp? jkrpokrtj$qrpskrmo$jt pm$op?upsqkqnm$nlv  88	:	  w   p$tpp$rlfxJ*,.d+-	ydzJ{	RPDPK2KK	0{2D{R0	g_h|V-}~Jc	)eeJ.	_V-V�JzJ-.	�	h�IG�OfIy�)H gV�J	1 
Page 27 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8�����>CD0D1EFGHG IJKFL	M1N0	)NDO2PQ	R,S	TUNVUN2NN NPNWD1POPG 2PUN0UN201NONNQ D2DWV2NO2TNPDWNTVO02 022ON20ODVQ NPNWP12ONT1VNOTT 2OTVQXD0YOTNZ )[[	U	\]\] 2OY22ONYD0D1EŶ ET IJKFL	M2DD	)NDO2GQ	R,S	1UNVUN2ND YNVW222O22 2PU0DUN20PNO0YQ YDTWTGNOD2YNPW1DNOV0 022OP1NO2GQ YNPW0Y0ON2N0GO1V 0ONVQXVP0OD0Z )[[	U	\]\] 0ODN0O0GD0D1E1F_P IJKFL	M2DG	)NDOVN1Q	R,S	02UNVUN2ND Y22W222O22 02UNPUN20TDODNQ Y2DWPD1OV2Y20WND1OV2 020ODVNOY0Q Y2VWY01OG2NDVO0D 0O0TQYW0T2O02 )[[	U	\]))) 0OV10ODPD0D1ÈHa1 IJKFL	M1NG	)NNOP2VQ	R,S	YUNVUN2NY DYTWPGYO2V 2YUNNUN20PNO1NQ DV0WYVTOG0DYPWPPYOPN 022OVNNOVDQ DV2W1PVOY0TYYO1T 0O2NQT22OYP \]	U	)))\] NO210OTDD0D1EIbPT IJKFL	M2Y0	)NDO010Q	R,S	02UNVUN2NY V22W222O22 0NU0VUN2N00O01Q VNGWDNTO0DVNDWG0VONN 020O0YNOGNQ V2VW100O220WDN0ONV 0OY1QX01WP2YONNZ )[[	U	)))))) NOV1NODGD0D1EĤ N0 IJKFL	M2VV	)NNOG1DQ	R,S	DUNVUN2NG 012W222O22 0NU0VUN2N00ONVQ 01TW12VOTG01TW0NGOND PPO1YNO10Q 0GPWVGNOYND1TOGT 2OYPQXTWVGDOT0Z \]	U	\]))) DOPPDOGVD0D1Iacd1 IJKFL	M1D1	)NNOVNVQ	R,S	02UNVUN2NG VNDW222O22 0NU0VUN2N00OY0Q VYTW122OVVVY1W0PPO0Y PTOVTNOTYQ V0VWV12O1P0W022OYT 0OV2QXD0WGNTODVZ \]	U	\]))) YOV1YO0Y'��8�	�>C efghifjkk$lm e$ll? efnhmfkih$ljefnejfmil$ge e$ji? efggifmgo$nlkfoki$ih n$ng?phkflem$ieq  88	:	      e$jie$mk�C
4C
 'rNYYNNbstY d+u-	RSSvS	L[wx.[y	L+vw	\+.SNOTQ	R,S	DUGUN2ND 0V2W222O22 2GU0DUN20TDOYYQ 0YVWTNTOV20YPW0T2ON0 022OTT0OTVQ 0V0WD0YOYVNP0OG1 2OYYQNW0DYONY )N	U	)) 2OPD2OPN2D1TDD)MG )wwyS	z-*	\+.SNOYQ	R,S	VUDUN2ND NDVW222O22 00UNTUN20TDOVYQ NNYW0Y2OGVNDNWDD2OVV 022OV10OT1Q NDGWDYDO1DNWD0TOG1 2OGPQYW20DO0T )[[	U	)){\] 0O2P0O2G2NGGV̂ LdT )|Svx*[-	J+-}[	Ix-[-*S	\+.SDOYVQ	R,S	1U0YUN2ND 022W222O22 21U00UN20TDOYPQ PPWTN1O22PPWPVVOVN 020OY0NODDQ 020WY02O021D1OPN 2OD2Q0WYVYOVT )D	U	)~) 0ONP0ONVGPD10]HVP H[**[v	Ix-[-*x[y	L+vw	\+.SDOYQ	R,S	TUPUN2ND NV2W222O22 2TU2GUN20TDOY0Q NYPWTP1OV2NYPWP1NON0 020O01NOV0Q NVNWPNGO1V0WNN1O1T 2O1YQNWPVYOVY )0	U	){\] 0ODG0OD02GY2G])dG E[-�	+�	\̀	FSyy+-	L+vw	\+.SDOYVQ	R,S	TU00UN2ND DN2W222O22 2VU0GUN20PNO1PQ DNTWY0GO22DNNW12PO2Y 020ODTNOY0Q DNYWY00ON20WVDDODD 2OPVQ0W12NO0G )0	U	)))~ 0ODG0ODN2NGGV̂ LaN )|Svx*[-	J+-}[	Ix-[-*S	\+.SDOGNVQ	R,S	02U02UN2ND NYVW222O22 02U2DUN20TDOGYQ NYYW1PPO02NYYWPDTO1N 020OY2NOGTQ NYTWYDDOPNYWN0TOVP 2O1DQDWYPVON2 )D	U	)~) 0OVD0OYVNYYNNb�\G d+u-	RSSvS	L[wx.[y	L+vw	\+.S2OYVQ	R,S	0U01UN2NY 0PVW222O22 2DU20UN2N02OY1Q 0PYWTG0OVV0PYWP0DOYN PGO1YNODNQ 0TTWGY2OY10T2ODT 2OVVQXGWN1NOPVZ )N	U	)) 0OT20O11b�S*,.x+-	sx|S�	YUDUN2NN	0�2D�Y0	HFLu[-}ySv	)��S.	F[-[�S|S-.	~	L�\IzRb\sz)K H[�S	T 
Page 28 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8�����C
4C
 'D2E2F0GHIJ KL-M	+N	)OPQR*L	S+QT	SLUULVUP	W+.P	0X	YZFZ[2[YY\FF]	̂,P	YZFZ[2[_ Y[0̀222\22 2YZ2EZ[20JY\0E] Y[[̀[YF\aFY[0̀_1E\JJ 022\12[\YY] Y[Ỳ[__\1Fa[Y\20 2\J_]0̀1E1\1E )[	Z	)b))b 0\JY0\aEaJ00_cSK[ d+Q+-.+	̂+OR-R+-	KL-M	W+.PY\[F]	̂,P	YZ00Z[2[_ Y[F̀222\22 2YZ[EZ[20J[\J1] Y[J̀00_\F2Y[ÈE0Y\Ja 020\[1[\Fa] Y[J̀00_\F2FaE\a0 2\JE][̀F22\F[ )0	Z	)))b 0\JF0\a1a2aF0YKW_ SeLQUPf	g*ehLV	S+QT	SLUULVUP	W+.P	S+-.	[Z0aZ[2[_2\1F]	̂,P	YZ0aZ[2[_ 0E2̀222\22 2YZ0EZ[2[02\11] 0FJ̀J[2\220FJ̀J_1\EE JE\1F[\_E] 0F_̀1JY\0[_Y\YY 2\_F]iF̀0F_\F_j )[	Z	)) 0\J10\JY2EYE1dckY KL-M	+N	l+-.QPLU	W+.P2\E[F]	̂,P	1ZJZ[2[_ [22̀222\22 2[Z2JZ[2[[0\aJ] 0J_̀21[\220J_̀_2[\_E JF\00[\aE] 0J2̀[0_\E2[a_\1[ 2\FF]i_̀0a1\aEj )[	Z	)b))b [\[a[\[[1J_EEm)GJ gLUPfN+Q*P\*+O	n-*	SLUULVUP	W+.P	S+-.	1Z0FZ[2[[2\E[F]	̂,P	1Z0FZ[2[_ [JF̀222\22 oLQR+,f2\JY] [J[̀10F\JF[J[̀JJF\E_ JF\aY[\F0] [a[̀Ea1\aaYaJ\[_ 2\a[]i02̀Y21\1Ej )[	Z	)pWq [\[J[\[_EJY10qc[F rL**LQ	IR-L-*RLU	S+QT	W+.P[\0F]	̂,P	aZ0FZ[2[_ 12̀222\22 2aZ2aZ[20J[\[2] EJ̀a_F\Y2EJ̀J[E\FJ Ja\J_[\E[] EJ̀[F_\F10J[\Y0 2\[2]iE1[\2[j )0	Z	)pWq [\Ya[\[J1a20Fs1S[ q+tLU	KL-M	+N	SL-LuL	W+.P[\[F]	̂,P	00Z0Z[2[_ Y[F̀222\22 0[Z2FZ[20J[\[E] Y[_̀aY0\22Y[_̀J02\1Y Ja\E1[\1a] Y[2̀EJY\_YỲ2_E\aa 2\J_]i_̀[01\Y2j )0	Z	)))b [\FJ[\_10_J0YcYKY SL.PQTRUULQ	IR-U	gPQvR*P	W+.P[\0F]	̂,P	00ZaZ[2[_ Y[F̀222\22 2[Z0JZ[2[20\aY] Y[J̀E[a\22Y[1̀FFa\F1 JJ\0J[\_1] Y[[̀YE[\JF[̀11F\FJ 2\J_]iF̀0JF\E[j )[	Z	)) [\E0[\_JaJ[YEdwdY d+t+.L	l+.+Q	SQPuR.	S+QT	W+.P0\_F]	̂,P	0Z0YZ[2[F Y02̀222\22 20Z02Z[2[[0\F2] Y2J̀Fa_\E2Y2J̀E0_\0E JE\_F[\1a] [JàJJJ\2YJ1Y\J[ 2\a1]i02̀E0F\0Yj )0	Z	)p)p [\1J[\EJJ2YY0Hrm0 xg	KL-M	W)	SLUULVUP	W+.P	S+-.	0[Z[0Z[2[_[\2F]	̂,P	0Z[0Z[2[F Y_2̀222\22 20Z0EZ[2[2[\02] YYJ̀[1F\a2YYJ̀FJY\Y0 Ja\20[\1J] YYỲ[[[\1a0̀YFF\[a 2\J1]iÈY12\FYj )0	Z	))b))b [\a0[\EJ1_1F[F)I2 c,LU*+OO	n-*	SLUULVUP	W+.P	S+-.	[Z[2Z[2[FY\_F]	̂,P	FZ[2Z[2[F YF2̀222\22 0[Z[[Z[2[00\_E] Y1[̀J11\F2Y10̀[01\0Y 020\JJ[\1a] YFÈJFE\JF_̀YJY\JE 0\2F]i0_̀[E2\0aj )[	Z	)Wq Y\0_[\J[_EE_1rSH1 wr	l+QyL-	SeLfP	z	S+	SLUULVUP	W+.P	S+-.	EZ0Z[2[_2\a[_]	̂,P	EZ0Z[2[F Y22̀222\22 2FZ[_Z[2[02\1a] Y22̀Yaa\a2Y22̀[a2\JE JF\_Y[\YY] [aÈY20\12a[_\22 2\aY]i0ỲJ1J\[Ej )[	Z	)b))b Y\01Y\2J_EE_1rSs2 wr	l+QyL-	SeLfP	z	S+	SLUULVUP	W+.P	S+-.	EZ[YZ[2[_2\JEJ]	̂,P	EZ[YZ[2[F 0_2̀222\22 oLQR+,f2\JY] 0_2̀2a1\FF0_2̀212\12 JF\FE[\Y1] 0YỲ111\0FYEJ\Y2 2\YJ]iÈ[JY\FFj )[	Z	)b))b Y\[YY\0_{|P*,.R+-	dROP}	_ZYZ[2[[	0}2Y}_0	rlSeL-uUPQ	)ffP.	lL-LyPOP-.	b	S~WIn̂{Wdn)m rLyP	J 
Page 29 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8�����C
4C
 'DEF1EEG))2 HI,JK.	LJ-M-*JMN	O+IP	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	21T2UTV2VW0XVY	Z,R	ETWTV2VW UW2[222X22 2VT2UTV2VV0XEWY U\V[U0\X22U\V[]UUXW2 F\XV1UX20Y UVF[FW\X02]WUXUU 2XF]Y0̂V[]1FX\2_ )U	T	)̀) UXUWUXVU\]]\1abc0 da	G+IeM-	OfMKR	g	O+	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	\TVVTV2VWVX2EUY	Z,R	\TVVTV2V] V22[222X22 2VT01TV2VVVXW\Y 0F][W2EX220F][WFWXU2 F]X]0VXFFY 0FU[VV0XE20[EUFXFE 2XW1YÛ[U1UXW2_ )V	T	)̀))̀ \X2]UXEV2VU0UWbhU )iMj+-X*+i	k-*	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	\T0VTV2V]0Y	Z,R	WT0VTV2V] \\2[222X22 2WT02TV2V00X2FY \UE[2FFXV2\UE[\U]X\1 FUXE]VXWEY \0V[F10X]E0[]FEXEF 0XV2YV̂W[\]\X1F_ )0	T	))))̀ \X0VUXF1E2EW0UblW OfMINRK	m*fnMQ	O+IP	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	\T0UTV2V]0X0WY	Z,R	WT0UTV2V] V22[222X22 0VT0WTV2V00X\FY 0F1[0WVX220F1[UU1XF1 FUXV\VXF2Y 0E][\11X22EE0X]1 2XW\Y0̂2[E]2XF1_ )V	T	)) \X0VUXFWF0UV\aoOV p-J.Rq	rRMN.f	sI+,P	k-*	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	\T0WTV2V]0X0WY	Z,R	WT0WTV2V] UWW[222X22 tMIJ+,K0X2FY UWW[FVEX1WUWW[1FWX1E FUX2WVXFWY UU2[U02X000[W\VXV1 2XF]YV̂W[\EWX]1_ )U	T	)u) \X0UUXF]EFVU]HdcV H+v+.M	G+.+I	OIRqJ.	O+IP	S+.R0X0VWY	Z,R	]T0ETV2V] U22[222X22 2]T0WTV2V00X0UY VFF[E]EX22VFF[EEEX1W FVXF2VXFUY V1E[102XE2F]WX]U 2XE0YV̂0[011XFW_ )0	T	)u)u \XVV\X2W2]2W0sdZV bM-w	+x	)iRIJ*M	O+IP	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	]T0FTV2VW0XU0FY	Z,R	]T0FTV2V] UW2[222X22 tMIJ+,K0XUEY U\F[2\VX22U\F[2U0XU2 FUXEUVXF0Y UVE[\21X\W0[U2EX20 2XF]YV̂2[]VUXEW_ )V	T	)̀))̀ \XVV\X2\WF\F0Ebl\ GJ*I+K+x.	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	WTETV2V]VX\Y	Z,R	ETETV2V] UW2[222X22 0VTV0TV2V00XU]Y U]W[\\VX22U]\[\E\X1U FFX21VX]UY U\][1U2X]W0[VU]X]1 0X20Y0̂1[1W\X2E_ )MM	T	)))))) \XU]\X2FEF00\Hys2 H+I+-.+̀Z+iJ-J+-	bM-w	S+.R0XVWY	Z,R	FT02TV2V] V22[222X22 0VT0WTV2V00X]1Y 0F][V2VX220F][\UVX1E FVX21UX0EY 0E\[0UWXE20\WXEU 2XWUY0̂V[VF]XFE_ )0	T	)))̀ \X\W\XV]2U1EUUZS1 )PPNR	k-*	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	1T00TV2V]VX2WY	Z,R	FT00TV2V] V12[222X22 tMIJ+,K0XW2Y V1][W]WXE2V1][0V]XU2 F1XV2VX1VY V]V[\U\XUUU21XW2 2X1]Y0̂U[]F0XF1_ )MM	T	))uSl \X\W\XV02]U]EL)OU bM-w	+x	G+-.IRMN	S+.R0XVWY	Z,R	FT0WTV2V] VE2[222X22 2FT0UTV2V00XVEY V1F[]]0XV2V1F[]F1XF\ F0XFUUXV0Y VW1[\2\XE\0WWXW] 2X1WYV̂V[VFUX02_ )V	T	)̀))̀ \X\]\XV1FU00\Vol2 zMǸGMI.	m.+IRK	OMNNMQNR	S+.R	O+-.	2ET01TV2V]0X2WY	Z,R	FT01TV2V] 12[222X22 2FT2ETV2V00X2FY ]F[E]1X12]F[EE0XF2 FUX02VX12Y ]W[0]EXE0VEXWE 2X0FY\̂[10UX2F_ )MV	T	)))) \X\1\XU01E20]oyyU l+vMN	bM-w	+x	OM-MqM	S+.R0X\Y	Z,R	00TVTV2V] V22[222X22 0VT0WTV2V00X1\Y 0F][EW2X220F1[2UWX10 FVXVWUXVUY 0E\[\FWX\20[UWUXUU 2XW\Y0̂V[W\2XU0_ )0	T	)))̀ \XWF\XUWo{R*,.J+-	HJiR|	\TUTV2VV	0|2U|\0	aGOfM-qNRI	)KKR.	GM-MeRiR-.	̀	O}SLkZoSHk)~ aMeR	02 
Page 30 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8�����C
4C
 'DE1F0GHIJ1 KLMNO.	P+MQ	PLRRLSRO	T+.O	P+-.	0GU0VUG2GF0WXVY	Z,O	0U0VUG2G1 G2V[222W22 20U0XUG2GG0WXXY G2\[FV0WV2G2\[FF\W]V XFW1GGWFXY 0XE[GFEWFG1\]WXE 2WVEYF̂[]XVW1]_ )G	U	)) \WE2\WV0E2EV0]Ì2 PaLMROb	c*adLS	P+MQ	PLRRLSRO	T+.O	P+-.	GU]UG2G1GW\VY	Z,O	]U]UG2G1 0\2[222W22 2]U20UG2GGGW\1Y 0]X[E\EWE20]X[EV0WG2 X1WG0]W2FY 0]F[2XEWG2GFFW1E 2W\2Y]̂[1V]W22_ )G	U	)) \WX]\WVE2E\FF\PeG IOMfbagMO	hL.aLdLi	PLRRLSRO	T+.O	P+-.	GU0VUG2G1GW]Y	Z,O	]U0VUG2G1 \02[222W22 2]U21UG2GGGW]2Y \2X[XGGW02\2X[XGGWE] XEWGEGWF1Y \2G[XV\WVF\0XW00 0W01YF̂[XFEWG1_ )LG	U	)))j \WXF\WF\'��8�	����8�� klmnolppp$pp q$rk? klmkplsnp$mpklmkpltmu$so m$or? klppmlrtr$qrtplqqs$rq mo$ms?vmrnlunn$qrw  q	:	 x x s$qos$pm>C�D=	> 
yD'	%3�7GFG22zE\V ZMOi{,b	|,-}b	~-b.�R	�ObOM�O	KMOLb,Mi	/FV\0 0VF[]\2W\2 �LMg+,b2W20Y 0VF[]\2W\20VF[]\2W\2 0W222W20Y 0VF[]\2W\22W22 2W\VY2W22 )LL	U	)))))) 2W222W22'��8�	>���6	>8<��	%&�� quolstp$tp p$pq? quolstp$tpquolstp$tp p$pq? quolstp$tpp$pp p$tu?p$pp  88	:	      p$ppp$pp>3�#�#4 A	;C�7!0]2F]Z��F PLRg{+M-gL	c.L.O	KL�LSRO	��GW\Y	Z,O	02U0UG2G\ ]G2[222W22 02U0FUG20X0WX0Y ]G1[]V2W\2]G][1G\W2X XXW\0GWF\Y ]0E[0G0WF2][E\2W22 2WX]YV̂[F2GW\X_ )LG	U	))�)) GWV0GW]E'��8�	>&��5��8�	;���� smplppp$pp q$kq? smnlsup$tpsmslnmt$pk m$ot? sqrlqmq$opslrtp$pp p$ks?vulopm$tkw  8m	:	  �  m$uqm$sr!34
 � '#C� A\VX2VE��E ~-.RW	IL-f	�O*+-	�	ZO�OR+Q�O-.	T+.O2WVY	Z,O	02UGEUG2GV X02[222W22 �LMg+,b0W22Y EXG[E0XWG2EX\[0VXWVG XGWX0GWVXY E\V[\E]W1]0[X]]W1V GW\FY\̂E[F1VW1X_ )LL	U	)))))) ]WVE]W\X\VE0z2Z�1 ~-.OM�)�OMg*L-	ZO�	IL-f	T+.O2WE1VY	Z,O	\UG2UG2GF V1V[222W22 2\U0]UG2G02WX1Y V1G[]FFWV2V1G[EFVWV0 X]W\2GWF2Y V]1[2F\W]EG[GV2W2X 0WVFY]̂V[E20W0]_ )LL	U	)))))) \W2F]WXG'��8�	!&�8�8����8� qltrulppp$pp p$kk? qltoulqru$npqltonlpmu$ps m$uk? qlsrmlutr$qqtlqrs$rt t$pm?vrtltno$kmw  88	:	      s$nns$ooH�O*,.g+-	Kg�O�	\U]UG2GG	0�2]�\0	�JPaL-}ROM	)bbO.	JL-LNO�O-.	�	P�T|~ZHTK~)� �LNO	00 
Page 31 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8����3!	'
C !3
=D0EFEGHI2 JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2STU	H,N	00VW2VE2EW TT2X222S22 0EVEWVE2E02SYFU TZFX02DSWFTZFXWYZSF1 D1SETES0DU TWZXFDYSZTDE0S12 0STTU[0WXZYFSZE\ )OO	V	))]))) 0SY10SYZD0EFEĜ_0 JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SETU	H,N	WV0TVE2EZ WT2X222S22 2WVW2VE2E02SWWU WZDX0TESWZWZDXZWDSY2 DYS0WESEDU WWYXZW1ST2Z2SZE 2SDFU[0WX22ES02\ )OO	V	))]))) 0SDY0SDWD0EFEGGGW JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SETU	H,N	TV0TVE2EZ 122X222S22 0EVE0VE2E02SF2U YD2XFWDSFZYD0XFFYS1E DTSYTESWYU YYDXTYYS02YYESED 0SDZU[EEXWE2SYE\ )OO	V	))]))) ES0WES2DD0EFEF̀ Ẁ JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.NEU	H,N	YVW2VE2EZ TT2X222S22 0EV0EVE20D0S1ZU TTYXEDZSDETTWX000SZY DDS0YESWDU TZTXWTDS02EX1YTS0D 0STDU[1X1TESWY\ )OO	V	))]))) ESETES0FD0EFEFHTY JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.NESW1TU	H,N	FV0TVE2EZ T22X222S22 2FVEDVE20D0SZTU TEEX0Y1SD1T02XY2YSFY DDSFYESZZU ZDDXE11ST20XZ1YS01 0SZTU[00XWEDSWY\ )OO	V	))]))) ESWFESEDD0EFEFWH2 JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.NESETU	H,N	02VW0VE2EZ T22X222S22 00V21VE20D0S11U T00XW2FSTDT2TXFYFS1F DDSZFESZYU ZD1XZ2EST2ZX1EWS1Y 0SZYU[FXZYYSEF\ )OO	V	))]))) ESTDESZ1D0EFEGHRF JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N0U	H,N	0EV0TVE2EZ TT2X222S22 0EV0TVE2E02SDDU TT2X010SFFTT2X0TTSEZ DYSE2ESZYU TEDX21ZS0T0XY0YS1Y 0STZU[E0X2F0S2D\ )OO	V	))]))) ES10ESYZD0EFEFaG1 JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N0S0ETU	H,N	EVEFVE2ET ZT2X222S22 2WV0FVE2E22SF0U ZTYXDZWSWYZTZX2FFSZ2 DYSEEESZFU ZWEXDFZSY2ZZ2SEE 0SEYU[E0X02WSF2\ )OO	V	))]))) ESDEESFZD0EFEFab2 JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2STU	H,N	WVW0VE2ET TYTX222S22 20VETVE2E02SWEU TYDXETDST1TYFX2TFST0 DZSW2ESZFU TWEXFE0STY1S1E 0STTU[WTXEWYSDT\ )OO	V	))]))) WS22ESDZD0EFEG)IW JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SETU	H,N	DVW2VE2ET T1TX222S22 2EV0DVE2E02ST0U TYFX0ZDSZ0TYDX1D0S1Y DESZFEST0U TW0X1YESFFWSDW 0STZU[WFX2EFSFF\ )OO	V	))]))) WST2WSZZD0EFEG)LF JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SETU	H,N	02VW0VE2ET T1TX222S22 20V00VE2E02SZFU TYFXF22S1FT12XW12SDE DESW2EST0U TW2X1EDSY2Y2WSTD 0STZU[WDXYZ0SWE\ )OO	V	))]))) WSTDWSTED0EFEG)aZ JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SW1TU	H,N	00VW2VE2ET TYTX222S22 2WVEYVE2E02S11U TTZXFYDS1WTT1X2TWSYZ DESTTEST0U TEEXDWZS2Y102S0W 0STEU[WZX00DSTF\ )OO	V	))]))) WSY1WSTDD0EFEGGcF JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SF1TU	H,N	YVW2VE2EY WT2X222S22 0EVEEVE2E00SEEU WZZX12FSDFWZTX2EYSZZ DWSTEESZDU WE1XW2ZSY21YDSFT 2SDTU[01X1E0SFZ\ )OO	V	))]))) ZSETZS0ED0EFEGGdZ JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2SYETU	H,N	1VW0VE2EY 0Z2X222S22 2FV2ZVE2E02SYFU 0WDXYEESYY0WDXY1ES0F DESZ2ESZFU 0EDXWT1S1Y0ZTS2W 2SWFU[02XW0ZSZE\ )OO	V	))]))) ZSWZZSEWD0EFEGGeD JK	LMNOP,MQ	R+.N2S1TU	H,N	FVW0VE2EY 0T2X222S22 2DV01VE2E02SFYU 0ZDX0FTSTT0ZDXE1ESTD DESF0ESZFU 0WDXE0FS1TD1SFW 2SZ2U[02X2TWSFZ\ )OO	V	))]))) ZSZEZSEDfgN*,.h+-	LhiNj	ZVWVE2EE	0j2WjZ0	dIGkO-lmNM	)PPN.	IO-OnNiN-.	o	GpRbqHfRLq)r dOnN	0E 
Page 32 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� 	������	!��"	#��$	%&��	!���	'�()**+,-.	/012�3!#4 !�5&��6	7��5������ 48	98�&�:3���� 4&5�8��	78��;��<	=���� ����	98�&�;��<	98�&� ><�	4�5�><�	='> >8<��	98�&� 55&��	#��$ ?	�"	4��$@8��:A���>���6:!B4	%��5� >8�&��67&8����3!	'
C !3
=D0EFEGGHE IJ	KLMNO,LP	Q+.M2RF1ST	U,M	DVW2VE2EX FS2Y222R22 ZNL[+,O0R2FT F\0YSD0RF2F\EYW1ER00 DWRE2ER\FT 1DEYEEXRWSE2RW0 ERW2T]S2Y0\SR1X̂ )NN	V	))_))) \RS2\RWX'��8�	3!	'�8�&6 àbcdaddd$dd d$bc? àbceaèf$̀fàbdgaehd$di c$hj? àggeajgj$hfegaddh$bd ce$bh?kjgjàif$fcl  88	:	  m   j$dcc$bh'n' A	4n
'%nA#n jgahgjàè$̀d e$j̀? jgafdhacdg$fejgagcbagdg$̀d c$hf? jhajieajfc$icb̀àfg$bi edd$dd?keaehiaehc$iil  8e	:	     c$ìc$gf'n' A	> 
oC'	9 A3C	4A3!	 ��
3C7 jhah̀baeci$id

pqM*,.[+-	K[rMs	\VWVE2EE	0s2Ws\0	tuGvN-wxML	)OOM.	uN-NyMrM-.	z	G{Q|}UpQK})~ tNyM	0W 
Page 33 of 526



��������	

�������	�������������
����
������������������������������� �	!!�����"#$#%&'()�*+�,-,,�.)'/01)�%&'()�2*+�,-,,
3456789:;64�<64:9;4=>�?=7=;4�;@�<645;>=4:;9AB�C=�D7E=�F6D�:6�<68G97=�:?;@�@:9:=8=4:�:6�:?=�64=�F6D�7=<=;H=�5768�F6D7�ID9A;5;=>�<D@:6>;94B�JA=9@=�@==�38G67:94:�K;@<A6@D7=@BLMNOPQRS�TUUVW�XTYTZVXVYW[\]̂ _̀ab]ccade[fg


������������hijk�lmnopqjro�stjmp�ujmk�svvjmrp+�wxnson�vsxx�yz--{�2*|}~|~|+jk�vjrpsvp������������!�������������!��
���������sr��j���n���jk��%nxxjr�smknr��n�rnky�-~{��~�}*�*z
 

Page 34 of 526



����������		�
� ���������������������� ����������������������� !"#$�% &'# ()*+,)*-./ (/*,+0*/+1233!'#4�56$#!#7$ .(-*81- )0*0(89:$ &�� !"#$�% &'# �;<�=�<>�� ��<?>�<���563:@#�A !6#4 -)*//1 ,+*(/1B:6$CDE +F ! ()*(8,*-(- ()*-01*-/-G::"�% &'# ()*-+(*(0) ()*-)/*,.8B:7$�% &'# ()*-,+*/,, ()*,0+*--8
��H�I����
�JKLMNOPMOQ�KR�SOTQMU�VQWQMX (-Y)Z[MUMNW\�]KPM�̂KWO�_KNQ̀ẀM�aKNb .,Y+Z[MUMNW\�]KPM�̂KWO�cWOd .-Y.Z[MUMNW\�eWQTKOW\�_KNQ̀ẀM�fXXKg .(Y0ZhMOOMXXMM�iW\\Mj�fkQlKNTQj .Y)ZcWOd�KR�fPMNTgW�aKNb .Y)Zmn�_KǸWO�alWXM�o�aK .Y)ZhKjKQW�fcV .Y/Z��p�� =��>q

H�
�r�sI���t�
����
I��I��fLMNẀM�_KUTRTMU�ukNWQTKO -Y/+fLMNẀM�aKkbKO .Y81ZfLMNẀM�nkNglWXM�vh_ .Y11ZfLMNẀM�_WNdMQ�vh_ (Y0-ZfLMNẀM�Vonw_KKUj�xWQTÒ ffwfW.fLMNẀM�[TOW\�_WQkNTQj ,Y((�jNXfLMNẀM�̂TRM ,Y+.�jNX �
�yI��z��sI���{�|H}	���
I���yI��
I���I�������
��ss����I��
H�~p�����������~�27�:��� !3������������~p�~���������p�������I����r����s�����~�fggKkOQ��.8.

H�
r�
	�����
��I�� ������������������������������ �	 �	 ��y ��
 ��
� ��
� ?�
� �>�
� ?�����>>�eKNQlMNO�aW\Y�aTQTMX�VM\R��OXY�[kOU�̂KÒ�hMNP �(Y-+Z �,Y+-Z �,Y+-Z �-Y)-Z �.Y0-Z .Y-,Z .Y10Z .Y10Z -Y(1Z�a �cKRf�.�.+�vN�SV�hNMWXkNj�o�f̀MOgj��OUM¡ �(Y,.Z �,Y+.Z �,Y+.Z �-Y),Z �(Y1,Z .Y+1Z .Y-0Z .Y-.Z (Y/)Z�a �cKRf�.�.+�vN�fff�f�SV�aKNb�o�JKLQ��OUM¡ �(Y-8Z �,Y.8Z �,Y.8Z �-Y),Z �.Y/8Z .Y()Z .Y1+Z .Y1-Z -Y+8Z ¡MgkQTKO�hTPM¢�,w-w(+((�.¢+,¢+8�n_alWOU\MN�fXXMQ�_WOẀMPMOQ���a£e[�u eh�f̂ nẀM�. 
Page 35 of 526



�������� 	��
���� �����
��������������� ������������ ��� !"#$%&'�(�������)*+��,��� ������������-��,��.�/����+�+�01�,2�.3����+�+�4����5���+5��,�������3��.,����������6�.����+�+��1��+�����������.1��5�7�.����+�(���������7�.�����+��,�8'&9������� ��� !"#$&�4����������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?��������-�����.1��A:B3�CD���*BA���� ��� !"#$E���,�4��&�,������� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$*����0A�,2�.)E���+�+�0A�,2�.&�,������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-F=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$A��2��G�*,,�4���,�� H=>��?����-IJ=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D�����,���K�4�� *0I8K0I1���:&:;-F@>��?����-FL=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D��4�����E�.������������ *�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$E����E��2��E�����C��.� M�+5��������+�1��N��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$E�����C��.� M�+5��������+�1��N��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$��+����1��DB� <=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$����D����7�,�����7B�4����-D����������6�.A��2B�4����� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$O*�C E�?��������N4������ ��� !"#$:�4��,5���*+�������� I������?��������-������.1���(�������*.(���� ��� !"#$K��5�1���. D�������4��7����.���,2�3,��(����1����P��21��.�3,����.�����3�4�����3������.4�������5�4�3'�D�3:�(������4��,5����+��������3��������..�4�����3��(����7�������-���+�������3����+�+�.���(�.3����������������4�3Q������������,,������,��������75��.����������-��(��������.���������.�����0%&B-D����������6�.E���+�+�;1��+������RDE;�SN��5,�������������4�,�7�,����'�E*3CMOED3��C�E*-K��,5����+��������+��,������������+��-&�,����������.��+�������5��7����71����N��+����(���+� ��� !"#$E�?K�������� @>4����������������������������?4��,���������.���5�4���,�3�?,��.��+%T&T+�(�������3�+��,�3��(�������4���3��.��������2��7��.� ��� !"#$E�?����E������� I=����� ��� !"#$

U���V��
��WXY��
X��X�X�Z	�WY[\
Z]��
̂�_]
�[̀�
�a���bc# �def�!"�g�� !"#$h"ec$eie#!ihijkh"ecec#�!"#jel$"jm#$e�#je �!"gno	������
��Y���pWX�
̂�q$�fridgcstuvwvv

 
Page 36 of 526



���������	�
	����������	���������������	 ������������������������ !�"#$%&'()�*%&$+,-#- ./01230453672!�89:#)�8,&;#(�<%:=�*%&$+,-#- ./0/4>07/4635!�89:#)�8,&;#(�?9:(&'@%('9:- .5655!�"#$%&'()�?9:(&'@%('9:- .5655!�"#$%&'()�A&,:-B#&- .5655������CD����������� � ���EF��E�E��FG��H������ �I�"#$%&'()�",J#- ./0K7L0/216/KI�89:#)�8,&;#(�<%:=�",J#- ./0>L102>/654I�88<�M'(+=&,N,J- .5655I�"#$%&'()�M'(+=&,N,J- .5655I�"#$%&'()�A&,:-B#&- .5655I�O(+#&�P'-Q9-'('9:- .5655I�8,(%&'(#- .5655I�?,JJ- .5655I�*&':$'Q,J�*,)=9N:- .250/K7623������CD�G��H������ � ���F�����R����S�T��UC��� V���TW��� !XI�Y#(�Z$$&#('9: [.>0>75643\ [.>0>75643\�C� V������ �G��H������ �!XI�]#,J'̂#=�_,':X̀9-- .>302K26>K .>302K26>K	�G������������	 ��������RaF��a

��bc��
��b������b�dd�
e�	������������	 ��E�����R����������� ����������?9:(&'@%('9:- .5655����������"#$%&'()�",J#�*&9$##=- ./0K7L0/216/K����������Z$$&%#=�f:(#&#-(�]#$#'g#= ./K0K226>4����������f:(#&#-(�]#$#'g#= .1301436//����������P'g'=#:=�]#$#'g#= .561K����������*&':$'Q,J�9:�8,(%&'('#- .5655����������f:(#&#-(�9:�8,(%&'('#- .5655����������?,JJ-X]#=#hQ('9:�[*&':$'Q,J\ .5655����������f:(#&#-(�B&9h�?,JJ-X]#=#hQ('9: .5655����������*&':$'Q,J�*,)=9N: .250/K7623���CD����������� � �a��a���FE�E�G��H������ �����������M'(+=&,N,J- .5655����������"#$%&'()�*%&$+,-# ./01230453672����������Z$$&%#=�f:(#&#-(�*,'= ./2/6>2���CD�G��H������ � �a��F���F��a�	�G������������	 ��R�E����a


W�� ��D�C��� �b�SSCTijk�lm�nopqr�stu�vwvv��T�xWT ��CD�y�T �C�����W��bWDy� ��TC �W�z� {��� |��WTS������ �Z$$9%:(�}/3/

~�#$%('9:�A'h#��LXKX>5>>�/�5L�53�*8?+,:=J#&�Z--#(�8,:,�#h#:(�I�?OY<fP~YAfZ̀ *,�#�K 
Page 37 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& ����>:"BC22DE*FG HIJ+IKIL	MI.N	*-/,	OIPLI	QJ-L/	RDRDS*	*T1UCVW	X-I	1RY1BYRDRR 1RZRRVURR D1YR1YRDRD1UCBW 1RZRRRUG11RZRRTUCR 1DDUDTDU[1W 1RZRRCUTR1DUDD DUDVWVUBD *PP	Y	***\] DU21DUDVVTC1B\*FC ,̂.KP	*-/,	]I+I_̀PabIL	QJ-L/	RD1[ST	*T1U2CW	X-I	CY1BYRDRT 2TZDT[URC DCYRDYRD1[1U2[W 2TZDTCUG22TZDT[U1[ 1DDUDC1UVCW 2TZD[[UCTB2U2C DURGWGDUGV *PP	Y	***\] 1UTCDUR[[RTVC***T cIJ_N,.	de.IJ	QJ-L/	RD1[SF	*1*1U[VW	X-I	VYRRYRDRV 2BZGTBUR[ 1DYD1YRD1[1U[BW 2BZGR[UVB2BZGTRUGV 1DDU1T1UB[W 2BZ2TRU21VVUCT DUR2W1DDUD2 \]	Y	****** RUDGDUTCC[RTR̂*F[ Q,f,/P	*-/,	]I+I_̀PabI	de.	RDRDS*	*T1UGGW	X-I	BY1BYRDRV 1GBZ[RVUGG DGY12YRDRDDUGCW 1G[Z2VCU2D1GCZDDRU[V 1DDUDC1UV2W 1GGZDGDUDB1RRUVR DUBCWg1Z[VRUC[h *PP	Y	***\] RU1TDUVBV22C[i*F2 j,k.	XIIJI	de.IJ	QJ-L/	RDRDS*	*T1U1W	X-I	CY1BYRDRV 1D1ZVBCU21 DTYDVYRDRD1U11W 1D1ZVBRUB11D1ZVBBUT[ [[UGC1UG[W 1D1Z1T2U1[V[UGD DUTGWgT1CURDh *PP	Y	\]*** RUTCDUBTVTC1Ti*FG ,̂.KP	*-/,	]I+I_̀PabIL	QJ-L/	RDRDST	*TDUT2W	X-I	1DY1CYRDRV 1BBZDDDUDD D[YRRYRDRDDUTCW 1BVZ[22URT1BVZ[CCU1B [CU2VRU1TW 1BTZDB1UBDRDU21 DUBVWg1Z[TGUGBh \]	Y	****** RUBBDU21TGRGRl*FC mH	E_.P.+_Pb	*-/,	OIPLI	QJ-L/	RDR1ST	*RDUT[W	X-I	1DYR1YRDRV RDBZDDDUDD DCY1DYRDR1DUT[W RDVZ[[2UR1RDVZ[[2U[R [2U1TRUBVW 1[[Z11RURDRVUVT DU2DWgBZCCBU2Rh \]	Y	****** RUBG1UTBV22C2\*FT j,k.	XIIJI	de.IJ	QJ-L/	RDRDSM	*TDUB1W	X-I	11Y1BYRDRV BCZD2CUBV D2Y1VYRDRDDUBRW BCZDG[UG[BCZD2TU[[ [CUC[RURRW B2ZVTRU1T1TU1G DURDWgGV1UCGh *PP	Y	\]*** RUGTDUGBD[G[D**F2 MHn	cIk_+bI	OIPLI	QJ-L/	RDR1SR	*TDUTTW	X-I	1RYRGYRDRV [DZDDDUDD D[YDCYRDR1DUTVW C[Z[[DU21C[Z[[RU[R [2UV[RUVTW C2Z2TCUGGVU[B DUT1WgRZRBVURGh *PP	Y	\]*** RU2V1URD[RR[DM**[ cIJ_N,.	de.IJ	QJ-L/	RDRDSM	*DUV2W	X-I	RYRDYRDRB R1BZDDDUDD DCYDVYRDRDDUVCW R1VZ[BVUCBR1VZ[21U1G [CUGRRUD[W R1RZDR2UV1TDUCC DU2VWgRZ[VTU2Bh *PP	Y	\]*** RU[DDUCGDBGD1l*FT MHn	cIk_+bI	OIPLI	QJ-L/	RDRRS1	*T1U1W	X-I	TYRBYRDRB [BZDDDUDD D1Y11YRDRR1U11W [VZ[CBUCD[VZ[C2UDC [2UB1RU2RW [RZGT2URG12UVR DUTTWgRZTV[UCRh \]	Y	****** RU[[1UBBVTC1Tm*FB ,̂.KP	*-/,	]I+I_̀PabIL	QJ-L/	RDR1S1	*TDUR2W	X-I	VYR1YRDRB 2BZDDDUDD DRY12YRDR1DUR2W 2VZ[[CUGT2VZ[[[U1R [2U[RRUBVW 2TZVT2UTCBUGT DURGWg1ZBG1U2Vh *PP	Y	\]*** TUDGDU[RVVC[1]*FV f̂-.KP_	*-/,	]I+I_̀PabIL	QJ-L/	RDRDSF	*TDUTCW	X-I	BY1BYRDRB 1BBZDDDUDD 1DYRDYRDRDDUT[W 1BVZ[GVUTD1BVZ[2[U21 [CURRRUT1W 1BRZRVBUBDRGU1C DUBTWgRZ2TVUR1h \]	Y	****** TU1TDU[RC[RVDM*FR Q,f,/P	*-/,	]I+I_̀PabIL	de.IJL	RDR1S*	*TDURGW	X-I	BY1BYRDRB R2DZDDDUDD DRYDRYRDR1DUR2W RG[Z[V[UC[RG[Z[GCUT2 [CU1DRURGW RGVZC22UCTT1URD DU[TWgBZD[DUBVh *PP	Y	\]*** TU1TDU[BopI+-/_,.	Q_qIr	VYTYRDRR	1rDVrD2	sHFkP.KbIJ	*LLI/	HP.PtIqI./	S	Fd\EuXo\Qu*O sPtI	V 
Page 38 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& ����>:"B22CCD*EF G,H.	IJJKJ	LM.JK	NK-O/	PQP1R*	*SQTSFU	I-J	VW1XWPQPX CQYQQQTQQ QSWQPWPQP1QTS2U 2VYVCBTFP2VYVCVT1X VFTCXPT2VU 22YB2VTPC1PTCQ QTP2UZPYXQVTC2[ *\\	W	]̂*** STBF1TSQBBVSS_*E2 à-.b\c	*-/,	̂J+Jcd\efJO	NK-O/	PQP1R*	*SQTSCU	I-J	VW1XWPQPX 1PXYQQQTQQ QBWPQWPQP1QTSCU 1PBYVCFTCX1PBYVVQTCB V2TXQPTSBU 1P1YC2BTCCP1T11 QTBSUZSY11XTVF[ ]̂	W	****** STBF1TPVBSC1Xg*ES ,̀.b\	*-/,	̂J+Jcd\efJO	NK-O/	PQP1RB	*SQTCCU	I-J	1WP1WPQPF 1QQYQQQTQQ 11W1FWPQP1QTCVU VVYV2CTVPVVYVC1TPQ VFTCPPTXCU VFYCPSTQQPBTBB QTSBUZSY1XCTPQ[ *\\	W	]̂*** STC11TCVB22CVh*EB G,H.	IJJKJ	LM.JK	NK-O/	PQP1Ri	*SQTXPU	I-J	SW1FWPQPF 1PXYQQQTQQ Q2W1SWPQP1QTXPU 1PBYVCCTCX1PBYVVQTV2 VXTCPPTCPU 11VY22BT2XPCTCV QTBPUZXYP1FTPP[ *\\	W	]̂*** STVF1TCXCVPSCG*EV N,a,/\	*-/,	̂J+Jcd\efJO	NK-O/	PQP1RI	*SQT21U	I-J	BW1XWPQPF VQYQQQTQQ 11WQVWPQP1QT21U CVYVVCTQCCVYVVCTSQ VFTPPPTCPU CFYFQ1TFQPCTBQ QTSQUZSYSVFT2Q[ ]̂	W	****** BTQB1TC1BBVSXj*IF à-.b\c	*-/,	̂J+Jcd\efJO	NK-O/	PQP1RE	*SQT2BU	I-J	XW1XWPQPF 2QYQQQTQQ 11WQVWPQP1QT2XU FVYVCBTSCFVYVCFTP1 VFT1QPTCPU F2YPFVTCFPSTQP QTPBUZPY21FTSX[ ]̂	W	****** BT1S1TVQSFPXXB*E1 gk	jc.\.+c\f	lJ+-Kc/cmJb	NJKn	PQP1RB	*SQTFCU	I-J	VW1FWPQPF 2XYQQQTQQ 1QW1SWPQP1QTFCU 2BYVVCTQV2BYVVCTSB VFTFQPTF2U 2PYBB2TCSP1TPX QTPXUZPYXXQTX1[ *\\	W	***]̂ BTB21T2SB22C2G*EP G,H.	IJJKJ	LM.JK	NK-O/	PQPPR*	*SPTSPU	I-J	VW1FWPQPF VXYQQQTQQ QSW1QWPQPPPTSBU VBYV2CTVVVBYV2VTPX VCT2QPTV1U VSY2FCTQBV1TCS QTSSUZ1YP11TP1[ *\\	W	]̂*** BTB2PTPPBBCV22*IQ à-.b\c	*-/,	̂J+Jcd\efJO	NK-O/	PQPPR*	*SPTPPU	I-J	1QW1XWPQPF 1SQYQQQTQQ QSWQVWPQPPPTPSU 1PVYVVXTQQ1PVYVVXTQ2 VCT2XPT2VU 1PCYS2CTVQ1PQTPX QTBXUZ1YF1FT12[ ]̂	W	****** BTXXPTP1SCQ1BF*EB gk	jc.\.+c\f	*-/,	̂J+Jcd\efJO	PQPPR1	*S1TPFU	I-J	11W1FWPQPF FXYQQQTQQ Q1W11WPQPP1TP2U FBYVVBTSXFBYVVBTFV VFTC1STQVU FPYVP2TP1SBT1S QTPPUZPYQF2TBC[ ]̂	W	****** BTFS1T2F(�� �	>:" opqrsptur!qr r!qq? opqrvpwuw!twopqrtposu!vo o!tv? opuvwpsut!towux!ts y!oy?zxxprxt!sr{ >  	9	>>>>>> t!sxs!sy>@|��<S1SSCS}GB j̀_i	],/JSTS2XU	I-J	VWCWPQPS 1QXYQQQTQQ 11WPVWPQ1CSTQQU 1QFY2BXT1Q1QXYXPXTFS 1Q1TCXPTQFU 1QFYVB1TQSPPFTB1 QTSCU1YB1XTBQ *\\	W	**~]̂ 1TBB1TBQ��J+-/c,.	NcnJ�	BWSWPQPP	1�QB�Q2	�kEH\.bfJK	*OOJ/	k\.\�JnJ./	R	EL]j�I�]N�*_ �\�J	X 
Page 39 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& ����>@B��<C1CDEFGH1 IJK*	J,/LFMNDO	P-L	11QN2QNFNC NRFSFFFMFF 11QNCQNFNFFMNTO N2TSGRFMRFN2TSRNCMTG TGMTCNM1DO N21SUFRMURNU1M11 FMTDOVRSU1DMURW *XX	Q	**Y*** 1MGG1MGCRRFDT1Z[T \L..L]]LL	̂X__L̀	*-/a,bc/̀	J,/LNMR2DO	P-L	TQ1DQNFNU DDFSFFFMFF FNQN2QNF1TNMGDO DDGSCDNMDFDDNSR1DMG2 1FFMRCNMDNO DDUSDGFMGF2FNM2R 1MTDO1S2UUMTC *XX	Q	**Y*** NMUGNMCGC1CDEFdGG IJK*	J,/L1MGNDO	P-L	1FQ1DQNFNU N2DSFFFMFF 1FQ12QNF1T1MGGO N2USDNTM2DN2US2GFM2D TRMF2NMU1O NGTSGTNM2RNSFGFMDT FMTDOVDSFG2MT2W *XX	Q	**Y*** NMDDNMUDC1CDEFeNU IJK*	J,/L1MGNDO	P-L	1Q2QNFND N1DSFFFMFF F1QFRQNFNF1MGTO N1USC1UM1DN1USG1TMU2 T2M2CNMURO N1FS1N1MGDR1DMN1 FM2UOVUSUT2MRNW *XX	Q	**Y*** NM2RNMG2C1C2Z*ZfF IHgKh	J,/L1MDO	P-L	NQ1NQNFND UNDSFFFMFF FNQ1CQNFNF1MDNO UNUSG2NM2DUNUSR1NMFR T2MNTNMUTO U1CSURFMRFRG2M21 1MUDOV11SCC1MNRW *XX	Q	**Y*** NMR2NM22C1CF*Zî1 IHgi	J,/LCM1NDO	P-L	GQ1CQNFND UFFSFFFMFF FRQNRQNF1RCMF2O UF1SC2NMFFUFFSGUGM2N 1F1MT1NMDFO UF2SGN2MGFCS2DFMFF 1MUUOGSTRFMRR *XX	Q	**Y*** CMN1CMF1C1CDEFUjC IJK*	J,/LFMDO	P-L	GQ12QNFND U2DSFFFMFF FGQ12QNFNFFMDUO U2USF1GM2DU2USCG2MGR TCMRUNMD1O UUDS2NNMTFGRGM11 1MD2OVNRSGUUM2RW *XX	Q	**Y*** CMNNCM1UC1C2Z*ZkT IHgKh	J,/LFMC2DO	P-L	2QN1QNFND CUFSFFFMFF F2QN1QNFNFFMURO CCRSCFGMRFCCRSR2TMDD TCMCGNMURO C12SU1GM1RNU2MTN 1M11OVN1SUGCMC2W *XX	Q	**Y*** CMC1CMNUC1C2Z*ZeC IHgKh	J,/LFMC2DO	P-L	TQNCQNFND C2FSFFFMFF FTQNCQNFNFFMUUO CGRSRRGMCFCGTSNNCMTD TNMTUNMD1O CUCSRGCMD2CFMRC 1MN1OVNDSCGFMCRW *XX	Q	**Y*** CMURCMU1C1CDEFGEC IJK*	J,/LFMDO	P-L	11Q2QNFND DCFSFFFMFF 11QFTQNFNFFMD2O DNRS1FNMGFDNRSGNRM2T TCMNCNMURO UTUS1FNMFU1SFGFMFF 1M2UOVCUSDNGM2DW *XX	Q	**Y*** CMG1CMDNC1CDEFlCG IJK*	J,/LNM1NDO	P-L	UQNUQNFNG DGDSFFFMFF X̂bc,-]NM1RO DGNSUCFM1FDGCSRRGMFN TRMGGNMU2O DD2SU1FMTNDSNCGMFG 1MT2OVGSU2DM1FW *XX	Q	**Y*** UMF2CMRCC1CF*EIfD IHgi	J,/LNMDO	P-L	GQ1NQNFNG DFFSFFFMFF FGQ12QNF1TNM1TO D1FSFRDMFFDFGSFGFMUT TTMTTNMDFO UTTSTG1MFFCS2RUM2N 1M22OVGSFTTMUTW *XX	Q	**YJ[ UMNFCMTCC1CF*N̂ZC IHgi	J,/LCO	P-L	TQ11QNFNG D2DSFFFMFF X̂bc,-]NMR1O DRCS21TMDFD2TS1DUMTR 1FNM1CNMUTO DR2SNGUM2DTDRMCC NMFGORS1FTM22 *XX	Q	**YJ[ UMUDUM1UC1CDEFmNN IJK*	J,/L1MR2DO	P-L	TQNUQNFNG NCFSFFFMFF X̂bc,-]NM2RO N1NSGFUMFFNN1STFNMUD T2MUTNMU2O NNUSN1DMTGRCMRG FM2TONSC1CMD1 *XX	Q	**Y*** UMUTUMNGC1CF*hliT IHgi	J,/LNMGNDO	P-L	TQ1FQNFN2 GFFSFFFMFF X̂bc,-]NM2DO DTCSGRDMFFDTGSU1GMCR 1FFMNTNMD2O GF1S2DCMRFT1RM2G NM11ODSCC2MUN *XX	Q	**YJ[ DMUDDMFUC1CDEFDnD IJK*	J,/LFM2DO	P-L	1FQRQNFN2 GFFSFFFMFF X̂bc,-]FM2TO DTRSUFNMNFDTRS2FDMCU T1M1TNMU2O DU2S1DCMNFNS1GNMD1 1MTCOVD1SDDNM1UW *XX	Q	**Y*** DMDCDMCNZoL+-/c,.	\cpLq	UQCQNFNN	1qFUqF2	fKhaX.r_Lb	*]]L/	KX.XsLpL./	t	huJIvPZJ\v*g fXsL	G 
Page 40 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& ����>@B��<C1CD*EFGH IJKF	L,/MCNGHO	P-M	QRSRGDGT HDDUDDDNDD D1RGSRGD1SCN1CO HDVU2THNDDHDCU1QHNG2 1DVN11GNHCO HGDUHVTNHDHUDHHNHQ 1NTVO12UCTCNGC *WW	R	**XLY QNGDHNHHC1CD*ZC[1 IJKF	L,/MGNT2HO	P-M	CRSRGDGS CTDUDDDNDD \W]̂,-_GNQQO CTQUT1HNHDCTVUTCTNHT 1DGNQ2GNVHO CSDU1V2N1VQQ2NQV 1NC2OHUCDTNHQ *WW	R	**XLY QNSHQNGQC1CD*ZP̀T IJKF	L,/MGN2HO	P-M	QRTRGDGS H1DUDDDNDD \W]̂,-_GNVHO HGCUGQ1NDHH1SUQ1VN2G 1D1NQCGNHDO H1TUCCQNSTVUVDGNGS 1NTCOa1UG22N2Vb *WW	R	**XLY 2N1SQNVVC1CD*ZcdC IJKF	L,/MGN1GHO	P-M	SR1VRGDGS 2DUDDDNDD DCRDHRGDGD1NG1O 2HU2VGNTD2VUVSVNT2 SQNVTGNQHO Q2UHCTNHS2DNGV DNGVOaQUSHQNGTb *WW	R	**XLY 2NVQQNTGC1CHZDHeG ILf*	L,/MDNT2HO	P-M	TRHRGDCD Q1DUDDDNDD \W]̂,-_DNSSO QDCUQGGNHHQDVUHT2NT2 T2NV1GNHQO HCCU1SQN2VTCDNG2 1NT2Oa21UCS1N1Cb *WW	R	**X*** TNCH2NSC(�� �	>���56 ghijkhjjj!jj i!lm? ghinnhimn!njghiiohgmi!nn n!pl? lhllnhpok!nimphlkl!gi mi!ng?qnmphpoo!jir >  	9	>>s>>> p!knp!np�=tC1C2FVdFT IJKfu	vDCC	*GCNDQO	P-M	2RGHRGDGC VDDUDDDNDD 1DR1SRGD1TCNCSO CSVUSDQNGHCSTUHSDN2T 1DDNS2GNDQO VDCUTS2NQDGDVNDD 1NVGOHUCDQNTG *WW	R	LYLY 1NCG1N1QC1C2F2̀ S̀ IJKfu	vDC2	*GCNVSO	P-M	1RGHRGDGV VDDUDDDNDD DQRGQRGD1SGNDTO VGGUH1HNQCVDTUSV1NQ1 1D1NCGGNHGO VDHUGSCNGD1U1QCNCC 1NVCOaCUQVTNV1b LY	R	***LY 1NTG1NH2C1C2F̀we2 IJKfu	v2GQ	*GGNSDHO	P-M	VRGHRGDGV CSDUD1TNQQ DVRGGRGD1SGN2GO CSGUTDQNQSCS1U12DNTD 1DDNHGGNHCO CSGUDQHNVTSVVN12 1NCTOTSVNQT LY	R	***LY GND21NTCC1C2I*YED IJfx	v2G2	*GGNSVQO	P-M	2RGHRGDGV CCDUDDDNDD D2RGCRGD1SGN1HO CVDUGVTNDHCCVUQ2VN2H 1DDNHCGNQ1O CC1U2VDNDST1DN1H 1N12OaGUSCVNQQb LY	R	***LY GNCGGND2C1C2FE\JV IJKfu	vDVD	*GCNGV1O	P-M	SRGHRGDGV G2HUDDDNDD DGRDQRGDGD1NTDO GS1UVH2NDCGTCUTHGNVT 1D1NGQGNQ1O G2TUVQGNTD2VGN2C DNSTOaHUCTSNQTb LY	R	LY*** GNVSGNGQC1C2IFF[C IJKfu	vDQT	*GCNGVVO	P-M	TRGHRGDG2 G2DUDDDNDD DGRDGRGDGG1NTDO GTSU12VNGGGTTUQQQNCQ 1DGNCQGN2VO G2QUC2VNS22GSNSD DNS2Oa1GUGS1NCSb *WW	R	LYLY HNV1VNTVC1C2J1yCC IJKfu	v2VV	*G1N21GO	P-M	2RGHRGDGT GGQUGQHNSS DGRDTRGDGGGNC2O GG1UCGVNCHGG1UVGTN1T SCNS2GNTDO G1GUQG1NSGCGGNT1 DN2HOaTUTDQNGQb LY	R	LY*** QNCGHNQVC1C2JHP[G IJKfu	v2V2	*GGNDHO	P-M	11RGHRGDGT CHDUDDDNDD D1R1SRGDGG1NSQO CH1UQCHNHHCH1UHSCNTG SHNHGGN2SO CCVUC1DNGDHS2NSG 1N1TOa12UGTCNQGb LY	R	LY*** QNQQQNDHEzM+-/̂,.	{̂|M}	VRCRGDGG	1}DV}D2	wfu~W.��M]	*__M/	fW.W�M|M./	�	u�LI�PEL{�*K wW�M	2 
Page 41 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& �����=BC1C2DEFGC HDFIJ	K1CL	*MMNOLP	Q-R	1SMOSMTCM M2TUTTTNTT TCST1SMTMMMNCVP M2OUEV2NCMM2OUETLNOM L2NEEMNWEP MECUEWVNVCOWMN2O TNLCPX11ULMONTLY *ZZ	S	G[G[ LNWCWNVW(�� �	�=B \]̂__]\̀a!bc \!dd? \]̂ê]e_c!f̂\]̂ca]c\̀!df \!c̀? \]̀̂ ]̀acf!b̂b]f̂e!eb _f!_̂?gcb]fee!b_h >  	9	>>>>>> d!̀ed!ad�B
4B
>(iTEVTE[*jM kZ.l	,m	Gn	IRoo,.	J,pq	G,/RCNOP	Q-R	VSMWSMTMC 1ETUTTTNTT TCS1VSMT1LCNT1P 1ECUTMONET1ETU2WLNEV 1T1NCLMN1WP 1EMUMMEN2MMUCWTNTT TNOWP1UVC2NTW *1	S	***r 1NTW1NTVTMEEOsJtM *uRpv+Z.	D,.wZ	Hv.Z.+R	G,/RCNEMOP	Q-R	1TS1TSMTMC C2TUTTTNTT 1TSTCSMT1WCNEVP CELUELENETCELULT2NVO 1T1NVTMNEWP C2OU1WONLMEUC2TNLV 1NCVPOUM2WNV2 *C	S	*r* 1NOC1NVOMVVMMxyGE z,{.	QRRpR	JZqv/Zo	J,pq	G,/RTNVOP	Q-R	1S12SMTMV MTOUTTTNTT TCST1SMTM1TNV2P MTVUWOVNVOMTVULTWNLW LEN2VMNCMP 1LWUC1VNCV1WLNEC TN2TPXEUOLVNEVY *M	S	** 1NWT1N22ELC21[[MV |Z++Zp	Hv.Z.+vZo	J,pq	G,/RTNCOP	Q-R	MSMSMTMV 1MTUTTTNTT T1SMWSMTM1TNCLP 11LUWETNWT11LUL1VNO2 LENCWMNCWP 11OUEOEN1MEWNWC TNV1PXVUMOWNVOY *1	S	*}G[ 1NWV1NW1TETO1jznE kZ.l	,m	*uRpv+Z	J,pq	JZooZ~oR	G,/R	J,./	ES1VSMTMCTNOMCP	Q-R	ES1VSMTMV 1LTUTTTNTT TEST2SMTM1TNOMP 1LTUT1MNWT1LTUTT2N2T L2NMV1NWWP 1WVU2OWNV2MLONCO TNEOPXOUMVLNMCY *M	S	*r**r MNM1MN122LVEEF*jL �ZoR�m,p+RN+,u	�.+	JZooZ~oR	G,/R	J,./	2S1OSMTMMTNEMOP	Q-R	2S1OSMTMV 1TTUTTTNTT yZpv,-�TN2OP LLUEELNVTLLU21VNCW LONWCMNO1P LOUWMENVT1C1NLO TNCVPXCUWW2NLWY *M	S	*}G[ MNMLMNMVVEEV2|*�T z|	I,p�Z.	J{Z�R	�	J,	JZooZ~oR	G,/R	1�	2SMCSMTMCCN2L2P	Q-R	2SMCSMTMV CCTUTTTNTT 1TSTLSMT1LMN11P CVLUVCTNVTCCLUCW2N1T 1T1N1LMNVVP CCCUL1ENVVMUCEENWT 1N1WPXOUV2TNEEY *M	S	*r**r MNCMMNMTELC21[tMO |Z++Zp	Hv.Z.+vZo	J,pq	G,/RMN1OP	Q-R	WS1OSMTMV 1VOUTTTNTT TWSTWSMT1LMNMTP 1VVUE2LNOO1VVUWV2NLC LWNLVMNEMP 1VCUVOONLTCLWNCO TNOTPX1UCLMNTCY *1	S	*}G[ MNCWMNMLLVL2Vkj*M sRoo�	HZp�,	J,pq	G,/RCNCP	Q-R	LSLSMTMV COTUTTTNTT TLS11SMT1LMNC2P CEOU1L2NTTCO2UVCONLV 1T1NTVMNWOP COCUEOEN1T2TONWC 1NMVPXCU22LNWVY *1	S	kkk}*} MNVOMNCC2WT1OK2JM [,�Zo	kZ.l	,m	JZ.ZwZ	G,/RMNMOP	Q-R	11S1SMTMV COOUTTTNTT 1MSTOSMT1LMNMEP COVUW1ONVTCOVULTMNVL LWNE2MN2WP COTUMLONLTCUCMWN1C 1NMVPXVUETENOLY *1	S	***r MNOLMNV2
x�R+-/v,.	�vuR�	VSCSMTMM	1�TV�T2	|IJ{Z.woRp	*��R/	IZ.Z�RuR./	r	J�GH�QxG��*F |Z�R	W 

Page 42 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& �����B
4B
>(CDEFF1GHI1 JK	LM.N	O*	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	1TUT1UTETVTWEXY	Z-S	1UT1UTETX VFE[EEEWEE E1U1\UTETETW1EY VTD[E]VW1EVTD[V]XW\X D]WE1TW2DY VT1[VT]W]11[21VWEF 1WV]Y]̂[EX\W]V_ *1	U	**̀**̀ TW]1TW\DEET]TVLLX *RR,//	IMR,aM/,abSc	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	1TU1XUTETVTWDXY	Z-S	FU1XUTETX TVE[EEEWEE E1UT]UTETT1W\2Y TV][X]EWEETV][ED\WD2 1EEW22TW\XY TV1[]VTWTVF1VW\2 EW]XY\̂[TXVW2F_ *1	U	**̀Od TWD\TWXDE\F\2eL]X LM.N	,f	g,./aSMQ	O,/S1W]XY	Z-S	XU1UTETX T\V[EEEWEE E2UTFUTET1EW]XY T2F[2TEWV]T21[D\XWD] D\WT1FW1XY TXF[DDDW1XT[EFXWEE EWDEY1̂2[D\\W]F_ *T	U	*̀**̀ FWEDTWDVEF2]FFZhV *iiQS	j.+	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	VU11UTETX1W1TXY	Z-S	XU11UTETX 1EE[EEEWEE EXUEVUTETE1W1\Y DD[]T1WEEDD[]]]W\V DXWXDTW\1Y DX[XDVWEEVF2WXE EWFVYV̂[TDVW\V_ *MM	U	**kOd FW1TFWE1V\\V2HPG2 lH	g,amM.	PnMcS	o	P,	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	\U1UTETVEW]TVY	Z-S	\U1UTETX TEX[EEEWEE EXUTVUTET1EW2]Y TEX[T\2WFETEX[1DFW1\ DXWVFTWFFY 1DX[\FDWXEX\FWE2 EW\DYD̂[XXFW\\_ *T	U	*̀**̀ FW12FWEDDT]T\P*ZV pbcM	j.+	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	DU1VUTETXFW1XY	Z-S	1TU1VUTETX FEE[EEEWEE E1UT]UTETT1W2XY F1V[\2DWEEF1V[ETFWFD 1E1WFXTW2VY FEV[EVTWTET[]E]W2X 1WE]YD̂[D]1W1D_ *MF	U	**̀Od FW21FWTF]D11VqPH1 h,a,./,	Z,rb.b,.	LM.N	O,/SEW2XY	Z-S	1U\UTET\ 1XE[EEEWEE ETUE]UTETTTW1XY 1VT[1V\WEE1VT[VT1WFD D1W21FW1EY 1F2[X\FWDXT\XW\F EWV]YV̂[]X2WVV_ *1	U	***̀ FW22FW\XE\EX1sGt] LM.N	,f	*rSab+M	P,ai	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	TU1FUTETXTWE1XY	Z-S	TU1FUTET\ F]E[EEEWEE pMab,-c1WF\Y F]][V]TW2EF]\[F\DWVE D\WF\TWDTY F\\[1\VWD\1[ETEWDF 1WTDYT̂E[TEVWVV_ *T	U	*̀**̀ FW]]FW\22]E1\uvqF d,wMQ	LM.N	,f	PM.MxM	O,/S1WTY	Z-S	VUT2UTET\ 1XE[EEEWEE E\UEDUTET11W1FY 1XE[X12WXE1XE[VFTWE2 DTW\2FW1FY 1F][DD]WVE22EWEE EWVDY1̂1[VFFW\2_ *1	U	***̀ VWE]FWDEETF1FXLyF *rMz,.W+,r	j.+	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	VU1TUTET\1Y	Z-S	XU1TUTET\ V\X[EEEWEE EXU1EUTET11WEDY V\T[DD1WTEV\F[FV2W\V DFW]\TWX]Y VF\[VFXWD]1[2DXWVT 1WXVYT̂\[D11W\\_ *1	U	****̀ VW1TFWD2D1FTVHuPT J.b/Sx	GSMQ/n	sa,-i	j.+	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	VU1XUTET\1W1XY	Z-S	XU1XUTET\ 2X[EEEWEE E\U1\UTET11WE\Y 2X[TDDWTX2X[TXEWX1 DFWEXTWDXY \D[2]FW]FFTXW]F EWTXYX̂[V\\W\]_ *F	U	*k* VW1FFWD\]DTF\hl{T h,w,/M	g,/,a	PaSxb/	P,ai	O,/S1W1TXY	Z-S	\U1]UTET\ F1X[EEEWEE E\U1XUTET11W1FY F1V[]\1WVEF1V[]]FW1] DTWDETWDFY TDT[\V\WFV1[E1FWD1 1WEFYT̂T[TF\W]V_ *1	U	*k*k VWTTVWEXDF11VTudE eMQ̀gMa/	K/,aSc	PMQQMRQS	O,/S	P,./	E]U12UTET\1WEXY	Z-S	DU12UTET\ 2X[EEEWEE EDUE]UTET11WEDY 2V[]X]WTX2V[]2FWV2 DFW1ETW2EY \D[]TFW2FFEW\F EWTXYX̂[EVDW2V_ *MT	U	**** VWV2VWF1u|S+-/b,.	hbrS}	VUFUTETT	1}EV}E2	HgPnM.xQSa	*ccS/	gM.MmSrS./	̀	P~O�jZuOhj*I HMmS	D 
Page 43 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& �����B
4B
>(CDEFFDG*HI J-KL	M.LNOP	GQN,RS.QT	GQRRQURL	V,/L	G,./	WX1XDYDEDZW[\	J-L	1DX1XDYDE IYY]YYYZYY Y1X1IXDYDD1Ẑ1\ I1[]Y[1ZYYI1F]IWWZ21 WWẐ̂DZŴ\ DWW]E[DZYYD]W[YZYY 1ZYE\_1F]2F2Z21̀ *QI	X	*Va FZE2FZY22̂E1DMbc2 dQNOL/	G,Ne	GQRRQURL	V,/L	G,./	1DX1[XDYDE1ZW[\	J-L	1X1[XDYD2 12Y]YYYZYY Y1X1WXDYDD1ZWW\ 1EW]211ZYY1EW]2D1ZEE WEZ2DDZEW\ 1EF]F12Ẑ̂E1EZWE YZ[̂\_[]IYIZ2̂` *D	X	** FẐYFZ[1Ŷ̂[1IbfY GgQNRLT	H+ghQU	G,Ne	GQRRQURL	V,/L	G,./	DXIXDYD2DZF[\	J-L	IXIXDYD2 DY[]YYYZYY YIXY1XDYDDDZFE\ DYF]WFEZWYDYF]WF2Z2D W2ZD1IZYE\ 1WW]D̂EZE[IWYZEF YZ2Y\_[]EE1ZY2̀ *D	X	** FZWIFZ[̂Ŵ11FdidD d,N,./,jJ,kS.S,.	bQ.K	V,/LDẐ\	J-L	IX1YXDYD2 ID[]YYYZYY YIXYWXDYDDDZW2\ IDD]FDDZ2[IDD]F[DZF1 ŴZI[IZ1E\ I1W]EIFZD[[IYẐI 1Z1D\_D]̂1̂Z1È *1	X	*Va FZW[FZ[2ŶFEEFGiD bLNKTgSNL	lQ/gQhQP	GQRRQURL	V,/L	G,./	DX1[XDYD2DZI\	J-L	IX1[XDYD2 IF[]YYYZYY YIXY2XDYDDDZIY\ IFF]WIFZF[IFF]WI[ZYE ŴZD̂DZE2\ IIW]Y21Z[DI[DZE2 1Z1W\_[]̂EIZ[F̀ *QD	X	***m FZWEFZEFŴDIEdniW d,P,/Q	c,/,N	GNLoS/	G,Ne	V,/LIZY[\	J-L	IXDDXDYD2 1W[]YYYZYY YIX12XDYDDIZY[\ 1WF]ŴDZF[1WF]ŴDZ[[ WWZŴIZY[\ 1WF]WEEZD21F̂ZEW YZÊ\_1EZD̂` *1	X	*m*m FZŴFZ[̂(�� �	���� �� pqrstqrrr!rr s!ut? pqrvwqxvu!pwpqryvqtuy!pt z!pt? yquxtqzuw!vpwtqwzr!vp zt!sp?{zsxqzrz!pp| >s	9	>>} w!wpw!sy=B�C<	=>
~C(	%3�7DEDYY�̂F[ JNLP�-T	�-.oT	�.T/�R	aLTLN�L	dNLQT-NP	0E[F1 IF]2ÎZY1 �QNS,-TYZY1\ IF]2ÎZY1IF]2ÎZY1 1ZYYYZY1\ IF]2ÎZY1YZYY YZ1D\YZYY *QQ	X	****** YZYYYZYY(�� �	=���6	= ;��	%&�� wtqpwu!rs r!rs? wtqpwu!rswtqpwu!rs r!rs? wtqpwu!rsr!rr r!sz?r!rr >  	9	>>>>>> r!rrr!rr"34
>�>($B�>'F[̂1�YJ�2 �./LNj*kLNS+Q.	JL�	bQ.K	V,/LYẐ2[\	J-L	FXDYXDYDE IY[]YYYZYY YFX1IXDYD1YZW2\ IYI]EYIZ1YIYI]̂E2Z2W WIZFYDZEY\ D̂F]̂22ZEI1]1WIZ[D 1ZYY\_1̂]WWYZ1È *QQ	X	****** FZYEIZWD(�� �	"&� � ���� � wrxqrrr!rr r!vp? wrwqyrw!srwrwquyp!pv z!yr? zutqupp!ywsqsvw!xz s!rr?{suqvvr!sy| >  	9	>>>>>> t!ryw!vzM�L+-/S,.	dSkL�	FXIXDYDD	1�YF�Y2	�cGgQ.oRLN	*TTL/	cQ.QOLkL./	j	G�V��JMVd�*� �QOL	1Y 
Page 44 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& ����3"	(
B>"3
<C1DEDEFGG HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LDQ2RS	T-L	DU1RUDVDW WVVXVVVQVV YMKZ,-NDQVWS WDVXV22QRGWVWXE2EQVR 1VVQE[DQDCS WV[X[DEQVV1X[G2QWV 1QWDS\1XRRVQVR] *MM	U	**̂*** 1QEE1QEDC1DEDE_D2 HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LDS	T-L	DU1RUDVDR RVVXVVVQVV VEU[1UDV1RDQ1RS WC[XG[WQE1WCEXVGWQDC CEQGCDQW2S WC[XWR2QVV1XDW[QVC 1Q2WS\WXGV2QDC] *MM	U	**̂*** DQEEDQ22C1DEDÈaV HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQRS	T-L	[U[1UDVDR [DRXVVVQVV V[U[VUDVD1VQGWS [D[X1WGQWE[D[XG1VQE1 CWQ[VDQWES [VGXWCVQDEWQWW 1QVES\12X1DVQR[] *MM	U	**̂*** [QVVDQCWC1DEDEbRG HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LDQDRS	T-L	11U1RUDVDR [RVXVVVQVV VRUDCUDV1CDQ1[S [RDXW1CQCD[R1X[R2QVW CCQ1VDQR1S [WGXEW1QCRDXCEVQ[D 1QD[S\WXR1RQVC] *MM	U	**̂*** [QG[[QW[C1DEDEc[G HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/L1QGDRS	T-L	RU1RUDVDG RVVXVVVQVV YMKZ,-NDQD[S W2RXRD[QWCWEEXGGCQDE CGQG1DQRVS WE[XVD2QRV[XV2WQC[ 1Q21S\RXGW1Q2E] *MM	U	**̂*** WQ1[[QC[C1DEDddeW HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQGDRS	T-L	2U[1UDVDG 1RVXVVVQVV V2UDCUDVD1VQ2DS 1WCXDERQ1G1WCX[EVQVV CDQWVDQWES 1[EXRC2QGV1RRQ[C VQWCS\1VX2EDQWV] *MM	U	**̂*** WQ[WWQD[C1DEDEfgC HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/L1QGDRS	T-L	CU[VUDVDG 1VVXVVVQVV 1DU1EUDV1C1QEGS CEXRV2QE1CCXV1VQD[ CGQW1DQW2S CGXWVGQDVWQWW VQ[WS\DXGVWQV[] *MM	U	**̂*** WQRVWQ[VC1DEDdd̀D HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQE2RS	T-L	CU[VUDVDG GVVXVVVQVV YMKZ,-N1Q1[S RCDX21VQCWRC[X[E1QD[ C[QDVDQWES RRCXD1EQGV1WQ[W 1QCGS\[WX1GDQG[] *MM	U	**̂*** WQRVWQ[GC1DEDÈFC HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/L1Q1DRS	T-L	DUDEUDVD2 RWRXVVVQVV V[UDWUDVDVVQ2RS RREXCV1Q2GRRWXER[Q2D C[QC2DQW[S R1DX1DCQCGR[[Q1R 1QEVS\WDX2D[Q2G] *MM	U	**̂*** WQCDWQ2[C1DEDd*hW HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQRS	T-L	EU[1UDVD2 1RVXVVVQVV VEUVGUDVD1VQCWS 1WGX1D1QVC1WGXR[DQCC CVQ1EDQWRS 1[RXDGCQRRGRQDD VQW2S\11XDG[QWW] *MM	U	**̂*** RQWDRQDEC1DEDd*iR HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQ[2RS	T-L	CU[VUDVD2 [VVXVVVQVV 1VUDRUDVD11Q[[S DE[X2CDQC2DEWXCGEQDG ECQ[CDQWRS DGEX1GVQ1V[QV2 VQCWS\1GXEVEQ1G] *MM	U	**̂*** RQRVRQ[EC1DEDE[aR HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LDQDRS	T-L	11U1RUDVD2 [VVXVVVQVV 11UV2UDV1C1QECS [V2XCR2QV[[VRXR2CQC2 CEQCGDQWRS DCGXEEDQ2VDXRRWQRG 1QVRS\EXGC2QD2] *MM	U	**̂*** RQG[RQDVC1DEDdFFG HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQGDRS	T-L	1DU[1UDVD2 GDRXVVVQVV V[UDCUDVD11Q[VS RC2XE2RQCEGV1XC11QVR CVQD2DQWRS RGWX1EWQ[2CE1QCG 1QCES\[2X2DGQGE] *MM	U	**̂*** RQ2GRQR2C1DEDdF_C HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/LVQ2RS	T-L	1U[1UDVDE RRVXVVVQVV V[U1DUDVD11QDES R[VXER2QWDR[[X2G2QD2 CVQEDDQWRS WCCXWCVQDVGE[Q2V 1Q2RS\[WXD22QV2] *MM	U	**̂*** RQEWRQGWC1DEDddY1 HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/L1Q1DRS	T-L	EU[1UDVDE [VVXVVVQVV VCUV[UDVD11Q1VS [VVXWR2QV[[VVXWDVQ11 CDQDWDQWWS D2GX21WQCVDC[QWE VQC2S\D[X2VRQD1] *MM	U	**̂*** GQWDGQ1DC1DEDEfFV HI	JKLMN-KO	P,/L1QGDRS	T-L	EU1RUDVDC [RVXVVVQVV VRUDEUDVDVVQGGS [EVXVVCQ22[2WXV1GQ2[ CWQC[DQ[ES [[DXDR[QCR2V2QV1 1Q12S\W1X2GDQ2E] *MM	U	**̂*** 2Q[EGQE2jkL+-/Z,.	JZlLm	WU[UDVDD	1mVWmV2	ebdnM.opLK	*NNL/	bM.MqLlL./	r	dsPatTjPJt*i eMqL	11 
Page 45 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	� �!	������	"��#	$��!	%&��	'���	(�)*++,-./	0121�3"$4 "�5&��6	7��5������ 4 	8 �&�93���� 4&5� ��	7 ��:��;	<���� ����	8 �&�:��;	8 �&� =;�	4�5�=;�	<(= = ;��	8 �&�>55&��	$��! ?	�#	4��!@ ��9'���=���69"A4	%��5� = �&��67& ����3"	(
B>"3
<C1DEDEFGH IJ	KLMNO-LP	Q,/MRSHDTU	V-M	TW1TWDRXR H1TYRRRSRR ZNL[,-ORSCRU TCCYTCXSCTHR1YH2CS1H E2SDXDSXHU TXHY\H2STE1Y\T\SHE 1SECU]HTYD11STÊ *NN	W	**_*** ES1X2SERC1DED̀*ZX IJ	KLMNO-LP	Q,/MRSE2TU	V-M	11W1TWDRXR HDTYRRRSRR ZNL[,-O1SXRU HRRYERESTCHRXYTHES1\ EESHXDSX\U TTXYCRHSDTDYRHCSH2 1SCTU]\CYHH1SEĈ *NN	W	**_*** ESHXES1E(�� �	3"	(� �&6 abcdebfff!ff g!hi? abcggbidg!aiabcgebijd!hh c!jh? ibdfcbdci!ikgdbgkf!de ch!kh?ljgcbdcg!ijm >  	9	>>n>>> e!cae!fj(o(>'	4o
(%o'$o ckbheibhdh!hi g!ii? ckbjefbhha!cackbhkdbjgi!dg c!eh? cdbjfebdfe!eckebeca!hc gff!ff?lkkcbigg!ckm > g	9	>>>>> j!cch!df(o(>'	=>
pB(	8>'3B	4'3"	>��
3B7 cdbefgbhhc!dj

qrM+-/[,.	K[sMt	\WXWDRDD	1tR\tR2	uvẁN.xyML	*OOM/	vN.NzMsM./	{	̀|Q}~VqQK~*� uNzM	1D 
Page 46 of 526



��������	

�������	�������������
	�
����������������������������������	������� !"#$%&'(�)*�+,++�-.&/01.�$%&'(�2,*�+,++
3456789:;64�<64:9;4=>�?=7=;4�;@�<645;>=4:;9AB�C=�D7E=�F6D�:6�<68G97=�:?;@�@:9:=8=4:�:6�:?=�64=�F6D�7=<=;H=�5768�F6D7�ID9A;5;=>�<D@:6>;94B�JA=9@=�@==�38G67:94:�K;@<A6@D7=@BLMNOPQRS�TUUVW�XTYTZVXVYW[\]̂ _̀ab]ccade[fg


�h��������h�ijkl�mnopqrksp�tuknq�vknl�twwknsq*�xyotpo�wtyy�z{,,|�2)}~�}�}*kl�wksqtwq�����h��������h�����h��������
������h��ts��k���o���kl���oyyks(tnlos��o�solz�,�|����~)�){
 

Page 47 of 526



����������		�
� ���������������������� ���������������������� !"#$%�&!'($ )*+),-+).) )*+/0)+.12344"($5�67%$"$8% 21+1.. -/9+,)1:;%!'� !"#$%�&!'($ ��<�=><��> ��<�?@<?�?674;A$�B!"7$5 */+)21 )2+,09C;7%DEF G-+*.)H!" )0+*0)+1-, )0+0/9+,2.I;;#�&!'($ )0+092+0/. )0+01/+/-)C;8%�&!'($ )0+./*+9/. )0+.0-+,).
��J�K����
�LMNOPQROQS�MT�UQVSOW�XSYSOZ 99[.\]OWOPŶ�_MRO�̀MYQ�aMPSbYbO�cMPd -0[*\]OWOPŶ�eYSVMQŶ�aMPSbYbO�fZZMg -9[-\]OWOPŶ�_MRO�̀MYQ�hYQi 1[-\jQŜ�hYQi�kOgMQ�YQW�lONÔMdROQS 9[*\La�]VQYQgVŶ�fmSMRMnV̂O�̀OYZVQb 9[*\oMpMSY�fhX 9[9\_MQWY�fhX -[2\��q�� @@��r

J�
�s�tK���u�
����
K��K��fNOPYbO�aMWVTVOW�lmPYSVMQ 9[*2fNOPYbO�cMmdMQ -[*0\fNOPYbO�vmPgwYZO�xoa -[).\fNOPYbO�aYPiOS�xoa 9[2/\fNOPYbO�XyvzaMMWp�kYSVQb ffzfY-fNOPYbO�]VQŶ�aYSmPVSp 9[,-�pPZfNOPYbO�̀VTO 9[02�pPZ �
�{K��|��tK���}�~J�	���
K���{K��
K���K�������
��tt����K��
J��q�������������38�;��3�"�'������������q���������q�������K����s��������q����fggMmQS��-1/

J�
s�
	�����
��K�� ������������������������������ �	 �	 ��{ ��
 ��
� ��
� ?�
� ���
� �������>>=eMPSwOPQ�cf�cVSVOZ�XÔT�jQZ[�]mQW�XwMPS�oOPR G/[2*\ G)[-2\ G*[-9\ G*[1/\ G-[,*\ /[1*\ -[-)\ -[-0\ )[*)\jc��hMTf�-G0�xP�UX�oPOYZmPp�y�fbOQgp�jQWO  G/[,*\ G)[-/\ G)[21\ G*[.,\ G9[).\ /[0,\ /[29\ /[2-\ )[-)\jc��hMTf�-G0�xP�fffGf�UX�cMPd�y�LMNS�jQWO  G/[2-\ G)[-,\ G*[/,\ G*[1.\ G9[9*\ /[.)\ -[//\ -[/)\ )[9)\� OgmSVMQ�oVRO¡�0z9z9/99�1¡*/¡0)�vacwYQŴOP�fZZOS�aYQYbOROQS�G�c¢e]jl�eojf̀ vYbO�- 
Page 48 of 526



�������� 	��
���� �����
��������������� ������������ ��� !"#$%&'�(�������)*+��,��� ������������-��,��.�/����+�+�01�,2�.3����+�+�4����5���+5��,�������3��.,����������6�.����+�+��1��+�����������.1��5�7�.����+�(���������7�.�����+��,�8'&9������� ��� !"#$&�4����������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?��������-�����.1��A:B3�CD���*BA���� ��� !"#$E���,�4��&�,������� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$*����0A�,2�.)E���+�+�0A�,2�.&�,������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-F=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$GHIJKLMNOPPKQRHIPKN S=>��?����-TU=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D�����,���V�4�� *0T8V0T1���:&:;-F@>��?����-FW=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D��4�����E�.������������ *�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$E����E��2��E�����C��.� X�+5��������+�1��Y��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$E�����C��.� X�+5��������+�1��Y��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$��+����1��DB� <=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$����D����7�,�����7B�4����-D����������6�.A��2B�4����� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$Z*�C E�?��������Y4������ ��� !"#$:�4��,5���*+�������� T������?��������-������.1���(�������*.(���� ��� !"#$V��5�1���. D�������4��7����.���,2�3,��(����1����[��21��.�3,����.�����3�4�����3������.4�������5�4�3'�D�3:�(������4��,5����+��������3��������..�4�����3��(����7�������-���+�������3����+�+�.���(�.3����������������4�3\������������,,������,��������75��.����������-��(��������.���������.�����0%&B-D����������6�.E���+�+�;1��+������]DE;�̂Y��5,�������������4�,�7�,����'�E*3CXZED3��C�E*-V��,5����+��������+��,������������+��-&�,����������.��+�������5��7����71����Y��+����(���+� ��� !"#$E�?V�������� @>4����������������������������?4��,���������.���5�4���,�3�?,��.��+%_&_+�(�������3�+��,�3��(�������4���3��.��������2��7��.� ��� !"#$E�?����E������� T=����� ��� !"#$

�̀��a��
��bcd��
c��c�c�e	�bdfg
eh��
i�jh
�f	a���k���lm# �nop�!"�q�� !"#$r"om$oso#!srstur"omom#�!"#tov$"tw#$o�#to �!"qxy	������
��d���zbc�
i�{$�p{ n"!|}~�}��

 
Page 49 of 526



���������	�
	����������	���������������	 ������������������������ !�"#$%&'()�*%&$+,-#- ./0/1/23456!�789#)�7,&:#(�;%9<�*%&$+,-#- .6==106=4=>!�789#)�7,&:#(�?89(&'@%('89- .3433!�"#$%&'()�?89(&'@%('89- .3433!�"#$%&'()�A&,9-B#&- .3433������CD����������� � �E�EE��F���GGH��I������ �J�"#$%&'()�",K#- .62=1L/64/3J�789#)�7,&:#(�;%9<�",K#- .M251=2/4L5J�77;�N'(+<&,O,K- .016/>4L3J�"#$%&'()�N'(+<&,O,K- .3433J�"#$%&'()�A&,9-B#&- .3433J�P(+#&�Q'-R8-'('89- .3433J�7,(%&'(#- .3433J�?,KK- .3433J�*&'9$'R,K�*,)<8O9- .>331L>>4/2������CD�H��I������ � �E�������G����S�T��UC��� V���TW��� !XJ�Y#(�Z$$&#('89 [.>1=56422\ [.>1=56422\�C� V������ �H��I������ �!XJ�]#,K'̂#<�_,'9X̀8-- .51025450 .51025450	�H������������	 ���������E��Fa

��bc��
��b������b�dd�
e�	������������	 �E�G��a��a����������� ����������?89(&'@%('89- .3433����������"#$%&'()�",K#�*&8$##<- .62=1L/64/3����������Z$$&%#<�f9(#&#-(�]#$#'g#< .M152=4/0����������f9(#&#-(�]#$#'g#< .M61>5/426����������Q'g'<#9<�]#$#'g#< .0042M����������*&'9$'R,K�89�7,(%&'('#- .3433����������f9(#&#-(�89�7,(%&'('#- .3433����������?,KK-X]#<#hR('89�[*&'9$'R,K\ .3433����������f9(#&#-(�B&8h�?,KK-X]#<#hR('89 .3433����������*&'9$'R,K�*,)<8O9 .>331L>>4/2���CD����������� � ���F�EG���GH��I������ �����������N'(+<&,O,K- .016/>4L3����������"#$%&'()�*%&$+,-# ./0/1/23456����������Z$$&%#<�f9(#&#-(�*,'< .M>0465���CD�H��I������ � �GEF�aGa��E	�H������������	 ��GG��aE���


W�� ��D�C��� �b�SSCTijk�lm�jnopq�rst�usuu��T�vWT ��CD�w�T �C�����W��bWDw� ��TC �W�x� y�bv�T���WTSZ$$8%9(�z053

{|#$%('89�A'h#}�LX>X>3>>�5}63}LM�*7?+,9<K#&�Z--#(�7,9,~#h#9(�J�?PY;fQ{YAfZ̀ *,~#�M 
Page 50 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����9�A//BCD'EB D)F+	EGGHG	IJ+GH	KH*L,	M0.CN'	'OMPC.Q	E*G	/R./RM0MO BSMMTPU/ 0TRMARM0M00PBOQ BSAAMPBABSMUUPCT .00P0B.P.MQ BSMOOPUO.0PTA 0P0MQVMMPAOW 'XX	R	YZ''' .PM.0P0UAOB.UY'[B \)+]X	'*,)	ZG(Ĝ_X̀aGL	KH*L,	M0.CNO	'O.P/BQ	E*G	BR.URM0MO UBSAMOP00 0BRM0RM0.C.P/CQ UBSAMMPU.UBSAMMPCA .00P0T.PUTQ UBSAUUPCUATPMM 0P./QOOP0. 'XX	R	'''YZ .PMC0PMAUB/TCb'[M cGH(G]GLNdG+e	'*,)	fGXLG	KH*L,	M0M0Nd	'O0PAQ	E*G	..R.URM0MO BASTMMPTU 0CR.URM0M00PA0Q BAST.BPOTBASTM.POO CCPAO.PBOQ BAS.OCPBB.UP0A 0PMUQVAB.PAUW YZ	R	'''''' .PUU0PA0A//B/0'[O D)F+	EGGHG	IJ+GH	KH*L,	M0.CNd	'OMPM.Q	E*G	.MR.URM0MO M0S/MCPTM 0/R.TRM0.CMPMOQ M0S/MUPMMM0S/M/PCC .00P.C.PACQ M0S/TCPCTM0POT 0P0TQA.PC/ 'XX	R	YZ''' .PTO0PM/CMOAB'''O gGĤe)+	IJ+GH	KH*L,	M0.CN[	'.'.PCAQ	E*G	ARMMRM0MA T0SU.APMO .0R0.RM0.C.PCUQ T0SU0CPU/T0SU.MPM0 .00P0T.P/TQ T0SUUMP/MOUPB/ 0P.BQA0PUM YZ	R	'''''' .PCB0POOTUA/CD'EU ŶLLX+	'*,)	ZG(Ĝ_X̀aGL	IJ+GH	M0.CN[	'O.PCOQ	E*G	/R.URM0MA BCS.BMPC. .0R.TRM0.C.PCAQ BCS./BPM.BCS.B0P/M CCPCC.PC/Q BCS./MP0O/TPU0 0PMTQVBPTCW 'XX	R	'''YZ MPM.0POUAOB.OE'[M \)+]X	'*,)	ZG(Ĝ_X̀aGL	M0M0NM	'O0PBMQ	E*G	/R.URM0MA TOS0T/P00 0UR.BRM0M00PBOQ TOS0TMP0ATOS0TAPOU CCP.AMPOTQ TMSUMTPCTMMPCB 0P.BQVUO/POCW 'XX	R	'''YZ MPM.0PUUA//BCh'[/ D)F+	EGGHG	IJ+GH	KH*L,	M0M0N'	'O.P.Q	E*G	BR.URM0MA .M.S.MTPM/ gXĤ)*L.PMTQ .M0S/OMPUA.M0SC.APOM CCPU.MP0CQ .M0SUO0PB.UCPM. 0POUQVOBOPU.W 'XX	R	YZ''' MPO00PACAOB.Oh'[T \)+]X	'*,)	ZG(Ĝ_X̀aGL	KH*L,	M0M0NO	'O0PO/Q	E*G	.0R.BRM0MA .OCSTCAPMA 0CRMMRM0M00POBQ .OCST/OP/M.OCSTBAP.0 CBPT/MPAMQ .O/SBO.PCB.BPTT 0PA0QV.SBUMP.MW YZ	R	'''''' MPA/0PTUOTMTMi'[B jc	k̂+X+(̂Xa	'*,)	fGXLG	KH*L,	M0M.NO	'M0POCQ	E*G	.0RM.RM0MA UC0S000P00 gXĤ)*L0P/OQ UBTSTCUPOCUB/SMTUPO. CTPB/MPCOQ U/.SUM/P.0/0PO. .PT/QV.US/OBPM.W YZ	R	'''''' MPAB.PMAA//B/Y'[O D)F+	EGGHG	IJ+GH	KH*L,	M0M0Nd	'O0PU.Q	E*G	..R.URM0MA ABS/AAP// 0/R.ARM0M00PUMQ ABS/O/POAABS/A.P.O CBPBOMPA0Q ABS./MPC0..P0U 0P.AQVUTBPMOW 'XX	R	YZ''' MPUU0PTM0CTC0''[/ dcl	gGF̂(aG	fGXLG	KH*L,	M0M.NM	'O0POOQ	E*G	.MRMTRM0MA BUS000P00 0CR0BRM0M.0POAQ BASCC.PMOBASCCOPTA C/PO/MP/.Q BMS/T/PUTAPTB 0PMAQVMSMMTP0BW 'XX	R	YZ''' MPTT.P..BCMOTi'[0 K)m),X	'*,)	ZG(Ĝ_X̀aGL	M0M0NE	'O0POUQ	E*G	.R.URM0MU .0CS.CAP0M .0R0TRM0M00POTQ .0CS./OPTB.0CS.B.P0/ CBPB/MPMTQ .0/SCT0PBC.TPCC 0POMQV.SMM0P.BW YZ	R	'''''' MP/M0PUCCMMC0d''C gGĤe)+	IJ+GH	KH*L,	M0M0Nd	'0PA/Q	E*G	MRM0RM0MU M0US000P00 0BR0ARM0M00PABQ M0ASCUTPCUM0ASC/OPMB CBPATMPACQ M0.SBA/PCMMCPAA 0PUCQVOS.MUPOTW 'XX	R	YZ''' MPB.0P/TbnG(*,̂)+	K̂oGp	URMRM0MM	/pA0pUO	qc[FX+]aGH	'LLG,	cX+XrGoG+,	N	[IYksEbYKs'f qXrG	A 
Page 51 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����9�ABCBDE'FG HE	IJ+K+(JKL	'*,)	MNKON	PQ*O,	C0CCR.	'A.SGT	U*N	AVC0VC0CD CW0X000S00 0CV.DVC0CC.SG.T CAGXGG/SGWCAGXGGYS.C GYS0BAS0/T CADXAWYS0Y.AGSAA 0SBGTZWXBD0S0W[ 'KK	V	\]''' CSYG.SBY0DB0.̂'FA _E`	aNbJ(LN	MNKON	PQ*O,	C0CCR.	'A.S.T	U*N	AVCDVC0CD ..DX000S00 0.V..VC0CC.S..T ..WXGYCSY...WXGYDS0. G/SW0CSG.T ..CX0.AS..C.S0Y 0SAATZCXG/.SG0[ \]	V	'''''' CSG0.SWDWAY.AH'FD c)+dK	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C.R.	'A0SC/T	U*N	WVC.VC0CD /0X000S00 0CV./VC0C.0SC/T BGXGGYS/CBGXGGGSC. G/S//CSYBT BYXWW0SW0DSCD 0SC0TZ.XDDYSY.[ 'KK	V	\]''' CSGY0SYBWWYG.]'FW cg*+dKJ	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C0RF	'A0SAYT	U*N	DV.DVC0CD .D0X000S00 .0VC0VC0C00SAGT .WGXGBDSWD.WGXGY.SCC GYS.BCSBWT .W/XCW0SB0CDSAA 0SWATZCX/W0SBC[ \]	V	'''''' AS0W0SY.YGCW0_'FC P)g),K	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	hi+NQO	C0C.R'	'A0SCBT	U*N	DV.DVC0CD CDDX000S00 0CV0CVC0C.0SC/T CDWXGDCSB/CDWXG/.SAY G/SG.CSBYT CWGXBDYS//CGSW/ 0S/ATZDXA.CSB.[ 'KK	V	\]''' AS0W0SY/WWGAAM'F/ cg*+dKJ	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C.R'	'A0SAYT	U*N	GV.DVC0CD .C0X000S00 0WVC0VC0C.0SAYT ..GXGY/SAY..GXGG.SDD G/S.CCSYBT ..BXDWGSYYC0SC/ 0SAWTZAXWW.SB/[ \]	V	'''''' ASAY.S.BYGCAG_'FD P)g),K	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C.RF	'A0SWAT	U*N	.V.DVC0CB AW0X000S00 .CV./VC0C.0SG.T AABXBDAS.AAA/X0BBS/D GDSG.AS.CT ACBX0//SAWBWSGY 0SGDTZ.0XGYGSW.[ 'KK	V	'''\] AS/C.SDWWAY.DH'FA c)+dK	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C.RW	'A0SYYT	U*N	.VC.VC0CB .WDX000S00 aKQJ)*O.SDYT .WAX0WBSAY.WAX0DWSBY GBSCCAS0AT .AGXD.CSBCADSWW 0SW.TZAXDWCS0B[ 'KK	V	\]''' AS/A.S/YW//YGj'FW k)b+	UNNQN	hi+NQ	PQ*O,	C0C.R_	'A0SDCT	U*N	AV.BVC0CB ..DX000S00 0/V.AVC0C.0SDCT ..WXGYGS/W..WXGG.SGA GDSCBASCYT .0GXDWGS00CBSDY 0SACTZDXWWCSGA[ 'KK	V	\]''' ASYY.S/WYGCAYk'FG P)g),K	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C.RU	'A0S/.T	U*N	WV.DVC0CB YDX000S00 ..V0GVC0C.0S/.T YWXGGYS.GYWXGGYSWW GBSCACSG/T Y.X/GYS/ACBSYC 0SCWTZAX.GGS/.[ \]	V	'''''' ASGB.SBGWWGADI'UB cg*+dKJ	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C.RF	'A0S/WT	U*N	DV.DVC0CB BDX000S00 ..V0GVC0C.0S/DT BWXGYDSWGBWXGY/SDB GDSY0AS.YT BCXC/0SCBC.SAY 0S.YTZCX/./SA0[ \]	V	'''''' WS0W.S/DWAY.D_'FW c)+dK	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0CCR.	'A.SYYT	U*N	DV.DVC0CB .G0X000S00 0CV.DVC0CC.SYGT .YGXG/.SWC.YGXG/AS0D G/SCDASCYT .YWX//GS.Y.DYS/B 0SDWTZDX.GASY/[ 'KK	V	'''\] WS0W.SGGlmN(*,J)+	PJnNo	DVCVC0CC	/oW0oDA	pEFbK+dLNQ	'OON,	EK+KqNnN+,	R	Fh\IrUl\Pr'M pKqN	D 
Page 52 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����9�ABCDDE'F. GH	IJ+K+(JKL	MN(*OJ,JPNQ	RNOS	C0C.TE	'A0UBVW	X*N	YZ.BZC0CB /0[000U00 .0Z.AZC0C.0UBVW BY[YYVUCCBY[YYVUD0 YBU.CAU.0W B/[CVEU00.YUVA 0UC0W\C[/.EUD0] 'KK	Z	'''_̂ EUAV.UBAE//V/̀'FC )̀a+	XNNON	bc+NO	RO*d,	C0CCT'	'ACUACW	X*N	YZ.BZC0CB .ED[000U00 0AZ.0ZC0CCCUAEW .EE[YB/UYA.EE[YBYU0V Y/U/VAUD/W .E.[//YUCB.EYUD. 0UECW\A[.VYUVC] 'KK	Z	̂_''' EUAV.UV.EEVY//'X0 ef*+QKJ	'*,)	_N(NJgKhLNd	RO*d,	C0CCT'	'ACUCCW	X*N	.0Z.DZC0CB .DD[000U00 0AZ0YZC0CCCUCAW .DE[YYEU0A.DE[YYEUCB Y/UVBAUCAW .D.[BVVU/E.DCUYA 0UEEW\A[A0DUDC] _̂	Z	'''''' EUEBCU.DAV0.EB'FE GH	IJ+K+(JKL	'*,)	_N(NJgKhLNd	C0CCT.	'A.UCBW	X*N	..Z.BZC0CB /D[000U00 0.Z..ZC0CC.UC/W /E[YYAUEV/E[YYEU0A YBU0/EUBDW /C[0DCUYDAYUAV 0UC.W\C[YE.U0V] _̂	Z	'''''' EUDD.U./%��6�	�9� ijklmjnon"om l"kk= ijkkpjiko"nmijklkjipq"ll o"mq= qjpokjnqq"llljqri"op ll"im=smpjptk"kku �66	8	������ q"lkl"ol�>v��;A.ADG0RYE ÎH'	̂),NCUA/DW	X*N	.Z.YZC0CA V0[000U00 0EZ..ZC0.VCU/.W /V[VC0UV0/Y[VCCU0/ .00UE..UV0W V0[ACEUVVDAVUAA 0UCEWD0CUV. 'KK	Z	''w''' 0U/C0U/.A.A/x'x_B IeyHF	̂),N0UA/DW	X*N	DZDZC0CA DC0[000U00 0DZ0DZC0C00UAYW D.Y[/V.UB0D.Y[YCBUC/ YVU.VCUC0W D.0[DADUEVYDAUAA .UD0W\Y[AY0U/Y] 'KK	Z	''w''' .U0..U00A.A/x'x̂D IeyHF	̂),NCU/DW	X*N	BZ.YZC0CA D00[000U00 0/ZC0ZC0.VCUVBW EY/[EY0U00EYY[EC0U.C .00UEYCUA.W D0C[EEYU00D[0E.UB/ .UEYWA[0CVUVV 'KK	Z	''w''' .U.E.U.0A.ADG0DGE ÎH'	̂),N0UCDW	X*N	/Z.0ZC0CA CA0[000U00 0/Z0VZC0C00UACW CCY[D0DUD0CCY[V0AUDD Y/UDDCUAEW CCE[A/AUD..//UCY 0UBBW\D[EA0U0E] 'KK	Z	''w''' .U.Y.U.VA.A/x'xz/ IeyHF	̂),N0UCDW	X*N	VZCEZC0CA ACD[000U00 0VZ.YZC0C00UCVW ACE[BBVUD0ACE[VDDU0V Y/UCACUE0W A.D[YVAUC0.D.UCC 0UYAW\V[V/.UVV] 'KK	Z	''w''' .UAC.UA0A.ADG0{EA ÎH'	̂),NCUV/DW	X*N	YZ.CZC0CA D0D[000U00 0YZ.CZC0.VCUYBW D0C[YCYUD0D0E[EAAUDB .00UDBCUEBW D0/[V0EUC/.[Y/BU.B .UEYWA[A/0U/. 'KK	Z	''w''' .UA/.UAAA.ADG0Be. ÎH'	̂),N0UCDW	X*N	..ZC/ZC0CA .D0[000U00 ..ZCAZC0C00UCYW .EY[VCYU00.EY[Y.0UA/ YBUEYCUDEW .EE[/A/UVD.B0UEC 0UECW\D[./CUDC] 'KK	Z	''w''' .UDV.UDDA.A0'0I/0 Iey|	̂),NAUA/DW	X*N	.CZVZC0CA EE0[000U00 0.Z.BZC0.YCU/AW EDC[VEAUB0EEE[C.EU0V .0.UCCCUB0W EED[ADEUV0D[VYVU/D .UACW.[.E0U/C 'KK	Z	''w''' .UB..UDEA.A0'|Ae/ Iey|	̂),NCUA/DW	X*N	AZVZC0CE D00[000U00 0EZCYZC0.YCUA/W D00[0ADU00D00[0.AUAB YYUEYCUBBW EY/[EAYUD0.[/EVUCB .UEBW\C[D/AUVB] 'KK	Z	''w_̂ .UVB.UV0x}N(*,J)+	RJSN~	DZCZC0CC	/~E0~DA	�HFaK+QLNO	'ddN,	HK+K�NSN+,	T	Fb̂ I�Xx̂R�'y �K�N	B 
Page 53 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����>A��;B.B0'.CDE FGHI	J),KELM/NO	P*K	QR.SRE0ES S/NT000L00 0QR.MRE0.U.LUQO SUNTNSMLQNSMBT/S0LN. .00LB0EL/BO S/QTSBML/MNT.UQLU/ .LS.OV/TB0.L/BW 'XX	R	''YJZ EL.BEL0EB.BN[0\/N FJ]'	J),K.L/NO	P*K	/RERE0ES N00T000L00 .EREERE0E.0LMSO N..TEMNL00N0UT/0QL0M U/LUQEL/EO SMUTM.0L00ETMUELBQ .LSSOV.UTMUQL0MW 'XX	R	''Y''' EL.MEL.0B.B0'Ê_S FGHI	J),KELM/NO	P*K	UR.BRE0ES SN0T000L00 0UR.BRE0.U.L/UO S/BTB0NLN0SQ.T0QNL00 .00L.UEL/UO SN0TMS.LN0.T/ENL00 .LBEOV.0TEEBLN0W 'XX	R	''Y''' ELBMELE/B.BN[0_QQ FJ]'	J),K.LQENO	P*K	.0R.NRE0ES E00T000L00 .0R./RE0.U.LQQO .UUTQNML00.UUTMB.LQB U/L.EELMNO .USTESNL00.SSLSS 0LN/OVNTNMQLQBW 'XX	R	''Y''' ELSQELBMB.B0'̀FS0 FGHI	J),K.O	P*K	.ERE0RE0ES NN0T000L00 .ERE.RE0E..L0EO NSUTQSELN0NSUTQMSLUM UNLBMELMBO NESTN/SL0N.TU/0LMB .LNSOVENT..0LUBW 'XX	R	''Y''' ELQSELNQB.BN[0CES FJ]'	J),K.LQENO	P*K	.R/RE0EN N0NT000L00 \Xab)*c.LE.O N.STMS0L0NN.0TS/QLQ. UQLM0ELM/O SMMTMBQLU/ETNUMLQN .LSSOVE.TQBULQSW 'XX	R	''Y''' ELQUELNUB.B/d'de0 FGH]f	J),K.LNO	P*K	ER.ERE0EN Q0NT000L00 0ER.BRE0E0.LNEO Q0STNBSL.NQ0ST/S0L.N UQLBNELM/O NMETUSSL/B.TUU.LSQ .L/.OVE.T/UNLSEW 'XX	R	''Y''' EL/UELQUB.BN[0B̂N FJ]'	J),K0LQENO	P*K	SREERE0EN S/NT000L00 0SREERE0E00LQ/O S/ST0E.LN0S/STS.QLM/ UBLQ.ELMMO SSSTQNNL.0/SLEE .LB0OVEUT/Q.L//W 'XX	R	''Y''' ELUMELU.B.BN[0SgB FJ]'	J),K0LNO	P*K	QR./RE0EN NQNT000L00 \Xab)*c0LS/O NQNTN/SL.NNQNTSSMLUE UELMNELU.O NESTNMBLMQ.T0N.LNE .LNSOVS0TMQNL0QW 'XX	R	''Y''' BL.BBL0QB.B/d'd̂U FGH]f	J),K0LB/NO	P*K	/RE.RE0EN BE0T000L00 0/RE.RE0E00LSMO B.MTS0QLS0B.MTU/.LQ/ UELB0ELMUO EUNTB/0LNQBBBLBB 0LM/OVEBTQ0.L..W 'XX	R	''Y''' BLEBBL.QB.BN[0NC/ FJ]'	J),K0LB/NO	P*K	MRENRE0EN NQ0T000L00 \Xab)*c0LSQO NN/TM0.LE0NNMTN.QLQ. UEL0BELU.O N.NTBUNLSSBMNL00 .LN.OVSBT.E.L./W 'XX	R	''Y''' BLBEBLENB.B/d'dCB FGH]f	J),K0LB/NO	P*K	UREBRE0EN NNNT000L00 \Xab)*c0LSSO NNBTBNSLQNNNBTMQ0LM/ U.LM0ELUBO N0UTSQELM.E.ULQU .LSUOVSSTBUML0QW 'XX	R	''Y''' BLS0BLBBB.BN[0Q[B FJ]'	J),K0LNO	P*K	..R/RE0EN NQNT000L00 \Xab)*c0LNQO NQBTSBSLU0NQBTMUUL0E U.LU0ELUSO N.UTE.UL/N.TBQNLS. .LNEOVSSTQ/ULE/W 'XX	R	''Y''' BLNBBLSB%��6�	����34 hijkjilll"ll m"no= hiopkipml"mjhioloikjk"pq n"kl= hinrjipqm"lrpoijhr"pm nk"mk=spomipko"prt �66	8	��u��� n"ppn"no�<vB.B/I]QeQ FGH]f	w/E.	'EBL0UO	P*K	MRENRE0EE .MNT/U0LSM 0URE.RE0./ELEEO .UETMN/LUS.MQTES/LSQ .00L.Q.LSUO .MQT0MMLQSS/MLS. 0LNNOV.NMLMEW 'XX	R	JZJZ 0LBE0LEBdxK(*,b)+	ybzK{	NRERE0EE	/{S0{NB	e]f|X+}~Ka	'ccK,	]X+X�KzK+,	�	f�JF�PdJy�'H eX�K	/ 
Page 54 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����<AB.B/CDECF GHIJK	L0BB	'MBN0OP	Q*R	/SMTSM0MB DMTU000N00 0VS.BSM0.VMN.DP DBFUFOMNB0DMVUDBON/M .00ND0MNTMP DMOUOF0N0BM.ON/T .NMTPWMU/TONOVX 'YY	S	Z[Z[ .NMD.N0/B.B/C/J\V GHIJK	L0BO	'MBNTM/P	Q*R	.0SMTSM0MB D00U000N00 .0SMVSM0.FBNBMP D0BUVB/NT0D0.U./MNO0 .00N/TMNF0P D0MUVFFND0MBTN.B .N.FP.UF.TNF0 'YY	S	Z[''' .NDV.NB0B.B/C]̂_/ GHIJK	L/MO	'MMNV0TP	Q*R	DSMTSM0MD BDFUTBFNFO 0DSMMSM0.VMN/MP BT.U0B0NBFBDVUTM/NTO VVNF.MNVMP BD/UFV.NM/FDBN/T .N0MPW.UOBONMVX Z[	S	'''Z[ .NVV.N/TB.B/CG̀VF GHIJK	L0D.	'MBN./.P	Q*R	.0SMTSM0MD T00U000N00 .MS.TSM0M..N./P TMOUBMFN.BTMMUFD0N.0 .00N.TBN0BP T00U/BTNT0.UBM.NMT .ND/PWMMU.0DNO0X 'YY	S	'''''' MNDVMNM/B.B/ĈEM. GHIJK	L0TT	'MMNO/BP	Q*R	BSMTSM0MO ./0U000N00 .MS.TSM0M..NMTP ./FU/0TNFO.//UVTTN/T VFN.TBN.OP .OOUFDFN0BB/FNOF 0NDVPW..U.0/N/MX Z[	S	Z[''' BNV0BNTOB.B/G_ab/ GHIJK	L/B/	'MMNTMTP	Q*R	.0SMTSM0MO TMBU000N00 .MS.TSM0M..ND.P TDFU/00NTTTDOU/T/NTT VONVOBNMOP T0/U0F/NM0.U.00NDF .NDVPWBVUO/0NBTX Z[	S	Z[''' DNDVDN0T%��6�	�<A cdeecdfcg"fh c"ii= cdjhidhcc"jjcdjkfdgfl"lh c"mf= cdefmdfkg"ilhdelh"he l"hh=nledjkm"jlo �66	8	������ c"fgc"kf�A
2A
�%pMDDMM̀qrD b)s+	QRRtR	KYuv,Yw	K)tu	Z),RMNFP	Q*R	BSOSM0MB .T0U000N00 0OS.BSM0.FBNDDP .DTUFMFNT0.DVUMTMN/O .00NTBMN./P .T0U/VBNOTOD.NO/ 0NDDP.UTD0NFV 'M	S	'' 0NFT0NFB0MOOTEKbF 'xRtv(Y+	H)+yY	Gv+Y+(R	Z),RBNDTP	Q*R	/S.DSM0MB .00U000N00 0/S..SM0.FBNDVP VVUFM/N00VVUVTFNBO .00N/TMNF.P .00U/T.NV0.U0MTNDM 0NB0P/VBNTD 'B	S	'z' .NM..N.O0OD0O['bO CY+{	)|	Z]	JRww)+	K)tu	Z),RBNDTP	Q*R	FS..SM0MB BM0U000N00 0TS.OSM0.VMN/VP BMFUD.ON00BMMUTDTNT. .00NFBMN/VP BMMUOD.NMFMUDTBNBB 0NVTPVTN// '.	S	'''z .NMF.NMD0MOOTEK_M 'xRtv(Y+	H)+yY	Gv+Y+(R	Z),RBNOMTP	Q*R	.0S.0SM0MB MDTU000N00 .0S0BSM0.FBNODP MDDU/VVN.0MDDUVDMN0M .00N/FBN0/P MDOUV0/NFMT.FN0/ 0N/MP.UVOTNF0 'B	S	'z' .NDT.ND0MDDMM̀}ZO b)s+	QRRtR	KYuv,Yw	K)tu	Z),R0NDTP	Q*R	.S./SM0MD .VTU000N00 0BS0.SM0M.0ND/P .VDUFO.NTT.VDUV./NBF VON0FMNF.P .F/UBTVN.MMTBNT0 0NTTPW/UTTFNMOX 'M	S	'' .N/M.NOF0O0T.rHGV CY+{	)|	'xRtv(Y	K)tu	KYwwY~wR	Z),R	.a	BSTSM0MBBNTTP	Q*R	BSTSM0MD BM.U000N00 0BS0OSM0.VBNMMP BMMUMBTNFTBM.UDTONO/ .00N0FMNF0P BM.UMTTNM0.U//MNOB 0NVTPWM0.ND/X 'M	S	'z''z .NFT.N//FV..D_KCM q)t)+,)	Q)xv+v)+	CY+{	Z),RBNMTP	Q*R	BS..SM0MD BMTU000N00 0BSMOSM0.VMNV/P BMVU..DNT0BMOUTDTN/F .00N.OBN.OP BMTUTM.NB0.UDO/N0. 0NVOPW.U0MDNDFX '.	S	'''z .NF/.N/V�̀R(*,v)+	qvxR�	TSMSM0MM	/�D0�TB	̂JKsY+ywRt	'��R,	JY+Y�RxR+,	z	K�ZG�Q̀Zq�'I Ŷ�R	F 
Page 55 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����A
2A
�%BC0CD.EFGH IJKLMNO	P(JQKR	I)LS	IKMMKRMN	G),N	I)+,	TU.CUT0TH0V/DW	X*N	EU.CUT0TH .Y0Z000V00 0EU.YUT0T.0V//W .D[Z[T0V00.D[Z[H[VCD [DV/[EV0/W .DEZTDCV0C.HEVEE 0VHDW\YZY[.V//] 'T	U	'' .VCC.VCH0YEY/̂_̀ E FK+a	)b	c)+,LNKM	G),N0VYTDW	X*N	/U[UT0TH T00Z000V00 0TU0[UT0TT.VC[W .[HZ0/TV00.[HZY0HV/C [HV.YEVH.W .CCZETDVY0ECCVC[ 0VDDW\YZT/[V.C] 'T	U	'd''d TV.[TV.H/[HYYe'f[ PKMNOb)L(NV()g	h+(	IKMMKRMN	G),N	I)+,	/U.DUT0TT0VYTDW	X*N	/U.DUT0TH T[DZ000V00 iKLj)*O0V[EW T[TZ/.DV[DT[EZ0Y/VD/ [HV/CEV0[W T/[ZY0DV/TDHTVC[ 0VCTW\.EZHY.VCD] 'T	U	'kGl TVT.TV.YY[E/.l_TD mK((KL	nj+K+(jKM	I)LS	G),NTV.DW	X*N	CU.DUT0TH /0Z000V00 0CU0CUT0.[TVT0W Y[ZCHDVE0Y[Z[T[V.E [/VC/EV.TW YCZD0CVCYE./V/T 0VT0W\.ZHT0VT/] '.	U	'kGl TVE0TVT0/C0.Do/IT l)pKM	FK+a	)b	IK+KqK	G),NTVTDW	X*N	..U.UT0TH ETDZ000V00 .TU0DUT0.[TVTYW ETHZCE.V00ETHZ[.EVDY [/V0DEVH[W E.DZH0CVY0EZYDYVTD 0V[EW\[ZD0HV[Y] '.	U	'''d TVD.TVEC.H[.E_EFE IK,NLSjMMKL	nj+M	PNLrj(N	G),NTV.DW	X*N	..UCUT0TH ETDZ000V00 0TU.[UT0T0.VCEW ET[ZYTCV00ET/ZH//V[H [/VCTEV0DW E./Z[T0VCDEZED/VCC 0V[HW\[ZDD/V0[] 'T	U	'' TVDETVH.C[TEŶŝE )̂p),K	c),)L	ILNqj,	I)LS	G),N.VHDW	X*N	.U.EUT0TD E.0Z000V00 0.U.0UT0TT.VD0W E0[ZDCHVY0E0[ZYTDVDE [DVEEEVT/W T[DZDE/VCC.ZEHCVD0 0VC/W\.HZ0C/VYD] '.	U	'k'k TV/.TVY0[0EE.tme. uP	FK+a	G'	IKMMKRMN	G),N	I)+,	.TUT.UT0THTV0DW	X*N	.UT.UT0TD EH0Z000V00 0.U.YUT0T0TV.0W EE[ZT/DVC0EE[ZY0DVT0 [YV/EEVE.W ETCZC/[VYT.Z[EYV.. 0V[/W\.0Z/TDVDC] '.	U	''d''d TV/ETVY.Y[E/.ll/E mK((KL	nj+K+(jKM	I)LS	G),NTVCDW	X*N	HU/UT0TD EH0Z000V00 0EUE.UT0TTTVCYW EE[Z[..VY0EE[Z[.EVDH [[V0/EV.[W EEYZCTEV/TYHYV00 0V[[W\EZ0C[VCT] '.	U	'kGl TV[HTV/[/H/DTD'n0 _*KM()gg	h+(	IKMMKRMN	G),N	I)+,	TUT0UT0TDEVHDW	X*N	DUT0UT0TD ED0Z000V00 .TUTTUT0T..VHYW E/TZ[//VD0E/0ZYY.VTT .00VTYEVEYW ED0Z[00VT0DZH00VT. .V0HW\.[Z/Y.V0T] 'T	U	'Gl EV0YTVCHHYYH/mIt/ sm	c)LvK+	IJKON	w	I)	IKMMKRMN	G),N	I)+,	YU.UT0TH0VCTHW	X*N	YU.UT0TD E00Z000V00 0DUTHUT0T.0V/CW E00ZECCVC0E00ZT/0VE. [HV.TTVCEW TCTZEYYVY0.Z0E0V00 0VCEW\./Z[0EV/.] 'T	U	'd''d EV0[EV00HYYH/mIo0 sm	c)LvK+	IJKON	w	I)	IKMMKRMN	G),N	I)+,	YUTEUT0TH0V[Y[W	X*N	YUTEUT0TD .H0Z000V00 iKLj)*O0V[EW .H0Z0C/VDD.H0Z0YCV[0 [HV.TTV[.W .E.Z/Y[V[YHCTVEH 0VE[W\CZT[CV[H] 'T	U	'd''d EV.DEV0DC[/CCc''0 L̂*jO,	nj+K+(jKM	I)LS	IKMMKRMN	G),N	I)+,	0/U0EUT0TD.VTW	X*N	CUDUT0TD ED0Z000V00 0TU0EUT0TT.VCDW EHTZE.HV00EHTZC.HVEH [EV00EVH[W ETDZD0HVDD.Z00EVEE 0V[YW\./ZE0[V/[] 'E	U	'd' EVT/EV.HxyN(*,j)+	̂jgNz	DUTUT0TT	/zH0zDE	mcIJK+qMNL	'OON,	cK+KvNgN+,	d	I{GnhXxĜh'e mKvN	[ 
Page 56 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����A
2A
�%BCDDC/EFG. HE	I)JKL+	MNLOP	Q	M)	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	CUVVUV0VWVX0YZ[	\*P	CUVVUV0VD V00]000X00 0VU./UV0VVVXWW[ .̂D]W0YX00.̂D]DDCXVV ĈX0̂ZX/.[ .YY].ŶXD0.0CX.W 0XWW[_Y]C/CXDV̀ 'V	U	'a''a ZX̂YZX/D0VZ.ZWFbZ 'cLd)+X()c	e+(	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	CU.VUV0VD.[	\*P	WU.VUV0VD CC0]000X00 0WU.0UV0V..X0̂[ CZY]0̂ X̂V0CZY]CD/X/0 .̂XVWZXZC[ C0.]ĈVX̂DV]0DWXWD .X.Y[_ZD]̂/CX/C̀ '.	U	''''a CX0CZXY/Y0YW.ZFfW MNLJRPO	g(NhLS	M)Ji	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	CU.ZUV0VD.X.W[	\*P	WU.ZUV0VD V00]000X00 .VU.WUV0V..XĈ[ .̂/].WVX00.̂/]Ẑ.X.0 0̂XY/ZXD0[ .Y.]/ZYXD0.]0/ZXZZ 0XWC[_.W]DWVXW0̀ 'V	U	'' CX0CZXYD.̂ZVCEjMV k+l,Pm	nPLR,N	oJ)*i	e+(	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	CU.WUV0VD.X.W[	\*P	WU.WUV0VD ZWW]000X00 pLJl)*O.X0̂[ ZWW]̂VYX/WZWW]//̂XD0 .̂XVCZXĈ[ ZVZ]̂0CXYC.]YYVXĈ 0X̂W[_Z.]Y/CX/D̀ 'Z	U	'q' CX0CZXY/ŶVZDrHGV r)s),L	I),)J	MJPml,	M)Ji	T),P.X.VW[	\*P	DU.YUV0VD Z00]000X00 0DU.WUV0V..X.Z[ V̂ ]̂YDYX00V̂ ]̂Ŷ0X̂V 0̂XYYZXWV[ V/V]DZ.X00.]VCDXYY 0XY0[_V/]VŴX̂V̀ '.	U	'q'q CX.CZX̂D0D0W.oH\V FL+t	)u	'cPJl(L	M)Ji	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	DU.̂UV0VW.XZ.̂[	\*P	DU.̂UV0VD ZW0]000X00 pLJl)*O.XZY[ ZĈ]0CVX00ZĈ]0CWXCD .̂XD̂ZXWZ[ ZV0]̂0/XZ0.]D̂VX/V 0X̂C[_VY].ZYX.D̀ 'V	U	'a''a CX.CZX̂CŴĈ.YFfC Il(J)O)u,	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	WUYUV0VDVXC[	\*P	YUYUV0VD ZW0]000X00 .VUV.UV0V..XZD[ ZDW]CCVX00ZDC].̂CXDW D̂XYCZXV0[ ZZY]̂V/X/W.]̂ZDXD/ .X00[_VW]VDDX̂0̀ 'LL	U	'''''' CXVYCX00Ŷ..Crvo0 r)J)+,)a\)cl+l)+	FL+t	T),P.XVW[	\*P	̂U.0UV0VD V00]000X00 .VU.WUV0V..XD/[ .̂D]V0VX00.̂D]ĈYX/V ŶXY0ZXY.[ ./̂]ŴYXD0ZWCX./ 0XWZ[_.D]̂00X.V̀ '.	U	'''a CXZ/CX.D0Z/YZZ\T/ 'iiRP	e+(	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	/U..UV0VDVX0W[	\*P	̂U..UV0VD V/0]000X00 pLJl)*O.XW0[ V/D]WDWXY0V/D]00YXDZ ĈX/CZXZD[ VWW]/̂WXZ0/DYX/W 0X/W[_V0]V.ZXZZ̀ 'LL	U	''qTf CXZ/CX..0DZDYw'MZ FL+t	)u	I)+,JPLR	T),P.XVW[	\*P	̂U.WUV0VD VY0]000X00 0̂U.ZUV0V..XVY[ V/̂]DD.XV0V/̂]/0ZXW0 ŶXZVZX̂Z[ VW0]0YVX00CC/XVV 0X/Z[_V̂]DV.XW0̀ 'V	U	'a''a CXZYCX./Ẑ..CVjf0 xLRaILJ,	g,)JPO	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	0YU./UV0VD.X0W[	\*P	̂U./UV0VD /0]000X00 0̂U0YUV0V..X0̂[ D̂]YD/X/0D̂]YYCX0/ .̂X0̂ZXVW[ DZ]/DCXDYŶXYZ 0X.̂[_D]..̂XẐ` 'LV	U	'''' CXẐCXV./Y0.DjvvZ f)sLR	FL+t	)u	ML+LmL	T),P.XC[	\*P	..UVUV0VD V00]000X00 .VU.WUV0V..X/C[ .̂D]YW0X00.̂/]0YYX// 0̂XV0ZX/̂[ .Y0]Ẑ.X00.]WYDXD/ 0XWZ[_.D]D̂/X//̀ '.	U	'''a CXW.CXVDY/D.VjFI/ rLJKP,	M)Ji	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	.VU.WUV0VD.X̂W[	\*P	.U.WUV0V/ V0W]000X00 0.U.̂UV0VV.X̂̂ [ V0C]DW.XW0V0C]D/0X.0 ẐX//ZXẐ[ .̂V]VZ0X.C.]0//X.0 0XW/[_.V]CẐX̂D̀ 'V	U	'' CX/VCXC.jyP(*,l)+	rlcPz	WUVUV0VV	/zC0zWZ	EIMNL+mRPJ	'OOP,	IL+LKPcP+,	a	M{Twe\jTre'| ELKP	.0 
Page 57 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����A
2A
�%BC0CD.EFG0 HIJKLMN	O(IPJQ	H)KR	HJLLJQLM	S),M	H)+,	TUEUT0T/TVWDX	Y*M	EUEUT0T/ .W0Z000V00 0EU0.UT0TTTVW/X .E[ZCWCVC0.E[ZCDEV\[ [WVT0EV//X .E.ZC/DVTWDDTV\. 0VE[X]/Z[/CVWD̂ 'T	U	'' WVCWWVWC0CW\\WH_T FMK̀NIaKM	bJ,IJPJc	HJLLJQLM	S),M	H)+,	TU.DUT0T/TVEX	Y*M	EU.DUT0T/ W.0Z000V00 0EU0/UT0TTTVE0X W0[Z[TTV.0W0[Z[TWV.. [DVD[EVT[X E[.Z[TDV[/.ZT0WV[W .V.DX]./Z[[CV.Ŵ 'JT	U	'''d WVCCWVDW%��6�	����6�� efghgfiii"ii g"jk= efgklfmnh"lkefgnofkjk"ke h"mo= jfoihfnek"nennfnlj"go mk"lg=pnnnfiei"giq �g	8	�r�r h"goh"im<A�B;	<�
sB%	#1�5T\T00tCWD YKMcu*N	v*+wN	x+N,yL	zMNMK{M	|KMJN*Kc	-\DW. T\\Z0W.VTD }JKa)*N0V0.X T\\Z0W.VTDT\\Z0W.VTD .V000V0.X T\\Z0W.VTD0V00 0V/CX0V00 'JJ	U	'''''' 0V000V00%��6�	<���4	<6:��	#$�� mllfing"mk i"ig= mllfing"mkmllfing"mk i"ig= mllfing"mki"ii i"oj=i"ii �66	8	������ i"iii"ii<1�!�!2�?	9A�5�.E0\EYz~\ HJLau)K+aJ	O,J,M	|J�JQLM	��TVWX	Y*M	.0U.UT0TW ET0Z000V00 .0U.\UT0.[.V[.X ET/ZED0VW0ETEZ\0.VC\ [CVW.EV0[X E.WZ[0CVC0\W0V00 0V[TX]CZ\[EV0\̂ 'JT	U	''�'' TVWTTVET%��6�	<$��3��6�	9���� hmifiii"ii g"eg= hmofhki"nihmhflig"jl h"ie= hgnfeij"jilni"ii i"em=pjfleh"ilq �6m	8	����� m"nmm"hm�12
���%!A��?WD[0DC��C x+,LV	FJ+̀	zM()+	�	YM{ML)R�M+,	S),M0VDX	Y*M	.0UTCUT0TD [.0Z000V00 }JKa)*N.V00X C[TZC.[VT0C[WZDTEVEC [.VC0TV[[X CEDZEDCV.\E/V[. TVWDX]D[Z.\DVTT̂ 'JJ	U	'''''' EVD0EVWTWDC.t0Y}/ x+,MK�'�MKa(J+	YM{	FJ+̀	S),M0VC/DX	Y*M	WUT0UT0T\ D/DZ000V00 0WU.EUT0T.0V[/X D/TZE\\VD0D/TZ[0CV/C [.V[CEV0EX DTCZC/[VTD.DEV/E .VDDX]WWZ0T[VDÊ 'JJ	U	'''''' EV[CEVCD%��6�	�$�6�6����6� gfnjkfiii"ii i"ee= gfnlkfgjk"oigfnlofnhm"gl h"ig= gfhlnfmho"nggeg"ln h"ee=pgihfgen"okq �66	8	������ h"ljh"kj1�	%
B��1
;[.TCTHY�0 �O	|KMJN*Kc	S),M0VDX	Y*M	..UE0UT0TE DD0Z000V00 .TUTEUT0T.0V\CX DWCZ.0[VECDWCZWWDVDD [\VC0TVD/X DETZWTDVCD.Z.WCVED .VD\X].\Z0.[V/0̂ 'JJ	U	''d''' .VD[.VD\��M(*,a)+	|a�M�	DUTUT0TT	/�W0�DE	��HIJ+wLMK	'NNM,	�J+J�M�M+,	�	H�SvxY�S|x'� �J�M	.. 
Page 58 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6����1�	%
A��1
;B.CDCEFG. HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0QCRS	T*L	UV.RVC0CW UR0X000Q00 0UVU0VC0C.0QUUS UWBX.RCQUWUWBXWYUQ.R BRQYCCQYYS UUWXYY0QC0...Q/R 0QBDSZ.WXD0CQBR[ 'MM	V	''\''' .QDD.QDRB.CDCEEEU HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0QCRS	T*L	RV.RVC0CW /00X000Q00 .CVC.VC0C.0QD0S YB0XDUBQDWYBCXC00Q/D BRQ.UCQ/CS YYRXB0CQU0D0/QUC .QBRSZCYXCBDQWD[ 'MM	V	''\''' CQ0WCQ0.B.CDCD]]U HI	JKLMN*KO	P),LCS	T*L	YVU0VC0CW RR0X000Q00 .CV.CVC0.B.Q/WS RRYXCBWQBCRRCXBB/Q/Y BDQWRCQ/WS RW.XWWBQ.RUXY/YQD0 .QY0SZ..XRWDQY.[ 'MM	V	''\''' CQ./CQ0BB.CDCDTRY HI	JKLMN*KO	P),LCQU/RS	T*L	DV.RVC0CW R00X000Q00 0DVCBVC0.B.QWRS RCCX.Y/QB/R.0XCUBQDW BBQ0CCQDCS WBRX../Q00CXWY0QCB .QWYSZ.RX.CCQDW[ 'MM	V	''\''' CQU0CQC.B.CDCDUT0 HI	JKLMN*KO	P),LCQCRS	T*L	.0VU.VC0CW R00X000Q00 ..V0/VC0.B.Q//S R..XU0DQRBR0RXYDCQC/ BDQRDCQDWS WBCXDB0QR0U0QR/ .QWWSZ.CX/B.Q//[ 'MM	V	''\''' CQR.CQW.B.CDCETPD HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L.S	T*L	.CV.RVC0CW RR0X000Q00 .CV.RVC0C.0QBBS RR0X./.QDDRR0X.R0QRU BRQUDCQDWS RCWXRDUQBRCX0/0Q0R .QRWSZCRXRYYQRD[ 'MM	V	''\''' CQYUCQRRB.CDCD̂E/ HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L.Q.CRS	T*L	CVCDVC0CR WR0X000Q00 0UV.DVC0C00QD.S WRYXBWUQUYWRUXB/UQ.C BRQUCCQDYS WCDXBCUQD0DRCQBC .QCYSZCRX0WBQUC[ 'MM	V	''\''' CQDWCQ/RB.CDCE_TB HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L.Q/RS	T*L	UV.RVC0CR CURX000Q00 0WV0DVC0CCCQ/.S CCDX/0CQ/UCCDXD.WQ/Y BYQBUCQD/S CC/X/DWQD0RCRQCW 0QY/SZ.X0CBQBY[ 'MM	V	''\''' CQDDCQ//B.CDCD̂ 0̀ HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0QRS	T*L	UVU.VC0CR RYRX000Q00 0.VCRVC0C.0QUCS RYBXCRBQR/RY/XB/WQ/C BUQWCCQD/S RC/XDUUQ/WCUBQCD .QRRSZW0X.W0QBD[ 'MM	V	''\''' CQBCCQDYB.CDCE'aU HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0QCRS	T*L	BVU0VC0CR R/RX000Q00 0CV.BVC0C.0QR.S RYDX.WBQW.RYBXB.WQ0C B.QU/CQBCS RCRXUDUQDC.C.Q/Y .QRWSZWWXRU0QC0[ 'MM	V	''\''' UQWCUQUYB.CDCE'JD HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0QCRS	T*L	.0VU.VC0CR R/RX000Q00 0.V..VC0C.0QWDS RYDXD00Q/DR/0XW//Q0. B.Q./CQBCS RCWXC.YQ00UQB. .QRUSZWYXCY.Q0.[ 'MM	V	''\''' UQR.UQWWB.CDCE'̂W HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0QU/RS	T*L	..VU0VC0CR RYRX000Q00 0UVCYVC0C.0Q//S RRWXDYBQ/URR/XCU.QYD B.QUYCQBUS R.YX.D0QY.DDWQ/R .QR.SZW.X0R.Q0/[ 'MM	V	''\''' UQRBUQR.B.CDCEEbD HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0QD/RS	T*L	YVU0VC0CY UR0X000Q00 .CVCCVC0C..QCCS UWWX/0DQBDUWRX.CCQYW B.QBYCQBWS UC.XDWBQR0.X0CUQYR 0QBRSZCUXC/UQ.W[ 'MM	V	''\''' WQ./WQ0UB.CDCEEcW HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0QYCRS	T*L	/VU.VC0CY .W0X000Q00 0DV0WVC0C.0QYDS .UBXYCCQYY.UBXY/DQW0 B0Q/BCQBWS .C/X..0QC0C./QRW 0QU/SZ.CXRYDQC0[ 'MM	V	''\''' WQCRWQ.UB.CDCEEdB HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0Q/RS	T*L	DVU.VC0CY .R0X000Q00 0BV./VC0C.0QDYS .WBX.DRQRR.WBXCDYQ.C B.Q.YCQBWS .UYX/UWQU0.DBQRW 0QW0SZ.CXRR.QDC[ 'MM	V	''\''' WQUWWQC0_eL(*,f)+	JfgLh	RVCVC0CC	/hW0hRU	caEiM+jkLK	'NNL,	aM+MlLgL+,	m	EnP̀oT_PJo'p cMlL	.C 
Page 59 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6����1�	%
A��1
;B.CDCEEFC GH	IJKLM*JN	O),K0PD/QR	S*K	BTU0TC0CV DQ0W000P00 XLJY)*M.P0DR DZ.WQB.PD0DZCWQ..PZ0 B.PQ0CPBZR ///W/.VPDQVCBPBZ CPCDR[VZW/BZPQQ\ 'LL	T	'']''' ZPZCZPC/%��6�	1�	%�6�$4 _̂̀aa_bbb"bb b"cd= _̂̀ec_̂dc"ec_̂̀fe_̀gf"da h"̂f= d_dbb_dgh"adè_ccf"gg hh"ac=ieff_eb̀"̀̂ j �66	8	��k��� h"cfh"̂a%l%�?	2l
%#l?!l fa_abh_̂ca"̂d "̀fg= fa_gà_̂fa"̂̂fa_adb_b̀h"̂e h"cb= fe_baf_gd̂"deb̀h_̂fg"ah b̀b"bb=ì_àg_ffe"̀bj �6̀	8	����� h"̂̀h"ec%l%�?	<�
mA%	7�?1A	2?1�	���
1A5 fe_̀ag_àa"hg

noK(*,Y)+	IYpKq	QTCTC0CC	/qZ0qQU	rsEtL+uvKJ	'MMK,	sL+LwKpK+,	x	EyOz{SnOI{'| rLwK	.U 
Page 60 of 526



��������	

�������	�������������
����
������������������������������� �	!!�����"#$#%&'()�*+�,-,,�./'012/�%&'()�3-+�,-,,
456789:;<75�=75;:<5>?�@>8><5�<A�=756<?>5;<:BC�D>�E8F>�G7E�;7�=79H:8>�;@<A�A;:;>9>5;�;7�;@>�75>�G7E�8>=><I>�6879�G7E8�JE:B<6<>?�=EA;7?<:5C�KB>:A>�A>>�49H78;:5;�L<A=B7AE8>ACMNOPQRST�UVVWX�YUZU[WYWZX\]̂ _̀ abĉddbef\gh


������������ijkl�mnopqrksp�tuknq�vknl�twwknsq+�xyotpo�wtyy�z{--|�3*}~�}�}+kl�wksqtwq������������!�������������!��
���������ts��k���o���kl���oyyks)tnlos��o�solz�-�|����~*�*{
 

Page 61 of 526



����������		�
� ���������������������� ���������������������� !"#$%�&!'($ )*+,-.+*-/ )0+12,+0,.344"($5�67%$"$8% 1.+.)0 22-+-)*9:%!'� !"#$%�&!'($ �;<=��<��� �;<���<>>�674:?$�@!"7$5 ,-+)*/ A0+*.)B:7%CDE -F!" )1+A./+A*A )1+A*,+-)-G::#�&!'($ )1+A1*+,20 )1+,)A+12)B:8%�&!'($ )1+,.-+AA0 )1+,00+.A2
��H�I����
�JKLMNOPMOQ�KR�SOTQMU�VQWQMX )AY*Z[MUMNW\�]KPM�̂KWO�_KNQ̀ẀM�aKNb 2,Y-Z[MUMNW\�]KPM�̂KWO�cWOd 2)Y0Z[MUMNW\�eWQTKOW\�_KNQ̀ẀM�fXXKg 2)Y.ZhMOOMXXMM�iW\\Mj�fkQlKNTQj )Y-ZcWOd�KR�fPMNTgW�aKNb 2Y1Zmn�_KǸWO�alWXM�o�aK 2Y1ZhKjKQW�fcV 2Y*Z��p�� >��qr

H�
�s�tI���u�
����
I��I��fLMNẀM�_KUTRTMU�vkNWQTKO AY0-fLMNẀM�aKkbKO 2Y0.ZfLMNẀM�nkNglWXM�wh_ 2Y//ZfLMNẀM�_WNdMQ�wh_ AY-)ZfLMNẀM�Vonx_KKUj�yWQTÒ ffxfW2fLMNẀM�[TOW\�_WQkNTQj ,Y2A�jNXfLMNẀM�̂TRM AY1)�jNX �
�zI��{��tI���|�}H~	���
I���zI��
I���I�������
��tt����I��
H��p�������������38�:��3�"�'������������p�����������p�������I����s����t�������fggKkOQ��202

H�
s�
	�����
��I�� ������������������������������ �	 �	 ��z ��
 ��
� ��
� =�
� ���
� =�������qeKNQlMNO�aW\Y�aTQTMX�VM\R��OXY�[kOU�̂KÒ�hMNP �2Y/0Z �,Y,0Z �.Y/AZ �.Y1,Z �)Y0/Z -Y0,Z 2Y)-Z 2YA1Z AY2AZ�a �cKRf�2�2-�wN�SV�hNMWXkNj�o�f̀MOgj��OUM¡ �2Y.0Z �,YAAZ �.Y.)Z �.Y01Z �AY,1Z -Y.)Z -Y1AZ 2Y-.Z )Y0*Z�a �cKRf�2�2-�wN�fff�f�SV�aKNb�o�JKLQ��OUM¡ �2Y0.Z �,Y.1Z �.Y*.Z �/Y-)Z �AY2)Z -Y//Z 2Y2AZ 2YA/Z )Y1,Z ¡MgkQTKO�hTPM¢�.x)x)-))�0¢,2¢2)�n_alWOU\MN�fXXMQ�_WOẀMPMOQ���a£e[�v eh�f̂ nẀM�2 
Page 62 of 526



�������� 	��
���� �����
��������������� ������������ ��� !"#$%&'�(�������)*+��,��� ������������-��,��.�/����+�+�01�,2�.3����+�+�4����5���+5��,�������3��.,����������6�.����+�+��1��+�����������.1��5�7�.����+�(���������7�.�����+��,�8'&9������� ��� !"#$&�4����������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?��������-�����.1��A:B3�CD���*BA���� ��� !"#$E���,�4��&�,������� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$*����0A�,2�.)E���+�+�0A�,2�.&�,������� **�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-F=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$GHIJKLMNOPPKQRHIPKN S=>��?����-TU=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D�����,���V�4�� *0T8V0T1���:&:;-F@>��?����-FW=.�����?�������� ��� !"#$D��4�����E�.������������ *�����+,���+�����1�����1���:&:;-<=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$E����E��2��E�����C��.� X�+5��������+�1��Y��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$E�����C��.� X�+5��������+�1��Y��:&:;�-F=>��?���� ��� !"#$��+����1��DB� <=>��?����-@�������?�������� ��� !"#$����D����7�,�����7B�4����-D����������6�.A��2B�4����� @�������?�������� ��� !"#$Z*�C E�?��������Y4������ ��� !"#$:�4��,5���*+�������� T������?��������-������.1���(�������*.(���� ��� !"#$V��5�1���. D�������4��7����.���,2�3,��(����1����[��21��.�3,����.�����3�4�����3������.4�������5�4�3'�D�3:�(������4��,5����+��������3��������..�4�����3��(����7�������-���+�������3����+�+�.���(�.3����������������4�3\������������,,������,��������75��.����������-��(��������.���������.�����0%&B-D����������6�.E���+�+�;1��+������]DE;�̂Y��5,�������������4�,�7�,����'�E*3CXZED3��C�E*-V��,5����+��������+��,������������+��-&�,����������.��+�������5��7����71����Y��+����(���+� ��� !"#$E�?V�������� @>4����������������������������?4��,���������.���5�4���,�3�?,��.��+%_&_+�(�������3�+��,�3��(�������4���3��.��������2��7��.� ��� !"#$E�?����E������� T=����� ��� !"#$

�̀��a��
��bcd��
c��c�c�e	�bdfg
eh��
i�jh
�fk�
�l���mn# �opq�!"�r�� !"#$s"pn$ptp#!tstuvs"pnpn#�!"#upw$"ux#$p�#up �!"ryz	������
��d���{bc�
i�|$�q| o"!}~��~��

 
Page 63 of 526



���������	�
	����������	���������������	 ����������������������� !"�#$%&'()*�+&'%,-.$. /0123455674"�89:$*�8-';$)�<&:=�+&'%,-.$. />5?3@@5604"�89:$*�8-';$)�A9:)'(B&)(9:. /?6??"�#$%&'()*�A9:)'(B&)(9:. /?6??"�#$%&'()*�C'-:.D$'. /?6??���� �EF���������� !� ���������G�H��I ���� !�J�#$%&'()*�#-K$. /00230>L60?J�89:$*�8-';$)�<&:=�#-K$. /4>350L6?LJ�88<�M(),='-N-K. /?6??J�#$%&'()*�M(),='-N-K. /?6??J�#$%&'()*�C'-:.D$'. /?6??J�O),$'�P(.Q9.()(9:. /?6??J�8-)&'()$. /?6??J�A-KK. /?6??J�+'(:%(Q-K�+-*=9N:. /7>3>L>60@���� �EF�H��I ���� !� �����G�R�S��T U��VE�� !W���UX�� !"YJ�Z$)�[%%'$)(9: \/13?2@60>] \/13?2@60>]�E�!W� ��� !�H��I ���� !�"YJ�̂$-K(_$=�̀-(:Ya9.. /03>@2670 /03>@2670	�H������������	 ��������������

��bc��
��b������b�dd�
e�	������������	 ����R���G���������� !����������A9:)'(B&)(9:. /?6??����������#$%&'()*�#-K$�+'9%$$=. /00230>L60?����������[%%'&$=�f:)$'$.)�̂$%$(g$= /035256@5����������f:)$'$.)�̂$%$(g$= /0L3>L>651����������P(g(=$:=�̂$%$(g$= /7657����������+'(:%(Q-K�9:�8-)&'()($. /?6??����������f:)$'$.)�9:�8-)&'()($. /?6??����������A-KK.Ŷ$=$hQ)(9:�\+'(:%(Q-K] /?6??����������f:)$'$.)�D'9h�A-KK.Ŷ$=$hQ)(9: /?6??����������+'(:%(Q-K�+-*=9N: /7>3>L>60@� �EF���������� !� ���S���S���H��I ���� !�����������M(),='-N-K. /?6??����������#$%&'()*�+&'%,-.$ /0123455674����������[%%'&$=�f:)$'$.)�+-(= /03@@?600� �EF�H��I ���� !� ��S���GR�G�	�H������������	 ��G��SS����


X� !��F�E�� !�b�TTEUijk�lm�jnopq�rst�usuu� U�vXU!��EF�w U!�E�����X��bXFw�!��UE!�X�x�!y�� !z��XUT���� �!�[%%9&:)�{>7>

|}$%&)(9:�C(h$~�1Y0Y0?00�7~@>~>0�+8A,-:=K$'�[..$)�8-:-�$h$:)�J�AOZ<fP|ZCf[a +-�$�2 
Page 64 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	����	������	 ��!	"���	#$��	%���	&�'())*+,-	./0/�1 "2  �3$��4	5��3������ 2�	6��$�71���� 2$3����	5���8��9	:���� ����	6��$�8��9	6��$� ;9�	2�3�;9�	:&; ;�9��	6��$�<33$��	"��� =	�!	2���>���7%���;���47 ?2	#��3� ;��$��45$�����<8 @AB/CD(EB F*,GH	(+-*	IJ)JKLHMNJO	PQ+O-	RS/TUA	(A/V0BW	X+J	BY/CYRSRA Z/[@/TVSZ SBYRSYRS/T/V0TW Z/[@/BVCCZ/[@/TVSS /SSVSZ/VCZW Z/[@CAV0S@BVCT SVRRWA@V0S (HH	Y	(((DI /VRTSVR@TRA@B(((A \JQK]*,	̂_,JQ	PQ+O-	RS/TUE	(/(/VT@W	X+J	@YRRYRSR@ ZC[/ZTV/0 /SYS/YRS/T/VTCW ZC[/Z@V/@ZC[/ZZVTB /SSVSZ/V0ZW ZC[R/SVZRABVZA SVRAW@AVZ@ DI	Y	(((((( /VTBSVAABTRARF(ET P*̀*-H	(+-*	IJ)JKLHMNJ	̂_,	RSRSU(	(A/VZZW	X+J	CY/CYRSR@ /@T[S0ZV0@ SZY/0YRSRSSVZBW /CR[C/RV@T/CS[B0/V0/ TTVTZ/V0ZW /@T[SR/VCB/STVTT SVCAWa/[BCSV/Ab (HH	Y	(((DI RVS@SV@/@00BTc(E0 d*e,	XJJQJ	̂_,JQ	PQ+O-	RSRSU(	(A/V/W	X+J	BY/CYRSR@ TA[/0@VS@ SAYS@YRSRS/V//W TA[/ZBVACTA[/0/V/S TTVC/RVSTW TR[0/ZVSS@CVCC SVAAWa@CCV/Sb (HH	Y	DI((( RVASSV@T@AB/Ac(EZ F*,GH	(+-*	IJ)JKLHMNJO	PQ+O-	RSRSUA	(ASVA0W	X+J	/SY/BYRSR@ /@T[ARBVAA STYRRYRSRSSVABW /@T[ASZVAT/@T[A/0V@B TBVZ0RV@RW /@0[AA0VZA/TVTC SVCAWa/[T0TVBCb DI	Y	(((((( RV@0SVZCAZRZRf(EB gh	iK,H,)KHN	(+-*	jJHOJ	PQ+O-	RSR/UA	(RSVATW	X+J	/SYR/YRSR@ RSC[SSSVSS SBY/SYRSR/SVATW RS@[TT0VR/RS@[TTBVSR TZVB0RVTAW /TB[CB/V@CR@V@A SV0/WaZ[@/ZVC0b DI	Y	(((((( RV@B/VR@@00B0D(EA d*e,	XJJQJ	̂_,JQ	PQ+O-	RSRSUk	(ASVC/W	X+J	//Y/CYRSR@ CR[@T@VAZ S0Y/@YRSRSSVCRW CR[@BZVAZCR[@TSV@@ TBVBARV@SW C/[B0BVCS//VTS SV/TWaZ//VT@b (HH	Y	DI((( RVCCSVZRSTZTS((E0 khl	\JeK)NJ	jJHOJ	PQ+O-	RSR/UR	(ASVAAW	X+J	/RYRZYRSR@ TS[SSSVSS STYSBYRSR/SVA@W BT[TTSV0/BT[TTAVRZ T0VA0RV0/W B0[ZAZVR@@VTC SVA/WaR[AC0VSRb (HH	Y	DI((( RVZZ/V//TRRTSk((T \JQK]*,	̂_,JQ	PQ+O-	RSRSUk	(SV@0W	X+J	RYRSYRSRC R/C[SSSVSS SBYS@YRSRSSV@BW R/@[TC@VBCR/@[T0/VTB TBV@ZRV@TW R//[ZT@V/ZASVBB SV0ZWaA[R00VBRb (HH	Y	DI((( RVB/SV0ZSCZS/f(EA khl	\JeK)NJ	jJHOJ	PQ+O-	RSRRU/	(A/V/W	X+J	AYRCYRSRC TC[SSSVSS S/Y//YRSRR/V//W T@[TBCVBST@[TB0VZR T0V@SRVT/W TR[CARVC0/0V@R SVAAWaR[@CCVSCb DI	Y	(((((( RVTS/V@C@AB/Ag(EC F*,GH	(+-*	IJ)JKLHMNJO	PQ+O-	RSR/U/	(ASVR0W	X+J	@YR/YRSRC 0C[SSSVSS SRY/0YRSR/SVR0W 0@[TTBVZA0@[TTTV/Z T0V00RVBZW 0A[ARTVSSCVZA SVRZWa/[Z0SV/Zb (HH	Y	DI((( RVTBSVBZ@@BT/I(E@ F̀+,GHK	(+-*	IJ)JKLHMNJO	PQ+O-	RSRSUE	(ASVABW	X+J	CY/CYRSRC /CC[SSSVSS /SYRSYRSRSSVATW /C@[TZ@VAS/C@[TBSVCT TBV/ZRVZ@W /CR[/@BVZRRZV/B SVC@WaR[BA/VT0b DI	Y	(((((( AVS@SVB/BTR@Sk(ER P*̀*-H	(+-*	IJ)JKLHMNJO	̂_,JQO	RSR/U(	(ASVRZW	X+J	CY/CYRSRC R0S[SSSVSS SRYSRYRSR/SVR0W RZT[T@TVBTRZT[TZTVZT T0VT/RVZBW RZ@[A@@VCBA/VRS SVT@WaC[ZRCV//b (HH	Y	DI((( AVS@SVB0@00BBm(EZ d*e,	XJJQJ	̂_,JQ	PQ+O-	RSR/U(	(ASVAZW	X+J	TY/CYRSRC BS[SSSVSS SAYSRYRSR/SVA0W 0T[TB@VZR0T[TBTVCS TZVCAAV/CW 00[RRCVRB/RVBS SVRBWaR[0Z@VRRb (HH	Y	DI((( AVAB/VRCnoJ)+-K*,	PKpJq	CYRYRSRR	0q@/q/R	rhEeH,GNJQ	(OOJ-	hH,HsJpJ,-	U	ÊDitXnDPt(j rHsJ	@ 
Page 65 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	����	������	 ��!	"���	#$��	%���	&�'())*+,-	./0/�1 "2  �3$��4	5��3������ 2�	6��$�71���� 2$3����	5���8��9	:���� ����	6��$�8��9	6��$� ;9�	2�3�;9�	:&; ;�9��	6��$�<33$��	"��� =	�!	2���>���7%���;���47 ?2	#��3� ;��$��45$�����<8 @@ABBC(D0 EF+,GHI	(+-*	JK)KILHMNKO	PQ+O-	RSR/T(	(BSUBVW	X+K	AY/ZYRSRZ /RZ[SSSUSS S@YRSYRSR/SUBVW /R@[AV\UVZ/R@[AA/URS A0U/RRUV\W /R/[@S\U/BR/U// SU@BW]B[ZVZUS0̂ _J	Y	(((((( BUBV/U/\@BV/Z̀(DB E*,GH	(+-*	JK)KILHMNKO	PQ+O-	RSR/T@	(BSUVVW	X+K	/YR/YRSR\ /SS[SSSUSS //Y/\YRSR/SUVAW AA[A0VUARAA[AV/U0B A\URRBUSBW A\[R/ZU\SR@U@@ SUB@W]B[0\\U/B̂ (HH	Y	_J((( BU0B/U0V@00VAa(D@ b*c,	XKKQK	de,KQ	PQ+O-	RSR/Tf	(BSUZRW	X+K	BY/\YRSR\ /RZ[SSSUSS S0Y/BYRSR/SUZRW /R@[AVVUVZ/R@[AA/URB AZUR\BURVW //A[S0ZUSSRVUVA SU@RW]Z[A/\URB̂ (HH	Y	_J((( BUVV/U0@VARBVb(DA P*F*-H	(+-*	JK)KILHMNKO	PQ+O-	RSR/TX	(BSU0/W	X+K	@Y/ZYRSR\ AS[SSSUSS //YSAYRSR/SU0/W VA[AAVUSVVA[AAVUBZ A\URBRUA0W V\[\/SU@RRVU@S SUB/W]B[BV0UAB̂ _J	Y	(((((( BUA\/U\A@@ABZg(X\ EF+,GHI	(+-*	JK)KILHMNKO	PQ+O-	RSR/TD	(BSU0@W	X+K	ZY/ZYRSR\ 0S[SSSUSS //YSAYRSR/SU0ZW \A[AV@UBV\A[AV\U\/ AZUVSBU/VW \0[S\SURVRBUSR SUR@W]R[AR\UBB̂ _J	Y	(((((( @US@/U0ZB\RZZ@(D/ h̀	gI,H,)IHN	iK)+QI-IjKG	PKQk	RSR/T@	(BSU\VW	X+K	AY/\YRSR\ 0Z[SSSUSS /SY/BYRSR/SU\VW 0@[AAVUSA0@[AAVUBA A\U/RBU/SW 0R[SASUSSR/URZ SUR\W]R[ASVUBÂ (HH	Y	(((_J @UBV/U\B@00V0b(DR b*c,	XKKQK	de,KQ	PQ+O-	RSRRT(	(BRUBRW	X+K	AY/\YRSR\ AZ[SSSUSS SBY/SYRSRRRUB@W A@[A0VUAAA@[A0AU0Z A0U0VBUZ0W AR[VVAUV\A0UA\ SUBBW]R[SVAUVÂ (HH	Y	_J((( @UBV/UV/@@VA00(XS EF+,GHI	(+-*	JK)KILHMNKO	PQ+O-	RSRRT(	(BRURRW	X+K	/SY/ZYRSR\ /BS[SSSUSS SBYSAYRSRRRURBW /RA[AAZUSS/RA[AAZU/A A0UV\BURBW /R0[RRRUV//RVUR0 SU@ZW]R[00RUBV̂ _J	Y	(((((( @U@\RU/ZBVS/@\(D@ h̀	gI,H,)IHN	(+-*	JK)KILHMNKO	RSRRT/	(B/UR\W	X+K	//Y/\YRSR\ \Z[SSSUSS S/Y//YRSRR/UR0W \@[AA@UBZ\@[AA@UVB A\US0@U\ZW \R[@@ZUVAB@U/B SURRW]R[Z@VUA@̂ _J	Y	(((((( @UZZ/U/0B\RZVZ(DZ h̀	gI,H,)IHN	iK)+QI-IjKG	(JP	RSRRTR	(BBU/W	X+K	RY/\YRSR0 AS[SSSUSS S@YSZYRSRRBU/BW VA[AV/U/AVA[AV/U@\ AAU00BURRW VA[0AZUA0/BAUZS SUBRW]/VZU@Â (HH	Y	(((_J @UVSRU/A&����	<8 lmnlomppq�no o�rs= lmnltmnpp�uulmnllmllv�ln l�nn= lmpvumulq�ruunv�on u�su=wplmtot�trx <��	7	<<<<<< t�qpq�qs<>y��:B/BBVBzb@ gECf	_*-KBUB0ZW	X+K	AYVYRSRB @Z[SSSUSS //YRAYRS/VBUSSW @Z[0@0UAS@Z[R/RU@S /S/URRRU@ZW @Z[ZZSUZBRRBUZA SU/\WBBVU/B (HH	Y	(({_J /UB\/UB/|}K)+-I*,	PIkK~	ZYRYRSRR	0~@/~/R	�hDcH,GNKQ	(OOK-	hH,H�KkK,-	T	Dd_g�X|_P�(C �H�K	Z 
Page 66 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	����	������	 ��!	"���	#$��	%���	&�'())*+,-	./0/�1 "2  �3$��4	5��3������ 2�	6��$�71���� 2$3����	5���8��9	:���� ����	6��$�8��9	6��$� ;9�	2�3�;9�	:&; ;�9��	6��$�<33$��	"��� =	�!	2���>���7%���;���47 ?2	#��3� ;��$��45$�����<>@��:A/ABCDEF/ GHI(	H*-JDKLBM	N+J	//OL0OLDLA LPDQDDDKDD //OLAOLDLDDKLRM L0RQEPDKPDL0RQPALKER REKSRLKBSM L0DQ/00KALLRRKSS DKR0MTRQEBBKA0U (VV	O	((W((( /KBP/KBBPPDBR/XYR ZJ,,J[[JJ	\V]]Ĵ	(+-_*̀a-̂	H*-JLKP0BM	N+J	RO/BOLDLS BBDQDDDKDD DLOL0OLD/RLKEBM BBEQABLKBDBBLQ0L/KED /DDKDELKPBM BBDQADBKPDLQDLDKSR /KR0MTLQS/BKPDU (VV	O	((W((( LKAPLKL0A/ABCDbEE GHI(	H*-J/KELBM	N+J	/DO/BOLDLS L0BQDDDKDD /DO/0OLD/R/KEEM L0SQBLRK0BL0SQ0EPKSP R0K/LLKPBM LE0QDPEKPP/RPKE/ DKRBMT0QEP/KEDU (VV	O	((W((( LKSELKAPA/ABCDcLS GHI(	H*-J/KELBM	N+J	/O0OLDLB L/BQDDDKDD D/ODPOLDLD/KERM L/SQA/SK/BL/SQEADK0B REKPDLKP0M LDPQ//PK0//Q/DEKAB DK0BMTEQB/LKDSU (VV	O	((W((( LKERLKBRA/A0X(XdD GFeIf	H*-J/KBM	N+J	LO/LOLDLB SLBQDDDKDD DLO/AOLDLD/KBLM SLSQE0LK0BSLSQP/0KSE REKABLKP0M SDRQBDEKEA/QARPKRE /KS0MT/BQA/DKPAU (VV	O	((W((( LK0RLKERA/AD(Xg\/ GFeg	H*-JAK/LBM	N+J	EO/AOLDLB SDDQDDDKDD DPOLPOLD/PAKD0M SD/QA0LKDDSDDQEADK/L /DDKELLKRLM SDLQS0RKLDSQ0R/KE0 /KSBM/QPSRKDP (VV	O	((W((( AK/LLKRLA/ABCDShA GHI(	H*-JDKBM	N+J	EO/0OLDLB S0BQDDDKDD DEO/0OLDLDDKBSM S0SQD/EK0BS0SQAPAKPB RLKPBLKR/M SS/QDL/KPAPPSKDA /KBPMTAAQAELKDLU (VV	O	((W((( AK/AAKDEA/A0X(XiR GFeIf	H*-JDKA0BM	N+J	0OL/OLDLB ASDQDDDKDD D0OL/OLDLDDKSPM AAPQADEKPDAAPQRD0KSD RLKADLKPRM A/AQPA/KLLABSK/0 /K/LMTLBQD0EK/PU (VV	O	((W((( AKLAAK/EA/A0X(XcA GFeIf	H*-JDKA0BM	N+J	ROLAOLDLB A0DQDDDKDD DROLAOLDLDDKSSM AEPQPPEKADAERQLSLKL0 R/KPDLKRAM AARQES/KP0/SEKSE /KL/MTLRQEDDKSDU (VV	O	((W((( AKSDAKAAA/ABCDECA GHI(	H*-JDKBM	N+J	//O0OLDLB BADQDDDKDD //ODROLDLDDKB0M BLPQ/DLKEDBLPQEEDKDB R/KRDLKRSM SP0QDBBKER/QLPDKPA /K0SMTS/QEDSKAEU (VV	O	((W((( AKBAAKSAA/ABCDjAE GHI(	H*-JLK/LBM	N+J	SOLSOLDLE BEBQDDDKDD \V̀a*+[LK/PM BELQSADK/DBEAQRDPKBB REKRELKRSM BS0QPLBK0DLAAKSE /KREMT/EQDPLKPBU (VV	O	((W((( AKRRAK0PA/AD(CGdB GFeg	H*-JLKBM	N+J	EO/LOLDLE BDDQDDDKDD DEO/0OLD/RLK/RM B/DQDPBKDDBDBQRS/KPR RPKA/LKRSM SR/QBSSKBDSQPLEKAR /K00MT/SQAR0KARU (VV	O	((WHY SK/LAKPSA/AD(L\XA GFeg	H*-JAM	N+J	RO//OLDLE B0BQDDDKDD \V̀a*+[LKP/M BPAQ0/RKBDB0RQD0PKLA RRKP0AKDAM B0SQLEPKDALQARBKPA LKDEMTSQP/DKLDU (VV	O	((WHY SKA0SKDBA/ABCDkLL GHI(	H*-J/KP0BM	N+J	ROLSOLDLE LADQDDDKDD \V̀a*+[LK0PM L/LQEDSKDDLLLQDBDKPB RBKEDLKRBM L/RQPPAKLLSSAKLA DK0RMTLQ/E0KEAU (VV	O	((W((( SKS/SK/0A/AD(fjgR GFeg	H*-JLKELBM	N+J	RO/DOLDL0 EDDQDDDKDD \V̀a*+[LK0BM BRAQEPBKDDBREQS0DKS0 R0K0/AKDRM BPEQL0DKLDLQLA/KLE LK/DMT/DQLDDKL0U (VV	O	((WHY BKA0SKRSA/ABCDBlB GHI(	H*-JDK0BM	N+J	/DOPOLDL0 EDDQDDDKDD \V̀a*+[DK0RM BRPQSDLKLDBRPQ0LSKED PRKD/LKRBM BASQDP/KEDLP0KB/ /KR/MTESQESAKDDU (VV	O	((W((( BKSSBKLBXmJ)+-a*,	ZanJo	BOLOLDLL	0oS/o/L	dIf_V,p]J̀	([[J-	IV,VqJnJ,-	r	fsHGtNXHZt(e dVqJ	E 
Page 67 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	����	������	 ��!	"���	#$��	%���	&�'())*+,-	./0/�1 "2  �3$��4	5��3������ 2�	6��$�71���� 2$3����	5���8��9	:���� ����	6��$�8��9	6��$� ;9�	2�3�;9�	:&; ;�9��	6��$�<33$��	"��� =	�!	2���>���7%���;���47 ?2	#��3� ;��$��45$�����<>@��:A/AB(CDEF GHID	J*-KALEFM	N+K	OPQPEBER FBBSBBBLBB B/PEQPEB/QAL/AM FBTS0RFLBBFBAS/EALE0 /BBLQRALB0M FBTSRQQLBBOSTBQL0E /LREM/S00FL0A (UU	P	((VJW OL/EFLTTA/AB(XAY/ GHID	J*-KELR0FM	N+K	APQPEBEQ ARBSBBBLBB ZU[\*+]ELOOM AROSR/FLFBARTS0R/LAB QRL0RALB0M A0FSAOFLQB/SF0RLBF /LAFMQ̂ST/FLTB_ (UU	P	((VJW OLROOL/FA/AB(XǸR GHID	J*-KEL0FM	N+K	OPRPEBEQ F/BSBBBLBB ZU[\*+]ELTFM FEASEO/LBFF/QSFBTLRA Q0LORAL/EM TQRS/0OLORFSF0/LBT /LRBMÊ/SAERL/F_ (UU	P	((VJW 0L//OLAEA/AB(XabA GHID	J*-KEL/EFM	N+K	QP/TPEBEQ 0BSBBBLBB BAPBFPEBEB/LE/M 0FS0TELRB0TSTTFLAF QALFTAL//M OFST00LOF/QTLEB BLEAMR̂SQO0L0B_ (UU	P	((VJW 0LAROL0EA/AFXBFcE GJd(	J*-KBLR0FM	N+K	RPFPEBAB O/BSBBBLBB ZU[\*+]BLQQM OBASOEELFFOBTSOT/L/T RALFBAL/OM FBQSAA0LRB/SE0FLB0 /LREMQ̂FSABALAT_ (UU	P	((V((( RLE00LR/&����	<���34 efghifggg�gg j�kl= efgmjfjni�ggefgimfhoo�ii l�em= kfmhjfegi�emnkfjig�nm ng�eo=phjhfioj�ieq <��	7	<<r<<< h�hhh�ji�;sA/A0DTbDR GHIdt	uBAA	(EALBOM	N+K	0PEFPEBEA TBBSBBBLBB /BP/QPEB/RALAQM AQTSQBOLEFAQRSO0RLRF /BBLTBELFEM TB/SFR/LEBEBTLBB /LTAMESQBELAF (UU	P	JWJW /LET/LB0A/A0D0̀ Q̀ GHIdt	uBA0	(EALTQM	N+K	/PEFPEBET TBBSBBBLBB BOPEOPEB/QELBRM TEESF/FLOATBRSFA0LOA /BBLO0ELQBM TBESOQELTB/S/OALAA /LTTMF̂SRTFLEA_ JW	P	(((JW /L0T/LTRA/A0D̀vc0 GHIdt	u0EO	(EELQBFM	N+K	TPEFPEBET ARQSFTALTF BTPEEPEB/QEL0EM AQESAERLBRAQBSOTRLTO QQLR/ELQEM ARRSR/QLORQTALBE /LAQM/̂SRERL0R_ JW	P	(((JW /LQQ/L0FA/A0G(WCB GHdw	u0E0	(EELQTOM	N+K	0PEFPEBET AABSBBBLBB B0PEAPEB/QEL/FM ATBSETRLBFAATSFBTL/T /BBLBEELRFM AABSBRBLRFR/BL/F /L/RMT̂STEALEQ_ JW	P	(((JW ELET/LQRA/A0DCZHT GHIdt	uBTB	(EALET/M	N+K	QPEFPEBET E0FSBBBLBB BEPBOPEBEB/LRBM EQ/STF0LBAERASFOBLBB /BBLAEALBEM E0FSRRELEB0TEL0A BLQQM0̂SO00LRB_ JW	P	JW((( ELT/EL/0A/A0GDDYA GHIdt	uBOR	(EALETTM	N+K	RPEFPEBE0 E0BSBBBLBB BEPBEPEBEE/LRBM ERQS/0TLEEERRSA0RLRQ /BBL/0AL/QM E0BSTOBLBR0EQLQB BLQ0M/̂0SQ/RLR/_ (UU	P	JWJW FLAETL0OA/A0H/xAA GHIdt	u0TT	(E/L0/EM	N+K	0PEFPEBER EEOSEFRLQO BEPBRPEBEEELA0M EE/SA/0LT0EE/STRTLR0 Q/L/OALAOM EBOSEOTLORAEELRB BL0TM/̂FSEEBL/Q_ JW	P	JW((( OLETFLFTA/A0HFNYE GHIdt	u0T0	(EELBFM	N+K	//PEFPEBER AFBSBBBLBB B/P/QPEBEE/LQOM AF/SOAFLFFAF/SF0ALQT QELARALAOM AEASAA/LTBFQ0LQE /L/OMÊRSETELFT_ JW	P	JW((( OLFRFLQOCyK)+-\*,	z\{K|	FPEPEBEE	0|T/|/E	vdt}U,~�K[	(]]K-	dU,U�K{K,-	�	t�JG�NCJz�(I vU�K	0 
Page 68 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	����	������	 ��!	"���	#$��	%���	&�'())*+,-	./0/�1 "2  �3$��4	5��3������ 2�	6��$�71���� 2$3����	5���8��9	:���� ����	6��$�8��9	6��$� ;9�	2�3�;9�	:&; ;�9��	6��$�<33$��	"��� =	�!	2���>���7%���;���47 ?2	#��3� ;��$��45$������;@A/A0BCDEA FBDGH	I/AJ	(KKLMJN	O+P	/QKMQKRAK K0RSRRRLRR RAQR/QKRKKKLATN K0MSCT0LAKK0MSMCKLKU JALRTALTTN KM/SKRMLRAMUKL0M RLJRNVKTSAM0LKMW (XX	Q	EYEY JL0MULA0&����	�;@ Z[\]̂[_̂Z�̀] Z�aa= Z[\b\[ZZ\�ĉZ[\dZ[\Z\�̂c a�̂Z= Z[_d̂[a]b�dZc[̂\c�ĉ ]̂�]\=e]̂Z[c]]�d̀f <��	7	<<<<<< a�bda�â�@
2@
<&gRKCCMhHiK (jPkl)X,	B*,mX	Fl,X,)P	E*-PALCKMN	O+P	/RQ/RQKRKA A0RSRRRLRR /RQRAQKR/UALCTN ACJSCJCLCRACJSJ/KLTT /RRL0UALR0N A0KSUU/L/J0UKLTR /LAANKSJCUL0M (A	Q	(n( /LTM/LTRKTTKKopEC q*r,	OPPkP	HXsl-Xt	H*ks	E*-PRLTMN	O+P	/Q/0QKRKT KRMSRRRLRR RAQR/QKRK/RLT0N KRTSUMTLTMKRTSJ/AL/T JCLRUKLU/N /JCSJC0LKUKCCLMR RL0RNV0SJTMLUCW (K	Q	(( /L0K/LCUCJA0/YYKT uX))Xk	Fl,X,)lXt	H*ks	E*-PRLAMN	O+P	KQKQKRKT /KRSRRRLRR R/QKUQKRK/RLAJN //JSUCRLUR//JSJ/ULAJ JMLACALRJN //TSTARLJK/RALUA RLT/NVMSTU0LT0W (/	Q	(vEY /L0C/L0KRCRM/wqxC yX,z	*{	(jPkl)X	H*ks	HXttX|tP	E*-P	H*,-	CQ/TQKRKARLMKAN	O+P	CQ/TQKRKT /JRSRRRLRR RCQR0QKRK/RLMKN /JRSR/KLUR/JRSRR0L/0 JCL0KKLKRN /UAS0MJLTMA0UL/M RLCCNVCSKT0L0KW (K	Q	(n((n KL/AKLRU0JTCCD(wJ }XtP~{*k)PL)*j	�,)	HXttX|tP	E*-P	H*,-	0Q/MQKRKKRLCKMN	O+P	0Q/MQKRKT /RRSRRRLRR pXkl*+~RL0MN JJSCCJLTRJJS0KTLCA JTL0UALRJN JTS0U/LCR/UTLRA RLATNVTSJTALRAW (K	Q	(vEY KLK/KL/CTCCT0u(�R qu	G*k�X,	HrX~P	�	H*	HXttX|tP	E*-P	/�	0QKAQKRKAAL0J0N	O+P	0QKAQKRKT AARSRRRLRR /RQRJQKR/JKL/0N ATJSTARLTRAACSARALK0 /RRLT0KLU0N AA/SMT0LA0AST/RLJ0 /LKRNVTS0MMLJRW (K	Q	(n((n KLKAKL//CJA0/YiKM uX))Xk	Fl,X,)lXt	H*ks	E*-PKL/MN	O+P	UQ/MQKRKT /TMSRRRLRR RUQRUQKR/JKLKRN /TTSC0JLMM/TTSUMAL/J J0LU0AL/KN /T/SJ//LK/CMUL/T RLM/NVKSJT/LJUW (/	Q	(vEY KLARKLKRJTJ0Tyw(K hPtt~	FXk�*	H*ks	E*-PALAN	O+P	JQJQKRKT AMRSRRRLRR RJQ//QKR/JKLA0N ACMS/J0LRRAM0S/UMLUC JJLCTALTCN ATUS0ACLMR/SCCULAA /LKMNVUSTTJLACW (/	Q	yyyv(v KLACKLKT0UR/MI0HK Y*�Xt	yX,z	*{	HX,XmX	E*-PKLKMN	O+P	//Q/QKRKT AMMSRRRLRR /KQRMQKR/JKLKCN AMTSU/MLTRAMTSJRMLMU J0LRMALTJN ATTSMKALKTASJJAL0M /LKTNV/RSAUKLATW (/	Q	(((n KLM/KLAUJRAA/BuD/ �}	yX,z	E(	HXttX|tP	E*-P	H*,-	/KQK/QKRKTKLRMN	O+P	/QK/QKRKM TARSRRRLRR R/Q/CQKRKRKL/RN TKJSRUTL/RTKJSMRRLCJ JCL0AALA/N T/MSJAMLJJKSTTULC/ /LTJNV/ASMCTL0RW (/	Q	((n((n KL0AKLC/
o�P)+-l*,	�ljP�	MQKQKRKK	0�T/�/K	uGHrX,mtPk	(~~P-	GX,X�PjP,-	n	H�EF�OoE��(D uX�P	U 

Page 69 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	����	������	 ��!	"���	#$��	%���	&�'())*+,-	./0/�1 "2  �3$��4	5��3������ 2�	6��$�71���� 2$3����	5���8��9	:���� ����	6��$�8��9	6��$� ;9�	2�3�;9�	:&; ;�9��	6��$�<33$��	"��� =	�!	2���>���7%���;���47 ?2	#��3� ;��$��45$������@
2@
<&ABBCDCEFFG (HH*--	IJH*KJ-*KLMN	OJPPJHPM	Q*-M	O*,-	/CR/GRCBCECSTGU	V+M	WR/GRCBCG CEBXBBBSBB B/RCDRCBCC/SY0U CEDXGDBSBBCE0XDG/SWG TTSGCWS/WU CWDXDEESYETBESY0 BSDYUZTXBBYS0/[ (/	R	((\Q] CSDDCS0WBYWY0̂ FDG FJ,_	*̀	a*,-KMJP	Q*-M/SDGU	V+M	GR/RCBCG CYEXBBBSBB B0RCWRCBC/BSDGU C0WX0CBSEDC0/X0GWS0G TGSBBWSYCU CGBXDBBSGWCXEECSBB BSTBUZCBXTGWSCC[ (C	R	(\((\ WSB/CSDGBW0DWWVbE (ccPM	d,)	OJPPJHPM	Q*-M	O*,-	ER//RCBCG/S/CGU	V+M	GR//RCBCG /BBXBBBSBB BGRBERCBCB/S/YU TTXDC/SBBTTXDT/SGD TESWCWS/BU TEXW/0SDBGW/SCG BSWEUZGXG0WS0D[ (JJ	R	((eQ] WSBWCSTCEYYE0fOg0 hf	a*KiJ,	OjJNM	k	O*	OJPPJHPM	Q*-M	O*,-	YR/RCBCEBSDCEU	V+M	YR/RCBCG CBGXBBBSBB BGRCERCBC/BS0DU CBGXCY0SWBCBGX/DGSDE TES/CCSDWU /TCXTGBSG/0BWSDW BSYTUZ/CXCWGSWW[ (C	R	(\((\ WSBTWSBBBYEBYgOlB FJ,_	*̀	QMm	n*K_	OJPPJHPM	Q*-M	O*,-	/BR/DRCBCGWSTGU	V+M	//R/DRCBCG /YBXBBBSBB BERBGRCBCCWSCBU /YWXTDGSYB/YWXT//SEG /B/SYYWSEEU /YCXYGCSBBCXDY/SGY BSGTUZ/XCGTSEG[ (/	R	(((\ WSGYWS/YTCDCYO(VE oLNJ	d,)	OJPPJHPM	Q*-M	O*,-	TR/ERCBCGWS/GU	V+M	/CR/ERCBCG WBBXBBBSBB B/RCDRCBCC/S0GU W/EXY0TSBBW/WXYTBSBW TTSWYWSWEU CTDXBDYSYBWXGTYSCG /SBDUZ/GXYBWSEW[ (JW	R	((\Q] WSYWWSWGDT//ElOf/ b*K*,-*	V*pL,L*,	FJ,_	Q*-MBS0GU	V+M	/RYRCBCY /GBXBBBSBB BCRBDRCBCCCS/GU /ECX/EYSBB/ECXGDYSYC DTSTDWSYDU /WEXTY0SYBWGTSWD BSEDUZ0XY/TSBC[ (/	R	(((\ WSYTWSGYBYBG/qgnD FJ,_	*̀	(pMKL)J	O*Kc	OJPPJHPM	Q*-M	O*,-	CR/WRCBCGCSB/GU	V+M	CR/WRCBCY WDBXBBBSBB oJKL*+N/SWDU WDDXEDCS0BWDYX/00SYB TESY0WSGCU WGTX0WWSEY/XYGTSBW /SCTUZCYXEEES/E[ (C	R	(\((\ WS0TWSGD0DB/YrslW ]*tJP	FJ,_	*̀	OJ,JuJ	Q*-M/SCU	V+M	ERC0RCBCY /GBXBBBSBB BYRBTRCBC//S/WU /GBXG/0SGB/GBXECWSWY TBSWBWSDEU /WGXEGCSEBCBSBB BSEDUZ/EXT0BSTY[ (/	R	(((\ WSTTWSDWBCW/WGFvW (pJw*,S)*p	d,)	OJPPJHPM	Q*-M	O*,-	ER/CRCBCY/U	V+M	GR/CRCBCY EYGXBBBSBB BGR/BRCBC//SBTU EYCXTT/SCBEYWXWDBSYE T/SCGWSWEU ECEXWBGSBYCX/DCSTC /SGCUZWTXB0GSGD[ (/	R	((((\ ESBEWSD0T/WCEfrOC x,L-Mu	gMJP-j	qK*+c	d,)	OJPPJHPM	Q*-M	O*,-	ER/GRCBCY/S/GU	V+M	GR/GRCBCY 0GXBBBSBB BYR/YRCBC//SBYU 0GXCTTSCG0GXCEGSE/ T/SCEWSETU YDXEWBSYBWT0S0/ BSCGUZYXD/ESD/[ (W	R	(e( ESBEWSD0DTCWYbhyC b*t*-J	a*-*K	OKMuL-	O*Kc	Q*-M/S/CGU	V+M	YR/DRCBCY W/GXBBBSBB BYR/GRCBC//S/WU W/EXDY/SEBW/EXDDGSEY TBSDDWSGCU CDYXCYCSGG/XWBTSCC /SBWUZCDXYCCST/[ (/	R	(e(e ES/EWSTYTW//ECr]B ^JP\aJK-	z-*KMN	OJPPJHPM	Q*-M	O*,-	BDR/0RCBCY/SBGU	V+M	TR/0RCBCY 0GXBBBSBB BTRBDRCBC//SBTU 0EXDGDSCG0EXD0GS0T T/SBTWSCGU YDXW/TSWBTYSCG BSCEUZYXGGYSET[ (JC	R	(((( ESWTESC/r{M)+-L*,	bLpM|	GRCRCBCC	0|E/|/C	faOjJ,uPMK	(NNM-	aJ,JiMpM,-	\	O}Q~dVrQbd(I fJiM	T 
Page 70 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	����	������	 ��!	"���	#$��	%���	&�'())*+,-	./0/�1 "2  �3$��4	5��3������ 2�	6��$�71���� 2$3����	5���8��9	:���� ����	6��$�8��9	6��$� ;9�	2�3�;9�	:&; ;�9��	6��$�<33$��	"��� =	�!	2���>���7%���;���47 ?2	#��3� ;��$��45$������@
2@
<&ABCDDBE(FG H+IJ	K,JLMN	EOL*PQ,OR	EOPPOSPJ	T*-J	E*,-	UV/VBWBCBXUYZ	H+J	/BV/VBWBC GWW[WWWXWW W/V/GVBWBB/X\/Z G/Y[WY/XWWG/D[/GBXWC U0XDBGXYCZ BUB[BC\X0WG[C\0XYW /XWCZ]B/[\CGXGĈ (OG	V	(T_ DXYUDX/U\0C/BK̀a0 bOLMJ-	E*Lc	EOPPOSPJ	T*-J	E*,-	/BV/YVBWBC/XUYZ	H+J	/V/YVBWB0 /0W[WWWXWW W/V/UVBWBB/XUUZ /CU[0//XWW/CU[0BCXDG UGX00GXGUZ /YU[D/WXGC\UGXB/ WXY0Z]/W[G/CXW0̂ (B	V	(( DX0BDXD/\W\Y/G̀dW EeOLPJR	F)efOS	E*Lc	EOPPOSPJ	T*-J	E*,-	BVGVBWB0BXDYZ	H+J	GVGVBWB0 BWY[WWWXWW WGVW/VBWBBBXDCZ BWD[UDCXUWBWD[UD\XY\ UDXBWGX00Z /UG[/WGXWG\WUX/\ WXCUZ]//[\DYXYŶ (B	V	(( DX\DDXD\\U//DbgbB b*L*,-*hH*iQ,Q*,	̀O,I	T*-JBX\Z	H+J	GV/WVBWB0 GBY[WWWXWW WGVWUVBWBBBXU0Z GBB[DBBX0YGBB[DUDX00 UYXBDGX\\Z GWU[YBCX/W/[B\UX/0 /X//Z]/B[UC\XC0̂ (/	V	(T_ DX\CDXD0W\DCCDEgB J̀LIReQLJ	jO-eOfON	EOPPOSPJ	T*-J	E*,-	BV/YVBWB0BXGZ	H+J	GV/YVBWB0 GDY[WWWXWW WGVW0VBWBBBXGWZ GDD[UGDXDYGDD[UGCX/D UYXYUGXBUZ GBU[0U/XG0/[W/GXUB /X/\Z]/Y[/DDX00̂ (OB	V	(((k DX\\DXYD\UBGCblgU b*N*-O	a*-*L	ELJmQ-	E*Lc	T*-JGXWYZ	H+J	GVBBVBWB0 /UY[WWWXWW WGV/0VBWBBGXWYZ /UD[U\BXDY/UD[U\BX\G U0XBYGXC0Z /\U[CGDX00CDDXG/ WXC\Z]Y[GD\XWĈ (/	V	(k(k DXUWDXD\&����	������� nopqroppp�pp q�st= nopurotts�nvnopwsovpr�pt v�vv= wonvrovvx�qvvuoxuw�pn xr�qn=yvvvounq�uxz <q	7	<<{ v�vrv�qt;@�A:	;<
|A&	#1�5BCBWW}\DY HLJN~+R	�+,mR	�,R-�P	_JRJL�J	bLJOR+LN	.CYD/ /WG[YYCXBB �OLQ*+RWXW/Z /WG[YYCXBB/WG[YYCXBB /XWWWXW/Z /WG[YYCXBBWXWW WXG0ZWXWW (OO	V	(((((( WXWWWXWW&����	;���4	;�9��	#$�� qpvottw�xx p�pq= qpvottw�xxqpvottw�xx p�pq= qpvottw�xxp�pp p�vn=p�pp <��	7	<<<<<< p�ppp�pp 12
<�<&"@�<%DY\/}WH�0 �,-JLh(iJLQ)O,	HJ�	̀O,I	T*-JWX\0YZ	H+J	DVBWVBWBC GWY[WWWXWW WDV/GVBWB/WXU0Z GWG[CWGX/WGWG[\UWX0D U/XU\GXWGZ B\W[YGYXUY\/XYY /XWWZ]BG[GYDX0Û (OO	V	(((((( GXU\GX\Y&����	 $���������� vptoppp�pp p�un= vpvowpv�qpvpvosup�nr v�pv= xspotvt�utsq�tt q�pp=yxvovtr�nuz <��	7	<<<<<< v�usv�stK�J)+-Q*,	bQiJ�	YVBVBWBB	0�D/�/B	�aEeO,mPJL	(RRJ-	aO,OMJiJ,-	h	E�T��HKTb�(� �OMJ	/W 
Page 71 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	����	������	 ��!	"���	#$��	%���	&�'())*+,-	./0/�1 "2  �3$��4	5��3������ 2�	6��$�71���� 2$3����	5���8��9	:���� ����	6��$�8��9	6��$� ;9�	2�3�;9�	:&; ;�9��	6��$�<33$��	"��� =	�!	2���>���7%���;���47 ?2	#��3� ;��$��45$�����1 	&
@< 1
:A/BCBCDEE FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-JBO0PQ	R+J	BS/PSBTBU UTTVTTTOTT WKIX*+LBOTUQ UBTVT00OPEUTUVEEUOU/ /TTO/ABOEUQ UTTV0PTOTTBVB0AOT/ /OUUQYZVA/UOU/[ (KK	S	((\((( /OCT/O0ZA/BCBC]B0 FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-JBQ	R+J	BS/PSBTBP PTTVTTTOTT TCSZ/SBT/PBO/PQ UAZVEZUOC/UACV//AOPU A0OEABOC0Q UCCVUZ0OPTBVT0/OCB /O0PQYAVECBOTU[ (KK	S	((\((( BOCTBOECA/BCBĈ_T FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-JTOPQ	R+J	ZSZ/SBTBP ZBPVTTTOTT TZSZTSBTB/TOEUQ ZBZV/UEOUCZBZVEUCOC0 AZOUBBOC0Q ZTZVEB/O/C/Z0OEU /OTCQYBTVTB0OEA[ (KK	S	((\((( BOABBOCEA/BCBC̀ PE FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-JBOBPQ	R+J	//S/PSBTBP ZPTVTTTOTT TPSBASBT/ABO/ZQ ZPBVU/AOABZP/VZBEOBA A0O0PBOABQ ZUBV/ZCOEPZVEZBOAU /OBZQYAV/C0OEU[ (KK	S	((\((( ZOPPZOZUA/BCBCaZE FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-J/OEBPQ	R+J	PS/PSBTBE PTTVTTTOTT WKIX*+LBOBZQ U0PVPBZOUAUCCVCAPO/P APOTZBOAUQ U0PV/PEOTTZV0UCOB0 /O0/QY/ZV0ZAO/P[ (KK	S	((\((( UOTUZOCUA/BCBbbcU FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-JTOEBPQ	R+J	0SZ/SBTBE /PTVTTTOTT T0SBASBTB/TO0BQ /UAVBCPO/E/UAVZA/O0E ATO0ABOAUQ /ZEV/CAOPTBZZOTC TOUAQY/ZVBTBOBE[ (KK	S	((\((( UOBPUO/ZA/BCBCdeA FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-J/OEBPQ	R+J	ASZTSBTBE /TTVTTTOTT /BS/CSBT/A/OCEQ ACVPT0OC/AAVTBCOZT AUOP0BOAUQ AUVP0TOZT/Z0OEU TOZUQYUVUPCOTT[ (KK	S	((\((( UOUBUOB/A/BCBbb̂B FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-JTOC0PQ	R+J	ASZTSBTBE ETTVTTTOTT WKIX*+L/O/ZQ PABV0/TOAUPAZVPTBOTC A/OPTBOAUQ PUCVA0EOETUUUOEC /OAEQYUUVPBPOUC[ (KK	S	((\((( UOUBUOB0A/BCBĈDA FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-J/O/BPQ	R+J	BSBCSBTB0 PUPVTTTOTT TZSBUSBTBTTO0PQ PPCVAT/O0EPPUVECCOAU A/OAUBOAZQ PT/VTPAOZC/VTZBOAC /O0AQYPZVEBAOPE[ (KK	S	((\((( UOCUUOEUA/BCBb(fU FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-JTOPQ	R+J	CSZ/SBTB0 /PTVTTTOTT TCSTESBTB/TOAUQ /UEV/B/OTA/UEVPCPOPC CCOTTBOAPQ /Z/VAAUO/P/BEOZE TOU0QY/UVPA/OUZ[ (KK	S	((\((( POZUPO/CA/BCBb(gP FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-JTOZ0PQ	R+J	ASZTSBTB0 ZTTVTTTOTT /TSBPSBTB//OZZQ BCZV0ABOA0BCPV/ABOCU C0OBZBOAUQ BE/VEA/OPTAPOBA TOAZQYBZVPT/OZU[ (KK	S	((\((( POUBPOBCA/BCBCZ_P FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-JBOBPQ	R+J	//S/PSBTB0 ZTTVTTTOTT //ST0SBT/A/OCAQ ZT0VAP0OTZZTPVUACOU0 AEOUPBOAPQ BCAVZZPOATZV//ZOAP /OTUQY/EV/EBOP0[ (KK	S	((\((( POPPPO/TA/BCBbDDE FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-JTOEBPQ	R+J	/BSZ/SBTB0 EBPVTTTOTT TZSBASBTB//OZTQ PA0VC0POACETBVBUTOCA C0OAZBOAPQ PUAVPCPOTT/VZTPOEC /OA0QYPBVEPPOCA[ (KK	S	((\((( POE0POUCA/BCBbD]A FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-JTO0PQ	R+J	/SZ/SBTBC PPTVTTTOTT TZS/BSBTB//OBCQ PZTVCP0OUBPZZVAAPOCT CCOZABOAEQ UCEV/EAO0P/VTBPOPP /O0UQYU0VCBEOTP[ (KK	S	((\((( PO0EPOPUA/BCBbbW/ FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-J/O/BPQ	R+J	CSZ/SBTBC ZTTVTTTOTT TASTZSBTB//O/TQ ZTTVUP0OTZZTTVU/UO0Z CAOUEBOAEQ BECVZAUOUTPECOE/ TOAEQYZBVTBTOZZ[ (KK	S	((\((( EOZUEOTBA/BCBCdDT FG	HIJKL+IM	N*-J/OEBPQ	R+J	CS/PSBTBA ZPTVTTTOTT TPSBCSBTBTTOEEQ ZCTVTTAO00Z0ZV0UAO/A A/OEBBOA/Q ZBTVE0ZOCP/V/0COZP /O/PQYPZVT0POZU[ (KK	S	((\((( 0OZTEO0EhiJ)+-X*,	HXjJk	PSBSBTBB	0kU/k/B	c̀blK,mnJI	(LLJ-	̀K,KoJjJ,-	p	bqN_rRhNHr(g cKoJ	// 
Page 72 of 526



��������	
������	��	�����	���	����������	����	������	 ��!	"���	#$��	%���	&�'())*+,-	./0/�1 "2  �3$��4	5��3������ 2�	6��$�71���� 2$3����	5���8��9	:���� ����	6��$�8��9	6��$� ;9�	2�3�;9�	:&; ;�9��	6��$�<33$��	"��� =	�!	2���>���7%���;���47 ?2	#��3� ;��$��45$�����1 	&
@< 1
:A/BCBCDEF GH	IJKLM+JN	O*-KPQFBRS	T+K	RU/RUBPVP F/RWPPPQPP XLJY*+MPQAPS RAAWRAVQARFP/WC/VQAP CVQ00BQAPS R/RW/CBQZV/W00VQBV /QCZS[CFWFV/QZ0\ (LL	U	((]((( CQPR0QFAA/BCB̂(XV GH	IJKLM+JN	O*-KPQC0RS	T+K	//U/RUBPVP FBRWPPPQPP XLJY*+M/QVPS FPPWCPCQRAFPVW00BQBR CZQCZBQCAS RVPWBZCQ0RBWRBBQCC /QAPS[0VWRBVQRP\ (LL	U	((]((( CQRRCQPF&����	1 	&���$4 _̀abc̀ddd�dd e�fg= _̀aeègbe�_g_̀aeg̀cab�hh a�he= g̀giìe_i�biac̀ia_�hg af�bd=jc_àfci�eck <��	7	<<l<<< c�e_i�hf&m&<%	2m
&#m%"m ah̀fbìdad�ff e�gg= ah̀i__̀cfe�idah̀iaf̀hee�bb f�da= a_̀heì_ii�ceeed̀da_�ge edd�dd=jècdh̀eg_�f_k <�e	7	<<<<< i�eff�_d&m&<%	;<
n@&	6<%1@	2%1 	<��
1@5 ab̀daì__a�ea

opK)+-Y*,	IYqKr	RUBUBPBB	0rZ/r/B	stûL,vwKJ	(MMK-	tL,LxKqK,-	y	̂zO{|ToOI|(} sLxK	/B 
Page 73 of 526



��������	

�������	�������������
	�
����������������������������������	������� !"#$%&�'(�)*))�+,-./0,�$%&�1'(�)*))
23456789:53�;5398:3<=�><6<:3�:?�;534:=<39:8@A�B<�C6D<�E5C�95�;57F86<�9>:?�?989<7<39�95�9><�53<�E5C�6<;<:G<�4657�E5C6�HC8@:4:<=�;C?95=:83A�I@<8?<�?<<�27F569839�J:?;@5?C6<?AKLMNOPQR�STTUV�WSXSYUWUXVZ[\]̂ _̀a\bb̀cdZef


�g��������g�hijk�lmnopqjro�stjmp�ujmk�svvjmrp(�wxnson�vsxx�yz**{�1'|}~|~|(jk�vjrpsvp�����g��������g�����g��������
������g��sr��j���n��&jk��$nxxjr�smknr��n�rnky�*~{��~�}'�'z
 

Page 74 of 526



����������		�
� ���������������������� ������������������ ���!"#$%&�'"()% *+,-.*,/01 *+,2..,/.3455#)%6�78&%#%9& :-2,3*0 :-*,.*:;<&"(�!"#$%&�'"()% ��= �>=� � ��=��?= @@785<A%�B"#8%6 *1,3.2 +-,132C<8&DEF -G"# *.,.-2,31/ *.,./2,::.H<<$�'"()% *.,.0-,-:* *.,/:*,010C<9&�'"()% *.,/.:,3*/ *.,/1/,0-1
��I�J����
�KLMNOPQNPR�LS�TPURNV�WRXRNY 22Z/[\NVNOX]�̂LQN�_LXP�̀LORaXaN�bLOc :+Z+[\NVNOX]�dXRULPX]�̀LORaXaN�eYYLf ::Z1[\NVNOX]�̂LQN�_LXP�gXPh 0Z:[iPR]�gXPh�jNfLP�XPV�kNMN]LcQNPR 2Z+[K̀ �\UPXPfUX]�elRLQLmU]N�_NXYUPa 2Z+[nLoLRX�egW 2Z2[gXPh�LS�eQNOUfX�bLOc :Z1[��p�� >��?q

I�
�r�sJ���t�
����
J��J��eMNOXaN�̀LVUSUNV�klOXRULP 2Z.:eMNOXaN�bLlcLP :Z+3[eMNOXaN�ulOfvXYN�wǹ :Z+-[eMNOXaN�̀XOhNR�wǹ 2Z3*[eMNOXaN�WxuỳLLVo�jXRUPa eeyeX2eMNOXaN�\UPX]�̀XRlOURo 2Z3+�oOYeMNOXaN�_USN 2Z/-�oOY �
�zJ��{��sJ���|�}I~	���
J���zJ��
J���J�������
��ss����J��
I��p�������������49�<��!"�������������p���������p�������J����r��������p����effLlPR��:0-

I�
r�
	�����
��J�� ������������������������������  	 �	 ��z  �
 ��
� ��
� ��
�  ��
�  ��� � ??�dLORvNOP�be�bURUNY�WN]S�iPYZ�\lPV�WvLOR�nNOQ -Z.1[ �2Z:-[ �*Z..[ �+Z*.[ �:Z3-[ -Z/.[ :Z2-[ :Z2-[ *Z++[ib �gLSe�:�.�wO�TW�nONXYlOo�x�eaNPfo�iPVN¡ -Z/:[ �2Z-1[ �*Z*1[ �+Z2/[ �2Z:+[ -Z+.[ :Z--[ -Z1.[ *Z:+[ib �gLSe�:�.�wO�eee�e�TW�bLOc�x�KLMR�iPVN¡ -Z/*[ �2Z::[ �*Z+0[ �+Z**[ �2Z-/[ -Z.2[ :Z-0[ :Z-3[ *Z2.[ ¡NflRULP�nUQN¢�/y:y2-22�/¢*-¢+3�ùbvXPV]NO�eYYNR�̀XPXaNQNPR���b£d\ik dnie_ uXaN�: 
Page 75 of 526



�������� 	��
���� �����
��������������� ������������ �� !"#$%&�'����()��*��� +,-��./��()��*012�3������45,-��.�)��*0*����6����*�������4&�'����()��*���������)�7�������8�/������'�����/�����6��)������9/����*�/������9����:�������������9��*��'��)�:��������'60��;���0)��������'����/���*�/����'��������60;�'�����)��*���������)�7�������8�/������'�����/������ �� !"#$%��/����������<6��)������ =((=�����)*���)��0��6�����60��>�><4+,-��.4?,-��./��������4��@'���������'����������*���'����6��'�����'�6��)������4A����'����*��'��������0)��������'60AB>@9A&C9A(@B �� !"#$%D���*�/����*�������EC(9F�*��()��*0G =(=�����)*���)��0������H��7�������6�����60��>�><4+,-��.4I-��./��������4I0������.�������0�D���*�/����*�������EC(9<�:��������G =(=�����)*���)��0������H��7�������6�����60��>�><4+,-��.4I-��./��������4I0������.�������0� �� !"#$%C��/�����D�'������������ =(=�����)*���)��0��6�����60��>�><4+,-��.4I-��./��������4A��������*��/���������)���J�'��'�/������)K��:���:�������60'�/������0��������������*����'60�:���������0�������'�/������)K��:���:�����4I0�����.�������0� �� !"#$%(����8B�*L�'MD���)�)�8B�*L�'9D���)�)�N���8�:��):��*�������9��'C����������J�'D���)�)�<6��)����� =((=�����)*���)��0��6�����60��>�><45,-��.E*��6���'(B�1DB�1CD<G4I-��./��(����8B�*L�'��C�����*���D���)�)���*����0������4&�������������'�;���'�������������0��'&�'����()��*�����*������;�:�N�������'A�7����������*�����;�:�/���*04I0������.�������0 �� !"#$%��)����6��C����;�*�����;@�/�����E�C@G �:��������;�C@������'�/���:�&@AC�����'��������H������0*��'�������)�4(�0�������6�7�&@AC������'���������6������'60������������K��:=(8?=�:���8����'�6������)��6�����60��>�><4��=(=���)8���������)*���)��0��6�����60��>�><4+,-��.E*��6���'K��:C@(>�G4I-��./��������4A����'60����������0�������8*:������'6��L9���;�'���������������*������9��������;�'����*��'�������9��60�;�'�����08��*����'�������8��*����'6���*:�;�;����)�6��L� �� !"#$%C����;�*����;@�/����N��*��������7�*�EC@(>�G +,-��.E*��6��������;C����;�*�����;@�/����9��*��'��)C@(>�G �� !"#$%&@ACA�����'����@�/�����E���8��)����6��C@1�@G ���8��)����6��C����;�*�����;@�/�������������;�'�����0*:������'6��L�9��7��)���'�����9��*��'��������4�:�������/���������������������'����.����*�7���'��'��&@AC45,-��.*��6���'&@ACMC����������J�'C@1�@4I0������.�������0� �� !"#$%C����������J�'����@�/�����E���8��)����6��C@1�@G ���8��)����6��C����;�*�����;@�/�������������;�'�����0*:������'6��L�9��7��)���'�����9��*��'�����������.*����;������'�������K:�*:���;���0*����������J�'K��:��*����������**��'��*�K��:C���;�������K45,-��.*��6���'&@ACMC����������J�'C@1�@4I-��./��������4I0�����.�������0� �� !"#$%OPQRSTUVWXXSYZPQXSV =(8?=�:���8����'�6�����'��6�����60��>�><4��=(=���)8����'�6������)*���)��0��6�����60��>�><4[,-��.4I-��./��������4?\,'�0���.�������0 �� !"#$%C�����*���N�/�� 5I-��.4I-��./��������45],'�0��������04?,-��.�����;�:��������'��)*�����*���/�/���;��0���)��������4A����'60�������0�:�����������;�:�;����K��)*��'�����������:��E�G��E6Ĝ����*������������'60*��/��������̂E�G��)���J�'��'�/������)K��:���:�����K��:������_̀I,,�������4E��G=(8?=����'��6�����60��>�><4E���G=(=�����)��6�����60��>�><9�;������:��'�6��6��)�������6���*������������'60��:����������̂E�G��)���J�'K��:���:���������/�*���/��/���*��/�������9�����9��������'���6����0*��/��04E��G����:�7�/��)���8K�'�*��'����:��*��������*��'��)96�����������'��9�7��*����������J�����9��������;*��'��9��������06��'4E���G����'=(8?=��6�����60��>�><� �� !"#$%

a���b��
��cde��
d��d�d�f	�cegh
fi��
j�ki
�g	b���l���mn$!�opq�"#�r� !"#$%s#pn%ptp$"tstuvs#pnpn$�"#$upw%#ux$%p $up!�"#ryz	������
��e���{cd�
j�|%�q}ty~������

 
Page 76 of 526



���������	�
���
�������� �����
�������
�����������������
���
�����������
����� !"������������#�����������������������
������������������
���
�������
����������������
����$%�&�'�����
���
����#��
���(���)�*����%��&���
��������������
���
��������������
���������+���
���������������
��
������
��,�-��������+���������������������������	�
���
������������
���.��,/-""��������*0"1���+����#��������������	�
���
��������2 3456789:��
�������� �����
����������
���������
����;����������<�=����
����->?"��%�&�
��%	&�����%�&�
��%@&������������������
���
�������
����������������
����$%�&�'�����
���
����#��
���(���)�*����%��&���
��������������
���
��������������
���������+���
���������������
��
������
��,�-��������+��������������
�������������
������
����;���#���<�=����
����->?"��������
���.��,/-""��������*0"1���+����#��������������	�
���
���������������
��������*���"1���+�������
������� 3456789:�A�����������������
���
�����%A��& ��+����������
������

���#��A��2 3456789:�A�����<��������
������
���
�B����%A<�B&(�������������
�
���2 3456789:��������������������
� ���������+���
���
�*��(�
������#�������
���
�������� 3456789:�B����#�
�� ���������������������
��	�=�������
�#������C��	�#����=��������
���=���
����=�����
������
��������=�<���=����������������������������
�=�����������������
�=�������������
���*����������
��=����
������������=���
����
�������
����=�D������
����
���������������
������������
����
���
�*������
���
����������
������(��E.�F*������
�����;������
�����)#����
�����%��)�&���
�������
�������
��������������<(��=�'A��=����(��*�B���������������������������
�������������*�������
��������������������
������������#�������������������� 3456789:���+�B��������� -1�������������������
�
�
������������+�����
����
�
������
���������=��+��������.2�2����������
=�������=������
���
�����=��������������	�
������ 3456789:��+�������
���
� �"������*��G���H��������F����
��������
����
����
������
���������������������
������
����
���
��������+��������-������2�����������������������#�����.2�2�G��������������������������������
����%�������������
����EH��	���������
���& 3456789:

 
Page 77 of 526



���������	�
	����������	���������������	 ��������������������� �!"#�$%&'()*+�,'(&-./%/ 0123452654789#�:;<%+�:.(=%*�>'<?�,'(&-./%/ 09182@9371A#�:;<%+�:.(=%*�B;<*()C'*);</ 04744#�$%&'()*+�B;<*()C'*);</ 04744#�$%&'()*+�D(.</E%(/ 04744����! FG�������� �!"� �����H�������I��J!�� �!"�K�$%&'()*+�$.L%/ 09662@597M4K�:;<%+�:.(=%*�>'<?�$.L%/ 0124162849789K�::>�N)*-?(.O.L/ 04744K�$%&'()*+�N)*-?(.O.L/ 04744K�$%&'()*+�D(.</E%(/ 04744K�P*-%(�Q)/R;/)*);</ 04744K�:.*'()*%/ 04744K�B.LL/ 04744K�,()<&)R.L�,.+?;O</ 011@248673A����! FG�I��J!�� �!"� ���H�S��������T!U �VF �!"W���UX �!"#YK�Z%*�[&&(%*);< \032M35768] \032M35768]�F�"W�!���!"�I��J!�� �!"�#YK�̂%.L)_%?�̀.)<Ya;// 0526AM7@6 0526AM7@6	�I������������	 ����S����H����

��bc��
��b������b�dd�
e�	������������	 ��SS�������������� �!"����������B;<*()C'*);</ 04744����������$%&'()*+�$.L%�,(;&%%?/ 09662@597M4����������[&&('%?�f<*%(%/*�̂%&%)g%? 0@2@6@71A����������f<*%(%/*�̂%&%)g%? 05825A3769����������Q)g)?%<?�̂%&%)g%? 05A748����������,()<&)R.L�;<�:.*'()*)%/ 04744����������f<*%(%/*�;<�:.*'()*)%/ 04744����������B.LL/Ŷ%?%hR*);<�\,()<&)R.L] 04744����������f<*%(%/*�E(;h�B.LL/Ŷ%?%hR*);< 04744����������,()<&)R.L�,.+?;O< 011@248673A�! FG�������� �!"� �������H���S�I��J!�� �!"�����������N)*-?(.O.L/ 04744����������$%&'()*+�,'(&-./% 0123452654789����������[&&('%?�f<*%(%/*�,.)? 03M@763�! FG�I��J!�� �!"� �������SH����	�I������������	 �S�������S


X�!"��G�F �!"�b�TTFUijk�lm�nop�qrs�tutt�!U vXU"��FG�w!U"�F��� �X��bXGw�"��UF"�X�x�"y�bv!U ��XUT[&&;'<*�z1@4

{|%&'*);<�D)h%}�MY1Y3433�M}54}69�,:B-.<?L%(�[//%*�:.<.~%h%<*�K�BPZ>fQ{ZDf[a ,.~%�5 
Page 78 of 526



��������	
������	��	���	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����9�A//BCD'EB D)F+	EGGHG	IJ+GH	KH*L,	M0.CN'	'OMPC.Q	E*G	/R./RM0MO SMOPS/ 0TRMARM0M00PBOQ SO/POOSMAPBC .00P0OMP.MQ SMOP/M0PTB 0P00QU.P./V 'WW	R	XY''' .P.O0P0AAOB.SX'ZB [)+\W	'*,)	YG(G]̂W_̀GL	KH*L,	M0.CNO	'O.P/BQ	E*G	BR.SRM0MO ABaASBP/B 0BRM0RM0.C.P/CQ ABaASBPO/ABaASBP/A CCPCAMP0TQ ABaAO0PB/OBPOA 0P.AQUM/PB/V 'WW	R	'''XY .PM.0PM.SB/TCb'ZM cGH(G\GLNdG+e	'*,)	fGWLG	KH*L,	M0M0Nd	'O0PAQ	E*G	..R.SRM0MO //aCB/PMB 0CR.SRM0M00PA0Q //aCBOPOO//aCBTPM. CCPOCMP.AQ //aS.0P0/.OPBT 0PMOQUA/TP.AV XY	R	'''''' .PAT0POSA//B/0'ZO D)F+	EGGHG	IJ+GH	KH*L,	M0.CNd	'OMPM.Q	E*G	.MR.SRM0MO .SaA0AP0B 0/R.TRM0.CMPMOQ .SaA00PB..SaA0MPCO .00P0C.PB/Q .SaA./PS/.SP.O 0P0AQ.APTA 'WW	R	XY''' .PSA0PMSCMOAB'''O gGH]e)+	IJ+GH	KH*L,	M0.CNZ	'.'.PCAQ	E*G	ARMMRM0MA SMa0C.P/. .0R0.RM0.C.PCSQ SMa0B/P/0SMa0C0P0A .00P00.PCTQ SMa0BCPS/O0PBB 0P.SQU0PA/V XY	R	'''''' .PC00PO0TSA/CD'ES X]LLW+	'*,)	YG(G]̂W_̀GL	IJ+GH	M0.CNZ	'O.PCOQ	E*G	/R.SRM0MA /CaT.OP0M .0R.TRM0.C.PCAQ /CaT0BPBM/CaT..P.A CCPC.MPMMQ /CaSA0PACTBPMC 0PMOQU/0PTSV 'WW	R	'''XY MP.O0POMAOB.OE'ZM [)+\W	'*,)	YG(G]̂W_̀GL	M0M0NM	'O0PBMQ	E*G	/R.SRM0MA SBa00TPS/ 0SR.BRM0M00PBOQ SBa00MP0.SBa00APMO CCP.TMPA.Q S/aS.CPAOM.P.A 0P./QUABAPB0V 'WW	R	'''XY MP.O0PSOA//BCh'Z/ D)F+	EGGHG	IJ+GH	KH*L,	M0M0N'	'O.P.Q	E*G	BR.SRM0MA .0TaCO.PTC gWH])*L.PMTQ .0TaSBAP.0.0Ta/S.PS. CCPOOMPSOQ .0TaM.AP/.SMPM/ 0PO.QUSOTPB0V 'WW	R	XY''' MPM.0PA/AOB.Oh'ZT [)+\W	'*,)	YG(G]̂W_̀GL	KH*L,	M0M0NO	'O0PO/Q	E*G	.0R.BRM0MA .O0a0/.P.C 0CRMMRM0M00POBQ .O0a0SMP0B.O0a0TMPMT CBPTCMPATQ .MBaOTAPM/./POB 0PO/QU.aTC/PCCV XY	R	'''''' MPOC0PTOOTMTMi'ZB jc	k]+W+(]Ẁ	'*,)	fGWLG	KH*L,	M0M.NO	'M0POCQ	E*G	.0RM.RM0MA SC0a000P00 gWH])*L0P/OQ SBTaTCSPOCSB/aA00P0C C/P.CMPBOQ S/OaAMCPMT/0PO. .PT/QU.OaC/0PBOV XY	R	'''''' MPOC.P.TA//B/X'ZO D)F+	EGGHG	IJ+GH	KH*L,	M0M0Nd	'O0PS.Q	E*G	..R.SRM0MA AOaM.APOS 0/R.ARM0M00PSMQ AOaM0/P/TAOaM..PMB CBP/BMPA/Q AMaTBSP.CCPB0 0P.MQUSMTP0CV 'WW	R	XY''' MPAT0PTO0CTC0''Z/ dcl	gGF](̀G	fGWLG	KH*L,	M0M.NM	'O0POOQ	E*G	.MRMTRM0MA BSa000P00 0CR0BRM0M.0POAQ BAaCC.PMOBAaCCOPCT C/PSSMP/AQ BMaC.APOTAPTB 0PMAQUMa0/CPT0V 'WW	R	XY''' MPSB.P0OBCMOTi'Z0 K)m),W	'*,)	YG(G]̂W_̀GL	M0M0NE	'O0POSQ	E*G	.R.SRM0MS .0.aMC0PBS .0R0TRM0M00POTQ .0.aM/.PCB.0.aM/CPM. CBP/BMPS.Q .00a0S0POA.SP/T 0PMCQU.aMMBPB/V XY	R	'''''' MPTO0PS/CMMC0d''C gGH]e)+	IJ+GH	KH*L,	M0M0Nd	'0PA/Q	E*G	MRM0RM0MS M0Sa000P00 0BR0ARM0M00PABQ M0AaCSTPCSM0AaC/AP0C CBPSSMPT.Q M0Ma0.BP0/MCPAA 0PSCQUMaCSTP0MV 'WW	R	XY''' MP/O0PTBbnG(*,])+	K]oGp	TR.RM0MM	TpO0pAB	qcZFW+\̀GH	'LLG,	cW+WrGoG+,	N	ZIXksEbXKs'f qWrG	A 
Page 79 of 526



��������	
������	��	���	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����9�ABCBDE'FG HE	IJ+K+(JKL	'*,)	MNKON	PQ*O,	C0CCR.	'A.SGT	U*N	AVC0VC0CD CW0X000S00 0CV.DVC0CC.SG.T CAGXGG/SGWCAGXGGYSC0 G/SYYASCDT CAWXG./S0W.AGSAA 0SBYTZDX0Y.S.B[ 'KK	V	\]''' CSY..SDG0DB0.̂'FA _E`	aNbJ(LN	MNKON	PQ*O,	C0CCR.	'A.S.T	U*N	AVCDVC0CD ..DX000S00 0.V..VC0CC.S..T ..WXGYCSY...WXGYDSBY G/SCBAS.AT ...XYD0SGBC.S0Y 0SAATZAX.AWS/C[ \]	V	'''''' CSYC.SABWAY.AH'FD c)+dK	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C.R.	'A0SC/T	U*N	WVC.VC0CD /0X000S00 0CV./VC0C.0SC/T BGXGGYS/CBGXGGGSCD G/SYDCSGBT BYXWGWS/CDSCD 0SC0TZ.XD0WSDA[ 'KK	V	\]''' CSYG0SY0WWYG.]'FW cg*+dKJ	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C0RF	'A0SAYT	U*N	DV.DVC0CD .D0X000S00 .0VC0VC0C00SAGT .WGXGBDSWD.WGXGYCS.. GYSCGCS/0T .W/XWC/SD0CDSAA 0SWATZCXDDWSB.[ \]	V	'''''' CSGB0S/WYGCW0_'FC P)g),K	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	hi+NQO	C0C.R'	'A0SCBT	U*N	DV.DVC0CD CDDX000S00 0CV0CVC0C.0SC/T CDWXGDCSB/CDWXG/CSB/ G/SGGCS/CT CWGXY/.S.GCGSW/ 0S/ATZDX.0.SWY[ 'KK	V	\]''' CSGB0SYCWWGAAM'F/ cg*+dKJ	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C.R'	'A0SAYT	U*N	GV.DVC0CD .C0X000S00 0WVC0VC0C.0SAYT ..GXGY/SAY..GXGG.SG0 G/S.WAS00T ..BXDB/S.BC0SC/ 0SAWTZAXWCWS/W[ \]	V	'''''' ASA0.S.0YGCAG_'FD P)g),K	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C.RF	'A0SWAT	U*N	.V.DVC0CB AW0X000S00 .CV./VC0C.0SG.T AABXBDAS.AAA/X.BWSBA GDSYCASA.T ACDX/Y0S.YBWSGY 0SGDTZ..XAYWSWD[ 'KK	V	'''\] ASBA.SW/WAY.DH'FA c)+dK	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C.RW	'A0SYYT	U*N	.VC.VC0CB .WDX000S00 aKQJ)*O.SDGT .WAX0WBSAY.WAX..ASW0 GBS.0ASC0T .AGXAW/S/BADSWW 0SW.TZAX/BDSBW[ 'KK	V	\]''' ASBD.S/0W//YGj'FW k)b+	UNNQN	hi+NQ	PQ*O,	C0C.R_	'A0SDCT	U*N	AV.BVC0CB ..DX000S00 0/V.AVC0C.0SDCT ..WXGYGS/W..WXGGCS.B GDS.BASDAT .0GXWCGSCGCBSDY 0SACTZDXDBCSY/[ 'KK	V	\]''' AS/G.SBAYGCAYk'FG P)g),K	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C.RU	'A0S/.T	U*N	WV.DVC0CB YDX000S00 ..V0GVC0C.0S/.T YWXGGYS.GYWXGGYSWG GDSYYAS/.T Y.XD0.SACCBSYC 0SCWTZAXWG/S./[ \]	V	'''''' ASYY.SAGWWGADI'UB cg*+dKJ	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0C.RF	'A0S/WT	U*N	DV.DVC0CB BDX000S00 ..V0GVC0C.0S/DT BWXGYDSWGBWXGY/SGD GDSGCASCCT BCXAWYS00C.SAY 0S.YTZCXBAGSGD[ \]	V	'''''' ASGB.SB/WAY.D_'FW c)+dK	'*,)	]N(NJeKfLNO	PQ*O,	C0CCR.	'A.SYYT	U*N	DV.DVC0CB .G0X000S00 0CV.DVC0CC.SYGT .YGXG/.SWC.YGXG/ASY0 G/S0AASA/T .YWXAWYS0/.DYS/B 0SDWTZDXBCDS/A[ 'KK	V	'''\] ASGBCS0ClmN(*,J)+	PJnNo	BV.VC0CC	BoA0oWY	pEFbK+dLNQ	'OON,	EK+KqNnN+,	R	Fh\IrUl\Pr'M pKqN	D 
Page 80 of 526



��������	
������	��	���	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����9�0AB0CD'EF GHI	JKLM(NK	OP+KQ	RQ*S,	C0CCT'	'FFUC.V	E*K	WXCAXC0CB .C0Y000U00 0AX.0XC0CCFUCFV ..ZYZZFU/B..ZYZZFUW[ ZZUWZFUCWV ..ZYW/0UB[.FZU.0 0UFAV\.CFUC0] '̂ 	̂X	'''_D [UC[CU0[FBCAA['̀. aH	bM+̂+(M̂N	cK(*QM,MdKe	RKQf	C0C.T[	'F0UBWV	E*K	ZX.BXC0CB /0Y000U00 .0X.FXC0C.0UBWV BZYZZWUCCBZYZZWUA[ ZBUC[FU.AV B/YF/0U.0.ZUWF 0UC0V\CYBCWU[[] '̂ 	̂X	'''_D [UF0.UA[[//W/g'̀C g)L+	EKKQK	OP+KQ	RQ*S,	C0CCT'	'FCUFCV	E*K	ZX.BXC0CB .[AY000U00 0FX.0XC0CCCUF[V .[[YZB/UZF.[[YZBZUWB Z/UACFUBZV .[.Y[0.UZ/.[ZUA. 0U[.V\FYAB/UWZ] '̂ 	̂X	_D''' [UF0.UW[[[WZ//'E0 hi*+êM	'*,)	DK(KMĵkNKS	RQ*S,	C0CCT'	'FCUCCV	E*K	.0X.AXC0CB .AAY000U00 0FX0ZXC0CCCUCFV .A[YZZ[U0F.A[YZZ[U[C Z/U/BFUFBV .A.YACFUWC.ACUZF 0U[[V\FY[/0UB0] _D	X	'''''' [UFWCU00FW0.[B'̀[ aH	bM+̂+(M̂N	'*,)	DK(KMĵkNKS	C0CCT.	'F.UCBV	E*K	..X.BXC0CB /AY000U00 0.X..XC0CC.UC/V /[YZZFU[W/[YZZ[U.Z ZBUWCFUCZV /CYB.AUZWFZUFW 0UC.V\CYF/WUC.] _D	X	'''''' [U[/.UAW0CAWCggRW 'fKQM(̂+	lmnQKSS	̀QKeM,	RQ*S,	C0CCTC	'FUFZV	E*K	AX./XC0C/ F.AY000U00 0AX./XC0CCFU[CV F.[YZF0UFCF.[YZF0UWF .00UA.FUCFV F.BYB..UA[C0/UB[ 0UZCV.YBW0U/. _D	X	'''''' [UZBCU//%��6�	�9� opqrqpstq"ut v"wo= opqsopwoo"twopqsspxtw"su w"ty= opwrxptys"vrvprxv"uo vw"oq=zyxpyux"qo{ �66	8	������ q"wwv"qw�>|��;F.F/l'lDB bh}H 	̀_),K0UF/AV	E*K	AXAXC0CF AC0Y000U00 0AX0AXC0C00UFZV A.ZY/W.UB0A.ZYZFCU[B ZWUFWCU.AV A..YA/WU0W.[0UWF .U[ZV\WYFA[UFW] '̂ 	̂X	''~''' 0UZF0UZCF.F/l'l_A bh}H 	̀_),KCU/AV	E*K	BX.ZXC0CF C.0Y000U00 0/XC0XC0.WCUWBV C0WYZ[AUW0C0ZY//[UBZ .00UBBCU..V C..YFWBU[CCYAZWU/A 0UBCV.YB..U/F '̂ 	̂X	''~''' .U0A.U0CF.FAa0Aa[ b_H'	_),K0UCAV	E*K	/X.0XC0CF CF0Y000U00 0/X0WXC0C00UFCV CCZYA0AUA0CCZYW./UAA Z/UWZCU.ZV CCAY.[WUB.CCAUC. 0UBBV\[YBBWUZ[] '̂ 	̂X	''~''' .U...U0ZF.F/l'lJ/ bh}H 	̀_),K0UCAV	E*K	WXC[XC0CF FCAY000U00 0WX.ZXC0C00UCWV FC[YBBWUA0FC[YWB[U[[ Z/UBFCUCCV F./YCWBU[AC.WUZC 0UZCV\/YA//UZZ] '̂ 	̂X	''~''' .UCF.UCCF.FAa0�[F b_H'	_),KCUW/AV	E*K	ZX.CXC0CF A0AY000U00 0ZX.CXC0.WCUZBV A0CYZCZUA0A0[Y[BWU/A .00U/.CUF0V A0WYB0CUB/FY.WBU0B .U[ZV[Y.FFUZC '̂ 	̂X	''~''' .UCW.UCAF.FAa0Bh. b_H'	_),K0UCAV	E*K	..XC/XC0CF .A0Y000U00 ..XCFXC0C00UCZV .[ZYWCZU00.[ZYZ.AUC0 ZBUZCCUF/V .[AYF/AUFA[U./ 0U[CV\[YAFZUWA] '̂ 	̂X	''~''' .U[Z.U[/F.F0'0b/0 bh}G	_),KFUF/AV	E*K	.CXWXC0CF [[0Y000U00 0.X.BXC0.ZCU/FV [ACYW[FUB0[[FYZZ.U.A .0.U[0CU[FV [[BY.BFU0W/Y.FBUCA .UFCVCY./.UZF '̂ 	̂X	''~''' .UAC.U[AlmK(*,M)+	RMfK�	BX.XC0CC	B�F0�[W	�HL̀̂+eNKQ	'SSK,	H +̂̂�KfK+,	T	̀O_b�El_R�'} �̂�K	B 
Page 81 of 526



��������	
������	��	���	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����>A��;B.B0'CBD/ EDFC	G),HIJB/KL	M*H	BNONI0IP K00Q000J00 0PNIRNI0.RIJB/L K00Q0BKJ00K00Q0.IJ/K RRJSOIJKSL PROQP0PJ00IQ/B/JOK .JPSLT.QS0OJ/KU 'VV	N	''WGX .J//.J/.B.B0'.YZI EDFC	G),HIJO/KL	M*H	SN.PNI0IP P/KQ000J00 0SN.ONI0.R.JRSL PRKQKPOJSKPOBQBR0JOR .00JS0IJK/L P//QOIRJK/SQBBPJRR .JP.LTKQKS.JBIU 'VV	N	''WGX IJ0P.JRPB.BK[0\/K EG]'	G),H.J/KL	M*H	/NINI0IP K00Q000J00 .INIINI0I.0JOPL K..QIOKJ00K0RQBISJSK ROJPPIJKIL PRIQI0SJK0BQSI.JKB .JPPLT./Q.I0J.KU 'VV	N	''W''' IJ0RIJ0IB.B0'Î_P EDFC	G),HIJO/KL	M*H	RN.BNI0IP PK0Q000J00 0RN.BNI0.R.J/RL P/BQB0KJK0PS0QSSOJR. .00JPSIJS/L PKIQ0POJOKIQO0BJ.B .JBILTOQSI0J0SU 'VV	N	''W''' IJIRIJ.OB.BK[0_SS EG]'	G),H.JSIKL	M*H	.0N.KNI0IP I00Q000J00 .0N./NI0.R.JSSL .RRQSKOJ00.RRQOB/JPP R/JK.IJ/IL .RKQ0.KJP0P.KJIO 0JK/LTPQOIIJ0PU 'VV	N	''W''' IJBOIJB0B.B0'̀EP0 EDFC	G),H.L	M*H	.INI0NI0IP KK0Q000J00 .INI.NI0I..J0IL KPRQSPIJK0KPRQSRKJ.. RKJO/IJSOL KI/QIRBJO0IQPIRJ./ .JKPLTIIQP0.JB.U 'VV	N	''W''' IJKSIJPOB.BK[0YIP EG]'	G),H.JSIKL	M*H	.N/NI0IK K0KQ000J00 \Vab)*c.JI.L K.PQOP0J0KK.0QB0BJ/I R/JBIIJ/0L PR.QPPOJOBBQIOIJK0 .JPPLT.OQOKPJORU 'VV	N	''W''' IJS.IJK.B.B/d'de0 EDF]f	G),H.JKL	M*H	IN.INI0IK S0KQ000J00 0IN.BNI0I0.JKIL S0PQKBPJ.KS0PQ/POJ0S RSJ/OIJ/KL KOKQPORJRSIQ/P/J/. .J/.LT.RQIKOJ.0U 'VV	N	''W''' IJ/.IJS0B.BK[0B̂K EG]'	G),H0JSIKL	M*H	PNIINI0IK P/KQ000J00 0PNIINI0I00JS/L P/PQ0I.JK0P/PQPBBJK0 RPJ0RIJ//L PPSQR0RJPKBI.JS. .JB0LTI/QKIPJ0KU 'VV	N	''W''' IJR0IJOBB.BK[0PgB EG]'	G),H0JKL	M*H	SN./NI0IK KSKQ000J00 \Vab)*c0JP/L KSKQK/PJ.KKSKQPBSJ/K RBJP.IJ//L KI/Q/KBJK..QIOSJRP .JKPLTB/QSOBJIPU 'VV	N	''W''' BJ0KIJROB.B/d'd̂R EDF]f	G),H0JB/KL	M*H	/NI.NI0IK BI0Q000J00 0/NI.NI0I00JPOL B.OQP0SJP0B.OQRROJ/S RIJOSIJ/SL IR/Q.SSJ/IPBBJBB 0JO/LTI.QOBIJ0PU 'VV	N	''W''' BJ.PBJ0OB.BK[0KY/ EG]'	G),H0JB/KL	M*H	ONIKNI0IK KS0Q000J00 \Vab)*c0JPSL KK/QO0.JI0KKOQKKPJKK RIJK/IJ/RL K.OQP00JP0KS0J00 .JK.LTP0Q.KPJ.KU 'VV	N	''W''' BJIPBJ./B.B/d'dYB EDF]f	G),H0JB/KL	M*H	RNIBNI0IK KKKQ000J00 \Vab)*c0JPPL KKBQBKPJSKKKBQOORJBI RIJP.IJ/RL K.IQOP/J/KBRBJ.B .JPRLTP.Q0P.JK/U 'VV	N	''W''' BJBIBJIKB.BK[0S[B EG]'	G),H0JKL	M*H	..N/NI0IK KSKQ000J00 \Vab)*c0JKSL KSBQPBPJR0KSBQRIKJKK RIJKSIJ/RL KIIQRSPJ00.OOJBP .JKILTP0QRS.JKKU 'VV	N	''W''' BJPPBJBS%��6�	����34 hijklikkk"kk m"jk= hijnhihol"mlhijplihqn"jk j"lq= qihmmipmh"okomiknl"rk jn"kn=spjoinnn"qkt �66	8	��u��� j"pkj"jpdvH(*,b)+	wbxHy	SN.NI0II	SyB0yPO	e]fzV+{|Ha	'ccH,	]V+V}HxH+,	~	f�GE�MdGw�'F eV}H	/ 
Page 82 of 526



��������	
������	��	���	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����<AB.B/CDEFE GHIDJ	K/L.	'LBM0NO	P*Q	RSLTSL0LL .TNU.LRMRV 0NSL.SL0./LMLLO .ETU.RLM0N.TNUV.TMEV .00M0E.ME/O .TNUL.RM.LV0NM/E 0MVEOW.N/MTLX 'YY	S	Z[Z[ 0MLV0M.RB.B/CV\CR GHIDJ	K0BB	'LBM0EO	P*Q	/SLTSL0LB VLTU000M00 0NS.BSL0.NLM.VO VBRURELMB0VLNU.B.M0R .00MEVLMLLO VL/U/BNMTTL.EM/T .MLTOW.UBN.MTBX 'YY	S	Z[Z[ .M.T0MNRB.B/C/D]N GHIDJ	K0BE	'LBMTL/O	P*Q	.0SLTSL0LB V00U000M00 .0SLNSL0.RBMBLO V0BUNB/MT0V0.U.0TMTB .00MRTLMEEO V0BUBNRM00LBTM.B .M./OLULNLMV/ 'YY	S	Z[''' .MV0.ML.B.B/ĈF_/ GHIDJ	K/LE	'LLMN0TO	P*Q	VSLTSL0LV BVRU0/RMV0 0VSLLSL0.NLM/LO BT0UTEEMEBBVNU0LBMT/ NNMNELMRBO BV/UNT.M00RVLMEV .M0LOW.U0/LMT/X Z[	S	'''Z[ .MN0.ME/B.B/CG̀NR GHIDJ	K0V.	'LBM./.O	P*Q	.0SLTSL0LV T00U000M00 .LS.TSL0L..M./O TLEUBLRM.BTLLU0BNM.T .00MLTLMNRO T0.ULE0MT0.UBL.MLT .MVEOWL0U//RMETX 'YY	S	'''''' LMV.LM.NB.B/CF\L. GHIDJ	K0TT	'LLME/BO	P*Q	BSLTSL0LE ./0U000M00 .LS.TSL0L..MLTO ./RU/0TMRE.//U//NMTR NRMBEBM..O .E/UL0TMRRB/RMER 0MVNOW.0UT/BM/0X Z[	S	Z[''' BMRLBMVRB.B/G_ab/ GHIDJ	K/B/	'LLMTLTO	P*Q	.0SLTSL0LE TLBU000M00 .LS.TSL0L..MV.O TVRU/00MTTTVEUB0.MLV N/MBTBM./O T0NU.EEM.B.U.00MVR .MVNOWB/U.BTM..X Z[	S	Z[''' VMV.BMN/%��6�	�<A cdecedcfg"ch i"jj= cdkicdclm"fkcdelhdgje"gj c"gh= cdeiedjmj"ilhdefh"kj g"mh=nkldlek"kio �66	8	������ c"mcc"fl�A
2A
�%p0LEET\JbR 'qQrs(Y+	H)+tY	Gs+Y+(Q	Z),QBMVTO	P*Q	/S.VSL0LB .00U000M00 0/S..SL0.RBMVNO NNURL/M00NNUNE.MB0 .00MNLLME.O .00UN.NM/0.UB.LMNL 0MB0ONTRMV0 'B	S	'u' .M.L.M0R0LEET\J_L 'qQrs(Y+	H)+tY	Gs+Y+(Q	Z),QBMELTO	P*Q	.0S.0SL0LB LVTU000M00 .0S0BSL0.RBMEVO LVVU/NNM.0LVVUNVTMVB .0.M0TLMRBO LV/UTETMV0.ULTRM.R 0M/LOLUE.NMN/ 'B	S	'u' .MBE.MB.LVVLL̀vZE b)w+	PQQrQ	JYxs,Yy	J)rx	Z),Q0MVTO	P*Q	.S./SL0LV .NTU000M00 0BS0.SL0L.0MV/O .NVURE.MTT.NVUNL.MV/ NEMVVLM/0O .RRU0VNMR.BLEMEB 0MTTOWEUR/.MEEX 'L	S	'' .MEB.ME00E0T.zHGN CY+{	)|	'qQrs(Y	J)rx	JYyyY}yQ	Z),Q	.a	BSTSL0LBBMTTO	P*Q	BSTSL0LV BL.U000M00 0BS0ESL0.NBML/O BLLULBTMRTBL.UVBTMEE .00MVLLM/BO BLLUBBLM.TLU/LLMLE 0MNTORNEMVN 'L	S	'u''u .M/E.MENRN..V_JCL ~)r)+,)	P)qs+s)+	CY+{	Z),QBMLTO	P*Q	BS..SL0LV BLTU000M00 0BSLESL0.NLMN/O BLNU..VMT0BLEUV/TMB. .00MVELMNRO BLEUT0LMR0LUBV/MLL 0MNEOL/MVN '.	S	'''u .M/R.M/.R0RT.BCZV JwYryQ�	�(w�Y}	J)rx	JYyyY}yQ	Z),Q	J)+,	LS.RSL0LV0M/TO	P*Q	BS.RSL0LV .E0U000M00 0BS.ESL0L.0M//O .TNUNL0M00.TNUNTLM.L NEMEELMEEO .TVUEE.M/ELVBMBB 0MVTOWTULN0MBEX 'L	S	'' .MR0.M/E�̀Q(*,s)+	~sqQ�	ES.SL0LL	E�B0�VR	FDJwY+tyQr	'��Q,	DY+Y�QqQ+,	u	J�ZG�P̀Z~�'I FY�Q	R 
Page 83 of 526



��������	
������	��	���	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����A
2A
�%B0CDC/EFGD HI+J	)K	L)+,MNIO	P),N0QCRST	U*N	/VWVR0RX R00Y000Q00 0RV0WVR0RR.QZWT .WXY0/RQ00.WXYZ.DQZX WXQZ/DQ.CT .ZWY/X/QZ0XWDQ0C 0QSST[SY0CCQ0X\ 'R	V	']''] RQ..RQ0C/WXCĈ'_W ÌONaK)M(NQ()b	c+(	dIOOIeON	P),N	d)+,	/V.SVR0RR0QCRST	U*N	/V.SVR0RX RWSY000Q00 fIMg)*a0QWDT RWRY/.SQWSRWDY.X.QW0 WSQX0RQZZT RZ.YXRRQCDCWCQSD 0QZRT[..Y/.WQR/\ 'R	V	'hPi RQ.DRQ0ZCWD/.iFRS jI((IM	kg+I+(gIO	d)Ml	P),NRQ.ST	U*N	ZV.SVR0RX /0Y000Q00 0ZV0ZVR0.WRQR0T CWYZXSQD0CWYWD.Q/S WZQ.SDQ0RT CZY/0RQ0CXXDQ.X 0QR0T[.YRRWQCW\ '.	V	'hPi RQR.RQ.R/Z0.Sm/dR i)nIO	HI+J	)K	dI+IoI	P),NRQRST	U*N	..V.VR0RX DRSY000Q00 .RV0SVR0.WRQRCT DRXYZD.Q00DRXYW.CQXW W/QZSDQ.ZT D.ZY00SQDSC0WQDZ 0QWDT[CYW..Q.X\ '.	V	'''] RQXRRQDR.XW.DFDHD dI,NMlgOOIM	kg+O	̀NMpg(N	P),NRQ.ST	U*N	..VZVR0RX DRSY000Q00 0RV.WVR0R0.QZDT DRWYCRZQ00DR/YDWXQCD WZQR0RQWRT D.WY.SXQRDXXCQXR 0QWDT[ZYRX0QX0\ 'R	V	'' RQXXRQDSZWRDCEqED E)n),I	L),)M	dMNog,	d)Ml	P),N.QXST	U*N	.V.DVR0RS D.0Y000Q00 0.V.0VR0RR.QS0T D0WYSZXQC0D0WYCD/QRZ WCQ0.DQ0ST RW/YCRDQRS.Y/RDQ0Z 0QZ/T[.RY0.XQ0D\ '.	V	'h'h RQCRRQSRW0DD.rĵ. s̀	HI+J	P'	dIOOIeON	P),N	d)+,	.RVR.VR0RXRQ0ST	U*N	.VR.VR0RS DX0Y000Q00 0.V.CVR0R0RQ.0T DDWYR/SQZ0DDWYC./QXW W/Q.0DQR0T DD0Y.X/QZRRYS.CQWX 0QW/T[WYXCWQC/\ '.	V	'']''] RQCSRQSRCWD/.ii/D jI((IM	kg+I+(gIO	d)Ml	P),NRQZST	U*N	XV/VR0RS DX0Y000Q00 0DVD.VR0RRRQZCT DDWYW..QC0DDWYW.CQ0X WWQ0/DQ.WT DDCYZX0Q0X.YXSDQS0 0QWZT[DY0/CQ00\ '.	V	'hPi RQZSRQ/0.XW.DiRfZ dI,NMlgOOIM	kg+I+(gIO	̀NMpg(N	P),NDQXT	U*N	SV.DVR0RS .CSY000Q00 0SV.0VR0RRDQXXT .CXY/W0QXS.CXY/WXQ0Z .00Q/DDQ.XT .CCYR00QZ/RZ0QS0 0QXZT.YX0CQ/W 'R	V	'' RQWSRQ/Z/X/SRS'k0 F*IO()bb	c+(	dIOOIeON	P),N	d)+,	RVR0VR0RSDQXST	U*N	SVR0VR0RS DS0Y000Q00 .RVRRVR0R..QXCT D/RYW//QS0D/0Y0ZCQ/Z .00QZXDQ.ST DSRYWDCQS0DCZQWC .Q0DT[./Y.S0QRZ\ 'R	V	'Pi RQW/RQZ0XCCX/jdr/ qj	L)MtI+	duIaN	v	d)	dIOOIeON	P),N	d)+,	CV.VR0RX0QZRXT	U*N	CV.VR0RS D00Y000Q00 0SVRXVR0R.0Q/ZT D00YDZZQZ0D00YRSWQDR WXQ/RRQZXT RZXY.S0Q.0.YRDCQ00 0QZDT[.CY.0WQRR\ 'R	V	']''] DQ0.RQW.CD/XDrkw/ PI,g)+IO	i*MIO	s,gOg,gNa	P),NDQXST	U*N	CV.SVR0RS .0SY000Q00 0XVR/VR0RRDQXCT .0XYW/.QCS.0XYW/RQDS WWQWWDQXST .0XYWWRQ0RR/.QCW 0QD.T.WQC/ 'R	V	']' DQ0XRQZCXCCX/jdm0 qj	L)MtI+	duIaN	v	d)	dIOOIeON	P),N	d)+,	CVRDVR0RX0QWCWT	U*N	CVRDVR0RS .X0Y000Q00 fIMg)*a0QWST .X0Y0Z/QSS.X0Y0C0QR. WXQCRRQWST .DRYX/0QSRSWSQX0 0QDWT[/YSZWQCW\ 'R	V	']''] DQ0/RQW/ZW/ZZL''0 EM*ga,	kg+I+(gIO	d)Ml	dIOOIeON	P),N	d)+,	0/V0DVR0RS.QRT	U*N	ZVSVR0RS DS0Y000Q00 0RV0DVR0RR.QZST DXRYD.XQ00DXDY00.QRR WDQ..DQS.T DRSYZZ/QXS.YDSDQDD 0QWST[./Y..DQ//\ 'D	V	']' DQ.ZDQ0CwxN(*,g)+	EgbNy	CV.VR0RR	CyD0yXZ	jLduI+oONM	'aaN,	LI+ItNbN+,	]	dzPkcUwPEc'̂ jItN	W 
Page 84 of 526



��������	
������	��	���	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����A
2A
�%BCDDC/EFG. HE	I)JKL+	MNLOP	Q	M)	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	CUVVUV0VWVX0YZ[	\*P	CUVVUV0VD V00]000X00 0VU./UV0VVVXDD[ .̂D]W0YX00.̂D]/ZWXCC ŴX0/ZXŴ[ .̂0].CWXC0CW.XZV 0XWW[_D]Ŵ0X0C̀ 'V	U	'a''a ZX̂0ZXDYD./CCDYbW I)JKL+	c,L+RPd	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	CUVYUV0VWVX.YY[	\*P	CUVYUV0VD V00]000X00 0WU.YUV0VVZXY/[ .YY]̂VVX00.Ŷ]0.CXZY ŴXCVZXD.[ .̂0]YZ0X00C0.X.Z 0XWD[.]Y.WXDV '.	U	'a' ZX̂.ZXD̂0VZ.ZWFeZ 'fLg)+X()f	h+(	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	CU.VUV0VD.[	\*P	WU.VUV0VD CC0]000X00 0WU.0UV0V..X0̂[ CZY]0̂ X̂V0CZY]Ĉ X̂̂/ V̂XVDZX.0[ C0W]̂WYX0YVZVXVV .X.Y[_ZV]WC.XŶ` '.	U	''''a ZX̂WZXYVY0YW.ZFiW MNLJRPO	c(NjLS	M)Jk	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	CU.ZUV0VD.X.W[	\*P	WU.ZUV0VD V00]000X00 .VU.WUV0V..XĈ[ .̂/].WVX00.̂/]CCDX0. .̂XWWZXCD[ .YZ]0̂WXD0..WX00 0XWZ[_.C]ZW0XC.̀ 'V	U	'' ZX̂WZXY0.̂ZVCElMV m+n,Po	pPLR,N	qJ)*k	h+(	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	CU.WUV0VD.X.W[	\*P	WU.WUV0VD ZWW]000X00 rLJn)*O.X0̂[ ZWW]̂VYX/WZWW]/DVXY/ V̂X.ZZXV̂[ ZV/]0WVXV/.Y.XCW 0X̂W[_VY]/.0XD0̀ 'Z	U	's' ZX̂DZXY.ŶVZDtHGV t)d),L	I),)J	MJPon,	M)Jk	T),P.X.VW[	\*P	DU.YUV0VD Z00]000X00 0DU.WUV0V..X.Z[ V̂ ]̂YDYX00V̂ ]̂ŶZX.D .̂XCWZXC0[ V/C]ZCCXD0.]WVYX.Z 0XY0[_VW]WCYXWD̀ '.	U	's's CX0WZXYY0D0W.qH\V FL+u	)v	'fPJn(L	M)Jk	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	DU.̂UV0VW.XZ.̂[	\*P	DU.̂UV0VD ZW0]000X00 rLJn)*O.XCZ[ ZĈ]0CVX00ZĈ]0D0X0̂ V̂XCYZXC/[ ZVZ]DYWXVWV]0//XCZ 0X̂W[_VW]Z/CXYC̀ 'V	U	'a''a CX0WZXYDŴĈ.YFiC In(J)O)v,	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	WUYUV0VDVXC[	\*P	YUYUV0VD ZW0]000X00 .VUV.UV0V..XZD[ ZDW]CCVX00ZDZ]ŶCX̂0 /̂X̂/VX̂V[ ZCV]Ŷ X̂̂0V]DZDXD/ .X0.[_V0]̂̂ WX00̀ 'LL	U	'''''' CX.̂ZX̂VŶ..Ctwq0 t)J)+,)a\)fn+n)+	FL+u	T),P.XVW[	\*P	̂U.0UV0VD V00]000X00 .VU.WUV0V..XD/[ .̂D]V0VX00.̂D]WDDXYW 0̂X0DZX/̂[ .Y0]..CXY0WDVXW0 0XWZ[_.D]CWVX0Ẁ '.	U	'''a CXVYCX0Y0Z/YZZ\T/ 'kkRP	h+(	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	/U..UV0VDVX0W[	\*P	̂U..UV0VD V/0]000X00 rLJn)*O.XW0[ V/D]WDWXY0V/W]YY/X0W ŴX/̂ZX..[ VWY]DVYXC..]VZ0X00 0X/D[_./]VWYXDC̀ 'LL	U	''sTi CXVYCX0Z0DZDYx'MZ FL+u	)v	I)+,JPLR	T),P.XVW[	\*P	̂U.WUV0VD VY0]000X00 0̂U.ZUV0V..XVY[ V/̂]DD.XV0V/̂]/0̂XVD 0̂X.YZX/W[ VWV]ĈZXDC/ZYXŶ 0X/C[_V/]V.WXDV̀ 'V	U	'a''a CXZ0CX0̂Ẑ..CVli0 yLRaILJ,	c,)JPO	MLRRLSRP	T),P	M)+,	0YU./UV0VD.X0W[	\*P	̂U./UV0VD /0]000X00 0̂U0YUV0V..X0̂[ D̂]YD/X/0D̂]YYDXZV .̂XYVZX.0[ DC]V/ZX̂Z.W.X0Y 0X.̂[_W]D.VXẐ` 'LV	U	'''' CXZ0CX.Z/Y0.DlwwZ i)dLR	FL+u	)v	ML+LoL	T),P.XC[	\*P	..UVUV0VD V00]000X00 .VU.WUV0V..X/C[ .̂D]YW0X00.̂/].CZXD0 0̂XVCZXYV[ .Y0]C/ZXD0VVWXWD 0XWZ[_.D]D/0X00̀ '.	U	'''a CXCZCXV.lzP(*,n)+	tnfP{	DU.UV0VV	D{Z0{CY	EIMNL+oRPJ	'OOP,	IL+LKPfP+,	a	M|Txh\lTth'} ELKP	.0 
Page 85 of 526



��������	
������	��	���	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����A
2A
�%BC/D.EFGH/ IJKLM,	N)KO	NJPPJQPM	R),M	N)+,	.ES.TSE0ED.UVTW	X*M	.S.TSE0E/ E0TY000U00 0.S.VSE0EE.UVVW E0ZYDT.UT0E0ZYD/DU0T VZUZV[UEZW .V[YDVZUET.YZ.0UE[ 0UT/W\.0YVC.UC0] 'E	S	'' ZUD[ZU[[C0CT.[Ĝ0 N_JKPM̀	a(_bJQ	N)KO	NJPPJQPM	R),M	N)+,	ES[SE0E/EUZTW	X*M	[S[SE0E/ .Z0Y000U00 0[S0.SE0EEEUZ/W .[VYCZCUC0.[VYCTDUET VTUE/[UTZW .[[Y[C.U[DC[CUZZ 0U[VW\DYZ/ZUCV] 'E	S	'' ZU/DZUZ.0CZDDZNcE GMKd̀_eKM	fJ,_JbJg	NJPPJQPM	R),M	N)+,	ES.TSE0E/EU[W	X*M	[S.TSE0E/ Z.0Y000U00 0[S0/SE0EEEU[0W Z0VYVEEU.0Z0VYVETUZ[ VDU0E[UE0W [V[YDVTU.E.YVV0U/C .U.TW\.DYE[0U[.] 'JE	S	'''h ZU/VZUZDDDTCTV'iZ R)K,_MK+	IK*̀,	N)jOJ+g	NJPPJQPM	R),M	N)+,	ZS.0SE0E/ZW	X*M	TS.0SE0E/ .TTY000U00 0TS0TSE0EEZU0ZW .TZY/ZCUV0.TZY/T.UV[ .0EUTE[UZ[W .TCYV0[UVV[D.UD/ 0UZDWZY.TEU0D 'E	S	'h'h ZUVTZU[VV.[EZkFl[ m+e,Mn	fMJP,_	lK)*O	o+(	NJPPJQPM	R),M	N)+,	ZS.TSE0E/[U/W	X*M	TS.TSE0E/ .TTY000U00 0TS./SE0EE[UDVW .TTY0/[UT0.TTY0/[U0E .0.U0E[UZ/W .TDYTC.UDE./TUE[ 0UZDW.YT0CUD0 '[	S	'h' ZUVDZUZ[%��6�	����6�� pqrrsqttt"tt s"pu= pqrutqutu"vupqrrrqtsw"xu y"sz= pqtuzquvr"tzyvqttv"xt xv"rw={yzuqruy"sw| �s	8	�}�} y"xwy"ss<A�B;	<�
~B%	#1�5EDE00�CZT XKMg�*̀	�*+ǹ	o+̀,�P	�M̀MK�M	IKMJ̀*Kg	-DTZ. D/Y[.ZUCD �JKe)*̀0U0.W D/Y[.ZUCDD/Y[.ZUCD .U000U0.W D/Y[.ZUCD0U00 0UE0W0U00 'JJ	S	'''''' 0U000U00%��6�	<���4	<6:��	#$�� vwqysr"zv t"ts= vwqysr"zvvwqysr"zv t"ts= vwqysr"zvt"tt t"xt=t"tt �66	8	������ t"ttt"tt<1�!�!2�?	9A�5�.[0D[X��D NJPe�)K+eJ	a,J,M	IJ�JQPM	l�EUZW	X*M	.0S.SE0EZ [E0Y000U00 .0S.DSE0.V.UV.W [E/Y[T0UZ0[E[YZ/TUTT VCU[.[U.TW [.ZYD0ZUC0.YEC0U00 0UVEW\CYC/0U/T] 'JE	S	''�'' EU[ZEUEZ%��6�	<$��3��6�	9���� yxtqttt"tt s"ps= yxwqyut"rtyxyqrwu"uu y"su= ysrqvtr"ztsqxzt"tt t"px={zqzwt"wu| �6x	8	����� x"yrx"xr�12
���%!A��?ZTV0TC��C o+,PU	GJ+d	�M()+	�	XM�MP)OjM+,	R),M0UTW	X*M	.0SECSE0ET V.0Y000U00 �JKe)*̀.U00W CVEYC.VUE0CVZYCVVU[V VEUZZEUCZW CZ.YEZTUCDZ./U0V EUZTW\T[YDT[UT[] 'JJ	S	'''''' [UZ.[U[[F�M(*,e)+	IejM�	DS.SE0EE	D�[0�ZC	kHN_J+nPMK	'̀ M̀,	HJ+JLMjM+,	�	N�R�oXFRIo'� kJLM	.. 
Page 86 of 526



��������	
������	��	���	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6�����12
���%!A��?BCD.E0FG/ H+,IJK'LIJM(N+	FIO	PN+Q	R),I0SD/CT	F*I	BUV0UV0VW C/CX000S00 0BU.YUV0V.0SZ/T C/VXYWWSC0C/VXZCYSBD ZVSC/VSZ.T CYVXV/VSZ0C/YS00 .SCCT[B0XWD0SCD\ 'NN	U	'''''' YSDZYS//%��6�	�$�6�6����6� ]̂_̀âbbb"bb b"cc= ]̂_dâ]̀a"eb]̂_dề af"̀e f"̀e= ]̂geĝa]̀"edccb"bc _"bb=hc_̂gg_"]]i �66	8	������ g"dbg"ab1�	%
j��1
;Z.VDVkFl0 mn	oJINp*Jq	R),I0SCT	F*I	..UY0UV0VY CC0X000S00 .VUVYUV0V.0SWDT CBDX.0ZSYDCBDXCVDSZV Z/SVZVSYCT CYCX...SC0/SC. .SCWT[.YXB./SBV\ 'NN	U	''r''' .SC0.SBDZ.VDVkPs. mn	oJINp*Jq	R),I0SVCT	F*I	YU.CUV0VB YC0X000S00 0YUY0UV0V.0SYYT YBZX.CVSYBYBZXBD/SBD ZWS.DVSBCT YYWXW.CSY0.DCSBW 0SZDT[.VXD/VS.D\ 'NN	U	''r''' .S/Z.S//Z.VDVkkkY mn	oJINp*Jq	R),I0SVCT	F*I	CU.CUV0VB /00X000S00 .VUV.UV0V.0SD0T WZ0XDYZSDBWZVXCVCSY. ZCS/.VSC.T W/0X00YSW0D0SDB .SZCT[VVXCV.S/.\ 'NN	U	''r''' .SZW.SZYZ.VDVDEEY mn	oJINp*Jq	R),IVT	F*I	WUY0UV0VB CC0X000S00 .VU.VUV0.Z.S/BT CCWXVZBSZVCCVXDD0SVD ZDSZ0VSCCT CBYXZB.SV0BXW.DS/D .SW0T[DXZYZS0D\ 'NN	U	''r''' VS0DVS0.Z.VDVDFCW mn	oJINp*Jq	R),IVSY/CT	F*I	DU.CUV0VB C00X000S00 0DUVZUV0.Z.SBCT CVVX.W/SZ/C0ZXDW0SCZ ZZSC.VSW0T BZ/XCYZS00YXB//SV. .SBWT[.VXYV.SCZ\ 'NN	U	''r''' VSV.VS.VZ.VDVDYF0 mn	oJINp*Jq	R),IVSVCT	F*I	.0UY.UV0VB C00X000S00 ..U0/UV0.Z.S//T C..XY0DSCZC0CXBDZSCC ZZS0/VSWCT BZCXY/.S00Z/DSVW .SBBT[.0X..DSCC\ 'NN	U	''r''' VSBVVSYYZ.VDVkFRD mn	oJINp*Jq	R),I.T	F*I	.VU.CUV0VB CC0X000S00 .VU.CUV0V.0SZZT CC0X./.SDDCC0X.BCSW/ ZCSZBVSWWT CV/XWCWSVCVXCYDSBW .SCBT[VVXBDZSBV\ 'NN	U	''r''' VSCCVSB/Z.VDVDtk/ mn	oJINp*Jq	R),I.S.VCT	F*I	VUVDUV0VC BC0X000S00 0YU.DUV0V00SD.T BCWXZBYSYWBCYXDCBS0. ZCSDDVSWZT BY.XBY/SC0.XV/ZSYD .SVWT[VVXB.WSC.\ 'NN	U	''r''' VS/CVSW/Z.VDVkuFZ mn	oJINp*Jq	R),I.S/CT	F*I	YU.CUV0VC VYCX000S00 0BU0DUV0VVVS/.T VVDX/0VS/YVVDXZZ/SCC Z/SBYVS/.T VVDXZCZSD0D/.SW/ 0SW/T[Y/S/C\ 'NN	U	''r''' VS/ZVSWZZ.VDVDtv0 mn	oJINp*Jq	R),I0SCT	F*I	YUY.UV0VC CWCX000S00 0.UVCUV0V.0SYVT CWZXVCZSC/CW/XDDDS.Y ZYSZZVS/VT CY.X0CCSZYB/DSCC .SCCT[YWXDYVSV0\ 'NN	U	''r''' VSDBVS/DZ.VDVk'lY mn	oJINp*Jq	R),I0SVCT	F*I	ZUY0UV0VC C/CX000S00 0VU.ZUV0V.0SC.T CWDX.BZSB.C/0X0B0SYC ZVS0.VS/DT CVZX0BBSDCVBYSC. .SCBT[B0XZZCSC0\ 'NN	U	''r''' YSYBYSV/Z.VDVk'oD mn	oJINp*Jq	R),I0SVCT	F*I	.0UY.UV0VC C/CX000S00 0.U..UV0V.0SBDT CWDXD00S/DC/0XCDWSWB Z.SDVVS/DT CV/XZBBSY0.VCS00 .SCBT[BVXWBVSYB\ 'NN	U	''r''' YSBVYSYWuwI(*,M)+	oMLIx	WU.UV0VV	WxY0xBD	ylkzN+{|IJ	'ppI,	lN+N}ILI+,	K	k~RvHFuRoH'� yN}I	.V 
Page 87 of 526



��������	
������	��	���	���	����������	��	������	��� 	!��"	#$��	����	%�&'(()*+,	-./0�1�!2 ��3$��4	5��3������ 26	76�$�81���� 2$3�6��	56��9��:	;���� ����	76�$�9��:	76�$� <:�	2�3�<:�	;%< <6:��	76�$��33$��	!��" =	� 	2��">6��8?���<���48�@2	#��3� <6�$��45$6����1�	%
A��1
;B.CDCE'FG HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0QR/ST	U*L	..VR0VC0CS SWSX000Q00 0RVCWVC0C.0Q//T SSGXDWBQ/RSS/XG.SQWS B.QB/CQD0T S.BXWGSQ/WSQ/B .QS.TYR/X/WBQDBZ 'MM	V	''[''' RQS0RQGRB.CDCEE\D HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0QD/ST	U*L	WVR0VC0CW RS0X000Q00 .CVCCVC0C..QCCT RGGX/0DQBDRGSXCCCQ0S BCQSGCQDCT RCRXB00QS0.XCDSQB. 0QBSTYC.XRC.QSSZ 'MM	V	''[''' GQ0DRQBSB.CDCEE]G HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0QWCST	U*L	/VR.VC0CW .G0X000Q00 0DV0GVC0C.0QWDT .RBXWCCQWW.RBXWDGQDC B.QRBCQDRT .C/XBGWQDGCBCQG/ 0QR/TY..X/R/QBDZ 'MM	V	''[''' GQ./GQ0SB.CDCEÊ B HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0Q/ST	U*L	DVR.VC0CW .S0X000Q00 0BV./VC0C.0QDWT .GBX.DSQSS.GBXR00Q.0 B.Q/GCQDRT .R/XW0/QGSCDGQR. 0QG0TY..XWBCQWSZ 'MM	V	''[''' GQCSGQ.CB.CDCEEFC HI	JKLMN*KO	P),L0QD/ST	U*L	BVR0VC0CW DS0X000Q00 _MK̀)*N.Q0DT DG.XSB.QD0DGCXWSSQR. BCQ0/CQDRT /DCXWR0Q/0.XCSBQB. CQCDTYW0X0CGQW.Z 'MM	V	''[''' GQRGGQ.B%��6�	1�	%�6�$4 abcddbeee"ee e"fg= abchfbagf"hfabcihbdjk"hc k"jg= gbghjbhcc"hacabeci"ek kk"je=liaabcde"fim �66	8	��n��� k"adk"gg%o%�?	2o
%#o?!o idbdjkbccd"cf c"he= idbjfjbgef"kiidbjcibgfg"hi k"ai= ihbkddbjdg"gkceibdie"gh cee"ee=lcbidabcif"gcm �6k	8	����� k"ahk"dc%o%�?	<�
pA%	7�?1A	2?1�	���
1A5 ihbidfbcaa"hj

qrL(*,̀)+	J̀sLt	WV.VC0CC	WtR0tGD	]uEvM+wxLK	'NNL,	uM+MyLsL+,	z	E{P|}UqPJ}'~ ]MyL	.R 
Page 88 of 526



MONTHLY ACCOUNT STATEMENT

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term - Account #171

MAY 1, 2022 THROUGH MAY 31, 2022

Information contained herein is confidential. We urge you to compare this statement to the one you receive from your qualified custodian. Please see Important Disclosures.

CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT
chandlerasset.com

Chandler Team:
For questions about your account, please call (800) 317-4747,
or contact operations@chandlerasset.com

Custodian
Bank of New York Mellon
Lauren Dehner
(904) 645-1918

 
Page 89 of 526



ACCOUNT SUMMARY
Beg. Values

as of 4/30/22
End Values

as of 5/31/22

Market Value 27,914,745 28,085,265
Accrued Interest 110,028 106,712
Total Market Value 28,024,772 28,191,977
Income Earned 37,852 41,065
Cont/WD 0
Par 29,384,020 29,434,420
Book Value 29,423,912 29,468,305
Cost Value 29,477,531 29,513,697

TOP ISSUERS

Government of United States 22.9%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 13.9%
Federal National Mortgage Assoc 12.4%
Federal Home Loan Bank 11.1%
Tennessee Valley Authority 2.0%
Bank of America Corp 1.9%
JP Morgan Chase & Co 1.9%
Toyota ABS 1.7%

Total 68.0%

PORTFOLIO CHARACTERISTICS

Average Modified Duration 3.65

Average Coupon 1.78%

Average Purchase YTM 1.69%

Average Market YTM 2.95%

Average S&P/Moody Rating AA/Aa1

Average Final Maturity 4.11 yrs

Average Life 3.87 yrs

CREDIT QUALITY (S&P)MATURITY DISTRIBUTIONSECTOR ALLOCATION

Portfolio Summary
As of May 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Annualized

TOTAL RATE OF RETURN 1M 3M YTD 1YR 2YRS 3YRS 5YRS 10YRS 5/31/2006
Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term 0.60% -3.36% -5.07% -5.67% -2.75% 0.52% 1.24% 1.39% 3.15%
ICE BofA 1-10 Yr US Treasury & Agency Index 0.63% -3.33% -4.92% -5.47% -3.26% 0.25% 0.98% 1.04% 2.80%
ICE BofA 1-10 Yr AAA-A US Corp & Govt Index 0.67% -3.44% -5.22% -5.71% -3.02% 0.43% 1.18% 1.36% 2.96%

Execution Time: 6/1/2022 6:31:09 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 1
 

Page 90 of 526



Category Standard Comment 

U.S. Treasuries No limitation Complies

Federal Agencies

30% max per Agency/GSE issuer; 20%  max agency callable securities; Federal Agencies or U.S. government-sponsored 

enterprise obligations, participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to principal and 

interest by federal agencies or U.S. government-sponsored enterprises.

Complies

Supranational Obligations
"AA" rating category or better by a NRSRO; 30% max;  10% max per issuer; USD denominated senior unsecured 

unsubordinated obligations; Issued or unconditionally guaranteed by IBRD, IFC, IADB
Complies

Municipal Securities (CA, Local Agency) "A" rating category or its equivalent or better by a NRSRO; 30% max; 5% max per issuer; 5 years max maturity.

Municipal Securities (CA, Other States) "A" rating category or its equivalent or better by a NRSRO; 30% max; 5% max per issuer; 5 years max maturity. Complies

Corporate Medium Term Notes
"A" rating category or better by a NRSRO;  30% max; 5% max per issuer;  Issuer is a corporation organized and operating within 

the U.S. or by depository institutions licensed by the U.S. or any state and operating within the U.S.; 5 year max maturity.
Complies 

Asset-Backed & Mortgage-Backed, 

Mortgage Pass-Though Securities, and 

Collateralized Mortgage Obligation

"AA" rating category or better  by a NRSRO; 20% max (combined ABS/MBS/CMO); 5% max per Asset-Backed or Commercial 

Mortgage security issuer; From issuers not defined in U.S. Treasury and Federal Agencies sections of the Permitted Investments 

section of the policy;  5 years max maturity

Complies 

Negotiable Certificates of Deposits (NCD)

The amount of NCD insured up to the FDIC limit does not require any credit ratings;  Any amount above FDIC insured limit must 

be issued by institutions with "A-1" short-term debt rating or better by a NRSRO; or "A" long-term rating category or better by 

a NRSRO;  30% max (combined with CDARS);  5% max per issuer;  Issued by a nationally or state-chartered bank, or a federal or 

state association, a state or federal credit union, or by a federally-licensed or state-licensed branch of a foreign bank. 

Complies 

Certificate of Deposit Placement Service 

(CDARS)
30% max (combination of Certificates of Deposit, including CDARS) Complies 

FDIC Insured Time Deposits (Non-

negotiable CD/TD)

Non-Negotiable Certificates of Deposit in state or federally chartered banks, savings and loans, or credit unions;  The amount 

per institution is limited to maximum covered under FDIC;  20% max combined FDIC & Collateralized CD/TD; 5 years max 

maturity.

Complies 

Collateralized Time Deposits (Non-

negotiable CD/TD)

Non-Negotiable Certificates of Deposit in state or federally chartered banks, savings and loans, or credit unions in excess of 

insured amounts which are fully collateralized with securities in accordance with California law;  20% max combined FDIC & 

Collateralized CD/TD;  5% max per issuer; 5 year max maturity.

Complies 

Banker’s Acceptances
"A-1" short-term debt rated or better by a NRSRO;  or "A" long-term debt rating category or better by a NRSRO;  40% max; 5% 

max per issuer; 180 days max maturity
Complies 

Commercial Paper

25% max; 5% max per issuer; 270 days maturity;  10% maximum of the outstanding commercial paper of any single issuer;  

Issued by an entity that meets all of the following conditions in either (a) or (b):

a.  Securities issued by corporations: (i) organized and operating within the U.S. with assets > $500 million; (ii) "A-1" rated or 

better by a NRSRO;  (iii)  "A" rating or better by a NRSRO, if issuer has debt obligations.

b.  Securities issued by other entities:  (i) organized within the U.S. as a special purpose corporation, trust, or limited liability 

company;  (ii) must have program-wide credit enhancements including, but not limited to, overcollateralization, letters of 

credit, or a surety bond;  (iii)  rated "A-1" or better by a NRSRO.

Complies 

Northern California Cities Self-Insurance Fund - Long Term

The portfolio complies with state law and with the Client's investment policy.

Statement of Compliance
As of May 31, 2022

 
Page 91 of 526



Money Market Mutual Funds

Registered with SEC under Investment Company Act of 1940 and issued by diversified management companies and meet either 

of the following criteria:

(i) Highest rating by two NRSROs; or (ii) Retained an investment adviser registered or exempt from SEC registration with > 5 

years experience managing money market mutual funds with AUM >$500 million;

20% max combined Money Market Mutual Funds.

Complies

Mutual Funds

Invest in securities as authorized under CGC, Section 53601 (a) to (k) and (m) to (q) inclusive and meet either of the following 

criteria:

(i) Highest rating by two NRSROs; or (ii) Retained an investment adviser registered or exempt from SEC registration with > 5 

years experience investing in securities authorized by CGC, Section 53601 and with AUM >$500 million;

20% max combined Money Market Mutual Funds and Mutual Funds;  10% max per Mutual Fund

Complies 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Maximum amount permitted by LAIF. Complies 

Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) No issuer limitation. Complies 

Repurchase Agreements 1 year max maturity;  Not used by Investment Adviser Complies 

Prohibited

Common or preferred stocks, convertible or junk bonds, commodities, options, limited partnerships, GICs, 

Reverse repurchase agreements, uninsured deposits, Inverse floaters; ranges notes, mortgage derived, interest only strips, 

Zero interest accrual securities if held to maturity; Investments denominated in Non-USD; Collateralized Mortgage Obligations 

(CMOs) with collateral not specifically GNMA, FHLMC, or FNMA; Purchasing or selling securities on margin; Securities lending 

or any other form of borrowing or leverage

Complies 

Max Per Issuer
5%  per issuer or institution unless explicitly stated in the policy, excluding U.S. government, agency, investment pool, and 

money market funds
Complies

Maximum Maturity
10 years;  The Board of Directors grants authority for the purchase of securities with maturities in excess of 5 years.  Such 

purchases shall be of U.S. Treasury and Federal Agency securities (including Mortgage-Backed Securities)
Complies

 
Page 92 of 526



BOOK VALUE RECONCILIATION

BEGINNING BOOK VALUE $29,423,911.88

Acquisition
+ Security Purchases $824,758.77
+ Money Market Fund Purchases $786,636.18
+ Money Market Contributions $0.00
+ Security Contributions $0.00
+ Security Transfers $0.00
   Total Acquisitions $1,611,394.95
Dispositions

- Security Sales $678,496.34
- Money Market Fund Sales $824,758.77
- MMF Withdrawals $0.00
- Security Withdrawals $0.00
- Security Transfers $0.00
- Other Dispositions $0.00
- Maturites $0.00
- Calls $0.00
- Principal Paydowns $61,477.84
   Total Dispositions $1,564,732.95
Amortization/Accretion
+/- Net Accretion ($2,282.00)

($2,282.00)
Gain/Loss on Dispositions
+/- Realized Gain/Loss $13.54

$13.54
ENDING BOOK VALUE $29,468,305.42

CASH TRANSACTION SUMMARY

BEGINNING BALANCE $103,556.22

Acquisition
          Contributions $0.00
          Security Sale Proceeds $678,496.34
          Accrued Interest Received $7,095.95
          Interest Received $39,555.12
          Dividend Received $10.93
          Principal on Maturities $0.00
          Interest on Maturities $0.00
          Calls/Redemption (Principal) $0.00
          Interest from Calls/Redemption $0.00
          Principal Paydown $61,477.84
Total Acquisitions $786,636.18
Dispositions
          Withdrawals $0.00
          Security Purchase $824,758.77
          Accrued Interest Paid $0.00
Total Dispositions $824,758.77
ENDING BOOK VALUE $65,433.63

Reconciliation Summary
As of May 31, 2022

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Long Term Account
Account #171

Execution Time: 6/1/2022 6:31:09 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 3
 

Page 93 of 526



Holdings Report
As of May 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

ABS

43815NAC8 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2019-3 
A3
1.78% Due 8/15/2023

50,943.85 08/20/2019
1.79%

50,943.43
50,943.81

99.94
2.06%

50,914.51
40.30

0.18%
(29.30)

Aaa / AAA
NR

1.21
0.21

92348AAA3 Verizon Owner Trust 2019-C A1A
1.94% Due 4/22/2024

56,098.76 10/01/2019
1.95%

56,094.43
56,096.96

100.00
1.96%

56,096.46
33.25

0.20%
(0.50)

NR / AAA
AAA

1.90
0.30

89232HAC9 Toyota Auto Receivable Own 2020-A A3
1.66% Due 5/15/2024

134,828.04 06/17/2020
0.68%

137,935.40
136,383.90

99.79
2.19%

134,547.87
99.47

0.48%
(1,836.03)

Aaa / AAA
NR

1.96
0.39

47789KAC7 John Deere Owner Trust 2020-A A3
1.1% Due 8/15/2024

82,255.14 03/04/2020
1.11%

82,250.12
82,252.64

99.33
2.53%

81,703.62
40.21

0.29%
(549.02)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.21
0.47

43813KAC6 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2020-3 
A3
0.37% Due 10/18/2024

139,041.62 09/22/2020
0.38%

139,021.19
139,032.07

98.69
2.46%

137,216.98
18.58

0.49%
(1,815.09)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.39
0.63

36262XAC8 GM Financial Auto Lease Trust 2021-3 
A2
0.39% Due 10/21/2024

205,000.00 08/10/2021
0.39%

204,997.21
204,998.11

97.19
2.83%

199,242.37
24.43

0.71%
(5,755.74)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.39
1.16

47787NAC3 John Deere Owner Trust 2020-B A3
0.51% Due 11/15/2024

46,538.53 07/14/2020
0.52%

46,531.44
46,535.22

98.78
2.47%

45,968.67
10.55

0.16%
(566.55)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.46
0.63

09690AAC7 BMW Vehicle Lease Trust 2021-2 A3
0.33% Due 12/26/2024

90,000.00 09/08/2021
0.34%

89,990.71
89,993.61

97.55
2.74%

87,791.67
4.95

0.31%
(2,201.94)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.58
1.03

92290BAA9 Verizon Owner Trust 2020-B A
0.47% Due 2/20/2025

215,000.00 08/04/2020
0.48%

214,954.85
214,972.82

98.55
2.61%

211,872.61
30.88

0.75%
(3,100.21)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.73
0.68

05601XAC3 BMW Vehicle Lease Trust 2022-1 A3
1.1% Due 3/25/2025

95,000.00 01/11/2022
1.11%

94,985.80
94,988.17

97.26
3.13%

92,398.62
17.42

0.33%
(2,589.55)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.82
1.36

43813GAC5 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2021-1 
A3
0.27% Due 4/21/2025

75,000.00 02/17/2021
0.27%

74,998.63
74,999.19

97.85
2.96%

73,387.20
5.63

0.26%
(1,611.99)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.89
0.80

44891RAC4 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2020-C 
A3
0.38% Due 5/15/2025

155,000.00 10/20/2020
0.39%

154,964.30
154,981.51

98.29
2.70%

152,341.75
26.18

0.54%
(2,639.76)

NR / AAA
AAA

2.96
0.74

89240BAC2 Toyota Auto Receivables Owners 2021-
A A3
0.26% Due 5/15/2025

270,000.00 02/02/2021
0.27%

269,949.89
269,971.07

97.99
2.72%

264,569.49
31.20

0.94%
(5,401.58)

Aaa / NR
AAA

2.96
0.82

36266FAC3 GM Financial Auto Lease Trust 2022-2 
A3
3.42% Due 6/20/2025

120,000.00 05/03/2022
3.45%

119,987.48
119,987.81

99.94
3.48%

119,928.12
228.00

0.43%
(59.69)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.06
1.80

Execution Time: 6/1/2022 6:31:09 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 4
 

Page 94 of 526



Holdings Report
As of May 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

ABS

47788UAC6 John Deere Owner Trust 2021-A A3
0.36% Due 9/15/2025

80,000.00 03/02/2021
0.37%

79,984.62
79,989.86

96.49
3.38%

77,188.48
12.80

0.27%
(2,801.38)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.30
1.17

44933LAC7 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2021-A 
A3
0.38% Due 9/15/2025

125,000.00 04/20/2021
0.38%

124,986.85
124,991.56

97.14
3.00%

121,424.13
21.11

0.43%
(3,567.43)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.30
1.10

43815GAC3 Honda Auto Receivables Trust 2021-4 
A3
0.88% Due 1/21/2026

100,000.00 11/16/2021
0.89%

99,978.92
99,982.28

96.10
3.20%

96,101.90
24.44

0.34%
(3,880.38)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.65
1.70

47789QAC4 John Deere Owner Trust 2021-B A3
0.52% Due 3/16/2026

125,000.00 07/13/2021
0.52%

124,988.85
124,991.48

95.16
3.53%

118,944.88
28.89

0.42%
(6,046.60)

Aaa / NR
AAA

3.79
1.63

89238JAC9 Toyota Auto Receivables Trust 2021-D 
A3
0.71% Due 4/15/2026

90,000.00 11/09/2021
0.71%

89,998.08
89,998.40

95.88
3.71%

86,295.51
28.40

0.31%
(3,702.89)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.88
1.39

44935FAD6 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2021-C 
A3
0.74% Due 5/15/2026

70,000.00 11/09/2021
0.75%

69,984.38
69,987.03

95.92
3.22%

67,144.00
23.02

0.24%
(2,843.03)

NR / AAA
AAA

3.96
1.67

05602RAD3 BMW Vehicle Owner Trust 2022-A A3
3.21% Due 8/25/2026

100,000.00 05/10/2022
3.23%

99,994.80
99,994.86

99.89
3.28%

99,892.20
115.92

0.35%
(102.66)

Aaa / AAA
NR

4.24
2.04

362554AC1 GM Financial Securitized Term 2021-4 
A3
0.68% Due 9/16/2026

75,000.00 10/13/2021
0.68%

74,998.09
74,998.43

96.24
3.15%

72,182.25
21.25

0.26%
(2,816.18)

Aaa / AAA
NR

4.30
1.54

47787JAC2 John Deere Owner Trust 2022-A A3
2.32% Due 9/16/2026

95,000.00 03/10/2022
2.34%

94,978.99
94,980.25

97.52
3.69%

92,642.67
97.96

0.33%
(2,337.58)

Aaa / NR
AAA

4.30
1.84

448977AD0 Hyundai Auto Receivables Trust 2022-A 
A3
2.22% Due 10/15/2026

130,000.00 03/09/2022
2.23%

129,995.00
129,995.32

97.76
3.36%

127,084.49
128.27

0.45%
(2,910.83)

NR / AAA
AAA

4.38
2.00

380146AC4 GM Financial Auto Receivables 2022-1 
A3
1.26% Due 11/16/2026

65,000.00 01/11/2022
1.27%

64,994.35
64,994.97

96.82
3.29%

62,933.85
34.13

0.22%
(2,061.12)

NR / AAA
AAA

4.47
1.58

362585AC5 GM Financial Securitized ART 2022-2 A3
3.1% Due 2/16/2027

90,000.00 04/05/2022
3.13%

89,981.19
89,981.93

99.64
3.28%

89,677.08
116.25

0.32%
(304.85)

Aaa / AAA
NR

4.72
2.20

02582JJT8 American Express Credit Trust 2022-2 A
3.39% Due 5/17/2027

260,000.00 05/17/2022
3.42%

259,942.49
259,942.91

100.51
3.23%

261,330.16
171.38

0.93%
1,387.25

NR / AAA
AAA

4.96
2.77

Total ABS 3,139,705.94 1.22%
3,142,411.49
3,140,966.17 2.97%

3,080,821.54
1,434.87

10.93%
(60,144.63)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

3.30
1.30

Execution Time: 6/1/2022 6:31:09 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 5
 

Page 95 of 526



Holdings Report
As of May 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

AGENCY

3135G06H1 FNMA Note
0.25% Due 11/27/2023

280,000.00 11/23/2020
0.29%

279,680.80
279,841.71

96.92
2.37%

271,367.32
7.78

0.96%
(8,474.39)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.49
1.47

880591ER9 Tennessee Valley Authority Note
2.875% Due 9/15/2024

550,000.00 02/27/2019
2.65%

556,352.50
552,624.40

100.36
2.71%

551,994.30
3,338.19

1.97%
(630.10)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.30
2.19

3135G0W66 FNMA Note
1.625% Due 10/15/2024

275,000.00 10/17/2019
1.66%

274,529.75
274,776.48

97.51
2.72%

268,146.18
571.01

0.95%
(6,630.30)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.38
2.30

3135G0X24 FNMA Note
1.625% Due 1/7/2025

215,000.00 01/08/2020
1.69%

214,314.15
214,642.41

97.32
2.70%

209,230.69
1,397.50

0.75%
(5,411.72)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.61
2.51

3137EAEP0 FHLMC Note
1.5% Due 2/12/2025

425,000.00 02/13/2020
1.52%

424,672.75
424,823.02

96.78
2.75%

411,294.60
1,930.21

1.47%
(13,528.42)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.71
2.60

3135G04Z3 FNMA Note
0.5% Due 6/17/2025

475,000.00 06/17/2020
0.54%

474,016.75
474,400.56

93.41
2.77%

443,686.58
1,081.94

1.58%
(30,713.98)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.05
2.98

3137EAEU9 FHLMC Note
0.375% Due 7/21/2025

340,000.00 07/21/2020
0.48%

338,306.80
338,936.18

92.86
2.76%

315,739.64
460.42

1.12%
(23,196.54)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.14
3.08

3137EAEX3 FHLMC Note
0.375% Due 9/23/2025

370,000.00 09/23/2020
0.44%

368,886.30
369,261.20

92.41
2.79%

341,898.50
262.08

1.21%
(27,362.70)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.32
3.25

3135G06G3 FNMA Note
0.5% Due 11/7/2025

530,000.00 11/09/2020
0.57%

528,102.60
528,692.35

92.56
2.79%

490,568.00
176.67

1.74%
(38,124.35)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.44
3.36

3135G0K36 FNMA Note
2.125% Due 4/24/2026

565,000.00 Various
2.18%

562,430.10
563,931.81

97.54
2.80%

551,090.27
1,233.98

1.96%
(12,841.54)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.90
3.70

3130AGFP5 FHLB Note
2.5% Due 6/12/2026

500,000.00 06/17/2019
2.19%

510,085.00
505,819.33

98.81
2.82%

494,028.00
5,868.06

1.77%
(11,791.33)

Aaa / AA+
NR

4.04
3.76

3130A2VE3 FHLB Note
3% Due 9/11/2026

575,000.00 Various
2.81%

583,719.50
578,998.92

100.45
2.89%

577,585.78
3,833.33

2.06%
(1,413.14)

Aaa / AA+
NR

4.28
3.96

3135G0Q22 FNMA Note
1.875% Due 9/24/2026

230,000.00 Various
2.78%

212,604.00
222,204.19

95.99
2.87%

220,784.59
802.61

0.79%
(1,419.60)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.32
4.09

3130ACKB9 FHLB Note
2.625% Due 9/10/2027

600,000.00 Various
2.75%

593,685.00
596,526.35

98.08
3.02%

588,497.40
3,543.76

2.10%
(8,028.95)

Aaa / AA+
NR

5.28
4.85

3135G05Y5 FNMA Note
0.75% Due 10/8/2027

600,000.00 Various
0.79%

598,402.20
598,744.51

89.37
2.91%

536,215.80
662.51

1.90%
(62,528.71)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.36
5.17

3130AEB25 FHLB Note
3.25% Due 6/9/2028

500,000.00 01/29/2019
3.13%

504,785.00
503,079.87

101.66
2.95%

508,324.50
7,763.89

1.83%
5,244.63

Aaa / AA+
NR

6.03
5.36

Execution Time: 6/1/2022 6:31:09 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 6
 

Page 96 of 526



Holdings Report
As of May 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

AGENCY

3130AG3X1 FHLB Note
2.875% Due 3/9/2029

380,000.00 Various
2.66%

386,815.50
384,722.11

98.37
3.14%

373,797.64
2,488.47

1.33%
(10,924.47)

Aaa / AA+
NR

6.78
6.06

3130AGDY8 FHLB Note
2.75% Due 6/8/2029

510,000.00 Various
2.45%

523,261.05
519,391.29

97.91
3.08%

499,357.32
6,739.79

1.80%
(20,033.97)

Aaa / AA+
NR

7.03
6.24

3130AGUW3 FHLB Note
2.125% Due 9/14/2029

70,000.00 03/05/2020
1.21%

75,742.80
74,394.17

93.58
3.12%

65,507.89
318.16

0.23%
(8,886.28)

Aaa / AA+
NR

7.30
6.63

3135G05Q2 FNMA Note
0.875% Due 8/5/2030

610,000.00 Various
0.99%

603,622.55
604,696.18

83.69
3.15%

510,536.46
1,719.86

1.82%
(94,159.72)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

8.19
7.73

Total Agency 8,600,000.00 1.76%
8,614,015.10
8,610,507.04 2.87%

8,229,651.46
44,200.22

29.35%
(380,855.58)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.43
4.14

CMO

3137B4WB8 FHLMC K033 A2
3.06% Due 7/25/2023

400,000.00 10/19/2018
3.39%

394,906.25
398,769.87

100.64
2.22%

402,578.40
204.00

1.43%
3,808.53

Aaa / NR
NR

1.15
0.98

3137B7YY9 FHLMC K037 A2
3.49% Due 1/25/2024

400,000.00 06/26/2019
2.08%

422,515.63
408,120.17

100.80
2.78%

403,191.20
1,163.33

1.43%
(4,928.97)

NR / AAA
NR

1.65
1.39

3137BYPQ7 FHLMC K726 A2
2.905% Due 4/25/2024

389,028.81 04/22/2019
2.72%

391,809.76
390,085.18

99.96
2.83%

388,886.43
941.77

1.38%
(1,198.75)

NR / AAA
NR

1.90
1.67

3137FARE0 FHMS K727 A2
2.946% Due 7/25/2024

330,000.00 07/23/2019
2.15%

340,248.05
334,327.84

100.22
2.74%

330,732.60
810.15

1.18%
(3,595.24)

NR / AAA
NR

2.15
1.90

3137BEVH4 FHLMC K040 A2
3.241% Due 9/25/2024

275,000.00 02/06/2020
1.80%

291,457.03
283,257.76

100.37
2.98%

276,024.10
742.73

0.98%
(7,233.66)

NR / NR
AAA

2.32
2.09

3137FBBX3 FHLMC K068 A2
3.244% Due 8/25/2027

270,000.00 02/02/2022
1.80%

289,174.22
288,081.84

99.97
3.23%

269,909.01
729.90

0.96%
(18,172.83)

Aaa / NR
NR

5.24
4.68

3137H1Z33 FHLMC K744 A2
1.712% Due 7/25/2028

226,251.52 02/08/2022
2.37%

221,310.19
221,543.27

91.56
3.30%

207,149.33
322.79

0.74%
(14,393.94)

NR / NR
AAA

6.16
5.46

3137H5DX2 FHLMC K747 A2
2.05% Due 11/25/2028

350,000.00 01/19/2022
1.96%

351,635.55
351,553.41

92.67
3.32%

324,335.55
597.92

1.15%
(27,217.86)

NR / NR
AAA

6.49
5.88

3137H6LN3 FHLMC K139 A2
2.59% Due 1/25/2032

270,000.00 03/01/2022
2.34%

275,647.32
275,513.46

92.95
3.46%

250,969.86
582.75

0.89%
(24,543.60)

Aaa / NR
NR

9.66
8.30

Total CMO 2,910,280.33 2.33%
2,978,704.00
2,951,252.80 2.92%

2,853,776.48
6,095.34

10.14%
(97,476.32)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

3.66
3.22

Execution Time: 6/1/2022 6:31:09 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 7
 

Page 97 of 526



Holdings Report
As of May 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CORPORATE

02665WCQ2 American Honda Finance Note
3.625% Due 10/10/2023

370,000.00 10/03/2018
3.64%

369,696.60
369,917.59

101.05
2.83%

373,874.27
1,900.10

1.33%
3,956.68

A3 / A-
A

1.36
1.31

24422EVN6 John Deere Capital Corp Note
0.45% Due 1/17/2024

205,000.00 03/01/2021
0.47%

204,854.45
204,917.44

96.44
2.70%

197,693.39
343.38

0.70%
(7,224.05)

A2 / A
A

1.63
1.60

69371RR24 Paccar Financial Corp Note
0.35% Due 2/2/2024

120,000.00 01/28/2021
0.39%

119,860.80
119,922.33

95.74
2.98%

114,892.20
138.83

0.41%
(5,030.13)

A1 / A+
NR

1.68
1.64

06051GJY6 Bank of America Corp Callable Note 
Cont 6/14/2023
0.523% Due 6/14/2024

190,000.00 06/07/2021
0.52%

190,012.80
190,006.63

97.13
2.31%

184,549.66
460.97

0.66%
(5,456.97)

A2 / A-
AA-

2.04
2.00

79466LAG9 Salesforce.com Inc Callable Note Cont 
7/15/2022
0.625% Due 7/15/2024

100,000.00 Various
0.75%

99,669.40
99,735.22

95.40
2.88%

95,397.50
236.11

0.34%
(4,337.72)

A2 / A+
NR

2.13
2.08

46647PAU0 JP Morgan Chase & Co Callable Note 1X 
7/23/2023
3.797% Due 7/23/2024

330,000.00 10/09/2019
2.17%

349,430.40
335,867.11

100.58
2.91%

331,909.05
4,455.15

1.19%
(3,958.06)

A2 / A-
AA-

2.15
2.03

69371RQ25 Paccar Financial Corp Note
2.15% Due 8/15/2024

145,000.00 08/08/2019
2.20%

144,679.55
144,858.63

98.15
3.02%

142,311.41
917.93

0.51%
(2,547.22)

A1 / A+
NR

2.21
2.12

94974BGA2 Wells Fargo Corp Note
3.3% Due 9/9/2024

350,000.00 09/11/2019
2.37%

365,197.00
356,927.43

100.52
3.06%

351,803.55
2,630.83

1.26%
(5,123.88)

A1 / BBB+
A+

2.28
2.16

78015K7C2 Royal Bank of Canada Note
2.25% Due 11/1/2024

355,000.00 12/05/2019
2.26%

354,815.40
354,908.78

97.85
3.18%

347,359.69
665.63

1.23%
(7,549.09)

A1 / A
AA-

2.42
2.32

90331HPL1 US Bank NA Callable Note Cont 
12/21/2024
2.05% Due 1/21/2025

430,000.00 01/16/2020
2.10%

429,084.10
429,516.23

97.10
3.20%

417,539.89
3,183.19

1.49%
(11,976.34)

A1 / AA-
AA-

2.65
2.52

002824BB5 Abbott Laboratories Callable Note Cont 
12/15/2024
2.95% Due 3/15/2025

240,000.00 01/28/2022
1.67%

248,580.00
247,597.56

99.95
2.97%

239,869.20
1,494.67

0.86%
(7,728.36)

A1 / AA-
NR

2.79
2.42

06367WB85 Bank of Montreal Note
1.85% Due 5/1/2025

264,000.00 07/23/2021
0.85%

273,720.48
271,534.43

95.35
3.54%

251,729.81
407.00

0.89%
(19,804.62)

A2 / A-
AA-

2.92
2.80

037833DT4 Apple Inc Callable Note Cont 4/11/2025
1.125% Due 5/11/2025

100,000.00 05/04/2020
1.16%

99,821.00
99,894.62

95.15
2.85%

95,149.30
62.50

0.34%
(4,745.32)

Aaa / AA+
NR

2.95
2.86

46647PCH7 JP Morgan Chase & Co Callable Note 
Cont 6/1/2024
0.824% Due 6/1/2025

205,000.00 05/24/2021
0.78%

205,267.30
205,178.28

94.72
2.84%

194,169.24
844.60

0.69%
(11,009.04)

A2 / A-
AA-

3.01
2.91

Execution Time: 6/1/2022 6:31:09 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 8
 

Page 98 of 526



Holdings Report
As of May 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CORPORATE

63743HFE7 National Rural Utilities Note
3.45% Due 6/15/2025

90,000.00 04/27/2022
3.46%

89,975.70
89,976.30

99.99
3.45%

89,993.16
232.88

0.32%
16.86

A2 / A-
A

3.04
2.86

06406HCQ0 Bank of New York Callable Note Cont 
10/18/2025
3.95% Due 11/18/2025

160,000.00 04/05/2022
3.20%

163,985.60
163,815.67

101.86
3.36%

162,973.12
228.22

0.58%
(842.55)

A1 / A
AA-

3.47
3.14

92826CAD4 Visa Inc Callable Note Cont 9/14/2025
3.15% Due 12/14/2025

300,000.00 01/28/2022
1.75%

314,679.00
313,345.56

100.15
3.10%

300,438.00
4,383.75

1.08%
(12,907.56)

Aa3 / AA-
NR

3.54
3.06

89114QCP1 Toronto Dominion Bank Note
0.75% Due 1/6/2026

150,000.00 02/08/2022
2.15%

142,146.00
142,757.36

90.40
3.62%

135,594.75
453.13

0.48%
(7,162.61)

A1 / A
AA-

3.61
3.48

06051GHY8 Bank of America Corp Callable Note 
Cont 2/13/2025
2.015% Due 2/13/2026

380,000.00 Various
1.39%

388,482.70
385,979.42

95.07
3.51%

361,261.06
2,297.10

1.29%
(24,718.36)

A2 / A-
AA-

3.71
3.50

78016EZQ3 Royal Bank of Canada Note
1.2% Due 4/27/2026

150,000.00 06/09/2021
1.13%

150,517.50
150,414.35

90.99
3.70%

136,477.50
170.00

0.48%
(13,936.85)

A1 / A
AA-

3.91
3.75

023135BX3 Amazon.com Inc Callable Note Cont 
4/12/2026
1% Due 5/12/2026

465,000.00 05/10/2021
1.09%

462,991.20
463,414.74

92.26
3.10%

429,023.88
245.42

1.52%
(34,390.86)

A1 / AA
AA-

3.95
3.82

91324PEC2 United Health Group Inc Callable Note 
Cont 4/15/2026
1.15% Due 5/15/2026

75,000.00 06/16/2021
1.06%

75,299.25
75,240.15

92.13
3.29%

69,095.55
38.33

0.25%
(6,144.60)

A3 / A+
A

3.96
3.81

89236TJK2 Toyota Motor Credit Corp Note
1.125% Due 6/18/2026

315,000.00 06/15/2021
1.13%

314,861.40
314,887.81

91.45
3.40%

288,061.83
1,604.53

1.03%
(26,825.98)

A1 / A+
A+

4.05
3.88

931142ER0 Wal-Mart Stores Callable Note Cont 
08/17/2026
1.05% Due 9/17/2026

75,000.00 09/08/2021
1.09%

74,858.25
74,878.20

91.82
3.10%

68,864.93
161.88

0.24%
(6,013.27)

Aa2 / AA
AA

4.30
4.13

26442CAS3 Duke Energy Carolinas Callable Note 
Cont 9/1/2026
2.95% Due 12/1/2026

300,000.00 01/13/2022
1.81%

315,051.00
313,855.48

97.59
3.53%

292,781.10
4,425.00

1.05%
(21,074.38)

Aa3 / A
NR

4.51
4.11

87612EBM7 Target Corp Callable Note Cont 
12/15/2026
1.95% Due 1/15/2027

170,000.00 01/19/2022
1.99%

169,711.00
169,731.36

94.49
3.24%

160,624.50
1,169.46

0.57%
(9,106.86)

A2 / A
A

4.63
4.33

808513BY0 Charles Schwab Corp Callable Note 
Cont 2/3/2027
2.45% Due 3/3/2027

205,000.00 03/01/2022
2.46%

204,946.90
204,949.46

95.27
3.54%

195,308.42
1,227.72

0.70%
(9,641.04)

A2 / A
A

4.76
4.41

Execution Time: 6/1/2022 6:31:09 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 9
 

Page 99 of 526



Holdings Report
As of May 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

CORPORATE

89114TZT2 Toronto-Dominion Bank Note
2.8% Due 3/10/2027

325,000.00 03/09/2022
2.97%

322,422.75
322,538.55

95.65
3.80%

310,860.55
2,047.50

1.11%
(11,678.00)

A1 / A
NR

4.78
4.38

084664CZ2 Berkshire Hathaway Callable Note Cont 
2/15/2027
2.3% Due 3/15/2027

345,000.00 03/07/2022
2.30%

344,934.45
344,937.25

96.02
3.20%

331,280.04
1,675.17

1.18%
(13,657.21)

Aa2 / AA
A+

4.79
4.46

89236TJZ9 Toyota Motor Credit Corp Note
3.05% Due 3/22/2027

195,000.00 03/17/2022
3.05%

194,982.45
194,983.13

97.71
3.57%

190,532.36
1,139.94

0.68%
(4,450.77)

A1 / A+
A+

4.81
4.40

665859AW4 Northern Trust Company Callable Note 
Cont 4/10/2027
4% Due 5/10/2027

125,000.00 05/05/2022
4.04%

124,797.50
124,799.94

102.52
3.43%

128,148.38
291.67

0.46%
3,348.44

A2 / A+
A+

4.95
4.39

91324PEG3 United Health Group Inc Callable Note 
Cont 4/15/2027
3.7% Due 5/15/2027

130,000.00 05/17/2022
3.69%

130,060.80
130,060.41

101.02
3.47%

131,326.52
146.98

0.47%
1,266.11

A3 / A+
A

4.96
4.43

Total Corporate 7,359,000.00 1.94%
7,439,392.73
7,411,347.42 3.21%

7,120,893.81
39,679.57

25.40%
(290,453.61)

A1 / A
A+

3.32
3.10

MONEY MARKET FUND

26200X845 Dreyfus Funds Inst'l Reserve Treasury 
#6541

65,433.63 Various
0.01%

65,433.63
65,433.63

1.00
0.01%

65,433.63
0.00

0.23%
0.00

Aaa / AAA
AAA

0.00
0.00

Total Money Market Fund 65,433.63 0.01%
65,433.63
65,433.63 0.01%

65,433.63
0.00

0.23%
0.00

Aaa / AAA
AAA

0.00
0.00

SUPRANATIONAL

4581X0DV7 Inter-American Dev Bank Note
0.875% Due 4/20/2026

305,000.00 04/13/2021
0.97%

303,603.10
303,914.46

92.57
2.91%

282,336.06
303.94

1.00%
(21,578.40)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

3.89
3.77

Total Supranational 305,000.00 0.97%
303,603.10
303,914.46 2.91%

282,336.06
303.94

1.00%
(21,578.40)

Aaa / AAA
AAA

3.89
3.77

US TREASURY

912828B66 US Treasury Note
2.75% Due 2/15/2024

170,000.00 Various
2.04%

178,532.97
171,888.55

100.54
2.43%

170,909.84
1,368.92

0.61%
(978.71)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

1.71
1.65

912828J27 US Treasury Note
2% Due 2/15/2025

500,000.00 08/31/2015
2.15%

493,634.81
498,176.64

98.20
2.69%

491,015.50
2,928.18

1.75%
(7,161.14)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.72
2.60

Execution Time: 6/1/2022 6:31:09 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 10
 

Page 100 of 526



Holdings Report
As of May 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

US TREASURY

912828ZF0 US Treasury Note
0.5% Due 3/31/2025

325,000.00 03/30/2021
0.64%

323,146.48
323,688.20

93.99
2.72%

305,474.65
275.27

1.08%
(18,213.55)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

2.84
2.78

912828M56 US Treasury Note
2.25% Due 11/15/2025

350,000.00 05/29/2019
2.13%

352,419.92
351,294.52

98.25
2.78%

343,888.65
363.79

1.22%
(7,405.87)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.46
3.29

912828R36 US Treasury Note
1.625% Due 5/15/2026

500,000.00 Various
2.23%

475,523.49
489,128.54

95.60
2.81%

477,988.50
375.34

1.70%
(11,140.04)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

3.96
3.79

91282CCP4 US Treasury Note
0.625% Due 7/31/2026

150,000.00 07/29/2021
0.72%

149,285.16
149,403.91

91.39
2.83%

137,085.90
313.36

0.49%
(12,318.01)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.17
4.05

912828YG9 US Treasury Note
1.625% Due 9/30/2026

100,000.00 12/18/2019
1.86%

98,507.81
99,046.97

95.14
2.82%

95,140.60
275.27

0.34%
(3,906.37)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.34
4.13

91282CCZ2 US Treasury Note
0.875% Due 9/30/2026

600,000.00 Various
1.13%

592,710.94
593,626.96

92.07
2.83%

552,445.20
889.34

1.96%
(41,181.76)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.34
4.19

912828ZB9 US Treasury Note
1.125% Due 2/28/2027

545,000.00 03/24/2020
0.75%

558,901.76
554,518.67

92.48
2.83%

504,018.73
1,549.47

1.79%
(50,499.94)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

4.75
4.55

91282CAH4 US Treasury Note
0.5% Due 8/31/2027

150,000.00 08/06/2021
0.94%

146,121.09
146,639.91

88.62
2.85%

132,931.65
189.54

0.47%
(13,708.26)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.25
5.10

91282CAL5 US Treasury Note
0.375% Due 9/30/2027

300,000.00 10/25/2021
1.33%

283,792.97
285,424.90

87.84
2.85%

263,531.40
190.57

0.94%
(21,893.50)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.34
5.20

9128283F5 US Treasury Note
2.25% Due 11/15/2027

300,000.00 11/07/2019
1.89%

307,957.03
305,414.26

96.93
2.86%

290,789.10
311.82

1.03%
(14,625.16)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.46
5.08

91282CBB6 US Treasury Note
0.625% Due 12/31/2027

625,000.00 03/29/2021
1.30%

597,875.98
602,581.73

88.46
2.88%

552,880.63
1,640.19

1.97%
(49,701.10)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.59
5.39

91282CBJ9 US Treasury Note
0.75% Due 1/31/2028

550,000.00 03/12/2021
1.28%

530,857.42
534,231.94

88.94
2.88%

489,177.70
1,378.80

1.74%
(45,054.24)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.67
5.46

91282CCV1 US Treasury Note
1.125% Due 8/31/2028

300,000.00 09/03/2021
1.10%

300,457.03
300,409.18

89.96
2.89%

269,894.40
852.92

0.96%
(30,514.78)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

6.26
5.93

912828YB0 US Treasury Note
1.625% Due 8/15/2029

350,000.00 05/28/2020
0.66%

380,009.77
373,472.72

92.15
2.84%

322,533.05
1,665.40

1.15%
(50,939.67)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

7.21
6.68

912828ZQ6 US Treasury Note
0.625% Due 5/15/2030

615,000.00 Various
0.90%

599,593.95
601,953.13

84.38
2.83%

518,906.25
177.56

1.84%
(83,046.88)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

7.96
7.64

Execution Time: 6/1/2022 6:31:09 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 11
 

Page 101 of 526



Holdings Report
As of May 31, 2022

Northern Cal. Cities Self Ins. Fund Long Term

Account #171

CUSIP Security Description Par Value/Units Purchase Date
Book Yield

Cost Value
Book Value

Mkt Price
Mkt YTM

Market Value
Accrued Int.

% of Port.
Gain/Loss

Moody/S&P 
Fitch

Maturity
Duration

US TREASURY

91282CAV3 US Treasury Note
0.875% Due 11/15/2030

625,000.00 Various
1.30%

600,808.59
603,983.17

85.40
2.83%

533,740.00
252.63

1.89%
(70,243.17)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

8.47
8.02

Total US Treasury 7,055,000.00 1.33%
6,970,137.17
6,984,883.90 2.81%

6,452,351.75
14,998.37

22.94%
(532,532.15)

Aaa / AA+
AAA

5.20
4.97

TOTAL PORTFOLIO 29,434,419.90 1.69%
29,513,697.22
29,468,305.42 2.95%

28,085,264.73
106,712.31

100.00%
(1,383,040.69)

Aa1 / AA
AAA

4.11
3.65

TOTAL MARKET VALUE PLUS ACCRUED 28,191,977.04

Execution Time: 6/1/2022 6:31:09 PMChandler Asset Management - CONFIDENTIAL Page 12
 

Page 102 of 526



4/15/22, 8:38 AM Untitled Page

https://laif.sco.ca.gov/Result.aspx 1/1

 
 

BETTY T. YEE
 

California State Controller
 

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
REMITTANCE ADVICE

 
 

Agency Name
NO CAL CITIES SELF INSUR FUND

 

Account Number 35-11-001

 
As of 04/15/2022, your Local Agency Investment Fund account has been directly credited
with the interest earned on your deposits for the quarter ending 03/31/2022.

Earnings Ratio .00000875657176851

Interest Rate 0.32%

Dollar Day Total $ 1,388,200,704.49

Quarter End Principal Balance $ 15,576,655.55

Quarterly Interest Earned $ 12,155.88
 
 

 
Page 103 of 526



NCCSIF 
 
 Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
 c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
 Corporate Insurance License No. 0C36861 

Main Location: 2180 Harvard Street, Suite 460, Sacramento, CA 95815  *  (916) 643-2700 * Facsimile: (916) 643-2750 
Accounting Location: Mr. James Marta, James Marta & Company, 701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3, Sacramento, CA  95825 * (916) 993-9494 

A Joint Powers Authority 

 
Members: Cities of Anderson, Auburn, Colusa, Corning, Dixon, Elk Grove, Folsom, Galt, Gridley, Ione, Jackson, Lincoln, 

Marysville, Nevada City, Oroville, Town of Paradise, Placerville, Red Bluff, Rio Vista, Rocklin, Willows and Yuba City. 

MARKET
VALUE

CASH:
(1) Tri Counties Checking 237,640$           
(2) Local Agency Inv Fund (LAIF) 15,698,656$      

Total Cash 15,936,295$      

INVESTMENTS (Unrestricted):

(3) Chandler Investments
Account no. 170 34,381,363$      
Account no. 171 28,405,806$      

Total Unrestricted Investments 62,787,169$      

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 78,723,464$      

(1) This consists of one checking account and two pass-thru accounts (liability and
workers comp claims).                 

(2) The LAIF rate of return as of quarter ended March 31, 2022 0.365%

(3) See attached Investment Activity Reports.

THIS PORTFOLIO IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH NCCSIF'S INVESTMENT POLICY AND IS LIQUID
ENOUGH TO MEET EXPECTED CASH FLOW NEEDS OVER THE NEXT SIX MONTHS.
THE QUARTERLY REPORT IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT CODE §53646 .

Jen Lee, Treasurer

INVESTMENT REPORT
FOR THE QUARTER ENDING MARCH 31, 2022

Date
 

 
 

May 4, 2022

 
Page 104 of 526



Agency  F/T Firefighters Volunteer  FF's
Adjusted Staffing 

for Pricing

2022 Standard 

List Price

2022 Standard 

Price w/50% 

City of Auburn 14 5 15 $6,169.00 $3,084.50

City of Colusa 5 20 7 $4,635.00 $2,317.50

City of Dixon 22 5 23 $8,547.00 $4,273.50

City of Jackson 6 12 7 $4,635.00 $2,317.50

City of Lincoln   16 8PT+4V 21 $8,547.00 $4,273.50

City of Marysville 15 0 15 $5,106.00 $2,553.00

City of Oroville 15 0 15 $6,169.00 $3,084.50

City of Red Bluff 14 12 15 $6,169.00 $3,084.50

City of Rio Vista  11 8 12 $6,856.00 $3,428.00

City of Rocklin 31 8 32 $9,540.00 $4,770.00

City of Willows 5 10 6 $4,635.00 $2,317.50

$71,008.00 $35,504.00

Fire MOU ‐ current pricing less 

50% discount (auto‐renewing 

until cancellation)

 
Page 105 of 526



Company State RMA
Num Sworn 

Officers
LE Policy 

DTB Status

LE Policy 
Manual Start 

Date

LE Policy 
Manual Renewal 

Date

LE Policy 
DTB Start 

Date

LE Policy 
DTB 

Renewal 
Date 2019 Pricing

2020 
Pricing

2021 
Pricing 2022 Pricing

Anderson PD-CA CA NCCSIF 18 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 6/1/2009 7/1/2020               6,248           6,435      6,627.00        6,826.00 
Auburn PD-CA CA NCCSIF 20 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 12/7/2015 7/1/2020               6,248           6,435      6,627.00        6,826.00 
Colusa PD-CA CA NCCSIF 9 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 7/3/2018 7/1/2020               3,983           4,104      4,227.00        4,354.00 
Corning PD-CA CA NCCSIF 15 Yes 3/16/2005 7/1/2020 6/1/2010 7/1/2020               5,383           5,544      5,712.00        5,882.00 
Dixon PD-CA CA NCCSIF 24 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 8/1/2008 7/1/2020               6,248           6,435      6,627.00        6,826.00 
Elk Grove PD-CA CA NCCSIF 133 Yes 6/28/2005 7/1/2020 6/20/2018 7/1/2020             10,960         11,289    11,628.00      11,977.00 
Folsom PD-CA CA NCCSIF 75 Yes 5/15/1998 7/1/2020 5/1/2010 7/1/2020             10,960         11,289    11,628.00      11,977.00 
Galt PD-CA CA NCCSIF 38 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 8/1/2008 7/1/2020               7,792           8,025      8,265.00        8,513.00 
Gridley PD-CA CA NCCSIF 14 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 8/1/2009 7/1/2020               5,383           5,544      5,712.00        5,882.00 
Ione PD-CA CA NCCSIF 6 Yes 1/31/2007 7/1/2020 6/18/2014 7/1/2020               3,407           3,510      3,615.00        3,723.00 
Jackson PD-CA CA NCCSIF 11 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 7/3/2018 7/1/2020               3,983           4,104      4,227.00        4,354.00 
Lincoln PD-CA CA NCCSIF 22 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 5/1/2007 7/1/2020               6,248           6,435      6,627.00        6,826.00 
Marysville PD-CA CA NCCSIF 18 7/10/1998 7/1/2020               6,248           6,435      6,627.00        6,826.00 
Nevada City PD-CA CA NCCSIF 9 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 7/1/2009 7/1/2020               3,983           4,104      4,227.00        4,354.00 
Oroville PD-CA CA NCCSIF 25 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 8/1/2009 7/1/2020               6,248           6,435      6,627.00        6,826.00 
Paradise PD-CA CA NCCSIF 23 Yes 11/3/2002 7/1/2020 6/1/2008 7/1/2020               6,248           6,435      6,627.00        6,826.00 
Placerville PD-CA CA NCCSIF 22 Yes 9/2/2002 7/1/2020 3/1/2009 7/1/2020               6,248           6,435      6,627.00        6,826.00 
Red Bluff PD-CA CA NCCSIF 25 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 9/1/2008 7/1/2020               6,248           6,435      6,627.00        6,826.00 
Rio Vista PD-CA CA NCCSIF 16 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 7/1/2008 7/1/2020               6,248           6,435                 -                     -   
Rocklin PD-CA CA NCCSIF 58 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 7/1/2009 7/1/2020             10,960         11,289    11,628.00      11,977.00 
Yuba City PD-CA CA NCCSIF 64 Yes 7/10/1998 7/1/2020 3/11/2015 7/1/2020             10,960         11,289    11,628.00      11,977.00 

          140,234       144,441       142,140    146,404.00 

MOU is auto renewing 
at 3% increase year 
over year until cancelled 

 
Page 106 of 526



Crowe LLP
Independent Member Crowe Global

401 East Las Olas Blvd., Suite 1100
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301-4230 
Tel  954-202-8600
Fax  954-202-8639
www.crowe.com

June 9, 2022

Marcus Beverly
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
2150 Harvard Street, Suite 460 
Sacramento, California 95815-4320

Dear Mr. Beverly:

This letter confirms the arrangements for Crowe LLP (“Crowe” or “us” or “we” or “our”) to provide the 
professional services discussed in this letter to Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (“you”, 
“your” or “Client”). The attached Crowe Engagement Terms, and any other attachments thereto, are 
integral parts of this letter, and such terms are incorporated herein.

AUDIT SERVICES

Our Responsibilities

We will audit and report on the financial statements of the Client for the year ending June 30, 2022. 
 
In addition to our report on the financial statements, we plan to evaluate the presentation of the following 
supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole, and to report on whether this 
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as 
a whole.

 Combining Statement of Net Position and Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change 
in Net Position

In addition to our report on the financial statements, we also plan to perform specified procedures in order 
to describe in our report whether the following required supplementary information is presented in 
accordance with applicable guidelines.  However, we will not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on this information due to our limited procedures. 

 Management’s Discussion and Analysis
 Reconciliation of Claims Liability by Type of Contract
 Claims Development Information

The objective of the audit is the expression of an opinion on the financial statements. We will plan and 
perform the audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, and the standards for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by 
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we obtain reasonable, rather 
than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement 
whether caused by error or fraud. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 107 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 2 June 9, 2022

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Because of inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with applicable standards. An audit is not designed to 
detect error or fraud that is immaterial to the financial statements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment including the 
assessment of the risks that the financial statements could be misstated by an amount that we believe 
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of these financial statements. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. As required by the standards, we will maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit.

In making our risk assessments, we obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Client’s internal control. However, we will communicate 
in writing to those charged with governance and management concerning any significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have 
identified during the audit. We will communicate to management other deficiencies in internal control 
identified during the audit that have not been communicated to management by other parties and that, in 
our professional judgment, are of sufficient importance to merit management’s attention. We will also 
communicate certain matters related to the conduct of the audit to those charged with governance, 
including (1) fraud involving senior management, and fraud (whether caused by senior management or 
other employees) that causes a material misstatement of the financial statements, (2) illegal acts that 
come to our attention (unless they are clearly inconsequential) (3) disagreements with management and 
other significant difficulties encountered in performing the audit and (4) various matters related to the 
Client‘s accounting policies and financial statements. Our engagement is not designed to address legal or 
regulatory matters, which matters should be discussed by you with your legal counsel.

As part of our audit, we will conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Client's ability to continue 
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We expect to issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the Client’s financial statements. Our 
report will be addressed to those charged with governance of the Client. Circumstances may arise in 
which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion, add an emphasis of matter or other matter paragraph, 
or withdraw from the engagement.

In addition to our report on the financial statements and supplemental information, we plan to issue the 
following reports:

 Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards — The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. 
This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Client’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 108 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 3 June 9, 2022

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will also perform tests of your compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts 
and grants. However, because of the concept of reasonable assurance and because we will not perform 
a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material errors, irregularities, or illegal acts, 
including fraud or defalcations, may exist and not be detected by us. However, the objective of our audit 
of compliance relative to the financial statements will not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance 
with such provisions, and we will not express such an opinion. We will advise you, however, of any 
matters of that nature that come to our attention, unless they are clearly inconsequential.

Our audit and work product are intended for the benefit and use of the Client only. The audit will not be 
planned or conducted in contemplation of reliance by any other party or with respect to any specific 
transaction and is not intended to benefit or influence any other party. Therefore, items of possible 
interest to a third party may not be specifically addressed or matters may exist that could be assessed 
differently by a third party. 

The working papers for this engagement are the property of Crowe and constitute confidential 
information. 

However, we may be requested to make certain working papers available to your oversight agency or 
grantors pursuant to authority given to them by law, regulation, or contract. If requested, access to such 
working papers will be provided under the supervision of our personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we 
may provide photocopies of selected working papers to your oversight agency or grantors. The working 
papers for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of three years after the date our report is 
issued or for any additional period requested by the oversight agency or pass-through entity. If we are 
aware that a federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we 
will contact the party contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the working papers.

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our most recent peer review 
report, which accompanies this letter. 

The Client’s Responsibilities

The Client’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Management is also responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. 

The Client’s management is also responsible for complying with applicable laws, regulations, contracts 
and grants and such responsibility extends to identifying the requirements and designing internal control 
policies and procedures to provide reasonable assurance that compliance is achieved. Client's 
management is responsible for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance 
with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that the auditor reports. Additionally, 
it is management’s responsibility to follow up and take corrective action on reported audit findings, to 
establish and maintain a process for tracking the status of findings and recommendations, and to prepare 
a summary schedule of prior audit findings, which should be available for our review, and a corrective 
action plan. 

Management has the responsibility to adopt sound accounting policies, maintain an adequate and 
efficient accounting system, to safeguard assets, and to design and implement programs and controls to 
prevent and detect fraud. Management’s judgments are typically based on its knowledge and experience 
about past and current events and its expected courses of action. Management’s responsibility for 
financial reporting includes establishing a process to prepare the accounting estimates included in the 
financial statements.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 109 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 4 June 9, 2022

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Client's ability to continue as a 
going concern for one year from the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

Management is responsible for providing to us, on a timely basis, all information of which management is 
aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, such as 
records, documentation, and other matters. Management is also responsible for providing such other 
additional information we may request for the purpose of the audit, and unrestricted access to persons 
within the Client from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. Additionally, those 
charged with governance are responsible for informing us of their views about the risks of fraud within the 
Client, and their knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Client.

Management is responsible for adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements 
related to accounts or disclosures. As part of our audit process, we will request from management written 
confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit, including that the effects 
of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the audit are immaterial, both individually and 
in the aggregate, to the financial statements, and to the Client’s compliance with the requirements of its 
Federal programs. Management acknowledges the importance of management’s representations and 
responses to our inquiries, and that they will be utilized as part of the evidential matter we will rely on in 
forming our opinion. Because of the importance of such information to our engagement, you agree to 
waive any claim against Crowe and its personnel for any liability and costs relating to or arising from any 
inaccuracy or incompleteness of information provided to us for purposes of this engagement.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information identified above in 
accordance with the applicable criteria. As part of our audit process, we will request from management 
certain written representations regarding management’s responsibilities in relation to the supplementary 
information presented, including but not limited to its fair presentation in accordance with the applicable 
criteria, the method of measurement and presentation and any significant assumptions or interpretations 
underlying the supplementary information. In addition, it is management’s responsibility to include the 
auditor’s report on supplementary information in any document that contains the supplementary 
information and that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary information. It is also 
management’s responsibility to present the supplementary information with the audited financial 
statements or, if the supplementary information will not be presented with the audited financial 
statements, to make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the 
supplementary information no later than the date of issuance by Client of the supplementary information 
and the auditor’s report thereon.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the required supplementary information identified above 
in accordance with the applicable guidelines.  We will request from management certain written 
representations regarding management’s responsibilities in relation to the required supplementary 
information presented, including but not limited to whether it has been measured and presented in 
accordance with prescribed guidelines, the method of measurement and presentation and any significant 
assumptions or interpretations underlying the supplementary information.

Management is responsible for report distribution responsibilities, including determining which officials or 
organizations will receive the report and making the report available to the public as applicable when the 
audit organization is responsible for report distribution.

OTHER SERVICES

Financial Statement Preparation

The Client will provide us with the necessary information to assist in the preparation of the draft financial 
statements including the notes thereto. We are relying on the Client to provide us with the detailed trial 
balance, note disclosure information and any other relevant report information in a timely fashion and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 110 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 5 June 9, 2022

ensure the data is complete and accurate. Management is solely responsible for the presentation of the 
financial statements.

With respect to the above other services, we will perform the services in accordance with applicable 
professional standards. We, in our sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to do any 
procedure or take any action that could be construed as making management decisions or assuming 
management responsibilities. In connection with performing the above other services, you agree to: 
assume all management responsibilities including making all management decisions; oversee the service 
by designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who possesses suitable skill, 
knowledge, and/or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept 
responsibility for the results of the services. 

FEES

Our fees are outlined below. Certain internal technology charges will be billed per hour of professional 
time or a flat fee. Internal technology charges reflect our estimate of the costs for technology and related 
support on this engagement. Our invoices are due and payable upon receipt. Invoices that are not paid 
within 30 days of receipt are subject to a monthly interest charge of one percent per month or the highest 
interest rate allowed by law, whichever is less, which we may elect to waive at our sole discretion, plus 
costs of collection including reasonable attorneys’ fees. If any amounts invoiced remain unpaid 30 days 
after the invoice date, you agree that Crowe may, in its sole discretion, cease work until all such amounts 
are paid or terminate this engagement.

Description of Services Fee Amount
Audit of the Client’s financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2022 $28,250

We will invoice you as our services are rendered.

PROVISION FOR THREE-YEAR PROPOSAL

We have agreed to the following fees for the next two subsequent years as follows:

Audit of the Client’s financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2023  $28,250
Audit of the Client’s financial statements for the year ending June 30, 2024 $28,250

Because each year is a separate engagement and this three-year period does not constitute a continuous 
engagement, we will require execution of a new engagement letter for each subsequent year listed 
above. However, we agree to the fees listed above for each year unless we both agree in writing to a 
modification. In recognition of the significant start up investment incurred by Crowe during the initial year 
of the three-year period, should you terminate Crowe during the three year period for reasons other than 
failure of Crowe to perform, you agree to pay our fees and expenses for services performed up to the 
date of termination (which will be immediately due and payable) and a termination fee of 25% of the next 
year’s fee if terminated after year one or 15% of the next year’s fee if terminated after year two.

The fees outlined above are based on certain assumptions. Those assumptions may be incorrect due to 
incomplete or inaccurate information provided, or circumstances may arise under which we must perform 
additional work, which in either case will require additional billings for our services. Examples of such 
circumstances include, but are not limited to:

 Changing service requirements
 New professional standards or regulatory requirements
 New financial statement disclosures
 Work caused due to the identification of, and management’s correction of, inappropriate 

application of accounting pronouncements
 Erroneous or incomplete accounting records

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 111 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 6 June 9, 2022

 Evidence of material weakness or significant deficiencies in internal controls 
 Substantial increases in the number of significant deficiencies in internal controls
 Regulatory examination matters
 Change in your organizational structure or size due to merger and acquisition activity or other 

events
 Change in your controls 
 New or unusual transactions
 Agreed-upon level of preparation and assistance from your personnel not provided
 Numerous revisions to your information
 Lack of availability of appropriate Client personnel during fieldwork.

Additionally, to accommodate requests to reschedule fieldwork without reasonable notice, additional 
billings for our services could be required, and our assigned staffing and ability to meet agreed upon 
deadlines could be impacted.

Due to such potential changes in circumstance, we reserve the right to revise our fees. However, if such a 
change in circumstances arises or if some other significant change occurs that causes our fees to exceed 
our estimate, we will advise management. 

Our fees are exclusive of taxes or similar charges, as well as customs, duties or tariffs, imposed in 
respect of the Services, any work product or any license, all of which Client agrees to pay if applicable or 
if they become applicable (other than taxes imposed on Crowe’s income generally), without deduction 
from any fees or expenses invoiced to Client by Crowe. 

The Client and Crowe agree that the Client may periodically request Crowe to provide additional services 
for accounting and reporting advice regarding completed transactions and potential or proposed 
transactions. The fees for such additional services will be based on Crowe’s hourly billing rates plus 
expenses or as mutually agreed upon between the Client and Crowe.

To facilitate Crowe’s presence at Client’s premises, Client will provide Crowe with internet access while 
on Client’s premises. Crowe will access the internet using a secure virtual private network. Crowe will be 
responsible for all internet activity performed by its personnel while on Client’s premises. In the event 
Client does not provide Crowe with internet access while on Client’s premises, Client will reimburse 
Crowe for the cost of internet access through other means while on Client’s site. 

MISCELLANEOUS

In delivering services to Client, Crowe may use subsidiaries owned and controlled by Crowe within and 
outside the United States. Crowe subsidiaries are subject to the same information security policies and 
requirements as Crowe LLP and will meet the requirements set forth in the confidentiality and data 
protection provisions of this Agreement. For purposes of this Miscellaneous section, the Acceptance 
section below, and all of the Crowe Engagement Terms, “Client” will mean the entity(ies) defined in the 
first paragraph of this letter and will also include all related parents, subsidiaries, and affiliates of Client 
who may receive or claim reliance upon any Crowe deliverable.

Crowe will provide the services to Client under this Agreement as an independent contractor and not as 
Client’s partner, agent, employee, or joint venturer under this Agreement.  Neither Crowe nor Client will 
have any right, power or authority to bind the other party.

This engagement letter agreement (the “Agreement”) reflects the entire agreement between the parties 
relating to the services (or any reports, deliverables or other work product) covered by this Agreement. 
The engagement letter and any attachments (including without limitation the attached Crowe Engagement 
Terms) are to be construed as a single document, with the provisions of each section applicable 
throughout. This Agreement may not be amended or varied except by a written document signed by each 
party. No provision of this Agreement will be deemed waived, unless such waiver will be in writing and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 112 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 7 June 9, 2022

signed by the party against which the waiver is sought to be enforced. It replaces and supersedes any 
other proposals, correspondence, agreements and understandings, whether written or oral, relating to the 
services covered by this letter, and each party agrees that in entering this Agreement, it has not relied on 
any oral or written representations, statements or other information not contained in or incorporated into 
this Agreement. Any non-disclosure or other confidentiality agreement is replaced and superseded by this 
Agreement. Each party shall remain obligated to the other party under all provisions of this Agreement 
that expressly or by their nature extend beyond and survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. If any provision (in whole or in part) of this Agreement is found unenforceable or invalid, this 
will not affect the remainder of the provision or any other provisions in this Agreement, all of which will 
continue in effect as if the stricken portion had not been included. This Agreement may be executed in 
two or more actual, scanned, emailed, or electronically copied counterparts, each and all of which 
together are one and the same instrument. Accurate transmitted copies (transmitted copies are 
reproduced documents that are sent via mail, delivery, scanning, email, photocopy, facsimile or other 
process) of the executed Agreement or signature pages only (whether handwritten or electronic 
signature), will be considered and accepted by each party as documents equivalent to original documents 
and will be deemed valid, binding and enforceable by and against all parties. This Agreement, including 
any dispute arising out of or related to this Agreement and the parties’ relationship generally, will be 
governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois applicable to agreements 
made and wholly performed in that state, without giving effect to its conflict of laws rules to the extent 
those rules would require applying another jurisdiction’s laws.

* * * * *

We are pleased to have this opportunity to serve you, and we look forward to a continuing relationship.  If 
the terms of this Agreement and the attached Crowe Engagement Terms are acceptable to you, please 
sign below and return one copy of this letter at your earliest convenience.  Please contact us with any 
questions or concerns.

(Signature Page Follows)

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 113 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 8 June 9, 2022

ACCEPTANCE

I have reviewed the arrangements outlined above and in the attached “Crowe Engagement Terms,” and I 
accept on behalf of the Client the terms and conditions as stated. By signing below, I represent and 
warrant that I am authorized by Client to accept the terms and conditions as stated.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Client and Crowe have duly executed this Agreement effective the date first 
written above.

Crowe LLP and the Engagement Authorized Signer below are licensed or otherwise authorized by the 
California Board of Accountancy.

 Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund Crowe LLP

ICLM_ExtSignature:1

Signature

ICLM_IntSignature:1

Signature

Ext1Text47176|Client Signatory Name|ICM-NO-ATTRIBUTE|1|0|0

Printed Name

Joseph Kowalczyk

Printed Name

Ext1Text12890|Client Signatory Title|ICM-NO-ATTRIBUTE|1|0|0

Title

Partner

Title

ExtDate1

Date

IntDate1

Date

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

June 10, 2022

Program Manager

June 15, 2022

Marcus Beverly

 
Page 114 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 9 June 9, 2022

Crowe Engagement Terms

Crowe wants Client to understand the terms under which Crowe provides its services to Client and the 
basis under which Crowe determines its fees. These terms are part of the Agreement and apply to all 
services described in the Agreement as well as all other services provided to Client (collectively, the 
“Services”), unless and until a separate written agreement is executed by the parties for separate 
services. Any advice provided by Crowe is not intended to be, and is not, investment advice. 

CLIENT’S ASSISTANCE – For Crowe to provide Services effectively and efficiently, Client agrees to 
provide Crowe timely with information requested and to make available to Crowe any personnel, systems, 
premises, records, or other information as reasonably requested by Crowe to perform the Services. 
Access to such personnel and information are key elements for Crowe’s successful completion of 
Services and determination of fees. If for any reason this does not occur, a revised fee to reflect 
additional time or resources required by Crowe will be mutually agreed. Client agrees Crowe will have no 
responsibility for any delays related to a delay in providing such information to Crowe. Such information 
will be accurate and complete, and Client will inform Crowe of all significant tax, accounting and financial 
reporting matters of which Client is aware. 

PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS – As a regulated professional services firm, Crowe must follow 
professional standards when applicable, including the Code of Professional Conduct of the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”). Thus, if circumstances arise that, in Crowe’s 
professional judgment, prevent it from completing the engagement, Crowe retains the right to take any 
course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or issue 
other work product or terminating the engagement.

REPORTS – Any information, advice, recommendations or other content of any memoranda, reports, 
deliverables, work product, presentations, or other communications Crowe provides under this Agreement 
(“Reports”), other than Client’s original information, are for Client’s internal use only, consistent with the 
purpose of the Services. Client will not rely on any draft Report. Unless required by an audit or other 
attestation professional standard, Crowe will not be required to update any final Report for circumstances 
of which we become aware or events occurring after delivery. 

CONFIDENTIALITY – Except as otherwise permitted by this Agreement or as agreed in writing, neither 
Crowe nor Client may disclose to third parties the contents of this Agreement or any information provided 
by or on behalf of the other that ought reasonably to be treated as confidential and/or proprietary. Client 
use of any Crowe work product will be limited to its stated purpose and to Client business use only. 
However, Client and Crowe each agree that either party may disclose such information to the extent that 
it: (i) is or becomes public other than through a breach of this Agreement, (ii) is subsequently received by 
the recipient from a third party who, to the recipient's knowledge, owes no obligation of confidentiality to 
the disclosing party with respect to that information, (iii) was known to the recipient at the time of 
disclosure or is thereafter created independently, (iv) is disclosed as necessary to enforce the recipient's 
rights under this Agreement, or (v) must be disclosed under applicable law, regulations, legal process or 
professional standards. 

USE OF SUBCONTRACTORS FOR SERVICE DELIVERY – Crowe may engage third-party 
subcontractors in delivering Services to Client. Third-party subcontractors are not owned or controlled by 
Crowe (including without limitation Crowe Global member firms). If Crowe engages such a subcontractor 
to deliver Services to Client, Crowe will execute an agreement for the protection of Client’s confidential 
information consistent with the provisions of this Agreement. Crowe will be solely responsible for the 
provision of Services (including those provided by subcontractors) and for the protection of Client’s 
confidential information. The limitations in this Agreement on Client’s remedies will also apply to any 
subcontractors.

USE OF THIRD-PARTIES IN CROWE OPERATIONS – Crowe uses third-party providers in the ordinary 
course of Crowe business operations. Third-party providers used in the ordinary course of Crowe 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 115 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 10 June 9, 2022

business operations include without limitation email providers, cyber-security providers, and data hosting 
centers. Crowe also uses its subsidiaries (owned and controlled by Crowe) within and outside the United 
States for various administrative and support roles. Crowe subsidiaries and any third-party providers used 
in the ordinary course of Crowe business operations will meet the confidentiality and data protection 
requirements in this Agreement. The limitations in this Agreement on Client’s remedies will also apply to 
any such third-party providers and Crowe subsidiaries.

CLIENT-REQUIRED CLOUD USAGE – If Client requests that Crowe access files, documents or other 
information in a cloud-based or web-accessed hosting service or other third-party system accessed via the 
internet, including, without limitation iCloud, Dropbox, Google Docs, Google Drive, a data room hosted by 
a third party, or a similar service or website (collectively, “Cloud Storage”), Client will confirm with any third 
parties assisting with or hosting the Cloud Storage that either such third party or Client (and not Crowe) is 
responsible for complying with all applicable laws relating to the Cloud Storage and any information 
contained in the Cloud Storage, providing Crowe access to the information in the Cloud Storage, and 
protecting the information in the Cloud Storage from any unauthorized access, including without limitation 
unauthorized access to the information when in transit to or from the Cloud Storage. Client represents that 
it has authority to provide Crowe access to information in the Cloud Storage and that providing Crowe with 
such access complies with all applicable laws, regulations, and duties owed to third parties.

DATA PROTECTION – If Crowe holds or uses Client information that can be linked to specific individuals 
who are Client’s customers ("Personal Data"), Crowe will treat it as confidential as described above and 
comply with applicable US state and federal law and professional regulations (including, for financial 
institution clients, the objectives of the Interagency Guidelines Establishing Information Security 
Standards) in disclosing or using such information to carry out the Services. The parties acknowledge and 
understand that while Crowe is a service provider as defined by the California Consumer Privacy Act of 
2018 and processes information on behalf of Client and pursuant to this Agreement, Crowe retains its 
independence as required by applicable law and professional standards for purposes of providing attest 
services and other related professional services. Crowe will not (1) sell Personal Data to a third party, or 
(2) retain, use or disclose Personal Data for any purpose other than for (a) performing the Services and 
its obligations on this Agreement, (b) as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, (c) to detect security 
incidents and protect against fraud or illegal activity, (d) to enhance and develop our products and 
services, including through machine learning and other similar methods and (e) as necessary to comply 
with applicable law or professional standards. Crowe has implemented and will maintain physical, 
electronic and procedural safeguards reasonably designed to (i) protect the security, confidentiality and 
integrity of the Personal Data, (ii) prevent unauthorized access to or use of the Personal Data, and (iii) 
provide proper disposal of the Personal Data (collectively, the “Safeguards”). Client warrants (i) that it has 
the authority to provide the Personal Data to Crowe in connection with the Services, (ii) that Client has 
processed and provided the Personal Data to Crowe in accordance with applicable law, and (iii) will limit 
the Personal Data provided to Crowe to Personal Data necessary to perform the Services. To provide the 
Services, Client may also need to provide Crowe with access to Personal Data consisting of protected 
health information, financial account numbers, Social Security or other government-issued identification 
numbers, or other data that, if disclosed without authorization, would trigger notification requirements 
under applicable law ("Restricted Personal Data"). In the event Client provides Crowe access to 
Restricted Personal Data, Client will consult with Crowe on appropriate measures (consistent with legal 
requirements and professional standards applicable to Crowe) to protect the Restricted Personal Data, 
such as: deleting or masking unnecessary information before making it available to Crowe, using 
encryption when transferring it to Crowe, or providing it to Crowe only during on-site review on Client’s 
site. Client will provide Crowe with Restricted Personal Data only in accordance with mutually agreed 
protective measures. Crowe and Client will each allow opportunistic TLS encryption to provide for secure 
email communication, and each party will notify the other in writing if it deactivates opportunistic TLS 
encryption. If Client fails to allow opportunistic TLS encryption, Client agrees that each party may use 
unencrypted electronic media to correspond or transmit information, and Client further agrees that such 
use of unencrypted media will not in itself constitute a breach of any confidentiality or other obligation 
relating to this Agreement. Otherwise, Client and Crowe agree each may use unencrypted electronic 
media to correspond or transmit information and such use will not in itself constitute a breach of any 
confidentiality obligations under this Agreement. Crowe will reasonably cooperate with Client in 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 116 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 11 June 9, 2022

responding to or addressing any request from a consumer or data subject, a data privacy authority with 
jurisdiction, or the Client, as necessary to enable Client to comply with its obligations under applicable 
data protection laws and to the extent related to Personal Data processed by Crowe. Client will promptly 
reimburse Crowe for any out-of-pocket expenses and professional time (at Crowe’s then-current hourly 
rates) incurred in connection with providing such cooperation. Client will provide prompt written notice to 
Crowe (with sufficient detailed instructions) of any request or other act that is required to be performed by 
Crowe. As appropriate, Crowe shall promptly delete or procure the deletion of the Personal Data, after the 
cessation of any Services involving the processing of Client’s Personal Data, or otherwise aggregate or 
de-identify the Personal Data in such a way as to reasonably prevent reidentification. Notwithstanding the 
forgoing, Crowe may retain a copy of the Personal Data as permitted by applicable law or professional 
standards, provided that such Personal Data remain subject to the terms of this Agreement. If Crowe 
uses a third-party provider, Crowe will include terms substantially similar to those set forth in this Data 
Protection Paragraph into an agreement with the provider.

GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATION COMPLIANCE – If and to the extent that Client provides 
personal data to Crowe subject to the European Union General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”), 
then in addition to the requirements of the above Data Protection section, this section will apply to such 
personal data (“EU Personal Data”). The parties agree that for purposes of processing the EU Personal 
Data, (a) Client will be the “Data Controller” as defined by the GDPR, meaning the organization that 
determines the purposes and means of processing the EU Personal Data; (b) Crowe will be the “Data 
Processor” as defined by GDPR, meaning the organization that processes the EU Personal Data on 
behalf of and under the instructions of the Data Controller; or (c) the parties will be classified as otherwise 
designated by a supervisory authority with jurisdiction. Client and Crowe each agree to comply with the 
GDPR requirements applicable to its respective role. Crowe has implemented and will maintain technical 
and organizational security safeguards reasonably designed to protect the security, confidentiality and 
integrity of the EU Personal Data. Client represents it has secured all required rights and authority, 
including consents and notices, to provide such EU Personal Data to Crowe, including without limitation 
authority to transfer such EU Personal Data to the U.S. or other applicable Country or otherwise make the 
EU Personal Data available to Crowe, for the duration of and purpose of Crowe providing the Services. 
The types of EU Personal Data to be processed include name, contact information, title, and other EU 
Personal Data that is transferred to Crowe in connection with the Services. The EU Personal Data relates 
to the data subject categories of individuals connected to Client, Client customers, Client vendors, and 
Client affiliates or subsidiaries (“Data Subjects”). Crowe will process the EU Personal Data for the 
following purpose: (x) to provide the Services in accordance with this Agreement, (y) to comply with other 
documented reasonable instructions provided by Client, and (z) to comply with applicable law. In the 
event of a Crowe breach incident in connection with EU Personal Data in the custody or control of Crowe, 
Crowe will promptly notify Client upon knowledge that a breach incident has occurred. Client has 
instructed Crowe not to contact any Data Subjects directly, unless required by applicable law. In the event 
that a supervisory authority with jurisdiction makes the determination that Crowe is a data controller, 
Client will reasonably cooperate with Crowe to enable Crowe to comply with its obligations under GDPR. 

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY - Any Deliverables, works, inventions, working papers, or other work 
product conceived, made or created by Crowe in rendering the Services under this Agreement (“Work 
Product”), and all intellectual property rights in such Work Product will be owned exclusively by Crowe. 
Further, Crowe will retain exclusive ownership or control of all intellectual property rights in any ideas, 
concepts, methodologies, data, software, designs, utilities, tools, models, techniques, systems, Reports, 
or other know-how that it develops, owns or licenses in connection with this Agreement ("Materials"). The 
foregoing ownership will be without any duty of accounting.

DATA USAGE AND AGGREGATIONS - Client hereby acknowledges and agrees that Crowe may, in its 
discretion, use any Client information or data provided to Crowe to improve Crowe services and Materials, 
including without limitation developing new Crowe services and software or other products. Client also 
agrees that Crowe may, in its discretion, aggregate Client content and data with content and data from 
other clients, other sources, or third parties (“Data Aggregations”) for purposes including, without 
limitation, product and service development, commercialization, industry benchmarking, or quality 
improvement initiatives. Prior to, and as a precondition for, disclosing Data Aggregations to other Crowe 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 117 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 12 June 9, 2022

customers or prospects, Crowe will anonymize any Client data or information in a manner sufficient to 
prevent such other customer or prospect from identifying Client or individuals who are Client 
customers. All Data Aggregations will be the sole and exclusive property of Crowe.

LEGAL AND REGULATORY CHANGE – Crowe may periodically communicate to Client changes in laws, 
rules or regulations. However, Client has not engaged Crowe, and Crowe does not undertake an 
obligation, to advise Client of changes in (a) laws, rules, regulations, industry or market conditions, or (b) 
Client’s own business practices or other circumstances (except to the extent required by professional 
standards). The scope of Services and the fees for Services are based on current laws and regulations. If 
changes in laws or regulations change Client’s requirements or the scope of the Services, Crowe’s fees 
will be modified to a mutually agreed amount to reflect the changed level of Crowe’s effort. 

PUBLICATION – Client agrees to obtain Crowe’s specific permission before using any Report or Crowe 
work product or Crowe’s firm’s name in a published document, and Client agrees to submit to Crowe 
copies of such documents to obtain Crowe’s permission before they are filed or published. 

CLIENT REFERENCE – From time to time Crowe is requested by prospective clients to provide 
references for Crowe service offerings. Client agrees that Crowe may use Client’s name and generally 
describe the nature of Crowe’s engagement(s) with Client in marketing to prospects, and Crowe may also 
provide prospects with contact information for Client personnel familiar with Crowe’s Services.

NO PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES – Any liability of Crowe will not include any 
consequential, special, incidental, indirect, punitive, or exemplary damages or loss, nor any lost profits, 
goodwill, savings, or business opportunity, even if Crowe had reason to know of the possibility of such 
damages.

LIMIT OF LIABILITY – Except where it is judicially determined that Crowe performed its Services with 
recklessness or willful misconduct, Crowe’s liability will not exceed fees paid by Client to Crowe for the 
portion of the work giving rise to liability. A claim for a return of fees paid is the exclusive remedy for any 
damages. This limit of liability will apply to the full extent allowed by law, regardless of the grounds or 
nature of any claim asserted, including, without limitation, to claims based on principles of contract, 
negligence or other tort, fiduciary duty, warranty, indemnity, statute or common law. This limit of liability 
will also apply after this Agreement.

INDEMNIFICATION FOR THIRD‑PARTY CLAIMS – In the event of a legal proceeding or other claim 
brought against Crowe by a third party, except where it is judicially determined that Crowe performed 
Services with recklessness or willful misconduct, Client agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Crowe 
and its personnel against all costs, fees, expenses, damages and liabilities, including attorney fees and 
any other fees or defense costs, associated with such third‑party claim, relating to or arising from any 
Services performed or work product provided by Crowe that Client uses or discloses to others or this 
engagement generally. This indemnification is intended to apply to the full extent allowed by law, 
regardless of the grounds or nature of any claim, liability, or damages asserted, including, without 
limitation, to claims, liability or damages based on principles of contract, negligence or other tort, fiduciary 
duty, warranty, indemnity, statute or common law. This indemnification will also apply after termination of 
this Agreement.

NO TRANSFER OR ASSIGNMENT OF CLAIMS – No claim against Crowe, or any recovery from or 
against Crowe, may be sold, assigned or otherwise transferred, in whole or in part.

TIME LIMIT ON CLAIMS – In no event will any action against Crowe, arising from or relating to this 
Agreement or the Services provided by Crowe relating to this engagement, be brought after the earlier of 
1) one (1) year after the date on which occurred the act or omission alleged to have been the cause of the 
injury alleged; or 2) the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations or repose.

RESPONSE TO LEGAL PROCESS – If Crowe is requested by subpoena, request for information, or 
through some other legal process to produce documents or testimony pertaining to Client or Crowe’s 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 118 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 13 June 9, 2022

Services, and Crowe is not named as a party in the applicable proceeding, then Client will reimburse 
Crowe for its professional time, plus out-of-pocket expenses, as well as reasonable attorney fees, Crowe 
incurs in responding to such request. 

MEDIATION – If a dispute arises, in whole or in part, out of or related to this engagement, or after the 
date of this agreement, between Client or any of Client’s affiliates or principals and Crowe, and if the 
dispute cannot be settled through negotiation, Client and Crowe agree first to try, in good faith, to settle 
the dispute by mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association, under its mediation rules 
for professional accounting and related services disputes, before resorting to litigation or any other 
dispute-resolution procedure. The results of mediation will be binding only upon agreement of each party 
to be bound. Costs of any mediation will be shared equally by both parties. Any mediation will be held in 
Chicago, Illinois. 

JURY TRIAL WAIVER – FOR ALL DISPUTES RELATING TO OR ARISING BETWEEN THE PARTIES, 
THE PARTIES AGREE TO WAIVE A TRIAL BY JURY TO FACILITATE JUDICIAL RESOLUTION AND 
TO SAVE TIME AND EXPENSE. EACH PARTY AGREES IT HAS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO HAVE 
ITS LEGAL COUNSEL REVIEW THIS WAIVER. THIS WAIVER IS IRREVOCABLE, MAY NOT BE 
MODIFIED EITHER ORALLY OR IN WRITING, AND APPLIES TO ANY SUBSEQUENT AMENDMENTS, 
RENEWALS, OR MODIFICATIONS TO THIS AGREEMENT. IN THE EVENT OF LITIGATION, THIS 
AGREEMENT MAY BE FILED AS WRITTEN CONSENT TO A BENCH TRIAL WITHOUT A JURY. 
HOWEVER, AND NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, IF ANY COURT RULES OR FINDS THIS 
JURY TRIAL WAIVER TO BE UNENFORCEABLE AND INEFFECTIVE IN WAIVING A JURY, THEN 
ANY DISPUTE RELATING TO OR ARISING FROM THIS ENGAGEMENT OR THE PARTIES’ 
RELATIONSHIP GENERALLY WILL BE RESOLVED BY ARBITRATION AS SET FORTH IN THE 
PARAGRAPH BELOW REGARDING “ARBITRATION.” 

ARBITRATION – If any court rules or finds that the JURY TRIAL WAIVER section is not enforceable, then 
any dispute between the parties relating to or arising from this Agreement or the parties’ relationship 
generally will be settled by binding arbitration in Chicago, Illinois (or a location agreed in writing by the 
parties). Any issues concerning the extent to which any dispute is subject to arbitration, or concerning the 
applicability, interpretation, or enforceability of any of this Section, will be governed by the Federal 
Arbitration Act and resolved by the arbitrator(s). The arbitration will be governed by the Federal Arbitration 
Act and resolved by the arbitrator(s). Regardless of the amount in controversy, the arbitration will be 
administered by JAMS, Inc. (“JAMS”), pursuant to its Streamlined Arbitration Rules & Procedures or such 
other rules or procedures as the parties may agree in writing. In the event of a conflict between those 
rules and this Agreement, this Agreement will control. The parties may alter each of these rules by written 
agreement. If a party has a basis for injunctive relief, this paragraph will not preclude a party seeking and 
obtaining injunctive relief in a court of proper jurisdiction. The parties will agree within a reasonable period 
of time after notice is made of initiating the arbitration process whether to use one or three arbitrators, and 
if the parties cannot agree within fifteen (15) business days, the parties will use a single arbitrator. In any 
event the arbitrator(s) must be retired federal judges or attorneys with at least 15 years commercial law 
experience and no arbitrator may be appointed unless he or she has agreed to these procedures. If the 
parties cannot agree upon arbitrator(s) within an additional fifteen (15) business days, the arbitrator(s) will 
be selected by JAMS. Discovery will be permitted only as authorized by the arbitrator(s), and as a rule, 
the arbitrator(s) will not permit discovery except upon a showing of substantial need by a party. To the 
extent the arbitrator(s) permit discovery as to liability, the arbitrator(s) will also permit discovery as to 
causation, reliance, and damages. The arbitrator(s) will not permit a party to take more than six 
depositions, and no depositions may exceed five hours. The arbitrator(s) will have no power to make an 
award inconsistent with this Agreement. The arbitrator(s) will rule on a summary basis where possible, 
including without limitation on a motion to dismiss basis or on a summary judgment basis. The 
arbitrator(s) may enter such prehearing orders as may be appropriate to ensure a fair hearing. The 
hearing will be held within one year of the initiation of arbitration, or less, and the hearing must be held on 
continuous business days until concluded. The hearing must be concluded within ten (10) business days 
absent written agreement by the parties to the contrary. The time limits in this section are not 
jurisdictional. The arbitrator(s) will apply substantive law and may award injunctive relief or any other 
remedy available from a judge. The arbitrator(s) may award attorney fees and costs to the prevailing 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 119 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 14 June 9, 2022

party, and in the event of a split or partial award, the arbitrator(s) may award costs or attorney fees in an 
equitable manner. Any award by the arbitrator(s) will be accompanied by a reasoned opinion describing 
the basis of the award. Any prior agreement regarding arbitration entered by the parties is replaced and 
superseded by this agreement. The arbitration will be governed by the Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U.S.C. 
§§ 1 et seq., and judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrator(s) may be entered by any court 
having jurisdiction thereof. All aspects of the arbitration will be treated by the parties and the arbitrator(s) 
as confidential. 

NOTIFICATION OF NON-LICENSEE OWNERSHIP (For California Engagements) – Crowe (“the Firm”) 
and certain owners of the Firm are licensed by the California State Board of Accountancy. However, the 
Firm has owners not licensed by the California State Board of Accountancy who may provide Services 
under this agreement. If Client has any questions regarding licensure of the personnel performing 
Services under this engagement, please do not hesitate to contact Crowe.

NON‑SOLICITATION – Each party acknowledges that it has invested substantially in recruiting, training 
and developing the personnel who render services with respect to the material aspects of the 
engagement (“Key Personnel”). The parties acknowledge that Key Personnel have knowledge of trade 
secrets or confidential information of their employers that may be of substantial benefit to the other party. 
The parties acknowledge that each business would be materially harmed if the other party was able to 
directly employ Key Personnel. Therefore, the parties agree that during the period of this Agreement and 
for one (1) year after its expiration or termination, neither party will solicit Key Personnel of the other party 
for employment or hire the Key Personnel of the other party without that party’s written consent unless the 
hiring or engaging party pays to the other party a fee equal to the hired or engaged Key Personnel’s 
compensation for the prior twelve-month period with the other party.

CROWE AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY – Crowe abides by the principles of equal employment 
opportunity, including without limitation the requirements of 41 CFR 60-741.5(a) and 41 CFR 60-300.5(a). 
These regulations prohibit discrimination against qualified individuals based on their status as protected 
veterans or individuals with disabilities, and prohibit discrimination against all individuals based on their 
race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Moreover, these regulations require that covered prime 
contractors and subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment individuals 
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, protected veteran status or disability. Crowe 
also abides by 29 CFR Part 471, Appendix A to Subpart A. The parties agree that the notice in this 
paragraph does not create any enforceable rights for any firm, organization, or individual. 

CROWE GLOBAL NETWORK – Crowe LLP and its subsidiaries are independent members of Crowe 
Global, a Swiss organization. “Crowe” is the brand used by the Crowe Global network and its member 
firms, but it is not a worldwide partnership. Crowe Global and each of its members are separate and 
independent legal entities and do not obligate each other. Crowe LLP and its subsidiaries are not 
responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe Global or any other Crowe Global members, and 
Crowe LLP and its subsidiaries specifically disclaim any and all responsibility or liability for acts or 
omissions of Crowe Global or any other Crowe Global member. Crowe Global does not render any 
professional services and does not have an ownership or partnership interest in Crowe LLP or any other 
member. Crowe Global and its other members are not responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of 
Crowe LLP and its subsidiaries and specifically disclaim any and all responsibility or liability for acts or 
omissions of Crowe LLP and its subsidiaries. Visit www.crowe.com/disclosure for more information about 
Crowe LLP, its subsidiaries, and Crowe Global. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 56E39A07-4BEB-4AF9-9839-7A6DBBE6568C

 
Page 120 of 526



© 2019 Sedgwick

NCCSIF Workers’ 
Compensation 

Update

June 2022

 
Page 121 of 526



2© 2019 Sedgwick 

NCCSIF Workers’ Compensation Update: June 2022

 
Page 122 of 526



3© 2019 Sedgwick 

NCCSIF Workers’ Compensation Update: June 2022

7/1‐9/30/2021 10/1‐12/31/2021 1/1‐3/31/2022 4/1‐6/15/2022

COVID Claims 40 37 161 37

0

50

100

150

200

Fiscal Year 2021‐2022 COVID Claims by Quarter through 6/15/2022

2019‐2020 2020‐2021 2021‐2022*

COVID Claims 16 108 268

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

COVID Claims by Fiscal Year through 6/15/2022

 
Page 123 of 526



4© 2019 Sedgwick 

NCCSIF Workers’ Compensation Update: June 2022

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 2021‐2022*

Claims 347 352 322 379 604

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700

Total New Claims by Fiscal Year Through 6/15/2022

2017‐2018 2018‐2019 2019‐2020 2020‐2021 2021‐2022*

First Aid 12 7 6 4 43

Medical Only 165 174 127 123 186

Indemnity 170 171 189 252 375

Total 347 352 322 379 604

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700

Claim Type by Fiscal Year through 6/15/2022

 
Page 124 of 526



5© 2019 Sedgwick 

NCCSIF Workers’ Compensation Update: June 2022

 
Page 125 of 526



SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR ADMINISTRATION OF 
A CLAIMS PROGRAM 

 
This Agreement is entered into effective the 1st day of July, 2022, by and between Sedgwick 
Claims Management Services, Inc. (“Sedgwick”) and Northern California Cities Self Insurance 
Fund (“Client”). 
 

RECITALS 
 
1. Client self-insures its claims administration program for workers compensation risks and 

desires to have Sedgwick provide the specific services set forth below in connection with 
such self-insured program (the “Program,” as defined on Exhibit A, attached hereto). 

   
2. Sedgwick is willing to provide such services on the terms and conditions hereinafter stated. 
 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1.  Services to Be Performed by Sedgwick:  Sedgwick agrees to perform the following 

services: 
 
 A. With regard to Claims Administration, Sedgwick shall: 
 

(1) Provide a dedicated claims team consisting of three indemnity examiners. 
This also includes designated use of a future medical examiner and medical-
only examiner. Indemnity examiners are to have a caseload of 125 claims, 
but not to exceed 145 claims when fully staffed.  

 
(2) During the term of this Agreement, review all claim and loss reports 

received from Client that are required to be reviewed under the Program (a 
“Qualified Claim”), and process each such claim or loss report in 
accordance with applicable statutory and administrative regulations; 

 
(3) Conduct an investigation of each Qualified Claim to the extent deemed 

necessary by Sedgwick in the performance of its obligations hereunder; 
 

(4) Arrange for independent investigators, appraisers, or medical or other 
experts to the extent deemed necessary by Sedgwick in connection with 
processing any Qualified Claim; 

 
(5) Pay benefits, expenses, and adjust or settle each Qualified Claim, but only 

if in the sole judgment of Sedgwick such payment would be prudent for 
Client and the anticipated amount thereof does not exceed the limit specified 
in accordance with paragraphs 2F and 2G below, or as Client specifically 
approves or directs such action in writing; 

   

 
Page 126 of 526



(6) Maintain a file for each Qualified Claim which shall be the property of 
Client (for self-insured claims) or Insurer (for insured claims) and which 
shall be available for review by Client or Insurer during normal business 
hours upon three (3) days prior written notice; 

 
(7) Notify Client’s excess insurance coverage under PRISM for EWC for each 

Qualified Claim where the values may exceed Client's retention, providing 
such insurer with necessary information on the current status of those 
claims, unless relieved of this obligation by Client pursuant to paragraph 
2A; 

 
(8) Assist Client’s counsel, if requested, in preparing the defense of litigated 

cases arising out of Qualified Claims, negotiating settlements and pursuing 
subrogation or contribution actions; 

 
(9) Maintain a current estimate of the expected total cost of each Qualified 

Claim which is based on facts known at the estimation date, but is not 
trended or actuarially developed; 

 
(10) Use a proprietary data management system to furnish to Client agreed upon 

loss and information reports.  These reports shall contain information such 
as each Qualified Claim date, condensed claim description, payments made, 
estimated future costs and total expected costs of all Qualified Claims, as 
well as summary and other data deemed relevant by Sedgwick, but not 
IBNR (incurred but not reported) claims or actuarially developed loss 
values; and 
 

(11) Annually report federal, state and local 1099 information under Client’s tax 
identification number(s), when Client has provided all required IRS 
authorizations, for vendor payments issued by Sedgwick on bank accounts 
owned by Client, but not for payment authorizations when Sedgwick does 
not issue the checks.   

  
B. Sedgwick will provide managed care and ancillary services as set forth in the 

attached Managed Care and Ancillary Service Schedule. 
      

C. Sedgwick shall provide the special investigative unit (SIU) services set forth in the 
attached SIU Service Schedule. 

 
D. Sedgwick will provide the MMSEA/SCHIP Reporting services as set forth in the 

Medicare Reporting Services Schedule attached hereto. 
 
2. Obligations of Client: 
 

A. Client shall provide Sedgwick in a timely manner with its excess insurance 
coverage under PRISM for EWC for the policy years necessary for proper 

 
Page 127 of 526



notification of applicable Qualified Claims to such first layer insurers by 
Sedgwick.  Should Client fail to provide this information, Sedgwick shall be 
relieved of any such reporting obligations. 

 
B. Client shall pay to Sedgwick a service fee which, in the initial term of this 

Agreement, shall be computed and payable as shown in Exhibit B, attached hereto 
and made a part of this Agreement, plus applicable taxes, if any. Client shall 
reimburse Sedgwick for the reasonable and customary out-of-pocket expenses 
incurred by Sedgwick such as travel expenses in conjunction with the services 
being performed. If Client, in its sole discretion, requests Sedgwick to perform 
services outside of the scope of work listed herein, then Client shall compensate 
Sedgwick for such services at Sedgwick’s then applicable standard rates for such 
service. 

 
C. Client shall at all times provide funds adequate for the payment of Qualified 

Claims, including allocated loss adjustment expenses.  For purposes of this 
Agreement, allocated loss adjustment expenses shall mean all costs, charges or 
expenses incurred by Sedgwick, its agents or its employees which are properly 
chargeable to a Qualified Claim including, without limitation, court costs; fees and 
expenses of attorneys; appeal bonds; independent adjusters; investigators; 
appraisers; vocational services, training or evaluation; medical expenses and 
medical cost containment service providers (including those provided by Sedgwick, 
if applicable); durable medical equipment; rehabilitation services; experts and 
witnesses; fees for obtaining statements, diagrams, reports, records, documents, 
transcripts, depositions, Medicare reporting and compliance services fees and costs, 
index bureau filings and re-filings, and photographs; cost of file retrieval; cost 
associated with the pursuit of subrogation and/or Special Injury Fund claims; 
hearing representation services; and travel fees and expenses incurred at Client’s 
request. Sedgwick may, but need not, elect to utilize its own staff or affiliated 
entities to perform these services. Associated fees and costs will be charged as 
allocated loss adjustment expenses. 

 
D. Client shall deposit funds for payment of Qualified Claims, including allocated loss 

adjustment expenses, in a bank account or accounts (the “Claim Account”).  Client 
shall be responsible for providing sufficient funds to enable Sedgwick to write 
checks on the Claim Account for use in the payment of Client’s Qualified Claims.  
Such funds shall be provided by electronic funds transfer at the inception of the 
Program and replenished by electronic funds transfer promptly from time to time 
thereafter.  The amount of the escrow required for the Claim Account may be 
modified in the following instances: 

 
(1) There is a substantial increase or decrease in claims payment activity; 
 
(2) Client fails to fund the Claim Account within the agreed upon time period; 
 
(3) There is a change in funding cycle; 

 
Page 128 of 526



 
(4) The escrow is recalculated at Client’s request; or 
 
(5) The escrow amount is automatically recalculated on an annual basis.     

 
E. It is expressly understood that Sedgwick shall not be required to advance its own 

funds to pay losses or allocated loss adjustment expenses for any Qualified Claim 
hereunder.  It is further understood that if Client fails to promptly provide funds 
sufficient to allow required payments to be made timely, or if funds previously 
provided by or on behalf of Client are seized, frozen or otherwise unavailable to 
Sedgwick to allow required payments to be made timely on account of the 
bankruptcy, receivership, or other insolvency proceeding of Client [or Insurer, in 
cases where Insurer funds claim account], Sedgwick will have no obligation to 
perform any claims payments services during any period of underfunding. 

 
F. Sedgwick shall have full discretion to make an individual payment of an allocated 

loss adjustment expense in an amount up to $25,000 on any Qualified Claim and 
shall not need the approval of Client to make such payments.  This amount may be 
changed at any time by Client upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Sedgwick.  
It is agreed that Sedgwick shall have full authority and control in all matters 
pertaining to the payment, processing, investigation and administration of Qualified 
Claims within the limit established by this paragraph. 

 
G. Sedgwick shall have full discretion to redeem, compromise or settle any Qualified 

Claim for an amount not to exceed $25,000 and shall not need the approval of Client 
to consummate such redemption, compromise or settlement.  This amount may be 
changed at any time by Client upon ten (10) days prior written notice to Sedgwick.  
Failure of Sedgwick to settle a Qualified Claim within such limit, however, shall 
not subject Sedgwick to any liability whatsoever in the event of an adverse 
judgment entered by any court or the settlement of such Qualified Claim for an 
amount in excess of such limit. 

 
H. Should Client fail to make timely payments of any service fees due Sedgwick or 

should Client in any other way breach a material term of this Agreement, Sedgwick 
shall then have the right to refuse to perform any further services or terminate this 
Agreement.  If Sedgwick elects to exercise its rights under this paragraph, in 
addition to all other legal or equitable remedies, Sedgwick will have the right to its 
full minimum fee, if any, as well as any other fees for which Sedgwick may be 
eligible.  

 
I. Upon receipt of any form of notice advising of facts which are or may be a Qualified 

Claim, Client shall promptly assign the Qualified Claim to Sedgwick for 
management.  Client shall promptly provide Sedgwick with such information as 
Sedgwick may require, including, but not limited to, any copy of documents 
describing its Program, including but not limited to documents submitted to any 
legal, administrative or regulatory authority for approval of the Program, as well as 

 
Page 129 of 526



incident reports and related information in Client’s possession and otherwise 
cooperate with Sedgwick in carrying out Sedgwick’s tasks hereunder. 

 
3.         Discontinuance of Operations: 
 

Should Client discontinue its business for any reason, all fees due Sedgwick shall be paid 
immediately.  Sedgwick shall have no further obligation to continue to provide the services 
called for in this Agreement, and, at Sedgwick’s option, this Agreement shall be considered 
terminated as of the date Client ceases operations or is subject to a bankruptcy or 
receivership filing, either voluntarily or involuntarily. 

 
4. Covered Jurisdictions: 
 
 This Agreement shall cover all operations of Client in the state of California. 
 
5. Term of Agreement and Termination:   
 

A. The term of this Agreement shall be for the period commencing on July 1, 2022 
and ending on June 30, 2023. 

 
B. This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time, provided that at 

least sixty (60) days prior written notice of the effective date of termination is given 
to the other party. 

 
C. Sedgwick is providing services to Client on a life of contract basis.  If requested by 

Client, Sedgwick will continue to process Client’s Qualified Claims remaining 
open at the expiration or termination of this Agreement, if any, provided that Client 
shall continue to make adequate funds available for the payment of such Qualified 
Claims, including any allocated loss adjustment expenses and pay information 
technology fees, fees for encrypted data files, program management fees, and any 
other applicable fees.  This provision shall not apply unless the additional fee for 
this service shall have been negotiated and agreed to in writing prior to the effective 
date of termination.   

 
D. If Sedgwick is required by Insurer to adjust Client’s insured Qualified Claims after 

expiration or termination of this Agreement, Client shall continue to fund claims 
payments and allocated loss adjustment expenses as otherwise provided herein, and 
Client shall pay Sedgwick a mutually agreed upon fee, plus the prevailing fee for 
any information technology or encrypted data files required by Insurer.  

 
E. If Insurer fails to pay Sedgwick service fees which it is obligated to pay, then 

Sedgwick may present all unpaid invoices to Client and Client shall pay such 
service fees within thirty (30) days of presentment.  If Insurer is responsible for 
funding the Claim Account and fails to adequately do so, then Client shall 
immediately and adequately fund the Claim Account upon notice from Sedgwick 
of the deficiency. 

 
Page 130 of 526



   
F. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, Sedgwick shall deliver, at 

Client’s sole cost, the hard copy and imaged files that Sedgwick has maintained for 
Qualified Claims (but not including any computer hardware, firmware, software or 
other proprietary information of Sedgwick), except those Sedgwick has agreed in 
writing to continue to process or files that are owned by Insurer; provided, however, 
that Sedgwick or its agents, employees or attorneys shall continue to be entitled to 
inspect all such files and make copies or extracts there from.  Imaged files shall be 
transferred to Client in the same electronic format.   Client shall pay Sedgwick a 
one-time payment for transition of Qualified Claims as consideration for 
Sedgwick’s associated costs, which costs may include, but are not limited to, carrier 
coordination, coordination with the new third party administrator, if any, necessary 
mailings and notifications, catalog and transfer of hard inventory, digital recording 
retrieval & transfer, advanced TTD payments, multiple loss runs, payment history 
for advanced TTD, claim hot list, banking reconciliation, validation of billings paid 
in field prior to transfer, field examiners validation and release of pending 
payments, client services & parameters group time (B2B interface shutoff, intake 
shutoff, CSI shutdown), as well as technology items such as preliminary and final 
data extract, image extract, bill review extract,  MMSEA extract and hierarchy 
structure extract.  If Client does not agree to accept such files, they will be retained 
or destroyed at Sedgwick's option and Client shall have no recourse against 
Sedgwick for failure to retain them.   

 
6. Professional Advice: 

 
Nothing in this Agreement is intended to require Sedgwick to engage in the practice of law, 
and services provided shall not be considered legal, tax or accounting advice, and Sedgwick 
shall in no event give, or be required to give, any legal opinion or provide any legal, tax or 
accounting representation to Client.  Client acknowledges that Sedgwick has been engaged 
to provide certain professional services and that it is not the intent of the parties that 
Sedgwick assume any insurance risk. Sedgwick shall not act as an insurer for Client, and 
this Agreement shall not be construed as an insurance policy; it being understood that 
Sedgwick is in no event financially responsible for payment or satisfaction of Client’s 
claims, lawsuits, or any form of cause of action against Client from Sedgwick funds. 
 

7. Indemnification: 
 
A. 1. Sedgwick shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Client, its agents, 

employees, assigns, successors, officers, and directors against any and all loss, 
damage, fines, liability, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees and 
costs that Client may become obligated to pay due, to the extent attributable to the 
negligent or otherwise wrongful acts or omissions of Sedgwick, its agents, 
employees, officers, or directors.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Sedgwick shall 
not be obligated to indemnify Client, its agents, employees, assigns, successors, 
officers, and directors to the extent any such loss, damage, fines, liability, costs, 
and expenses are attributable to the negligent or otherwise wrongful acts or 

 
Page 131 of 526



omissions of Client or any other party.   
 

2. Client shall indemnify hold harmless, and defend Sedgwick, its agents, 
employees, assigns, successors, officers, and directors against any and all loss, 
damage, fines, liability, costs, and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees and 
costs that Sedgwick becomes obligated to pay due to the extent attributable to the 
negligent or otherwise wrongful acts or omissions of Client, its agents, employees, 
officers, or directors. 
 
3. The services to be rendered by Sedgwick are to be within the standards for 
administration of workers’ compensation claims.  In the event Client directs 
Sedgwick to follow a specific course of action in the handling of any Qualified 
Claim, Client shall indemnify, hold harmless, and defend Sedgwick against any 
loss, cost or expense, including reasonable attorney fees and costs, incurred in any 
claim or damages related to that course of action.  Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary herein, Sedgwick shall not be held responsible or liable for any obligations 
pursuant to agreements or contracts between third parties and Client. 
 
4. Each party agrees to keep the other fully informed of any matter for which it is 
defending, holding harmless or indemnifying the other party.  Each party reserves 
the right to appoint its own counsel, at its own expense, regarding any matter 
defended hereunder and to approve any settlements of same.   

 
B. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the above paragraph, it is 

understood and agreed that if Client, directly or through a subcontractor or vendor 
of Client’s choosing (“Client Subcontractor”), retains administration of a claim or 
performs any services for a claim Sedgwick administers,  or if Client otherwise 
directs the administration of a claim, Client will indemnify, defend, and hold 
Sedgwick, its officers, directors, employees and agents harmless from the losses, 
damages, costs, judgments and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and costs) as a 
result of any litigation or proceeding, fines, penalties, revocation of license, or any 
other state regulatory investigation or action arising against Sedgwick related to the 
acts or omissions of  Client or the Client Subcontractor.   

 
C. If Client's access to claim data includes the ability to add and modify data, 

Sedgwick shall not be required to verify, or otherwise be responsible for, the 
accuracy of data added or modified by Client.  Client shall indemnify, defend and 
hold Sedgwick, its officers, directors, employees and agents harmless for any loss, 
cost (including attorneys’ fees), claim or judgment which is attributable to Client’s 
input or modification of data. 

 
D.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, an indemnifying party will not settle a claim 

without the indemnified party’s written consent, unless such settlement results in 
(i) a full release of all parties, (ii) no liability to the indemnified party or future 
obligation of the indemnified party, and (iii) no admission of wrongdoing by Client 
or Sedgwick. 

 
Page 132 of 526



 
E. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of the 

Agreement. 
 
8. Network Security/Confidentiality: 
 

A. If Client’s access to the data management system requires a network connection 
(the “Network Connection”) between Client's network and Sedgwick’s network, 
Sedgwick and Client shall take reasonable and customary precautions to prevent 
unauthorized access to or use of the Network Connection through their respective 
networks.  The parties agree, however, that each party is responsible for the security 
of its own network.  Neither party shall be liable to the other for unauthorized access 
to the Network Connection, so long as the accused party shall have taken reasonable 
and customary precautions to prevent such unauthorized access.  

 
B.   Whether or not marked as such, and without regard to the media in which such 

records are stored, “Confidential Information” shall mean: 
 

(1) any business or technical information pertaining to the parties herein or to 
third parties, which is furnished, disclosed or made available by one party 
to the other, including, without limitation, specifications, prototypes, 
software, marketing plans, financial data and personnel statistics; and 

 
(2)  Medical records, reports and information, as well as any other non-medical 

records, reports or information pertaining to claimants under the Program.   
 
C. Each party agrees to protect Confidential Information received hereunder with the 

same degree of care that such party exercises with its own confidential information 
(but in no event less than reasonable care) and to limit access and disclosure of 
Confidential Information only to their employees, agents and contractors who have 
a “need to know,” and who agree to maintain confidentiality in accordance with 
this section.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Client agrees to permit Sedgwick to 
compile and disseminate aggregate, de-identified information for auditing, 
compliance, internal assessments, process improvement and related analytics, 
benchmarking purposes or forward to a data collection facility data for Qualified 
Claims handled pursuant to this Agreement, provided that such facility agrees in 
writing to keep Client’s data confidential.  Further, Sedgwick shall be entitled, 
without violation of this section and without the prior consent of Client, to retain 
claims administration information and to forward claims administration 
information to government agencies to the extent required by law for the proper 
performance of the services set forth herein.   

 
D. The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of the 

Agreement. 
 

9. Notices: 

 
Page 133 of 526



 
Any notice required to be given under this Agreement shall be sent by certified or registered 
mail, postage prepaid, to General Counsel - Americas, Sedgwick Claims Management 
Services, Inc., 8125 Sedgwick Way, Memphis, TN 38125, in the case of Sedgwick, and to 
President, Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund, c/o Alliant Insurance Services, 
2180 Harvard Street, Suite 460, Sacramento, CA  95815, in the case of Client. 

 
10. Assignment: 
 
 The Client may not assign its rights or obligations under this Agreement.  Sedgwick may 

assign or subcontract part of the services required hereunder and may at its discretion 
delegate to a subsidiary or affiliate such of its duties as it deems appropriate, provided that 
such subcontracting or delegation shall not relieve Sedgwick of any of its obligations 
hereunder. 

 
11. Entire Agreement and Modification or Amendment: 
 

This Agreement and its attached exhibits and schedules represents the full and final 
understanding of the parties with respect to the subject matter described herein and 
supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings, written or oral, express or 
implied.  This Agreement may be modified or amended only by a written statement signed 
by both parties. 

 
12. Applicable Law: 
 

The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
California without regard to conflicts of law principles. If any dispute or claim arises 
hereunder that the parties are not able to resolve amicably, the parties agree and stipulate 
that such litigation shall be resolved in the State of California, and the parties irrevocably 
submit to the exclusive venue and jurisdiction of such court for the purpose of any such 
action or proceeding. In the event of a dispute between the parties resulting in litigation, 
the prevailing party may, in addition to any other relief obtained, recover its court costs 
and reasonable attorney’s fees. 
 

13. Force Majeure: 
 

Neither party shall be liable to the other party or be deemed to have breached this 
Agreement for any failure or delay in the performance of all or any portion of its obligations 
under this Agreement if such failure or delay is due to any contingency beyond its 
reasonable control (a “force majeure”).  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, 
such contingency includes, but is not limited to, acts of God, fires, floods, pandemics, 
storms, earthquakes, riots, boycotts, strikes, lock-outs, acts of terror, wars and war 
operations, restraints of government, power or communication line failure or other 
circumstance beyond such party’s reasonable control, or by reason of the bankruptcy, 
receivership or other insolvency proceeding of any bank or other financial institution where 
funds to pay losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses are held, or by reason of a 

 
Page 134 of 526



judgment, ruling or order of any court or agency of competent jurisdiction or change of 
law or regulation subsequent to the execution of this Agreement.  Both parties are obligated 
to provide reasonable back-up capability to avoid the potential interruptions described 
above.  If a force majeure occurs, the party delayed or unable to perform shall give 
immediate notice to the other party. Client acknowledges that the foregoing provision does 
not apply to Client's obligation to make timely payment of any fees due Sedgwick, and that 
Sedgwick shall be entitled to all remedies set forth in this Agreement and those allowed by 
law for Client's failure to timely pay such fees. 

 
14. Headings: 
 

Headings herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not be considered in any 
interpretation of this Agreement. 

 
15. Relationship of Parties; Expenses: 
 

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create a partnership or joint 
venture between the parties hereto; the only relationship among the parties shall be that of 
independent parties to a contract.  Except as expressly provided herein, no party hereto 
shall have authority or shall hold itself out as having authority to act for or bind any other 
party hereto.  Except as expressly set forth herein, each party shall bear all expenses it may 
incur in connection with the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement. 

 
16.  Waiver of Breach: 
 

Failure of either party hereto to require the performance by the other party hereto of any 
obligation under this Agreement shall not affect its right subsequently to require 
performance of that or any other obligation.  Any waiver by any party hereto of any breach 
of any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as a continuing waiver of any 
such provision or a waiver of any succeeding breach or modification of any other right 
under this Agreement.   
 

17. Subcontractor Disclosure: 
 

Through contractual arrangements with subcontractors, Sedgwick provides a full range of 
medical management and investigative services to its clients, as well as structured 
settlements, claim indexing services, imaging, auto-bill adjudication, and extra-territorial 
claims administration services.  Medical management services include, but are not limited 
to, bill review, network access, pharmacy benefits management, peer review, field case 
management, electro-medical devices, bone growth stimulators, orthotics, prosthetics, 
translation and interpretation, transportation, medical supplies, IV and respiratory therapy, 
home health, and durable medical equipment.  Client recognizes and agrees that delivery 
of some of these services are being provided pursuant to separate agreements between 
subcontractors and Sedgwick.  Invoices for these services will be paid as allocated loss 
adjustment expenses on individual claims, unless otherwise agreed between Client and 
Sedgwick.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Client agrees and understands that Client is 

 
Page 135 of 526



obligated to make payment to the subcontractors either directly or by remitting such 
payment to Sedgwick, for any money due for subcontracted services which have been 
provided under this Agreement.  Client acknowledges that Sedgwick receives a portion of 
charges for subcontracted services as reimbursement for cost of program management, 
administration, and technological and service enhancements.  In no event will charges to 
Client exceed the amount indicated in the Agreement. 

 
18. Equitable Adjustment: 
 

This Agreement contemplates that the standards applicable to this Agreement are those in 
effect on the date of this Agreement, whether such standards are set forth in statutes, 
regulations, rules, orders, case law or otherwise. In the event of a change in a service 
standard, Sedgwick shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in its compensation if such 
change increases Sedgwick’s cost of providing the services under this Agreement or 
reduces its profitability. 

 
19.  Non-Solicitation:  
 
  Client acknowledges and agrees that Sedgwick personnel who perform the services are a 

valuable asset to Sedgwick and difficult to replace.  Accordingly, Client agrees that, during 
the term of the Agreement, and for twelve months thereafter, it will not solicit, contract or 
hire Sedgwick personnel or encourage them to seek employment or any other contractual 
arrangements with Client.   The parties further agree that in the event Client breaches the 
provision of this Section, Client shall pay Sedgwick liquidated damages in the amount of 
two times the annual compensation to be paid to such person for each such breach, which 
is the parties’ good faith estimate of the amount of damages to Sedgwick from such breach.  
This Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the 
dates written below. 
 
Northern California Cities  Sedgwick Claims Management Services, Inc. 
Self Insurance Fund 
  
By                                                    By        
 
Title                                                 Title        
 
Date________________________ Date_______________________ 

Senior Vice President

June 16, 2022

 
Page 136 of 526



EXHIBIT A 
 

SERVICE PROGRAM OVERVIEW 
 
I. Introduction 
 
Sedgwick is administering the self-insured workers compensation claims for Client as follows:   
 
State Serviced: California. 
Sedgwick Servicing Office: Roseville, CA. 
 
II. Account Coordination 
 
On behalf of Client, this service program will be coordinated by: 
 

Marcus Beverly 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  
c/o Alliant Insurance Services 
2180 Harvard Street, Suite 460 
Sacramento, CA 95815 
Telephone # 916.643.2704 
  

On behalf of Sedgwick, this service program will be coordinated by: 
 

Devora Brainard - DeLong 
Sedgwick Claims Management Services, Inc. 
8855 Haven Avenue  
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 
Telephone # 951.231.6825        

 
Each party reserves the right to change its designated representative during the term of the 
Agreement. 

 
Page 137 of 526



EXHIBIT B 
 

SERVICE FEES 
 
Client shall pay the following fees on a life of contract basis for services provided during the term 
of this Agreement: 
 

1. Annual Flat Fee – Workers Compensation 
 

A. The annual flat fee pricing for the first year is $626,645 based on the estimated 
claim volumes and estimated required staffing to service those claims.  

 
Sedgwick reserves the right to modify the annual flat fee if acquisitions, 
divestitures, changes in program requirements, or an increase in claim volume of 
greater than ten percent (10%) impacts the staffing requirements of the unit.  

 
Claims open at contract termination will either be transferred to the new 
administrator or handled by Sedgwick for an additional annual fee.  

 
                       Term Annual Fee: 07/01/2022 – 06/30/2023 $626,645  

  
B.        For purposes of this Agreement, an “Indemnity Claim” shall mean any workers’ 

compensation Qualified Claim: 
- For which a payment is made or reserve is posted under the indemnity 

portion (i.e. not medical and not expense) of the Qualified Claim or there is 
time lost from work;  

- For which an application for adjudication of a claim or hearing notice is 
received or otherwise involves litigation or communication from or to a 
petitioner’s attorney;  

- Where incurred medical costs exceed $3,000;  
- That is denied but otherwise would have been classified as Indemnity 

Claims;  
- For which Client requests to be investigated or classified as an Indemnity 

Claim;  
- That Sedgwick determines additional investigation is necessary to determine 

compensability, to comply with applicable laws, or both;  
- For which subrogation is investigated or pursued; or 
- That is open longer than twelve months. 

 
C. For purposes of this Agreement, a “Medical Only Claim” shall mean any workers’ 

compensation Qualified Claim which is not an Indemnity Claim or an Incident 
Only. 

 
D. For purposes of this Agreement, an “Incident Only” shall mean claims reported by 

Client that require no payment or activity other than generating a record in the data 
management system.  These claims carry no reserves and no contacts are made by 

 
Page 138 of 526



Sedgwick.  If contacts are required on incident only cases, additional fees will 
apply. 

 
E. Client acknowledges that the claim fees set forth in this section 1 are based on the 

assumption that Client will forward to Sedgwick all claims arising under the 
Program within the applicable time period in a covered jurisdiction.  In the event 
that Client does not forward to Sedgwick all such claims, Sedgwick may in its 
discretion adjust the claim fees accordingly. 

 
2. Miscellaneous Charges  
 
Client shall pay the following fees for services provided during the period beginning on July 1, 
2022 and ending on June 30, 2023: 
 

A.  ViaOne access, which includes six (6) users, at no charge.  Additional access is 
available for a fee of $850.00 per user per year. Sedgwick will make available, 
through Sedgwick’s proprietary claims system, claim-related data with “web-
enabled” access. Client will have “view only” access to the system for the term 
specified or as contemplated in Section 5(C) of this Agreement. Client will bear 
responsibility for its own hardware, software, connection and similar costs for 
accessing the electronic claims management system.  

 
 B.  Intake fees related to claims reporting are waived.  

 
 

3. Invoicing 
 
Sedgwick shall submit its invoice for all other fees on a quarterly basis, in advance, based on an 
annual fee estimate.  Shortly after the expiration of the contract year, or upon termination, 
Sedgwick shall compare the installment amounts paid by Client to the actual fee due.  Client shall 
pay any additional fee due, or Sedgwick shall credit Client for any overpayment, as the case may 
be.   
 
4. Care Management Fee Schedule 
  
All claim administration fees and services contemplate the deployment of Sedgwick’s managed 
care services for all bill review and case management services.  Managed care fees are detailed 
below.  Fees may change from time to time upon 60 days written notice. 
 

Service Rate 
Medical bill review 

State fee scheduling/usual, customary and reasonable; 
state reporting $13.00 per bill 

Provider networks 
California outcomes-based statewide medical provider 
network (MPN) (all California bills)  Add $5.00 per bill 

Telephonic Clinical Services 

 
Page 139 of 526



Service Rate 

Telephonic case management:  
 · Telephonic Nurse Case Manager,  
 · Surgery Nurse Case Manager,  
 · Behavioral Health Specialist 

$102 per hour 

Customized Nurse Services $102 per hour  

Utilization Review & Physician Advisor 
Utilization review  $149 per review 
Physician advisor/peer review $200 per review 
Physician review of records $200 per hour 
Physician advisor appeal $300 per review 

Complex pharmacy management  

Pharmacy nurse management/pain coaching: $115 per 
hour 

Physician and PharmD management (as needed): 
$275 per hour – Client approval required 

Field Case Management 

Medical field case management: Full field  
$102 per hour, plus direct expenses (1)(2) 

Urgent/Catastrophic case management: $165 per hour 
(1) 

Crisis Care RN $165 per hour (1) 
Field Case Management Tasks: 
 One visit clinical assessment $720 flat fee 
 Limited Assignment Task $102 per hour (1) 
 Specialty task services: Life Care Plan, Expert 
testimony, customized services 

$165 per hour 

Vocational & Work placement solutions 
Transitional work placement (at Not-for-profit) $900 for placement or no-show 

Return to Work Specialist $105 per hour (1)  
Telephonic return-to-work 

Work Place Consultation - Program/Policy Design & 
planning $200 per hour, plus direct expenses 

Vocational - Full Field Case Management $105 per hour, plus direct expenses (1)(2) 
Vocational field tasks: 
 Vocational Assessment/Testing $950 flat fee 
 Labor Market Survey $640 flat fee 
 Automated Transferable Skills Analysis  $360 flat fee 
 Job Analysis or Ergonomic Evaluation $790 flat fee 
Clinical Consultation Services 

Clinical consultation 

Standard (24x7x365 access to nurse): $90 per triage 
call 

Premium (blended nurse intake option): $105 per 
triage call 

Advanced (ability to customize workflows): $115 per 
triage call* 

*level of customization may warrant additional fees 
Sedgwick managed care administrative services 

 
Page 140 of 526



Service Rate 

Lien resolution 

28% of the below fee schedule savings subject to 
minimum fee of $125 and cap of $7,500 per lien 

Expert witness testimony or hearing representation 
charged at $125 per hour plus direct expenses 

Sedgwick standard medical card No charge; customization starts at $3,500 
Mandatory state panel postings  Included in Sedgwick bill review program fees 
Non-Mandatory state panel postings  $9.00 per panel 

 
5.  SIU Service Fees 

 
The charges set forth below are the current fees for the services listed, and these fees may change 
from time to time upon sixty days prior written notice to Client: 
 

Service name Price 
Research services 

Social media investigation $275 
Smart plus investigation $475 
Comprehensive background  $525 
Canvassing services $250  
Skip tracing/individual locate $175 
Asset check $225 
Criminal and civil check $135 plus cost of records 

Additional counties: $35 (per county) 
Records request $100 plus cost of records 
Social media monitoring $25/week of monitoring 
Other research services Quote upon request 

Surveillance services  
Surveillance $85 per hour (portal to portal): All other states 

$95 per hour (portal to portal): California, Hawaii and 
New York 
Additional expenses to hourly rate: 
• Report writing (up to 1/2 hour per day at standard 

surveillance rates) 
• Pre-surveillance investigation: $85  
• License plate searches: $10 (post prelim) 

Unmanned surveillance $700 per day (three-day minimum)  
Deployment and extraction of stationary device: 
$85 per hour: All other states 
$95 per hour: California, Hawaii and New York 

Video copies $60 per additional copy plus shipping 
Field Services  

Alive and Well Check - In 
person 

$325: All other states 
$350: California, Hawaii and New York 

Alive and Well Check-Virtual 
Interview 

$125 

Activity Check  
 

$350:  All other states 
$375:  California, Hawaii and New York 

 
Page 141 of 526



Service name Price 
AOE/COE 
Recorded Statement 
Scene Investigation 
Trial/Deposition 

$85 per hour (portal to portal): All other states 
$95 per hour (portal to portal): California, Hawaii and 
New York 
Mileage charged at IRS standard mileage rate 

International investigations Quote upon request 
Other field services Quote upon request 

Assessment services 
Suspect file review  $95 per hour 
Fraud investigation (includes 
state reporting) 

$95 per hour 

SIU intelligence program  Workers’ compensation and general liability — $150 per 
claim triggered (includes up to three claim triage reviews 
per claim triggered) 

Other assessment services Quote upon request 
 
6. Subrogation and Other Recoveries: 
 

A. Upon written approval from Client Sedgwick shall pursue recoveries for subrogation, 
second injury funds, and other applicable special funds such as supplemental state 
funds, COLA reimbursements, retro funds, and other similar funds. Client shall pay 
Sedgwick twenty percent (20%) of the recovery received.  All fees and expenses, 
including attorneys’ fees or investigations, for pursuit of any recovery shall be charged 
to the appropriate Qualified Claim file as an allocated loss adjustment expense.   

B. As determined by the parties, Sedgwick shall either: 
a. Deposit the recovery funds and issue payment from Sedgwick’s accounts Payable 

system to Client for the net recovery (less Sedgwick’s fee).  Sedgwick will deposit 
the net recovery check into the Client’s loss-funding account or forward it directly 
to the Client.     

b. Deposit the recovery funds into the Client’s loss-funding account and Sedgwick 
shall receive payment from the claim file or directly from Client. 

 
7.  MMSEA/SCHIP Medicare Reporting Fee 

 
The charges set forth below are the current fees for the services listed, and these fees may 
change from time to time upon sixty days prior written notice to Client: 
  
One time $9 charge per claim for claims involving bodily injuries (WC, liability, no fault). 

 
8.  Payment Terms 
 
Client acknowledges that all fees set forth in the Agreement are due and payable within thirty (30) 
days of the invoice.  Any and all past due fees will incur interest at the rate of 1.5% per month, 
unless otherwise prohibited by law.  Client acknowledges that in the event Sedgwick undertakes 
collection proceedings for any outstanding fees, then Client will reimburse Sedgwick for all costs 
associated with such collection action, including a reasonable attorney fee and court cost. 
 
All fees are contingent upon claim management from Sedgwick’s systems. 

 
Page 142 of 526



MANAGED CARE SERVICE SCHEDULE 
 
Client has chosen the following managed care services, as defined herein:  
 

(1) Provider Fee Management - The bill review process reviews bills against up-to-date 
and accurate mandated state fee schedules or the usual and customary (“UCR”) data 
base, whichever is appropriate, to reveal excessive, duplicate, or inappropriate 
charges.    

 
(2) Preferred Provider Organization (“PPO”) Networks - Sedgwick will arrange for 

access and channeling to national and regional PPO networks including specialty 
networks (Diagnostics, Physical Therapy, etc.) under the managed care program in 
conjunction with the Provider Fee Management service.   

 
(3) Hospital Bill Review - Hospital or outpatient non-PPO bills will be reviewed by a 

nurse for possible errors or excessive charges relative to the patient's medical 
diagnosis at Sedgwick's or Client's request.   

 
(4) Out of Network Bill Review – Bills from out of network health care providers will 

be reviewed, and if appropriate a negotiation with the billing provider will be 
pursued.  Additionally, inpatient and outpatient procedures that are not addressed by 
an individual state’s fee schedule or UCR will be repriced to a geographically driven 
and cost to charge repricing database to determine appropriate reimbursement. 

 
(5) Specialty Usual and Customary Review – Sedgwick’s vendors will apply geographic 

charges (fee for same procedure charged by other providers in same area) and cost 
to charge ratios (actual cost to provider for procedure or hospital stay v. amount 
charged) to determine reimbursement of medical services billed that are not 
addressed within the jurisdictional fee schedule or usual and customary 
reimbursement. 

 
(6) Field Case Management - Sedgwick will assign appropriate cases for field medical 

and vocational management services. 
     

 (7) Utilization Review, which includes the following components:  
 

(a) Prospective Review - a review prior to treatment or admission conducted by 
an experienced registered nurse to validate or negotiate the necessity, setting, 
frequency, intensity and duration of care delivery.   

 
(b) Concurrent Review - during the course of treatment, a review of treatment 

and planned procedures and establishment of target completion dates. 
 
(c) Retrospective Utilization Review- a review post treatment conducted by an 

experienced registered nurse to identify inappropriate treatment utilization.  
   

(d)  Peer Review - physician-to-physician contact to resolve treatment and 
diagnosis questions.   

 
Page 143 of 526



(8) Prescription Services – Pharmacy program made available to Client’s employees 
whereby a network of pharmacies, local to Employer sites/employee residences will 
provide prescription medications related to the work related injury with no out of 
pocket expenses to the employee. 

(9) Pharmacy review services include a review of all current medications prescribed to 
the claimant as well as a review of over the counter medication being taken by the 
claimant.  The purpose of the review is to evaluate whether the medications 
prescribed to and/or taken by the claimant are appropriate for treatment of the injury 
or ailment which is the subject of the underlying claim being administered by 
Sedgwick.   

 
(10) Telephonic Case Management services are described below and are available upon 

request and for an additional fee. 
 
(11) Complex file review (nurse review) - Hospital or outpatient non-PPO bills that meet 

specific, pre-established criteria may be reviewed by a nurse for possible errors or 
excessive charges relative to the patient’s medical diagnosis.  

 
Additional Managed Care Services 

 
Telephonic Case Management 

Sedgwick will provide a telephonic medical case management program in which nurse case 
managers receive early notice of a worker's injury and telephonically manage the appropriate cases.  
Other elements of the Telephonic Case Management program include: 
 
• The management phase includes ongoing return to work (“RTW”) and treatment plan 

management and negotiation.  The treating physician will be contacted within forty-eight (48) 
hours to assess/determine the treatment and RTW plan, including any negotiation required to 
approve the treatment plan.  The Client may also be contacted to assess/determine RTW 
opportunities.  By continuing to contact the injured worker, the provider, and the Client, case 
management is best able to facilitate early RTW and appropriate treatment. 

 
• The case may go simultaneously to the assigned claim examiner and nurse or the Sedgwick 

claims professional will make initial contacts to determine compensability and triage based on 
preset triggers and/or the claims professional's judgment to determine if the case will be sent to 
a telephonic case management nurse. 

 
• Throughout the telephonic case management process, telephone contact will be made with the 

provider, employee, and Client.  Status reports will be provided, within seventy-two (72)  hours, 
to the claims professional via documentation in the data management system as significant 
events (e.g., surgery, treatment plan updates, RTW status, etc.) occur in a case, and no less often 
than every thirty (30) days.  

 
  If, at the end of thirty (30) days, the case has not closed, the nurse case manager will contact 

the claims professional with a recommendation.  At that time, the case will either: 
♦ Close based on a decision by the claims professional 
♦ Continue with case management on a month-to-month basis until closure and/or RTW 

 
Page 144 of 526



and/or maximum medical improvement (MMI). 
♦ Be referred for Field Case Management 

 
Documentation of this contact will be transmitted electronically to the data management 
system. 

  
• Sedgwick claims offices will receive standard, open, closed, referred, and savings reports.  All 

information collected will allow for insured level, by office reporting.  Client customized 
communication reports may carry an additional charge to be borne directly by Client.  If this is 
the case, these charges will be detailed in a separate document to be agreed upon in writing 
between the parties. 

 
 

Evaluation and Recommendation 
The Sedgwick Evaluation and Recommendation program involves triage contact with the injured 
worker, treating physician and, if appropriate and necessary, Client, to determine treatment and 
return to work (“RTW”) plans and appropriateness for telephonic case management.   
  
• In the evaluation and recommendation phase, a Sedgwick nurse will receive demographic and 

initial claims professional contact information and open the case.  The treating physician will 
be contacted within forty-eight (48) hours to assess/determine the treatment and RTW plan, 
including any negotiation required to approve the treatment plan.  The Client may also be 
contacted to assess/determine RTW opportunities.   

 
• Status reports will be provided, within seventy-two (72) hours to the claims professional via 

documentation in the data management system as significant events (e.g., surgery, treatment 
plan updates, RTW status, etc.) occur in a case, and no less often than every thirty (30) days. 

 
• Continued telephonic case management will proceed on only those cases in which clinical 

activities can assist in resolving medical or RTW issues at the discretion of the Sedgwick claims 
professional.  These activities require regular contact with the injured worker, treating physician 
or therapist, and Client, as appropriate.   

 
Page 145 of 526



SIU SERVICE SCHEDULE 
 

Sedgwick Special Investigations Unit (“Sedgwick SIU”) will provide centralized management of 
investigative service vendors and will maintain a national vendor list of approved service providers 
based upon client or local Sedgwick office preference. Sedgwick SIU will establish quality 
benchmarking and ensure its vendors are properly licensed and maintain insurance coverage as 
mandated in vendor agreements with these firms. 
 
Sedgwick SIU will serve as a central referral and coordination unit providing the following SIU 
services for the fees itemized in Exhibit B: 
 

1. Assessment services including case review, consultation, action plan development, state 
fraud filing, claim file demand and fraud packaging. 
 

2. Field services including surveillance, activity checks, alive and well checks, and on-site 
investigations including recorded statements, AOE/COE, and scene investigations. 
 

3. Research services including comprehensive background checks, internet searches, facility 
canvasses public records, skip tracing, criminal, civil and asset checks. 
 

4. SIU compliance services including carrier and state annual reporting and fraud awareness 
training. 
 

5. And, other services as outlined in Exhibit B. 
   

 
Page 146 of 526



MEDICARE REPORTING SERVICES SCHEDULE 
 

 
To assist the Client in fulfilling Client’s Medicare beneficiary reporting obligations under 
Medicare, Medicaid and State Children’s Health Insurance Program Extension Act of 2007 
(“MMSEA”) Section 111 as set forth in 42 U.S.C. §1395y(b)(7)&(8) and the CMS User Guide 
(“User Guide”) published on March 16, 2009 (and as amended and revised), Sedgwick will perform 
the following reporting services:  
 
1. Sedgwick will electronically interface with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 

(“CMS”) to capture and report data in the format prescribed by the CMS Specifications.  
 

2. Sedgwick will report directly to CMS on behalf of Client as an Account Designee (reporting 
agent), as such term is defined in the CMS User Guide as amended from time to time by 
CMS.   
 

3. Client will be considered a Responsible Reporting Entity (“RRE”) as that term is defined in 
the User Guide. 
a. Client will be responsible for maintaining a valid RRE Identification Number as 

described in the User Guide and is a condition precedent to Sedgwick preforming the 
duties under this section. Failure to maintain the RRE Identification Number will result 
in Sedgwick’s inability to properly report claims on behalf of the Client.  Sedgwick 
assumes no responsibility for maintaining a valid RRE Identification Number on behalf 
of the Client. 

   
4. Sedgwick will assist Client as follows:  

a. Sedgwick will electronically interface with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 
Services (“CMS”) to capture and report data in the format prescribed by the User Guide.  

b. Sedgwick will report directly to CMS on behalf of the Client as an Account Designee 
(reporting agent), and/or Account Manager as such term is defined in the User Guide.  

c. Sedgwick will prepare the required data files and submit them to CMS on a periodic 
basis in order to properly query and report the appropriate files as defined in the User 
Guide.    
 

5. Sedgwick will be responsible for payment of any and all fines assessed to Client regarding 
compliance with the Medicare beneficiary reporting requirements of Medicare, Medicaid 
and SCHIP Extension Act of 2007 that relate to the negligent acts or omissions of Sedgwick 
except to the extent that: 
a. Such fines or penalties are the direct result of specific direction given by Client and/or 

its agent or the actions or omissions of Client and/or its agent; or 
b. Sedgwick did not receive information from Client that is essential to the performance of 

the duties set forth herein in a timely manner so as to be able to comply with the terms 
of this Agreement. 

 

 
Page 147 of 526



BACK TO AGENDA  

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item E. 

GENERAL RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 

INFORMATION ITEM 

ISSUE: The floor will be open to the Board for discussion.

CAJPA: General Liability Data Analysis Project 

RECOMMENDATION: None. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None. 

BACKGROUND: This is an opportunity for members to ask questions or raise issues on risk exposures 
common to the members. 

ATTACHMENT(S): CAJPA: General Liability Data Analysis Project - Final Report

 
Page 148 of 526



 

 

 

California Association of Joint Powers 
Authorities (CAJPA) 
General Liability Data Analysis Project – Final Report 

February 25, 2022 

 

 

 
Page 149 of 526



 

CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 1 
 
 
  

Table of Contents 
Cover Letter ........................................................................................................................ 2 

Executive Summary ............................................................................................................ 3 

Project History ..................................................................................................................... 5 

Funding ............................................................................................................................... 5 

Oversight Committee .......................................................................................................... 6 

Participants ......................................................................................................................... 7 

Phase 1 ............................................................................................................................... 8 

Phase 2 ............................................................................................................................... 9 

Phase 3 ............................................................................................................................. 19 

Appendices ....................................................................................................................... 28 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
Page 150 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 2 
   

Cover Letter 
February 24, 2022 

 
 
Ms. Catherine Smith 
Executive Director 
California Association of Joint Powers Authorities 
700 R Street, Suite 200 
Sacramento, CA   95811 
 
Re: General Liability Data Analysis Project 
 
Dear Catherine, 
 
Thank you for selecting Aon as the consultant to perform this unprecedented study for CAJPA. What 
follows is a detailed analysis based on the data provided by the participants. We hope this report will 
serve as a beginning point of driving change for California public entities. 

It has been our sincere pleasure to serve as your consultant. 

Sincerely,  

 

Julie Theirl    Craig Bowlus 
Senior Vice President   Managing Director 
Public Sector | Pooling   National Pooling Practice Leader 

Contact Information: 
 
425 Market Street, Suite 2800 
San Francisco, CA  94105 
julie.theirl@aon.com 
t: +1.415.486.7355 
m: +1.909.967.9091 

  

 
Page 151 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 3 
   

Executive Summary 
The California public sector is facing an escalating crisis. Evidence obtained from multiple sources 
indicates that California public sector tort liability costs are on the rise and accelerating. Some insurance 
and reinsurance carriers are abandoning the California public sector altogether, or at minimum, 
increasing retentions or carving out certain coverage lines while delivering sharp premium increases.  

We are currently deep into a hard insurance market cycle. The speed in which the market deteriorated 
over the last several years, along with the magnitude of premium increases, is something we have not 
experienced in recent history. The impact to the California public sector has been particularly devastating.  
Due to the lack of tort caps, specialist plaintiff attorneys and a change in jury profiles, awards and 
settlement values are increasing at alarming rates. The values of claims, coupled with the contracting 
insurance marketplace, is leading to an unstainable financial state for California public entities.  

In response to this crisis, CAJPA held many discussions with its Board of Directors and membership to 
discuss what CAJPA might do to help. The result was to conduct a data analysis project aimed at 
identifying the specific loss drivers, quantify the impact, and seek opportunities to create change. 

Findings – Claims Analysis 

For this project, general liability claims from cities, counties, schools, transit agencies and special districts, 
occurring between 1/1/2010 through 12/31/2019 were collected and analyzed, the results of which are 
described throughout this report. In addition to relying on the date of loss, much of the analysis was 
based on files that were closed during the ten-year study period as those values were more reliable than 
developing open claims.  

The total study amassed $8.4B in general liability claims data representing 65% of the California public 
sector. The various analyses conducted show evidence that these costs are increasing dramatically. The 
data is segregated in a way that allows various stakeholder groups to focus on messaging and action.   

Overall, the study documents 300% – 400% increases in the average value of a claim, closed during the 
ten-year study period, based on claims with an incurred value of $25,000 or greater. The following 
describes the trend by claim type:  

 Auto Liability - from $110,000 to $370,000 
 Employment Practices Liability - from $110,000 to $480,000 
 General Liability - from $90,000 to $600,000 
 Law Enforcement - from $100,000 to $800,000 

This pattern is also seen across all entity types: 

 The average Municipal claim has increased from $120,000 to $400,000 
 The average County claim has increased from $100,000 to $290,000 
 The average K-12 claim has increased from $240,000 to $510,000  
 Not enough claims data was available for Special District and Transit (“Other”) claims to develop 

reliable cost increase comparisons 

In addition to analyzing claims based on the loss and entity type, the consultants evaluated the 
compensation being received by plaintiff attorneys from representing cases against public entities. Also 

 
Page 152 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 4 
   

analyzed is the impact from Joint and Several Liability, and several other key areas. All of the results are 
described in the detailed narrative of this report. 

Findings - Insurance Analysis 

To augment the claims analyses (Phases 1 and 2), Aon suggested that collecting data to show the impact 
that claims were having on insurance and self-insurance costs would be an important element to round 
out the study. While it was out of scope, Aon conducted a detailed insurance and self-insurance analysis 
(Phase 3) by collecting additional information from the participants. The following summarizes those 
results: 

The overall cost of self-insurance and excess insurance increased dramatically over the survey period 
(FY 10/11 through FY 21/22) – 

 Cumulative average cost increases of JPA SIR, excess insurance, and assessments combined: 
o All reporting JPAs – 159% 
o Cities – 134% 
o Counties – 250% 
o Schools 150% 
o Others – 158% 

 
 Cumulative average cost increases of self-insurance (JPA SIR): 

o All reporting JPAs – 114% 
o Cities – 91% 
o Counties – 149% 
o Schools – 119%  
o Others – 137% 

 
 Cumulative average cost increase of JPA excess insurance: 

o All reporting JPAs – 270% 
o Cities – 250% 
o Counties – 1,348% 
o Schools – 202% 
o Others 195% 

Detailed graphs and summaries are included in the section entitled “Phase 3”. 

Recommendations 

 Create a campaign to educate the legislature on the results of this study 
 Contemplate what the data says about expenses on large losses 
 Consider periodically updating the study to keep it fresh 
 Develop a version of the report that is suitable for public distribution 

 

  

 
Page 153 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 5 
   

Project History 
To determine the likely outcome of conducting a statewide study of tort liability losses, CAJPA retained 
the services of Greg Trout. The following is an excerpt from the Trout Consulting Report, dated August 
27, 2018:  
 
“Because of the concerns expressed by its memberships, CAJPA authorized a study of the feasibility of 
collecting historical data on the cost of liability claims and related expenses. the feasibility of collecting 
historical data on the cost of liability claims and related expenses. Although JPA administrators, defense 
attorneys, actuaries, and claims administrators have recognized growing costs, there are no centralized 
data sources that can measure and confirm the extent and severity of the problem. Without the ability to 
measure the growth of tort liability costs over time and to identify the cost drivers, efforts to improve risk 
management practices and advocate for changes in existing tort law are seriously hampered.” 
  
In his report, Trout commented about the potential cost of the project, study parameters, who should 
participate, and the likely outcome. Ultimately, Trout recommended that CAJPA move forward with the 
study. 

Before embarking on a full-scaled project, the CAJPA board decided that an implementation plan should 
be commissioned. The scope of work should include identifying funding sources; developing an RFP for 
claims data collection, data analysis and project management along with a list of potential firms to 
conduct the work; develop the scope of work; potential participants; develop a decision-making timeline; 
and create a comprehensive budget. Based on their work conducting similar studies, Aon was hired to 
create an implementation plan, which was completed on May 10, 2019.  

In June 2019, CAJPA released an RFP to hire a consultant to complete the project.  Several firms 
responded, and Aon was selected at the successful firm.  Julie Theirl of Aon served as the project 
manager, who was further supported by Craig Bowlus (data and analytics) and Mujtaba Datoo (actuarial 
services). An agreement between CAJPA and Aon was executed on November 21, 2019. Aon also 
partnered with Bickmore Actuarial (Mark Priven, Nina Gau and Mark Harrington) who provided invaluable 
assistance with completing the actuarial activities associated with Phase 1 of the project.  

Funding 
The first step of the project was to secure funding support to help offset the $395,000 project fee. The 
project team was tasked with raising $200,000 by soliciting financial contributions from CAJPA members.  
Initial efforts secured $220,000 in funding.  Additional outreach brought the total to $261,000. The 
balance of the project costs would be funded from CAJPA reserves. The following members have 
generously provided a financial contribution: 

 Alameda County Schools Insurance Group (ACSIG) 
 Alliance of Schools for Cooperative Insurance Programs (ASCIP) 
 Association of California Water Agencies JPIA (ACWA JPIA)    
 Authority for California Cities Excess Liability (ACCEL)    
 Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority (BCJPIA)   
 Butte Schools Self-Funded Programs (BSSFP)   
 California Association for Park & Recreation Indemnity (CAPRI)    
 California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (CJPIA)    
 California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority (CJPRMA)   
 California Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA) 

 
Page 154 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 6 
   

 California Schools Risk Management JPA (CSRM)    
 California Transit Indemnity Pool (CalTIP) 
 Central Region School Insurance Group (CRSIG)    
 Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA)   
 Fire Agencies Insurance Risk Authority (FAIRA) 
 Golden State Risk Management Authority (GSRMA)    
 Independent Cities Risk Management Authority (ICRMA)    
 Monterey Bay Area Self-Insurance Authority (MBASIA) 
 Municipal Pooling Authority (MPA)    
 North Bay Schools Insurance Authority (NBSIA)    
 Northern California Cities Self-Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 
 Northern California Schools Insurance Group (NCSIG) 
 PRISM, formerly CSAC-EIA 
 Public Agency Risk Sharing Authority of California (PARSAC)    
 Public Entity Risk Management Authority (PERMA) 
 Public Risk Innovation, Solutions, and Management (PRISM) 
 Redwood Empire Schools Insurance Group (RESIG)    
 San Diego & Imperial County Schools Risk Management 
 San Mateo County Schools Insurance Group (SMCSIG)   
 Schools Excess Liability Fund (SELF)    
 Schools Insurance Authority (SIA) 
 Schools Insurance Group (SIG)   
 Self-Insured Schools of California (SISC)   
 Shasta-Trinity Schools Insurance Group (STSIG) 
 Small Cities Organized Risk Effort (SCORE) 
 South Bay Area Schools Insurance Authority (SBSIA) 
 Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA)   
 Yolo County Public Agency Risk Management Insurance Authority (YCPARMIA)  

Oversight Committee 

The next step in the process was to assemble an Oversight Committee. Facilitated by the project 
consultants Julie Theirl and Craig Bowlus of Aon, the following CAJPA members graciously agreed to 
serve on the committee: 

 Andy Sells – Chair, ACWA JPIA 
 Stephan Birgel, ASCIP 
 Martin Brady, SIA 
 Tony Giles, CJPRMA 
 Laura Gill, SDRMA 
 Lam Le, CJPIA 
 Norm Lefmann, CJPIA 
 Chrissy Mack, CalTIP 
 Mike Pott, PRISM 
 Doug Ross, SAFER 
 Craig Schweikhard, SMCSIG 
 Janet Selby, NBSIA 
 Erike Young, PARSAC 

 
Page 155 of 526



 

CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 7 
 
 
  

 
The role of the committee was to provide guidance on the various components of the project which 
included selecting participants, approving the data call parameters, reviewing various stages of the 
project, and providing general input and feedback.    

Participants 
It was recommended by the consultants, and approved by the Oversight Committee and Board, that the 
following guidelines would be used to develop the list of participants: 

 Include at least 50% of the California public sector in the study, using payroll as a qualifier 
 Equal representation of cities, counties, and K-12 schools 

Using the parameters stated above, the following entities were identified as possible data contributors: 

 Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA JPIA)    
 Authority for California Cities Excess Liability (ACCEL)    
 Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority (BCJPIA) 
 California Transit Indemnity Pool (CalTIP) 
 City of Fresno 
 California Joint Powers Insurance Authority (CJPIA) 
 California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority (CJPRMA) 
 County of Los Angeles 
 Independent Cities Risk Management Authority (ICRMA) 
 North Bay Schools Insurance Authority (NBSIA) 
 Public Risk, Innovation, Solutions and Management (PRISM), formerly CSAC-EIA 
 Redwood Empire Schools Insurance Group (RESIG) 
 San Diego Transit Authority 
 Schools Association for Excess Risk (SAFER) 
 Schools Excess Liability Fund (SELF) 
 Schools Insurance Authority (SIA) 
 Self-Insured Schools of California (SISC)   
 Special Districts Risk Management Authority (SDRMA) 

 
Many of these organizations, including PRISM, SAFER and SELF, represent underlying CAJPA member 
JPAs whose data was included in the study. The full listing is in the Appendices.  

To validate if the threshold of including at least 50% of the California public sector in the study was met, 
the consultants used payroll to determine the size of the proposed participant group.  When comparing 
the total California payroll for the public sector, with the payroll reported for the proposed participant 
group, it was concluded that 65% of the California public sector would be captured in the study; therefore, 
the proposed participant group would suffice. 

 
Page 156 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 8 
   

Project Payroll State Payroll

$71,935,054,176 $96,010,518,975 75%

$71,088,906,500 $96,686,540,961 74%

$71,729,617,742 $101,696,420,784 71%

$72,944,772,724 $117,701,300,431 62%

$75,386,694,066 $124,128,366,837 61%

$76,857,798,095 $121,159,084,911 63%

$77,478,675,236 $124,438,314,900 62%

$78,778,295,073 $131,172,209,036 60%

$596,199,813,612 $912,992,756,835 65% 66%

2016‐17

2017‐18

2018‐19

2011‐12

2012‐13

2013‐14

2014‐15

2015‐16

 

Once the data had been collected and evaluated, the consultants would be able to confirm if the collective 
entities would be fairly represented in the study. 

Phase 1  
Phase 1 of the study was intended to collect and aggregate participant data to validate the study group 
characteristics, and to develop the basis for Phase 2, which would be focused on analyzing claim trends.  
The Phase 1 data call asked participants to provide ten years of ground up, uncapped losses occurring 
between 1/1/2010 and 12/31/2019, valued as of 12/31/2019.  It was estimated that approximately 
100,000 claims would be included in this phase of the project. 

Ultimately 183,244 “non-zero dollar” claims were collected, equaling $8.4B in total incurred values. 

$0+ $500K+ $750K+ $1M+ $5M+

Couties 40,944 22% 948 33% 613 33% 448 33% 59 31%

Cities 73,587 40% 974 34% 627 34% 436 32% 55 29%

K‐12 61,492 34% 821 29% 559 30% 434 32% 71 38%

All Others 7,221 4% 87 3% 50 3% 35 3% 4 2%

183,244 100% 2,830 100% 1,849 100% 1,353 100% 189 100%  

 

Total Incurred by Entity Type and Value  

($000s) $0+ $500K+ $750+K $1M+ $5M+

Counties $2,529,019 29% 1,659,566$  33% $1,456,475 32% $1,315,520 32% $559,464 31%

Cities $2,844,235 34% 1,629,150$  32% $1,420,924 31% $1,257,096 31% $524,672 29%

K‐12 $2,812,517 34% 1,680,436$  33% $1,522,549 34% $1,413,854 35% $693,336 38%

All Others $274,272 3% 136,123$     3% $114,141 3% $101,830 2% $49,501 3%

$8,460,043 100% $5,105,275 100% $4,514,089 100% $4,088,300 100% $1,826,973 100%

60% 53% 48% 22%  

It was validated through a combination of claim counts and total incurred values that cities, counties and 
schools were equally represented in the study if relying on the proposed participant group. The next task 
was to determine the claims threshold to use for Phase 2. Given that claims with a total incurred value of 

 
Page 157 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 9 
   

$1M or greater represented nearly half of the $8.4B in values, the consultants recommended focusing on 
$1M+ claims in Phase 2. The Oversight Committee and Board agreed. 

Next steps included closing out Phase 1, identifying claims with a value of $1M+, finalizing and issuing 
the Phase 2 data call. 

Phase 2 
From the Phase 1 data, files with a total incurred value greater than $1M were identified and subjected to 
in an in-depth analysis. The consultants created a data collection form to help participants report the 
requested details, which was pre-populated with claims information obtained from the original loss runs.  
After conferring with the Oversight Committee about which types of claims might provide tort reform 
opportunities, it was agreed that the study should focus on claims with one or more of these 
characteristics: Joint & Several Liability, Inverse Condemnation, or Life Care plans. Also, to be analyzed 
was plaintiff attorney expenses. The data collected would be used to further define the analysis as 
follows: 

 Evaluate the effects of Joint & Several (J&S) Liability - 
o Limit the study to $1M and over incurred value claims 
o How many and what kind of claims generate J&S exposure? 
o What is the overall economic impact to the public sector? 
o Does this impact support a future effort at legislative relief? 
o Does this impact support an effort to change jury instructions? 

 Determine if there is enough activity around Inverse Condemnation to support any legislative 
initiatives 

 Look for trends associated with Life Care Plans to support any legislative initiatives 
 Evaluate plaintiff attorney costs 
 Create benchmarking data 

Joint & Several Liability  

In California, Joint & Several Liability (J&S) is an adopted version of an old common law version which 
says that more than one party can be jointly responsible for the full amount of a claimant’s economic 
damages, but only separately (severally) liable for their non-economic damages in proportion to their 
percentage of fault.  It was the consensus of the project team and Oversight Committee that J&S issues 
associated with large losses paid by California government entities should be analyzed.  Since nearly half 
of the total incurred in the study came from the 1,353 occurrences with values of $1M or more, this was 
used as the definition of a “large loss”.   

The 1,353 large losses were used as the source for the J&S analyses. Only closed files can generate a 
true indication if J&S liability was involved in a claims resolution.  Removing open claims from the sample 
reduced the count to 451 closed occurrences with approximately $1.53B in losses. Certain claim types, 
such as law enforcement liability and employment practices, do not generate J&S exposure which were 
removed from this phase of the analysis.  Once those claim types were removed, 125 closed occurrence 
candidates with a total of $537M in incurred value remained.  This included $501M in loss and $36M in 
expense.   

 
Page 158 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 10 
   

To determine how much of the $501M in loss values was associated with J&S, the following claims detail 
was collected - 

 What was the loss payment? 
 How much of this payment was associated with economic damages? 
 What was the true liability associated with the entity’s alleged negligence? 
 An estimate the portion of the settlement or award that was paid by the entity, regardless of their 

actual percentage of true liability (ex: the entity had 1% negligence but paid 90% of the total 
award/settlement due to J&S)? 

In most cases, completing this process required claims handlers to make some estimates.  Economic 
damages are subject to negotiation as they are uniformly inflated by plaintiff attorneys when large claims 
are being resolved.  Similarly, a claims committee’s exposure assessment on a claim will usually be less 
than that of a plaintiff attorney or jury.  Claims handlers were asked to provide “reasonable estimates 
based on what you think the true liability really was versus what was actually paid by the entity”, typically 
resulting in a delta (ex: true liability of 1% = $100,000 of a $10M settlement or award, versus the entity 
paying $9M of a $10M settlement or award due to J&S, representing a delta of $8,900,000).   

The following table represents the outcome of the study that attempted to capture the effects of J&S: 

 
Loss %  Expense  % Incurred Economic 

Damages 
% 
Paid 

 Delta    % of 
Loss 

Auto Liability                   

19 $90,368,000 92.9 $6,373,000 7.1 $95,024,000 $60,511,000 67.0 $41,889,000 46.4 

Average   $4,756,000      $335,000     $5,001,000   $3,184,000     $2,204,000   

Dangerous 
Conditions 

                  

41 $136,342,000 91.3 $13,009,000 8.7 $149,066,000 $75,720,000 55.6 $52,518,000 38.5 

Average     $3,325,000        $317,000       $3,636,000   $1,847,000      $1,281,000   

Other                   

9 $62,402,000 94.4 $3,742,000 5.6 $66,970,000 $16,444,000 26.4 $4,470,000 7.2% 

Average   $6,933,000       $416,000      $7,441,000    $1,827,000       $497,000   

SAM                   

56 $211,988,000 94.0 $13,356,000 6.0 $224,216,000 $9,512,000 4.5% $4,571,000 2.2% 

Average      
$3,786,000 

       $239,000        
$4,004,000 

    $170,000        $82,000   

J&S                    

125 $501,099,000 93.2 $36,484,000 6.8 $537,276,000 $162,188,000 30.3 $103,718,000 20.7 

Average      
$4,009,000 

       $292,000       $4,282,000     $1,298,000          $830,000   

 

To summarize:  

 There were 19 Auto Liability occurrences identified with J&S exposure. These claims resulted in paid 
losses of $90.4M and generated a $41.9M in economic delta. As such, 46.4% of payments made 
towards loss on these occurrences were J&S influenced.   

 Dangerous conditions cases commonly created settlements where J&S was influential. A total of 
$136M was paid on 41 occurrences with J&S exposure, with a $53M delta (38.5%). A high 
percentage of dangerous conditions cases involved crosswalks. 

 
Page 159 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 11 
   

 Sexual abuse and molestation (SAM) cases, typically presented by K-12 respondents, have a viable 
co-defendant (the perpetrator), but rarely does a perpetrator have enough money to contribute 
towards a case resolution. It is not uncommon to see that the perpetrator is at least 50% at fault in a 
SAM cases. Historically, SAM claims have involved minors, and the alleged economic damages have 
usually been limited to some form of psychological treatment.  As such, offsets for J&S influenced 
economic damages were minimal. In the study sample, economics only amounted to 4.5% of the total 
of $212M in losses and only generated a 2.2% delta. This is not going to be the case with AB 218 
claims, where the plaintiffs are usually adults who will argue significant economic damages 
associated with life changes caused by molestation. One can anticipate that alleged economic 
damages for AB 218 claims will increase to at least 25% of the settlement value creating a delta of 
something in the 13% range. This is an important factor as the value of SAM cases is rapidly 
escalating. 

 There were 9 “other” occurrences where J&S was a factor, generating a delta of $4.47M against 
$62.4M in losses (26.4%). 

In total, the 125 large cases examined generated $501M in loss and an economic delta of $104M.  This 
$104M represents 4.6% of the 1,353 $1M+ file sample.  If we apply 4.6% to the total sample of $8.46B, 
the result is $389M.  To view the state’s public sector as a whole (100%), we can gross up the data which 
estimates $600M over ten years, or $60M per year as the probable net effect of joint and several liability 
on California public entities.   

Inverse Condemnation 

Inverse condemnation claims are filed by a private property owner when they believe the government’s 
actions have resulted in a taking of the property without full compensation. This theory has been used to 
support a wide variety of claims, principally against municipalities and special districts. There were only 
13 files with total incurred values in excess of $1M where inverse condemnation was shown on a loss 
run. The total incurred of these claims was $27M, or about $1.35M per occurrence. The relatively low 
number of inverse claims, along with recent positive changes in California case law, do not make inverse 
condemnation a high value target for any legislative change effort. One additional finding with respect to 
inverse claims is that expense ratios on these files were very high, with expenses running around 30% of 
total incurred which is about 3 times higher than almost all other loss types in the $1M+ range.   

Life Care Plans 

A life care plan is a dynamic document based upon published standards of practice, comprehensive 
assessment, data analysis, and research, which provides an organized, concise plan for current and 
future needs with associated costs for individuals who have experienced catastrophic injury or have 
chronic health care needs.  We attempted to collect data on life care plans to determine if there was some 
way to use the data, but it proved to be too difficult for many adjusters to extract from files. Part of that 
difficulty stems from the fact that the plaintiff attorney has their plan, the defense team has their own, and 
they typically meet in the middle on a settlement.  Pulling both sets of numbers, and their documented 
value on the final compromise value, was not something that we were able to accomplish on enough files 
to be statistically meaningful. 

Year-Over-Year Loss Trends  

Over the past few years, there has been widespread discussions within the public sector about how 
claims costs are rapidly increasing. After reviewing the loss runs submitted by the study participants, we 
concluded that a deeper analysis would allow us to clearly address several related issues that many 

 
Page 160 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 12 
   

executives in the public sector, and their lobbyists, have asked for in the past. Some of the most frequent 
questions include: 

 What have the cost trends been over the past ten years? 
 Are those trends the same for municipalities, counties, K-12 and other public entities? 
 Which entities are the most adversely affected? 
 Are those costs truly accelerating? 
 Just how much money is involved? 
 How much of that money is going to plaintiff attorneys? 

To ensure we made the most out of the data, for these analyses, we selected a minimum total incurred 
value of $25,000, on closed claim as the baseline. Only files which had been closed were included, and 
the data was then sorted by the calendar year based on the year the claim was closed. It is important to 
note that while the study encompassed claims with a date of loss between 1/1/2010 through 12/31/2019, 
during the Phase 2 data call, some participants provided information regarding claims that closed in 2020 
which we included in the following analyses, even though it was out of range of the underlying study. Per 
the direction of the actuaries, we removed a few “outliers” from the study as their values significantly 
skewed the averages. 

As noted above, in order to meet the parameters of the study, we needed a “date closed” associated with 
a loss which was not provided for all closed claims. The resulting database was still significant and highly 
reliable. It includes 13,444 files with a total closed incurred of $3.753B for an average paid incurred of 
$271,000 per occurrence. Dramatic increases in both the number of $25,000+ occurrences and their total 
closed incurred values are seen over time, across the entire public sector. The most stunning increases 
were found in law enforcement and K-12 claims. The following exhibit tracks the number of occurrences 
of closed claims, $25,000+ in value, in a given calendar year. 

For the following exhibits, the collection methodology to only include closed files over $25,000 resulted in 
fewer entries in 2019 and 2020. The values in those years will eventually increase as remaining claims 
mature and close. And as claims mature, it is highly probable that the upward trends seen in previous 
years will continue, if not accelerate.  

Using a $25,000 floor results in averages that are significantly higher than those we would see with a floor 
of $1.00.  We can supplement this study with a similar one using a $1.00 baseline, but the focus here is 
on those files most likely to have a significant economic impact, and those files associated with litigation. 

 
Page 161 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 13 
   

Number of Claims Closed, by Calendar Year, by Entity Type 

 

“SD&O” is Special Districts and Other 

The following is a graph depicting the number of $25,000 closed files by calendar year. 

 

 

The next exhibit depicts the average total incurred value of these claims by year.  As with the prior exhibit, 
only closed files with a total incurred value of $25,000+ were analyzed. 

Year City County K‐12 SD&O Transit Total

2010 162 10 290 12 9 483

2011 177 59 310 30 23 599

2012 291 208 269 63 16 847

2013 500 360 335 89 11 1295

2014 502 429 292 96 15 1334

2015 572 566 352 93 13 1602

2016 603 673 352 99 11 1738

2017 665 667 367 117 18 1834

2018 732 806 361 92 13 2004

2019 625 599 221 96 4 1545

2020 48 110 0 5 1 164

Total 4877 4487 3149 792 134 13445

 
Page 162 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 14 
   

Average Incurred Value of Closed Claims, by Calendar Year, by Entity  

 

Total paid and average paid closed incurred are both increasing rapidly. 

Other trends found in the study are noteworthy. There is an increase in the average value of closed files, 
over time, in all entity and claim types. The data is most robust from 2013 – 2018.  Closed file counts drop 
off in 2019 and 2020 based purely on the selection parameters, not through any true reduction in 
probable ultimate claims counts. This data shows an average increase from $162,000 per occurrence in 
2013 to an average of $359,000 in 2018. Trending for 2020 is even higher, but it’s too early to validate.  
One must assume that 2019 and 2020 will continue to rise, which is especially true for Sexual Abuse and 
Molestation (SAM) claims.  

Average values of closed $25,000+ claims are increasing across all entity types. Significant increases are 
seen with cities, counties and K-12.  Much of the K-12 increase is associated with SAM.  

 
Page 163 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 15 
   

A detailed analysis of SAM history associated with K-12 in California, including all ground-up data, has 
already been supplied to participants in an earlier Aon study. This study has been updated and is in the 
process of being finalized. 

The blue section on the SAM graph shows the results without a large outlier.  Solid green includes that 
occurrence. 

When we carve out SAM as a separate exposure and include it on a “claim type” graph, the values are so 
large that they significantly flatten the curves for the balance of claim types.  

 

 
Page 164 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 16 
   

Plaintiff Attorney Fee Projections 

While it is difficult to report precisely what plaintiff firms in California are collecting as income from public 
sector claims, we can draw general conclusions using reasonable assumptions. $25,000+ closed files in 
the sample, including those where we do not have closure dates, total $4.5B. The vast majority of these 
claims would have been litigated. To estimate plaintiff attorney fees, we must first carve defense attorney 
fees. The study results show that defense costs average 14% of the total incurred. After eliminating 
defense costs, the balance is $3.9B in losses over ten years. Conservatively, plaintiff attorneys are 
earning 35% in fees. If we multiple $3.9B by 35%, the result is $1.4B in plaintiff attorney fees from the 
public sector over the past ten years, or an average of $140M per year. Given that our sample only 
represents 65% of the state, to gross this number to 100%, the total is $2.15B or $215M per year. 

The ten-year average of $215M has become a distant memory. In the 2018 calendar year, where the data 
is most robust, we have $737M in total incurred values where we have closed dates. This total is 
increased by 20% to account for closed files where a closed date was not provided. When added 
together, there would be approximately $921M in total incurred values. When grossing up to represent 
100% of the state, the total incurred is $1.4B. Using the same methodology as described in the prior 
paragraph, plaintiff attorney fees rose to an estimated $421M. Based on these trends, it is probable that 
plaintiff firms will receive well over $500M from the public sector in 2022. 

Other Coverage Related Data Trends 

As with the prior analysis, only files where we could identify the date close were used; therefore, in the 
earlier years, such as 2010, 2011, 2012, claim counts were low because the date of loss predated the 
losses that were collected as part of the underlying study. Same for the later years, 2019 and 2020 as not 
all claims had yet been reported or closed. 

Increasing costs are seen across all claim types, in all bands of incurred value. While it was not always 
possible to delineate what specific type of coverage was involved from some of the loss runs, we were 
able to capture data on 8,710 files by class of losses like Auto, GL, EPL, etc. These claim types include 
claims from all entity types (i.e. cities, schools, counties, etc.). This sample does not encompass the 
entire $25,000+ loss set because some files could simply not be classified based on the information 
provided. The results which follow mirror developments seen in the larger sample:  

Employment Practices 

 

EPL Count Total Average

 $25K ‐ 

$99,999 

$100K ‐ 

$499,999

$500K ‐ 

$999,999

$1M ‐ 

$4,999,999

$5M ‐ 

$9,999,999 $10M + Largest

2010 6 $574,000 $96,000 4 2 0 0 0 0 $261K

2011 23 $1,743,000 $76,000 18 5 0 0 0 0 $166K

2012 81 $10,268,000 $127,000 51 27 3 0 0 0 $870K

2013 175 $27,495,000 $157,000 92 74 7 3 0 0 $1.242M

2014 198 $34,904,000 $176,000 118 67 6 3 0 0 $1.244M

2015 201 $51,153,000 $254,000 137 96 24 7 0 0 $3.051M

2016 260 $64,246,000 $247,000 118 118 15 9 0 0 $4.260M

2017 272 $61,344,000 $226,000 138 114 12 7 1 0 $6.464M

2018 250 $64,657,000 $259,000 105 122 15 8 1 0 $7.080M

2019 225 $52,876,000 $235,000 87 107 26 5 0 0 $1.140M

2020 38 $18,057,000 $475,000 12 18 5 5 0 0 $4.852M

1729 $387,317,000 $224,000 880 750 113 47 2 0

 
Page 165 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 17 
   

Law Enforcement 

 

Note the significant increase in the average value of a law enforcement claims between 2013 and 2019. 
Values have nearly tripled. Also note the increase in the number of $1M+ claims. 

Errors and Omissions 

 

In the exhibit above, only Errors and Omissions claims are analyzed. There are not enough claims coded 
to this cause to draw reliable conclusions. 

  

Law 

Enforcement Count Total Average

 $25K ‐ 

$99,999 

$100K ‐ 

$499,999

$500K ‐ 

$999,999

$1M ‐ 

$4,999,999

$5M ‐ 

$9,999,999 $10M + Largest

2010 0 $0 $0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2011 6 $324,000 $54,000 6 0 0 0 0 0 $75K

2012 32 $3,001,000 $94,000 23 9 0 0 0 0 $435K

2013 78 $16,296,000 $209,000 46 23 6 3 0 0 $2.056M

2014 123 $25,414,000 $206,000 69 41 9 4 0 0 $2.303M

2015 148 $37,659,000 $254,000 81 54 9 3 1 0 $6.682M

2016 169 $54,443,000 $322,000 81 59 17 11 1 0 $5.635M

2017 174 $69,817,000 $401,000 78 67 10 17 1 1 $10.643M

2018 162 $79,581,000 $491,000 79 53 12 17 0 1 $16.414M

2019 111 $67,635,000 $609,000 52 30 8 20 1 0 $6.841M

2020 49 $39,730,000 $811,000 25 11 4 6 3 0 $7.615M

1052 $393,900,000 $374,000 540 347 75 81 7 2

E&O Count Total Average

 $25K ‐ 

$99,999 

$100K ‐ 

$499,999

$500K ‐ 

$999,999

$1M ‐ 

$4,999,999

$5M ‐ 

$9,999,999 $10M + Largest

2010 2 $104,000 $57,000 2 0 0 0 0 0 $75K

2011 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2012 4 $369,000 $92,000 3 1 0 0 0 0 $135K

2013 10 $1,580,000 $158,000 6 3 1 0 0 0 $809K

2014 7 $391,000 $56,000 6 1 0 0 0 0 $118K

2015 10 $1,070,000 $107,000 9 0 1 0 0 0 $622K

2016 13 $4,020,000 $309,000 5 5 2 1 0 0 $1.187M

2017 7 $856,000 $122,000 4 3 0 0 0 0 $334K

2018 14 $1,073,000 $77,000 12 2 0 0 0 0 $208K

2019 10 $3,860,000 $386,000 5 4 0 1 0 0 $2.871M

2020 0 $0 $0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0.00

77 $13,323,000 $173,000 52 19 4 2 0 0

 
Page 166 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 18 
   

General Liability 

 

Member Benchmarking Study Metrics  

We captured metrics for expense ratios on large ($1M+) files. Some of the original loss runs supplied by 
participants included both loss and expense totals. Just over 600 closed occurrences in the $1M and over 
portion of the study included this information. The total incurred on 612 files in this portion of the study 
was $1.842B. The average expense on such an occurrence was $361,000, or 13.6%.  Again, using only 
closed files, we analyzed expense as a percentage of total incurred, across various claims types (law 
enforcement, GL, Auto, dangerous conditions, etc.). 

 Average incurred loss and expense as a percentage of the total incurred and on all closed $1M+ files 
were measured for various claims types - 

o Auto Liability 
o Dangerous Conditions 
o Employment Practices Liability 
o Law Enforcement 
o Sexual Abuse & Molestation 
o Other 

 Specific trends seen in these loss categories were identified 

A summary of expense factors on these large occurrences follows: 

 # Expense Average % Loss Average Incurred 

Auto 98 $26,854,000 $274,000 7.6 $324,252,000 $3,309,000 $351,083,000 

Dangerous Condition 98 $27,694,000 $283,000 9.2 $272,820,000 $2,784,000 $300,495,000 

EPL 69 $39,530,000 $573,000 30.2   $90,292,000 $1,309,000 $130,821,000 

Law Enforcement 164 $51,705,000 $414,000 13.9 $328,121,000 $2,625,000 $468,510,000 

GL/Other 125 $51,705,000 $414,000 13.6 $328,121,000 $2,625,000 $379,823,000 

SAM   58 $17,738,000 $306,000 8.4 $193,259,000 $3,332,000 $210,949,000 

Total 612 $220,808,000 $361,000 13.6 $1,619,953,000 $2,647,000 $1,841,730,000 

 

GL Count Total Average

 $25K ‐ 

$99,999 

$100K ‐ 

$499,999

$500K ‐ 

$999,999

$1M ‐ 

$4,999,999

$5M ‐ 

$9,999,999 $10M + Largest

2010 23 $1,971,000 $86,000 18 4 1 0 0 0 $556K

2011 112 $6,497,000 $58,000 97 15 0 0 0 0 $277K

2012 332 $28,275,000 $85,000 277 49 3 2 0 0 $2.628M

2013 593 $77,672,000 $131,000 447 133 7 4 2 0 $9.005M

2014 600 $103,366,000 $173,000 408 157 17 15 3 0 $8.013M

2015 727 $151,406,000 $208,000 479 209 24 11 3 1 $18.690M

2016 817 $194,708,000 $238,000 516 239 26 31 3 2 $15.534M

2017 805 $212,450,000 $263,000 468 255 36 42 5 0 $9.667M

2018 922 $259,078,000 $281,000 543 282 43 55 2 1 $23.078M

2019 703 $205,913,000 $293,000 416 209 34 42 3 1 $10.1M

2020 58 $35,574,000 $613,000 32 16 8 2 1 1 $12.224M

5692 $1,276,910,000 $224,000 3701 1568 199 204 22 6

 
Page 167 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 19 
   

Phase 3  
After presenting the initial project findings to the CAJPA Board, the consultants suggested that the one 
thing missing from the analysis was the impact to insurance and self-insurance from tort liability claims 
trends. A 3rd and final phase of the project included the collection and analysis of insurance data from the 
participants.  

Data collected covered program years FY 10/11 through FY 21/22 and was obtained from all of the JPA 
participants except for one that declined to participate. The following was collected: 

 Pool self-insured retention and cost 
 Excess insurance limits and cost 
 Assessments and cost 
 Total program cost to include all of the above 

In total, $2.6B, representing the cost of self-insurance, excess insurance and assessments was amassed. 
Several caveats should be noted: 

 The data does not include the cost of self-insurance retained by the underlying member agencies 
 While we did collect information pertaining to increases in SIRs, reductions in limits and other 

coverage changes, it would require another more in-depth study to actuarially determine the impact 
and ultimate cost 

 The data does not account for changes in membership (i.e. new members added or removed) 

 

Disclaimer: The analysis reported in the following charts, graphs and summaries is informational only and 
not to be relied upon for rate setting, funding or for other financial purposes. 

 

 
Page 168 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 20 
   

Total Program Cost (JPA SIR + Insurance + Assessments) – Cities, Counties, Schools & All Others 

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase from FY 10/11 to FY 21/22 is 159%. In FY 10/11, the average 
total cost was $9.4M, while in 21/22, the average cost increased to $24.3M. Average program limits 
stayed relative flat during the analysis period ranging from $32M to $33M.  

Total Program Cost (JPA SIR + Insurance + Assessments) - Cities 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase from FY 10/11 to FY 21/22 is 134%. In FY 10/11, the average 
total cost was $12M, while in 21/22, the average cost increased to $28.5M. Average program limits 
fluctuated between $34M and $40M.  

‐ 2.1% 5.6% 5.8% ‐ 3.7%
9.1%

10.3% ‐ 3.1%
7.7%

23.0%

23.8%

28.5%

‐ 0.9% 0.0% 0.0% 0.9% 1.8% 0.0% 0.2% 0.0%
3.5%

‐ 3.8% ‐ 1.6%

‐5%

10%

25%

40%

55%

70%

85%

100%

115%

130%

145%

160%

175%

190%

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average Annual Total Cost w/Assessment Average Total Insurance Limit (incl. SIR) YoY Increase Total Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

‐ 1.2%
14.6%

14.2%

‐14.7%
7.1% ‐ 0.8% ‐ 0.5% 3.1%

16.2%

16.5%

43.9%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.5% 0.0%

18.0%
‐ 3.3%

‐10.3%

‐5%

10%

25%

40%

55%

70%

85%

100%

115%

130%

145%

160%

175%

190%

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average Annual Total Cost w/Assessment Average Total Insurance Limit (incl. SIR) YoY Increase Total Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

 
Page 169 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 21 
   

Total Program Cost (JPA SIR + Insurance + Assessments) – Counties

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase from FY 10/11 to FY 21/22 is 250%. In FY 10/11, the average 
total cost was $23M, while in 21/22, the average cost increased to $80.3M. Average program limits 
stayed flat throughout the study period at $25M. 

Total Program Cost (JPA SIR + Insurance + Assessments) - Schools

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase from FY 10/11 to FY 21/22 is 150%. In FY 10/11, the average 
total cost was $5.7M, while in 21/22, the average cost increased to $14.2M. Average program limits 
fluctuated between $31M and $36M. 

‐ 8.3%
‐ 4.6% ‐ 2.6%

19.1%
10.9% 1.3%

13.4%

10.5%

38.2%

42.0%

24.6%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

‐5%

10%

25%

40%

55%

70%

85%

100%

115%

130%

145%

160%

175%

190%

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

$60,000,000

$70,000,000

$80,000,000

$90,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average Annual Total Cost w/Assessment Average Total Insurance Limit (incl. SIR) YoY Increase Total Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

‐ 4.2%
‐ 6.5% 0.4% 7.6% 9.8%

45.8%

‐25.0%
12.4%

28.7%

33.5%
11.3%

0.0% 0.0% 0.1%
2.4% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

‐ 5.5%

‐ 7.2%

7.9%

‐5%

10%

25%

40%

55%

70%

85%

100%

115%

130%

145%

160%

175%

190%

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average Annual Total Cost w/Assessment Average Total Insurance Limit (incl. SIR) YoY Increase Total Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

 
Page 170 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 22 
   

Total Program Cost (JPA SIR + Insurance + Assessments) - All Others

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase from FY 10/11 to FY 21/22 is 158%. In FY 10/11, the average 
total cost was $7.4M, while in 21/22, the average cost increased to $19.1M. Average program limits 
fluctuated between $26.2M and $28.7M. 

JPA Self-Insured Retention – Cities, Counties, Schools & All Others

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase from FY 10/11 to FY 21/22 was 114%. The average cost in FY 
10/11 was $6.7M, while in FY 21/22 was $14.4M. The average SIR stayed relative flat, ranging between 
$2.6M and $3M. 

2.6% 4.7% ‐ 5.6% 4.5%
12.3% 7.4%

10.0%
10.3%

19.4%
12.0%

24.3%

‐ 4.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

9.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
‐ 4.8% 0.5% 0.0%

‐5%

10%

25%

40%

55%

70%

85%

100%

115%

130%

145%

160%

175%

190%

$0

$10,000,000

$20,000,000

$30,000,000

$40,000,000

$50,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average Annual Total Cost w/Assessment Average Total Insurance Limit (incl. SIR) YoY Increase Total Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

‐ 2.5% 5.9%

13.0%
‐ 8.6%

6.6%

10.8% ‐ 1.2%

9.7%

16.5%

13.1%

18.9%

3.9% 2.1% 0.5% ‐ 6.2% 0.0% 2.8% ‐ 2.7% 10.5% 1.0% ‐ 5.4% 5.2%

‐10%

5%

20%

35%

50%

65%

80%

95%

110%

125%

140%

155%

170%

185%

200%

$0

$4,000,000

$8,000,000

$12,000,000

$16,000,000

$20,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average SIR Cost (incl. Assessement) Average Annual SIR YoY Increase SIR Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

 
Page 171 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 23 
   

JPA Self-Insured Retention - Cities

 

Summary: The cumulative SIR cost increase from FY 10/11 to FY 21/22 was 91%. The average cost in 
FY 10/11 was $8.8M, while in FY 21/22 was $16.8M. The average SIR varied between $2.5M and $3.6M. 

JPA Self-Insured Retention - Counties

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase from FY 10/11 to FY 21/22 is 149%. In FY 10/11, the average 
SIR cost was $21M, while in 21/22, the average cost increased to $52.4M. Average SIR stayed flat 
throughout the study period at $5M. 

 

4.6%

10.4%

27.6%

‐18.7%
4.9%

‐ 4.4% 1.5%

7.0%

11.2%
4.4%

25.7%

10.0% 0.0% 0.0%
‐13.6% 0.0%

‐10.5% ‐ 8.8%

29.0% 0.0%
‐20.0%

15.6%

‐10%

5%

20%

35%

50%

65%

80%

95%

110%

125%

140%

155%

170%

185%

200%

$0

$4,000,000

$8,000,000

$12,000,000

$16,000,000

$20,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average SIR Cost (incl. Assessement) Average Annual SIR YoY Increase SIR Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

‐11.7%
‐ 5.0% ‐ 3.9%

13.7%
9.0% 1.4%

14.7%

11.2%

26.0%

32.2%

15.7%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

‐10%

5%

20%

35%

50%

65%

80%

95%

110%

125%

140%

155%

170%

185%

200%

$0

$4,000,000

$8,000,000

$12,000,000

$16,000,000

$20,000,000

$24,000,000

$28,000,000

$32,000,000

$36,000,000

$40,000,000

$44,000,000

$48,000,000

$52,000,000

$56,000,000

$60,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average SIR Cost (incl. Assessement) Average Annual SIR YoY Increase SIR Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

 
Page 172 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 24 
   

JPA Self-Insured Retention - Schools

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase from FY 10/11 to FY 21/22 is 119%. In FY 10/11, the average 
SIR cost was $3.6M, while in 21/22, the average cost increased to $7.8M. Average SIR ranged between 
$2.1M and $2.4M. 

JPA Self-Insured Retention – All Others

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase from FY 10/11 to FY 21/22 is 137%. In FY 10/11, the average 
SIR cost was $4.6M, while in 21/22, the average cost increased to $11M. Average SIR ranged between 
$1.8M and $3M. 

‐ 8.3%
‐ 4.3% ‐ 0.8%

9.5% 1.5%

66.7%

‐26.7%

16.5%

19.9%

18.3%

12.1%

0.0% 0.0% 2.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 1.9% 9.4% 0.0%

‐10%

5%

20%

35%

50%

65%

80%

95%

110%

125%

140%

155%

170%

185%

200%

$0

$4,000,000

$8,000,000

$12,000,000

$16,000,000

$20,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average SIR Cost (incl. Assessement) Average Annual SIR YoY Increase SIR Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

‐ 5.6%
14.5% ‐ 3.6% ‐ 4.6%

15.8%

13.2%

13.8%
8.7%

16.8%

8.3%

16.0%

‐ 3.3% 13.8% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

39.4% 2.2% 2.1% 2.1% 0.0% 0.0%

‐10%

5%

20%

35%

50%

65%

80%

95%

110%

125%

140%

155%

170%

185%

200%

$0

$4,000,000

$8,000,000

$12,000,000

$16,000,000

$20,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average SIR Cost (incl. Assessement) Average Annual SIR YoY Increase SIR Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

 
Page 173 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 25 
   

Excess Insurance – Cities, Counties, Schools, & All Others

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase of excess insurance from FY 10/11 through FY 21/22 is 270%. In 
FY 10/11, the average cost of excess insurance was $2.7M; while in FY 21/22, the average cost was 
$9.9M. Insurance limits hovered around $30M.   

Excess Insurance – Cities

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase of excess insurance from FY 10/11 through FY 21/22 is 250%. In 
FY 10/11, the average cost of excess insurance was $3.3M; while in FY 21/22, the average cost was 
$11.6M. Average excess insurance limits varied from $30M to $36.5M.  

‐ 1.3% 5.1% ‐12.3% 12.0% 15.6% 8.9% ‐ 7.7% 2.2%
41.2%

48.7%

45.5%

‐ 1.3% ‐ 0.2% 0.0% 1.6%
2.0% ‐ 0.2% 0.4% ‐ 0.9%

3.7%
‐ 3.7%

‐ 2.2%

‐10%

20%

50%

80%

110%

140%

170%

200%

230%

260%

290%

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
e
rc
e
n
ta
ge
 I
n
cr
e
as
e

Policy Year

Average Annual Excess Insurance Cost Average Excess Insurance Limit YoY Increase Excess Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

‐16.6% 28.5%
‐24.3% 4.6% 15.2% 11.5% ‐ 6.5% ‐ 9.3%

35.0%

54.0%

82.1%

‐ 1.1% 0.0% 0.0% 1.6% 0.0% 1.1% 1.3% ‐ 2.4%

20.0% ‐ 1.8%

‐12.2%

‐10%

20%

50%

80%

110%

140%

170%

200%

230%

260%

290%

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

$45,000,000

$50,000,000

$55,000,000

$60,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average Annual Excess Insurance Cost Average Excess Insurance Limit YoY Increase Excess Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

 
Page 174 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 26 
   

Excess Insurance – Counties 

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase of excess insurance from FY 10/11 through FY 21/22 is 1,348%. 
In FY 10/11, the average cost of excess insurance was $1.9M; while in FY 21/22, the average cost was 
$27M.  Average excess insurance limits remained flat at $25M.  

Excess Insurance – Schools

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase of excess insurance from FY 10/11 through FY 21/22 is 202%. 
Average excess insurance limits fluctuated between $29M and $34M.  

2.8%
‐ 9.9% 2.2% 4.6% 23.3% 17.6% ‐21.6% 5.3%

46.0%

58.2% 10.4%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 2.5% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
‐ 6.0%

‐ 8.3%

8.5%

‐10%

20%

50%

80%

110%

140%

170%

200%

230%

260%

290%

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

$45,000,000

$50,000,000

$55,000,000

$60,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average Annual Excess Insurance Cost Average Excess Insurance Limit YoY Increase Excess Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

28.3%
‐ 1.0% 6.6%

54.3% 20.0% 1.1% 7.5% 7.5%

96.9%

72.0%

45.9%

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

‐10%

20%

50%

80%

110%

140%

170%

200%

230%

260%

290%

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

$45,000,000

$50,000,000

$55,000,000

$60,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 I
n
cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average Annual Excess Insurance Cost Average Excess Insurance Limit YoY Increase Excess Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

 
Page 175 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 27 
   

Excess Insurance – All Others

 

Summary: The cumulative cost increase of excess insurance from FY 10/11 through FY 21/22 is 195%. In 
FY 10/11, the average cost of excess insurance was $2.7M; while in FY 21/22, the average cost was 
$8.1M. Average excess insurance limits fluctuated between $24M and $26M. 

  

16.5%
‐ 8.8% ‐ 9.0% 21.1% 7.4% ‐ 1.5% 3.3% 13.6%

24.2%
18.5%

37.7%

‐ 4.6% ‐ 1.0% 0.0% 0.0%

10.3% ‐ 3.0% ‐ 0.2% ‐ 0.2%
‐ 5.6% 0.5% 0.0%

‐10%

20%

50%

80%

110%

140%

170%

200%

230%

260%

290%

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

$45,000,000

$50,000,000

$55,000,000

$60,000,000

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

C
u
m
u
la
ti
ve
 P
er
ce
n
ta
ge
 In

cr
ea
se

Policy Year

Average Annual Excess Insurance Cost Average Excess Insurance Limit YoY Increase Excess Cost Increase, as a % since 2010 (i.e., Cumulative)

 
Page 176 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 28 
   

Appendices 
  

 
Page 177 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 29 
   

Complete Listing of Participating JPAs 
 Alameda County Schools Insurance Group 
 Alliance of Schools for Cooperative Insurance Programs 
 Association of California Water Agencies JPIA 
 Authority for California Cities Liability 
 Bay Cities Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
 Butte Schools Self‐Funded Programs 
 California Association for Parks and Recreation Indemnity 
 California Fair Services Authority 
 California Joint Powers Insurance Authority 
 California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority 
 California Mental Health Services Authority 
 California Sanitation Risk Management Authority 
 California Schools Risk Management 
 California Transit Indemnity Pool 
 Central Region Schools Insurance Group 
 Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority 
 Central Valley Schools Joint Powers Authority 
 Contra Costa Solano Schools Insurance Authority 
 East Bay Schools Insurance Group 
 Employment Risk Management Authority 
 Exclusive Risk Management Authority of California 
 Fire Agencies Insurance Risk Authority 
 Golden State Risk Management Authority 
 Independent Cities Risk Management Authority 
 Kings Schools Transportation Authority JPA 
 Marin Schools Insurance Authority 
 Monterey & San Benito Counties P&L JPA 
 Monterey Bay Area Self Insurance Authority 
 Municipal Pooling Authority 
 North Bay Schools Insurance Authority 
 North Coast Schools Insurance Group 
 Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
 Northern California Regional Liability Excess Fund 
 Northern California Schools Insurance Group 
 Northern Orange County Liability & Property SIA 
 Organization of Self‐Insured Schools 
 PRISM (formerly CSAC‐EIA) 
 Public Agency Risk Sharing Authority of California 
 Public Entity Risk Management Authority 
 Redwood Empire Schools Insurance Group 
 Redwood Empire Municipal Insurance Fund 
 Riverside Schools Insurance Authority 
 San Diego/Imperial County Schools Risk & Insurance Management JPA 
 San Joaquin County Schools P&L Insurance Group 
 San Mateo County Schools Insurance Group 
 Santa Clara County Schools Insurance Group   
 Schools Association For Excess Risk 
 Schools Excess Liability Fund 
 Schools Insurance Authority 
 Schools Insurance Group Placer/Nevada 
 Self‐Insured Schools of California 

 
Page 178 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 30 
   

 Shasta‐Trinity Schools Insurance Group 
 Schools Insurance Group Northern Alliance II 
 Self‐Insured Risk Management Authority II 
 Small Cities Organized Risk Effort 
 So Peninsula Region Insurance Group 
 South Bay Area Schools Insurance Authority 
 Southern California Regional Liability Excess Fund 
 Special District Risk Management Authority 
 Tri‐County Schools Insurance Group 
 Trindel Insurance Fund 
 Tulare County Schools Insurance Authority 
 Valley Insurance Program 
 Vector Control JPA 
 Ventura County Schools Self‐Funding Authority 
 West San Gabriel JPA 
 Whittier Area L&P Schools Insurance Authority 
 Yolo County Public Agency Risk Management Insurance Authority 

 
Page 179 of 526



 

 
CAJPA Tort Liability Project – Final Report – February 25, 2022 | 31 
   

About Aon 

Aon plc (NYSE:AON) is a leading global professional services firm providing a broad range of risk, 
retirement, and health solutions. Our 50,000 colleagues in 120 countries empower results for 
clients by using proprietary data and analytics to deliver insights that reduce volatility and improve 
performance. 

© Aon plc 2022. All rights reserved. 

 

 
Page 180 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item F.4. 
 

 
SUMMARY OF THE MAY 26, 2022 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

INFORMATION ITEM 
 

 
ACTIONS TAKEN: 
 
 
 Lexipol Fire Subscription Services - the Committee approved the pricing in the contract on the 

Board’s Consent Calendar 
 
 Lexipol Law Enforcement Subscription Services - the Committee approved the pricing in the 

contract on the Board’s Consent Calendar 
 

 Sedgwick Loss Control Contract- the Committee approved the Sedgwick Loss Control Contract 
previously recommended by the Board. 

 
 Police Risk Management Grant Funds and Usage – The Committee recommended that the 

board approve the Police Risk Management Grant Funds for FY 22/23.  
 

 New Addition- Derick Konz – Angelo, Kilday & Kilduff – The Committee approved revising 
the NCCIF Liability Defense Attorney List to include Derick Konz. 

 
 Liability Counsel List Review of Legal Panel and Rate Changes – The Committee approved the 

rate changes. 
 

 ACI Specialty Benefits – The Committee recommended the Board approve the Engagement 
Letter.  

  

 
Page 181 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

 
Agenda Item G.1. 

 
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 

FOR PERIOD ENDING MARCH 31, 2022 
 

ACTION ITEM 
 
 

ISSUE: The Board receives quarterly a report on the financial status of NCCSIF. James Marta & 
Company will present NCCSIF’s Financials for the Quarter ending March 31, 2022, to the Board. 
 
The report also provides individual member Banking Layer financial reports, including a Combining 
Statement of Net Position and a Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position for both the Workers’ Compensation and Liability Programs. 
 
The change in Net Position through March 31 is $3,343,874 for the pool as a whole, ending at 
$27,322,921. Total Liabilities are $54,912,888 compared to Assets of $82,235,809. 
 
Expenses include $6,609,719 in Claims Paid and a decrease of (-$76,250) in Outstanding Liability 
Reserves. Operating Income of $6,067,258 is reduced by (-$2,723,384) due to the net effect of a Change 
in Fair Market Value.    
   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive and file the Quarterly Financials as presented. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
BACKGROUND: Each quarter the Board reviews the quarterly financials for accuracy and refers 
questions for follow-up or receives and files the report as presented. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Quarterly Financial Report for Period Ending March 31, 2022 
 
  

 
Page 182 of 526



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL REPORT 
MARCH 31, 2022 

AND FOR THE 
NINE MONTHS THEN ENDED 

 
Page 183 of 526



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Northern California Cities 
 Self Insurance Fund  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 184 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Table of Contents  
March 31, 2021 

 

 

 
 
Accountant’s Compilation Report               1 
              
 
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 Statement of Net Position                2  
 
 Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
  Net Position                 3          
 
 Statement of Cash Flows                4          
 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 Combining Statement of Net Position – Liability             5  
 
 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
  Changes in Net Position – Liability              8          
 
 Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Liability            11         
 
 Combining Statement of Net Position – Workers’ Compensation         14 
  
 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
  Changes in Net Position – Workers’ Compensation                   17 
                 
 Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Workers’ Compensation         20         
 
 Reconciliation of Claims Liabilities by Program              23 
          
 Graphical Summary of Claims                         24 
 
 Budget to Actual                26 
 
 Notes to the Budget to Actual              30 
 
 Risk Management Reserves Current Usage Report           31 
 
 Police Risk Management Grants Current Usage Report           32 
 

 
 

 
Page 185 of 526



James Marta & Company LLP 
             Certified Public Accountants 
 
                Accounting, Auditing, Tax, and Consulting  

   

701 Howe Avenue Suite E3, Sacramento, California  95825 
Phone: (916) 993-9494    Fax: (916) 993-9489    jmarta@jpmcpa.com     www.jpmcpa.com 

1

 

 

 
 

ACCOUNTANT’S COMPILATION REPORT 
 

Board of Directors 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3 
Sacramento, CA 95825 
 
Management is responsible for the accompanying statement of financial position of Northern California Cities 
Self Insurance Fund as of March 31, 2022, and the related statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net 
position and statement of cash flows for the nine months then ended and the related notes to the financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have 
performed a compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review 
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. We did not audit or 
review the financial statements nor were we required to perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or the 
completeness of the information provided by management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a 
conclusion, nor provide any form of assurance on these financial statements. 
 
Management has omitted substantially all of the disclosures that accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. If the omitted 
disclosures were included in the financial statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the 
company’s financial position, results of operations, comprehensive income and cash flows. Accordingly, the 
financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed about such matters. 
 
The supplementary information on pages 5 through 32 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. The information is the representation of management. The 
information was subject to our compilation engagement; however, we have not audited or reviewed the 
information and, accordingly, do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on such 
information. 
 
Management has elected to present designations of net position on the Statement of Net Position as of March 31, 
2022 contrary to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America which bar the 
presentation of designations of net position on the Statement of Net Position. 
 
We are not independent with respect to Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund since we provide 
accounting, financial and management services. 
 

 
 
James Marta & Company LLP 
Certified Public Accountants 
May 6, 2022 

 
Page 186 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Statement of Net Position 
March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report    2 

Current Assets
   Cash and Cash Equivalents  $          15,936,288 
   Accounts Receivable                       3,192 
   Interest Receivable                   205,437 
   Excess Accounts Receivable                   738,732 
   Prepaid Expense                2,564,994 
Total Current Assets              19,448,643 

Non-Current Assets
   Investments*              62,787,166 

Total Assets  $          82,235,809 

Current Liabilities
   Accounts Payable  $               116,148 
   Unearned Revenue                4,375,474 
Total Current Liabilities                4,491,622 

Non-Current Liabilities
   Outstanding Liabilities*              48,451,000 
   ULAE*                1,970,266 
Total Non-Current Liabilities              50,421,266 

Total Liabilities  $          54,912,888 

Net Position
   Designated for Contingency                   200,000 
   Designated for Risk Management                1,032,592 
   Undesignated              26,090,329 
Total Net Position              27,322,921 

Liability & Net Position  $          82,235,809 

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

Assets

Liabilities & Net Position

 
Page 187 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report    3 

Operating Income
   Administration Deposit $            1,075,613 
   Banking Layer Deposit               7,295,564 
   Shared Risk Layer               5,359,500 
   Excess Deposit/Premium               4,341,155 
   Property/Crime Insurance Income               3,352,799 
   Banking Layer Refund                   (51,335)
   Risk Management Grants                  563,898 
   Other Income                    29,012 
Total Operating Income             21,966,206 

Operating Expenses
   Claims Paid               6,609,719 
   O/S Liability adj.                   (76,250)
   ULAE                   (50,805)
   Consultants                    54,755 
   Safety Service                  317,509 
   Claims Administration                  887,887 
   Program Administration                  357,304 
   Excess Insurance               4,431,245 
   Property/Crime Insurance Expense               3,348,131 
Total Operating Expenses             15,898,948 

Operating Income (Loss)               6,067,258 

Non-Operating Income
   Change in Fair Market Value              (3,441,532)
   Investment Income                  718,148 
Total Non-Operating Income              (2,723,384)

Change in Net Position               3,343,874 

Beginning Net Position             23,979,047 

Ending Net Position $          27,322,921 

 
Page 188 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report    4 

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from members 23,249,304$       
Cash paid for claims (6,508,079)          
Cash paid for insurance (10,305,526)        
Cash paid to vendors (1,469,268)          
Cash (paid) received for dividends 279,773              

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5,246,204           

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income received 757,721              
Purchases of investments (31,865,279)        
Proceeds from sale or maturity of investments 23,595,837         

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (7,511,722)          

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,265,518)          

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 18,201,805         

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 15,936,287$       

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 6,067,258$         

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:
Member receivable 201,477              
Excess receivable 297,958              
Prepaid expense (2,564,994)          

(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable 10,148                
Unearned revenue 1,361,392           
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (127,035)             

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 5,246,204$         

Supplemental information:
Noncash non-operating and investing activities
Net change in fair value of investments (3,441,532)$        

 
Page 189 of 526



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Selected Information 
Substantially All Disclosures Required by Generally Accepted 

Accounting Principles Are Not Included 

 

 
Page 190 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Net Position - Liability 
March 31, 2022 

 

5 
See Accompanying Accountant’s Report 

Total
All Layers Admin Layer Shared Layer

Total Banking 
Layer

Current Assets
   Cash and Cash Equivalents  $        3,552,276  $           239,243  $           763,789  $        2,549,244 
   Accounts Receivable                   3,192                           -                   2,244                      948 
   Interest Receivable                 56,089                   1,580                 31,962                 22,547 
   Excess Accounts Receivable               293,723                           -               293,723                           - 
   Prepaid Expense            2,031,466                           -            2,031,466                           - 
Total Current Assets            5,936,746               240,823            3,123,184            2,572,739 

Non-Current Assets
   Investments*          17,279,181               308,186          11,255,179            5,715,816 

Total Assets  $      23,215,927  $           549,009  $      14,378,363  $        8,288,555 

Current Liabilities
   Accounts Payable  $             34,618  $             19,116  $                  238  $             15,264 
   Unearned Revenue            3,491,908               112,443            2,819,362               560,103 
Total Current Liabilities            3,526,526               131,559            2,819,600               575,367 

Non-Current Liabilities
   Outstanding Liabilities*          11,654,778                           -            8,175,986            3,478,792 
Total Non-Current Liabilities          11,654,778                           -            8,175,986            3,478,792 

Total Liabilities  $      15,181,304  $           131,559  $      10,995,586  $        4,054,159 

Net Position
   Designated for Contingency               100,000              100,000                          -                           - 
   Undesignated            7,934,623              317,450           3,382,777            4,234,396 
Total Net Position            8,034,623               417,450            3,382,777            4,234,396 

Liability & Net Position  $      23,215,927  $           549,009  $      14,378,363  $        8,288,555 

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

 
Page 191 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Net Position - Liability 
March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       6 

City of
Anderson

City of
Auburn

City of
Colusa

City of
Corning**

City of
Dixon

City of
Folsom

City of
Galt

City of
Gridley

City of
Ione

Current Assets
   Cash and Cash Equivalents  $          29,346  $     241,867  $      51,209  $            1,562  $            2,030  $         870,748  $    110,405  $       28,023  $          3,512 
   Accounts Receivable                      -                    -                    -                        -                        -                        -                    -                  948                     - 
   Interest Receivable                   413             1,132               305                   228                   473                 7,184            1,148                624                 220 
   Excess Accounts Receivable                      -                      -                    -                        -                        -                        -                    -                    -                     - 
   Prepaid Expense                      -                      -                    -                        -                        -                        -                    -                    -                     - 
Total Current Assets              29,759         242,999          51,514                1,790                2,503             877,932        111,553           29,595              3,732 

Non-Current Assets
   Investments*            145,999         162,284          55,884              82,796            154,539          1,750,418        320,325         190,459            41,957 

Total Assets  $        175,758  $     405,283  $    107,398  $          84,586  $        157,042  $      2,628,350  $    431,878  $     220,054  $        45,689 

Current Liabilities
   Accounts Payable  $            1,054  $         1,523  $           649  $               310  $            1,013  $             4,997  $           471  $            858  $             362 
   Unearned Revenue              10,177           38,041          11,153               (1,737)              12,924             177,226          28,919           14,894              8,228 
Total Current Liabilities              11,231           39,564          11,802               (1,427)              13,937             182,223          29,390           15,752              8,590 

Non-Current Liabilities
   Outstanding Liabilities*            285,024         210,807          66,019              60,602            213,575             698,862          61,105         128,339            90,079 
Total Non-Current Liabilities            285,024         210,807          66,019              60,602            213,575             698,862          61,105         128,339            90,079 

Total Liabilities  $        296,255  $     250,371  $      77,821  $          59,175  $        227,512  $         881,085  $      90,495  $     144,091  $        98,669 

Net Position
   Designated for Contingency                      -                     -                   -                       -                       -                       -                   -                   -                    - 
   Undesignated           (120,497)        154,912         29,577             25,411            (70,470)         1,747,265       341,383          75,963         (52,980)
Total Net Position           (120,497)         154,912          29,577              25,411             (70,470)          1,747,265        341,383           75,963          (52,980)

Liability & Net Position  $        175,758  $     405,283  $    107,398  $          84,586  $        157,042  $      2,628,350  $    431,878  $     220,054  $        45,689 

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.
**City of Corning has a negative Unearned Revenue due to the impact of the capping of the full liability premium.

 
Page 192 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Net Position - Liability 
March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       7 

City of
Jackson

City of
Lincoln

City of
Marysville

City of
Oroville

City of
Paradise

City of
Red Bluff

City of
Rio Vista

City of
Rocklin

City of
Willows

City of
Yuba City

Current Assets
   Cash and Cash Equivalents  $        14,490  $    203,362  $         157,847  $              30,349  $        52,161  $          9,557  $           21,605  $        498,380  $          71,452 $     151,339 
    Accounts Receivable                   -                      -                       -                           -                     -                        -                      -                          -                      -                     - 
   Interest Receivable                 388            1,460                 1,109                       715              1,043                 580                      57                2,802                   301            2,365 
   Excess Accounts Receivable                     -                    -                         -                           -                     -                      -                        -                        -                        -                   - 
   Prepaid Expense                     -                    -                         -                           -                     -                      -                        -                        -                        -                   - 
Total Current Assets            14,878        204,822             158,956                  31,064            53,204            10,137               21,662            501,182              71,753        153,704 

Non-Current Assets
   Investments*          132,990        336,358             252,170                235,962          341,445          205,479                    269            548,489              39,340        718,653 

Total Assets  $      147,868  $    541,180  $         411,126  $            267,026  $      394,649  $      215,616  $           21,931  $     1,049,671  $        111,093 $     872,357 

Current Liabilities
   Accounts Payable  $             114  $        2,198  $             2,068  $                   867  $             759  $             869  $                726  $            2,126  $          (8,005) $         2,305 
   Unearned Revenue              4,346          25,407               28,088                  20,093            13,769            16,209               15,134              49,942              10,070          77,220 
Total Current Liabilities              4,460          27,605               30,156                  20,960            14,528            17,078               15,860              52,068                2,065          79,525 

Non-Current Liabilities
   Outstanding Liabilities*            57,664        353,491             156,970                186,855            76,083            68,381               36,987            192,037            150,901        385,011 
Total Non-Current Liabilities            57,664        353,491             156,970                186,855            76,083            68,381               36,987            192,037            150,901        385,011 

Total Liabilities  $        62,124  $    381,096  $         187,126  $            207,815  $        90,611  $        85,459  $           52,847  $        244,105  $        152,966 $     464,536 

Net Position
   Designated for Contingency                     -                   -                        -                          -                    -                      -                       -                       -                       -                   - 
   Undesignated            85,744       160,084            224,000                 59,211         304,038          130,157            (30,916)           805,566           (41,873)        407,821 
Total Net Position            85,744        160,084             224,000                  59,211          304,038          130,157             (30,916)            805,566            (41,873)        407,821 

Liability & Net Position  $      147,868  $    541,180  $         411,126  $            267,026  $      394,649  $      215,616  $           21,931  $     1,049,671  $        111,093 $     872,357 

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

 
Page 193 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Liability 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report    
   8 

Total
All Layers Admin Layer Shared Layer Total Banking Layer

Operating Income
   Administration Deposit  $            337,329 $         337,329 $                       -  $                               - 
   Banking Layer Deposit             1,680,311                        -                          -                    1,680,311 
   Shared Risk Layer             2,250,000                        -           2,250,000                                   - 
   Excess Deposit/Premium             2,874,905                        -           2,874,905                                   - 
   Property/Crime Insurance Income             3,352,799                        -           3,333,179                         19,620 
   Banking Layer Assessment                            -                        -                          -                                   - 
   Shared Risk Refund                            -                        -                          -                                   - 
   Shared Risk Layer Assessment                            -                        -                          -                                   - 
   Banking Layer Refund                 (51,335)                        -                          -                        (51,335)
   Other Income 29,012                -                     -                        29,012                       
   Excess Insurance Refund -                         -                     -                        -                                
Total Operating Income           10,473,021            337,329           8,458,084                    1,677,608 

Operating Expenses
   Claims Paid             1,600,449                      -                898,252                       702,197 
   O/S Liability adj.                626,032                        -              340,118                       285,914 
   Consultants                  33,872              33,872                          -                                   - 
   Safety Service                115,211              93,452                21,759                                   - 
   Claims Administration                196,318                        -                          -                       196,318 
   Program Administration                190,972            190,972                          -                                   - 
   Board Expenses                    4,766                4,766                          -                                   - 
   Excess Insurance             2,849,372                        -           2,849,372                                   - 
   Property/Crime Insurance Expense             3,348,131                        -           3,348,131                                   - 
Total Operating Expense             8,965,123            323,062           7,457,632                    1,184,429 

Operating Income (Loss)             1,507,898              14,267           1,000,452                       493,179 

Non-Operating Income
   Change in Fair Market Value               (945,828)             (27,558)            (537,337)                      (380,933)
   Investment Income                202,274                6,162              116,279                         79,833 
Total Non-Operating Income               (743,554)             (21,396)            (421,058)                      (301,100)

Change in Net Position                764,344                (7,129)               579,394                       192,079 

Beginning Net Position             7,270,279            424,579           2,803,383                    4,042,317 

Ending Net Position  $         8,034,623  $         417,450  $        3,382,777  $                4,234,396 

 
Page 194 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Liability 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       9 

City of
Anderson

City of
Auburn

City of
Colusa

City of
Corning*

City of
Dixon

City of
Folsom

City of
Galt

City of
Gridley

City of
Ione

Operating Income
   Administration Deposit  $                  -   $                   - $                    - $                   - $                    -  $                    - $                   - $                     - $                    - 
   Banking Layer Deposit              30,531          114,122             33,458             (5,211)             38,771             531,679             86,757              44,684             24,682 
   Shared Risk Layer                      -                        -                       -                      -                       -                        -                      -                        -                       - 
   Excess Deposit/Premium                      -                        -                       -                      -                       -                        -                      -                        -                       - 
   Property/Crime Insurance Income                1,208                      -                       -              1,208                       -                 8,407                      -                   948                       - 
   Banking Layer Assessment                      -                        -                       -                      -                       -                        -                      -                        -                       - 
   Shared Risk Refund                      -                        -                       -                      -                       -                        -                      -                        -                       - 
   Shared Risk Layer Assessment                      -                        -                       -                      -                       -                        -                      -                        -                       - 
   Banking Layer Refund                      -                        -                       -                      -                       -                        -                      -                        -                       - 
   Other Income -                  2,899            2,178             -                   4,016              -                      -                    -                     -                    
   Excess Insurance Refund -                  -                   -                    -                   -                     -                      -                    -                     -                    
Total Operating Income  $          31,739          117,021             35,636             (4,003)             42,787             540,086             86,757              45,632             24,682 

Operating Expenses
   Claims Paid              49,960            26,394             14,090              4,772             30,201             124,717             22,790              70,181             40,582 
   O/S Liability adj.             (21,731)          149,241             19,590            28,998           135,112             162,763           (25,677)              15,340             83,514 
   Consultants                      -                      -                       -                      -                       -                       -                      -                        -                       -   
   Safety Service                      -                        -                       -                      -                       -                        -                      -                        -                       - 
   Claims Administration                5,289            12,755               4,925              3,382               4,894               48,848               6,895                6,729               1,434 
   Program Administration                      -                        -                       -                      -                       -                        -                      -                        -                       - 
   Board Expenses                      -                        -                       -                      -                       -                        -                      -                        -                       - 
   Excess Insurance                      -                        -                       -                      -                       -                        -                      -                        -                       - 
   Property/Crime Insurance Expense                      -                        -                       -                      -                       -                        -                      -                        -                       - 
Total Operating Expense              33,518          188,390             38,605            37,152           170,207             336,328               4,008              92,250           125,530 

Operating Income (Loss)               (1,779)           (71,369)              (2,969)           (41,155)          (127,420)             203,758             82,749             (46,618)          (100,848)

Non-Operating Income
   Change in Fair Market Value               (7,421)           (18,997)              (5,101)             (3,887)              (7,963)           (120,958)           (19,695)             (10,775)              (3,684)
   Investment Income                1,650              4,048               1,136                 753               1,611               25,006               4,291                2,267                  790 
Total Non-Operating Income               (5,771)           (14,949)              (3,965)             (3,134)              (6,352)             (95,952)           (15,404)               (8,508)              (2,894)

Change in Net Position               (7,550)            (86,318)               (6,934)            (44,289)           (133,772)             107,806              67,345              (55,126)           (103,742)

Beginning Net Position           (112,947)          241,230             36,511            69,700             63,302          1,639,459           274,038            131,089             50,762 

Ending Net Position  $       (120,497)  $       154,912  $          29,577  $         25,411  $         (70,470)  $      1,747,265  $        341,383  $           75,963  $         (52,980)

*City of Corning has a negative liability Banking Layer contribution due to the impact of the capping of the full premium.

 
Page 195 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Liability 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       10 

City of
Jackson

City of
Lincoln

City of
Marysville

City of
Oroville

City of
Paradise

City of
Red Bluff

City of
Rio Vista

City of
Rocklin**

City of
Willows

City of
Yuba City

Operating Income
   Administration Deposit  $                     - $                    - $                     - $                     - $                       -  $                       - $                    - $                    - $                    - $                       - 
    Banking Layer Deposit               13,040               76,221              84,264              60,278                41,309                 48,628              45,403           149,825             30,210              231,660 
   Shared Risk Layer                         -                       -                        -                        -                          -                           -                       -                       -                       -                          - 
   Excess Deposit/Premium                         -                       -                        -                        -                          -                           -                       -                       -                       -                          - 
   Property/Crime Insurance Income                         -                    604                   604                1,935                          -                   2,285                       -               2,421                       -                          - 
   Banking Layer Assessment                         -                       -                        -                        -                          -                           -                       -                       -                       -                          - 
   Shared Risk Refund                         -                       -                        -                        -                          -                           -                       -                       -                       -                          - 
   Shared Risk Layer Assessment                         -                       -                        -                        -                          -                           -                       -                       -                       -                          - 
   Banking Layer Refund                         -                       -                        -                        -                          -                           -                       -            (51,335)                       -                          - 
   Other Income -                       4,016              2,400             2,899             -                       2,899                  3,222             4,483             -                    -                       
   Excess Insurance Refund -                       -                      -                     -                     -                       -                        -                     -                    -                    -                       
Total Operating Income               13,040               80,841              87,268              65,112                41,309                 53,812              48,625           105,394             30,210              231,660 

Operating Expenses
   Claims Paid                   (341)               25,840              47,593              70,477                  8,049                 30,821              13,952             25,266                  399                96,454 
   O/S Liability adj.               48,369               42,938          (149,293)              (3,935)               (46,058)               (44,621)            (67,436)            (42,384)           101,487             (100,303)
   Consultants                         -                       -                        -                        -                          -                           -                       -                       -                       -                          - 
   Safety Service                         -                       -                        -                        -                          -                           -                       -                       -                       -                          - 
   Claims Administration                    353               18,109              19,874                5,073                  4,207                   6,376                7,573             16,315               3,713                19,574 
   Program Administration                         -                       -                        -                        -                          -                           -                       -                       -                       -                          - 
   Board Expenses                         -                       -                        -                        -                          -                           -                       -                       -                       -                          - 
   Excess Insurance                         -                       -                        -                        -                          -                           -                       -                       -                       -                          - 
   Property/Crime Insurance Expense                         -                       -                        -                        -                          -                           -                       -                       -                       -                          - 
Total Operating Expense               48,381               86,887            (81,826)              71,615               (33,802)                 (7,424)            (45,911)                 (803)           105,599                15,725 

Operating Income (Loss)              (35,341)               (6,046)            169,094              (6,503)                75,111                 61,236              94,536           106,197           (75,389)              215,935 

Non-Operating Income
   Change in Fair Market Value                (6,524)             (24,846)            (18,886)            (12,338)               (17,582)                 (9,791)                 (721)            (47,035)             (5,010)               (39,719)
   Investment Income                 1,191                 5,463                4,100                2,443                  3,624                   1,940                   162               9,923               1,085                  8,350 
Total Non-Operating Income                (5,333)             (19,383)            (14,786)              (9,895)               (13,958)                 (7,851)                 (559)            (37,112)             (3,925)               (31,369)

Change in Net Position              (40,674)             (25,429)             154,308             (16,398)                 61,153                 53,385               93,977              69,085            (79,314)              184,566 

Beginning Net Position             126,418             185,513              69,692              75,609              242,885                 76,772          (124,893)           736,481             37,441              223,255 

Ending Net Position  $           85,744  $         160,084  $         224,000  $           59,211  $           304,038  $           130,157  $         (30,916)  $        805,566  $        (41,873) $           407,821 

*City of Folsom has a negative liability Banking Layer refund due to the the late election of their refund application.

 
Page 196 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Liability 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report    
   11 

Total
All Layers Admin Layer Shared Layer

Total Banking 
Layer

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from members 13,026,430$     449,772$        11,277,435$       1,299,223$           
Cash paid for claims (1,723,622)        -                      (825,108)             (898,514)               
Cash paid for insurance (8,228,968)        -                      (8,228,968)          -                            
Cash paid to vendors (339,261)           (317,680)         (22,037)               456                       
Cash (paid) received for dividends (218,188)           -                      -                      (218,188)               

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,516,391         132,092          2,201,322           182,977                

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income received 207,720            6,153              116,748              84,819                  
Net investment (purchases) sales (5,811,288)        (6,270)             (5,718,917)          (86,101)                 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (5,603,568)        (117)                (5,602,169)          (1,282)                   

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3,087,177)        131,975          (3,400,847)          181,695                

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 6,639,453         107,268          4,164,636           2,367,549             

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 3,552,276$      239,243$       763,789$            2,549,244$          

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 1,507,898$       14,267$          1,000,452$         493,179$              

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:
Member receivable 108,323            -                      (11)                      108,334                
Excess receivable 73,145              -                      73,145                -                            
Prepaid expense (2,031,466)        -                      (2,031,466)          -                            

(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable 5,560                5,382              (278)                    456                       
Unearned revenue 2,226,898         112,443          2,819,362           (704,907)               
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 626,033            -                      340,118              285,915                

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,516,391$      132,092$       2,201,322$         182,977$             

Supplemental information:
Noncash non-operating and investing activities
Net change in fair value of investments (945,828)$        (27,558)$        (537,337)$           (380,933)$            

 
Page 197 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Liability 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       12 

City of
Anderson

City of
Auburn

City of
Colusa

City of
Corning

City of
Dixon

City of
Folsom

City of
Galt

City of
Gridley

City of
Ione

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from members 70,469$          77,279$         49,507$       (4,003)$       20,012$       552,351$        (160,985)$   59,578$      32,910$       
Cash paid for claims (55,249)           (39,149)          (19,015)       (8,154)         (35,095)        (173,565)         (29,686)       (76,910)       (42,016)        
Cash paid for insurance -                  -                 -              -              -                   -                  -              -              -                   
Cash paid to vendors 181                 17                  (45)              (296)            740              (2,079)             (377)            194             358              
Cash paid for dividends -                      -                     -                  (25,856)       -                   (401,829)         68,519        -                  -                   

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 15,401            38,147           30,447         (38,309)       (14,343)        (25,122)           (122,529)     (17,138)       (8,748)          

Cash flows from investing activities: . . . .
Investment income received 1,781              4,147             1,080           930              16,780         6,918              4,610          2,503          5,782           
Net investment (purchases) sales (1,806)             (4,217)            (1,104)         (937)            (1,804)          (27,302)           (4,673)         (2,538)         (798)             

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (25)                  (70)                 (24)              (7)                14,976         (20,384)           (63)              (35)              4,984           

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 15,376            38,077           30,423         (38,316)       633              (45,506)           (122,592)     (17,173)       (3,764)          

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 13,970            203,790         20,786         39,878         1,397           916,254          232,997      45,196        7,276           

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 29,346$         241,867$      51,209$      1,562$         2,030$        870,748$       110,405$   28,023$     3,512$        

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (1,779)$           (71,369)$        (2,969)$       (41,155)$     (127,420)$    203,758$        82,749$      (46,618)$     (100,848)$    

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:
Member receivable 28,553            -                     10,000         -                  -                   -                      -                  (948)            -                   
Excess receivable -                      -                     -                  -                  -                   -                      -                  -                  -                   
Prepaid expense -                      -                     -                  -                  -                   -                      -                  -                  -                   

(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable 181                 17                  (45)              (296)            740              (2,079)             (378)            194             358              
Unearned revenue 10,177            (39,742)          3,871           (25,856)       (22,775)        (389,564)         (179,223)     14,894        8,228           
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (21,731)           149,241         19,590         28,998         135,112       162,763          (25,677)       15,340        83,514         

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 15,401$         38,147$        30,447$      (38,309)$     (14,343)$     (25,122)$        (122,529)$  (17,138)$    (8,748)$       

Supplemental information:
Noncash non-operating and investing activities
Net change in fair value of investments (7,421)$          (18,997)$       (5,101)$      (3,887)$       (7,963)$       (120,958)$      (19,695)$    (10,775)$    (3,684)$       

 
Page 198 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows - Liability 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       13 

City of
Jackson

City of
Lincoln

City of
Marysville

City of
Oroville

City of
Paradise

City of
Red Bluff

City of
Rio Vista

City of
Rocklin

City of
Willows

City of
Yuba City

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from members 6,100$        (100,415)$      125,356$        4,497$        (9,764)$       18,807$      124,488$     206,671$        40,280$      186,085$         
Cash paid for claims (11)              (43,949)          (67,467)           (75,550)       (12,256)       (37,197)       (21,525)        (41,581)           (4,111)         (116,028)         
Cash paid for insurance -              -                     -                  -                  -                  -              -                   -                      -                  -                      

Cash paid to vendors 13               330                91                   301             182             (33)              74                747                 156             (98)                  
Cash paid for dividends -                  28,776           -                      29,988        13,769        51,214        -                   (51,335)           (8,654)         77,220             

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 6,102          (115,258)        57,980            (40,764)       (8,069)         32,791        103,037       114,502          27,671        147,179           

Cash flows from investing activities: . . . . . . . . . .
Investment income received 1,452          5,717             4,189              2,757          3,943          2,180          (22)               10,302            1,063          8,707               
Net investment (purchases) sales (1,465)         (5,807)            (4,262)             (2,791)         (3,996)         (2,204)         (990)             (9,473)             (1,086)         (8,848)             

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (13)              (90)                 (73)                  (34)              (53)              (24)              (1,012)          829                 (23)              (141)                

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 6,089          (115,348)        57,907            (40,798)       (8,122)         32,767        102,025       115,331          27,648        147,038           

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 8,401          318,710         99,940            71,147        60,283        (23,210)       (80,420)        383,049          43,804        4,301               

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 14,490$     203,362$      157,847$       30,349$     52,161$      9,557$       21,605$      498,380$       71,452$     151,339$        

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) (35,341)$     (6,046)$          169,094$        (6,503)$       75,111$      61,236$      94,536$       106,197$        (75,389)$     215,935$         

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:
Member receivable -                  -                     10,000            -                  -                  -                  60,729         -                      -                  -                      
Excess receivable -                  -                     -                      -                  -                  -                  -                   -                      -                  -                      
Prepaid expense -                  -                     -                      -                  -                  -                  -                   -                      -                  -                      

(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable 14               330                91                   301             182             (33)              74                747                 157             (99)                  
Unearned revenue (6,940)         (152,480)        28,088            (30,627)       (37,304)       16,209        15,134         49,942            1,416          31,645             
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 48,369        42,938           (149,293)         (3,935)         (46,058)       (44,621)       (67,436)        (42,384)           101,487      (100,302)         

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 6,102$       (115,258)$     57,980$         (40,764)$    (8,069)$       32,791$     103,037$    114,502$       27,671$     147,179$        

Supplemental information:
Noncash non-operating and investing activities
Net change in fair value of investments (6,524)$      (24,846)$       (18,886)$        (12,338)$    (17,582)$     (9,791)$      (721)$          (47,035)$        (5,010)$      (39,719)$        

 
Page 199 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Net Position – Workers’ Compensation 
March 31, 2022 

 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report    
   14 

Total
All Layers Admin Layer Shared Layer

Total Banking 
Layer

Current Assets
   Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,384,012$       1,061,114$     2,189,891$         9,133,007$              
   Accounts Receivable -                         -                      -                         -                               
   Interest Receivable 149,348              3,879              67,768                77,701                     
   Excess Accounts Receivable 445,009              -                      445,009              -                               
   Prepaid Expense 533,528              38,842            494,686              -                               
Total Current Assets 13,511,897         1,103,835       3,197,354           9,210,708                

Non-Current Assets
   Investments* 45,507,985         483,062          24,534,232         20,490,691              

Total Assets 59,019,882$       1,586,897$     27,731,586$       29,701,399$            

Current Liabilities
   Accounts Payable 81,530$              18,278$          1,992$                61,260$                   
   Unearned Revenue 883,566              -                      93,032                790,534                   
Total Current Liabilities 965,096              18,278            95,024                851,794                   

Non-Current Liabilities
   Outstanding Liabilities* 36,796,222         -                      19,762,719         17,033,503              
   ULAE* 1,970,266           -                      1,058,201           912,065                   
Total Non-Current Liabilities 38,766,488         -                      20,820,920         17,945,568              

Total Liabilities 39,731,584$       18,278$          20,915,944$       18,797,362$            

Net Position
   Designated for Contingency 100,000              100,000          -                         -                               
   Designated for Risk 1,032,592           1,032,592       -                         -                               
   Undesignated 18,155,706         436,027          6,815,642           10,904,037              
Total Net Position 19,288,298         1,568,619     6,815,642         10,904,037             

Liability & Net Position 59,019,882$       1,586,897$     27,731,586$       29,701,399$            

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

 
Page 200 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Net Position – Workers’ Compensation 
March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       15 

City of
Anderson

City of
Auburn

City of
Colusa

City of
Corning

City of
Dixon

City of
Elk Grove

City of
Folsom

City of
Galt

City of
Gridley

City of
Ione

City of
Jackson

Current Assets
   Cash and Cash 286,699$         249,413$         37,661$              34,608$           373,859$         1,384,774$      1,309,649$      269,513$          171,026$      37,542$        192,092$      
   Accounts Receivable -                  -                  -                          -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    -                    -                -                
   Interest Receivable 1,724               2,649               502                     558                  3,490               9,157               16,554             2,802                1,925            201               978               
   Excess Accounts -                      -                      -                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                    -                    -                    
   Prepaid Expense -                      -                      -                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                    -                    -                    
Total Current Assets 288,423           252,062           38,163                35,166             377,349           1,393,931        1,326,203        272,315            172,951        37,743          193,070        

Non-Current Assets
   Investments* 354,947           765,126           153,262              195,573           921,433           2,078,601        4,951,751        822,357            562,121        39,356          185,066        

Total Assets 643,370$         1,017,188$      191,425$            230,739$         1,298,782$      3,472,532$      6,277,954$      1,094,672$       735,072$      77,099$        378,136$      

Current Liabilities
   Accounts Payable 1,313$             1,792$             461$                   408$                3,223$             5,631$             12,358$           1,443$              238$             136$             536$             
   Unearned Revenue 12,446             -                      -                          1,519               23,154             6,944               82,661             -                        -                    2,430            7,116            
Total Current Liabilities 13,759             1,792               461                     1,927               26,377             12,575             95,019             1,443                238               2,566            7,652            

Non-Current Liabilities
   Outstanding Liabilities* 377,518           606,657           106,566              93,706             649,508           2,678,963        4,248,303        430,290            90,238          22,793          196,947        
   ULAE* 20,214             32,484             5,706                  5,018               34,778             143,446           227,477           23,040              4,832            1,220            10,546          
Total Non-Current 397,732           639,141           112,272              98,724             684,286           2,822,409        4,475,780        453,330            95,070          24,013          207,493        

Total Liabilities 411,491$         640,933$         112,733$            100,651$         710,663$         2,834,984$      4,570,799$      454,773$          95,308$        26,579$        215,145$      

Net Position
   Designated for -                      -                      -                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                    -                    -                    
   Designated for Safety -                      -                      -                          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                        -                    -                    -                    
   Undesignated 231,879           376,255           78,692                130,088           588,119           637,548           1,707,155        639,899            639,764        50,520          162,991        
Total Net Position 231,879           376,255           78,692              130,088         588,119         637,548         1,707,155       639,899          639,764      50,520        162,991      

Liability & Net Position 643,370$         1,017,188$      191,425$            230,739$         1,298,782$      3,472,532$      6,277,954$      1,094,672$       735,072$      77,099$        378,136$      

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

 
Page 201 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Net Position – Workers’ Compensation 
March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       16 

City of
Lincoln

City of
Marysville

City of
Nevada City

City of
Oroville

City of
Paradise

City of
Placerville

City of
Red Bluff

City of
Rio Vista

City of
Rocklin

City of
Willows

City of
Yuba City

Current Assets
   Cash and Cash 312,663$         98,179$           287,112$            549,508$        423,465$       374,557$            244,549$         179,049$          945,249$         11,667$            1,360,174$      
   Accounts Receivable -                   -                   -                      -                 -                -                          -                  -                        -                       -                    -                       
   Interest Receivable 3,512               1,641               1,167                  2,829              2,904             2,118                  4,165               1,174                7,870               399                   9,382               
   Excess Accounts -                       -                       -                          -                     -                    -                          -                      -                        -                       -                        -                       
   Prepaid Expense -                       -                       -                          -                     -                    -                          -                      -                        -                       -                        -                       
Total Current Assets 316,175           99,820             288,279              552,337          426,369         376,675              248,714           180,223            953,119           12,066              1,369,556        

Non-Current Assets
   Investments* 1,027,158        502,749           145,648              555,019          685,039         489,765              1,315,599        265,984            2,014,906        143,802            2,315,429        

Total Assets 1,343,333$      602,569$         433,927$            1,107,356$     1,111,408$    866,440$            1,564,313$      446,207$          2,968,025$      155,868$          3,684,985$      

Current Liabilities
   Accounts Payable 1,630$             1,486$             598$                   1,021$            1,616$           1,199$                2,580$             852$                 6,326$             8,813$              7,600$             
   Unearned Revenue -                       -                       15,427                121,828          -                    99,313                -                      9,955                -                       -                        407,742           
Total Current Liabilities 1,630               1,486               16,025                122,849          1,616             100,512              2,580               10,807              6,326               8,813                415,342           

Non-Current Liabilities
   Outstanding Liabilities* 480,162           506,349           175,140              294,536          356,048         417,607              1,363,910        274,470            2,070,608        3,273                1,589,911        
   ULAE* 25,710             27,113             9,378                  15,771            19,065           22,361                73,031             14,697              110,871           175                   85,132             
Total Non-Current 505,872           533,462           184,518              310,307          375,113         439,968              1,436,941        289,167            2,181,479        3,448                1,675,043        

Total Liabilities 507,502$         534,948$         200,543$            433,156$        376,729$       540,480$            1,439,521$      299,974$          2,187,805$      12,261$            2,090,385$      

Net Position
   Designated for -                       -                       -                          -                     -                    -                          -                      -                        -                       -                        -                       
   Designated for Safety -                       -                       -                          -                     -                    -                          -                      -                        -                       -                        -                       
   Undesignated 835,831           67,621             233,384              674,200          734,679         325,960              124,792           146,233            780,220           143,607            1,594,600        
Total Net Position 835,831           67,621             233,384            674,200        734,679       325,960            124,792           146,233          780,220         143,607          1,594,600      

Liability & Net Position 1,343,333$      602,569$         433,927$            1,107,356$     1,111,408$    866,440$            1,564,313$      446,207$          2,968,025$      155,868$          3,684,985$      

*For internal reporting purposes, investments and claim liabilities are classified as non-current.

 
Page 202 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Workers’ Compensation 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report    
   17 

Total
All Layers Admin Layer Shared Layer

Total
Banking Layer

Operating Income
   Administration Deposit 738,284$                  738,284$                -$                            -$                              
   Banking Layer Deposit 5,615,253                 -                              -                              5,615,253                 
   Shared Risk Layer 3,109,500                 -                              3,109,500                -                                
   Excess Deposit/Premium 1,466,250                 -                              1,466,250                -                                
   Risk Management Grants 563,898                    563,898                  -                              -                                
Total Operating Income 11,493,185               1,302,182               4,575,750                5,615,253                 
Operating Expenses
   Claims Paid 5,009,270                 -                              1,888,703                3,120,567                 
   O/S Liability adj. (702,282)                   -                              (103,241)                 (599,041)                   
   ULAE (50,805)                     -                              (12,520)                   (38,285)                     
   Consultants 20,883                      20,883                    -                              -                                
   Safety Service 202,298                    202,298                  -                              -                                
   Claims Administration 691,569                    235,274                  -                              456,295                    
   Program Administration 166,332                    166,332                  -                              -                                
   Excess Insurance 1,581,873                 -                              1,581,873                -                                
   Contingency Reserves 9,921                        9,921                      -                              -                                
Total Operating Expenses 6,933,825                 639,474                  3,354,815                2,939,536                 
Operating Income (Loss) 4,559,360                 662,708                  1,220,935                2,675,717                 
Non-Operating Income
   Change in Fair Market Value (2,495,704)                (64,348)                   (1,130,713)              (1,300,643)                
   Investment Income 515,874                    14,568                    232,439                   268,867                    
Total Non-Operating Income (1,979,830)                (49,780)                   (898,274)                 (1,031,776)                
Change in Net Position 2,579,530                 612,928                  322,661                   1,643,941                 
Beginning Net Position 16,708,768               955,691                  6,492,981                9,260,096                 
Ending Net Position 19,288,298$             1,568,619$            6,815,642$             10,904,037$            

 
Page 203 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Workers’ Compensation 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       18 

City of
Anderson

City of
Auburn

City of
Colusa

City of
Corning

City of
Dixon

City of
Elk Grove

City of
Folsom

City of
Galt

City of
Gridley

City of
Ione

City of
Jackson

Operating Income
   Administration Deposit -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
   Banking Layer Deposit 115,488           247,407           60,519             59,896             280,503           774,990           1,023,619        285,302           50,646             30,759             79,608             
   Shared Risk Layer -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
   Excess Deposit/Premium -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
   Risk Management Grants -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Total Operating Income 115,488           247,407           60,519             59,896             280,503           774,990           1,023,619        285,302           50,646             30,759             79,608             

Operating Expenses
   Claims Paid 54,907             115,237           116,141           27,857             180,551           397,444           426,907           176,416           25,386             61,566             67,767             
   O/S Liability adj. 20,234             (180,351)          (114,796)          (92,607)            (167,935)          330,265           (206,464)          (90,729)            (28,792)            (64,098)            (30,304)            
   ULAE 958                  (9,934)              (6,225)              (5,024)              (9,280)              16,858             (12,623)            (5,042)              (1,584)              (3,463)              (1,703)              
   Consultants -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
   Safety Service -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
   Claims Administration 14,869             17,076             5,379               5,878               19,258             57,613             101,865           12,395             2,099               1,739               4,468               
   Program Administration -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
   Excess Insurance -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
   Contingency Reserves -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Total Operating Expenses 90,968             (57,972)            499                  (63,896)            22,594             802,180           309,685           93,040             (2,891)              (4,256)              40,228             
Operating Income (Loss) 24,520             305,379           60,020             123,792           257,909           (27,190)            713,934           192,262           53,537             35,015             39,380             

Non-Operating Income
   Change in Fair Market Value (28,971)            (44,014)            (9,219)              (9,247)              (58,870)            (152,327)          (277,370)          (47,232)            (32,215)            (3,860)              (16,436)            
   Investment Income 6,045               8,994               1,879               1,895               12,315             31,693             57,409             9,603               6,706               848                  3,531               
Total Non-Operating Income (22,926)            (35,020)            (7,340)              (7,352)              (46,555)            (120,634)          (219,961)          (37,629)            (25,509)            (3,012)              (12,905)            

Change in Net Position 1,594               270,359           52,680             116,440           211,354           (147,824)          493,973           154,633           28,028             32,003             26,475             

Beginning Net Position 230,285           105,896           26,012             13,648             376,765           785,372           1,213,182        485,266           611,736           18,517             136,516           
Ending Net Position 231,879$         376,255$         78,692$          130,088$        588,119$        637,548$        1,707,155$      639,899$        639,764$        50,520$          162,991$        

 
Page 204 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position – Workers’ Compensation 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       19 

City of
Lincoln

City of
Marysville

City of
Nevada City

City of
Oroville

City of
Paradise

City of
Placerville

City of
Red Bluff

City of
Rio Vista

City of
Rocklin

City of
Willows

City of
Yuba City

Operating Income
   Administration Deposit -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        
   Banking Layer Deposit 236,529              112,925              117,913              198,089              152,657              138,496              293,271              90,035                586,985              26,197                653,419              
   Shared Risk Layer -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
   Excess Deposit/Premium -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
   Risk Management Grants -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Total Operating Income 236,529              112,925              117,913              198,089              152,657              138,496              293,271              90,035                586,985              26,197                653,419              

Operating Expenses
   Claims Paid 93,377                183,706              42,006                39,302                71,344                58,326                306,928              21,117                400,045              310                     253,927              
   O/S Liability adj. (181,140)            100,455              11,776                30,672                25,579                (61,882)              (218,092)            44,770                258,248              (11,868)              28,018                
   ULAE (9,932)                5,236                  573                     1,549                  1,253                  (3,482)                (12,235)              2,316                  13,190                (641)                   950                     
   Consultants -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
   Safety Service -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
   Claims Administration 17,552                14,505                5,359                  10,913                14,289                12,815                28,122                8,636                  52,098                1,563                  47,804                
   Program Administration -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
   Excess Insurance -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
   Contingency Reserves -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Total Operating Expenses (80,143)              303,902              59,714                82,436                112,465              5,777                  104,723              76,839                723,581              (10,636)              330,699              

Operating Income (Loss) 316,672              (190,977)            58,199                115,653              40,192                132,719              188,548              13,196                (136,596)            36,833                322,720              

Non-Operating Income
   Change in Fair Market (58,338)              (28,284)              (19,478)              (47,915)              (48,480)              (34,820)              (70,017)              (19,590)              (131,758)            (6,657)                (155,545)            
   Investment Income 11,746                5,838                  4,091                  10,083                10,050                7,133                  14,210                4,065                  27,480                1,333                  31,920                
Total Non-Operating Income (46,592)              (22,446)              (15,387)              (37,832)              (38,430)              (27,687)              (55,807)              (15,525)              (104,278)            (5,324)                (123,625)            
Change in Net Position 270,080              (213,423)            42,812                77,821                1,762                  105,032              132,741              (2,329)                (240,874)            31,509                199,095              

Beginning Net Position 565,751              281,044              190,572              596,379              732,917              220,928              (7,949)                148,562              1,021,094           112,098              1,395,505           

Ending Net Position 835,831$            67,621$              233,384$           674,200$           734,679$           325,960$           124,792$            146,233$           780,220$           143,607$           1,594,600$        

 
Page 205 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Workers’ Compensation 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report    
   20 

Total
All Layers Admin Layer Shared Layer

Total Banking 
Layer

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from members 10,222,874$      1,302,182$        3,801,874$                       5,118,818$             
Cash paid for claims (4,784,457)         -                         (1,663,890)                        (3,120,567)              
Cash paid for insurance (2,076,558)         -                         (2,076,558)                        -                              
Cash paid to vendors (1,130,007)         (673,934)            102                                   (456,175)                 
Cash (paid) received for dividends 497,961             -                         411,322                            86,639                    

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,729,813          628,248             472,850                            1,628,715               

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income received 550,001             13,605               249,364                            287,032                  
Net investment (purchases) sales (2,458,153)         (13,918)              (2,152,966)                        (291,269)                 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (1,908,153)         (313)                   (1,903,602)                        (4,238)                     

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 821,661             627,935             (1,430,752)                        1,624,478               

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 11,562,352        433,179             3,620,643                         7,508,530               

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 12,384,012$     1,061,114$       2,189,891$                       9,133,007$            

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 4,559,360$        662,708$           1,220,935$                       2,675,717               

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:
Member receivable 93,154               -                         -                                        93,154                    
Excess receivable 224,813             -                         224,813                            -                              
Prepaid expense (533,528)            (38,842)              (494,686)                           -                              

(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable 4,588                 4,382                 104                                   102                         
Unearned revenue (865,506)            -                         (362,555)                           (502,951)                 
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (753,068)            -                         (115,761)                           (637,307)                 

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 2,729,813$       628,248$          472,850$                          1,628,715$            

Supplemental information:
Noncash non-operating and investing activities
Net change in fair value of investments (2,495,704)$      (64,348)$           (1,130,713)$                      (1,300,643)$           

 
Page 206 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Workers’ Compensation 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       21 

City of
Anderson

City of
Auburn

City of
Colusa

City of
Corning

City of
Dixon

City of
Elk Grove

City of
Folsom

City of
Galt

City of
Gridley

City of
Ione

City of
Jackson

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from members 78,149$          257,407$        60,519$          53,821$          187,889$        754,157$        775,637$        277,423$        50,646$          11,958$          25,638$          
Cash paid for claims (54,907)           (115,237)         (116,141)         (27,857)           (180,551)         (397,444)         (426,907)         (176,416)         (25,386)           (61,566)           (67,767)           
Cash paid for insurance -                  -                  -                  -                  -                      -                  -                  -                  -                      -                  -                  
Cash paid to vendors (14,756)           (17,323)           (5,740)             (6,392)             (18,097)           (58,419)           (101,158)         (12,666)           (2,174)             (1,880)             (4,585)             
Cash paid for dividends -                      -                      -                      1,519              23,154            -                      -                      7,879              -                      11,511            32,621            

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 8,486              124,847          (61,362)           21,091            12,395            298,294          247,572          96,220            23,086            (39,977)           (14,093)           

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income received 6,411              9,541              2,327              2,055              13,091            33,199            61,246            10,471            7,117              1,022              3,725              
Net investment (purchases) sales (6,510)             (9,686)             (2,344)             (2,083)             (13,288)           (33,727)           (62,152)           (10,614)           (7,224)             (1,032)             (3,782)             

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (99)                  (145)                (17)                  (28)                  (198)                (528)                (906)                (143)                (107)                (10)                  (57)                  

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8,387              124,702          (61,379)           21,063            12,198            297,766          246,666          96,077            22,979            (39,987)           (14,150)           

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 278,312          124,711          99,040            13,545            361,661          1,087,008       1,062,983       173,436          148,047          77,529            206,242          

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 286,699$       249,413$       37,661$         34,608$         373,859$       1,384,774$     1,309,649$    269,513$       171,026$       37,542$         192,092$       

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 24,520$          305,379$        60,020$          123,792$        257,909$        (27,190)$         713,934$        192,262$        53,537$          35,015$          39,380$          

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:
Member receivable -                      10,000            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Excess receivable -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Prepaid expense -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable 114                 (249)                (361)                (514)                1,162              (806)                702                 (272)                (76)                  (141)                (117)                
Unearned revenue (37,339)           -                      -                      (4,556)             (69,461)           (20,833)           (247,982)         -                      (2)                    (7,290)             (21,349)           
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses 21,191            (190,283)         (121,021)         (97,631)           (177,215)         347,123          (219,082)         (95,770)           (30,373)           (67,561)           (32,007)           

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 8,486$           124,847$       (61,362)$        21,091$         12,395$         298,294$        247,572$       96,220$         23,086$         (39,977)$        (14,093)$        

Supplemental information:
Noncash non-operating and investing activities
Net change in fair value of investments (28,971)$        (44,014)$        (9,219)$          (9,247)$          (58,870)$        (152,327)$       (277,370)$      (47,232)$        (32,215)$        (3,860)$          (16,436)$        

 
Page 207 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Workers’ Compensation 
For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2022 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       22 

 
City of
Lincoln

City of
Marysville

City of
Nevada City

City of
Oroville

City of
Paradise

City of
Placerville

City of
Red Bluff

City of
Rio Vista

City of
Rocklin

City of
Willows

City of
Yuba City

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from members 236,529$         79,095$           71,631$               103,492$         152,657$         237,808$         376,425$         50,214$           586,985$         (9,928)$            700,666$         
Cash paid for claims (93,377)            (183,706)          (42,006)                (39,302)            (71,344)            (58,326)            (306,928)          (21,117)            (400,045)          (310)                 (253,927)          
Cash paid for insurance -                   -                       -                           -                   -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Cash paid to vendors (17,799)            (14,804)            (5,411)                  (11,209)            (14,548)            (13,369)            (29,217)            (8,612)              (51,791)            (1,614)              (44,611)            
Cash paid for dividends -                       -                       -                           -                       -                       -                       -                       9,955               -                       -                       -                       

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 125,353           (119,415)          24,214                 52,981             66,765             166,113           40,280             30,440             135,149           (11,852)            402,128           

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income received 12,710             6,635               4,249                   10,910             10,650             7,436               15,615             4,286               29,063             1,487               33,786             
Net investment (purchases) sales (12,885)            (6,709)              (4,320)                  (11,059)            (10,811)            (7,554)              (15,821)            (4,353)              (29,509)            (1,504)              (34,302)            

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (175)                 (74)                   (71)                       (149)                 (161)                 (118)                 (206)                 (67)                   (446)                 (17)                   (516)                 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 125,178           (119,489)          24,143                 52,832             66,604             165,995           40,074             30,373             134,703           (11,869)            401,612           

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 187,485           217,668           262,969               496,676           356,861           208,562           204,475           148,676           810,546           23,536             958,562           

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 312,663$        98,179$          287,112$            549,508$        423,465$        374,557$         244,549$        179,049$        945,249$        11,667$          1,360,174$     

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
   provided by (used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) 316,672$         (190,977)$        58,199$               115,653$         40,192$           132,719$         188,548$         13,196$           (136,596)$        36,833$           322,720$         

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
   cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in:
Member receivable -                       -                       -                           -                       -                       -                       83,154             -                       -                       -                       -                       
Excess receivable -                       -                       -                           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Prepaid expense -                       -                       -                           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

(Decrease) increase in:
Accounts payable (247)                 (300)                 (52)                       (297)                 (261)                 (556)                 (1,096)              23                    306                  (52)                   3,192               
Unearned revenue -                       (33,830)            (46,282)                (94,596)            -                       99,313             -                       (29,867)            -                       (36,124)            47,247             
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses (191,072)          105,692           12,349                 32,221             26,834             (65,363)            (230,326)          47,088             271,439           (12,509)            28,969             

   Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 125,353$        (119,415)$       24,214$              52,981$          66,765$          166,113$         40,280$          30,440$          135,149$        (11,852)$         402,128$        

Supplemental information:
Noncash non-operating and investing activities
Net change in fair value of investments (58,338)$         (28,284)$         (19,478)$             (47,915)$         (48,480)$         (34,820)$          (70,017)$         (19,590)$         (131,758)$       (6,657)$           (155,545)$       

 
Page 208 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
(Governmental Enterprise Fund) 

Reconciliation of Claims Liability by Program 
As of March 31, 2022 and June 30, 2021 

 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report        23 

Liability Liability Total WC WC Total
Banking Shared Risk Liability Program Banking Shared Risk WC Program Totals

2022 2022 2022 2021 2022 2022 2022 2021 2022 2021

Unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at 
     beginning of the fiscal year 3,192,879$        7,835,868$        11,028,747$      9,252,340$        18,582,893$      20,936,681$      39,519,574$        35,991,616$        50,548,321$       45,243,956$      

Incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses:

     Provision for insured events of the current fiscal year 1,236,976          1,568,886          2,805,862          3,822,671          4,202,296          2,341,201          6,543,497            8,445,552            9,349,359           12,268,223        

     Increases (Decreases) in provision for insured events
          of prior fiscal years (53,025)              (542,947)            (595,972)            790,505             (1,680,771)         (546,434)            (2,227,205)           310,745               (2,823,177)          1,101,250          

    Change in provision for ULAE in current year -                         -                         -                         -                         (38,282)              (12,519)              (50,801)                180,423               (50,801)               180,423             

Total incurred claims and claim adjustment expenses 1,183,951          1,025,939          2,209,890          4,613,176          2,483,243          1,782,248          4,265,491            8,936,720            6,475,381           13,549,896        

Payments:
     Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to
          insured events of the current fiscal year 64,054               -                         64,054               185,573             525,305             298,632             823,936               702,904               887,990              888,477             

     Claims and claim adjustment expenses attributable to
          insured events of prior fiscal years 833,983             685,818             1,519,801          2,651,195          2,595,262          1,599,377          4,194,639            4,705,858            5,714,440           7,357,053          

Total Payments 898,037             685,818             1,583,855          2,836,768          3,120,567          1,898,009          5,018,576            5,408,763            6,602,431           8,245,531          

Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment expenses at
     end of the fiscal year 3,478,793$        8,175,989$       11,654,782$     11,028,748$     17,945,569$     20,820,920$     38,766,489$       39,519,573$       50,421,271$      50,548,321$     

Claims Liability 3,478,793$        8,175,986$        11,654,779$      11,028,747$      17,033,504$      19,762,719$      36,796,223$        37,498,507$        48,451,002$       48,527,254$      
Claims ULAE -                         -                         -                         -                         912,064             1,058,201          1,970,265            2,021,067            1,970,265           2,021,067          

 Total Claim Liabilities 3,478,793$        8,175,986$       11,654,779$     11,028,747$     17,945,568$     20,820,920$     38,766,488$       39,519,574$       50,421,267$      50,548,321$     

 
Page 209 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Graphical Summary of Claims 

As of March 31, 2022 
 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report    
   24 

 
 

 $(500,000)

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

83 85 87 89 91 93 95 97 99 01 03 05 07 09 11 13 15 17 19 21

L
o

ss
es

Policy Year

Liability - Banking

Paid Reserved IBNR

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

939495969798990001020304050607080910111213141516171819202122

L
o

ss
es

Policy Year

Liability - Shared

Paid Reserved IBNR

 
Page 210 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Graphical Summary of Claims 

As of March 31, 2022 
 
 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report    
   25 

 $(1,000,000)

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

83 85 87 89 91 93 95 97 99 01 03 05 07 09 11 13 15 17 19 21

L
o

ss
es

Policy Year

Workers Compensation - Banking

Paid Reserved IBNR

 $(500,000)
 $-

 $500,000
 $1,000,000
 $1,500,000
 $2,000,000
 $2,500,000
 $3,000,000
 $3,500,000

939495969798990001020304050607080910111213141516171819202122

L
o

ss
es

Policy Year

Workers Compensation - Shared

Paid Reserved IBNR

 
Page 211 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Budget to Actual 

As of March 31, 2022 
 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report        26 

2021-2022 2021-2022

ADMIN BUDGET Total WC Liab Total WC Liab Total $ Total % WC Liab
Administrative Revenue

41010 Administrative Deposit - See Note 1 1,434,151$      984,379$         449,772$         1,075,613$      738,284$         337,329$         358,538$         25% 246,095$         112,443$         
44030 Change in Fair Value - See Note 2 -                       -                       -                       (91,906)            (64,348)            (27,558)            91,906             64,348             27,558             
44040 Interest Income - See Note 2 -                       -                       -                       20,730             14,568             6,162               (20,730)            (14,568)            (6,162)              
44080 Risk Management Grants - See Note 6 -                       -                       -                       563,898           563,898           -                       (563,898)          (563,898)          -                       

Total Admin Revenue 1,434,151$      984,379$         449,772$         1,568,335$      1,252,402$      315,933$         (134,184)$        0% (268,023)$        133,839$         

Administrative Expenses
52101 Claims Audit 7,500$             -$                     7,500$             6,625$             -$                     6,625$             875$                12% -$                     875$                
52102 Financial Audit 28,250             14,125             14,125             24,000             12,000             12,000             4,250               15% 2,125               2,125               
52103 Legal Services 17,000             2,000               15,000             2,855               -                       2,855               14,145             83% 2,000               12,145             
52104 Actuarial Services 13,800             5,900               7,900               21,275             8,883               12,392             (7,475)              -54% (2,983)              (4,492)              
52900 Member Identity Theft Protection 12,812             12,812             -                       9,921               9,921               -                       2,891               23% 2,891               -                       
52109 Misc Consulting / Contingency 5,000               2,500               2,500               -                       -                       -                       5,000               100% 2,500               2,500               

Total Admin Expenses 84,362$           37,337$           47,025$           64,676$           30,804$           33,872$           19,686$           23% 6,533$             13,153$           

Safety Services
52201 Outside Training 30,000$           15,000$           15,000$           5,286$             2,643$             2,643$             24,714$           82% 12,357$           12,357$           
52202 Risk Mgmt Comm Mtg Expense 1,500               750                  750                  -                       -                       -                       1,500               100% 750                  750                  
52204 Bickmore Risk Management Services 178,480           89,240             89,240             133,860           66,930             66,930             44,620             25% 22,310             22,310             
52207 Member Training and Risk Management 88,000             50,000             38,000             16,437             9,339               7,098               71,563             81% 40,661             30,902             
52208 Lexipol Police Manual Updates & DTBs 144,441           144,441           -                       106,605           106,605           -                       37,836             26% 37,836             -                       
52209 Police Risk Management Funds 50,000             25,000             25,000             29,041             14,524             14,517             20,959             42% 10,476             10,483             

Total Safety Services Expenses 492,421$         324,431$         167,990$         295,743$         202,298$         93,445$           196,678$         40% 122,133$         74,545$           

Budget YTD Expended Remaining
2021-2022

 
Page 212 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Budget to Actual 

As of March 31, 2022 
 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report        27 

 

2021-2022 2021-2022
ADMIN BUDGET CONTINUED Total WC Liab Total WC Liab Total Total % WC Liab

Claims Administration
52304 State Funding/Fraud Assessment 355,000$         355,000$         -$                     235,274$         235,274$         -$                     119,726$         34% 119,726$         -$                     

Total Claims Admin Expenses 355,000$         355,000$         -$                     235,274$         235,274$         -$                     119,726$         34% 119,726$         -$                     

Program Administration
52401 Program Administration and Brokerage Fee 361,378$         197,116$         164,262$         271,034$         123,197$         147,837$         90,344$           25% 73,919$           16,425$           
52403 Accounting Services 113,490           56,745             56,745             86,270             43,135             43,135             27,220             24% 13,610             13,610             

Total Program Admin Expenses 474,868$         253,861$         221,007$         357,304$         166,332$         190,972$         117,564$         25% 87,529$           30,035$           

Board Expenses
52501 Executive Committee 2,500$             1,250$             1,250$             -$                     -$                     -$                     2,500$             100% 1,250$             1,250$             
52502 Executive Committee Member Travel 4,000               2,000               2,000               -                       -                       -                       4,000               100% 2,000               2,000               
52503 Board of Directors Meetings (includes Travel) 8,000               4,000               4,000               476                  238                  238                  7,524               94% 3,762               3,762               
52509 Board of Directors Long Range Planning Session (e 8,000               4,000               4,000               3,526               1,763               1,763               4,474               56% 2,237               2,237               
52504 Association Memberships 5,000               2,500               2,500               5,530               2,765               2,765               (530)                 -11% (265)                 (265)                 

Total Board Expenses 27,500$           13,750$           13,750$           9,532$             4,766$             4,766$             17,968$           65% 8,984$             8,984$             

Total Admin Expenses 1,434,151$      984,379$         449,772$         962,529$         639,474$         323,055$         471,622$         33% 344,905$         126,717$         

TOTAL ADMIN REVENUE OVER EXPENSES -$                    -$                    -$                    605,806$        612,928$         (7,122)$           (605,806)$       (612,928)$       7,122$            

Budget YTD Expended Remaining
2021-2022

 
 

 
Page 213 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Budget to Actual 

As of March 31, 2022 
 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report        28 

2021-2022 2021-2022
Total WC Liab Total WC Liab Total Total % WC Liab

Banking Layer Revenue
41020 Banking Layer Deposit - See Note 1 9,721,000$      7,487,000$      2,234,000$      7,295,562$      5,615,251$      1,680,311$      2,425,438$      25% 1,871,749$      553,689$         
44010 Other Income -                       -                       -                       29,012             -                       29,012             (29,012)            -                       (29,012)            
41050 Banking Layer Refund -                       -                       -                       (51,335)            -                       (51,335)            51,335             -                       51,335             
44030 Change in Fair Value - See Note 2 -                       -                       -                       (1,681,573)       (1,300,640)       (380,933)          1,681,573        1,300,640        380,933           
44040 Interest Income - See Note 2 -                       -                       -                       348,698           268,865           79,833             (348,698)          (268,865)          (79,833)            
44060 Property Premium 18,672             -                       18,672             19,620             -                       19,620             (948)                 -                       (948)                 

Total Banking Layer Revenue 9,739,672$      7,487,000$      2,252,672$      5,959,984$      4,583,476$      1,376,508$      3,779,688$      39% 2,903,524$      876,164$         

Banking Layer Expenses
51100 Claims Expense - See Note 4 7,688,000$      5,985,000$      1,703,000$      3,822,286$      3,120,567$      701,719$         3,865,714$      50% 2,864,433$      1,001,281$      
51135 Claims Admin - Liability ULAE -                       -                       -                       196,317           -                       196,317           
51136 Claims Admin - Liability ALE - See Note 4 -                       -                       -                       479                  -                       479                  (479)                 -                       (479)                 
51400 OS Liability Adjustment - See Note 4 -                       -                       -                       (313,128)          (599,042)          285,914           313,128           599,042           (285,914)          
51800 ULAE Adjustment - See Note 4 -                       -                       -                       (38,282)            (38,282)            -                       38,282             38,282             -                       
52300 Claims Admin - Monthly WC Only - See Note 4 608,392           608,392           -                       456,294           456,294           -                       152,098           25% 152,098           -                       

Total Banking Layer Expenses 8,296,392$      6,593,392$      1,703,000$      4,123,966$      2,939,537$      1,184,429$      4,368,743$      53% 3,653,855$      714,888$         

TOTAL BANKING REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 1,443,280$     893,608$        549,672$        1,836,018$     1,643,939$      192,079$        (589,055)$       (750,331)$       161,276$        

2021-2022
Budget YTD Expended Remaining

 
Page 214 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Budget to Actual 

As of March 31, 2022 
 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report        29 

2021-2022 2021-2022
Total WC Liab Total WC Liab Total Total % WC Liab

Shared Layer Revenue
41030 Shared Risk Layer Deposit - See Note 1 7,146,000$      4,146,000$      3,000,000$      5,359,500$      3,109,500$      2,250,000$      1,786,500$      25% 1,036,500$      750,000$         
41040 Excess Deposit/Premium - See Note 1 5,788,207        1,955,000        3,833,207        4,341,155        1,466,250        2,874,905        1,447,052        25% 488,750           958,302           
44030 Change in Fair Value -                       -                       -                       (1,668,050)       (1,130,713)       (537,337)          1,668,050        1,130,713        537,337           
44040 Interest Income -                       -                       -                       348,718           232,439           116,279           (348,718)          (232,439)          (116,279)          
44060 Property Premium - See Note 1 4,358,287        -                       4,358,287        3,051,226        -                       3,051,226        1,307,061        30% -                       1,307,061        
44070 Crime Premium - See Note 1 53,523             -                       53,523             281,954           -                       281,954           (228,431)          -427% -                       (228,431)          

Total Shared Layer Revenue 17,346,017$    6,101,000$      11,245,017$    11,714,503$    3,677,476$      8,037,027$      5,631,514$      32% 2,423,524$      3,207,990$      

Shared Layer Expenses
51100 Claims Expense 6,396,000$      3,334,000$      3,062,000        3,011,312$      1,772,942$      1,238,370$      3,384,688$      53% 1,561,058$      1,823,630$      
52201 Outside Training -                       -                       -                       21,759             -                       21,759             (21,759)            -                       (21,759)            
54100 Excess Deposit/Premium Exp - See Note 5 5,788,207        1,955,000        3,833,207        4,431,245        1,581,873        2,849,372        1,356,962        23% 373,127           983,835           
54150 Member Property Coverage - See Note 5 4,358,287        -                       4,358,287        3,066,177        -                       3,066,177        1,292,110        30% -                       1,292,110        
54150 Member Crime Coverage - See Note 5 53,523             -                       53,523             281,954           -                       281,954           (228,431)          -427% -                       (228,431)          

Total Shared Layer Expenses 16,596,017$    5,289,000$      11,307,017$    10,812,447$    3,354,815$      7,457,632$      5,783,570$      35% 1,934,185$      3,849,385$      

TOTAL SHARED REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 750,000$        812,000$        (62,000)$         902,056$        322,661$         579,395$        (152,056)$       489,339$        (641,395)$       

OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE)
Rounding -                       -                       -                       4                      8                      (4)                     (4)                     (8)                     4                      

Total Other Income/(Expense) -$                     -$                     -$                     4$                    8$                    (4)$                   (4)$                   (8)$                   4$                    

TOTAL INCOME/(EXPENSE) 2,193,280$     1,705,608$     487,672$        3,343,884$     2,579,536$      764,348$        (1,346,921)$    (873,928)$       (472,993)$       

2021-2022
Budget YTD Expended Remaining

 
Page 215 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Notes to Budget to Actual 

As of March 31, 2022 
 
 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report    
   30 

1. Revenue Recognition 
The budget presents revenue to be earned during the entire fiscal year. In accordance with the accrual 
basis of accounting, the YTD Expended columns show only the amount earned by the organization, 
year-to-date. 
 

2. Investment Income 
No budget is developed for the Change in Fair Value and Interest Income amounts, as it is difficult to 
predict the yield on the organization’s portfolio. 
 

3. CJPRMA Refund 
For budgeting purposes, the CJPRMA refund is recorded in the year following its approval. In 
accordance with the accrual basis of accounting, the refund to the organization is recorded on the books 
in the period it was declared. 
 

4. Claims Expenses 
Claims related expenses are budgeted based on the estimated claims expense for the year. Claims related 
expenses are recorded on the books in several additional categories. Review of the budget to actual 
performance of claims related items should take this into consideration. 
 

5. Insurance Expense Recognition 
The budget presents excess and other insurance expense based on the policy fee paid for entire fiscal 
year. In accordance with the accrual basis of accounting, the YTD Expended columns show only the 
portion of the policy used by the organization, year-to-date. The remainder of the policy fee paid, but not 
used to date is recorded in Prepaid Expenses on the Statement of Net Position, as applicable. 

 
Page 216 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Risk Management Reserves Current Usage Report 

As of March 31, 2022 
 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       31 

   07/01/2021 Through  
 06/30/2021  3/31/2022 3/31/2022
Designee Balance Forward Election FY21/22 Current Year Spent Remaining
  Designated Funds         
    Anderson Designations 9,681.00 4,000.00 0.00 13,681.00
    Auburn Designations 24,770.00 4,000.00 0.00 28,770.00
    Colusa Designations 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00
    Corning Designations 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00
    Dixon Designations 79,329.69 2,490.00 0.00 81,819.69
    Elk Grove Designations 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00
    Folsom Designations (1,829.37) 4,000.00 0.00 2,170.63
    Galt Designations 7,931.00 4,000.00 0.00 11,931.00
    Gridley Designations 31,140.00 4,000.00 0.00 35,140.00
    Ione Designations 514.00 4,000.00 4,514.00 0.00
    Jackson Designations 11,409.00 1,208.00 0.00 12,617.00
    Lincoln Designations 8,788.31 4,000.00 0.00 12,788.31
    Marysville Designations 19,122.00 49,343.00 0.00 68,465.00
    Nevada City Designations 2,453.00 4,000.00 0.00 6,453.00
    Oroville Designations 2,529.50 2,910.00 0.00 5,439.50
    Paradise Designations 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00
    Placerville Designations 9,048.00 4,000.00 0.00 13,048.00
    Red Bluff Designations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
    Rio Vista Designations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
    Rocklin Designations 85,545.20 62,312.00 0.00 147,857.20
    Willows Designations 1,999.00 56,176.00 0.00 58,175.00
    Yuba City Designations 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00
  Total Designated Funds 292,430.33 230,439.00 4,514.00 518,355.33
 

 
Page 217 of 526



Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Police Risk Management Grants Current Usage Report 

As of March 31, 2022 
 

See Accompanying Accountant’s Report       32 

 
   07/01/2021 Through  
 06/30/2021  3/31/2022 3/31/2022
 Balance Forward Grant FY21/22 Current Year Spent Remaining
  Designated Funds         
    Anderson Designations 10,605.00 0.00 0.00 10,605.00
    Auburn Designations 3,091.51 0.00 0.00 3,091.51
    Colusa Designations 7,575.00 0.00 0.00 7,575.00
    Corning Designations 5,012.62 0.00 0.00 5,012.62
    Dixon Designations 7,915.62 5,000.00 0.00 12,915.62
    Elk Grove Designations 6,060.00 0.00 0.00 6,060.00
    Folsom Designations 3,787.00 400,000.00 0.00 403,787.00
    Galt Designations 21,210.00 0.00 21,210.00 0.00
    Gridley Designations 6,061.74 0.00 0.00 6,061.74
    Ione Designations 1,583.93 0.00 1,584.00 (0.07)
    Jackson Designations 1,515.00 0.00 0.00 1,515.00
    Lincoln Designations 397.87 0.00 0.00 397.87
    Marysville Designations 10,988.13 0.00 0.00 10,988.13
    Nevada City Designations 3,030.00 0.00 0.00 3,030.00
    Oroville Designations 9,090.00 0.00 0.00 9,090.00
    Paradise Designations 6,767.09 0.00 0.00 6,767.09
    Placerville Designations 1,882.44 0.00 1,382.87 499.57
    Red Bluff Designations 4,548.83 0.00 2,692.87 1,855.96
    Rio Vista Designations 6,363.85 0.00 0.00 6,363.85
    Rocklin Designations 3,030.00 0.00 0.00 3,030.00
    Willows Designations 6,318.00 0.00 2,178.00 4,140.00
    Yuba City Designations 11,450.95 0.00 0.00 11,450.95
  Total Designated Funds 138,284.58 405,000.00 29,047.74 514,236.84
  

 

 
Page 218 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item G.2. 
 

BUDGET TO ACTUAL AS OF MARCH 31, 2022 
 

INFORMATION ITEM 
 
 

ISSUE: Members have asked for this item to be reviewed at each meeting to ensure that NCCSIF 
finances are on track. They have requested that the Program Administrators discuss any items pertaining 
to the budget, updating members on the status of the current budget-to-actual. 
 
NCCSIF administrative expenses year-to-date are $ 962,529, or 67% of the budgeted amount, with 33% 
remaining for fourth quarter expenses.  
 
Member Training and Risk Management is well under budget, with 81% of the funds available. All 
members have up to $4,000 to spend on training, a total of $88,000. Members are encouraged to assess 
their training needs and submit requests for these funds prior to June 30TH. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Please refer to pages 26-30 of the Quarterly Financial Report for Period Ending 
March 31, 2022 - Budget to Actual as of March 31, 2022 
 
 
  

 
Page 219 of 526



BACK TO AGENDA  

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.1.a. 

FY 22/23 NCCSIF MEMORANDUM OF COVERAGE - LIABILITY 

ACTION ITEM 

ISSUE: The Board annually reviews and approves the Liability Memorandum of Coverage (MOC). The 
NorCal Cities MOC is an “underlying” form that incorporates the excess Memorandum of Coverage 
provided by the California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority (CJPRMA).  

Unlike last year, CJPRMA is not facing coverage restrictions being imposed by their reinsurers and so 
there are no changes to the terms of the CJPRMA MOC itself.  

The final CJPRMA MOC and reinsurance terms will be presented for approval at the Board meeting if 
available.  If the coverage is not finalized until after the meeting the MOC will be distributed as soon 
as received.   

There are no proposed changes to the NCCSIF MOC other than to the edition date and dates in the 
Member Declarations pages.   

Please note the endorsement for Violent Event Coverage, allowing members to access their Banking 
Layers in the case of a Violent Event, was added prior to the purchase of Deadly Weapons Coverage 
with a $10,000 deductible. While the two coverages overlap somewhat the Violent Event coverage is 
not tied to an insured location in the Property Program as is the Deadly Weapons coverage.   

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the NorCal Cities MOC as presented or revised.  

FISCAL IMPACT: None expected from this action.   

BACKGROUND: NorCal Cities annually reviews and approves the Liability Memorandum of 
Coverage (MOC), including any recommended changes based on member feedback and/or changes 
made to the excess MOC provided by CJPRMA. 

ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. FY 22/23 NorCal Cities Liability MOC, with sample declarations page
2. FY 22/23 CJPRMA Liability MOC- to be provided as available

 
Page 220 of 526



LIABILITY 
 

UNDERLYING MEMORANDUM OF COVERAGE 

 

DECLARATIONS 

 

1.  Memorandum Number: NCCL-22 

 

2.  Member City: City of Anderson 

  1887 Howard Street 

  Anderson, California 96007 

 

3.  Participating Agencies: Anderson Public Finacing Authority 

  Anderson Redevelopment Agency 

 

4.  Coverage Period:   July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023 

 

5.  Banking Layer:   $0 to $50,000 each covered occurrence 

 

$0 to $75,000 each covered occurrence for any claim(s) arising out 

of any fireworks display or demonstration sponsored or 

controlled by a covered party, if the covered party has not secured 

an additional insured endorsement in its favor from the fireworks 

vendor's insurance or coverage provider with limits in an amount 

of at least $5 million dedicated, project specific aggregate limit. 

 

6.  Shared Risk Layer:  $50,000 to $750,000 each covered occurrence 

 

7.  Limit of Liability: $450,000 each covered occurrence, as respects liability imposed by 

law for damages excess of banking layer because of bodily injury, 

property damage, personal injury, employment practices liability or 

public officials’ errors and omissions. 

 

8.  Deductible:   None 

 

9.  Terms and Conditions: The terms and conditions of this Memorandum of Coverage shall 

apply. 

  

 
Page 221 of 526



10. Claims Administrator: Sedgwick 

PO Box 14433 

Lexington, KY 40512 

(800)922-5020 

                                                            7374NCCSIF@sedgwick.com 

 

11. Excess Memorandum of Coverage: 

 

California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority (CJPRMA) 

Excess Limits of Liability: see MOC declarations 

 

 

 

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS 

FORMING PART OF THE POLICY AT INCEPTION: 

 

NCCSIF: NCCL-22; Transit Systems; Violent Event Coverage 

CJPRMA: MOC 7/1/2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________________ July 1, 2022 

Marcus Beverly, Program Administrator Date 

 

 

 
Page 222 of 526

mailto:7374NCCSIF@sedgwick.com


 

NCCL-22                      Effective July 1, 2022, Page 1 of 7  

LIABILITY  
  

UNDERLYING MEMORANDUM OF COVERAGE  
  
The Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (hereinafter called NCCSIF) is an 
intergovernmental agency, risk sharing, joint powers authority, duly formed pursuant to 
California Government Code Sections 6500-6512, and other provisions of law.  
  
This Memorandum of Coverage is a contract between the NCCSIF and its Members which 
sets forth certain duties, responsibilities and obligations of each party. This Memorandum 
of Coverage is not an insurance policy or document, and is not necessarily subject to the 
particular rules of law which apply to an insurance policy or to interpretation of insurance 
policies or insurance related documents.  
  
1. COVERAGE AGREEMENT  
  

In consideration of the payment of the required deposit and subject to all the terms of this 
Memorandum of Coverage, NCCSIF agrees to pay on behalf of the Member a Loss 
resulting from any occurrence covered by the terms of the California Joint Powers Risk 
Management Authority (CJPRMA) Memorandum of Coverage effective for the Coverage  
Period under Item 4. of the Declarations to this Memorandum, except for the Limits of 
Liability and defense provisions and as amended within this Memorandum or by 
endorsement. The coverage afforded by this Memorandum shall be primary unless Other 
Insurance is applicable.  

  
2. LIMIT OF LIABILITY  
  

The Limit of Liability applicable to this Memorandum is as stated under Item 7 of the 
Declarations.  
  
In the event of a coverage dispute, under no circumstances shall the NCCSIF be liable for 
consequential damages, “bad faith” damages, or any sums beyond the amounts due under 
CJPRMA Memorandum of Coverage Section I - Coverages, plus interest at the same rate 
as NCCSIF earned on investments for the time period involved.  
  

3. EXCLUSIONS  
  

 
Page 223 of 526



 

NCCL-22                      Effective July 1, 2022, Page 2 of 7  

A. Exclusions No. 25 and No. 36, dealing with Transit Systems, of the CJPRMA 
Memorandum of Coverage do not apply to this Memorandum of Coverage.  

  
B. Exclusion No. 22 of the CJPRMA Memorandum of Coverage does not apply under 

this Memorandum to inverse condemnation liability arising from accidentally 
caused physical injury to or destruction of tangible property, including all resulting 
loss of use of such property, for which the covered party may be legally responsible.  

  
C. As stated under “Covered Party” definition, coverage does not apply to loss 

resulting from any employee or volunteer who has five or more violation points as 
valued and enumerated on the Department of Motor Vehicles Negligent Operator 
Count list within the three years immediately preceding the loss.   
  
However, this exclusion shall apply to the covered employee or volunteer only, and 
not the vicarious liability of the Member, except that if the Member knowingly 
permits a covered employee or volunteer to operate after accumulating five or more 
violation points, this exclusion applies to the Member as well.  

  
4. DEFINITIONS  
  

The conditions of this Memorandum of Coverage shall be applied as if the definitions of 
words listed below had been included with the word or words each time they appear in this 
Memorandum.  

  
COVERED PARTY:  
(a) A member entity of NCCSIF. This includes all entities named in the Declarations 

page, including any and all commissions, agencies, districts, authorities, boards 
(including the governing board) or similar entities coming under the entity’s 
direction or control, or for which the entity’s board members sit as the governing 
body, except a hospital board or commission, regardless of how it is denominated.  

  
(b) Any person or entity identified as a covered party holding a certificate of coverage 

duly issued by the Authority, for occurrences during the coverage period identified 
in the certificate of coverage; if a particular activity is identified in the certificate of 
coverage, the person or entity is a covered party only for occurrences arising out of 
the described activity.  

  

 
Page 224 of 526



 

NCCL-22                      Effective July 1, 2022, Page 3 of 7  

(c) Any person who is an official, employee or volunteer of a person or entity covered 
by (a) or (b) herein, whether or not compensated, while acting in an official capacity 
for or on behalf of such person or entity, including while acting on any commission, 
regardless of how such body is denominated. Covered Party shall not include any 
person whose conduct is not within the course and scope of his or her employment 
or office with the covered party at the time of the act or acts that give rise to liability.  

  
  
(d) With respect to any automobile owned or leased by a covered party (described in 

(a) or (b) above), or loaned to or hired for use by or on behalf of the covered party, 
any person, while using such automobile, and any person or organization legally 
responsible for the use thereof, provided the actual use is with the express 
permission of the covered party, but this protection does not apply to the an covered 
party as respects:  

  
1) any employee or volunteer who has five or more violation points, as valued 

and enumerated on the Department of Motor Vehicles Negligent Operator 
Count list within the three years immediately preceding the “loss.”  

  
2) any person or organization, or any agent or employee thereof, operating an 

automobile sales agency, repair shop, service station, storage garage or 
public parking place, with respect to an occurrence arising out of the 
operation thereof; or  

  
3) the owner or any lessee, other than the covered party, of any automobile 

hired by or loaned to the covered party or to any agent or employee of such 
owner or lessee.  

  
This agreement does not provide uninsured or underinsured motorist coverage.  
  

LOSS: The total of all defense costs incurred by the covered parties and all damages for 
which the covered parties are liable either by adjudication or by compromise with the 
written consent of NCCSIF, after making proper deduction for all recoveries and salvages, 
arising from an occurrence to which this coverage applies. Loss does not include attorneys’ 
fees or costs awarded to the prevailing party in a suit except where such attorneys’ fees or 
costs are attributable to a claim for damages covered by this Memorandum.  

  

 
Page 225 of 526



 

NCCL-22                      Effective July 1, 2022, Page 4 of 7  

Additionally, for any claim or suit seeking damages that would be potentially covered by 
this Memorandum of Coverage but for the operation of an Exclusion, NCCSIF shall, upon 
request, include within the definition of loss, damages for which the covered parties are 
liable either by adjudication or by compromise up to the limit of coverage in the Member 
City’s Banking Layer shown on the Declarations.  

  
5. OTHER INSURANCE or COVERAGE  
  

The coverage afforded by this Memorandum shall be excess over any other valid and 
collectible insurance or coverage available to the Member City and applicable to any part 
of the loss, whether such other insurance or coverage is stated to be primary, excess, 
contingent or otherwise, unless such other insurance or coverage specifically applies as 
excess insurance or coverage over the limits provided in this Memorandum of Coverage.  

  
6. NOTICE OF OCCURRENCE  
  

Upon the happening of any occurrence likely to involve NCCSIF under this Memorandum, 
the Member shall give notice, either written or oral, as soon as practicable to the Claims 
Administrator of NCCSIF as listed in Item 10 of the Declarations. Such notice shall contain 
particulars sufficient to identify the Member and fullest information obtainable at the time. 
If legal proceedings are begun, the Member shall forward to the NCCSIF Claims  
Administrator each paper therein, or a copy thereof, received by the Member or the 
Member’s representative, together with copies of reports or investigations with respect to 
such claim proceedings.  

  
7. DEFENSE  
  

NCCSIF shall assume charge of the investigation, settlement or defense of any claims 
made, or suits brought, or proceedings instituted against the Member that in the opinion of 
NCCSIF may create liability on the part of NCCSIF under the terms of this Memorandum 
of Coverage.  
  
Additionally, for any claim or suit seeking Damages that would be potentially covered by 
this Memorandum of Coverage but for the operation of Exclusion, NCCSIF shall, upon 
request, reimburse the Member’s cost of defense of the claim, up to the limit of coverage 
in the Member’s Banking Layer shown in the Declarations. This supplemental defense cost 
coverage shall not apply to coverage in the pooled risk sharing layer shown in the 
Declarations.  

 
Page 226 of 526



 

NCCL-22                      Effective July 1, 2022, Page 5 of 7  

  
8. PAYMENT OF LOSS  
  

Upon final determination of Loss, NCCSIF will promptly pay on behalf of the Member the 
amount of Loss falling within the terms of this Memorandum of Coverage.  

  
9. SUBROGATION  
  

In the event of any payment under this Memorandum of Coverage, NCCSIF will be 
subrogated to all the Member City’s rights of recovery against any person or organization 
and NCCSIF shall execute and deliver instruments and papers and do whatever else is 
necessary to secure such rights.  
  
  
The amount recovered as subrogation shall be apportioned in the inverse order of payment 
of the Loss to the extent of the actual payment. The expenses of all such recovery 
proceedings shall be apportioned in the ratio of the respective recoveries.  

  
10. CANCELLATION  
  

This Memorandum of Coverage may be canceled in accordance with the terms of the JPA 
Agreement and Bylaws of NCCSIF.   

  

11. ARBITRATION OF COVERAGE DISPUTES  
  

COVERAGE DETERMINATIONS  
The Claims Committee shall make the initial determination whether to deny coverage on 
all or part of a claim, or to reserve the Authority’s right to deny coverage on all or part of 
a claim, if a loss subsequently exceeds the retained limit.  
  
A decision by the Claims Committee to deny coverage can be appealed to the Board of 
Directors. Notice of such appeal shall be submitted in writing within thirty (30) calendar 
days of the date of the Claims Committee’s written notice of decision.  
  
The appeal shall be considered by the Board of Directors at the next regular or special 
meeting following receipt of the written appeal; if the appeal is received too late for 
inclusion in the agenda packet, it can be postponed to the next following Board meeting.  

 
Page 227 of 526



 

NCCL-22                      Effective July 1, 2022, Page 6 of 7  

The Program Administrator in conjunction with the Claims Committee and the covered 
party will have the right to submit written materials and present oral argument to the Board, 
subject to reasonable time constraints. Any dispute concerning a decision by the Board to 
deny coverage for all or part of a claim shall not be subject to any court action, but may 
instead be submitted to binding arbitration in accordance with the procedures set forth 
below. Notice of a request for binding arbitration by the covered party must be submitted 
within thirty (30) calendars days from the date of the noticed decision by the Board of 
Directors.  
  
Under no circumstances shall the NCCSIF be liable for consequential damages, “bad faith” 
damages, or any sums beyond the amounts due under CJPRMA Memorandum of Coverage 
Section I – Coverages, plus interest at the same rate as NCCSIF earned on investments for 
the time period involved.  

     
  
  (a)  ARBITRATION PROCEDURES FOR RESOLVING DISPUTES  
  

1) Selection of Arbitrators:  
If an appeal of a Board decision is submitted to arbitration, each side shall, 
within ten (10) calendar days, select one (1) arbitrator and submit his or her 
name in writing to the other side. Within ten (10) calendar days after their 
selection, these two arbitrators shall select a third independent arbitrator. If 
the two sides cannot agree on the selection of the third arbitrator within ten 
(10) calendar days, either side may petition the Sacramento County 
Superior Court for the appointment of the third arbitrator pursuant to the 
provisions of section 1281.6 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. The 
third arbitrator shall be an attorney and preside as the Chairperson of the 
arbitration panel. No arbitrator shall be employed or affiliated with the 
Authority or the covered party or parties.  
  
The arbitration hearing shall commence within forty-five (45) calendar days 
from the date of the selection of the Chairperson, unless both sides agree to 
an extension. Each side shall pay the cost of its selected arbitrator and one 
half of the cost of the third selected arbitrator. In addition, each side shall 
be responsible for its own cost and expense of arbitration.  
  
Except for notification of appointment and as provided in the California 
Code of Civil Procedure, there shall be no communication between either 

 
Page 228 of 526



 

NCCL-22                      Effective July 1, 2022, Page 7 of 7  

side and the arbitrator(s) relating to the subject of the arbitration other than 
at oral hearings.  
  

2) Discovery  
The procedures set forth in Code of Civil Procedure section 1283.05 relating 
to depositions and discovery shall apply to any arbitration pursuant to this 
paragraph (b).   
  

3) Testimony Under Oath  
The testimony of witnesses shall be given under oath.  

  
4) Length of Hearing  

The panel will endeavor to confine the length of the hearing to two (2) days. 
A decision of the panel shall be reported in writing. The written decision of 
the panel shall be given to both sides within thirty (30) calendar days of the 
close of the hearing.   
 

5) Certified Shorthand Reporter 
Either side wishing a certified shorthand reporter record shall make 
arrangements directly with a certified shorthand reporter and notify the 
other side of such arrangements in advance of the hearing. The requesting 
side shall pay the cost of recording the hearing if no transcript is ordered. If 
a transcript is ordered, the cost of the transcript and of recording the hearing 
shall be prorated equally among the parties ordering copies. 

 
(b)  FUNDING OF DEFENSE AND PAYMENT OF CLAIMS PENDING 

RESOLUTION OF DISPUTE 
 

During the course of the arbitration proceedings provided herein, the covered party 
will be responsible for all fees and expenses for investigation, defense or litigation 
of a claim or lawsuit. In the event the arbitration panel determines that coverage 
applies for such defense costs, the Authority will reimburse the covered party as 
directed by the panel. 

 
(c) EFFECTS OF ARBITRATION DECISIONS 

 
All decisions on appeals, whether by the Board of Directors (after the time to 
request arbitration has expired) or by the arbitration panel, shall be final and binding 
upon the parties and shall not be subject to any further appeal or court action, except 

 
Page 229 of 526



 

NCCL-22                      Effective July 1, 2022, Page 8 of 7  

as provided in Code of Civil Procedures sections 1286.2 and 1286.4 (relating to 
fraud or corruption, etc.). 

 
(d)  GENERAL LAW 

 
Except as provided otherwise above, arbitration shall be conducted as provided in 
Title 9 of the Code of Civil Procedure (commencing with section 1280). 

 
 
 
 
 
07/01/2022 __________________________________ 
Date Liz Cottrell NCCSIF President 
 
 
  

 
Page 230 of 526



 

NCCL-22                      Effective July 1, 2022, Page 9 of 7  

LIABILITY AMENDATORY ENDORSEMENT 

 

UNDERLYING MEMORANDUM OF COVERAGE 
 

TRANSIT SYSTEMS 
 
This endorsement is issued to: 
 
 
The City of Auburn 
 
The City of Dixon 
 
 
It is understood and agreed that Section 3, Exclusion A is deleted and replaced with the following: 
 

With respect to the Members named above, Exclusions No. 24 and No. 35, dealing 
with Transit Systems, of the California Joint Powers Risk Management 
Authority Memorandum of Coverage do not apply to the Northern California 
Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) Underlying Memorandum of Coverage 
for Liability. Notwithstanding what is stated in the applicable declarations, the limit 
of coverage described in this exception will be subject to a sublimit of $250,000 
each occurrence. 

 
All other terms and conditions of this underlying memorandum of coverage are unchanged. If this 
endorsement is issued after the effective date of this underlying memorandum of coverage, then it 
must be signed by an Officer of NCCSIF. 
 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Liz Cottrell, NCCSIF President 

 
Endorsement Effective Date: July 1, 2022 
 
 

 
Page 231 of 526



 

 

 

 
 
 

UNDERLYING MEMORANDUM OF COVERAGE 
 

VIOLENT EVENT COVERAGE 
 
 
It is understood and agreed that after a Violent Event requiring emergency service response from 
any Member, such Member may elect payment up to the amount of their Banking Layer. 
 
Violent Event is defined as an individual or group of individuals who has used or attempted to 
use deadly force on other persons and continues to do so while having unrestricted access to 
additional victims. 
 
Notwithstanding what is stated in the applicable declarations, the limit of coverage described in 
this endorsement shall not exceed the Member’s Banking Layer per Violent Event or in the 
aggregate for the applicable Program Year. 
 
All other terms and conditions of this underlying memorandum of coverage are unchanged. If this 
endorsement is issued after the effective date of this underlying memorandum of coverage, then it 
must be signed by an Officer of NCCSIF. 
 
 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Liz Cottrell, NCCSIF President 

 
 
Endorsement Effective Date: July 1, 2022 

 

 
Page 232 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.1.b. 
 

FY 22/23 NCCSIF MEMORANDUM OF COVERAGE 
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 

 
ACTION ITEM 

 
ISSUE: The Board annually reviews and adopts or makes changes to the NorCal Cities Workers’ 
Compensation Memorandum of Coverage (MOC) based on member or Program Administrator feedback 
and/or changes made to the excess coverage provided by PRISM.   
 
While we do not have the final PRISM MOC for approval, we do expect an endorsement or other change 
in the coverage to reflect how the program will treat COVID-19 claims pre and post June 30, 2022. The 
following is an edited version of the announcement by PRISM regarding the subject.  
 

The PRISM Board of Directors took actions affecting the Excess Workers’ Compensation 
(EWC) Program’s COVID-19 loss. The Board’s action has three parts, each of which is 
addressed below.  
 
The Board established an end date for PRISM’s COVID-19 occurrence as 6/30/22 

 
The 2019/20 PRISM Memorandum of Coverage (MOC) provided Communicable Disease 
coverage on an “occurrence” basis.  The specific wording in the MOC states: 
 

“C) All occupational disease sustained by one or more employees as a result of an 
outbreak of the same communicable disease shall be deemed to arise from a 
single occurrence.  An outbreak of the same communicable disease that spans 
more than one coverage period shall be deemed to take place during the first such 
coverage period.” 

 
Therefore, under the MOC, all COVID-19 claims from all EWC Program members are 
deemed to be a single occurrence under the 2019/20 coverage year. The EWC 
Program was very fortunate to have this wording in the MOC and excess reinsurance 
contracts; it is extremely unusual to have such language where a single occurrence 
applies to a Communicable Disease. The “normal” workers’ compensation structure is to 
have disease losses of any kind apply on a “per employee” basis, and that is the only 
structure now available in the workers’ compensation marketplace.   
 
New COVID claims beyond June 30, 2022, will still be covered, but subject to the 
“per employee” wording in the 2020/21 and subsequent MOCs.   
 
In summary, nobody anticipated a pandemic like COVID-19 impacting the members and 
the EWC Program.  The PRISM Board acted to address the EWC Program COVID-19 
losses. First, the Board determined to set an end to the COVID-19 occurrence at June 30,  

 
Page 233 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.1.b. continued 
 

2022. Second, the Board acknowledged that there is a $50M limit available in the Core 
Tower, and that should the total of all claims for all members combined exceed $50M, 
then the limit will need to be allocated amongst the members on a proportional basis. 
Finally, each member must satisfy their individual SIR before coverage from the EWC 
Program applies.  

The Program Administrators will provide a copy of the final PRISM MOC with any an explanation of 
any changes when received.    
 
Also attached is the NorCal Cities Workers’ Compensation MOC with no changes other than for the 
edition and coverage dates. Note, NCCSIF does not cover a member’s obligation to pay any portion of 
Labor Code 4850 benefits, including Salary Continuation (SC) and Temporary Disability (TD), the 
amount that would be payable in TD if 4850 did not apply. The excess coverage provided by PRISM 
does not cover the 4850 Salary Continuation portion but does cover the WC related TD expenses. 
Sedgwick keeps track of both types of payments to assure proper credit.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve the FY 22/23 Workers’ Compensation MOC. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None directly from this item.   
 
BACKGROUND: NCCSIF annually reviews and approves the Workers’ Compensation MOC, 
including any recommended changes based on member feedback and/or changes made to the excess 
MOC provided by PRISM (formerly CSAC-EIA). Each member maintains a Banking Layer to pay the 
first $100,000 of any claim, with NCCSIF providing coverage from $100,000 to $500,000 in the Shared 
Layer. PRISM provides excess coverage for Part One – Workers’ Compensation from $500,000 to 
Statutory Limits, with a $5,000,000 limit for Coverage Part Two - Employer’s Liability coverage. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): FY 22/23 NCCSIF Workers’ Compensation MOC, with sample Declarations 
Page   

 
Page 234 of 526



WORKERS' COMPENSATION 
MEMORANDUM OF COVERAGE 

DECLARATIONS 

 

1. Memorandum Number: NCCWC-22 

 

2. Member Entity: City of Anderson 

1887 Howard Street 

Anderson, California 96007 

 

3.       Coverage Period:                              July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023 

 

4. Banking Layer: $0 to $100,000 each accident or each employee for disease 

 

5. Shared Risk Layer: $100,000 to $500,000 each accident or each employee for 

disease 

 

6. NCCSIF Shared Risk Layer $400,000 each accident or each employee for disease:  

Limit of Liability: a) Workers' Compensation (Coverage Part I) 

b) Employers' Liability (Coverage Part II) 

 

7. Payroll Reporting and 

Adjusting Period: Annual 

 

8. Loss Reporting: Sedgwick 

PO Box 14433 

Lexington, KY 40512 

(800) 922-5020 

 

9.  Excess Memorandum of Coverage: 

 PRISM Excess Insurance Authority MOC #: PRISM-PE 21 EWC-48 

  Excess Limits of Liability: Workers Compensation: Statutory, less $500,000 Retention  

               Employers’ Liability: $5,000,000, less $500,000 Retention   
 

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS FORMING PART OF THE POLICY AT INCEPTION: 
 

NCCSIF: NCCWC-22 

PRISM: PRISM-PE 22 EWC-48 
 

______________________________     July 1, 2022 

Marcus Beverly, Program Administrator       Date

 
Page 235 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 1 of 14  

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION & EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY  
  

MEMORANDUM OF COVERAGE  
  

The Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (hereinafter called NCCSIF) is an 
intergovernmental agency, risk sharing, joint powers authority, duly formed pursuant to 
California Government Code Sections 6500-6512, and other provisions of law.  
  
This Memorandum of Coverage is a contract between the NCCSIF and its Members that sets 
forth certain duties, responsibilities and obligations of each party. This Memorandum of 
Coverage is not an insurance policy or document, and is not necessarily subject to the 
particular rules of law that apply to an insurance policy or to interpretation of insurance 
policies or insurance related documents.  
  

INTRODUCTION  
  
In return for the payment of the premium and subject to all terms and conditions of this agreement, 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) agrees with you (the Member agency 
named in the Declarations) as follows:  
  

GENERAL SECTION  
  
A.  THE AGREEMENT  
  
This agreement includes the Declarations and all endorsements and schedules attached to it. It is 
a coverage agreement between you and us. The only agreements relating to this coverage are 
stated in this coverage agreement.  
  
The terms of this agreement may not be changed or waived except by endorsement issued by us to 
be part of this agreement. You are responsible for telling us at once when the information contained 
in this agreement is no longer accurate for your operations.  
  
This agreement, including the Declarations, endorsements and schedules attached to it, and any 
specified section of the JPA Agreement or Bylaws constitutes the entire coverage agreement. No 
condition, provision, agreement or understanding not stated in this coverage agreement will affect 
any rights, duties or privileges in connection with this coverage agreement.  
  

 
Page 236 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 2 of 14  

Under no circumstances shall NCCSIF be liable for consequential damages, “bad faith” damages, 
or any sums beyond the Limit of Liability shown in the Declarations.  
  
B.  WHO IS COVERED  
  
The Member Agency named in the Declarations is covered for liability to its employees, subject 
to the provisions of this agreement.  
  
C.  WORKERS’ COMPENSATION LAW  
  
Workers’ compensation law means the Workers’ Compensation Laws of the State of California 
(which include injury by both accident and disease). It includes any amendments to that law that 
are in effect during the coverage period. It does not include the provisions of any law that provide 
non-occupational disability benefits. The term “Workers’ Compensation Law” shall also include 
the United States’ Longshore and Harbor Workers Compensation Act, also known as LHWCA 
(33 USC Sections 901-950).  
  
D.  LOCATIONS  
  
This agreement covers all of your workplaces in California and in other states if listed unless you 
have other insurance, are self-insured or covered under another Joint Powers Authority for such 
workplaces.  
  
E.  WHO IS ELIGIBLE FOR BENEFITS  
  
Your employees (or in the event of their death, their dependents) are eligible for benefits under 
this agreement, except that employees who are excluded under Workers’ Compensation Law are 
not eligible for benefits under this agreement unless they have been included on the Declarations 
or by endorsement.  
  

PART ONE — WORKERS’ COMPENSATION COVERAGE  
  
A.  HOW THIS COVERAGE APPLIES  
  
This workers’ compensation coverage applies to bodily injury by accident or bodily injury by 
disease, including resulting death, subject to the following conditions:  
  

1. Bodily injury by accident must occur during the coverage period.  

 
Page 237 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 3 of 14  

2. Bodily injury by disease must be caused or aggravated by the conditions of your 
employment. Your employee’s exposure to those conditions causing or aggravating 
such bodily injury by disease must occur during the coverage period.  

    
B.  WE WILL PAY  
  
We will pay promptly when due to those eligible under this agreement the benefits required of you 
by the workers’ compensation law, in excess of the Member Retention specified in Item 3 of the 
Schedule and subject to the limit specified in Item 5 of the Schedule. As respects the United States 
and Longshore and Harbor Workers Compensation Act (33 USC Sections 901-950), coverage for 
loss shall be limited, by amount and time of payment, to the benefits which would be available 
under the Workers’ Compensation Act of the state where the injured employee is normally 
employed, if that law applied.   
  
C.  RIGHT TO ASSOCIATE IN DEFENSE  
  
We have no duty to investigate, handle, settle or defend any claims, suits or proceedings against 
you. We have the discretionary right—and shall be given the opportunity by you—to associate 
with you in the defense, investigation or settlement of any claim, suit or proceeding that appears 
to involve indemnity by NCCSIF. In such association, you and NCCSIF shall cooperate in all 
aspects of defense, investigation, or settlement.  
  
D.  WE WILL ALSO PAY  
  
Subject to the Member Retention specified in Item 4 and limit specified in Item 6 of the Schedule, 
we will also pay these costs, in addition to other amounts payable under this coverage as part of 
any claim, proceeding or suit we defend:  
  

1. Reasonable expenses incurred at our request, but not loss of earnings  

2. Premiums for bonds to release attachments and for appeal bonds in bond amounts up 
to twice the amount payable under this coverage  

3. Litigation costs taxed against you  

4. Interest on an award or judgment as required by law  

5. Expenses we incur  

  
E.  OTHER INSURANCE  
  

 
Page 238 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 4 of 14  

We will not pay more than our share of benefits and costs covered by this agreement and other 
insurance or self-insurance. All shares will be equal until the loss is paid.  
  
    
F.  LIMIT OF LIABILITY  
  
Our liability to pay for damages is limited. Our limit of liability is shown in Item 6 of the Schedule 
of Declarations. It is the most we will pay for all damages covered by this coverage because of 
bodily injury to one or more employees in any one accident or occurrence, or series of accidents 
or occurrences, arising out of any one event. We will not pay any claims for damages after we 
have paid the limit of our liability under this coverage as explained above.  
  
G.   PAYMENTS YOU MUST MAKE  
  
You are responsible for any payments of benefits required under the Workers’ Compensation Law 
within the retention and those payments in excess of the benefits regularly provided by the 
workers’ compensation law including, but not limited to, those required because:  
  

1. of your serious and willful misconduct;  

2. you knowingly employ an employee in violation of law;  

3. you fail to comply with a health or safety law or regulation;  

4. you discharge, coerce or otherwise discriminate against any employee in violation of 
the law;   

5. of injury to an employee under the minimum age specified in the workers’ 
compensation law and illegally employed at the time of injury;  

6. of your obligation to pay salary in lieu of temporary disability benefits as required under 
Labor Code Section 4850, including to the extent you would be responsible for 
temporary disability benefits if Labor code Section 4850 did not apply;   

7. of your obligations pursuant to Labor Code Section 4856;  

8. of your obligations arising out of operations for which you have rejected any Workers’ 
Compensation Law; or  

9. of your obligations for discrimination against any employee for the filing of a claim for 
Workers’ Compensation coverage, or for discrimination of an employee that has agreed 
to testify in another employee’s workers’ compensation claim.  

  

 
Page 239 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 5 of 14  

H.  RECOVERY FROM OTHERS  
  
We may enforce your rights, and the rights of persons entitled to the benefits of this coverage, to 
recover our payments from anyone liable for the injury. You will do everything necessary to 
protect those rights for us and to help us enforce them.  
  
I.  STATUTORY PROVISIONS  
  
These statements apply where they are required by law:  
  

1. As between an injured worker and us, we have notice of injury when you have notice.  

2. We are directly and primarily liable to any person entitled to the benefits payable by 
this coverage, subject to the provisions, conditions and limitations of this agreement.  

3. Jurisdiction over you is jurisdiction over us for purposes of the workers’ compensation 
law. We are bound by decisions against you under that law, subject to the provisions of 
this agreement that are not in conflict with that law.  

4. Terms of this coverage that conflict with the workers’ compensation insurance law are 
changed by this statement to conform to that law.  

5. Your employee has a first lien upon any amount that becomes owing to you by us 
because of this agreement and in the case of your legal incapacity or inability to receive 
the money and pay it to the claimant; we will pay it directly to the claimant.  

Nothing in these paragraphs relieves you of your duties under this agreement.  
  

PART TWO — EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY COVERAGE  
  
A.  HOW THIS COVERAGE APPLIES  
  
This employer’s liability coverage applies to bodily injury by accident or bodily injury by disease, 
including resulting death, subject to the following conditions:  
  

1. The bodily injury must arise out of and in the course of the injured employee’s 
employment by you.  

2. The employment must be necessary or incidental to your work in the State of California.  

3. Bodily injury by accident must occur during the coverage period.  

 
Page 240 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 6 of 14  

4. Bodily injury by disease must be caused or aggravated by the conditions of your 
employment. The employee’s last day of exposure to the conditions causing or 
aggravating such bodily injury by disease OR the date upon which the employee first 
suffered disability and either knew, or in the exercise of reasonable diligence should 
have known, that such disability was caused by his or her employment whichever 
comes first and must occur during the coverage period.  

5. If you are sued, the suit and any related legal actions for damages for bodily injury by 
accident or by disease must be brought under the laws of the State of California.  

  
B.   WE WILL PAY  
  
We will pay all sums over the amount stated as the Members’ Retained Limit in Item 3 of the 
Schedule you legally must pay as damages because of bodily injury to your employees eligible for 
benefits under this agreement, provided the bodily injury is covered by this employer’s liability 
coverage and subject to the limit specified in Item 6 of the Schedule.  
  
The damages we will pay over the amount stated as the Members’ Retained Limit in Item 3 of the 
Schedule, where recovery is permitted by law, include damages:  
  

1. for which you are liable to a third party by reason of a claim or suit against you by that 
third party to recover the damages claimed against such third party as a result of injury 
to your employee;   

2. for care and loss of services; and   

3. for consequential bodily injury to a spouse, child, parent, brother or sister of the injured 
employee;  

  
provided that these damages are the direct consequence or bodily injury that arises out of and in 
the course of the injured employee’s employment by you, and  
  

4. because of bodily injury to your employee that arises out of and in the course of 
employment claimed against you in a capacity other than as employer.  

  
C.  EXCLUSIONS  
  
This agreement does not cover:  
  

 
Page 241 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 7 of 14  

1. liability assumed under a contract. This exclusion does not apply to a warranty that your 
work will be done in a workmanlike manner;  

2. punitive or exemplary damages where coverage for such liability is prohibited by law 
or contrary to public policy;  

3. bodily injury to an employee while employed in violation of law with your actual 
knowledge or the actual knowledge of any of your executive officers;  

4. any obligation imposed by a workers’ compensation, occupational disease, 
unemployment compensation or disability benefits law, or any similar law;  

5. bodily injury intentionally caused or aggravated by you;  
6. damages arising out of the discharge of, coercion, criticism, demotion, evaluation, 

reassignment, discipline, defamation, harassment, humiliation, discrimination against, 
or termination of any employee, or any personnel practices, policies, acts or omissions;  

7. damages for discrimination against any employee for the filing of a claim or for 
discrimination of an employee that has agreed to testify in another employee’s workers’ 
compensation claim.  

  
D.  RIGHT TO ASSOCIATE IN DEFENSE  
  
We have no duty to investigate, handle, settle or defend any claims, suits or proceedings against 
you.  
  
We have the discretionary right—and shall be given the opportunity by you—to associate with 
you in the defenses, investigation, or settlement of any claim, suit or proceeding which appears to 
involve indemnity by NCCSIF. In such association, you and NCCSIF shall cooperate in all aspects 
of defense, investigation or settlement.  
  
E.  WE WILL ALSO PAY  
  
Subject to the Member Retention specified in Item 3 of the Schedule and subject to the limit 
specified in Item 6 of the Schedule, we will also pay these costs, in addition to other amounts 
payable under this coverage, as part of any claim, proceeding or suit we defend;  
  

1. reasonable expenses incurred at our request, but not loss of earnings;  

2. premiums for bonds to release attachments and for appeal bonds in bond amounts up to 
twice the limit of our liability under this coverage;  

3. litigation costs taxed against you;  

 
Page 242 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 8 of 14  

4. interest on a judgment as required by law; and  

5. expenses we incur.  

  
F.  OTHER INSURANCE  
  
We will not pay more than our share of damages and costs covered by this coverage and any other 
insurance, self-insurance or any other employers’ liability by a Joint Powers Authority. Subject to 
any limits of liability that apply, all shares will be equal until the loss is paid. If any insurance or 
self-insurance is exhausted, the shares of all remaining insurance and self insurance will be equal 
until the loss is paid.  
  
G.  LIMIT OF LIABILITY  
  
Our liability to pay for damages is limited. Our limit of liability is shown in Item 6 of the Schedule 
of Declarations. It is the most we will pay for all damages covered by this coverage because of 
bodily injury to one or more employees in any one accident or occurrence, or series of accidents 
or occurrences, arising out of any one event.  
  
We will not pay any claims for damages after we have paid the limit of our liability under this 
coverage as explained above.  
  
H.  RECOVERY FROM OTHERS  
  
We may enforce your rights to recover our payment from anyone liable for an injury covered by 
this coverage. You will do everything necessary to protect those rights for us and to help us enforce 
them.  
  
I.  ACTIONS AGAINST US  
  
There will be no right of action against us under this coverage unless;  
  

1. you have complied with all the terms of this agreement; and  

2. the amount you owe has been determined with our consent or by actual trial and final 
judgment.  

This coverage does not give anyone the right to add us as a defendant in an action against you to 
determine your liability.  

  

 
Page 243 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 9 of 14  

PART THREE — COVERAGE OUTSIDE OF CALIFORNIA  
  
This coverage is identical to Part One (Workers’ Compensation Coverage) of this agreement. It 
applies to your employees who are hired in California and are eligible for benefits under this 
agreement while they are working anywhere outside of California.  
  

PART FOUR — YOUR DUTIES IF INJURY OCCURS  
  
Tell us at once if injury occurs which may be covered by this agreement. Your other duties are 
listed here:  
  

1. Provide for immediate medical and other services required by the workers’ 
compensation law.  

2. Give us or our representative the names and addresses of the injured persons and of 
witnesses, and other information we may need.  

3. Promptly give us all notices, demands and legal papers related to the injury, claim, 
proceeding or suit.  

4. Cooperate with us and assist us, as we may request, in the investigation, settlement or 
defense of any claim, proceeding or suit.  

5. Do nothing after an injury occurs that would interfere with our right to recover from 
others.  

6. Do not voluntarily make payments, assume obligations or incur expenses within our 
layer of coverage, except at your own cost.  

  

PART FIVE — PREMIUM  
  
A.  PREMIUM  
  
1. All premiums for this agreement will be determined by the Northern California Cities Self 

Insurance Fund.  
  
2. Remuneration is part of the premium basis. This premium basis includes payroll and all 

other remuneration paid or payable during the coverage period for the services of:  
  
a. all your employees eligible for benefits under this agreement while engaged in work 

covered by this agreement; and  

 
Page 244 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 10 of 14  

  
b. all other persons engaged in work that could make us liable under Part One (Worker’s 

Compensation Coverage) of this agreement. If you do not have the payroll records for these 
persons, the contract price for their services and materials may be used as the premium 
basis.  This paragraph will not apply if you give us proof that the employers of these persons 
lawfully secured their workers’ compensation obligations.  

  
B.  PREMIUM PAYMENTS  
  
You will pay all premium when due.  
  
C.  FINAL PREMIUM  
  
The premium shown on the Declarations and on the schedules and endorsements, if any, is an 
estimate. The final premium will be determined after this agreement ends by using the actual, not 
the estimated, premium basis and actual losses. If the final premium is more than the premium you 
paid to us, you must pay us the balance. If it is less, we will refund the balance to you. The final 
premium will not be less than the minimum premium for this agreement as determined by the 
various layer funding formulas.  
  
D.  RECORDS  
  
You will keep records of information needed to compute premium. You will provide us with copies 
of those records when we ask for them.  
  
E.  AUDIT  
  
You will let us examine and audit all your records that relate to this agreement. These records 
include ledgers, journals, registers, vouchers, contracts, tax reports, payroll and disbursement 
records and programs for storing and retrieving data. We may conduct the audits during regular 
business hours during the coverage period and within three years after the coverage period ends.  
Information developed by audit will be used to determine final premium.  
  
F.  RATE CHANGES  
  
This agreement is issued by us and accepted by you with the agreement that you will accept any 
increase in premium or in the rates of premium which may be promulgated under any rating plan 
approved by the Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund, and that the effective date of any 

 
Page 245 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 11 of 14  

such increase shall be the effective date thereof fixed in accordance with the provisions of any 
such rating plan approved by the Executive Committee. Also the rates used to determine the 
premium are subject to increase during the term of the agreement if an increase in rates applicable 
to agreements in force is approved by the Executive Committee of Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund, and that the effective date of any such increase shall be the date fixed by the 
Executive Committee.  
  

PART SIX — CONDITIONS  
  

A.  INSPECTION  
  
We have the right, but are not obliged, to inspect your workplaces at any reasonable time. Our 
inspections relate to the workplaces and the premiums to be charged. We may give you reports on 
the conditions we find. We may also recommend changes. While they may help to reduce losses, 
we do not undertake to perform the duty of any person to provide for the health and safety of your 
employees or the public. We do not warrant that your workplaces are safe or healthful or that they 
comply with laws regulations, codes or standards.  
  
B.  LONG TERM POLICY  
  
If this policy is written for a period longer than one year, all the provisions of this agreement shall 
apply separately to each consecutive twelve month period, or if the first or last period is less than 
twelve months, in the same manner as if a separate agreement had been written for each 
consecutive period. Until your policy terminates, your deposit premium will be transferred to each 
consecutive coverage period to act as a deposit in the same manner as if a separate agreement had 
been written.  
  
C.  TRANSFER OF YOUR RIGHTS AND DUTIES  
  
Your rights or duties under this agreement may not be transferred without our written consent.  
  
D.  OUR NOTICE TO YOU  
  
Mailing documents that relate to this agreement to you at the mailing address shown in the 
Declarations will be sufficient to prove notice to you of that document.  
  
E.  CANCELLATION AND WITHDRAWAL  
  

 
Page 246 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 12 of 14  

You may withdraw as a party to this agreement and as a participant in the coverage provided you 
meet the requirements, as specified in the Joint Exercise of Power Agreement, Bylaws and 
Participation Agreement.  
  
If cancellation by Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund or you is effective before the end 
of the coverage year, Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund will return to you the amount 
of any unearned premium payment from you for the coverage year. Such amount will be computed 
on a pro-rata basis from the effective date of cancellation.  
  
F.  ARBITRATION OF COVERAGE DISPUTES  
  
1.  Coverage Determinations  
  

The Third Party Administrator or JPA Counsel shall make the initial determination whether 
to deny coverage on all or part of a claim, or to reserve the Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund’s right to deny coverage on all or part of a claim, if a loss subsequently 
exceeds the retained limit.  
  
A decision to deny coverage can be appealed to the Board of Directors. Notice of such 
appeal shall be submitted in writing within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of written 
notice of decision.  
The appeal shall be considered by the Board of Directors at the next regular or special 
meeting following receipt of the written appeal; if the appeal is received too late for 
inclusion in the agenda packet, it can be postponed to the next following Board meeting.  
The Program Administrator and the covered party will have the right to submit written 
materials and present oral argument to the Board, subject to reasonable time constraints.  
Any dispute concerning a decision by the Board to deny coverage for all or part of a claim 
shall not be subject to any court action, but may instead be submitted to binding arbitration 
in accordance with the procedures set forth below. Notice of a request for binding 
arbitration by the covered party must be submitted within thirty (30) calendars days from 
the date of the noticed decision by the Board of Directors.  

  
(a) Arbitration Procedures for Resolving Disputes  

1) Selection of Arbitrators  

If an appeal of a Board decision is submitted to arbitration, each side shall, within 
ten (10) calendar days, select one (1) arbitrator and submit his or her name in 
writing to the other side. Within ten (10) calendar days after their selection, these 

 
Page 247 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 13 of 14  

two arbitrators shall select a third independent arbitrator. If the two sides cannot 
agree on the selection of the third arbitrator within ten (10) calendar days, either 
side may petition the Sacramento County Superior Court for the appointment of 
the third arbitrator pursuant to the provisions of section 1281.6 of the California 
Code of Civil Procedure. The third arbitrator shall be an attorney and preside as 
the Chairperson of the arbitration panel. No arbitrator shall be employed or 
affiliated with you or NCCSIF.  

The arbitration hearing shall commence within forty-five (45) calendar days 
from the date of the selection of the Chairperson, unless both sides agree to an 
extension.  

Each side shall pay the cost of its selected arbitrator and one-half of the cost of 
the third selected arbitrator. In addition, each side shall be responsible for its 
own cost and expense of arbitration.  

Except for notification of appointment and as provided in the California Code of 
Civil Procedure, there shall be no communication between either side and the 
arbitrator(s) relating to the subject of the arbitration other than at oral hearings. 
2) Discovery  

The procedures set forth in Code of Civil Procedure section 1283.05 relating to 
depositions and discovery shall apply to any arbitration pursuant to this 
paragraph (b).  

3) Testimony Under Oath  

The testimony of witnesses shall be given under oath.  

4) Length of Hearing  

 The panel will endeavor to confine the length of the hearing to two (2) days. A 
decision of the panel shall be reported in writing. The written decision of the 
panel shall be given to both sides within thirty (30) calendar days of the close of 
the hearing.  

5) Certified Shorthand Reporter  

Either side wishing a certified shorthand reporter record shall arrange directly 
with a certified shorthand reporter and notify the other side of such arrangements 
in advance of the hearing. The requesting side shall pay the cost of recording the 

 
Page 248 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 14 of 14  

hearing if no transcript is ordered.  If a transcript is ordered, the cost of the 
transcript and of recording the hearing shall be prorated equally among the 
parties ordering copies.  

(b) Funding of Defense and Payment of Claims Pending Resolution of Dispute  

During the course of the arbitration proceedings provided herein, the covered party 
will be responsible for all fees and expenses for investigation, defense or litigation of 
a claim or lawsuit.  In the event the arbitration panel determines that coverage applies 
for such defense costs, the Authority will reimburse the covered party as directed by 
the panel.  

(c) Effects of Arbitration Decisions  

All decisions on appeals, whether by the Board of Directors (after the time to request 
arbitration has expired) or by the arbitration panel, shall be final and binding upon the 
parties and shall not be subject to any further appeal or court action, except as provided 
in Code of Civil Procedures sections 1286.2 and 1286.4 (relating to fraud or 
corruption, etc.).  

  
 
  

 
Page 249 of 526



  

Effective July 1, 2022 Page 15 of 14  

 
(a) General Law 

Except as provided otherwise above, arbitration shall be conducted as provided in Title 
9 of the Code of Civil Procedure (commencing with section 1280). 

 
 
 
 
 
July 1, 2022 ___________________________________ 
Date Liz Cottrell , NCCSIF President 
  

 
Page 250 of 526



 

 

ENDORSEMENT NO. 1 
 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES  

SELF INSURANCE FUND  

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION 
MEMORANDUM OF COVERAGE 

 
OFF-DUTY PEACE OFFICER INJURY (AB 1749) ENDORSEMENT 

It is understood and agreed that this Memorandum shall not apply to bodily injury or 
occupational disease sustained by a “peace officer” who was at the time of the occurrence: 

 
a. off-duty, 
b. not acting under the immediate direction of his or her employer, and 
c. outside the state of California. 

 
However, this exclusion shall not apply to bodily injury or occupational disease sustained by a 
peace officer under such circumstances if: 
 

a. the peace officer was engaging in the apprehension or attempted apprehension of law 
violators or suspected law violators, or protection or preservation of life or property, or 
the preservation of the peace; and 

b. prior to the occurrence, the Governing Board of the Covered Party has adopted a 
resolution, as provided for in California Labor Code Section 3600.2, subdivision (b)(4), 
accepting liability for such injury under the Workers’ Compensation Act. 

 
“Peace officer” for purposes of this Endorsement has the definition stated in Section 50920 of 
the California Government Code. 

 
It is further agreed that nothing herein shall act to increase NCCSIF’s limit of indemnity. 

 
This endorsement is part of the Memorandum of Coverage and takes effect on the effective date 
of the Memorandum of Coverage unless another effective date is shown below. All other terms 
and conditions remain unchanged. 

 
Effective Date: July 1, 2020 Memorandum No.: NCCWC-20 
 
Issued to:  ALL MEMBERS 
 
Issue Date: July 1, 2020 
   

Authorized Representative 
Northern California Cities SIF 

 
Page 251 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.2.a. 
 

FY 22/23 PROPERTY PROGRAM RENEWAL PROPOSAL 
 

ACTION ITEM 
 
ISSUE: The Board annually reviews and approves the Property Renewal Proposal. NCCSIF Property 
Program members are covered through the Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP), renewing on 
July 1, 2022.  The minimum deductibles will remain the same after increasing for this year, $25,000 for 
property and vehicles, with a $50,000 deductible for police vehicles, $100,000 for vehicles valued at 
$250,000 or more, and a $250,000 deductible for vehicles over $750,000. For vehicles scheduled at 
ACV the expiring deductible may be maintained. 
 
A table summarizing the changes in the Total Insured Values (TIV), rates and premiums is below:    
 
 

 
FY 22/23 
Proposed 

FY 21/22 
Expiring 

% 
Change 

 $25,000 
Deductible 

$25,000 
Deductible 

 

Total Insurable Values $1,691,492,049 $1,595,181,677 6% 

Property Rate* $0.30 $0.245532 22% 

Pollution Rate $0.0007723 $0.0006832 13% 

Cyber Liability Rate $0.0070888 $0.0035076 102% 

Course of Construction Rate $0.1903782 $0.1586488 20% 

Contractors Equipment Rate $0.1346720 $0.1479691 -9% 

Vehicle Physical Damage Rate $0.6004442 $0.5003699 20% 

Flood Coverage Rate $0.0476101 $0.0395801 20% 

Total Annual Premium $5,165,132 $4,068,300 27% 
 
*Property Rate = All Coverages except mobile equipment, vehicles, and flood.  
  

 
Page 252 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.2.a. continued 
 
Total Insurable Values (TIV) increased 6%, from $1,595,181,677 to $1,691,492,049, as compared to a 
3%, increase last year. The “All Risk” property rate increased 22%, compared to 59% from the prior 
year, from $0.245 to $0.30 per $100 of TIV. These changes result in a total premium increase of 27%, 
from $4,068,300 to $5,165,132. 
 
These numbers are based on a proposal “as expiring” – with changes largely restricted to a reduction in 
coverage for unnamed vacant locations. The attached proposal material includes an Executive Summary 
with an overview of the market conditions and a description of the changes in coverage for the upcoming 
program year. 
  

Given the continued hard market conditions and rate increases, the Program Administrators have 
presented actuarial projections for self-funding property claims up to $500,000. The total premiums for 
$25k, $100k and $250k deductibles are each listed in the table below, with the estimated net increase in 
funding at each level.  
 
For both the auto and property coverages up to $25,000 the actuary estimates $413,873 at the 80% 
Confidence Level. To increase the funding to $100k will take a total of $874,527, or $460,654 to fund 
the additional $75k xs of $25k layer. However, the decrease in the APIP premium for the increased 
deductible is (-$125,952), for a net increase in funding of $334,702. The estimate to self-fund the $225k 
layer xs of the $25k deductible is $774,036, versus savings of (-$220,417), a net increase in funding of 
$553,619.  
 
As in the past, the pool will see a reduction in net premium but with an increase in overall funding. The 
goal of making such a change would be for long-term growth of net position to be able to increase or 
decrease the self-insured retention as market rates indicate. To get to significant retentions in a relatively 
short time may require partnering with other groups.   
 
Funding  To $25k    To $100k    To $250k   

Actuary  $413,873  Difference  $874,527  Difference  $1,187,909  Difference 

   $25k Ded  $   460,654  $100K Ded  $ 313,382  $250K Ded  $774,036 

APIP  $5,165,132   $5,039,180   $4,944,715  

Premium  Savings  $ (125,952)    $ (94,465)    $ (220,417) 

   Difference  $   334,702    $ 218,917    $ 553,619 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approval of the FY 22/23 Property Program Renewal with the Alliant 
Property Insurance Program as presented or revised. 
 
 
 

 
Page 253 of 526



BACK TO AGENDA  

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.2.a. continued 

FISCAL IMPACT: The projected total premium options below are based on TIV of $1,691,492,049.  

Option 1 - $25,000 deductible = $5,165,132 
Option 2 - $100,000 deductible = $5,039,180 
Option 3 - $250,000 deductible = $4,944,715

BACKGROUND: NCCSIF provides optional property insurance for their members through the Alliant 
Property Insurance Program. This is a joint purchase insurance program currently providing members  
up to $1,000,000,000 in limits. Premiums are based on each member’s Total Insured Values (TIV) which 
are provided via a schedule of insured locations. 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. 22/23 NCCSIF Property Deposit Calculations - Deductible Options: $25,000

2. 22/23 APIP Property Proposal Packet
a. APIP Executive Summary

b. Named Insured List

c. APIP Property Proposal

d. APIP Boiler and Machinery Proposal

e. APIP Cyber Liability Coverage Proposal

f. APIP Pollution Liability Coverage Proposal

g. APIP Proposed Schedule of Carriers

h. APIP TRIA Selection Form

i. D1 Form Surplus Lines Affidavit

j. APIP Disclosures, Disclaimers and Loss Notification Requirements

k. Flood Offering

l. Electronic Delivery Option Form

m.  Premium Finance Brochure

n. APIP Brochure

o. Summary of Changes

 
Page 254 of 526



FY 22/23 NCCSIF PROPERTY PROGRAM ALLOCATION
$25,000 Property Deductible

All Risk TIV All Risk TIV

Total TIV = All 
Risk TIV + CE 

Values + Vehicles 
+ COC

Formula or Allocation
Pulled from 

Oasys
Pulled from 

Oasys
Pulled from 

Oasys

Pulled 
from 
Oasys

Pulled 
from 
Oasys

Pulled from 
Oasys

 All Risk TIV x 
Rate All Risk TIV x Rate

COC TIV x 
Rate

Member Entity
Property
Deductible

Real
Property
Values

Personal
Property
Values

BI/Rents
Values

Tax 
Interrupti
on Values

Fine Arts
Values

Course of 
Construction 

(COC)
Values

ALL RISK (TIV)
(Real, Personal,
BI/Rents, Tax, 
and Fine Arts, 
Plus COC)

All Risk Primary
Property 
Premium

All Risk
Excess Property 

Premium*
COC

Premium
Values $0.18568 $0.07375 $0.19038

Anderson $25,000 $31,852,664 $5,227,737 $718,467 $600,000 $0 $38,398,868 $71,299 $28,320
Auburn $25,000 $48,019,801 $9,153,391 $0 $0 $0 $57,173,192 $106,160 $42,167
Colusa $25,000 $42,443,813 $15,465,793 $3,880 $0 $0 $57,913,486 $107,534 $42,713
Corning
Dixon $25,000 $93,189,105 $19,817,362 $2,383,420 $0 $0 $115,389,887 $214,257 $85,103
Elk Grove
Folsom $25,000 $250,063,565 $21,613,298 $2,237,954 $0 ######## $274,492,817 $509,680 $202,446
Galt $25,000 $104,055,087 $20,671,066 $2,500,320 $0 $0 $19,377 $127,245,850 $236,271 $93,847 $37
Gridley $25,000 $25,914,947 $11,710,626 $428,720 $0 $0 $38,054,293 $70,659 $28,066
Ione $25,000 $26,430,152 $4,796,850 $102,520 $0 $0 $31,329,522 $58,173 $23,106
Jackson $25,000 $14,311,882 $24,276,450 $5,000 $0 $0 $38,593,332 $71,660 $28,464
Lincoln  $25,000 $187,675,268 $47,744,086 $3,393,881 $0 $0 $238,813,235 $443,430 $176,131
Marysville  $25,000 $20,902,437 $4,897,913 $2,334,571 $0 $0 $28,134,921 $52,241 $20,750
Nevada City
Oroville $25,000 $47,076,855 $6,910,175 $0 $0 $0 $53,987,030 $100,244 $39,817
Paradise $25,000 $12,661,158 $3,131,069 $183,751 $0 $0 $15,975,978 $29,664 $11,783
Placerville
Red Bluff $25,000 $53,482,631 $11,727,124 $491,139 $0 $0 $65,700,894 $121,994 $48,456
Rio Vista $25,000 $42,734,122 $12,052,070 $517,057 $0 $0 $55,303,249 $102,687 $40,788
Rocklin $25,000 $77,493,008 $8,157,364 $6,200,000 $0 $0 $91,850,372 $170,548 $67,742
Willows
Yuba City  $25,000 $229,363,500 $30,766,879 $6,628,952 $0 $0 $21,007,711 $287,767,042 $534,328 $212,236 $39,994

TOTAL $1,307,669,995 $258,119,253 $28,129,632 $600,000 ######## $21,027,088 $1,616,123,968 $3,000,831 $1,191,934 $40,031
Verify Quote Sheet 21,027,088 3,000,831 1,191,934 40,031
Check 0 0 0 0
Do Not Participate

Rate Per $100/Amount

 
Page 255 of 526



FY 22/23 NCCSIF PROPERTY PROGRAM ALLOCATION
$25,000 Property Deductible

Formula or Allocation

Member Entity

Anderson
Auburn
Colusa
Corning
Dixon
Elk Grove
Folsom
Galt
Gridley
Ione
Jackson
Lincoln 
Marysville 
Nevada City
Oroville
Paradise
Placerville
Red Bluff
Rio Vista
Rocklin
Willows
Yuba City 

TOTAL
Verify Quote Sheet
Check
Do Not Participate

Rate Per $100/Amount

Total TIV Total TIV Total TIV

Rating B&M Value 
x Rate x Member 
% All Risk TIV 

Pulled from 
Oasys CE x Rate

Total TIV x 
Rate

Total TIV x 
Rate

Total TIV x 
Rate

Excess Boiler & 
Machinery 
Premium

Contractors
Equipment 

(CE)
Values

CE
Premium

Cyber
Liability
Premium

Pollution
Coverage
Premium

Lloyds 
Primary 
Terrorism
Premium

Estimated
ABS Fees

Estimated
Surplus Line Taxes 

& Fees

2022/23
Total All Risk 
Property 
Premium

$0.00141 Values $0.13467 $0.00709 $0.00077 $0.00030 ############ $162,250.05000 Value
$533 $453,620 $611 $2,722 $297 $114 $251.21 $3,855 $108,002
$793 $46,503 $63 $4,053 $442 $170 $374.04 $5,740 $159,960
$803 $0 $0 $4,105 $447 $172 $378.88 $5,814 $161,968

$1,600 $2,150,827 $2,897 $8,180 $891 $344 $754.90 $11,585 $325,611

$3,807 $4,192,057 $5,646 $19,458 $2,120 $817 $1,795.79 $27,558 $773,327
$1,765 $488,000 $657 $9,020 $983 $379 $832.47 $12,775 $356,566
$528 $2,212,500 $2,980 $2,698 $294 $113 $248.96 $3,820 $109,407
$434 $802,031 $1,080 $2,221 $242 $93 $204.96 $3,145 $88,700
$535 $124,500 $168 $2,736 $298 $115 $252.49 $3,875 $108,103

$3,312 $1,857,847 $2,502 $16,929 $1,844 $711 $1,562.36 $23,976 $670,398
$390 $579,044 $780 $1,994 $217 $84 $184.06 $2,825 $79,466

$749 $2,142,434 $2,885 $3,827 $417 $161 $353.19 $5,420 $153,872
$222 $4,044,847 $5,447 $1,133 $123 $48 $104.52 $1,604 $50,128

$911 $2,342,665 $3,155 $4,657 $507 $196 $429.83 $6,596 $186,902
$767 $585,000 $788 $3,920 $427 $165 $361.80 $5,552 $155,456

$1,274 $11,550,083 $15,555 $6,511 $709 $273 $600.90 $9,221 $272,435

$3,991 $6,416,300 $8,641 $20,399 $2,223 $857 $1,882.63 $28,890 $853,441
$22,413 $39,988,258 $53,853 $114,564 $12,482 $4,812 $10,573 $162,250 $4,613,743
22,413 39,988,258 53,853 114,564 12,482 4,812 10,573 162,250 4,842,850

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ‐229,107
Rating B&M Value $0.30

1,594,021,610

 
Page 256 of 526



FY 22/23 NCCSIF PROPERTY PROGRAM ALLOCATION
$25,000 Property Deductible

Formula or Allocation

Member Entity

Anderson
Auburn
Colusa
Corning
Dixon
Elk Grove
Folsom
Galt
Gridley
Ione
Jackson
Lincoln 
Marysville 
Nevada City
Oroville
Paradise
Placerville
Red Bluff
Rio Vista
Rocklin
Willows
Yuba City 

TOTAL
Verify Quote Sheet
Check
Do Not Participate

Rate Per $100/Amount

All Risk TIV

Special 
Vehicle 

Deductible
s Apply See 
Proposal FY 21/22

Flood Limit
Flood
Values

Flood 
Premium

Vehicle 
Deductible 

Vehicle 
Values 

Vehicle 
Premium

Mobile 
Equipment 
Values

Mobile 
Equipment 
Premium

2022/23
Grand Total 
Premium

All Coverages

2022/23 Final 
Adjusted 
Premium 

2021/22
Grand Total 
Premium

All 
Coverages $ Change % Change

% Change 
in Total 
TIV

2022/23 Total 
TIV  2021/22 Total TIV 

Value $0.04761 Value $0.60044 $0.17756 Values
$453,620 $805 $108,808 $107,685 $85,295 $22,390 26% 6.9% $38,852,488 $36,341,286

$17,000,000 $58,382,143 $27,796 $25,000 $1,162,448 $6,980 $46,503 $83 $194,819 $192,809 $153,804 $39,005 25% 6.9% $58,382,143 $54,597,402
$161,968 $160,297 $128,078 $32,219 25% 6.3% $57,913,486 $54,506,673

$2,150,827 $3,819 $329,430 $326,031 $303,989 $22,041 7% ‐9.3% $117,540,714 $129,580,402

$25,000 ########## $176,608 $4,192,057 $7,444 $957,379 $947,501 $760,493 $187,008 25% 3.5% $308,097,799 $297,755,936
$488,000 $867 $357,433 $353,745 $279,247 $74,498 27% 4.1% $127,714,473 $122,673,218

$2,212,500 $3,929 $113,336 $112,166 $86,483 $25,683 30% 8.8% $40,266,793 $37,008,576
$10,000,000 $38,159,340 $18,168 $25,000 $6,027,787 $36,193 $802,031 $1,424 $144,486 $142,995 $117,596 $25,398 22% 4.0% $38,159,340 $36,679,108

$124,500 $221 $108,324 $107,206 $85,863 $21,343 25% 5.9% $38,717,832 $36,553,022
$1,857,847 $3,299 $673,696 $666,746 $528,227 $138,519 26% 2.5% $240,671,082 $234,822,920

$15,000,000 $28,713,965 $13,671 $579,044 $1,028 $94,164 $93,193 $74,100 $19,092 26% 6.3% $28,713,965 $27,022,421

$25,000 $5,097,587 $30,608 $2,142,434 $3,804 $188,285 $186,342 $150,946 $35,396 23% 0.5% $61,227,051 $60,929,247
$4,044,847 $7,182 $57,310 $56,719 $41,686 $15,032 36% 10.6% $20,020,825 $18,104,462

$25,000 $2,413,565 $14,492 $2,342,665 $4,160 $205,554 $203,433 $166,532 $36,902 22% 2.0% $70,457,124 $69,048,849
$585,000 $1,039 $156,495 $154,880 $122,843 $32,037 26% 6.8% $55,888,249 $52,332,886

$11,550,083 $20,509 $292,944 $289,921 $225,681 $64,240 28% 6.5% $103,400,455 $97,055,513

$10,000,000 $285,468,230 $135,912 $25,000 ########## $73,810 $6,416,300 $11,393 $1,074,556 $1,063,469 $757,436 $306,033 40% 5.8% $285,468,230 $269,785,078
$410,723,678 $195,546 ########## $338,692 $39,988,258 $71,004 $5,218,985 $5,165,137 $4,068,301 ######### 27% 3.5% ############# $1,634,796,999
410,723,678 195,546 56,406,911 338,692 39,988,258 $71,004 5,165,132 5,165,132 4,068,301 5,165,132 1,691,492,049

0 0 0 0 0 0 53,292 5$                      4,068,300 0
Rate 0.01031765 off balance factor

 
Page 257 of 526



2022-2023 

                                     

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 2180 Harvard Street, Ste 460  Sacramento, CA  
95815 

PHONE (916) 643-2700FAX (916) 643-2750  www.alliant.com  License No.0C36861 

 

 

 

Presented on June 3, 2022 by:  
 

Marcus Beverly, CPCU, AIC, 
ARM-P 
First Vice President 

Jenna Wirkner 
Account Representative 

 

Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund 

 
Page 258 of 526



 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Executive Summary    Page 1 of 5 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 ALLIANT PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM (APIP) 

July 1, 2022 – July 1, 2023 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 
Attached please find the renewal summary of the Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) for the 2022-2023 
period. An overview of the most significant issues are discussed here.   
 
As we approach the July 1, 2022 renewal, insurers are pushing for rate increases for most insureds; however, market 
volatility has decreased when compared to the more challenging property market from 2018 to 2021. In general, 
markets are pushing for larger rate increases on loss challenged and/or natural catastrophe (CAT) exposed insureds 
and lower rate increases for loss free and non-CAT insureds. Weather related events continue to be difficult for the 
market, and while the U.S. has not experienced a single catastrophic event on par with Hurricane Katrina in 2005, 
the frequency and severity of CAT events has increased. Recent examples of these type of events include: 
Tornadoes and Freeze in the Midwest, U.S. and worldwide flooding, California Wildfires and Hurricane Ida. Due to 
these events, underwriters continue to be concerned about the long-term profitability of their books of business, and 
are reacting accordingly.   
  
For the 2022/23 renewal, Lexington will continue to provide the first $25,000,000 of the program. Maximum program 
limits are $1,000,000,000 and will be placed with worldwide markets rated at A.M. Best A- VII or higher. Insureds 
should note several key highlights for this year’s renewal:   

 Boiler & Machinery cover for participating insureds of the APIP Boiler Program will be maintained with 
Hartford Steam Boiler (HSB), who will also continue to perform required jurisdictional inspections. 

 Cyber (Privacy Liability) Coverage for both 1st and 3rd parties from the Beazley Syndicate at Lloyd’s, 
A.M. Best Rated A XV, (for those eligible insureds) with coverage as outlined on the following proposal 
will be provided.  Additional excess options are available, if requested for insureds with good security 
controls in place.  The Cyber market has become extremely volatile in the past 2 years primarily due to 
a pronounced increase in ransomware claims and worldwide unrest.  Due to the difficulty of even 
maintaining Cyber coverage for many public entities, we believe the Cyber coverage provided by APIP 
represents one of the best values in the marketplace.    Please note claims reporting timeframe 
limitations for this coverage 

 Pollution Coverage for both 1st and 3rd parties from Ironshore Specialty Insurance Company, A.M. Best 
Rated A XV, (for those eligible insureds) with coverage as outlined on the following proposal will be 
provided. Please note claims reporting timeframe limitations for this coverage 

 Vehicles/Contractor’s Equipment – please note on the attached proposal whether the vehicle/contractors 
equipment valuation is Replacement Cost (new) or Actual Cash Value (ACV). If Replacement Cost (new) 
valuation is needed, the insured must submit a schedule of vehicles or a vehicle valuation reporting form 
(provided in the pre-renewal packet) and vehicles must be valued at today’s Replacement Cost (new). 
If values are not reported at Replacement Cost (new), the vehicle/contractor’s equipment valuation basis 
will be ACV 

Alliant Business Services (ABS) continues to play a significant role not only in providing various types of loss control 
services, but also in providing appraisal services, business interruption values consultation, and infrared testing,.  
Please see inserts for further details on ABS services provided.  For the program, property valuations continue to be 
a key focus. As a reminder, it is underwriters’ intent to have all buildings with a scheduled value of $5,000,000 or 
more appraised once every seven to ten years. This service is included in the total program cost. Insureds may also 
choose to have lower valued buildings appraised. The cost to have all, or specific buildings appraised that are valued 
on an insureds schedule between $25,000 and $5,000,000 will be quoted at the time the request is made.   
 
Please review important Disclosure and Loss Notification information included in your renewal materials. 
Your review and acknowledgement of these documents are required via your signature, once you authorize 
a request to bind coverage with your Alliant representative.  Although this proposal is as complete as 
possible, the program is being negotiated up to the 7/1/22 effective date.  We will endeavor to provide any 
known material changes prior to renewal. 
 

 
Page 259 of 526



 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Executive Summary    Page 2 of 5 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 
 

ALLIANT PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM (APIP) 

July 1, 2022 – July 1, 2023 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
 
The following table depicts key financial statistics relative to last year: 

Year-over-Year Rate and Premium Comparison 

Northern California Cities 
Self Insurance Fund 

 

2021-2022 

(at 11/30/2021) 
2022-2023 Variance 

Total Insurable Values  (TIV): $ 1,595,181,677 $ 1,691,492,049 6.04% 

Earthquake TIV:  Not Applicable  Not Applicable N/A 

Earthquake Limit:  Not Covered  Not Covered N/A 

*Property Annual Cost: $ 3,999,276.74 $ 5,033,957.05 25.87% 

Cyber Liability Annual Cost:  $ 57,771.47 $ 118,287.33 104.75% 

Pollution Liability Annual Cost: $ 11,252.19 $ 12,887.67 14.53% 

Total Account Rate ($/100):  0.2550368  0.3053595 19.73% 

**Total Annual Cost: $ 4,068,300.40 $ 5,165,132.05 26.96% 

 
*Property Annual Cost includes: all premiums (except Cyber Liability and Pollution Liability), underwriting 
fees, commissions, loss control expenses, program administration charges, and applicable taxes 

 
** Total Annual Cost includes the following when selected: Property Annual Cost, Cyber Liability Annual 
Cost and Pollution Liability Annual Cost (except Cyber BBR option, if purchased). 
 

 
The following pages are coverage items currently under review with the APIP markets to be effective on July 
1, 2022. Cyber and Pollution Liability coverage items currently under review are listed under the specific 
proposal documents for those who selected these specific coverages. 
 
 
Thank you for your continued support of APIP. We look forward to working with you this next year. Please let 
us know if you have any questions about your renewal. 
 

  

 
Page 260 of 526



 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Executive Summary    Page 3 of 5 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

APIP SUMMARY OF PROPOSED SUB-LIMIT & DEDUCTIBLE CHANGES 
BELOW IS A SUMMARY OF PROPOSED CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY PERIOD AS OF MAY 12, 2022 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Coverage 2021-2022 Sub-limit / Deductible 2022-2023 Sub-limit / Deductible Status 

Miscellaneous 
Unnamed 
Locations  

$25,000,000 Miscellaneous Unnamed Locations 
for Named Insureds with Total Insurable Values 
greater than or equal to $500,000,000 at time of 
binding or $10,000,000 Miscellaneous Unnamed 
Locations for Named Insureds with total insurance 
values less than $500,000,000 at time of binding 
for existing Named Insured's excluding 
Earthquake coverage for Alaska and California 
locations.  If Flood coverage is purchased for 
scheduled locations, this extension will extend to 
include Flood coverage for any location not 
situated in Flood Zones A or V. 

Vacant and Unoccupied Buildings are sub-limited 
to $10,000,000. 

$10,000,000 Miscellaneous Unnamed Locations for Named 
Insureds with total insurable values greater than or equal to 
$250,000,000 at time of binding or $5,000,000 Miscellaneous 
Unnamed Locations for Named Insureds with total insurance 
values less than $250,000,000 at time of binding for existing 
Named Insured's excluding Earthquake coverage for 
Alaska and California locations.  If Flood coverage is 
purchased for scheduled locations, this extension will 
extend to include Flood coverage for any location not 
situated in Flood Zones A or V. 

Vacant and Unoccupied Buildings are sub-limited to 
$2,500,000. 

 
Under 
Review 

Automatic 
Acquisition – 
New Locations 
or New 
Property 

$100,000,000 for 120 days subject to the 
Automatic Acquisition Reporting Conditions,  

No restriction for vacant or unoccupied buildings 
under Automatic Acquisition  

 $50,000,000 for 120 days for existing Named Insureds. 
Miscellaneous Unnamed Locations sub-limits apply after 
120 days  

 $5,000,000 for vacant and unoccupied buildings 
See Policy for full details. 

Under 
Review 

Automatic 
Acquisition – 
Additions of 
New Sub-
members or 
Entities of a 
JPA, Pool or 
Group 

$100,000,000 for 120 days subject to the 
Automatic Acquisition Reporting Conditions,  

No restriction for vacant or unoccupied buildings 
under Automatic Acquisition 

All New sub-member and/or entity being added to a JPA, 
Pool or Group must be reported. 

 $25,000,000 for 90 days for new sub-members and/or 
entities of an existing JPA, Pools or Group. Excluded 
after 90 days. 

 $5,000,000 for vacant and unoccupied building 

Under 
Review 

Increased 
Cost of 
Construction 

No restriction for vacant properties $2,500,000 limit for vacant properties Under 
Review 

LMA5400 Buy 
Back 

$100,000,000 per occurrence, $200,000,000 
annual aggregate for all participants in the 
program combined 

Limits are to be determined Under 
Review 

KEY MASTER POLICY FORM PROPOSED CHANGES 

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023  Status 

Policy Period July 1, 2021 to July 1,2022 July 1, 2022 to July 1,2023 Update 

Section II, B. 9 
Building Laws 

N/A 
See Policy. The Building Laws clause was removed from 
the policy in 2021 but is being added back in for clarity. 
There is no change of the intended policy response. 

Update 

 
Page 261 of 526



 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Executive Summary    Page 4 of 5 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 
KEY MASTER POLICY FORM PROPOSED CHANGES CONTINUED 

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023  Status 

Section II, B. 11 
Increased Cost 
of Construction 

In the event of physical damage to property 
insured by a covered peril, this Policy is 
extended to cover the increased cost of, and the 
additional period of time required for, repair or 
replacement caused by the enforcement of any 
ordinance or law (including written guidelines 
used by the department of corrections in any 
state) regulating the construction, repair or 
demolition of buildings or structures, which is in 
force at the time such a loss occurs or which 
comes into force within 6 months after such a 
loss occurs, which necessitates in repairing or 
replacing the building covered hereunder which 
has suffered damage or destruction by the 
covered peril(s) or which has undergone 
demolition, limited however, to the minimum 
requirements of such ordinance or law 

In the event of physical damage to property insured by a 
covered peril, this Policy is extended to cover the 
increased cost of repair or replacement caused by the 
enforcement of any ordinance or law (including written 
guidelines used by the department of corrections in any 
state) which: 
 

1) regulates the construction, repair or demolition of 
buildings or structures; and 

1) was in force when the loss occurred or came into 
force within 6 months of when the loss occurred. 

 
Payment will be limited to the cost of meeting the minimum 
requirements of such ordinance or law; said cost to be 
calculated as of the date of loss. 

Update 

Section II, B. 20 
Automatic 
Acquisition and 
Reporting 
Conditions 

See Policy 
See Policy for details. Wording has been modified to 
provide separate coverage for new entities or sub 
members joining an existing pool/JPAs. 

Under 
Review 

Section II, D. 6 Library contents Library contents value increased per 11% inflation value Update 

 
Page 262 of 526



 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Executive Summary    Page 5 of 5 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 

 

Section IV, H. 5 
 

The Insured has permission to cease business 
operations or to have any insured building 
remain vacant or unoccupied, provided that fire 
protection, security and alarm services are 
maintained and written notice is given to the 
Company prior to the one-hundred twentieth 
(120th) consecutive day of cessation of business 
operations or vacancy.  The insured building is 
considered vacant when: 

a. Such building does not contain adequate 
Insured Property to conduct customary 
business operations; or 

b. Such building is no longer used by the Insured, 
a lessee or a sub-lessee to conduct customary 
business operations;  

c. 70% or more of its total square footage is 
“vacant”; 

 

The Insured has permission to cease business operations 
or to have any insured building reported as part of the 
Named Insured(s) schedule of values held on file with 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc., remain vacant or 
unoccupied, provided that fire protection, security and 
alarm services are maintained and written notice is given to 
the Company prior to the one-hundred twentieth (120th) 
consecutive day of cessation of business operations or 
vacancy.  The insured building is considered vacant when: 
 

a. Such building does not contain adequate Insured 
Property to conduct customary business operations; or 

b. Such building is no longer used by the Insured, a lessee 
or a sub-lessee to conduct customary business 
operations;  

c. 70% or more of its total square footage is “vacant”; 

In the event that the Insured does not have and/or maintain 
the fire protection, security and alarm systems at the vacant 
or unoccupied building(s) or does not provide written notice 
to the Company prior to the one-hundred twentieth (120th) 
consecutive day of cessation of business operations or 
vacancy, the maximum amount recoverable shall be the 
amount reported on the schedule of values held on file with 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. for that location. 
Any Increased Cost of Construction coverage for such 
reported vacant or unoccupied buildings is sub-limited to 
$2,500,000 per occurrence and shall be calculated as the 
increased cost of, and the additional period of time required 
for, repair or replacement caused by the enforcement of any 
ordinance or law (including written guidelines used by the 
department of corrections in any state) regulating the 
construction, repair or demolition of buildings or structures, 
which is in force at the time such a loss occurs. 
In the event that a vacant building is slated for demolition, 
the maximum amount recoverable will be limited to 
emergency expenses, demolition and debris removal. 

Under 
Review 

KEY MASTER POLICY FORM PROPOSED CHANGES CONTINUED 

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023  Status 

Section IX, 9. h. 
(III) 
Boiler and 
Machinery – 
Ordinance or 
Law 

See Policy 

See Policy. The following wording has been added to 
describe Ordinance or Law recovery calculation: 
 
Payment will be limited to the cost of meeting the minimum 
requirements of such ordinance or law; said cost to be 
calculated as of the date of loss. 
 

Under 
Review 

Endorsement 3: 
Coverage 
Territory 
Endorsement 

Coverage Territory Endorsement 
Rename this endorsement Economic Sanctions 
Endorsement 

Under 
Review 

Endorsement 4: 
War and 
Terrorism 
Exclusion 
Endorsement 

See Policy 

The following exclusion will be added to this endorsement: 
 

(3) seizure or destruction under quarantine or customs 
regulations, confiscation by order of any government or 
public authority, or risks of contraband or illegal 
transportation or trade. 

Under 
Review 

Endorsement 5: 
Coverage 
Territory 
Limitation 
Endorsement 

N/A 

See policy for wording. This endorsement is being included 
to exclude coverage for certain territories outside the 
United States. Territories listed on this exclusion include 
Cuba, North Korea, Venezuela and many more. See 
Endorsement 5 for the full listing. 

Under 
Review 

 
Page 263 of 526



 

 

 
 

 ALLIANT PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM  

2022-2023  

NAMED INSURED SCHEDULE 

AS OF 06/10/2022 

THE NAMED INSURED IS: 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Named Insured shall be deemed the sole agent of each and every Named Insured for the purpose of: 

(1) Giving notice of cancellation, 

(2) Giving instructions for changes in the Policy and accepting changes in this Policy 

(3) The payment of assessments / premiums or receipt of return assessments / premiums. 

Member(s), entity(ies), agency(ies), organization(s), enterprise(s) and/or individual(s) for 

whom the Named Insured has extended coverage is as follows:  

 

 Page 1 of 1 DECLARATION 4  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 

2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460 

Sacramento, CA 95815 

NAMED INSURED MEMBER(S)

Northern California Cities Self-Insurance 
Fund 

  City of Anderson 

  City of Auburn 

  City of Colusa 

  City of Dixon 

  City of Folsom 

  City of Galt 

  City of Gridley 

  City of Ione 

  City of Jackson 

  City of Lincoln 

  City of Marysville 

  City of Oroville 

  City of Red Bluff 

  City of Rio Vista 

  City of Rocklin 

  City of Yuba City 

  Town of Paradise 

 

 

 
Page 264 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Property Proposal   Page 1 of 4 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund        06/03/2022 
10:37:40 AM 

ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 
ALLIANT PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM (APIP) 

 
PROPERTY PROPOSAL 

 

TYPE OF INSURANCE:    Insurance   Reinsurance  
 

  
NAMED INSURED: Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
  
DECLARATION:  4-Cities 4  
  
POLICY PERIOD:  July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2023 

COMPANIES: See Attached List of Companies 
  
TOTAL INSURED 
VALUES: 

 
$ 1,691,492,049 as of June 03, 2022 

 
ALL RISK 
COVERAGES &  
SUB-LIMITS:  

 
 
$ 1,000,000,000 Per Occurrence: all Perils, Coverages (subject to policy  

exclusions) and all Named Insureds (as defined in the policy)  
combined, per Declaration, regardless of the number of Named  
Insureds, coverages, extensions of coverage, or perils insured,  
subject to the following per occurrence and/or aggregate  sub-
limits as noted below. 

  
 $ 52,000,000 $15,000,000 For City of Marysville only; $10,000,000 For City 

of Yuba City only; $17,000,000 For City of Auburn only; 
$10,000,000 For City of Ione only Flood Limit - Per Occurrence 
and in the Annual Aggregate (for those Named Insured(s) that 
purchase this optional dedicated coverage). 

  
 $ 52,000,000 $15,000,000 For City of Marysville only; $10,000,000 For City 

of Yuba City only; $17,000,000 For City of Auburn only; 
$10,000,000 For City of Ione only Per Occurrence and in the 
Annual Aggregate for scheduled locations in Flood Zones A & 
V (inclusive of all 100 year exposures).  This Sub-limit does not 
increase the specific flood limit of liability for those Named 
Insured(s) that purchase this optional dedicated coverage. 

  
  Not Applicable Per Occurrence for losses to locations in Tier 1 and/or Tier 2 

Counties and resulting from a Named Windstorm. 
 

  Not Covered Earthquake Shock - Per Occurrence and in the Annual 
Aggregate (for those Named Insured(s) that purchase this 
optional dedicated coverage). 

 

 
Page 265 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Property Proposal   Page 2 of 4 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund        06/03/2022 
10:37:40 AM 

 $ 100,000,000 Combined Business Interruption, Rental Income and Tuition 
Income (and related fees).  However, if specific values for such 
coverage have not been reported as part of the Named 
Insured's schedule of values held on file with Alliant Insurance 
Services, Inc., this sub-limit amount is limited to $500,000 per 
Named Insured subject to maximum of $2,500,000 Per 
Occurrence, Per Declaration  for Business Interruption, Rental 
Income and Tuition Income combined.  Coverage for power 
generating plants is excluded, unless otherwise specified. 

 
  
 $ 50,000,000 Extra Expense. 

 
  
ALL RISK 
COVERAGES &  
SUB-LIMITS: 
(continued) 

 Per Bound TIV $10,000,000 Miscellaneous Unnamed Locations for Named 
Insureds with total insurable values greater than or equal to 
$250,000,000 at time of binding or  $5,000,000 Miscellaneous 
Unnamed Locations for Named Insureds with total insurable 
values less than $250,000,000 at time of binding excluding 
Earthquake coverage for Alaska and California locations.  If 
Flood coverage is purchased for scheduled locations, this 
extension will extend to include Flood coverage for any location 
not situated in Flood Zones A or V.  Vacant and Unoccupied 
Buildings are sub-limited to $2,500,000. 

  
  180 Days Extended Period of Indemnity 
  
 See Policy Provisions $50,000,000, or a Named Insured's Policy Limit of Liability if 

less than $50,000,000, Automatic Acquisition for 120 days for 
existing Named Insureds or $25,000,000 Automatic Acquisition 
for 90 days for new sub members of an existing pools/JPA. 
Licensed Vehicles Automatic Acquisition sub-limit is 
$10,000,000.  Additionally, automatic coverage is granted for 
up to 60 days, subject to a sub-limit of $2,500,000 for additional 
property and/or interests in Tier 1 Wind Counties, Parishes and 
Independent Cities for the states of Virginia, North Carolina, 
South Carolina, Georgia, Alabama, Mississippi, Louisiana, 
Texas and/or situated anywhere within the states of Florida and 
Hawaii. The peril of Earthquake is excluded for the states of 
Alaska and California.  If Flood coverage is purchased for all 
scheduled locations, this extension will extend to include Flood 
coverage for any location not situated in Flood Zones A or V. 
Vacant and Unoccupied Buildings are further sub-limited to 
$5,000,000. 

  
 $ 1,000,000 Unscheduled Landscaping, tees, sand traps, greens, athletic  

fields and artificial turf and further subject to $25,000 / 25  
gallon maximum per item for existing Named Insureds 
excluding Earthquake coverage for Alaska and California 
locations.  If Flood coverage is purchased for scheduled 
locations, this extension includes Flood coverage for any 
location not situated in Flood Zones A or V. 

  
 $ 5,000,000 or 110% of the scheduled values, whichever is greater, for 

Scheduled Landscaping, tees, sand traps, greens, athletic 
fields and artificial turf and further subject to $25,000 / 25 gallon 
maximum per item.   

  

 
Page 266 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Property Proposal   Page 3 of 4 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund        06/03/2022 
10:37:40 AM 

 $ 50,000,000 Errors & Omissions - This extension does not increase any 
more specific limit stated elsewhere in this policy or 
Declarations.  

  
 $ 25,000,000 Course of Construction and Additions (including new) for 

projects with completed values not exceeding the sub-limit 
shown.  Projects valued greater than $15,000,000 require 
underwriting approval and a premium charge. 

  
ALL RISK 
COVERAGES &  
SUB-LIMITS: 
(continued) 

$ 500,000 Money & Securities for named perils only as referenced within 
the policy, however fraudulent impersonation, fraudulent 
instruction or similar events are excluded. 

  
 $ 2,500,000 Unscheduled Fine Arts. 
  
 $ 250,000 Accidental Contamination per occurrence and annual 

aggregate per Named Insured with $500,000 annual aggregate 
for all Named Insureds per Declaration. Coverage shall not 
attach or become insurance upon any property which at the 
time of loss is more specifically described and covered under 
any other policy form until the liability of such other insurance 
has first been exhausted and shall then cover only the excess 
of value of such property over and above the amount payable 
under such other insurance, whether collectible or not. 

  
 $ 750,000 Unscheduled infrastructure including but not limited to tunnels,  

bridges, dams, catwalks (except those not for public use),  
roadways, highways, streets, sidewalks, culverts, channels, 
levees, dikes, berms, embankments, landfills (as more fully 
defined in the policy), docks, piers, wharves, street lights, traffic 
signals, meters, roadway or highway fencing (including 
guardrails), and all similar property unless a specific  value has 
been declared. Unscheduled infrastructure coverage is  
excluded for the peril of Earthquake  and excluded for Federal  
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and/or Office of 
Emergency  Services (OES) declared disasters, providing said 
declaration  provides funding for repairs. 

  
 $ 50,000,000 Increased Cost of Construction due to the enforcement of 

building codes/ ordinance or law (includes All Risk and Boiler & 
Machinery).  $2,500,000 limit for vacant properties. 

  
 $ 25,000,000 Transit - Physical Damage only. 
  
 $ 2,500,000 Unscheduled Animals; not to exceed $50,000 per Animal, per 

Occurrence. 
  
 $ 2,500,000 Unscheduled Watercraft up to 27 feet. 
  
  Included Per Occurrence for Off Premises Vehicle Physical Damage. 
  
 $ 25,000,000 Off Premises Services Interruption including Extra Expense 

resulting from a covered peril at non-owned/operated locations. 
  
 $ 5,000,000 Per Occurrence Per Named Insured subject to an Annual 

Aggregate of $10,000,000 for Earthquake Shock on Licensed 
Vehicles, Unlicensed Vehicles, Contractor's Equipment and 
Fine Arts combined for all Named Insured(s) in this Declaration 
combined that do not purchase optional dedicated Earthquake 

 
Page 267 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Property Proposal   Page 4 of 5 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund        06/03/2022 
10:37:40 AM 

Shock coverage, and/or where specific values for such items 
are not covered for optional dedicated Earthquake Shock 
coverage as part of the Named Insured's schedule of values 
held on file with Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.. 

  
 
 
 
ALL RISK 
COVERAGES &  
SUB-LIMITS: 
(continued) 

$ 5,000,000 Per Occurrence Per Named Insured subject to an Annual 
Aggregate of $10,000,000 for Flood on Licensed Vehicles, 
Unlicensed Vehicles, Contractor's Equipment and Fine Arts 
combined for all Named Insured(s) in this Declaration combined 
that do not purchase optional dedicated Flood coverage, and/or 
where specific values for such items are not covered for 
optional dedicated Flood coverage as part of the Named 
Insured's schedule of values held on file with Alliant Insurance 
Services, Inc.. 

  
 $ 3,000,000 Contingent Business Interruption, Contingent Extra Expense, 

Contingent Rental Values and Contingent Tuition Income 
separately. 

  
 $ 3,000,000 Tax Revenue Interruption – Per Policy Provisions. However, if 

specific values for such coverage have not been reported as 
part of the Named Insured’s  schedule of values held on file 
with Alliant Insurance Services, Inc., this sub-limit amount is 
limited to $1,000,000 Per Occurrence – Per Policy Provisions. 

  
 $ 500,000 Jewelry, Furs, Precious Metals and Precious Stones 

Separately. 
  
 $ 1,000,000 Claims Preparation Expenses. 
  
 $ 50,000,000 Expediting Expenses. 
  
  
 $ 100,000 Per Occurrence with a $1,000,000 Annual Aggregate per 

Declaration for Mold/Fungus Resultant Damage as more fully 
defined in the policy. 

  
 $ 100,000,000 Ingress/Egress Per Occurrence, Per Named Insured for the 

actual loss sustained during the period of time not exceeding 30 
days when, as a direct result of physical loss or damage 
caused by a covered peril(s) specified by this Policy and 
occurring at property located within a 10 mile radius of covered 
property, ingress to or egress from the covered property by this 
Policy is prevented. 

 

 
Page 268 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Property Proposal   Page 5 of 6 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund        06/03/2022 
10:37:40 AM 

  
 $ 100,000,000 Interruption By Civil Authority Per Occurrence, Per Named 

Insured for the actual loss sustained during the period of time 
not exceeding 30 days when, as a direct result of physical loss 
or damage caused by a covered peril(s) specified by this Policy 
and occurring at property located within a 10 mile radius of 
covered property, access to the covered property is specifically 
prohibited by order of a civil authority. 

  
 $ 10,000,000 Electronic Data Processing Media. 
 $ 1,000,000 Personal Property Outside of the USA. 
 
  Not Covered Per Occurrence Per Declaration Upgrade to Green Coverage 

subject to the lesser of, the cost of upgrade, an additional 25% 
of the applicable limit of liability shown in the schedule of values 
or this sub limit. 

  
  Not Covered for Communicable Disease. 
  
 $ 100,000 Per Occurrence while in Storage and In Transit coverage 

subject to $10,000 Deductible for Unmanned Aircraft as more 
fully defined in the Policy.  Not Covered while in Flight. 

 
VALUATION:  Repair or Replacement Cost (RCV) 

 Actual Loss Sustained for Time Element Coverages 
 Contractor’s Equipment /Vehicles either Replacement Cost (RCV) or Actual Cash 

Value (ACV) as declared by each insured.  If not declared, valuation will default to 
Actual Cash Value (ACV) 

  
EXCLUSIONS  
(Including but not  
limited to): 

 
 Seepage & Contamination 
 Cost of Clean-up for Pollution 
 Mold 

  
 Deductibles: If two or more deductible amounts provided in the Declaration Page 

apply for a single occurrence the total to be deducted shall not exceed the 
largest per occurrence deductible amount applicable. (The Deductible amounts 
set forth below apply Per Occurrence unless indicated otherwise). 

  
“ALL RISK” 
DEDUCTIBLE: 

 
$ 25,000 Except $2,500,000 for Wildfire for Town of Paradise Per 

Occurrence, which will apply in the event a more specific 
deductible is not applicable to a loss. 

  
DEDUCTIBLES FOR 
SPECIFIC PERILS 
AND COVERAGES: 

 
 
$ 100,000 All Flood Zones Per Occurrence excluding Flood Zones A & V. 

  
 $ 250,000 Per Occurrence for Flood Zones A & V (inclusive of all 100 year 

exposures). 
 

  Not Applicable for losses to locations in Tier 1 and/or 2 Counties and resulting 
from a Named Windstorm. 

 

 
Page 269 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Property Proposal   Page 6 of 7 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund        06/03/2022 
10:37:40 AM 

  Not Covered Earthquake Shock:  If the stated deductible is a flat dollar 
amount, the deductible will apply on a Per Occurrence basis, 
unless otherwise stated.  If the stated deductible is on a 
percentage basis, the deductible will apply Per Occurrence on 
a Per Unit basis, as defined in the policy form, subject to the 
minimum deductible per occurrence. 

  
 $ 1,000 Per Occurrence for Specially Trained Animals. 
  
DEDUCTIBLES FOR 
SPECIFIC PERILS 
AND COVERAGES: 
(continued) 

$ 500,000 Unscheduled infrastructure including but not limited to tunnels,  
bridges, dams, catwalks (except those not for public use),  
roadways, highways, streets, sidewalks, culverts, channels, 
levees, dikes, berms, embankments, landfills (as more fully 
defined in the policy), docks, piers, wharves, street lights, traffic 
signals, meters, roadway or highway fencing (including 
guardrails), and all similar property unless a specific  value has 
been declared. Unscheduled infrastructure coverage is  
excluded for the peril of Earthquake  and excluded for Federal  
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) and/or Office of 
Emergency  Services (OES) declared disasters, providing said 
declaration  provides funding for repairs. 

  
 $ 10,000 Per Vehicle or Item for Licensed Vehicles, Unlicensed Vehicles 

and Contractor's Equipment subject to $100,000 Maximum Per 
Occurrence, Per Named Insured for the peril of Earthquake for 
Named Insured(s) who do not purchase dedicated Earthquake 
limits. 

  
 $ 50,000 Per Occurrence Per Named Insured for this Declaration for Fine 

Arts for the peril of Earthquake for Named Insured(s) who do 
not purchase dedicated Earthquake limits. 

  
 $ 10,000 Per Vehicle or Item for Licensed Vehicles, Unlicensed Vehicles 

and Contractor's Equipment subject to $100,000 Maximum Per 
Occurrence, Per Named Insured for the peril of Flood for 
Named Insured(s) who do not purchase dedicated Flood limits. 

  
 $ 50,000 Per Occurrence Per Named Insured for this Declaration for Fine 

Arts for the peril of Flood for Named Insured(s) who do not 
purchase dedicated Flood limits. 

  
  24 Hour Waiting Period for Service Interruption for All Perils and 

Coverages. 
  
  2.5% of Annual Tax Revenue Value per Location for Tax Interruption. 
  
  24 Hour Waiting Period for Ingress/Egress 
  
  24 Hour Waiting Period for Civil Authority 
  

 
Page 270 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Property Proposal   Page 7 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund        06/03/2022 
10:37:40 AM 

 $ 25,000, Except 50,000 for police vehicles with RCV under 250,000 for 
City of Auburn, City of Yuba City, City of Ione, City of Red Bluff, 
City of Folsom, and City of Oroville for RCV; $100,000 for All 
Vehicles with RCV of $250,000 to $750,000; $250,000 for All 
Vehicles with RCV in Excess of $750,000. Not Covered for All 
Other members. Per Occurrence for Off Premises Vehicle 
Physical Damage. If Off-Premises coverage is 
included/purchased, the stated deductible will apply to vehicle 
physical damage both on and off-premises on a Per 
Occurrence basis, unless otherwise stated. If Off-Premises 
coverage is not included, On-Premises/In-Yard coverage is 
subject to the All Risk (Basic) deductible. 

 
  See Special Terms Vehicle Valuation Basis 
 
 $ 5,000 Per Occurrence for Contractor's Equipment. 
 
  Replacement Cost Contractor's Equipment Valuation Basis 
 
 
SPECIAL TERMS 1: Valuation for Vehicles and CE is Replacement Cost; except Lincoln is Actual Cash 

Value for CE, Paradise is Actual Cash Value for all Vehicles in Yard, Jackson is Actual 
Cash Value for CE, and Rio Vista is Actual Cash Value for CE. 

 
  Per Policy Limits Special Terms Limit 
 
 Per Policy Deductible Special Terms Deductible 
 
SPECIAL TERMS 2: Occurrence Definition in respect to Wildfire(s) as defined: As regards wildfires, 

firestorms, brush fires and any other fires or series of fires, irrespective of origin, which 
spread through trees, grassland or other vegetation. 

 
  Per Policy Limits Special Terms Limit 
 
 $ 2,500,000 for Town of Paradise only Special Terms Deductible 
 
The following stand-alone coverages are provided by the APIP program but are not covered in the Limit of 
Liability or the Sub-Limits of Liability above or attached to the Master Policy Form Wording. However, the 
coverage costs are included in the APIP Total Cost noted below. Carriers providing these coverages are 
included in the Schedule of Carriers. 
 
 $ 100,000,000 Per Named Insured Per Occurrence subject to $200,000,000 

Annual Aggregate of Declarations 1-14, 18-30 and 32-35 
combined as respects Property Damage, Business Interruption, 
Rental Income and Extra Expense Combined for Terrorism 
(Primary Layer). 

  
 $ 25,000 Except $2,500,000 for Wildfire for Town of Paradise Per 

Occurrence Deductible for Primary Terrorism. 
  
 $ 600,000,000 Per Named Insured for Terrorism (Excess Layer) subject to; 
  
 $ 1,100,000,000 Per Occurrence, All Named Insureds combined in Declarations 

1-14, 18-21, 23-30 and 32-35 for Terrorism (Excess Layer) 
subject to; 

  

 
Page 271 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Property Proposal   Page 8 of 9 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund        06/03/2022 
10:37:40 AM 

 $ 1,400,000,000 Annual Aggregate shared by all Named Insureds combined in 
Declarations 1-14, 18-21, 23-30 and 32-35, as respects 
Property Damage, Business Interruption, Rental Income and 
Extra Expense combined for Terrorism (Excess Layer). 

  
 $ 500,000 Per Occurrence Deductible for Excess Terrorism (Applies only 

if the Primary Terrorism Limit is exhausted). 
 
  Included Information Security & Privacy Insurance with Electronic Media 

Liability Coverage.  See attached Cyber Coverage Summary for 
applicable Limits. (Cyber Liability) If, insured purchases such 
coverage. 

  
  Included Pollution Liability Insurance Coverage.  See attached Pollution 

Liability Insurance Coverage Document for applicable limits and 
deductibles. If, insured purchases such coverage. If, insured 
purchases such coverage. 

 
TERMS & 
CONDITIONS: 

Sub-limits, terms and conditions are subject to change. 
 
25% Minimum Earned Premium and cancellations subject to 10% penalty 

  
 Except Cyber Liability Premium is calculated on a pro-rata basis, unless there is a 

claim in which case the premium is deemed fully earned. If, insured purchases such 
coverage. 

  
 Except Pollution Liability Premium is 100% Earned at Inception, unless there is a claim 

in which premium is deemed fully earned. If, insured purchases such coverage. 
 
  
NOTICE OF 
CANCELLATION: 

 
90 Days except 10 Days for non-payment of premium 

  
 
  
 Annual Cost* 
Total Property 
Premium: 

 
$ 4,842,850.00 

Excess Boiler: $ 22,413.00 
Cyber Liability 
Premium: 

 
$ 114,564.00 

Pollution Liability 
Premium: 

 
$ 12,482.00 

ABS Fee: $ 10,573.00 
SLT&F’s (Estimate) $ 162,250.05 
Broker Fee: $ 0.00 
TOTAL COST †: 
(Including Taxes and 
Fees) 

 
$ 5,165,132.05 

*Premiums are based on valid selectable options and the TIV’s above.  Changes in TIV’s will require a premium 
adjustment.  
 
† TOTAL COST includes: premiums, underwriting fees, commissions, loss control expenses, program 

administration charges, and applicable taxes (excluding the Cyber Enhancement premium - 
 should you have elected to purchase this coverage) 

 

 
Page 272 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Property Proposal   Page 9 of 9 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund        06/03/2022 
10:37:40 AM 

PRINT DATE: June 3, 2022 
  
PROPOSAL VALID UNTIL: July 1, 2022 
  
BROKER: ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 

License No. 0C36861 
 
Marcus Beverly, CPCU, AIC, ARM-P 
First Vice President 
 
Jenna Wirkner 
Account Representative 

  
NOTES: 

• Some coverage, limits, sub-limits, terms and conditions will change, as negotiations are ongoing.  
Changes will be documented and accompany the Binder Confirmation for July 1, 2022 bound terms. 

• Maximum All Risk limits estimated to bind between $500,000,000 and $1,000,000,000.  If your All Risk 
limits are less than $500,000,000 they are not expected to change.  

• For all Named Insureds that purchase Terrorism Coverage in APIP the program expects to purchase 
LMA 5400 buy back coverage – limits to be determined. See expiring Policy No. B0180PF2109632 
and B0180PF2109624 for coverage details  

• Major pending and approved changes to the APIP Program are described in the Executive 
Summary for renewing insureds. 

• This proposal is based on the current loss experience and is subject to change if this insured’s 

loss ratio deteriorates further and/or if the markets suffer a catastrophic event 

• Coverage outlined in this Proposal is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the policy. 

• Please refer to Policy for specific terms, conditions and exclusions – not yet finalized. 

• Change in Total Insurable Values will result in adjustment in premium 

• Each line of coverage is rated separately therefore increases in TIV’s on highly rated coverages 
such as Vehicles, CE, EQ or 100 year Flood Zones, etc. may increase the insured’s average account 
rate. 

• The flood zones provided on the Schedule of Values (SOVs) are for rating purposes only. The actual 
flood zone will be determined at the time of loss. 

 
 

 
Page 273 of 526



 
 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Boiler & Machinery Proposal    Page 1 of 3 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund        06/03/2022 
10:41:52 AM 

 

ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 
ALLIANT PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM (APIP) 

 
BOILER & MACHINERY PROPOSAL 

 

NAMED INSURED: Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
  
  
POLICY PERIOD:  July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2023  

COMPANIES: See Attached List of Companies 
  
TOTAL INSURED VALUES: $ 1,691,492,049 as of June 3, 2022 
  
STATUS/RATING: See Attached List of Companies  

   
COVERAGES & LIMITS: $ 100,000,000 Boiler Explosion and Machinery Breakdown, (for those 

Named Insureds that purchase this optional dedicated 
coverage) as respects Combined Property Damage and 
Business Interruption/Extra Expense (Including Bond 
Revenue Interest Payments where Values Reported and 
excluding Business Interruption for power generating 
facilities unless otherwise specified).  Limit includes loss 
adjustment agreement and electronic computer or 
electronic data processing equipment with the following 
sub-limits: 

  
  Included Jurisdictional and Inspections. 
  
 $ 10,000,000 Per Occurrence for Service/Utility/Off Premises Power 

Interruption. 
  
  Included Per Occurrence for Consequential Damage/Perishable 

Goods/Spoilage. 
  
 $ 10,000,000 Per Occurrence for Electronic Data Processing Media and 

Data Restoration. 
  
 $ 2,000,000 Per Occurrence, Per Named Insured and in the Annual 

Aggregate per Declaration for Earthquake Resultant 
Damage for Named Insureds who purchase Dedicated 
Earthquake Coverage. 

  
 $ 10,000,000 Per Occurrence for Hazardous Substances / Pollutants / 

Decontamination. 
  
  Included Per Occurrence for Machine or Apparatus used for 

Research, Diagnosis, Medication, Surgical, Therapeutic, 
Dental or Pathological Purposes. 

  

 
Page 274 of 526



 
 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Boiler & Machinery Proposal    Page 2 of 3 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund        06/03/2022 
10:41:52 AM 

  
NEWLY ACQUIRED 
LOCATIONS: 

 
$ 25,000,000 Automatic Acquisition for Boiler & Machinery values at 

newly acquired locations.  Values greater than 
$25,000,000 or Power Generating Facilities must be 
reported within 120 days and must have prior underwriting 
approval prior to binding 

  
VALUATION: Repair or Replacement except Actual Loss sustained for all Time Element 

coverages 
  
EXCLUSIONS 
(Including but not limited 
to): 

 
 Testing 
 Explosion, except for steam or centrifugal explosion 
 Explosion of gas or unconsumed fuel from furnace of the boiler 

  
OBJECTS EXCLUDED: 
(Including but not limited 
to): 

 
 Insulating or refractory material 
 Buried Vessels or Piping 
 

  
NOTICE OF 
CANCELLATION: 

 
90 days except 10 days for non-payment of premium 

  
DEDUCTIBLES: $ 10,000 Except as shown for Specific Objects or Perils. 
  
 $ 10,000 Electronic Data Processing Media. 
  
 $ 10,000 Consequential Damage. 
  
 $ 10,000 Objects over 200 hp, 1,000 KW/KVA/Amps or 

Boilers over 5,000 square feet of heating surface. 
  
 $ 50,000 Objects over 350 hp, 2,500 KW/KVA/Amps or 

Boilers over 10,000 square feet of heating surface. 
  
 $ 100,000 Objects over 500 hp, 5,000 KW/KVA/Amps or 

Boilers over 25,000 square feet of heating surface. 
  
 $ 250,000 Objects over 750 hp, 10,000 KW/KVA/Amps or 

Boilers over 75,000 square feet of heating surface. 
  
 $ 350,000 Objects over 25,000 hp, 25,000 KW/KVA/Amps or 

Boilers over 250,000 square feet of heating 
surface. 

  
 $ 10 per foot / $2,500 

Minimum 
Deep Water Wells. 

  
  24 Hour Waiting Period Utility Interruption. 
  
  24 Hours Business Interruption/Extra Expense Except as 

noted below. 
  
  30 Days Business Interruption - Revenue Bond. 
  
  5 x 100% of Daily Value Business Interruption - All objects over 750 hp or 

10,000 KW/KVA/Amps or 10,000 square feet 
heating surface. 

  
  5 x 100% of Daily Value Business interruption - All Objects at Waste Water 

Treatment Facilities and All Utilities. 
 

 
Page 275 of 526



 
 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Boiler & Machinery Proposal    Page 3 of 3 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund        06/03/2022 
10:41:52 AM 

 
 Annual Cost 
COST: Cost is included on Property Proposal 

 
  
PRINT DATE: June 3, 2022 
  
PROPOSAL VALID UNTIL: July 1, 2022 
  
BROKER: ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 

License No. 0C36861 
 
Marcus Beverly, CPCU, AIC, ARM-P 
First Vice President 
 
Jenna Wirkner 
Account Representative 

NOTES: 

• Some coverage, limits, sub-limits, terms and conditions will change, as negotiations are ongoing.  
Changes will be documented and accompany the Binder Confirmation for July 1, 2022 bound 
terms. 

• Maximum All Risk limits estimated to bind between $500,000,000 and $1,000,000,000.  If your All 
Risk limits are less than $500,000,000 they are not expected to change.  

• For all Named Insureds that purchase Terrorism Coverage in APIP the program expects to 
purchase LMA 5400 buy back coverage – limits to be determined. See expiring Policy No. 
B0180PF2109632 and B0180PF2109624 for coverage details  

• Major pending and approved changes to the APIP Program are described in the Executive 
Summary for renewing insureds. 

• This proposal is based on the current loss experience and is subject to change if this insured’s 

loss ratio deteriorates further and/or if the markets suffer a catastrophic event 

• Coverage outlined in this Proposal is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the policy. 

• Please refer to Policy for specific terms, conditions and exclusions – not yet finalized. 

• Change in Total Insurable Values will result in adjustment in premium 

• Each line of coverage is rated separately therefore increases in TIV’s on highly rated coverages 
such as Vehicles, CE, EQ or 100 year Flood Zones, etc. may increase the insured’s average 
account rate. 

• The flood zones provided on the Schedule of Values (SOVs) are for rating purposes only. The 
actual flood zone will be determined at the time of loss.  

 
Page 276 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 1 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 

ALLIANT PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM (APIP) 
 

CYBER INSURANCE SUMMARY PROPOSAL 
 
 

 

TYPE OF COVERAGE: 

 
PROGRAM: 
 
 
 
NAMED INSURED: 
 

Information Security & Privacy Insurance with Electronic Media Liability Coverage 
 

Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) inclusive of  
Public Entity Property Insurance Program (PEPIP), and  
Hospital All Risk Property Program (HARPP) 
 
Any member(s), entity(ies), agency(ies), organization(s), enterprise(s) and/or individual(s), 
attaching to each Declaration insured under the ALLIANT PROPERTY INSURANCE 
PROGRAM (APIP), inclusive of PUBLIC ENTITY PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM 
(PEPIP) and HOSPITAL ALL RISK PROPERTY PROGRAM (HARPP) as their respective 
rights and interests may appear which now exist or which hereafter may be created or 
acquired and which are owned, financially controlled or actively managed by the herein 
named interest, all jointly, severally or in any combination of their interests, for account of 
whom it may concern (all hereinafter referred to as Member(s) / Entity(ies). 

  
DECLARATION:  Various Declarations as on file with Insurer 
  
POLICY PERIOD:  July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2023 
  
POLICY #:  TBD 
  
TERRITORY: WORLD-WIDE 

RETROACTIVE DATE:   APIP/PEPIP 
For new insureds – the retro active date will be the date of addition 

July 1, 2022 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2022/23 policy 

July 1, 2021 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2021/22 policy 

July 1, 2020 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2020/21 policy  

July 1, 2019 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2019/20 policy  

July 1, 2018 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2018/19 policy 

July 1, 2017 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2017/18 policy 

July 1, 2016 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2016/17 policy 

July 1, 2015 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2015/16 policy 

July 1, 2014 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2014/15 policy 

July 1, 2013 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2013/14 policy 

July 1, 2012 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2012/13 policy 

July 1, 2011 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2011/12 policy 

July 1, 2010 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2010/11 policy 

 
CSU 
July 1, 2008 California State University and CSU Auxiliary Organizations  
  
  

  
  
INSURER: Lloyd’s of London - Beazley Syndicate:  

 
Page 277 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 1 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

 
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 

ALLIANT PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM (APIP) 
  

POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE SUMMARY 
 
TYPE OF INSURANCE:    Insurance   Reinsurance  
  
TYPE OF COVERAGE: Claims Made and Reported Pollution Liability 
  
PROGRAM: Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) 
  
NAMED INSURED: Any member(s), entity(ies), agency(ies), organization(s), enterprise(s), pool(s), Joint Powers 

Authority(ies) and/or individual(s) attached to each Declaration insured as per Named Insured 
Schedule on file with Insurer, listed below. 

  
POLICY PERIOD:  July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2023 

  
RETROACTIVE DATE:  July 1, 2011 for Waste Disposal; 

 July 1, 2022 for Products Pollution and Exposure Liability; 
 July 1, 2022 for Contractor’s Pollution 
 July 1, 2021 for Mold Matter 
 July 1, 2011 Disinfection Event 
 
This coverage shall only apply if the Pollution Incident or Disinfection Event giving rise to the 
Claim, Loss, Business Interruption Expenses or Extra Expenses commenced, in its entirety, 
on or after July 1, 2011, or the date that the Insured first joined the Alliant Property Insurance 
Program (APIP) for environmental or pollution insurance coverage, whichever is later. 

  
COMPANY: Ironshore Specialty Insurance Company 
  
A.M. BEST 
INSURANCE RATING:: 

A, Excellent, Financial Size Category XV 
($2 Billion or greater) 
Effective June 29, 2021 

  
STANDARD & POORS 
RATING: 

A (Strong) as of November 25, 2020 

  
ADMITTED STATUS: Non-Admitted in all states. 
  
COVERED PROPERTY: Per the following SOVs submitted and on file with carrier: 

 
1. PEPIP DEC 1 – SOVs 
2. PEPIP DEC 2 – SOVs 
3. PEPIP DEC 3 – SOVs 
4. PEPIP DEC 4 – SOVs 
5. PEPIP DEC 5 – SOVs 
6. PEPIP DEC 11 – SOVs 
7. PEPIP DEC 12 – SOVs 
8. PEPIP DEC 14 – SOVs 
9. PEPIP DEC 19 – SOVs 
10. PEPIP DEC 23 – SOVs 
11. PEPIP DEC 24 – SOVs 

 

12. PEPIP DEC 26 – SOVs 
13. PEPIP DEC 27 – SOVs 
14. PEPIP DEC 28 – SOVs 
15. PEPIP DEC 29 – SOVs 
16. PEPIP DEC 30 – SOVs 
17. PEPIP DEC 32 – SOVs (Excludes SPIP, 

except as endorsed) 
18. PEPIP DEC 33 – SOVs 
19. PEPIP DEC 34 – SOVs 
20. PEPIP DEC 35 – SOVs 
21. PEPIP DEC 97 – SOVs – Excluding 

HARPP members 
  
 Covered locations include any real property owned, leased, rented, operated or occupied by 

the Insured at policy inception.  Covered locations also include any subsurface potable water, 
wastewater or storm water pipes to or from a covered property that are located within a one 
thousand (1,000) foot radius of such covered location as of policy inception. 

 
Page 278 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 2 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

 
COVERAGES & LIMITS: 

$25,000,000 

$  2,000,000 

$  2,000,000 

$  2,000,000 

 
Policy Program Aggregate (all insureds combined) 

Per Pollution Incident  

Per Named Insured Aggregate 

Per JPA/Pool Aggregate 

   
SUB-LIMITS: $     100,000 

$     100,000 

$     250,000 

$     250,000 

$  1,000,000 

 
$  1,000,000 

$  2,000,000 

$  2,000,000 

$     250,000 
 

$  2,000,000 

$  5,000,000 

$  1,000,000 
 

$  2,000,000 

$  5,000,000 

$  1,000,000 

$  5,000,000 

 Disinfection Event Expenses Per Pollution Incident* 

Disinfection Event Expenses Coverage Aggregate* 

Image Restoration Expenses Per Pollution Incident* 

Image Restoration Expenses Coverage Aggregate* 

Restoration Costs, Business Interruption and Extra Expense 
Aggregate (Mold Matter Only)* 

Legionella Per Pollution Incident* 

Sewer Backup or Overcharge Per Pollution Incident* 

Lead or Lead Containing Materials Aggregate Sublimit* 

Any Punitive, Exemplary and Multiplied Damages and Civil Fines, 
Penalties and Assessments* 

Products Pollution and Exposure Liability Per Pollution Incident* 

Products Pollution and Exposure Liability Aggregate* 

Contractor’s Pollution Per Pollution Incident - Herbicide, Insecticide, 
Pesticide Applications Only* 

Contractor’s Pollution Per Pollution Incident - All other Operations* 

Contractors Pollution Aggregate* 

Wildfire Per Pollution Incident* 

Wildfire Aggregate Sublimit* 

   
*Note: the above sub-limits payable under this coverage do not increase and are not 
in addition to the applicable limit of liability. 

   
EXTENDED REPORTING 
PERIOD: 

 Automatic Extended Reporting Period 
 
The Named Insured shall be entitled to an Automatic Extended Reporting Period for a 
period of ninety (90) days following the effective date of termination of this Policy for no 
additional premium. This automatic ERP does not apply if the insured has purchased 
other insurance to replace the insurance provided by this policy.  

   
SPECIFIC COVERAGE 
PROVISIONS: 

 CLAIMS MADE AND REPORTED 
 
Coverage A.1 – Onsite Pollution: 
Coverage for Remediation Expenses incurred exclusively for remediation of Pollutants 
that are on, at or under a Covered Property, provided such Remediation Expenses are 
incurred to address Onsite Pollution and directly result from New Conditions. 

   
  Coverage A.2 – OffSite Pollution: 

Coverage for Remediation Expenses incurred exclusively for remediation of Pollutants 
that are beyond the boundaries of the Covered Property, provided such Remediation 
Expenses are incurred to address Offsite Pollution and result from New Conditions. 

 
Page 279 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 3 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

   
SPECIFIC COVERAGE 
PROVISIONS - 
CONTINUED: 

 Coverage B – Emergency Response Expenses 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Emergency Response Expenses incurred by or on 
behalf of the Insured in response to an imminent and substantial threat to human health 
or the environment resulting from a Pollution Incident on, at , under or migrating from a 
Covered Property or arising from Transportation that commences, in its entirety, during 
the policy period. The Emergency Response Expenses must: (i) be incurred within 
seven (7) days of the commencement of such Pollution Incident; and (ii) be reported to 
the Insurer within fourteen (14) days of such commencement. For this Coverage to 
apply, the Pollution Incident giving rise to the Emergency Response Expenses must be 
unexpected and unintended from the standpoint of the Insured. 

   
  Coverage C.1 – Third Party Claims - Onsite Pollution 

Onsite Pollution as a consequence of New Conditions. if such Bodily Injury or Property 
Damage takes place while the person injured or the property damaged is within the 
boundaries of the Covered Property. 

   
  Coverage C.2 – Third Party Claims -Offsite Pollution 

Offsite Pollution as a consequence of New Conditions. if such Bodily Injury or Property 
Damage takes place while the person injured or the property damaged is beyond the 
boundaries of the Covered Property. 

   
  Coverage D – Transportation 

To pay on behalf of the Insured, Loss that the Insured becomes legally obligated to pay 
as a result of Claims for Bodily Injury, Property Damage or Remediation Expenses 
directly resulting from New Conditions, which arise from Transportation, provided such 
Claims are first made against the Insured and reported to the Company in writing during 
the Policy Period. 

   
  Coverage E – Waste Disposal Activities: 

To pay on behalf of the Insured, Loss that the Insured becomes legally obligated to pay 
as a result of Claims for Bodily Injury, Property Damage or Remediation Expenses 
directly resulting from a Pollution Incident resulting from Waste Disposal Activities. The 
Waste Disposal Activities must take place on or after the Waste Disposal Retroactive 
Date set forth in the Declarations, or the date that the Insured first began operations if 
no Waste Disposal Retroactive Date is indicated in the Declarations. This Coverage 
shall apply only if such Claims are first made against the Insured and reported to the 
Company in writing during the Policy Period, or during the Extended Reporting Period 
if applicable. 

   
  Coverage F – Business Interruption: 

To pay the Insured’s Business Interruption Expenses and Extra Expenses during the 
Period of Interruption that directly results from Onsite Pollution arising from New 
Conditions. 
This Coverage shall apply only if the Pollution Incident giving rise to the Business 
Interruption Expenses or Extra Expenses is first discovered by the Insured and reported 
to the Company, in writing, during the Policy Period, and such Pollution Incident results 
in Remediation Expenses covered under this Policy. Discovery of a Pollution Incident 
happens when a Responsible Insured first becomes aware of the Pollution Incident. 
Further, if the Period of Interruption results from a Pollution Incident and any other 
cause(s), the Company shall only pay that portion of Business Interruption Expenses 
and Extra Expenses solely attributable to the Pollution Incident. 

 
Page 280 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 4 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

   
SPECIFIC COVERAGE 
PROVISIONS - 
CONTINUED: 

 Coverage G – Coverage for Disinfection Event Expenses 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Disinfection Expenses that directly result from a 
Disinfection Event at a Covered Property, provided that the Disinfection Event 
commences, in its entirety, during the Policy Period; such Disinfection Expenses are 
incurred within thirty (30) days of the first discovery of such Disinfection Event by a 
Responsible Insured; and the Insured reports the Disinfection Event to the Company, 
in writing, during the Policy Period and within fourteen (14) days of a Responsible 
Insured’s first discovery of such Disinfection Event. 
Disinfection Expenses means reasonable fees and costs incurred by the Insured to 
retain third party qualified vendors to disinfect the actual presence of bacteria or virus 
at a Covered Property after a Disinfection Event.   

   
  Coverage H – Coverage for Image Restoration Expenses  

To pay on behalf of the Insured, Image Restoration Expenses that directly result from 
an Image Restoration Event, provided that the Pollution Incident giving rise to the 
Image Restoration Event is on, at, under or migrating from a Covered Property or 
results from Transportation or Waste Disposal Activities; the Pollution Incident giving 
rise to the Image Restoration Expenses commenced, in its entirety, during the Policy 
Period; such Image Restoration Expenses are incurred by the Insured within fourteen 
(14) days of the first newspaper or magazine publication or television news broadcast 
associated with the Pollution Incident giving rise to the Image Restoration. Event; and 
the Pollution Incident giving rise to the Image Restoration Expenses is reported to the 
Company, in writing, during the Policy Period and within fourteen (14) days of a 
Responsible Insured’s first discovery of such Image Restoration Event. 
Image Restoration Expenses are defined as reasonable and necessary public relations 
expenses to restore public reputation and consumer confidence.  Image Restoration 
Expenses shall include fees and expenses incurred by public relations or crisis 
management firms and reasonable and necessary printing, mailing of materials and 
travel by directors, officers, employees or agents of the Named Insured at the direction 
of such firms.  Image Restoration Expenses shall not include the costs to purchase 
advertising on television, in newspapers or in any other media. 

   
  Supplemental coverage for Contractors Pollution is included.  This coverage covers 

third-party claims arising out of “your work”, provided the claim is first made and 
reported during the policy period.  The Contractor’s Pollution must have commenced 
on or after 7/1/2022. 

   
  Supplemental coverage for Products Pollution and Exposure Liability is included.  This 

coverage covers third-party claims arising out of product pollution, provided the claim 
is first made and reported during the policy period.  The Products Pollution must have 
commenced on or after 7/1/2022. 

   
  Automatic Acquisition – Coverage for mid-term transactions for values that are less 

than $25,000,000 shall be added as a covered location, upon the closing date of such 
acquisition, or the effective date of such lease, management, rental or occupation 
right or obligation, respectively, for no additional premium. An application and 
notification of title or occupancy must be provided to Ironshore within 180 days. 
 
Property valued at more than $25,000,000 purchased, leased or otherwise acquired by 
the Insured needs to be reported to the Insurer within 180 days, along with a completed 
and signed Site Pollution Incident Legal Liability Select Application and shall be added 
as a covered location upon the closing date of such acquisition subject to an additional 
premium of $0.007164 per $1,000 of Total Insurable Values, pro-rated with a minimum 
premium of $450. There will be no additional premium for any Covered Property with 
Total Insurable Values which are less than $25,000,000.  

   
  Illicit Abandonment is included in the definition of pollution condition. 

 
Page 281 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 5 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

   
SPECIFIC COVERAGE 
PROVISIONS - 
CONTINUED: 

 Other Insurance Condition 
Any Loss covered under any other valid and collectible insurance, whether primary, 
excess, contingent, self-insurance, deductible or any other basis, including but not 
limited to the policies scheduled below and any renewals or replacements thereof; 
however, this insurance shall apply in excess of any such other valid and collectible 
insurance.  

   
  Mold matter and Legionella is included in the definition of Pollutant.  Mold matter is 

defined as mold, mildew and fungi, whether or not such microbial matter is living. 
   
  Wildfire is defined as any hostile fire, wildland fire, forest fire, brush fire, vegetation fire, 

grass fire, peat fire, bushfire, hill hire, desert fire, veldfire, escaped prescribed fire or 
escaped wildland fire. 

   
  Blanket Underground Storage Tank coverage included, with a deductible of $500,000 

for storage tanks less than twenty-five years old, and a deductible of $1,000,000 for 
storage tanks older than twenty-five years.  Note: Does not meet financial assurance 
requirements. 

   
  Loss covered pursuant to any state storage tank fund, state administered insurance 

program or restoration funding for any underground storage tank(s) whose owners 
qualify for reimbursement, or any self-insurance fund established for the purpose of 
funding clean-up costs for pollution conditions from any underground storage tank(s), 
shall be considered primary insurance, to which the coverage afforded pursuant to this 
policy shall apply in excess. 

 
Page 282 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 6 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

   
  Blanket Coverage included for Non-Owned Disposal Sites.  Includes any transfer, 

storage, treatment or disposal facilities which are used by the Insured, but not owned, 
operated or rented by the Insured, provided that the transfer, storage, treatment or 
disposal facility is not listed or proposed to be listed on the Federal National Priorities 
List, or any equivalent state or local list as of policy inception.   
The BKK Landfill located at 2210 South Azusa Avenue, West Covina, CA is specifically 
excluded from coverage. 
 
Sudden and Accidental Coverage Only (loss must be discovered within 7 days of 
commencement and reported no later than 21 days following the discovery, and within 
the policy period) applies for the following locations: 

1. Any location with current or historic use as an airport;  
2. MAPLE (SOUTH) - 519 ENTRANCE OFF POMONA CORONA CA 92880  
3. 1018 COTTONWOOD CORONA CA 92879  
4. 1200 TENTH ST. (WEST) CORONA CA 92882  
5. 102 LINCOLN (NORTH) CORONA CA 92882  
6. 1052 QUARRY CORONA CA 92879  
7. 34 CRESTRIDGE CORONA CA 92880  
8. 219 GRAND (WEST) CORONA CA 92882  
9. 25225 MAITRI RD. CORONA CA 92883  
10. 24650 GLEN IVY RD. CORONA CA 92883  
11. 405 SIERRA VISTA AVE. CORONA CA 92882  
12. 315 MERILL ST (SOUTH) CORONA CA 92882  
13. 310 VICENTIA (SOUTH) CORONA CA 92882  
14. 710 CORPORATION YARD WAY CORONA CA 92880  
15. 2581 MANGULAR CORONA CA 92882  
16. 202 BUENA VISTA AVE. (NORTH) CORONA CA 92882  
17. 240 BUENA VISTA AVE. CORONA CA 92882  
18. 211 BUENA VISTA AVE. (SOUTH) CORONA CA 92882  
19. 9865 GLEN IVY RD. CORONA CA 92883  
20. 917 CIRCLE CITY DR. CORONA CA 92879  
21. 219 JOY (SOUTH) CORONA CA 92879  
22. 505 VICENTIA (SOUTH) CORONA CA 92882  
23. 1865 POMONA RD CORONA CA 92880 

 
Page 283 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 7 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

EXCLUSIONS (including 
but not limited to): 

 Coverage does not apply to any claim or loss from: 
 Asbestos and Lead –  

o Any asbestos, asbestos containing materials, lead or lead-containing 
materials, including but not limited to lead-based paint, in, on, at, within or 
applied to any building, utility, structure or building material; this does not 
apply to third-party claims for bodily injury or property damage, or for 
remediation of any soil, groundwater body, surface water body or sediment;  

o Any asbestos, asbestos containing materials, lead or lead-containing 
materials, other metals, including but not limited to copper, or metal 
containing materials in, on or applied to any water supply or  collection 
equipment, system or infrastructure, including but not limited to water service 
lines; this does not apply to third-party claims for bodily injury or property 
damage, or for remediation of any groundwater body, surface water body or 
sediment; 

This exclusion also does not apply to remediation expenses solely incurred for the 
remediation of asbestos, asbestos-containing materials or lead-based paint which 
has been inadvertently displaced (not including any displacement associated with 
demolition, renovation or abatement) by an accident which occurs, in its entirety, 
during the policy period, and is reported to the Insurer within thirty (30 days of 
commencement.  Asbestos is fully excluded under Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability coverage. 

 Contractual Liability – This exclusion does not apply to liability that the Insured 
would have had in the absence of the contract or agreement or to liability 
assumed in an Insured Contract. 

 Criminal Punishments 
 Divested Property 
 Employer Liability – This exclusion applies whether the Insured may be liable as 

an employer or in any other capacity, and to any obligation to share damages 
with or repay someone else who must pay damages because of such Bodily 
Injury. 

 Insured’s Internal Expenses 
 Insured’s Non-Compliance 
 Insured vs. Insured 
 Insured’s Professional Services – any professional services performed or 

rendered on behalf of the Insured, including but not limited to, medical services, 
recommendations, opinions and strategies rendered for architectural, consulting 
and engineering work, such as drawings, designs, maps, reports, surveys, 
change orders, plan specifications, assessment work, remedy selections site 
maintenance and equipment selection, and supervisory, inspection or engineering 
service. 

 Material Change In Use – This exclusion shall not apply if the Insured submits 
prior written notice no less than thirty (30) days prior to such material change, and 
the Company approves such material change in an endorsement to this Policy 
issued within thirty (30) days of such notice. 

 Non-Disclosure 
 Prior Claims (prior to July 1, 2021) 
 Nuclear or Radiological Material 
 Property Damage to Conveyances 
 War 
 Workers Compensation, Unemployment, Social Security, Disability and Similar 

Laws 
 Airports – defined as any airport where enplanement occurs and/o cargo is 

moved for a fee and storage, transportation and the dispensing of fuel and/or de-
icing solution operations are conducted.  This exclusion shall not apply to 
passenger airports with less than 2,500 passenger boardings per year. 

 Oil and/or Gas Producing or Refining Facilities 
 Firing Ranges 

 
Page 284 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 8 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

 Activity Use Limitation 
EXCLUSIONS (including 
but not limited to, Cont.): 

  Landfill Closure, Post-Closure and Reclamation Costs 
 Landfill Material 
 Odor 
 Impoundments 
 Engineering Controls / Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Costs 
 Groundwater and Surface Water Monitoring Costs 
 Known Pollution Incidents (known prior to July 1, 2021) 
 COVID-19 
 Capital Improvement – Applies to any auto repair facility, airport, golf course, fuel 

depot, fuel storage, or removal, replacement, repair or upgrade of an 
underground storage tank. 

 Voluntary Site Investigation (any pollutant discovered during voluntary 
investigation is excluded at any auto repair facility, airport, golf course, fuel depot, 
or fuel storage only)  

 Expected or Intended Injury or Damage (Product Pollution and Covered 
Operations only) 

 Known Injury or Damage (Product Pollution and Covered Operations only) 
 Product Disposal (Product Pollution Only) 
 Products as Waste (Product Pollution Only) 
 Transportation (Product Pollution only) 
 Conveyance (Covered Operations only) 
 Business Interruption (Covered Operations Only) 
 Damage to Your Product (Product Pollution Only) 
 Damage to Property (Covered Operations Only) 
 Damage to Your Work (Covered Operations Only) 
 Waste Products, Treatment or Disposal (Covered Operations Only) 
 Any perfluoroalkyl or polyfluoroalkyl substance (PFAS), including but not limited 

to perfluoroalkyl acids (PFAAs), perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA), perfluorooctane 
sulfonate (PFOS), perfluoroheptanoic acid (PFHpA), perfluorononanoic acid 
(PFNA), perfluorohexanesulfonic acid (PFHxS), GenX, C8, ADONA, 
perfluoroalkane sulfonyl fluoride (PASF), perfluorobutanesulfonic acid (PFBS), 
polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE), perfluoropolyethers (PFPEs), fluoropolymers, 
perfluorononanoic acid, ammonium perfluorooctanoate, or any associated salts, 
acids, alcohols, precursor chemicals or related higher homologue chemicals.  
This also includes aqueous film forming foam (AFFF) containing PFAS (at any 
concentration) or any additives or component materials contained therein or 
degradation byproducts thereof. 

   
DEDUCTIBLE: $     250,000 

$     500,000 

 Each Pollution Incident After July 1, 2021 

Each Pollution Incident Prior to July 1, 2021 

   
 Any payments for covered loss paid by other insurance shall also be applied against the 

deductible amount. 
   
SPECIFIC 
DEDUCTIBLES: 

$     250,000 

$     250,000 

$     250,000 

$     250,000 

 

$     500,000 

$     500,000 

 

 

 

* 

Disinfection Event Expenses 

Products Pollution and Exposure Liability 

Covered Operations 

Mold Matter (*or $50,000 per room impacted, whichever is greater – a 
room is considered equal to 250 sq ft of floor space) 

Legionella 

Sewer Backup or Overcharge deductible 

  

 
Page 285 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 9 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

   
SPECIFIC 
DEDUCTIBLES, Cont.: 

$     500,000 

$  1,000,000 

 Underground Storage Tanks (less than 25 years old) 

Underground Storage Tanks (more than 25 years old) 

   

 
 
 
 

CLAIMS REPORTING NOTICE 

PLEASE NOTE THAT POLLUTION LIABILITY POLICIES CONTAIN EXTREMELY STRICT CLAIM REPORTING 
PROCEDURES.  Below please find your policy specific claim reporting requirements - Please make sure you 
understand these obligations.  Contact your Alliant Service Team with any questions. 

THIS IS A CLAIMS MADE POLICY 

This claims-made policy contains a requirement stating that this policy applies only to any claim first made 
against the Insured and reported to the insurer during the policy period or applicable extended reporting 
period.  Claims must be submitted to the insurer during the policy period, or applicable extended reporting 
period, as required pursuant to the Claims/Loss Notification Clause within the policy in order for coverage to 
apply.  Late reporting or failure to report pursuant to the policy’s requirements could result in a disclaimer of 
coverage by the insurer. 

 
LOSS REPORTING 
REQUIREMENTS: 
 

 
Written notice of any claim or pollution condition, within seven (7) days of discovery for 
pollution conditions requiring immediate emergency response.  Concurrently, please 
send to: 
 
1) Ironshore Environmental Claims CSO 
    28 Liberty Street, 5th Floor 

New York, NY 10005 Office 
By phone via: 24 Hour Claims Phone Number (888) 292-0249 
FAX to: 646-826-6601 
Email: USClaims@ironshore.com 

 
2) Akbar Sharif 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
1301 Dove Street, Suite 200 
Newport Beach, CA  92660 
949 260-5088 
949 756-2713 – fax 

    Akbar.Sharif@alliant.com  
 

 
NOTICE OF 
CANCELLATION: 

 
90 days except 10 days for non-payment of premium 

  
REINSTATEMENT 
PROVISIONS: 

Not Provided 

  
POLLUTION LIABILITY 
COST: 

Cost is included in Total Property Premium 
100% Earned Premium at Inception 

  
QUOTE VALID UNTIL: July 1, 2022 

  
BROKER: ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 

License No. 0C36861 
 

 
Page 286 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 11 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

Pollution Liability 
Policy Term 

July 1, 2021 to July 1,2022 July 1, 2022 to July 1,2023 

Retroactive Date 

 July 1, 2011 for Waste Disposal; 
 July 1, 2021 for Products Pollution and 

Exposure Liability; 
 July 1, 2021 for Contractor’s Pollution 
 July 1, 2021 for Mold Matter 
 July 1, 2011 Disinfection Event 
 
This coverage shall only apply if the Pollution 
Incident or Disinfection Event giving rise to the 
Claim, Loss, Business Interruption Expenses or 
Extra Expenses commenced, in its entirety, on 
or after July 1, 2011, or the date that the 
Insured first joined the Alliant Property 
Insurance Program (APIP) for environmental or 
pollution insurance coverage, whichever is 
later. 

 July 1, 2011 for Waste Disposal; 
 July 1, 2022 for Products Pollution and Exposure 

Liability; 
 July 1, 2022 for Contractor’s Pollution 
 July 1, 2021 for Mold Matter 
 July 1, 2011 Disinfection Event 
 
This coverage shall only apply if the Pollution Incident or 
Disinfection Event giving rise to the Claim, Loss, Business 
Interruption Expenses or Extra Expenses commenced, in 
its entirety, on or after July 1, 2011, or the date that the 
Insured first joined the Alliant Property Insurance Program 
(APIP) for environmental or pollution insurance coverage, 
whichever is later. 

A.M. Best Insurance 
Rating 

A, Excellent, Financial Category XV 
($2 Billion or greater) 
Effective June 26, 2020 

A, Excellent, Financial Category XV 
($2 Billion or greater) 
Effective June 29, 2021 

Sub-limits 

$     100,000 Disinfection Event Expenses 
Per Pollution Incident* 

$     100,000 
 

Disinfection Event Expenses 
Per Pollution Incident* 

$     100,000 Disinfection Event Expenses 
Coverage Aggregate* 

$     100,000 
 

Disinfection Event Expenses 
Coverage Aggregate* 

$     250,000 Image Restoration Expenses 
Per Pollution Incident* 

$     250,000 
 

Image Restoration Expenses 
Per Pollution Incident* 

$     250,000 Image Restoration Expenses 
Coverage Aggregate* 

$     250,000 
 

Image Restoration Expenses 
Coverage Aggregate* 

$     500,000 Mold Matter Aggregate Sub-
limit (K-12 Schools Only, per 
School)* 

N/A 

N/A $  2,000,000 
 

Lead or Lead Containing 
Materials Aggregate Sub-limit* 

$  1,000,000 Restoration Costs Aggregate 
(Mold Matter Only)* 

$  1,000,000 

 

Restoration Costs, Business 
Interruption and Extra 
Expense Aggregate (Mold 
Matter Only)* 

$  1,000,000 Legionella Per Pollution 
Incident* 

$  1,000,000 
 

Legionella Per Pollution 
Incident* 

$  2,000,000 Sewer Backup or Overcharge 
Per Pollution Incident* 

$  2,000,000 
 

Sewer Backup or Overcharge 
Per Pollution Incident* 

$     250,000 Any Punitive, Exemplary and 
Multiplied Damages and Civil 
Fines, Penalties and 
Assessments Fines* 

$     250,000 

 

Any Punitive, Exemplary and 
Multiplied Damages and Civil 
Fines, Penalties and 
Assessments Fines* 

 
Page 287 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 12 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

$  2,000,000 Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability Per Pollution 
Incident* 

$  2,000,000 

 

Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability Per 
Pollution Incident* 

Sub-limits 
(Continued) 

$  5,000,000 Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability Aggregate* 

$  5,000,000 
 

Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability Aggregate* 

$  1,000,000 Contractor’s Pollution Per 
Pollution Incident - Herbicide, 
Insecticide, Pesticide 
Applications Only* 

$  1,000,000 

 

Contractor’s Pollution Per 
Pollution Incident - Herbicide, 
Insecticide, Pesticide 
Applications Only* 

$  2,000,000 Contractor’s Pollution Per 
Pollution Incident - All other 
Operations* 

$  2,000,000 

 

Contractor’s Pollution Per 
Pollution Incident - All other 
Operations* 

$  5,000,000 Contractors Pollution 
Aggregate* 

$  5,000,000 
 

Contractors Pollution 
Aggregate* 

N/A $  1,000,000 
 

Wildfire Per Pollution Incident* 

N/A $  5,000,000 
 

Wildfire Aggregate Sublimit* 

*Note: the above sub-limits payable under this 
coverage do not increase and are not in 
addition to the applicable limit of liability. 

*Note: the above sub-limits payable under this coverage 
do not increase and are not in addition to the applicable 
limit of liability. 

Coverages 

Coverage A.1 – Onsite Pollution: 
Coverage for Remediation Expenses incurred 
exclusively for remediation of Pollutants that 
are on or under a Covered Property, provided 
such Remediation Expenses arise from Onsite 
Pollution and result from New Conditions. 

Coverage A.1 – Onsite Pollution: 
Coverage for Remediation Expenses incurred exclusively 
for remediation of Pollutants that are on, at or under a 
Covered Property, provided such Remediation Expenses 
are incurred to address Onsite Pollution and directly result 
from New Conditions. 

Coverage A.2 – OffSite Pollution: 
Coverage for Remediation Expenses incurred 
exclusively for remediation of Pollutants that 
are beyond the boundaries of the Covered 
Property, provided such Remediation Expenses 
arise from Offsite Pollution and result from New 
Conditions. 

Coverage A.2 – OffSite Pollution: 
Coverage for Remediation Expenses incurred exclusively 
for remediation of Pollutants that are beyond the 
boundaries of the Covered Property, provided such 
Remediation Expenses are incurred to address Offsite 
Pollution and result from New Conditions. 

Coverage B – Emergency Response Expenses 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Emergency 
Response Expenses incurred by or on behalf of 
the Insured in response to an imminent and 
substantial threat to human health or the 
environment. The Emergency Response 
Expenses must: (i) arise from a Pollution 
Incident that first commenced during the Policy 
Period; (ii) be incurred within seven (7) days of 
the commencement of such Pollution Incident; 
and (iii) be reported to the Company within 
fourteen (14) days of the commencement of 
such Pollution Incident. For this Coverage to 
apply, the Pollution Incident giving rise to the 
Emergency Response Expenses must be 
unexpected and unintended from the standpoint 
of the Insured. 

Coverage B – Emergency Response Expenses 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Emergency Response 
Expenses incurred by or on behalf of the Insured in 
response to an imminent and substantial threat to human 
health or the environment resulting from a Pollution 
Incident on, at , under or migrating from a Covered 
Property or arising from Transportation that commences, 
in its entirety, during the policy period. The Emergency 
Response Expenses must: (i) be incurred within seven (7) 
days of the commencement of such Pollution Incident; 
and (ii) be reported to the Insurer within fourteen (14) 
days of such commencement. For this Coverage to apply, 
the Pollution Incident giving rise to the Emergency 
Response Expenses must be unexpected and unintended 
from the standpoint of the Insured. 

 
Page 288 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 13 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

Coverages 
(Continued) 

Coverage D – Transportation 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Loss that the 
Insured becomes legally obligated to pay as a 
result of Claims for Bodily Injury, Property 
Damage or Remediation Expenses resulting 
from New Conditions, which arise from 
Transportation, provided such Claims are first 
made against the Insured and reported to the 
Company in writing during the Policy Period. 

Coverage D – Transportation 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Loss that the Insured 
becomes legally obligated to pay as a result of Claims for 
Bodily Injury, Property Damage or Remediation Expenses 
directly resulting from New Conditions, which arise from 
Transportation, provided such Claims are first made 
against the Insured and reported to the Company in writing 
during the Policy Period. 

Coverage E – Waste Disposal Activities: 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Loss that the 
Insured becomes legally obligated to pay as a 
result of Claims for Bodily Injury, Property 
Damage or Remediation Expenses that arise 
from a Pollution Incident resulting from Waste 
Disposal Activities. The Waste Disposal 
Activities must take place on or after the Waste 
Disposal Retroactive Date set forth in Item 10. 
of the Declarations, or the date that the Insured 
first began operations if no Waste Disposal 
Retroactive Date is indicated in the 
Declarations. This Coverage shall apply only if 
such Claims are first made against the Insured 
and reported to the Company in writing during 
the Policy Period, or during the Extended 
Reporting Period if applicable. 

Coverage E – Waste Disposal Activities: 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Loss that the Insured 
becomes legally obligated to pay as a result of Claims for 
Bodily Injury, Property Damage or Remediation Expenses 
directly resulting from a Pollution Incident resulting from 
Waste Disposal Activities. The Waste Disposal Activities 
must take place on or after the Waste Disposal 
Retroactive Date set forth in the Declarations, or the date 
that the Insured first began operations if no Waste 
Disposal Retroactive Date is indicated in the Declarations. 
This Coverage shall apply only if such Claims are first 
made against the Insured and reported to the Company in 
writing during the Policy Period, or during the Extended 
Reporting Period if applicable. 

Coverage F – Business Interruption: 
To pay the Insured’s Business Interruption 
Expenses and Extra Expenses during the Period 
of Interruption that directly results from Onsite 
Pollution resulting from New Conditions. 
This Coverage shall apply only if the Pollution 
Incident giving rise to the Business Interruption 
Expenses or Extra Expenses is first discovered 
by the Insured and reported to the Company 
during the Policy Period, and such Pollution 
Incident results in Remediation Expenses 
covered under this Policy. Discovery of a 
Pollution Incident happens when a Responsible 
Insured first becomes aware of the Pollution 
Incident. Further, if the Period of Interruption 
results from a Pollution Incident and any other 
cause(s), the Company shall only pay that 
portion of Business Interruption Expenses and 
Extra Expenses solely attributable to the 
Pollution Incident. 

Coverage F – Business Interruption: 
To pay the Insured’s Business Interruption Expenses and 
Extra Expenses during the Period of Interruption that 
directly results from Onsite Pollution arising from New 
Conditions. 
This Coverage shall apply only if the Pollution Incident 
giving rise to the Business Interruption Expenses or Extra 
Expenses is first discovered by the Insured and reported 
to the Company, in writing, during the Policy Period, and 
such Pollution Incident results in Remediation Expenses 
covered under this Policy. Discovery of a Pollution 
Incident happens when a Responsible Insured first 
becomes aware of the Pollution Incident. Further, if the 
Period of Interruption results from a Pollution Incident and 
any other cause(s), the Company shall only pay that 
portion of Business Interruption Expenses and Extra 
Expenses solely attributable to the Pollution Incident. 

 
Page 289 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 14 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

Coverages 
(Continued) 

Covered but not Previously Listed  
(wording was under review) 

Coverage G – Coverage for Disinfection Event Expenses 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Disinfection Expenses that 
directly result from a Disinfection Event at a Covered 
Property, provided that the Disinfection Event commences, 
in its entirety, during the Policy Period; such Disinfection 
Expenses are incurred within thirty (30) days of the first 
discovery of such Disinfection Event by a 
Responsible Insured; and the Insured reports the 
Disinfection Event to the Company, in writing, during the 
Policy Period and within fourteen (14) days of a 
Responsible Insured’s first discovery of such Disinfection 
Event. 
Disinfection Expenses means reasonable fees and costs 
incurred by the Insured to retain third party qualified 
vendors to disinfect the actual presence of bacteria or 
virus at a Covered Property after a Disinfection Event.   

Supplemental coverage for Contractors 
Pollution is included.  This coverage covers 
third-party claims arising out of “your work”, 
provided the claim is first made and reported 
during the policy period.  The Contractor’s 
Pollution must have commenced on or after 
7/1/2021. 

Supplemental coverage for Contractors Pollution is 
included.  This coverage covers third-party claims arising 
out of “your work”, provided the claim is first made and 
reported during the policy period.  The Contractor’s 
Pollution must have commenced on or after 7/1/2022. 

Supplemental coverage for Products Pollution 
and Exposure Liability is included.  This 
coverage covers third-party claims arising out 
of product pollution, provided the claim is first 
made and reported during the policy period.  
The Products Pollution must have commenced 
on or after 7/1/2021. 

Supplemental coverage for Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability is included.  This coverage covers third-
party claims arising out of product pollution, provided the 
claim is first made and reported during the policy period.  
The Products Pollution must have commenced on or after 
7/1/2022. 

Coverage for Image Restoration Expenses 
included, including fees and expenses incurred 
by public relations or crisis management firms 
and reasonable and necessary printing, mailing 
of materials and travel by directors, officers, 
employees or agents of the named insured at 
the direction of such a firm.  Image Restoration 
Expenses shall not include the costs to 
purchase advertising on television, in 
newspapers or in any other media with the prior 
written consent of the Insurer. 

Coverage H – Coverage for Image Restoration Expenses  
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Image Restoration 
Expenses that directly result from an Image Restoration 
Event, provided that the Pollution Incident giving rise to the 
Image Restoration Event is on, at, under or migrating from 
a Covered Property or results from Transportation or 
Waste Disposal Activities; the Pollution Incident giving 
rise to the Image Restoration Expenses commenced, in its 
entirety, during the Policy Period; such Image Restoration 
Expenses are incurred by the Insured within fourteen (14) 
days of the first newspaper or magazine publication or 
television news broadcast associated with the Pollution 
Incident giving rise to the Image Restoration. Event; and 
the Pollution Incident giving rise to the Image Restoration 
Expenses is reported to the Company, in writing, during the 
Policy Period and within fourteen (14) days of a 
Responsible Insured’s first discovery of such Image 
Restoration Event. 
Image Restoration Expenses are defined as reasonable 
and necessary public relations expenses to restore public 
reputation and consumer confidence.  Image Restoration 
Expenses shall include fees and expenses incurred by 
public relations or crisis management firms and reasonable 
and necessary printing, mailing of materials and travel by 
directors, officers, employees or agents of the Named 
Insured at the direction of such firms.  Image Restoration 
Expenses shall not include the costs to purchase 
advertising on television, in newspapers or in any other 
media. 

 
Page 290 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 15 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

Coverages 
(Continued) 

Automatic Acquisition – Coverage for mid-term 
transactions for values that are less than 
$25,000,000 shall be added as a covered 
location, upon the closing date of such 
acquisition, or the effective date of such lease, 
management, rental or occupation right or 
obligation, respectively, for no additional 
premium. An application and notification of title 
or occupancy must be provided to Ironshore 
within 180 days. 
 
Property valued at more than $25,000,000 
purchased, leased or otherwise acquired by the 
Insured needs to be reported to the Insurer 
within 180 days, along with a completed and 
signed Site Pollution Incident Legal Liability 
Select Application and shall be added as a 
covered location upon the closing date of such 
acquisition subject to an additional premium of 
$0.0006832 per $100 of Total Insurable Values, 
pro-rated with a minimum premium of $425. 
There will be no additional premium for any 
Covered Property with Total Insurable Values 
which are less than $25,000,000. 

Automatic Acquisition – Coverage for mid-term 
transactions for values that are less than $25,000,000 
shall be added as a covered location, upon the closing 
date of such acquisition, or the effective date of such 
lease, management, rental or occupation right or 
obligation, respectively, for no additional premium. An 
application and notification of title or occupancy must be 
provided to Ironshore within 180 days. 
 
Property valued at more than $25,000,000 purchased, 
leased or otherwise acquired by the Insured needs to be 
reported to the Insurer within 180 days, along with a 
completed and signed Site Pollution Incident Legal 
Liability Select Application and shall be added as a 
covered location upon the closing date of such acquisition 
subject to an additional premium of $0.007164 per $1,000 
of Total Insurable Values, pro-rated with a minimum 
premium of $450. There will be no additional premium for 
any Covered Property with Total Insurable Values which 
are less than $25,000,000. 

Blanket Underground Storage Tank coverage 
included, with a deductible of $750,000 for 
storage tanks less than twenty-five years old, 
and a deductible of $1,000,000 for storage 
tanks older than twenty-five years.  Note: Does 
not meet financial assurance requirements. 

Blanket Underground Storage Tank coverage included, 
with a deductible of $500,000 for storage tanks less than 
twenty-five years old, and a deductible of $1,000,000 for 
storage tanks older than twenty-five years.  Note: Does 
not meet financial assurance requirements. 

N/A 

Wildfire is defined as any hostile fire, wildland fire, forest 
fire, brush fire, vegetation fire, grass fire, peat fire, 
bushfire, hill hire, desert fire, veldfire, escaped prescribed 
fire or escaped wildland fire. 

 
Page 291 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 16 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

Exclusions 

Asbestos and Lead Based Paint – Any 
asbestos, asbestos containing materials or 
lead-based paint in, on, or applied to any 
building or other structure. This exclusion does 
not apply to Third-Party Claims, or to 
Remediation Expenses for the remediation of 
soil, surface water or groundwater, or for the 
remediation of asbestos, asbestos containing 
materials or lead based paint which has been 
inadvertently displaced by an accident which 
occurs, in its entirety, during the policy period. 
Lead in water is excluded.  

Asbestos and Lead –  
o Any asbestos, asbestos containing materials, 

lead or lead-containing materials, including but 
not limited to lead-based paint, in, on, at, within 
or applied to any building, utility, structure or 
building material; this does not apply to third-
party claims for bodily injury or property damage, 
or for remediation of any soil, groundwater body, 
surface water body or sediment;  

o Any asbestos, asbestos containing materials, 
lead or lead-containing materials, other metals, 
including but not limited to copper, or metal 
containing materials in, on or applied to any 
water supply or  collection equipment, system or 
infrastructure, including but not limited to water 
service lines; this does not apply to third-party 
claims for bodily injury or property damage, or for 
remediation of any groundwater body, surface 
water body or sediment; 

This exclusion also does not apply to remediation 
expenses solely incurred for the remediation of asbestos, 
asbestos-containing materials or lead-based paint which 
has been inadvertently displaced (not including any 
displacement associated with demolition, renovation or 
abatement) by an accident which occurs, in its entirety, 
during the policy period, and is reported to the Insurer 
within thirty (30 days of commencement.  Asbestos is fully 
excluded under Products Pollution and Exposure Liability 
coverage. 

Not Excluded Divested Property 

Not Excluded 

Insured’s Professional Services – any professional 
services performed or rendered on behalf of the Insured, 
including but not limited to, medical services, 
recommendations, opinions and strategies rendered for 
architectural, consulting and engineering work, such as 
drawings, designs, maps, reports, surveys, change 
orders, plan specifications, assessment work, remedy 
selections site maintenance and equipment selection, and 
supervisory, inspection or engineering service. 

Prior Claims Prior Claims (Prior to July 1, 2021) 

Airports, Landfills and/or Recycling Facilities, 
Oil and/or Gas Producing or Refining Facilities 

Airports – defined as any airport where enplanement 
occurs and/o cargo is moved for a fee and storage, 
transportation and the dispensing of fuel and/or de-icing 
solution operations are conducted.  This exclusion shall 
not apply to passenger airports with less than 2,500 
passenger boardings per year. 

Oil and/or Gas Producing or Refining Facilities 

Not Excluded Landfill Material 

 
Page 292 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 17 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

Capital Improvement- Applies to any auto repair 
facility, airport, golf course, fuel depot, fuel 
storage, shooting ranges, or removal, 
replacement, repair or upgrade of an 
underground storage tank. 

Capital Improvement – Applies to any auto repair facility, 
airport, golf course, fuel depot, fuel storage, or removal, 
replacement, repair or upgrade of an underground 
storage tank. 

Exclusions 
(Continued) 

Voluntary Site Investigation (any pollutant 
discovered during voluntary investigation is 
excluded at any auto repair facility, airport, golf 
course, fuel depot, fuel storage, shooting ranges 
only)  

Voluntary Site Investigation (any pollutant discovered 
during voluntary investigation is excluded at any auto 
repair facility, airport, golf course, fuel depot, or fuel storage 
only)  

Transportation (Product Pollution and Covered 
Operations only) 

Transportation (Product Pollution only) 

Deductible 

$250,000 Each Pollution Incident After 
July 1, 2021 

$     250,000  Each Pollution Incident After 
July 1, 2021 

$500,000 Each Pollution Incident Prior to 
July 1, 2021 

$     500,000 

 

 Each Pollution Incident Prior to 
July 1, 2021 

$500,000 Sewage Backup and 
Overcharge 

$  500,000  Sewage Backup and 
Overcharge 

Specific Deductibles 

$250,000 Disinfection Event Expenses $     250,000  Disinfection Event Expenses 

$250,000 Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability 

$     250,000  Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability 

$250,000 Covered Operations $     250,000  Covered Operations 

Specific Deductibles 
(Continued) 

$250,000* Mold Matter (*or $50,000 per 
room impacted, whichever is 
greater – a room is considered 
equal to 250 sq ft of floor space) 

$     250,000 * Mold Matter (*or $50,000 per 
room impacted, whichever is 
greater – a room is considered 
equal to 250 sq ft of floor 
space) 

$250,000 Legionella $     500,000  Legionella 

$500,000 Sewer Backup or Overcharge 
deductible 

$     500,000  Sewer Backup or Overcharge 
deductible 

$750,000 Underground Storage Tanks 
(less than 25 years old) 

$     500,000  Underground Storage Tanks 
(less than 25 years old) 

$1,000,000 Underground Storage Tanks 
(more than 25 years old) 

$  1,000,000  Underground Storage Tanks 
(more than 25 years old) 

Quote Valid Until July 1, 2021 July 1, 2022 

 
Page 293 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 18 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

 

 

NOTES: 

• Some coverage, limits, sub-limits, terms and conditions will change, as negotiations are 
ongoing.  Changes will be documented and accompany the Binder Confirmation for July 1, 
2022 bound terms. 

• Major pending and approved changes to the APIP Program are described in the Executive 
Summary for renewing insureds. 

• This indication is based on the current loss experience and is subject to change if this 
insured’s 

loss ratio deteriorates further and/or if the markets suffer a catastrophic event 

• Coverage outlined in this Summary is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the 
policy. 

• Please refer to Policy for specific terms, conditions and exclusions – not yet finalized. 

• Change in Total Insurable Values and loss experience will result in adjustment in premium 

 

 
Page 294 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 2 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 
COVERAGES & 

LIMITS: 
Ai. $ 45,000,000 Annual Policy and Program Aggregate Limit of Liability 

(subject to policy exclusions) for all Insureds/Members 
combined (Aggregate for all coverages combined, including 
Claims Expenses), subject to the following limits and sub-limits 
as noted.  

 
 Aii. $ 40,000,000 JPA/Pool Annual Aggregate Limit of Liability, (subject to 

policy exclusions) for each JPA/Pool, within the Annual Policy 
and Program Aggregate Limit of Liability (Aggregate for all 
coverages combined, including Claim Expenses) subject to 
the following limits and sub-limits as noted 

   
 Aiii. $ 2,000,000 Insured/Member Annual Aggregate Limit of Liability 

(subject to policy exclusions) for each Insured/Member, within 
the Annual Policy and Program Aggregate Limit of Liability 
and JPA/Pool Annnual Aggregate Limit of Liability (Aggregate 
for all coverages combined, including Claim Expenses) 
subject to the following limits and sub-limits as noted. 

BREACH RESPONSE 

Breach Response 
Costs: 

  
 
 
$ 500,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member (Limit 

is increased to $1,000,000 if Beazley Nominated Services 
Providers are used) 

FIRST PARTY LOSS 

Business Interruption 
and Dependent 
Business Interruption 
Aggregate Sublimit 

Business Interruption 
Loss Resulting from 

Security Breach: 

  
Business Interruption 

Loss Resulting from 
System Failure: 

  
 
 
$ 750,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  
 
 
 
 
 
$ 750,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 

(Within the $750,000 Business Interruption and Dependent 
Business Interruption Aggregate Sublimit) 

 
$ 500,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 

(Within the $750,000 Business Interruption and Dependent 
Business Interruption Aggregate Sublimit) 

   

Syndicates 2623 - 623   - 100% 
Liberty Surplus Insurance Corporation (Ironshore) 
Associated Industries Insurance Company, Inc. (AmTrust Financial) 

 
Page 295 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 3 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Dependent Business 
Loss Resulting from 

Security Breach: 
 

Dependent Business 
Loss Resulting from 

System Failure: 
 
 

Cyber Extortion Loss: 
 
 

Data Recovery Costs: 
 

 $ 750,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 
                                     (Within the $750,000 Business Interruption and Dependent 

Business Interruption Aggregate Sublimit)  
 
$ 100,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 

(Within the $750,000 Business Interruption and Dependent 
Business Interruption Aggregate Sublimit) 

 
 
$ 750,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  
 
 
$ 750,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  

Data & Network 
Liability: 

Regulatory Defense & 
Penalties:  

  
$ 2,000,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member for all 

Damages and Claims Expenses  
 
$ 2,000,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  

   
Payment Card 

Liabilities & Costs: 
 

Media Liability: 

 $ 2,000,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  
 
 
$ 2,000,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member for all 

Damages and Claims Expenses  

eCRIME 

Fraudulent Instruction: 

Funds Transfer Fraud: 

Telephone Fraud: 

  
 
 
$ 75,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  
 
$ 75,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 
  
$ 75,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  

CRIMINAL REWARD 

Criminal Reward: 

  
 
 
$ 25,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  

COVERAGE 
ENDORSEMENT(S) 

Reputation Loss: 

Claims Preparation 
Costs for Reputation 

Loss Claims Only: 

  
 
 
 
$ 100,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  
 
$                     50,000   Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 

 
Page 296 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 4 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Computer Hardware 
Replacement Costs: 

Invoice Manipulation: 

Cryptojacking: 

  
$ 100,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  
 
 
$ 100,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 
 
$                    25,000   Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 
 

 
RETENTION: 

  
$ TBD CSU Auxiliary Organizations only  
$ 50,000 Per Claim for each Member/Insured with Total Insured Value 

(TIV) up to $250,000,000 at the time of policy inception 
 8 Hour waiting period for Dependent/Business Interruption Loss 
$ 100,000 Per Claim for each Member/Insured with Total Insured Value 

(TIV) greater than $250,000,000 and up to $750,000,000 at 
the time of policy inception 

 8 Hour waiting period for Dependent/Business Interruption Loss  
$ 250,000 Per Claim for each Member/Insured with Total Insured Value 

(TIV) greater than $750,000,000 at the time of policy inception 
                               8  Hour waiting period for Dependent/Business Interruption Loss 

   

NOTICES: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Policy coverage of this policy provides coverage on a claims made and reported 
basis; except as otherwise provided, coverage under noted coverage schedule 
applies only to claims first made against the Insured/Member and reported to 
underwriters during the policy period. Claims expenses shall reduce the applicable 
limit of liability and are subject to the applicable retention.  
 
This is a shared limit policy among the Named Insureds.  The per 
Insured/Member policy limits are on a per claim or incident for each 
Insured/Member basis, sub-limits listed are aggregated per Insured/Member and 
are within the total Insured/Member aggregate limit. In the event of a 
claim/incident with multiple Insureds/Members exhausting the program 
aggregate limit provided by the Insurer to Insureds/Members, payment to all 
Insureds/Members for the claim/incident will be determined by the 
Insurer.  Where coverages are aggregated, sub-limit and limits apply to all 
Insureds/Members for the entire Policy Period unless specifically stated 
otherwise.  The policy aggregate limit is not a per Insured/Member maximum 
limit. 

 
EXTENDED 
REPORTING PERIOD: 

  
For Named Insured - To be determined at the time of election (additional premium will 
apply)  
 

 
SPECIFIC COVERAGE 
PROVISIONS: 

 
A. 

 
Breach Response indemnifies the Insured/Member for Breach Response Costs 
incurred by the Insured/Member because of an actual or reasonably suspected Data 
Breach or Security Breach that the Insured first discovers during the Policy Period. 

 
Page 297 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 5 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

  
B. 

 
First Party Loss  
 
Business Interruption Loss indemnifies the Insured/Member for a Business 
Interruption Loss sustained as a result of a Security Breach or System Failure that the 
Insured first discovers during the Policy Period. 
 
Dependent Business Interruption Loss indemnifies the Insured/Member for a 
Dependent Business Interruption Loss sustained as a result of a Security Breach or a 
System Failure that the Insured first discover during the Policy Period. 
 
Cyber Extortion Loss indemnifies the Insured/Member for a Cyber Extortion Loss 
incurred as a result of an Extortion Threat first made against the Insured/Member 
during the Policy Period. 
 
Data Recovery Costs indemnifies the Insured/Member for Data Recovery Costs 
incurred as a direct result of a Security Breach or System Failure that the Insured first 
discovers during the Policy Period. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

C. 
 
 
 
 

Liability 
Data & Network Liability pays Damages and Claims Expenses, which the Insured is 
legally obligated to pay because of any Claim first made against any Insured during 
the Policy Period for a Data Breach, a Security Breach, the Insured’s failure to disclose 
a Data Breach or Security Breach, or failure of the Insured to comply with the part of 
a Privacy Policy that specifically is related to disclosure, access or procedures related 
to Personally Identifiable Information. 
 
Regulatory Defense & Penalties pays Penalties and Claims Expenses, which the 
Insured is legally obligated to pay because of a Regulatory Proceeding first made 
against any Insured during the Policy Period for a Data Breach or a Security Breach. 
 
Payment Card Liabilities & Costs indemnifies the Insured/Member for PCI Fines, 
Expenses and Costs which it is legally obligated to pay because of a Claim first made 
against any Insured during the Policy Period. 
 
Media Liability pays Damages and Claims Expenses, which the Insured is legally 
obligated to pay because of any Claim first made against any Insured during the Policy 
Period for electronic Media Liability. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Coverage 
Endorsement(s) 
 

D. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E. 

eCrime indemnifies the Insured/Member for any direct financial loss sustained 
resulting from: 

 Fraudulent Instruction 
 Funds Transfer Fraud 
 Telephone Fraud 

That the Insured first discovers during the Policy Period. 
 
Criminal Reward indemnifies the Insured/Member for Criminal Reward Funds. 
 
 
Reputational Loss indemnifies the Insured Organization for Reputation Loss that the 
Insured Organization sustains solely as a result of an Adverse Media Event that 
occurs during the Policy Period, concerning: a Data Breach, Security Breach, or 
Extortion Threat that the Insured first discovers during the Policy Period 
 
Computer Hardware Replacement Costs is part of the Extra Expense coverage. 
Extra Expense means reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the Insured 
Organization during the Period of Restoration to minimize, reduce or avoid Income 
Loss, over and above those expenses the Insured Organization would have incurred 
had no Security Breach, System Failure, Dependent Security Breach or Dependent 
System Failure occurred; and includes reasonable and necessary expenses incurred 

 
Page 298 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 6 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

by the Insured Organization to replace computers or any associated devices or 
equipment operated by, and either owned by or leased to, the Insured Organization 
that are unable to function as intended due to corruption or destruction of software or 
firmware directly resulting from a Security Breach 
 
Invoice Manipulation indemnifies the Insured Organization for Direct Net Loss 
resulting directly from the Insured Organization’s inability to collect Payment for any 
goods, products or services after such goods, products or services have been 
transferred to a third party, as a result of Invoice Manipulation that the Insured first 
discovers during the Policy Period.  Invoice Manipulation means the release or 
distribution of any fraudulent invoice or fraudulent payment instruction to a third party 
as a direct result of a Security Breach or a Data Breach. 
 
Cryptojacking indemnifies the Insured Organization for any direct financial loss 
sustained resulting from Cryptojacking that the Insured first discovers during the Policy 
Period. Cryptojacking means the Unauthorized Access or Use of Computer Systems 
to mine for Digital Currency that directly results in additional costs incurred by the 
Insured Organization for electricity, natural gas, oil, or internet.  

   

 
Page 299 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 7 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

EXCLUSIONS:  
(Including but not  
limited to) 

 
 
  

Coverage does not apply to any claim or loss from: 
 Bodily Injury or Property Damage 
 Trade Practices and Antitrust 
 Gathering or Distribution of Information 
 Prior Known Acts & Prior Noticed Claims 
 Racketeering, Benefit Plans, Employment Liability & Discrimination 
 Sale or Ownership of Securities & Violation of Securities Laws 
 Criminal, Intentional of Fraudulent Acts 
 Patent, Software Copyright, Misappropriation of Information 
 Governmental Actions 
 Other Insureds & Related Enterprises 
 Trading Losses, Loss of Money & Discounts 
 Media-Related Exposures – Contractual liability or obligation 
 Nuclear Incident 
 Radioactive Contamination 
 Sanctions Limitation 
 War and Civil War  
 Asbestos, Pollution and Contamination              
 First Party Loss – with respects: 1. seizure, nationalization, confiscation, or 

destruction of property or data by order of any governmental or public authority; 
2. costs or expenses incurred by the Insured to identify or remediate software 
program errors or vulnerabilities or update, replace, restore, assemble, 
reproduce, recollect or enhance data or Computer Systems to a level beyond 
that which existed prior to a Security Breach, System Failure, Dependent Security 
Breach, Dependent System Failure or Extortion Threat; 3. failure or malfunction 
of satellites or of power, utility, mechanical or telecommunications (including 
internet) infrastructure or services that are not under the Insured Organization’s 
direct operational control; or 4. fire, flood, earthquake, volcanic eruption, 
explosion, lightning, wind, hail, tidal wave, landslide, act of God or other physical 
event. 

   
 
NOTICE OF CLAIM: 

 
 IMMEDIATE NOTICE  must be made to Beazley NY of all potential claims and 

circumstances (assistance, and cooperation clause applies) 
 Claim notification under this policy is to: 

Beazley Group 
Attn:  TMB Claims Group 
1270 Avenue of the Americas 
New York, NY 10020 

            bbr.claims@beazley.com 
 

 
 
NOTICE OF 
CANCELLATION: 

 
 
10 days for non-payment of premium 

 
CYBER COST: 

 
Cost is included in Total Property Premium 
 

OTHER SERVICES Unlimited Access to Beazley Breach Solutions website 
  

  BROKER:   ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 

  License No. 0C36861 

 
 
 

 
Page 300 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 8 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 
SUMMARY OF CYBER INSURANCE PROPOSED CHANGES 

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PROPOSED CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 
 

Coverage 2021-2022 
2022-2023 Proposed 

Changes  
Status 

Beazley Breach 
Response Endorsement 

Coverage not offered to NEW 
Members 

Coverage offered to NEW 
Members – Underwriting 

required 
Change in Availability 

Business Interruption and 
Dependent Business 
Interruption Aggregate 
Sublimit 

Did not have a Business 
Interruption and Dependent 

Business Interruption Aggregate 
Sublimit 

Addition of a Business 
Interruption and Dependent 

Business Interruption 
Aggregate Sublimit  

Decrease in Aggregate 
Sublimit 

Policy Aggregate Limit $40,000,000 $45,000,000 
Increase in Policy 
Aggregate Limit 

JPA/Pool Aggregate Limit 
$40,000,000 (Within the Policy 

Aggregate Limit) 
$40,000,000 (Within the 
Policy Aggregate Limit) 

Language Revision 

 
  
NOTES: 

• Some coverage, limits, sub-limits, terms and conditions will change, as negotiations are 
ongoing.  Changes will be documented and accompany the Binder Confirmation for July 1, 2022 
bound terms. 

• Major pending and approved changes to the APIP Program are described in the Executive 
Summary for renewing insureds. 

• This indication is based on the current loss experience and is subject to change if this insured’s 

loss ratio deteriorates further and/or if the markets suffer a catastrophic event 

• Coverage outlined in this Summary is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the policy. 

• Please refer to Policy for specific terms, conditions and exclusions – not yet finalized. 

• Change in Total Insurable Values and loss experience will result in adjustment in premium 

 

 
Page 301 of 526



 

  
Alliant Property Insurance Program  

2022-2023 Policy Year  
Schedule of Insurers (Proposed) 

 

Company A.M. Best's I.D. # A.M. Best's Guide Rating Standard and Poor's State of California 
 

Page 1 of 2                                                                                                             As of May 08, 2022 

Arch Specialty Insurance  
Company  

012523 A+, Superior; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 to greater 
(As of 12/10/21) 

A+ 
(As of 03/26/20) 

Non-Admitted 

     
Chubb Bermuda 
Insurance Ltd.  

086361 
 

A++ (Superior); 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or Greater 
(As of 12/10/21) 

AA 
(As of 06/24/16) 

Non-Admitted 

     
Convex Insurance UK 
Limited 

071499 A-, Excellent; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or greater 
 (As of 04/22/21) 

A- 
(As of 05/29/20) 

Non-Admitted 

     
Endurance Worldwide 
Insurance Limited 

083234 A+, Superior; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or greater 
(As of 09/02/21) 

A+ 
(As of 04/26/18) 

Non-Admitted 

     
Evanston Insurance Co.  
 

003759 A, Excellent; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or Greater 
(As of 09/15/21) 

A 
(As of 07/27/17) 
 

Non-Admitted 

     
Fidelis Underwriting 
Limited 

093764 A, Excellent; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or greater 
 (As of 07/16/21) 

A- 
(As of 07/29/21) 

Non-Admitted 

     
International General 
Insurance Co. 

091476 
 

A (Excellent) 
Financial Size Category 9; 
$250,000,000 to $500,000,000 
(As of 11/05/21) 

A- 
(As of 06/08/15) 

Non-Admitted 

     
Ironshore Specialty 
Insurance Company 

013866 A, Excellent; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or greater 
(As of 06/29/21) 

A 
(As of 05/02/17) 

Non-Admitted 

     
Lancashire Insurance 
Company (UK) Ltd. 

078390 A, Excellent; 
Financial Size Category 13; 
$1,250,000,000 to $1,500,000,000 
(As of 10/07/21) 

A- 
(As of 02/28/18) 

Non-Admitted 

     
Landmark American 
Insurance Co. 
 

012619 A+, Superior; 
Financial Size Category 14; 
$1,500,000,000 to $2,000,000,000 
(As of 11/17/21) 

A+ 
(As of 03/22/22) 

Non-Admitted 

     
Lexington Insurance 
Company 

002350 A, Excellent; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or Greater 
(As of 10/07/21) 

A+ 
(As of 03/29/22) 

Non-Admitted 

     
Lloyd’s of London 085202 

 
A, Excellent; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or Greater 
(As of 07/21/21) 

A+ 
(As of 06/14/19) 

Non-Admitted 

     

 
Page 302 of 526



 

  
Alliant Property Insurance Program  

2022-2023 Policy Year  
Schedule of Insurers (Proposed) 

 

Company A.M. Best's I.D. # A.M. Best's Guide Rating Standard and Poor's State of California 
 

Page 2 of 2                                                                                                             As of May 08, 2022 

Munich Reinsurance 
Company 

085770 A+ (Superior) 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or Greater 
(As of 07/08/21) 

AA- 
(As of 12/22/06) 

Non-Admitted 

     
National Fire and Marine 
Insurance Company 
(Berkshire) 

002428 A++ (Superior) 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or Greater 
(As of 01/06/22) 

AA+ 
(As of 09/26/18) 

Non-Admitted 

     
National Union Fire 
Insurance Co.  

002351 A, Excellent; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or Greater 
(As of 10/07/21) 

A+ 
(As of 03/29/22) 

Admitted 

     
PartnerRe Ireland 
Insurance Ltd. 

088621 A+, (Superior);  
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or Greater 
(As of 05/12/21) 

A+ 
(As of 10/29/21) 
 

Non-Admitted 

     
QBE Specialty Insurance 
Company  

012562 A, Excellent; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or Greater 
(As of 04/07/22) 

A+ 
(As of 01/30/18) 
 

Non-Admitted 

     
StarStone Specialty 
Insurance Company 

011432  A-, (Excellent);  
Financial Size Category 11; 
$750,000,000 to 1,000,000,000 
(As of 01/28/22) 

Not Rated 
(As of 06/25/21) 
 

Non-Admitted 

     
Westchester Surplus 
Lines Insurance Co. 

004433 A++, Superior; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or Greater 
(As of 12/10/21) 

AA 
(As of 06/24/16) 

Non-Admitted 

     
Westport Insurance 
Corporation  

000347 A+, Superior; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or Greater 
(As of 07/22/21) 

AA- 
(As of 05/07/20) 

Admitted 

     
XL Insurance America 
Inc. 

002423 A+, Superior; 
Financial Size Category 15; 
$2,000,000,000 or Greater 
(As of 09/17/21) 

AA- 
(As of 11/19/18) 

Admitted 

 

 
Page 303 of 526



 

 
 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 1 

 

 
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES 

 
POLICYHOLDER DISCLOSURE 

NOTICE OF TERRORISM 
INSURANCE COVERAGE 

 
June 3, 2022 
 
Named Insured:  Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
 
We are required to send you this notice pursuant to federal legislation concerning terrorism insurance. The 
below is for TRIA coverage as issued by the United States of America and is not tied to or representative 
of the Terrorism coverage offered in our property insurance program. 
 
You are hereby notified that under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended, you have a right to 
purchase insurance coverage for losses resulting from acts of terrorism. As defined in Section 102(1) of the 
Act: The term "act of terrorism" means any act or acts that are certified by the Secretary of the Treasury---
in consultation with the Secretary of Homeland Security, and the Attorney General of the United States---
to be an act of terrorism; to be a violent act or an act that is dangerous to human life, property, or 
infrastructure; to have resulted in damage within the United States, or outside the United States in the case 
of certain air carriers or vessels or the premises of a United States mission; and to have been committed 
by an individual or individuals as part of an effort to coerce the civilian population of the United States or to 
influence the policy or affect the conduct of the United States Government by coercion.  
 
You should know that where coverage is provided by this policy for losses resulting from certified acts of 
terrorism, such losses may be partially reimbursed by the United States Government under a formula 
established by federal law. However, your policy may contain other exclusions which might affect your 
coverage, such as an exclusion for nuclear events. Under the formula, the United States Government 
generally reimburses 80% of covered terrorism losses exceeding the statutorily established deductible paid 
by the insurance company providing the coverage. The premium charged for this coverage is provided 
below and does not include any charges for the portion of loss that may be covered by the federal 
government under the act.  
 
You should also know that the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act, as amended, contains a $100 billion cap that 
limits U.S. Government reimbursement as well as insurers’ liability for losses resulting from certified acts of 
terrorism when the amount of such losses in any one calendar year exceeds $100 billion. If the aggregate 
insured losses for all insurers exceed $100 billion, your coverage may be reduced.  
 
COVERAGE OF “ACTS OF TERRORISM” AS DEFINED BY THE REAUTHORIZATION ACT WILL BE 
PROVIDED FOR THE PERIOD FROM THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF YOUR NEW OR RENEWAL POLICY 
THROUGH THE EARLIER OF THE POLICY EXPIRATION DATE OR DECEMBER 31, 2027. EFFECTIVE 
DECEMBER 31, 2027 THE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE PROGRAM REAUTHORIZATION ACT 
EXPIRES.   
 
THE PREMIUM CHARGED FOR THIS COVERAGE CAN BE REQUESTED BELOW AND WILL NOT 
INCLUDE ANY CHARGES FOR THE PORTION OF LOSS COVERED BY THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT 
UNDER THE ACT.  
 
  

 
Page 304 of 526



 

 
 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 2 

 

 
 
SELECTION OR REJECTION OF THE TERRORISM RISK INSURANCE ACT, as AMENDED  
(A.K.A.: TRIA, TRIEA, TRIPRA, TRIP OR TRIPA. We refer to these collectively as “TRIA”.) 
 
 
THIS COVERAGE IS OUTSIDE OF THE PROGRAM’S TERRORISM COVERAGES AND LIMITS. IT IS 
PROVIDED AND OVERSEEN BY THE U.S. GOVERNMENT.  
 
THIS COVERAGE IS CONSIDERED RESTRICTIVE COMPARED TO THE APIP TERRORISM LIMITS 
AND COVERAGES AVAILABLE. THIS ACT DOES NOT FOLLOW OUR PROGRAM’S TERRORISM 
POLICIES. 
 
HOWEVER IF YOU’D LIKE A QUOTE FOR TRIA COVERAGE, PLEASE CHECK THE “I AM 
INTERESTED” BOX.  OTHERWISE, PLEASE CHECK THE “DECLINE” BOX.  YOUR SIGNATURE FOR 
CONFIRMATION OF RECEIPT IS REQUIRED. ANY QUESTIONS?  PLEASE CALL YOUR SERVICE 
TEAM MEMBER. 
 
 

 I am interested in receiving a quote for Terrorism Risk Insurance Act coverage as required by law to 
be offered under the last amended Act. Please provide me with a quote. 
 

 I hereby decline to purchase Terrorism Risk Insurance Act coverage as required by law to be offered 
under the last amended Act. 
 

 
 

 
 
_____________________________________________________ 
Policyholder/applicant signature 
  
 
 
______________________________________________________               ___________ 
Print Name                                                                                                     Date 
 
 
 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 

 
Page 305 of 526



 

 

SURPLUS LINES DISCLOSURE 

CALIFORNIA 

Alliant: 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 

 

1. The insurance policy that you have purchased is being issued by an 

insurer that is not licensed by the State of California. These companies 

are called “nonadmitted” or “surplus line” insurers.  

2. The insurer is not subject to the financial solvency regulation and 

enforcement that apply to California licensed insurers.  

3. The insurer does not participate in any of the insurance guarantee 

funds created by California law. Therefore, these funds will not pay your 

claims or protect your assets if the insurer becomes insolvent and is 

unable to make payments as promised.  

4. The insurer should be licensed either as a foreign insurer in another 

state in the United States or as a non‐United States (alien) insurer. You 

should ask questions of your insurance agent, broker, or “surplus line” 

broker or contact the California Department of Insurance at the toll‐free 

number 1‐800‐927‐4357 or internet website www.insurance.ca.gov. Ask 

whether or not the insurer is licensed as a foreign or non‐United States 

(alien) insurer and for additional information about the insurer. You may 

also visit the NAIC’s internet website at www.naic.org. The NAIC—the 

National Association of Insurance Commissioners—is the regulatory 

support organization created and governed by the chief insurance 

regulators in the United States.  

 
Page 306 of 526



 

 

5. Foreign insurers should be licensed by a state in the United States and 

you may contact that state’s department of insurance to obtain more 

information about that insurer. You can find a link to each state from 

this NAIC internet website: https://naic.org/state_web_map.htm.  

6. For non‐United States (alien) insurers, the insurer should be licensed 

by a country outside of the United States and should be on the NAIC’s 

International Insurers Department (IID) listing of approved nonadmitted 

non‐United States insurers. Ask your agent, broker, or “surplus line” 

broker to obtain more information about that insurer.  

7. California maintains a “List of Approved Surplus Line Insurers (LASLI).” 

Ask your agent or broker if the insurer is on that list, or view that list at 

the internet website of the California Department of Insurance: 

www.insurance.ca.gov/01‐consumers/120‐company/07‐ lasli/lasli.cfm.  

8. If you, as the applicant, required that the insurance policy you have 

purchased be effective immediately, either because existing coverage 

was going to lapse within two business days or because you were 

required to have coverage within two business days, and you did not 

receive this disclosure form and a request for your signature until after 

coverage became effective, you have the right to cancel this policy 

within five days of receiving this disclosure. If you cancel coverage, the 

premium will be prorated and any broker’s fee charged for this 

insurance will be returned to you. 

 

D‐2 (Effective January 1, 2020) 

Surplus Lines Broker:    Blaise Harris                   _                                              _ 
Surplus Lines Licensee: Alliant Specialty Insurance Services, Inc.                      _ 
Address:                         325 Hillcrest Drive, Suite 250,                                       _ 

                        Thousand Oaks, CA 91360                                             _ 
License Number:            296064                                                                            _    

 
Page 307 of 526



 

 

AmWINS: 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 

 

1. The insurance policy that you have purchased is being issued by an 

insurer that is not licensed by the State of California. These companies 

are called “nonadmitted” or “surplus line” insurers.  

2. The insurer is not subject to the financial solvency regulation and 

enforcement that apply to California licensed insurers.  

3. The insurer does not participate in any of the insurance guarantee 

funds created by California law. Therefore, these funds will not pay your 

claims or protect your assets if the insurer becomes insolvent and is 

unable to make payments as promised.  

4. The insurer should be licensed either as a foreign insurer in another 

state in the United States or as a non‐United States (alien) insurer. You 

should ask questions of your insurance agent, broker, or “surplus line” 

broker or contact the California Department of Insurance at the toll‐free 

number 1‐800‐927‐4357 or internet website www.insurance.ca.gov. Ask 

whether or not the insurer is licensed as a foreign or non‐United States 

(alien) insurer and for additional information about the insurer. You 

may also visit the NAIC’s internet website at www.naic.org. The NAIC—

the National Association of Insurance Commissioners—is the regulatory 

support organization created and governed by the chief insurance 

regulators in the United States. 

5. Foreign insurers should be licensed by a state in the United States 

and you may contact that state’s department of insurance to obtain 

more information about that insurer. You can find a link to each state 

from this NAIC internet website: https://naic.org/state_web_map.htm.  

 
Page 308 of 526



 

 

6. For non‐United States (alien) insurers, the insurer should be licensed 

by a country outside of the United States and should be on the NAIC’s 

International Insurers Department (IID) listing of approved nonadmitted 

non‐United States insurers. Ask your agent, broker, or “surplus line” 

broker to obtain more information about that insurer.  

7. California maintains a “List of Approved Surplus Line Insurers 

(LASLI).” Ask your agent or broker if the insurer is on that list, or view 

that list at the internet website of the California Department of 

Insurance: www.insurance.ca.gov/01‐consumers/120‐company/07‐ 

lasli/lasli.cfm.  

8. If you, as the applicant, required that the insurance policy you have 

purchased be effective immediately, either because existing coverage 

was going to lapse within two business days or because you were 

required to have coverage within two business days, and you did not 

receive this disclosure form and a request for your signature until after 

coverage became effective, you have the right to cancel this policy 

within five days of receiving this disclosure. If you cancel coverage, the 

premium will be prorated and any broker’s fee charged for this 

insurance will be returned to you. 

 

 

 

D‐2 (Effective January 1, 2020) 

Surplus Lines Broker: _  Brian Frost                                                                     _ 
Surplus Lines Licensee:  AmWINS Insurance Brokerage, LLC                           _ 
Address:                          4725 Piedmont Row Drive, Suite 600                           _ 

                         Charlotte, NC 28210                                                      _ 
License Number:            0F19710                                                                         _ 

 
Page 309 of 526



 

 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 1 

Disclosures / Disclaimers 

This proposal of insurance is provided as a matter of convenience and information only.  All information included in this 
proposal, including but not limited to personal and real property values, locations, operations, products, data, automobile 
schedules, financial data and loss experience, is based on facts and representations supplied to Alliant Insurance Services, 
Inc. by you.  This proposal does not reflect any independent study or investigation by Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. or its 
agents and employees. 

Please be advised that this proposal is also expressly conditioned on there being no material change in the risk between 
the date of this proposal and the inception date of the proposed policy (including the occurrence of any claim or notice of 
circumstances that may give rise to a claim under any policy which the policy being proposed is a renewal or replacement).  
In the event of such change of risk, the insurer may, at its sole discretion, modify, or withdraw this proposal, whether or not 
this offer has already been accepted. 

This proposal is not confirmation of insurance and does not add to, extend, amend, change, or alter any coverage in any 
actual policy of insurance you may have.  All existing policy terms, conditions, exclusions, and limitations apply.  For 
specific information regarding your insurance coverage, please refer to the policy itself.  Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
will not be liable for any claims arising from or related to information included in or omitted from this proposal of insurance. 

Alliant embraces a policy of transparency with respect to its compensation from insurance transactions. Details on our 
compensation policy, including the types of income that Alliant may earn on a placement, are available on our website at 
www.alliant.com. For a copy of our policy or for any inquiries regarding compensation issues pertaining to your account 
you may also contact us at: Alliant Insurance Services, Inc., Attention: General Counsel, 701 B Street, 6th Floor, San 
Diego, CA  92101.   

Analyzing insurers' over-all performance and financial strength is a task that requires specialized skills and in-depth 
technical understanding of all aspects of insurance company finances and operations. Insurance brokerages such as Alliant 
Insurance typically rely upon rating agencies for this type of market analysis. Both A.M. Best and Standard and Poor's 
have been industry leaders in this area for many decades, utilizing a combination of quantitative and qualitative analysis 
of the information available in formulating their ratings. 

A.M. Best has an extensive database of nearly 6,000 Life/Health, Property Casualty and International companies. You can 
visit them via this www.AmBest.com. For additional information regarding insurer financial strength ratings visit Standard 
and Poor's website at www.standardandpoors.com. 

Our goal is to procure insurance for you with underwriters possessing the financial strength to perform.  Alliant does not, 
however, guarantee the solvency of any underwriters with which insurance or reinsurance is placed and maintains no 
responsibility for any loss or damage arising from the financial failure or insolvency of any insurer.  We encourage you to 
review the publicly available information collected to enable you to make an informed decision to accept or reject a 
particular underwriter.  To learn more about companies doing business in your state, visit the Department of Insurance 
website for that state. 
 
New York Regulation 194 and General Broker Compensation Disclosure 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. is an insurance producer licensed by the State of New York and other States.  Insurance 
producers are authorized by their license to confer with insurance purchasers about the benefits, terms and conditions of 
insurance contracts; to offer advice concerning the substantive benefits of particular insurance contracts; to sell insurance; 
and to obtain insurance for purchasers. The role of the producer in any particular transaction typically involves one or more 
of these activities. 

Compensation will be paid to the producer, based on the insurance contract the producer sells.  Depending on the insurer(s) 
and insurance contract(s) the purchaser selects, compensation will be paid by the insurer(s) selling the insurance contract 
or by another third party.  Such compensation may vary depending on a number of factors, including  

the insurance contract(s) and the insurer(s) the purchaser selects.  In some cases, other factors such as the volume of 
business a producer provides to an insurer or the profitability of insurance contracts a producer provides to an insurer also 
may affect compensation.   

 

 
Page 310 of 526



 

 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 2 

Disclosures / Disclaimers Cont. 
 
The insurance purchaser may obtain information about compensation expected to be received by the producer based in 
whole or in part on the sale of insurance to the purchaser, and (if applicable) compensation expected to be received based 
in whole or in part on any alternative quotes presented to the purchaser by the producer, by requesting such information 
from the producer. 

Declaration Limit Disclosure  

Unless stated otherwise, coverage limits of liability and sub-limits of liability are shared across the Named Insured(s) 
designated in a single Declaration. Exceptions include: 
 

 Terrorism coverage, if purchased by a specific Named Insured, is provided on a combined basis with a sub-limit 
of liability that is shared across Named Insureds covered under multiple relevant Declarations. 
 

 Flood and Earthquake sub-limits of liability, if purchased by a specific Named Insured and except as indicated 
below, are dedicated by Named Insured and cannot be reduced by losses sustained by other Named Insureds. 

 
If a single Occurrence causes direct physical loss or damage to property of multiple Named Insureds covered by the 
same Declaration (or all relevant Declarations as respects Terrorism coverage), it is possible that the applicable shared 
limit of liability or sub-limit of liability may be insufficient to fully indemnify the physical loss or damage as sustained by 
multiple Named Insureds.   
 
In the event of a loss or accumulation of losses whereby the amount of loss exceeds the applicable shared limit of liability 
or sub-limit of liability, the recovery available will be allocated on a proportional basis among individual Named Insureds 
under the same Declaration (or all relevant Declarations as respects Terrorism coverage). This allocation applies until 
exhaustion of limits on a per Occurrence basis and on an Annual Aggregate basis (if applicable).  If a Named Insured’s 
claim reporting is delayed, such Named Insured’s recovery may be reduced or eliminated.  
 
Furthermore, any Annual Aggregate limit of liability or sub-limit that is shared across all Named Insureds covered under a 
particular Declaration (or all relevant Declarations as respects Terrorism coverage) may be reduced or exhausted by the 
prior payment of claims arising out of separate Occurrences in the same Policy Period. As a result, it is possible that 
there may be no remaining limit available to pay a specific Named Insured’s claim under the Policy.  
 
To the extent actually covered, the Annual Aggregate limits are as follows: 

 Accidental Contamination 
 Mold/Fungus Resultant Damage 
 Terrorism  
 Flood and Earthquake damage to Licensed Vehicles, Unlicensed Vehicles, Contractor’s Equipment and Fine 

Arts for Named Insured(s) that do not purchase optional dedicated Earthquake or Flood coverage 

Privacy 

At Alliant, one of our top priorities is making sure that the information we have about you is protected and secure. We 
value our relationship with you and work hard to preserve your privacy and ensure that your preferences are honored. At 
the same time, the very nature of our relationship may result in Alliant’s collecting or sharing certain types of information 
about you in order to provide the products and services you expect from us. Please take the time to read our full Privacy 
Policy posted at www.alliant.com and contact your Alliant service team should you have any questions. 

FATCA:  

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires the notification of certain financial accounts to the United 
States Internal Revenue Service. Alliant does not provide tax advice so please contact your tax consultant for your 
obligation regarding FATCA.  

 
Page 311 of 526



 

 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 3 

Disclosures / Disclaimers Cont. 

NRRA: 

(Applicable if the insurance company is non-admitted) 
The Non-Admitted and Reinsurance Reform Act (NRRA) went into effect on July 21, 2011.  Accordingly, surplus lines tax 
rates and regulations are subject to change which could result in an increase or decrease of the total surplus lines taxes 
and/or fees owed on this placement.  If a change is required, we will promptly notify you.  Any additional taxes and/or 
fees must be promptly remitted to Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 

Changes and Developments 

It is important that we be advised of any changes in your operations, which may have a bearing on the validity and/or 
adequacy of your insurance.  The types of changes that concern us include, but are not limited to, those listed below: 
 
 Mergers and/or acquisition and any change in business ownership, including percentages. 
 Any newly assumed contractual liability, granting of indemnities or hold harmless agreements. 
 Any changes in existing premises including vacancy, whether temporary or permanent, alterations, demolition, 

etc.  Also, any new premises either purchased, constructed or occupied 
 Circumstances which may require an increased liability insurance limit. 
 Any changes in fire or theft protection such as the installation of or disconnection of sprinkler systems, burglar 

alarms, etc.  This includes any alterations to the system. 
 Immediate notification of any changes to a scheduled of equipment, property, vehicles, electronic data 

processing, etc. 
 Property of yours that is in transit, unless previously discussed and/or currently insured. 

Loss Notification Requirements: 

Your policy will come with specific claim reporting requirements.  Please make sure your organization understands these 
obligations and time limitations which are outlined in the attached Loss Notification documents.  Contact your Alliant 
Service Team with any questions. 

 

 
Page 312 of 526



 

 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 4 

Binding Requirements Recap 
Required no later than June 28, 2022: 

 Signed and dated Request to Bind Coverage form (below) 

 Signed and dated Surplus Lines forms as required by your state and attached to this proposal* 

 Signed and dated APIP Claims Reporting Acknowledgement(s) Receipt Form 

 Signed and dated Terrorism Risk Insurance ACT of 2002 as amended (a.k.a. TRIPRA 2015) 

 
*- only required for coverage in the following states: AR, CA, CT, FL, KS, MA, MT, NE, NY, ND, OH, RI, WV, WY 

Request to Bind Coverage 
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 
We have reviewed the proposal and agree to the terms and conditions of the coverages presented.   
 
This Authorization to Bind Coverage also acknowledges receipt and review of all disclaimers, disclosures, and loss 
notification requirements including exposures used to develop insurance terms, contained within this proposal. 

 
 
 

 
X 

 

Signature of Authorized Insured Representative: Date: 

  

Title:  

  

Print / Type Insured Representative Full Name:  

 
This proposal does not constitute a binder of insurance.  Binding is subject to final carrier approval.  The 

actual terms and conditions of the policy will prevail. 
 

Did you know that Alliant works with premium financing companies? 

Are you interested in financing your annual premium? 

  

Yes, please provide us with a 
financing quote. 

No, we do not wish to 
finance our premium. 

□ □ 

 

 
Page 313 of 526



 

 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 5 

LOSS NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENT 
ALLIANT PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM (APIP) 

 
Claim notifications need to be sent to Robert Frey, Diana Walizada and Sandra Doig. In the event this is a Cyber loss please 
include item III contact, for a Pollution loss please include item IV contact in addition to Alliant Insurance Services contacts.  
  

I. During regular business hours (between 8:30 AM and 5:00 PM PST), First Notice of Claim should be 
reported to Alliant Insurance Services via telephone, fax, mail or e-mail to our San Francisco Office: 

  
Robert A. Frey, RPA  Diana L. Walizada, AIC, CPIW, RPA, AINS 
Senior Vice President, Regional Claims 
Director 

Vice President, Claims Unit Manager 

Voice: (415) 403-1445 Cell:   (415) 518-8490 Voice:(415)403-1453     
Email: rfrey@alliant.com  Email: dwalizada@alliant.com 

Address:  Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
560 Mission Street, 6th Floor 
San Francisco CA 94105 

   Toll Free Voice: (877) 725-7695 Fax: (415) 403-1466   
 

II. Please be sure to include APIP’s Claim Administrator as a CC on all  Claims correspondence: 
Sandra Doig 

       McLaren’s Global Claims Services 
    Address:  18100 Von Karman Avenue, 10th Floor  

       Irvine, CA 92612 
       Voice:  (949) 757-1413 Fax:  (949) 757-1692  
       Email: sandra.doig@mclarens.com 
    

III. Cyber Liability Carrier Beazley NY needs to also be provided with Notice of Claim immediately (if purchased): 
Beth Diamond 
Beazley Group 

Address:   1270 Avenue of the America’s, Suite 1200 
New York, NY 10020 
Fax: (546) 378-4039 
Email: tmbclaims@beazley.com 
 

     Elaine G. Tizon, CISR 
     Assistant Vice President, Claims Advocate 
  Address:   560 Mission Street, 6th Floor 

San Francisco, CA 94105 
Voice:  (415) 403-1458 Fax:  (415) 403-1466 
Email: elaine.tizon@alliant.com 
 

IV. Pollution Liability Carrier Ironshore Specialty Insurance Company (if purchased): 
Ironshore Environmental Claims CSO 

Address:   28 Liberty Street, 5th Floor  
New York, NY 10005 
In emergency call: (888) 292-0249 
Fax: (646) 826-6601  

                                                                                 Email: USClaims@ironshore.com 
 

Akbar Sharif     
Claims Advocate  

  Address:  18100 Von Karman Avenue, 10th Floor 
Irvine, CA 92612 
Voice:  (949) 260-5088 Fax: (415) 403-1466 
Email: Akbar.Sharif@alliant.com  

 
Please include the Insured /JPA name along with the following information when reporting claims: 
 Time, date and specific location of property damaged 
 A description of the incident that caused the damage (such as fire, theft or water damage) 
 Estimated amount of loss in dollars 
 Contact person for claim including name, title, voice & fax numbers 

 
Page 314 of 526



 

 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 6 

 Complete and return the Property Loss Notice for processing. 
 Mortgagee or Loss Payee name, address, and account number 

 

APIP Claims Reporting Acknowledgement(s) Receipt Form 

The Claims Reporting Forms are being included with your packet to ensure claims reporting procedures are known 
and available for future reference. Please review the information. We ask that you share these critical documents 
with all members of your team (and Pool Members and their staffs where applicable.) 

 
We request that you review the items indicated as attached, then complete the bottom portion, sign and 
submit to your Alliant Insurance Services representative either by a scanned e-mail or mail to have it 
be included in your insurance records. 

 

�  APIP Property Claims Reporting 

 

� Cyber Claims Reporting (this is a claims made policy) if coverage is purchased 

 

� Pollution Liability Claims Reporting (this is a claims made policy) if coverage is purchased 

 

Acknowledgement for Claims reporting procedures under Alliant Property Insurance Programs In effect: 
July 1, 2022 until further notice 

 
I have read and been informed about these separate reporting requirements under the coverage parts 
that apply to our entity as indicated above and provided through APIP by Alliant. 

 

Insured Entity Name: Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
 

 
 
X 

Signature of Authorized Insured Representative: 
 

 

Title: Date: 

  

Print / Type Insured Representative Full Name:  

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 315 of 526



 

 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 7 

 
 
 

IN THE EVENT OF A 

 

PROPERTY LOSS:  

1) Follow your organization procedures for reporting and responding to an incident  

2) Alert local emergency authorities, as appropriate   

3) Report the incident to Alliant Insurance Services immediately at:  

877-725-7695  
All property losses must be reported as soon as practicable 

upon knowledge within the risk management or finance 
division of the insured that a loss has occurred.  

Be prepared to give basic information about the location and nature of the incident, as 
well as steps which have been taken in response to the incident.    

4) Report the incident to McLarens Global Claims Services AND your Alliant 
representative  

 
  

 
Page 316 of 526



 

 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 8 

PROPERTY FIRST NOTICE OF LOSS FORM  
 

SEND TO: Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.  
BY MAIL: 560 Mission Street, 6th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94105  
BY FAX: (415) 403-1466  
BY EMAIL: rfrey@alliant.com AND dwalizada@alliant.com  
Carbon Copy APIP Claims Administrator: sandra.doig@mclarens.com and your Alliant representative  
 
Today’s Date: _________________ 

Type of Claim: (check all that apply)  

 

Insured’s Name & Contact Information  
 
Insured’s Name:                         Point of Contact:                             
 
Address:                              
 
Phone #:       Email Address:        

Broker/Agent’s Name & Contact Information  

Company Name: Alliant Insurance Services - Claims       Point of Contact: Robert A. Frey & Diana L. Walizada  

Address:             560 Mission Street, 6th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94105________________________________                  

Phone #: 1-877-725-7695         Fax #: 415-403-1466 

Policy Information  

Policy Number:________________________________ Policy Period: ______________________   

Limits of Liability: _______________per___________agg    Self-Insured Retention/Deductible: ______________ 

Loss Information 

Date of Incident/Claim: _____________   Location:___________________________________________________ 

Description of Loss: 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Please list all attached or enclosed documentation: (check if none provided) __________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name of Person Completing This Form: _____________________________________  
 
Signature:___________________________________ 
 
  

      Real Property        Vehicles  

      Personal Property                        Other   

 
Page 317 of 526



 

 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 9 

 
Per the PEPIP USA Form Master Policy Wording, Section IV General Conditions; 
 
K. NOTICE OF LOSS 
 
In the event of loss or damage insured against under this Policy, the Insured shall give notice thereof to 
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC., 560 Mission Street, 6th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94105. 
TEL NO. (877) 725-7695, FAX NO. (415) 403-1466 of such loss. Such notice is to be made as soon as 
practicable upon knowledge within the risk management or finance division of the insured that a loss has 
occurred. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
Page 318 of 526



 

 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 10 

IN THE EVENT OF A 
 

CYBER LOSS: 
 

1) Follow your organizations procedures for reporting and responding to an 
incident 

 
2) Alert authorities, as appropriate  

 
3) Report the incident to Beazley Group immediately at: 

 

tmbclaims@beazley.com 
 

All Cyber losses must be reported as soon as practicable 
upon knowledge by the insured that a loss has occurred. 

 
 
Be prepared to give basic information about the location and nature of the incident, as 
well as steps which have been taken in response to the incident.    
 

4) Report the incident to Alliant Claims Department and your Alliant representative 
 
 
 

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING PRIVACY NOTIFICATION COSTS: 
 
The policy provides a $500,000 Aggregate Limit for Privacy Notification Costs.  If you 
utilize a Beazley vendor, the limit is increased to $1,000,000. 
 
Please contact Beazley for a list of approved vendors. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Page 319 of 526



 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 11 

CYBER FIRST NOTICE OF LOSS FORM 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Today’s Date:                         
   
Insured’s Name & Contact Information 
 
Insured’s Name:                         Point of Contact:                             
 
Address:                              
 
Phone #:       Email Address:        
 
Broker/Agent’s Name & Contact Information 
 
Company Name: Alliant Insurance Services – Claims     Point of Contact:  Elaine Tizon  
 
Address: 560 Mission Street, 6th Floor, San Francisco, CA 94105                                
 
Phone #: 877-725-7695 Fax #:415-403-1466     
 
Policy Information 
 
Policy Number:     Policy Period:     
 
Limits of Liability:          per              agg Self-Insured Retention/Deductible   
 
Loss Information 
 
Date of Incident/Claim:   Location:                            
 
Description of Loss:                                
 
                                     
 
Please list all attached or enclosed documentation: (check if none provided)     
 
                                       
 
 
Name of Person Completing This Form:                                                         
 
 
Signature:                                                                                 
 

  

SEND TO: Beazley Group 

BY MAIL: 1270 Avenue of the America’s, Suite 1200, New York, NY 10020 

BY FAX:   (546) 378-4039 

BY EMAIL: tmbclaims@beazley.com   
 
CC Alliant Claims Department:  
elaine.tizon@alliant.com, and your Alliant representative 

 
Page 320 of 526



 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 12 

A. NOTICE OF CLAIM, LOSS OR CIRCUMSTANCE THAT MIGHT LEAD TO A CLAIM     
 

1.  If any Claim is made against the Insured, the Insured shall, as soon as practicable upon knowledge by 
the Insured, forward to the Underwriters through persons named in Item 9.A. of the Declarations written 
notice of such Claim in the form of a telecopy, or express or certified mail together with every demand, 
notice, summons or other process received by the Insured or the Insured’s representative; provided that 
with regard to coverage provided under Insuring Agreements I.A. and I.C., all Claims made against any 
Insured must be reported no later than the end of the Policy Period, in accordance with the 
requirements of the Optional Extension Period (if applicable), or within thirty (30) days after the 
expiration date of the Policy Period in the case of Claims first made against the Insured during the last 
thirty (30) days of the Policy Period. 
 

2.  With respect to Insuring Agreement I.B. for a legal obligation to comply with a Breach Notice Law 
because of an incident (or reasonably suspected incident) described in Insuring Clause I.A.1 or I.A.2, 
such incident or reasonably suspected incident must be reported as soon as practicable during the Policy 
Period after discovery by the  Insured. For such incidents or suspected incidents discovered by the 
Insured within 60 days prior to expiration of the Policy, such incident shall be reported as soon as 
practicable, but in no event later than 60 days after the end the Policy Period, provided; if this Policy is 
renewed by Underwriters and covered Privacy Notification Costs are incurred because of such incident 
or suspected incident reported during the 60 day post Policy Period reporting period, then any 
subsequent Claim arising out of such incident or suspected incident is deemed to have been made 
during the Policy Period. 

 
3.  With respect to Insuring Agreements I.A. and I.C., if during the Policy Period, the Insured first becomes 

aware of any circumstance that could reasonably be the basis for a Claim it may give written notice to 
Underwriters in the form of a telecopy, or express or certified mail through persons named in Item 9.A. of 
the Declarations as soon as practicable during the Policy Period of:  
 
a.  the specific details of the act, error, omission, or Security Breach that could reasonably be the basis    
for a Claim;  
b.  the injury or damage which may result or has resulted from the circumstance; and  
c.  the facts by which the Insured first became aware of the act, error, omission or Security Breach 
 
Any subsequent Claim made against the Insured arising out of such circumstance which is the subject of 
the written notice will be deemed to have been made at the time written notice complying with the above 
requirements was first given to the Underwriters.   
 

4.  A Claim or legal obligation under section X.A.1 or X.A.2 above shall be considered to be reported to the 
Underwriters when written notice is first received by Underwriters in the form of a telecopy, or express or 
certified mail or email through persons named in Item 9.A. of the Declarations of the Claim or legal 
obligation, or of an act, error, or omission, which could reasonably be expected to give rise to a Claim if 
provided in compliance with sub-paragraph X.A.3. above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
Page 321 of 526



 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 13 

POLLUTION LIABILITY  
 

IN THE EVENT OF AN 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL EMERGENCY: 
 

1) Follow your organization procedures for reporting and responding to an 
incident 

 
2) Alert local emergency authorities, as appropriate  

 
3) Report the incident immediately at: 

 

888-292-0249 
 

4] Report the incident to Alliant 
 
 Akbar Sharif 
 Claims Advocate 
 949-260-5088 
 415-403-1466 – fax 
 Akbar.Sharif@alliant.com 

 
Be prepared to give basic information about the location and nature of the incident, 
as well as steps which have been taken in response to the incident.    
 

 
DO follow your organization’s detailed response plan 
DO contact your management as well as appropriate authorities 
DO ensure anyone who could come in contact with a spill or release is kept away 
  
DO NOT ignore a potential spill or leak    
DO NOT attempt to respond beyond your level of training or certification   
 

 
  

 
Page 322 of 526



 

Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Today’s Date:                 

Notice of: (check all that apply) 

  Pollution Incident     Potential Claim    Other     

  Third-Party Claim     Litigation Initiated 

Insured’s Name & Contact Information 

Company Name:     Point of Contact:      

Address:               

Phone #:       Email Address:        
 
Broker/Agent’s Name & Contact Information 

Company Name: Alliant Insurance Services - Claims Point of Contact: Akbar Sharif  

Address: 18100 Von Karman Ave., 10th Floor, Irvine, CA 92612       

Phone #: 1-949-260-5088       

Policy Information 

Policy Number:                            Policy Period:                   

Limits of Liability:                      per                           agg.  Self-Insured Retention/Deductible                

Loss Information 

Date of Incident/Claim:   Location:                             

Claimant Name/Address:            

Description of Loss:                         

                           

Please list all attached or enclosed documentation: (check if none provided)     

                           

 

Name of Person Completing This Form:    Signature:    

 

SEND TO: IRONSHORE ENVIRONMENTAL CLAIMS CSO 

BY MAIL: 28 Liberty Street, 5th Floor, New York, NY  10005 

BY FAX:   (646) 826-6601 

BY EMAIL: USClaims@ironshore.com 
 

CC Alliant Insurance:  Akbar.Sharif@alliant.com and your Alliant Representative 
 

 
Page 323 of 526



 
 

Date Issued: MM/DD/YY            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 1 

Flood Offering 
 

Flooding is a serious threat to both personal and commercial clients.  Flooding can happen anywhere, not just 
zone referred to as high-risk areas (Special Flood Hazard Area).  Your Alliant team is ready to explain how it 
works and the associated costs.  

Basic Facts	
Congress created the NFIP in 1968 in response to the rising cost of taxpayer-funded disaster relief for flood victims 
and the increasing amount of damage caused by floods. The NFIP makes federally backed flood insurance available 
in communities that agree to adopt and enforce floodplain management ordinances to reduce future flood damage. 
The NFIP is self-supporting for the average historical loss year. This means that unless there is a widespread 
disaster, operating expenses and flood insurance claims are financed through premiums collected. 

 
Commercial buildings or residential dwellings owned by commercial entities are considered commercial property.  
All others are residential dwellings 

 
The FEMA Summary for Commercial Property and FEMA Standard Summary of Coverage provides information on 
the following: 

 Types of Flood Insurance Coverage 
 What is a Flood- “a General and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of two or more acres 

of normally dry land area”… 
 Deductibles – various options to meet your financial needs  
 What is Covered and What is Not 
 The valuation of the Property – Actual Cash Value or Replacement Cost 

Additional Information	
 Flood Zones-  

o https://www.fema.gov/flood-zones  
 Excess Flood Insurance (contact your Producer for additional information) 

o Increased limits over the maximum flood limit provided by NFIP 
 

FEMA Glossary of Flood Terms	
https://www.fema.gov/national-flood-insurance-program/definitions  

 
 
If you do NOT wish to purchase flood insurance your signature is required below: 
 
Signature:  Date:  

Name Printed / Typed:  

Company Name:  

 
 

 
Page 324 of 526



 
 

www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861              Page 1 

Electronic Delivery Option Form 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. may be required by law to obtain consent from insureds prior to providing 

electronic delivery of documents, including the policy.   
 
You currently have selected Option 1☐  2 ☐  3 ☐  4 ☐  

 
Please note you may change your option at any time.  If you have not previously selected an option, please 
select one of the following: 

 

☐  1.  ELECTION OF ELECTRONIC INSURANCE DOCUMENT DELIVERY 
I elect to receive all my documents electronically and acknowledge I may no longer receive paper 

copies unless I sign a new form requesting both electronic and paper copies or specifically request 
them.   
 

☐  2.  ELECTION OF ELECTRONIC INSURANCE DOCUMENT DELIVERY AND PAPER DELIVERY 
I elect to receive both electronic and paper copies of my insurance policy and supporting 
documents. 

 

☐  3.  REJECTION OF ELECTRONIC INSURANCE DOCUMENT DELIVERY 
I reject the option to receive my insurance policy and supporting documents electronically.  I will 

receive paper copies of such documents. 
 

☐  4.  ELECTION TO WITHDRAW CONSENT OF ELECTRONIC DELIVERY 

I withdraw my previous consent of electronic delivery of my insurance policy and supporting 
documents.  I elect to receive paper copies of such document going forward.  
 

 
 

Named Insured:  ACCTNAME  

     

Print Name of Authorized Representative  Title 

     

Signature of Authorized Representative  Date Signed 
 

If you have selected electronic document delivery, please provide the email address for the 
individual(s) who should receive these documents.  If this information changes, please provide 
updated details to your service team. 

This selection remains intact until revised by you. 

 
 
 
 

 
Page 325 of 526



www.firstinsurancefunding.com

800-837-2511

ALLIANT INSURANCE PUBLIC ENTITY 
PREMIUM FINANCING

MANAGE YOUR CASH 
FLOW WITH
PREMIUM FINANCE

Premium Finance. Simplified.

QUESTIONS?

For any questions please contact:

• Amount financed:
o Up to $100,000 - 3.70% APR
o Over $100,000 - 2.83% APR

• 25% down and 10 monthly installments

• Rates & terms over $500,000 are subject to credit approval and may change

according to risk & underwriting by FIRST

• Rates are based on the current rate environment and could change as key

indexes change over time (Prime: 4.00%)

• Make easy monthly payments that work for your business.

• Preserve or free working capital for other opportunities.

• Keep your credit lines open for other business needs.

• Use the premium finance loan as an off-balance sheet item.
• Rest assured with a rate and payments that won’t increase over the loan term.

• Earn more on retained capital by paying your insurance premium upfront.
• Consolidate your insurance payments.

• Purchase additional coverage with affordable payments.

BENEFITS FOR YOUR BUSINESS

EASY PAYMENT OPTIONS

OLIVIA BOGARDUS
714-878-1510
olivia.bogardus@firstinsurancefunding.com

TAMMY STOFER
714-600-8379
tammy.stofer@firstinsurancefunding.com

 
Page 326 of 526



PROPERTY INSURANCE 
PROGRAM FOR PUBLIC 
ENTITIES 

PUBLIC ENTITY

The property public entities oversee are incredibly 
diverse and complex. Because of this, Alliant 
created the Alliant Property Insurance Program 
(APIP) to give public entities across the country 
access to thoughtful insurance solutions and price 
stability through APIP’s group purchasing power. 
This strength is fueled by APIP’s nearly 10 ,000 
covered entities in 38 states and $540 billion in 
total insurance values (TIV). APIP is among the 
largest property placements worldwide. 

This strength is fueled by APIP’s 
nearly 10 ,000 covered entities 
in 38 states and $500 billion in 
total insurance values (TIV). 

Exclusive price controls, innovative program 
design, and responsive service APIP coverage 
is significantly broader and typically 10% to 20% 
less expensive than similar placements offered 
by competitors. The program offers per 
occurrence limits up to $1 billion. APIP’s 
size gives insureds competitive pricing and 
access to large earthquake, flood, and wind limits 
with a carefully managed spread of risk. 

In addition, APIP insureds can count on getting 
their claims paid in a timely manner. Highly rated 
global insurers and reinsurers with minimum AM 
Best rating of A- category VII provide coverage 
that includes:

• Per occurrence limits up to $1 billion
• Broad insuring agreements
• Coverage for all property of every description of

an insurable nature—both real and personal—of
the insured

• Coverage for property of others in the care,
custody, or control of the insured for which the
insured is liable wherever located in the United
States

• Replacement costs for physical damage, including
comprehensive and collision damage as an option
for automobiles

• Automatic acquisition of new locations which
allows entities to grow without having to wait for
underwriting approval

• Blanket fine arts coverage (if scheduled)
• Municipal bond and tax revenue interruption

coverage
• Course of construction coverage including delay

in start-up
• Property appraisals for all real property over $5

million
• Boiler and machinery coverage
• Access to Alliant’s proprietary OASYS-Net

software system, the program provides property
schedules, claims, vendor certificates, and places
certificate requests online.  It allows clients to
update their property locations, report a claim, or
request a certificate of insurance.

www.alliant.com   |   Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.  © 2019 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. All rights reserved.
 

Page 327 of 526



Coverage for Boiler and Machinery 

APIP includes coverage for boilers and machinery 
with limits up to $100 million. Established boiler 
and machinery authorized inspection agencies 
are used for both jurisdictional and consultative 
services. This ensures you receive board-certified 
engineering expertise in machinery, equipment, 
elec¬tronics, and HVAC through a nationwide 
field network. 

To manage a wide range of critical exposures, the 
program also provides our clients with electrical 
loss prevention surveys, infrared thermography, 
industry and technical consultation, a key account 
service plan, transformer oil gas analysis, boiler 
operation and maintenance training, and boiler 
and pressure vessel inspection services for non-
code vessels (and vessels located in jurisdictions 
that do not require inspections).

Environmental Risk Coverage

Our team of dedicated underwriters has 
exten¬sive experience in environmental risk and 
a strong understanding of the unique needs 
of public entities. To protect your organization 
from the catastrophic impacts environmental 
liabilities can have on the physical and 
financial infrastructure of an organiza¬tion, APIP 
insureds receive first and third party pollution 
protection against the broad range of 
environmental risks facing public entities. 
This coverage includes premises, covered 
operations, transporta¬tion, bodily injury/
property damage from pollution conditions, 
pollution clean-up, mold, and both 
above-ground storage tanks (ASTs) and 
underground storage tanks (USTs)coverage.

Cyber Risk Coverage

Cyber liability looms larger than ever and coverage 
against it is essential to protect the health of your 
organization. As an APIP insureds, our cyber risk 
specialists will help you assess expo¬sures that 
threaten your organization, and deliver first and 
third party coverage to match your risk profile to 
shield your agency from the ever-changing world of 
technology-related risks.

www.alliant.com   |   Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.  © 2019 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. All rights reserved.

ABOUT ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES
Alliant Insurance Services is one of the nation’s leading and fastest growing distributors of diversified insurance products 
and services. In the face of increasing complexity, our approach is simple: bring on the best people and invest more 
deeply in the industries and clients we serve. We operate through a network of specialized national platforms and 
regional offices to offer a comprehensive portfolio of services to our clients. Our goal is to ensure that they get the most 
innovative products—and the most innovative thinking—in the industry. www.alliant.com 

  The Alliant Advantage

The Alliant public entity team is comprised of 
150 professionals with targeted expertise 
servicing a broad range of public entities 
throughout the U.S. We ensure that our 
clients have access to time-tested expertise and 
powerful risk resources regardless of 
location. 

 
Page 328 of 526



Risk Control and 
Safety Services
Helping public entities take a stand 
against the unexpected

 
Page 329 of 526



Comprehensive Risk Assessment
• Loss analysis

• Operational assessment

• Stakeholder interviews

• Risk impact modeling

• Contract review

• Strategic planning

Critical Success Factors
• Personalize critical success factors

• Develop dashboard tools

• Align solutions with operational  
and risk goals

• Enterprise risk management

Implement Solutions
• Fire and life safety

• Casualty and workers’  
compensation

• Regulatory compliance

• Environmental

• Ergonomics and IH

• Fleet safety

• Behavioral safety

Monitor Results
• Monitor and adjust solutions

• Quantify value of outcomes

• Communicate success and 
improvement opportunities

• A nationwide network of highly experienced 
consultants who understand the risks and 
regulatory climate of your particular market.

• Risk professionals averaging 15 years of 
experience with a range of certifications  
and credentials.

• Alliant’s extensive library of educational 
materials, safety resources, and webinars.

• The power and resources of one of the 
nation’s largest specialty insurance and risk 
management organizations.

• Time-tested methods and expertise that 
consistently yield lower loss ratios, and in 
turn, lower insurance costs.

• People who understand your business,  
its risks, and how they affect your  
long-term success.

Get the “Big Picture” on Risk Control
We believe that effective risk control is not simply a series of tactics but a hub of interconnected 
strategies bound together by an ambitious, “big picture” perspective. To achieve this, we combine the 
following best-in-class services tailored for each of our clients.

Power Through Prevention
Our mission is simple. We aim to prevent costly accidents and losses before they can play havoc with 
your organization. Underlying this commitment is an extensive infrastructure of people, ideas, and 
resources, all working together to protect your organization. When you work with Alliant, you unlock 
access to:

In the public sector, the possibility of an accident or loss always looms large. Unannounced 
and indiscriminate, these incidents can unleash a wave of lost productivity, damaged property, 
and significant legal and medical expenses that can impact your organization for years. 

It’s true, these incidents happen all the time. But do they have to? 

Alliant works hand-in-hand with public entities across the nation, delivering meticulous analysis and 
actionable strategies that reduce costly accidents and losses. We’ll leverage the full strength of our 
technological and intellectual resources to deliver sophisticated solutions that enhance safety, increase 
productivity, and reduce insurance costs.

 
Page 330 of 526



• On-site hazard/risk assessments:  
We perform an in-depth audit of your 
organization, identifying key areas of liability 
exposure, followed by detailed findings  
and recommendations.

• Ergonomics: To help reduce workers’ 
compensation costs, we provide engineering 
and administrative solutions that address core 
ergonomic issues; then we work with your team 
to build a self-sustaining risk improvement 
process through workplace studies, office 
evaluations, and ongoing training and education. 

• Industrial hygiene: Our consultants will 
anticipate, identify, evaluate, and recommend 
control strategies for chemical or biological 
hazards that may cause work-related illnesses.

• Fleet safety analysis: Our research-based 
transportation safety programs include full 
safety assessments, fleet training, accident 
investigation, and other regulatory audits. 

• General liability: We help to prevent accidents, 
reduce injuries, and control insurance costs by 
pinpointing and mitigating risk to the public. 

• Training services: Knowledge is power, and 
we offer a full range of educational resources 
customized for your organization. This includes 
a high-impact webinar series.

• Fire system evaluation: We analyze the 
adequacy of your system and then provide 
recommendations for ongoing maintenance 
and testing. 

• Risk assessment: We quantify your exposures 
by providing C.O.P.E. (construction, occupancy, 
protection, and exposure) along with natural 
catastrophe data, risk quality ratings, 
recommendations, and facility programs. 

• Loss estimates: Our team can provide 
customized estimates that cover machinery, 
equipment, earthquake, wind, or flood in 
probable maximum loss (PML) and maximum 
feasible loss (MFL) formats. 

• Business interruption analysis and continuity 
planning: We assist you in assessing the 
risk of a disaster on company operations 
and identifying its potential impact on your 
business, suppliers, and customers; and 
provide a disaster action plan. 

• Infrared and ultrasonic testing: These 
important tests detect electrical problems 
and other critical loss exposures using highly 
sophisticated diagnostic technologies to 
prevent unscheduled maintenance, reduce 
operational interruptions, and improve  
energy usage.

• Risk management center: This web-based 
risk reduction platform allows you to reduce 
risk and enable employee safety by creating 
an effective human resources and risk 
management program.

Key Services

It’s Your Choice. And It’s an Important One.
Your charge is twofold: to protect your organization and secure its success. Working with a risk consultant 
can help you achieve both of these objectives, but you must choose the right partner for your organization. 
How to find the right fit? Make sure your consultant has:

These exemplify the Alliant approach to risk control and guide all of our actions as we seek to protect our 
clients from ever-shifting risks.

• In-depth experience handling risks in  
your industry. 

• Vast resources at their disposal and the 
availability to handle the job when and how 
you need it.

• The courage to tell you what you need to 
know, not what you want to hear. 

• The support of a team of experts to assist in 
areas like regulatory citation, claims handling, 
and litigation.

 
Page 331 of 526



Training Series for Alliant Clients 

2022-23 Calendar 
 

Alliant will be offering a brand-new series of online training aimed at educating our clients 

in areas of property protection and occupational safety and health.  To register for one of 

our one-hour sessions, click on the title. 
 

August 10, 2022 
Leading Property Losses – How to Mitigate the Most Frequent and 

Costly Incidents 

September 14, 2022 So You Have Vacant Properties – Why All the Fuss? 

October 12, 2022 Critical Things You Should Know About the Claims Process 

November 9, 2022 Anatomy of a Water Based Fire Protection System 

December 14, 2022 
Hoods, Ducts and Grease – Mitigating Exposure and Preventing Fire 

Loss 

January 11, 2023 Components of a Property Conservation Program 

February 8, 2023 Water and Its Damaging Effects on Property 

March 8, 2023 Preparing for the Storm – How to Prepare for Wildfire Season 

May 10, 2023 
What Keeps a Property Underwriter Awake at Night (and how you 

can calm her nerves). An interview with a property underwriter 

June 14, 2023 Cyber – Not IF but WHEN You Are Compromised  

 

All training sessions are offered at no additional cost and will be held from 10am – 11am pacific 

Standard Time.  To register, click on the title to be directed to the registration page.  All presentations 

are recorded for on-demand playback – e-mail with a link to the recording is sent 2 hours post-webinar. 

 

Questions?  Call or e-mail us:  888.737.4752/riskcontrol@alliant.com 

 
Page 332 of 526

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/1992076898167847439
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/1992076898167847439
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/1361324460708237070
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/6123812896932214797
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/6123812896932214797
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/4697263630147793677
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/7483542643164834827
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/7483542643164834827
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/4867337188244186637
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/6393160260434583565
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/492270470160890126
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/2988224537375316240
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/2988224537375316240
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/7470424369934484750


CA License No. 0C36861 
© 2021 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.   [200708]

Tim Leech, CSP, ARM
First Vice President 
Risk Control Consulting
(949) 260-5008 
TLeech@alliant.com

About Alliant Insurance Services
Alliant Insurance Services is one of the nation’s leading and 
fastest growing distributors of diversified insurance products 
and services. In the face of increasing complexity, our 
approach is simple: bring on the best people and invest more 
deeply in the industries and clients we serve. We operate 
through a network of specialized national platforms and 
regional offices to offer a comprehensive portfolio of services 
to our clients. Our goal is to ensure that they get the most 
innovative products—and innovative thinking—in the industry.

alliant.com

 
Page 333 of 526



Suffering a property loss is bad enough without discovering the property was undervalued and 
you won’t recover enough to replace or restore it. The reason for your dilemma: an inaccurate 
or poorly documented appraisal of the property that created a false sense of security that you 
were fully covered for the loss.

After a property loss you don’t need another unpleasant surprise

APPRAISAL SERVICES

 
Page 334 of 526



APPRAISAL
SERVICES

If your assets are undervalued, or the values cannot be defended,  
the replacement costs paid by your insurance carrier will not  
adequately cover your losses. To ensure that commercial and public 
sector organizations do not face this kind of unpleasant surprise,  
Alliant Appraisal Services provides clients with accurate, fully  
documented appraisals they can trust. 

CONTACT

Lora Carlisle
Appraisal Manager
949 260 5033
LCarlisle@alliant.com

CA License No. 0C36861
© 2015 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. All rights reserved.  [2013-015]

Each property valuation is conducted by a 
licensed, experienced real estate appraiser 
who utilizes valuation techniques that 
conform to the federal reporting require-
ments of the Uniform Standards of Profes-
sional Appraisal Practice (USPAP). To ensure  
accuracy, all appraisals are submitted for 
peer review.

CLIENT BENEFITS
Clients benefit from our appraisals in a  
variety of ways, including:

■■ Identifying inaccuracies in value based on 
occupancy or building characteristics

■■ Identifying inaccuracies in square footage, 
which impacts value

■■ Updating values to include building  
additions and renovations and to capture 
buildings not previously recorded

■■ Flagging demolished, relocated, or out-
of-service structures, thereby reducing 
insured value

■■ Documenting and updating COPE 
(Construction, Occupancy, Protection, 
Exposures) data, which may help to  
lower premiums

■■ Collecting additional data as requested, 
including secondary earthquake character-
istics and GPS coordinates

COMMERCIAL APPRAISALS
The depth and diversity of our commercial 
appraisal knowledge and experience set  
Alliant Appraisal Services apart from other 
consultants. Besides our own vast knowledge 
base, we are able to capitalize on our access 
to Alliant’s vast nationwide appraisal and 
cost databases to meet specialized appraisal 
needs for nearly every type of commercial 
client.

In addition to appraising income-producing 
real property—including industrial, office, 
multifamily, and commercial—we have 
exten sive expertise in appraising such unique 
assets as medical facilities, entertainment 
venues, hospitality sites, construction equip-
ment, and power generation plants, to name 
only a few.

PUBLIC ENTITY APPRAISALS
Establishing accurate replacement values 
for such public sector assets as infra-
structure, public facilities, and specialized 
equipment requires extensive knowledge of 
both the type of public entity and type of 
property. Among the unique public assets 
we appraise are water distribution systems, 
sewage treatment facilities, power genera-
tion plants, medical treatment facilities, 
school gymnasiums, fire-fighting equipment, 
communication towers, roadways, bridges, 
and many others.

REPORT FORMATS
Our appraisal reports can be customized to a 
client’s particular requirements, ranging from 
a spreadsheet that summarizes key data to 
standalone reports for each asset. Clients 
can be confident that our appraisal reports 
will be consistent and supported by reliable 
market data.

ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES:  
THE PARTNER YOU DESERVE.

With a history dating back to 1925, Alliant 
Insurance Services is one of the nation’s 
leading distributors of diversified insurance 
products and services. Operating through a 
national network of offices, Alliant provides 
property and casualty, workers’ compensa-
tion, employee benefits, surety, and financial 
products and services to more than 26,000 
clients nationwide.

www.alliant.com

 
Page 335 of 526



Your business is a dynamic enterprise, moving with speed and agility to meet the ever-
changing needs of your clients, employees, and industry. Decisions are made in real time 
and information must be accessed at a moment’s notice. With AlliantConnect, convenience, 
security, and service are always at your fingertips and waiting for policy information is 
never part of the equation. 

The power of Alliant at your fingertips

 
Page 336 of 526



CONTACT

Steve Sampiere
Chief Information Officer
619 849 3849
SSampiere@alliant.com

AlliantConnect is a customized online portal providing instant access 
to all of your insurance information. With its simple interface and 
intuitive design, you can manage your documents, access informational 
materials, stay up to date on policy changes, pay premiums, and interact 
with a service professional. Simply stated, it’s a central hub where you 
can manage all aspects of your insurance policy. 

CA License No. 0C36861
© 2015 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. All rights reserved.  [2013-015]

AlliantConnect seamlessly melds the power of 
Alliant with the convenience of a secure online 
portal by empowering you to: 

■■ Access all of your insurance information 
via a transparent and easy-to-use online 
interface

■■ Manage your documents, including 
certificates of insurance, in real time

■■ Learn through a comprehensive library of 
fact sheets, white papers, and presentations

■■ Watch training videos designed to help 
you better manage risk

■■ Locate a summary of your policy changes
■■ Track important dates and announcements
■■ Pay your premiums quickly and easily 

using an integrated payment component
■■ Communicate quickly and easily with 

your Alliant service team

PUT YOUR POLICY IN 
YOUR POCKET

With AlliantConnect Mobile, your policy 
follows you wherever business takes you. You 
enjoy 24/7 on-the-go-access to insurance 
information in a secure mobile platform 
through the following features: 

■■ One-click “Help” button that will notify 
the entire service team if you experience 
an urgent issue

■■ On-demand access to policy documents, 
schedules, and endorsements

■■ Offline access to documents once they 
are downloaded

■■ Contact information of the entire  
service team

YOUR INFORMATION IS  
ALWAYS SECURE

With AlliantConnect, you can rest assured 
that all your information is secure, including 
payment transactions that are protected 
with the highest encryption levels possible. In 
addition, all data is secured to the appropriate 
account teams, our database and all backups 
are stored in a highly encrypted format, and 
all document changes are archived for audit 
history. As a company that insures clients 
against cyber risks, Alliant understands the 
importance of protecting client information in 
an online environment and how to maximize 
the security of your information.

REAL PEOPLE,  
ALWAYS WITHIN REACH

We believe that technology is only as 
successful as the people behind it. This 
is why we designed AlliantConnect not 
as a means of removing people from the 
process, but to bring them closer. In addition 
to accessing a service professional via the 
online portal, we also offer a toll-free helpline, 
where you will have direct access to the 
AlliantConnect support team. Simply give 

us a call, let us know you are 
an AlliantConnect client, and we 
will be on the phone to help you get 
the most out of your account. AlliantConnect 
offers value and convenience by combining 
cutting-edge technology, optimum security, 
and personal service. 

ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES:  
THE PARTNER YOU DESERVE.

With a history dating back to 1925, Alliant 
Insurance Services is one of the nation’s 
leading distributors of diversified insurance 
products and services. Operating through a 
national network of offices, Alliant provides 
property and casualty, workers’ compensation, 
employee benefits, surety, and financial 
products and services to more than 26,000 
clients nationwide.

www.alliant.com

With AlliantConnect, you can rest assured that 
your information is stored in a secure location. 

 
Page 337 of 526



 
 

CLAIM PREPARATION SERVICES FOR THE APIP PROGRAM 

Imperium Specialty Offering for APIP Policy Holders 
In a time of unprecedented frequency and scale of natural disasters, historic pandemics, and increasing threats 
in the cyber space, it is more important than ever for APIP Insureds to be both knowledgeable and prepared to 
quantify and correctly document potential financial losses. Imperium has extensive expertise with some of the 
largest public entities, municipalities, K-12 schools, and hospitals in the U.S. Imperium offers a full continuum of 
claim preparation, forensic accounting, and risk management services that are designed specifically for APIP 
Insureds. These offerings coupled with decades of experience in handling both pre and post loss risk on behalf 
of some of the largest organizations in the world makes Imperium uniquely qualified to support your needs. 

Imperium Services Covered in the APIP Policy (“Claim Preparation”): 
The APIP program provides $1,000,000 in coverage for claim preparation services, following a covered loss. 
These services are intended to support APIP policy holders in preparing, quantifying, and presenting claims to 
the Insurance Company(ies) and their representatives.  

Post Loss 

Insurance Claim Support – Imperium's team has extensive experience in supporting organizations following an insurable 
triggering event. Imperium’s multi-disciplined team includes building consultants, forensic accountants, engineers, among 
others, who can support you in organizing, quantifying, and presenting your loss to the Insurer(s). 

Builders Risk & Construction Issues – Claim preparation takes not only expertise but also time and resources. Imperium 
helps alleviate the unplanned claim preparation burdens typically placed on a project team after a loss. We apply expertise 
in both construction project management and insurance claim preparation to help establish the status of the project at 
the time of a loss and then prepare the claim documentation required for financial recovery. 

Additional Imperium Consulting Services: 
In addition to the Claim Preparation services described above, Imperium has been engaged by clients for 
complex valuation and claim valuation services described below.  No engagement will be undertaken without 
client agreement to scope of work and estimated cost. 

Pre-Loss 

Business Interruption Value (BIV) – Imperium's BIV Updates can be tailored to meet the needs of an organization’s risk 
tolerance and help in decision making in setting coverage limits for annual policy premiums. When an insured sets their 
insurable values too high, they pay more in premiums for coverage they will never use. When BIV is too low, full financial 
recovery after a loss may not be achieved.  

 
Page 338 of 526



 

Other Services 

FEMA Expertise– In addition to insurance claims, our team has the knowledge and expertise to support eligible Applicants 
with their FEMA claims through the FEMA Public Assistance Program. Our team has extensive experience in project 
development, damage estimating, appeals, and project close-out. 

Capital Project and Construction Claims Auditing – public organizations often require an outside review of construction 
spending, adding stewardship to ongoing projects, or as part of a dispute avoidance and early claims resolution process. 
Imperium’s team of schedule, scope and cost experts design and implement audit plans for public projects and serve as 
on-call claims auditors to help facilitate successful completion to projects that experience changes.  

Cyber risk quantification - is a pre-loss valuation associated with specific threats such as a ransomware attack, business 
email compromise, and data exfiltration. 

Litigation / Appraisals / Arbitration – Imperium employs a broad range of testifying experts with significant experience in 
quantifying economic damages. With decades of real-world experience, we achieve exceptional results in providing the 
technical and financial consultations required to resolve complex disputes across a broad range of industries. 

Select Experience Includes:  
• Complex Higher Education property and business interruption claim following a fire at a research building. 
• Supported a Florida Airport Authority following hurricane damages in quantifying and presenting a property and 

business interruption claim to the Insurer. 
• A Northeast Sports & Exhibition Authority property claim following damaged sustained during a hurricane. 
• Largest FEMA claim in history for a significant public housing authority in North America providing consulting 

services for the NFIP, insurance, and FEMA claims.  
• COVID-19 Cost Preparation and FEMA Claims Management for the largest public health care system in the United 

States. 
• Complex Hurricane insurance claim with FEMA component for one of Florida's largest K-12 school systems.  

Specific APIP Experience: 

• Supporting various small municipalities following winter storms in filing an insurance claim through the APIP 
program for unscheduled roads / cleanup inclusive of both internal and third-party expenses. 

CONTACT: 

Joseph J. Mascali 
Director 
Email: joseph.mascali@imperiumcg.com 
 
ABOUT IMPERIUM 

Imperium Consulting Group, LLC, is a specialized advisory business that works with clients to better manage commercial risks and 
resolve complex claims and disputes. Our team of forensic accountants, project schedulers, engineers, cyber specialists, and other 
industry experts quantifies economic loss for risk management decision making as well as for recovery. Our services span pre-loss risk 
quantification and business interruption modeling, project auditing, litigation support, and expert witness services. We are retained 
by public and private organizations to help navigate claims under commercial and government contract forms, as well as recoveries 
under FEMA. Our experts also specialize in measuring loss under policies such as property and business interruption, builders’ risk, 
subcontractor default insurance, cyber, fidelity, M&A, environmental, among others. For more information about Imperium’s 
resiliency solutions, please visit www.imperiumCG.com. 

 
Page 339 of 526

mailto:joseph.mascali@imperiumcg.com


APIP SUMMARY OF PROPOSED SUB-LIMIT & DEDUCTIBLE CHANGE  
BELOW IS A SUMMARY OF PROPOSED CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY PERIOD AS OF JUNE 1, 2022 

 

 

 

Coverage 2021-2022 Sub-limit / Deductible 2022-2023 Sub-limit / Deductible Status 

Miscellaneous 
Unnamed 
Locations  

$25,000,000 Miscellaneous Unnamed Locations 
for Named Insureds with Total Insurable Values 
greater than or equal to $500,000,000 at time of 
binding or $10,000,000 Miscellaneous Unnamed 
Locations for Named Insureds with total insurance 
values less than $500,000,000 at time of binding 
for existing Named Insured's excluding 
Earthquake coverage for Alaska and California 
locations.  If Flood coverage is purchased for 
scheduled locations, this extension will extend to 
include Flood coverage for any location not 
situated in Flood Zones A or V. 

Vacant and Unoccupied Buildings are sub-limited 
to $10,000,000. 

$10,000,000 Miscellaneous Unnamed Locations for Named 
Insureds with total insurable values greater than or equal to 
$250,000,000 at time of binding or $5,000,000 Miscellaneous 
Unnamed Locations for Named Insureds with total insurance 
values less than $250,000,000 at time of binding for existing 
Named Insured's excluding Earthquake coverage for 
Alaska and California locations.  If Flood coverage is 
purchased for scheduled locations, this extension will 
extend to include Flood coverage for any location not 
situated in Flood Zones A or V. 

Vacant and Unoccupied Buildings are sub-limited to 
$2,500,000. 

 
Under 
Review 

Automatic 
Acquisition – 
New Locations 
or New 
Property 

$100,000,000 for 120 days subject to the 
Automatic Acquisition Reporting Conditions,  

No restriction for vacant or unoccupied buildings 
under Automatic Acquisition  

• $50,000,000 for 120 days for existing Named Insureds. 
Miscellaneous Unnamed Locations sub-limits apply after 
120 days  

• $5,000,000 for vacant and unoccupied buildings 
See Policy for full details. 

Under 
Review 

Automatic 
Acquisition – 
Additions of 
New Sub-
members or 
Entities of a 
JPA, Pool or 
Group 

$100,000,000 for 120 days subject to the 
Automatic Acquisition Reporting Conditions,  

No restriction for vacant or unoccupied buildings 
under Automatic Acquisition 

All New sub-member and/or entity being added to a JPA, 
Pool or Group must be reported. 

• $25,000,000 for 90 days for new sub-members and/or 
entities of an existing JPA, Pools or Group. Excluded 
after 90 days. 

• $5,000,000 for vacant and unoccupied building 

Under 
Review 

Increased 
Cost of 
Construction 

No restriction for vacant properties $2,500,000 limit for vacant properties Under 
Review 

LMA5400 Buy 
Back 

$100,000,000 per occurrence, $200,000,000 
annual aggregate for all participants in the 
program combined 

Limits are to be determined Under 
Review 

KEY MASTER POLICY FORM PROPOSED CHANGES 
Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023  Status 

Policy Period July 1, 2021 to July 1,2022 July 1, 2022 to July 1,2023 Update 

Section II, B. 9 
Building Laws N/A 

See Policy. The Building Laws clause was removed from 
the policy in 2021 but is being added back in for clarity. 
There is no change of the intended policy response. 

Update 

Section II, B. 
11 
Increased 
Cost of 
Construction 

In the event of physical damage to property 
insured by a covered peril, this Policy is 
extended to cover the increased cost of, and the 
additional period of time required for, repair or 
replacement caused by the enforcement of any 
ordinance or law (including written guidelines 
used by the department of corrections in any 
state) regulating the construction, repair or 
demolition of buildings or structures, which is in 
force at the time such a loss occurs or which 
comes into force within 6 months after such a 
loss occurs, which necessitates in repairing or 
replacing the building covered hereunder which 
has suffered damage or destruction by the 
covered peril(s) or which has undergone 
demolition, limited however, to the minimum 
requirements of such ordinance or law 

In the event of physical damage to property insured by a 
covered peril, this Policy is extended to cover the 
increased cost of repair or replacement caused by the 
enforcement of any ordinance or law (including written 
guidelines used by the department of corrections in any 
state) which: 
 

1) regulates the construction, repair or demolition of 
buildings or structures; and 

2) was in force when the loss occurred or came into 
force within 6 months of when the loss occurred. 

 

Payment will be limited to the cost of meeting the minimum 
requirements of such ordinance or law; said cost to be 
calculated as of the date of loss. 

Update 

 
Page 340 of 526



 

KEY MASTER POLICY FORM PROPOSED CHANGES CONTINUED 
Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023  Status 

Section II, B. 
20 Automatic 
Acquisition 
and Reporting 
Conditions 

See Policy 
See Policy for details. Wording has been modified to provide 
separate coverage for new entities or sub members joining 
an existing pool/JPAs. 

Under 
Review 

Section II, D. 6 Library contents Library contents value increased per 11% inflation value Update 

Section IV,  
H. 5 
 

The Insured has permission to cease business 
operations or to have any insured building 
remain vacant or unoccupied, provided that fire 
protection, security and alarm services are 
maintained and written notice is given to the 
Company prior to the one-hundred twentieth 
(120th) consecutive day of cessation of business 
operations or vacancy.  The insured building is 
considered vacant when: 

a. Such building does not contain adequate 
Insured Property to conduct customary 
business operations; or 

b. Such building is no longer used by the Insured, 
a lessee or a sub-lessee to conduct customary 
business operations;  

c. 70% or more of its total square footage is 
“vacant”; 

 

The Insured has permission to cease business operations 
or to have any insured building reported as part of the 
Named Insured(s) schedule of values held on file with 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc., remain vacant or 
unoccupied, provided that fire protection, security and 
alarm services are maintained and written notice is given to 
the Company prior to the one-hundred twentieth (120th) 
consecutive day of cessation of business operations or 
vacancy.  The insured building is considered vacant when: 
 

a. Such building does not contain adequate Insured 
Property to conduct customary business operations; or 

b. Such building is no longer used by the Insured, a lessee 
or a sub-lessee to conduct customary business 
operations;  

c. 70% or more of its total square footage is “vacant”; 
In the event that the Insured does not have and/or maintain 
the fire protection, security and alarm systems at the vacant 
or unoccupied building(s) or does not provide written notice 
to the Company prior to the one-hundred twentieth (120th) 
consecutive day of cessation of business operations or 
vacancy, the maximum amount recoverable shall be the 
amount reported on the schedule of values held on file with 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. for that location. 
Any Increased Cost of Construction coverage for such 
reported vacant or unoccupied buildings is sub-limited to 
$2,500,000 per occurrence and shall be calculated as the 
increased cost of, and the additional period of time required 
for, repair or replacement caused by the enforcement of any 
ordinance or law (including written guidelines used by the 
department of corrections in any state) regulating the 
construction, repair or demolition of buildings or structures, 
which is in force at the time such a loss occurs. 
In the event that a vacant building is slated for demolition, 
the maximum amount recoverable will be limited to 
emergency expenses, demolition and debris removal. 

Under 
Review 

 

Section IX,9.h. 
(III) Boiler and 
Machinery – 
Ordinance or 
Law 

See Policy 

See Policy. The following wording has been added to 
describe Ordinance or Law recovery calculation: 
 

Payment will be limited to the cost of meeting the minimum 
requirements of such ordinance or law; said cost to be 
calculated as of the date of loss. 

Under 
Review 

Endorsement 
3: Coverage 
Territory 
Endorsement 

Coverage Territory Endorsement Rename this endorsement Economic Sanctions 
Endorsement 

Under 
Review 

Endorsement 
4: War and 
Terrorism 
Exclusion 
Endorsement 

See Policy 

The following exclusion will be added to this endorsement: 
 

(3) seizure or destruction under quarantine or customs 
regulations, confiscation by order of any government or 
public authority, or risks of contraband or illegal 
transportation or trade. 

Under 
Review 

Endorsement 
5: Coverage 
Territory 
Limitation 
Endorsement 

N/A 

See policy for wording. This endorsement is being included 
to exclude coverage for certain territories outside the 
United States. Territories listed on this exclusion include 
Cuba, North Korea, Venezuela and many more. See 
Endorsement 5 for the full listing. 

Under 
Review 

 
Page 341 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

  Agenda Item H.2.b. 
 

APIP POLLUTION 
 

INFORMATION ITEM 
 
 
ISSUE: The APIP program has traditionally included pollution coverage as part of its group purchase 
of property coverage. This year the policy is renewing with the same insurer, Ironshore Specialty. 
 
Ironshore has offered terms as expiring with a few changes that are provided in the attached proposal. 
The coverage limits and deductibles remain the same. Exclusions for Divested Property and Insured’s 
Professional Services are two new exclusions.  
 
The proposal and remaining changes per the attached will be reviewed during the meeting.      
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and continue to include purchase of the APIP Pollution coverage as 
part of the annual renewal.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None from this item. Total cost of $10,898 ($11,169 last year) included in the 
overall APIP renewal.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: The APIP coverage has included pollution insurance since 2012/13.     
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Pollution Liability Coverage Proposal 
  

 
Page 342 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 1 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

 
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 

ALLIANT PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM (APIP) 
  

POLLUTION LIABILITY COVERAGE SUMMARY 
 
TYPE OF INSURANCE:    Insurance   Reinsurance  
  
TYPE OF COVERAGE: Claims Made and Reported Pollution Liability 
  
PROGRAM: Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) 
  
NAMED INSURED: Any member(s), entity(ies), agency(ies), organization(s), enterprise(s), pool(s), Joint Powers 

Authority(ies) and/or individual(s) attached to each Declaration insured as per Named Insured 
Schedule on file with Insurer, listed below. 

  
POLICY PERIOD:  July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2023 

  
RETROACTIVE DATE:  July 1, 2011 for Waste Disposal; 

 July 1, 2022 for Products Pollution and Exposure Liability; 
 July 1, 2022 for Contractor’s Pollution 
 July 1, 2021 for Mold Matter 
 July 1, 2011 Disinfection Event 
 
This coverage shall only apply if the Pollution Incident or Disinfection Event giving rise to the 
Claim, Loss, Business Interruption Expenses or Extra Expenses commenced, in its entirety, 
on or after July 1, 2011, or the date that the Insured first joined the Alliant Property Insurance 
Program (APIP) for environmental or pollution insurance coverage, whichever is later. 

  
COMPANY: Ironshore Specialty Insurance Company 
  
A.M. BEST 
INSURANCE RATING:: 

A, Excellent, Financial Size Category XV 
($2 Billion or greater) 
Effective June 29, 2021 

  
STANDARD & POORS 
RATING: 

A (Strong) as of November 25, 2020 

  
ADMITTED STATUS: Non-Admitted in all states. 
  
COVERED PROPERTY: Per the following SOVs submitted and on file with carrier: 

 
1. PEPIP DEC 1 – SOVs 
2. PEPIP DEC 2 – SOVs 
3. PEPIP DEC 3 – SOVs 
4. PEPIP DEC 4 – SOVs 
5. PEPIP DEC 5 – SOVs 
6. PEPIP DEC 11 – SOVs 
7. PEPIP DEC 12 – SOVs 
8. PEPIP DEC 14 – SOVs 
9. PEPIP DEC 19 – SOVs 
10. PEPIP DEC 23 – SOVs 
11. PEPIP DEC 24 – SOVs 

 

12. PEPIP DEC 26 – SOVs 
13. PEPIP DEC 27 – SOVs 
14. PEPIP DEC 28 – SOVs 
15. PEPIP DEC 29 – SOVs 
16. PEPIP DEC 30 – SOVs 
17. PEPIP DEC 32 – SOVs (Excludes SPIP, 

except as endorsed) 
18. PEPIP DEC 33 – SOVs 
19. PEPIP DEC 34 – SOVs 
20. PEPIP DEC 35 – SOVs 
21. PEPIP DEC 97 – SOVs – Excluding 

HARPP members 
  
 Covered locations include any real property owned, leased, rented, operated or occupied by 

the Insured at policy inception.  Covered locations also include any subsurface potable water, 
wastewater or storm water pipes to or from a covered property that are located within a one 
thousand (1,000) foot radius of such covered location as of policy inception. 

 
Page 343 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 2 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

 
COVERAGES & LIMITS: 

$25,000,000 

$  2,000,000 

$  2,000,000 

$  2,000,000 

 
Policy Program Aggregate (all insureds combined) 

Per Pollution Incident  

Per Named Insured Aggregate 

Per JPA/Pool Aggregate 

   
SUB-LIMITS: $     100,000 

$     100,000 

$     250,000 

$     250,000 

$  1,000,000 

 
$  1,000,000 

$  2,000,000 

$  2,000,000 

$     250,000 
 

$  2,000,000 

$  5,000,000 

$  1,000,000 
 

$  2,000,000 

$  5,000,000 

$  1,000,000 

$  5,000,000 

 Disinfection Event Expenses Per Pollution Incident* 

Disinfection Event Expenses Coverage Aggregate* 

Image Restoration Expenses Per Pollution Incident* 

Image Restoration Expenses Coverage Aggregate* 

Restoration Costs, Business Interruption and Extra Expense 
Aggregate (Mold Matter Only)* 

Legionella Per Pollution Incident* 

Sewer Backup or Overcharge Per Pollution Incident* 

Lead or Lead Containing Materials Aggregate Sublimit* 

Any Punitive, Exemplary and Multiplied Damages and Civil Fines, 
Penalties and Assessments* 

Products Pollution and Exposure Liability Per Pollution Incident* 

Products Pollution and Exposure Liability Aggregate* 

Contractor’s Pollution Per Pollution Incident - Herbicide, Insecticide, 
Pesticide Applications Only* 

Contractor’s Pollution Per Pollution Incident - All other Operations* 

Contractors Pollution Aggregate* 

Wildfire Per Pollution Incident* 

Wildfire Aggregate Sublimit* 

   
*Note: the above sub-limits payable under this coverage do not increase and are not 
in addition to the applicable limit of liability. 

   
EXTENDED REPORTING 
PERIOD: 

 Automatic Extended Reporting Period 
 
The Named Insured shall be entitled to an Automatic Extended Reporting Period for a 
period of ninety (90) days following the effective date of termination of this Policy for no 
additional premium. This automatic ERP does not apply if the insured has purchased 
other insurance to replace the insurance provided by this policy.  

   
SPECIFIC COVERAGE 
PROVISIONS: 

 CLAIMS MADE AND REPORTED 
 
Coverage A.1 – Onsite Pollution: 
Coverage for Remediation Expenses incurred exclusively for remediation of Pollutants 
that are on, at or under a Covered Property, provided such Remediation Expenses are 
incurred to address Onsite Pollution and directly result from New Conditions. 

   
  Coverage A.2 – OffSite Pollution: 

Coverage for Remediation Expenses incurred exclusively for remediation of Pollutants 
that are beyond the boundaries of the Covered Property, provided such Remediation 
Expenses are incurred to address Offsite Pollution and result from New Conditions. 

 
Page 344 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 3 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

   
SPECIFIC COVERAGE 
PROVISIONS - 
CONTINUED: 

 Coverage B – Emergency Response Expenses 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Emergency Response Expenses incurred by or on 
behalf of the Insured in response to an imminent and substantial threat to human health 
or the environment resulting from a Pollution Incident on, at , under or migrating from a 
Covered Property or arising from Transportation that commences, in its entirety, during 
the policy period. The Emergency Response Expenses must: (i) be incurred within 
seven (7) days of the commencement of such Pollution Incident; and (ii) be reported to 
the Insurer within fourteen (14) days of such commencement. For this Coverage to 
apply, the Pollution Incident giving rise to the Emergency Response Expenses must be 
unexpected and unintended from the standpoint of the Insured. 

   
  Coverage C.1 – Third Party Claims - Onsite Pollution 

Onsite Pollution as a consequence of New Conditions. if such Bodily Injury or Property 
Damage takes place while the person injured or the property damaged is within the 
boundaries of the Covered Property. 

   
  Coverage C.2 – Third Party Claims -Offsite Pollution 

Offsite Pollution as a consequence of New Conditions. if such Bodily Injury or Property 
Damage takes place while the person injured or the property damaged is beyond the 
boundaries of the Covered Property. 

   
  Coverage D – Transportation 

To pay on behalf of the Insured, Loss that the Insured becomes legally obligated to pay 
as a result of Claims for Bodily Injury, Property Damage or Remediation Expenses 
directly resulting from New Conditions, which arise from Transportation, provided such 
Claims are first made against the Insured and reported to the Company in writing during 
the Policy Period. 

   
  Coverage E – Waste Disposal Activities: 

To pay on behalf of the Insured, Loss that the Insured becomes legally obligated to pay 
as a result of Claims for Bodily Injury, Property Damage or Remediation Expenses 
directly resulting from a Pollution Incident resulting from Waste Disposal Activities. The 
Waste Disposal Activities must take place on or after the Waste Disposal Retroactive 
Date set forth in the Declarations, or the date that the Insured first began operations if 
no Waste Disposal Retroactive Date is indicated in the Declarations. This Coverage 
shall apply only if such Claims are first made against the Insured and reported to the 
Company in writing during the Policy Period, or during the Extended Reporting Period 
if applicable. 

   
  Coverage F – Business Interruption: 

To pay the Insured’s Business Interruption Expenses and Extra Expenses during the 
Period of Interruption that directly results from Onsite Pollution arising from New 
Conditions. 
This Coverage shall apply only if the Pollution Incident giving rise to the Business 
Interruption Expenses or Extra Expenses is first discovered by the Insured and reported 
to the Company, in writing, during the Policy Period, and such Pollution Incident results 
in Remediation Expenses covered under this Policy. Discovery of a Pollution Incident 
happens when a Responsible Insured first becomes aware of the Pollution Incident. 
Further, if the Period of Interruption results from a Pollution Incident and any other 
cause(s), the Company shall only pay that portion of Business Interruption Expenses 
and Extra Expenses solely attributable to the Pollution Incident. 

 
Page 345 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 4 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

   
SPECIFIC COVERAGE 
PROVISIONS - 
CONTINUED: 

 Coverage G – Coverage for Disinfection Event Expenses 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Disinfection Expenses that directly result from a 
Disinfection Event at a Covered Property, provided that the Disinfection Event 
commences, in its entirety, during the Policy Period; such Disinfection Expenses are 
incurred within thirty (30) days of the first discovery of such Disinfection Event by a 
Responsible Insured; and the Insured reports the Disinfection Event to the Company, 
in writing, during the Policy Period and within fourteen (14) days of a Responsible 
Insured’s first discovery of such Disinfection Event. 
Disinfection Expenses means reasonable fees and costs incurred by the Insured to 
retain third party qualified vendors to disinfect the actual presence of bacteria or virus 
at a Covered Property after a Disinfection Event.   

   
  Coverage H – Coverage for Image Restoration Expenses  

To pay on behalf of the Insured, Image Restoration Expenses that directly result from 
an Image Restoration Event, provided that the Pollution Incident giving rise to the 
Image Restoration Event is on, at, under or migrating from a Covered Property or 
results from Transportation or Waste Disposal Activities; the Pollution Incident giving 
rise to the Image Restoration Expenses commenced, in its entirety, during the Policy 
Period; such Image Restoration Expenses are incurred by the Insured within fourteen 
(14) days of the first newspaper or magazine publication or television news broadcast 
associated with the Pollution Incident giving rise to the Image Restoration. Event; and 
the Pollution Incident giving rise to the Image Restoration Expenses is reported to the 
Company, in writing, during the Policy Period and within fourteen (14) days of a 
Responsible Insured’s first discovery of such Image Restoration Event. 
Image Restoration Expenses are defined as reasonable and necessary public relations 
expenses to restore public reputation and consumer confidence.  Image Restoration 
Expenses shall include fees and expenses incurred by public relations or crisis 
management firms and reasonable and necessary printing, mailing of materials and 
travel by directors, officers, employees or agents of the Named Insured at the direction 
of such firms.  Image Restoration Expenses shall not include the costs to purchase 
advertising on television, in newspapers or in any other media. 

   
  Supplemental coverage for Contractors Pollution is included.  This coverage covers 

third-party claims arising out of “your work”, provided the claim is first made and 
reported during the policy period.  The Contractor’s Pollution must have commenced 
on or after 7/1/2022. 

   
  Supplemental coverage for Products Pollution and Exposure Liability is included.  This 

coverage covers third-party claims arising out of product pollution, provided the claim 
is first made and reported during the policy period.  The Products Pollution must have 
commenced on or after 7/1/2022. 

   
  Automatic Acquisition – Coverage for mid-term transactions for values that are less 

than $25,000,000 shall be added as a covered location, upon the closing date of such 
acquisition, or the effective date of such lease, management, rental or occupation 
right or obligation, respectively, for no additional premium. An application and 
notification of title or occupancy must be provided to Ironshore within 180 days. 
 
Property valued at more than $25,000,000 purchased, leased or otherwise acquired by 
the Insured needs to be reported to the Insurer within 180 days, along with a completed 
and signed Site Pollution Incident Legal Liability Select Application and shall be added 
as a covered location upon the closing date of such acquisition subject to an additional 
premium of $0.007164 per $1,000 of Total Insurable Values, pro-rated with a minimum 
premium of $450. There will be no additional premium for any Covered Property with 
Total Insurable Values which are less than $25,000,000.  

   
  Illicit Abandonment is included in the definition of pollution condition. 

 
Page 346 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 5 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

   
SPECIFIC COVERAGE 
PROVISIONS - 
CONTINUED: 

 Other Insurance Condition 
Any Loss covered under any other valid and collectible insurance, whether primary, 
excess, contingent, self-insurance, deductible or any other basis, including but not 
limited to the policies scheduled below and any renewals or replacements thereof; 
however, this insurance shall apply in excess of any such other valid and collectible 
insurance.  

   
  Mold matter and Legionella is included in the definition of Pollutant.  Mold matter is 

defined as mold, mildew and fungi, whether or not such microbial matter is living. 
   
  Wildfire is defined as any hostile fire, wildland fire, forest fire, brush fire, vegetation fire, 

grass fire, peat fire, bushfire, hill hire, desert fire, veldfire, escaped prescribed fire or 
escaped wildland fire. 

   
  Blanket Underground Storage Tank coverage included, with a deductible of $500,000 

for storage tanks less than twenty-five years old, and a deductible of $1,000,000 for 
storage tanks older than twenty-five years.  Note: Does not meet financial assurance 
requirements. 

   
  Loss covered pursuant to any state storage tank fund, state administered insurance 

program or restoration funding for any underground storage tank(s) whose owners 
qualify for reimbursement, or any self-insurance fund established for the purpose of 
funding clean-up costs for pollution conditions from any underground storage tank(s), 
shall be considered primary insurance, to which the coverage afforded pursuant to this 
policy shall apply in excess. 

 
Page 347 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 6 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

   
  Blanket Coverage included for Non-Owned Disposal Sites.  Includes any transfer, 

storage, treatment or disposal facilities which are used by the Insured, but not owned, 
operated or rented by the Insured, provided that the transfer, storage, treatment or 
disposal facility is not listed or proposed to be listed on the Federal National Priorities 
List, or any equivalent state or local list as of policy inception.   
The BKK Landfill located at 2210 South Azusa Avenue, West Covina, CA is specifically 
excluded from coverage. 
 
Sudden and Accidental Coverage Only (loss must be discovered within 7 days of 
commencement and reported no later than 21 days following the discovery, and within 
the policy period) applies for the following locations: 

1. Any location with current or historic use as an airport;  
2. MAPLE (SOUTH) - 519 ENTRANCE OFF POMONA CORONA CA 92880  
3. 1018 COTTONWOOD CORONA CA 92879  
4. 1200 TENTH ST. (WEST) CORONA CA 92882  
5. 102 LINCOLN (NORTH) CORONA CA 92882  
6. 1052 QUARRY CORONA CA 92879  
7. 34 CRESTRIDGE CORONA CA 92880  
8. 219 GRAND (WEST) CORONA CA 92882  
9. 25225 MAITRI RD. CORONA CA 92883  
10. 24650 GLEN IVY RD. CORONA CA 92883  
11. 405 SIERRA VISTA AVE. CORONA CA 92882  
12. 315 MERILL ST (SOUTH) CORONA CA 92882  
13. 310 VICENTIA (SOUTH) CORONA CA 92882  
14. 710 CORPORATION YARD WAY CORONA CA 92880  
15. 2581 MANGULAR CORONA CA 92882  
16. 202 BUENA VISTA AVE. (NORTH) CORONA CA 92882  
17. 240 BUENA VISTA AVE. CORONA CA 92882  
18. 211 BUENA VISTA AVE. (SOUTH) CORONA CA 92882  
19. 9865 GLEN IVY RD. CORONA CA 92883  
20. 917 CIRCLE CITY DR. CORONA CA 92879  
21. 219 JOY (SOUTH) CORONA CA 92879  
22. 505 VICENTIA (SOUTH) CORONA CA 92882  
23. 1865 POMONA RD CORONA CA 92880 

 
Page 348 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 7 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

EXCLUSIONS (including 
but not limited to): 

 Coverage does not apply to any claim or loss from: 
 Asbestos and Lead –  

o Any asbestos, asbestos containing materials, lead or lead-containing 
materials, including but not limited to lead-based paint, in, on, at, within or 
applied to any building, utility, structure or building material; this does not 
apply to third-party claims for bodily injury or property damage, or for 
remediation of any soil, groundwater body, surface water body or sediment;  

o Any asbestos, asbestos containing materials, lead or lead-containing 
materials, other metals, including but not limited to copper, or metal 
containing materials in, on or applied to any water supply or  collection 
equipment, system or infrastructure, including but not limited to water service 
lines; this does not apply to third-party claims for bodily injury or property 
damage, or for remediation of any groundwater body, surface water body or 
sediment; 

This exclusion also does not apply to remediation expenses solely incurred for the 
remediation of asbestos, asbestos-containing materials or lead-based paint which 
has been inadvertently displaced (not including any displacement associated with 
demolition, renovation or abatement) by an accident which occurs, in its entirety, 
during the policy period, and is reported to the Insurer within thirty (30 days of 
commencement.  Asbestos is fully excluded under Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability coverage. 

 Contractual Liability – This exclusion does not apply to liability that the Insured 
would have had in the absence of the contract or agreement or to liability 
assumed in an Insured Contract. 

 Criminal Punishments 
 Divested Property 
 Employer Liability – This exclusion applies whether the Insured may be liable as 

an employer or in any other capacity, and to any obligation to share damages 
with or repay someone else who must pay damages because of such Bodily 
Injury. 

 Insured’s Internal Expenses 
 Insured’s Non-Compliance 
 Insured vs. Insured 
 Insured’s Professional Services – any professional services performed or 

rendered on behalf of the Insured, including but not limited to, medical services, 
recommendations, opinions and strategies rendered for architectural, consulting 
and engineering work, such as drawings, designs, maps, reports, surveys, 
change orders, plan specifications, assessment work, remedy selections site 
maintenance and equipment selection, and supervisory, inspection or engineering 
service. 

 Material Change In Use – This exclusion shall not apply if the Insured submits 
prior written notice no less than thirty (30) days prior to such material change, and 
the Company approves such material change in an endorsement to this Policy 
issued within thirty (30) days of such notice. 

 Non-Disclosure 
 Prior Claims (prior to July 1, 2021) 
 Nuclear or Radiological Material 
 Property Damage to Conveyances 
 War 
 Workers Compensation, Unemployment, Social Security, Disability and Similar 

Laws 
 Airports – defined as any airport where enplanement occurs and/o cargo is 

moved for a fee and storage, transportation and the dispensing of fuel and/or de-
icing solution operations are conducted.  This exclusion shall not apply to 
passenger airports with less than 2,500 passenger boardings per year. 

 Oil and/or Gas Producing or Refining Facilities 
 Firing Ranges 

 
Page 349 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 8 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

 Activity Use Limitation 
EXCLUSIONS (including 
but not limited to, Cont.): 

  Landfill Closure, Post-Closure and Reclamation Costs 
 Landfill Material 
 Odor 
 Impoundments 
 Engineering Controls / Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Costs 
 Groundwater and Surface Water Monitoring Costs 
 Known Pollution Incidents (known prior to July 1, 2021) 
 COVID-19 
 Capital Improvement – Applies to any auto repair facility, airport, golf course, fuel 

depot, fuel storage, or removal, replacement, repair or upgrade of an 
underground storage tank. 

 Voluntary Site Investigation (any pollutant discovered during voluntary 
investigation is excluded at any auto repair facility, airport, golf course, fuel depot, 
or fuel storage only)  

 Expected or Intended Injury or Damage (Product Pollution and Covered 
Operations only) 

 Known Injury or Damage (Product Pollution and Covered Operations only) 
 Product Disposal (Product Pollution Only) 
 Products as Waste (Product Pollution Only) 
 Transportation (Product Pollution only) 
 Conveyance (Covered Operations only) 
 Business Interruption (Covered Operations Only) 
 Damage to Your Product (Product Pollution Only) 
 Damage to Property (Covered Operations Only) 
 Damage to Your Work (Covered Operations Only) 
 Waste Products, Treatment or Disposal (Covered Operations Only) 
 Any perfluoroalkyl or polyfluoroalkyl substance (PFAS), including but not limited 

to perfluoroalkyl acids (PFAAs), perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA), perfluorooctane 
sulfonate (PFOS), perfluoroheptanoic acid (PFHpA), perfluorononanoic acid 
(PFNA), perfluorohexanesulfonic acid (PFHxS), GenX, C8, ADONA, 
perfluoroalkane sulfonyl fluoride (PASF), perfluorobutanesulfonic acid (PFBS), 
polytetrafluoroethylene (PTFE), perfluoropolyethers (PFPEs), fluoropolymers, 
perfluorononanoic acid, ammonium perfluorooctanoate, or any associated salts, 
acids, alcohols, precursor chemicals or related higher homologue chemicals.  
This also includes aqueous film forming foam (AFFF) containing PFAS (at any 
concentration) or any additives or component materials contained therein or 
degradation byproducts thereof. 

   
DEDUCTIBLE: $     250,000 

$     500,000 

 Each Pollution Incident After July 1, 2021 

Each Pollution Incident Prior to July 1, 2021 

   
 Any payments for covered loss paid by other insurance shall also be applied against the 

deductible amount. 
   
SPECIFIC 
DEDUCTIBLES: 

$     250,000 

$     250,000 

$     250,000 

$     250,000 

 

$     500,000 

$     500,000 

 

 

 

* 

Disinfection Event Expenses 

Products Pollution and Exposure Liability 

Covered Operations 

Mold Matter (*or $50,000 per room impacted, whichever is greater – a 
room is considered equal to 250 sq ft of floor space) 

Legionella 

Sewer Backup or Overcharge deductible 

  

 
Page 350 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 9 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

   
SPECIFIC 
DEDUCTIBLES, Cont.: 

$     500,000 

$  1,000,000 

 Underground Storage Tanks (less than 25 years old) 

Underground Storage Tanks (more than 25 years old) 

   

 
 
 
 

CLAIMS REPORTING NOTICE 

PLEASE NOTE THAT POLLUTION LIABILITY POLICIES CONTAIN EXTREMELY STRICT CLAIM REPORTING 
PROCEDURES.  Below please find your policy specific claim reporting requirements - Please make sure you 
understand these obligations.  Contact your Alliant Service Team with any questions. 

THIS IS A CLAIMS MADE POLICY 

This claims-made policy contains a requirement stating that this policy applies only to any claim first made 
against the Insured and reported to the insurer during the policy period or applicable extended reporting 
period.  Claims must be submitted to the insurer during the policy period, or applicable extended reporting 
period, as required pursuant to the Claims/Loss Notification Clause within the policy in order for coverage to 
apply.  Late reporting or failure to report pursuant to the policy’s requirements could result in a disclaimer of 
coverage by the insurer. 

 
LOSS REPORTING 
REQUIREMENTS: 
 

 
Written notice of any claim or pollution condition, within seven (7) days of discovery for 
pollution conditions requiring immediate emergency response.  Concurrently, please 
send to: 
 
1) Ironshore Environmental Claims CSO 
    28 Liberty Street, 5th Floor 

New York, NY 10005 Office 
By phone via: 24 Hour Claims Phone Number (888) 292-0249 
FAX to: 646-826-6601 
Email: USClaims@ironshore.com 

 
2) Akbar Sharif 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
1301 Dove Street, Suite 200 
Newport Beach, CA  92660 
949 260-5088 
949 756-2713 – fax 

    Akbar.Sharif@alliant.com  
 

 
NOTICE OF 
CANCELLATION: 

 
90 days except 10 days for non-payment of premium 

  
REINSTATEMENT 
PROVISIONS: 

Not Provided 

  
POLLUTION LIABILITY 
COST: 

Cost is included in Total Property Premium 
100% Earned Premium at Inception 

  
QUOTE VALID UNTIL: July 1, 2022 

  
BROKER: ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 

License No. 0C36861 
 

 
Page 351 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 11 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

Pollution Liability 
Policy Term 

July 1, 2021 to July 1,2022 July 1, 2022 to July 1,2023 

Retroactive Date 

 July 1, 2011 for Waste Disposal; 
 July 1, 2021 for Products Pollution and 

Exposure Liability; 
 July 1, 2021 for Contractor’s Pollution 
 July 1, 2021 for Mold Matter 
 July 1, 2011 Disinfection Event 
 
This coverage shall only apply if the Pollution 
Incident or Disinfection Event giving rise to the 
Claim, Loss, Business Interruption Expenses or 
Extra Expenses commenced, in its entirety, on 
or after July 1, 2011, or the date that the 
Insured first joined the Alliant Property 
Insurance Program (APIP) for environmental or 
pollution insurance coverage, whichever is 
later. 

 July 1, 2011 for Waste Disposal; 
 July 1, 2022 for Products Pollution and Exposure 

Liability; 
 July 1, 2022 for Contractor’s Pollution 
 July 1, 2021 for Mold Matter 
 July 1, 2011 Disinfection Event 
 
This coverage shall only apply if the Pollution Incident or 
Disinfection Event giving rise to the Claim, Loss, Business 
Interruption Expenses or Extra Expenses commenced, in 
its entirety, on or after July 1, 2011, or the date that the 
Insured first joined the Alliant Property Insurance Program 
(APIP) for environmental or pollution insurance coverage, 
whichever is later. 

A.M. Best Insurance 
Rating 

A, Excellent, Financial Category XV 
($2 Billion or greater) 
Effective June 26, 2020 

A, Excellent, Financial Category XV 
($2 Billion or greater) 
Effective June 29, 2021 

Sub-limits 

$     100,000 Disinfection Event Expenses 
Per Pollution Incident* 

$     100,000 
 

Disinfection Event Expenses 
Per Pollution Incident* 

$     100,000 Disinfection Event Expenses 
Coverage Aggregate* 

$     100,000 
 

Disinfection Event Expenses 
Coverage Aggregate* 

$     250,000 Image Restoration Expenses 
Per Pollution Incident* 

$     250,000 
 

Image Restoration Expenses 
Per Pollution Incident* 

$     250,000 Image Restoration Expenses 
Coverage Aggregate* 

$     250,000 
 

Image Restoration Expenses 
Coverage Aggregate* 

$     500,000 Mold Matter Aggregate Sub-
limit (K-12 Schools Only, per 
School)* 

N/A 

N/A $  2,000,000 
 

Lead or Lead Containing 
Materials Aggregate Sub-limit* 

$  1,000,000 Restoration Costs Aggregate 
(Mold Matter Only)* 

$  1,000,000 

 

Restoration Costs, Business 
Interruption and Extra 
Expense Aggregate (Mold 
Matter Only)* 

$  1,000,000 Legionella Per Pollution 
Incident* 

$  1,000,000 
 

Legionella Per Pollution 
Incident* 

$  2,000,000 Sewer Backup or Overcharge 
Per Pollution Incident* 

$  2,000,000 
 

Sewer Backup or Overcharge 
Per Pollution Incident* 

$     250,000 Any Punitive, Exemplary and 
Multiplied Damages and Civil 
Fines, Penalties and 
Assessments Fines* 

$     250,000 

 

Any Punitive, Exemplary and 
Multiplied Damages and Civil 
Fines, Penalties and 
Assessments Fines* 

 
Page 352 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 12 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

$  2,000,000 Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability Per Pollution 
Incident* 

$  2,000,000 

 

Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability Per 
Pollution Incident* 

Sub-limits 
(Continued) 

$  5,000,000 Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability Aggregate* 

$  5,000,000 
 

Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability Aggregate* 

$  1,000,000 Contractor’s Pollution Per 
Pollution Incident - Herbicide, 
Insecticide, Pesticide 
Applications Only* 

$  1,000,000 

 

Contractor’s Pollution Per 
Pollution Incident - Herbicide, 
Insecticide, Pesticide 
Applications Only* 

$  2,000,000 Contractor’s Pollution Per 
Pollution Incident - All other 
Operations* 

$  2,000,000 

 

Contractor’s Pollution Per 
Pollution Incident - All other 
Operations* 

$  5,000,000 Contractors Pollution 
Aggregate* 

$  5,000,000 
 

Contractors Pollution 
Aggregate* 

N/A $  1,000,000 
 

Wildfire Per Pollution Incident* 

N/A $  5,000,000 
 

Wildfire Aggregate Sublimit* 

*Note: the above sub-limits payable under this 
coverage do not increase and are not in 
addition to the applicable limit of liability. 

*Note: the above sub-limits payable under this coverage 
do not increase and are not in addition to the applicable 
limit of liability. 

Coverages 

Coverage A.1 – Onsite Pollution: 
Coverage for Remediation Expenses incurred 
exclusively for remediation of Pollutants that 
are on or under a Covered Property, provided 
such Remediation Expenses arise from Onsite 
Pollution and result from New Conditions. 

Coverage A.1 – Onsite Pollution: 
Coverage for Remediation Expenses incurred exclusively 
for remediation of Pollutants that are on, at or under a 
Covered Property, provided such Remediation Expenses 
are incurred to address Onsite Pollution and directly result 
from New Conditions. 

Coverage A.2 – OffSite Pollution: 
Coverage for Remediation Expenses incurred 
exclusively for remediation of Pollutants that 
are beyond the boundaries of the Covered 
Property, provided such Remediation Expenses 
arise from Offsite Pollution and result from New 
Conditions. 

Coverage A.2 – OffSite Pollution: 
Coverage for Remediation Expenses incurred exclusively 
for remediation of Pollutants that are beyond the 
boundaries of the Covered Property, provided such 
Remediation Expenses are incurred to address Offsite 
Pollution and result from New Conditions. 

Coverage B – Emergency Response Expenses 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Emergency 
Response Expenses incurred by or on behalf of 
the Insured in response to an imminent and 
substantial threat to human health or the 
environment. The Emergency Response 
Expenses must: (i) arise from a Pollution 
Incident that first commenced during the Policy 
Period; (ii) be incurred within seven (7) days of 
the commencement of such Pollution Incident; 
and (iii) be reported to the Company within 
fourteen (14) days of the commencement of 
such Pollution Incident. For this Coverage to 
apply, the Pollution Incident giving rise to the 
Emergency Response Expenses must be 
unexpected and unintended from the standpoint 
of the Insured. 

Coverage B – Emergency Response Expenses 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Emergency Response 
Expenses incurred by or on behalf of the Insured in 
response to an imminent and substantial threat to human 
health or the environment resulting from a Pollution 
Incident on, at , under or migrating from a Covered 
Property or arising from Transportation that commences, 
in its entirety, during the policy period. The Emergency 
Response Expenses must: (i) be incurred within seven (7) 
days of the commencement of such Pollution Incident; 
and (ii) be reported to the Insurer within fourteen (14) 
days of such commencement. For this Coverage to apply, 
the Pollution Incident giving rise to the Emergency 
Response Expenses must be unexpected and unintended 
from the standpoint of the Insured. 

 
Page 353 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 13 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

Coverages 
(Continued) 

Coverage D – Transportation 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Loss that the 
Insured becomes legally obligated to pay as a 
result of Claims for Bodily Injury, Property 
Damage or Remediation Expenses resulting 
from New Conditions, which arise from 
Transportation, provided such Claims are first 
made against the Insured and reported to the 
Company in writing during the Policy Period. 

Coverage D – Transportation 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Loss that the Insured 
becomes legally obligated to pay as a result of Claims for 
Bodily Injury, Property Damage or Remediation Expenses 
directly resulting from New Conditions, which arise from 
Transportation, provided such Claims are first made 
against the Insured and reported to the Company in writing 
during the Policy Period. 

Coverage E – Waste Disposal Activities: 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Loss that the 
Insured becomes legally obligated to pay as a 
result of Claims for Bodily Injury, Property 
Damage or Remediation Expenses that arise 
from a Pollution Incident resulting from Waste 
Disposal Activities. The Waste Disposal 
Activities must take place on or after the Waste 
Disposal Retroactive Date set forth in Item 10. 
of the Declarations, or the date that the Insured 
first began operations if no Waste Disposal 
Retroactive Date is indicated in the 
Declarations. This Coverage shall apply only if 
such Claims are first made against the Insured 
and reported to the Company in writing during 
the Policy Period, or during the Extended 
Reporting Period if applicable. 

Coverage E – Waste Disposal Activities: 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Loss that the Insured 
becomes legally obligated to pay as a result of Claims for 
Bodily Injury, Property Damage or Remediation Expenses 
directly resulting from a Pollution Incident resulting from 
Waste Disposal Activities. The Waste Disposal Activities 
must take place on or after the Waste Disposal 
Retroactive Date set forth in the Declarations, or the date 
that the Insured first began operations if no Waste 
Disposal Retroactive Date is indicated in the Declarations. 
This Coverage shall apply only if such Claims are first 
made against the Insured and reported to the Company in 
writing during the Policy Period, or during the Extended 
Reporting Period if applicable. 

Coverage F – Business Interruption: 
To pay the Insured’s Business Interruption 
Expenses and Extra Expenses during the Period 
of Interruption that directly results from Onsite 
Pollution resulting from New Conditions. 
This Coverage shall apply only if the Pollution 
Incident giving rise to the Business Interruption 
Expenses or Extra Expenses is first discovered 
by the Insured and reported to the Company 
during the Policy Period, and such Pollution 
Incident results in Remediation Expenses 
covered under this Policy. Discovery of a 
Pollution Incident happens when a Responsible 
Insured first becomes aware of the Pollution 
Incident. Further, if the Period of Interruption 
results from a Pollution Incident and any other 
cause(s), the Company shall only pay that 
portion of Business Interruption Expenses and 
Extra Expenses solely attributable to the 
Pollution Incident. 

Coverage F – Business Interruption: 
To pay the Insured’s Business Interruption Expenses and 
Extra Expenses during the Period of Interruption that 
directly results from Onsite Pollution arising from New 
Conditions. 
This Coverage shall apply only if the Pollution Incident 
giving rise to the Business Interruption Expenses or Extra 
Expenses is first discovered by the Insured and reported 
to the Company, in writing, during the Policy Period, and 
such Pollution Incident results in Remediation Expenses 
covered under this Policy. Discovery of a Pollution 
Incident happens when a Responsible Insured first 
becomes aware of the Pollution Incident. Further, if the 
Period of Interruption results from a Pollution Incident and 
any other cause(s), the Company shall only pay that 
portion of Business Interruption Expenses and Extra 
Expenses solely attributable to the Pollution Incident. 

 
Page 354 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 14 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

Coverages 
(Continued) 

Covered but not Previously Listed  
(wording was under review) 

Coverage G – Coverage for Disinfection Event Expenses 
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Disinfection Expenses that 
directly result from a Disinfection Event at a Covered 
Property, provided that the Disinfection Event commences, 
in its entirety, during the Policy Period; such Disinfection 
Expenses are incurred within thirty (30) days of the first 
discovery of such Disinfection Event by a 
Responsible Insured; and the Insured reports the 
Disinfection Event to the Company, in writing, during the 
Policy Period and within fourteen (14) days of a 
Responsible Insured’s first discovery of such Disinfection 
Event. 
Disinfection Expenses means reasonable fees and costs 
incurred by the Insured to retain third party qualified 
vendors to disinfect the actual presence of bacteria or 
virus at a Covered Property after a Disinfection Event.   

Supplemental coverage for Contractors 
Pollution is included.  This coverage covers 
third-party claims arising out of “your work”, 
provided the claim is first made and reported 
during the policy period.  The Contractor’s 
Pollution must have commenced on or after 
7/1/2021. 

Supplemental coverage for Contractors Pollution is 
included.  This coverage covers third-party claims arising 
out of “your work”, provided the claim is first made and 
reported during the policy period.  The Contractor’s 
Pollution must have commenced on or after 7/1/2022. 

Supplemental coverage for Products Pollution 
and Exposure Liability is included.  This 
coverage covers third-party claims arising out 
of product pollution, provided the claim is first 
made and reported during the policy period.  
The Products Pollution must have commenced 
on or after 7/1/2021. 

Supplemental coverage for Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability is included.  This coverage covers third-
party claims arising out of product pollution, provided the 
claim is first made and reported during the policy period.  
The Products Pollution must have commenced on or after 
7/1/2022. 

Coverage for Image Restoration Expenses 
included, including fees and expenses incurred 
by public relations or crisis management firms 
and reasonable and necessary printing, mailing 
of materials and travel by directors, officers, 
employees or agents of the named insured at 
the direction of such a firm.  Image Restoration 
Expenses shall not include the costs to 
purchase advertising on television, in 
newspapers or in any other media with the prior 
written consent of the Insurer. 

Coverage H – Coverage for Image Restoration Expenses  
To pay on behalf of the Insured, Image Restoration 
Expenses that directly result from an Image Restoration 
Event, provided that the Pollution Incident giving rise to the 
Image Restoration Event is on, at, under or migrating from 
a Covered Property or results from Transportation or 
Waste Disposal Activities; the Pollution Incident giving 
rise to the Image Restoration Expenses commenced, in its 
entirety, during the Policy Period; such Image Restoration 
Expenses are incurred by the Insured within fourteen (14) 
days of the first newspaper or magazine publication or 
television news broadcast associated with the Pollution 
Incident giving rise to the Image Restoration. Event; and 
the Pollution Incident giving rise to the Image Restoration 
Expenses is reported to the Company, in writing, during the 
Policy Period and within fourteen (14) days of a 
Responsible Insured’s first discovery of such Image 
Restoration Event. 
Image Restoration Expenses are defined as reasonable 
and necessary public relations expenses to restore public 
reputation and consumer confidence.  Image Restoration 
Expenses shall include fees and expenses incurred by 
public relations or crisis management firms and reasonable 
and necessary printing, mailing of materials and travel by 
directors, officers, employees or agents of the Named 
Insured at the direction of such firms.  Image Restoration 
Expenses shall not include the costs to purchase 
advertising on television, in newspapers or in any other 
media. 

 
Page 355 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 15 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

Coverages 
(Continued) 

Automatic Acquisition – Coverage for mid-term 
transactions for values that are less than 
$25,000,000 shall be added as a covered 
location, upon the closing date of such 
acquisition, or the effective date of such lease, 
management, rental or occupation right or 
obligation, respectively, for no additional 
premium. An application and notification of title 
or occupancy must be provided to Ironshore 
within 180 days. 
 
Property valued at more than $25,000,000 
purchased, leased or otherwise acquired by the 
Insured needs to be reported to the Insurer 
within 180 days, along with a completed and 
signed Site Pollution Incident Legal Liability 
Select Application and shall be added as a 
covered location upon the closing date of such 
acquisition subject to an additional premium of 
$0.0006832 per $100 of Total Insurable Values, 
pro-rated with a minimum premium of $425. 
There will be no additional premium for any 
Covered Property with Total Insurable Values 
which are less than $25,000,000. 

Automatic Acquisition – Coverage for mid-term 
transactions for values that are less than $25,000,000 
shall be added as a covered location, upon the closing 
date of such acquisition, or the effective date of such 
lease, management, rental or occupation right or 
obligation, respectively, for no additional premium. An 
application and notification of title or occupancy must be 
provided to Ironshore within 180 days. 
 
Property valued at more than $25,000,000 purchased, 
leased or otherwise acquired by the Insured needs to be 
reported to the Insurer within 180 days, along with a 
completed and signed Site Pollution Incident Legal 
Liability Select Application and shall be added as a 
covered location upon the closing date of such acquisition 
subject to an additional premium of $0.007164 per $1,000 
of Total Insurable Values, pro-rated with a minimum 
premium of $450. There will be no additional premium for 
any Covered Property with Total Insurable Values which 
are less than $25,000,000. 

Blanket Underground Storage Tank coverage 
included, with a deductible of $750,000 for 
storage tanks less than twenty-five years old, 
and a deductible of $1,000,000 for storage 
tanks older than twenty-five years.  Note: Does 
not meet financial assurance requirements. 

Blanket Underground Storage Tank coverage included, 
with a deductible of $500,000 for storage tanks less than 
twenty-five years old, and a deductible of $1,000,000 for 
storage tanks older than twenty-five years.  Note: Does 
not meet financial assurance requirements. 

N/A 

Wildfire is defined as any hostile fire, wildland fire, forest 
fire, brush fire, vegetation fire, grass fire, peat fire, 
bushfire, hill hire, desert fire, veldfire, escaped prescribed 
fire or escaped wildland fire. 

 
Page 356 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 16 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

Exclusions 

Asbestos and Lead Based Paint – Any 
asbestos, asbestos containing materials or 
lead-based paint in, on, or applied to any 
building or other structure. This exclusion does 
not apply to Third-Party Claims, or to 
Remediation Expenses for the remediation of 
soil, surface water or groundwater, or for the 
remediation of asbestos, asbestos containing 
materials or lead based paint which has been 
inadvertently displaced by an accident which 
occurs, in its entirety, during the policy period. 
Lead in water is excluded.  

Asbestos and Lead –  
o Any asbestos, asbestos containing materials, 

lead or lead-containing materials, including but 
not limited to lead-based paint, in, on, at, within 
or applied to any building, utility, structure or 
building material; this does not apply to third-
party claims for bodily injury or property damage, 
or for remediation of any soil, groundwater body, 
surface water body or sediment;  

o Any asbestos, asbestos containing materials, 
lead or lead-containing materials, other metals, 
including but not limited to copper, or metal 
containing materials in, on or applied to any 
water supply or  collection equipment, system or 
infrastructure, including but not limited to water 
service lines; this does not apply to third-party 
claims for bodily injury or property damage, or for 
remediation of any groundwater body, surface 
water body or sediment; 

This exclusion also does not apply to remediation 
expenses solely incurred for the remediation of asbestos, 
asbestos-containing materials or lead-based paint which 
has been inadvertently displaced (not including any 
displacement associated with demolition, renovation or 
abatement) by an accident which occurs, in its entirety, 
during the policy period, and is reported to the Insurer 
within thirty (30 days of commencement.  Asbestos is fully 
excluded under Products Pollution and Exposure Liability 
coverage. 

Not Excluded Divested Property 

Not Excluded 

Insured’s Professional Services – any professional 
services performed or rendered on behalf of the Insured, 
including but not limited to, medical services, 
recommendations, opinions and strategies rendered for 
architectural, consulting and engineering work, such as 
drawings, designs, maps, reports, surveys, change 
orders, plan specifications, assessment work, remedy 
selections site maintenance and equipment selection, and 
supervisory, inspection or engineering service. 

Prior Claims Prior Claims (Prior to July 1, 2021) 

Airports, Landfills and/or Recycling Facilities, 
Oil and/or Gas Producing or Refining Facilities 

Airports – defined as any airport where enplanement 
occurs and/o cargo is moved for a fee and storage, 
transportation and the dispensing of fuel and/or de-icing 
solution operations are conducted.  This exclusion shall 
not apply to passenger airports with less than 2,500 
passenger boardings per year. 

Oil and/or Gas Producing or Refining Facilities 

Not Excluded Landfill Material 

 
Page 357 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 17 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

Coverage 2021-2022 2022-2023 Pending Changes 

Capital Improvement- Applies to any auto repair 
facility, airport, golf course, fuel depot, fuel 
storage, shooting ranges, or removal, 
replacement, repair or upgrade of an 
underground storage tank. 

Capital Improvement – Applies to any auto repair facility, 
airport, golf course, fuel depot, fuel storage, or removal, 
replacement, repair or upgrade of an underground 
storage tank. 

Exclusions 
(Continued) 

Voluntary Site Investigation (any pollutant 
discovered during voluntary investigation is 
excluded at any auto repair facility, airport, golf 
course, fuel depot, fuel storage, shooting ranges 
only)  

Voluntary Site Investigation (any pollutant discovered 
during voluntary investigation is excluded at any auto 
repair facility, airport, golf course, fuel depot, or fuel storage 
only)  

Transportation (Product Pollution and Covered 
Operations only) 

Transportation (Product Pollution only) 

Deductible 

$250,000 Each Pollution Incident After 
July 1, 2021 

$     250,000  Each Pollution Incident After 
July 1, 2021 

$500,000 Each Pollution Incident Prior to 
July 1, 2021 

$     500,000 

 

 Each Pollution Incident Prior to 
July 1, 2021 

$500,000 Sewage Backup and 
Overcharge 

$  500,000  Sewage Backup and 
Overcharge 

Specific Deductibles 

$250,000 Disinfection Event Expenses $     250,000  Disinfection Event Expenses 

$250,000 Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability 

$     250,000  Products Pollution and 
Exposure Liability 

$250,000 Covered Operations $     250,000  Covered Operations 

Specific Deductibles 
(Continued) 

$250,000* Mold Matter (*or $50,000 per 
room impacted, whichever is 
greater – a room is considered 
equal to 250 sq ft of floor space) 

$     250,000 * Mold Matter (*or $50,000 per 
room impacted, whichever is 
greater – a room is considered 
equal to 250 sq ft of floor 
space) 

$250,000 Legionella $     500,000  Legionella 

$500,000 Sewer Backup or Overcharge 
deductible 

$     500,000  Sewer Backup or Overcharge 
deductible 

$750,000 Underground Storage Tanks 
(less than 25 years old) 

$     500,000  Underground Storage Tanks 
(less than 25 years old) 

$1,000,000 Underground Storage Tanks 
(more than 25 years old) 

$  1,000,000  Underground Storage Tanks 
(more than 25 years old) 

Quote Valid Until July 1, 2021 July 1, 2022 

 
Page 358 of 526



 

  

 

SUMMARY OF PENDING CHANGES  

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PENDING CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Pollution Liability Coverage Summary Page 18 of 18 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund  

 

 

NOTES: 

• Some coverage, limits, sub-limits, terms and conditions will change, as negotiations are 
ongoing.  Changes will be documented and accompany the Binder Confirmation for July 1, 
2022 bound terms. 

• Major pending and approved changes to the APIP Program are described in the Executive 
Summary for renewing insureds. 

• This indication is based on the current loss experience and is subject to change if this 
insured’s 

loss ratio deteriorates further and/or if the markets suffer a catastrophic event 

• Coverage outlined in this Summary is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the 
policy. 

• Please refer to Policy for specific terms, conditions and exclusions – not yet finalized. 

• Change in Total Insurable Values and loss experience will result in adjustment in premium 

 

 
Page 359 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

  Agenda Item H.2.c. 
 

APIP CYBER COVERAGE RENEWALS  
 

INFORMATION ITEM 
 
 
ISSUE: Members of the Property Program are also provided Cyber Coverage with a $2M 
Insured/Member aggregate limit of liability.  Various sublimits apply to certain coverages including 
Cyber Extortion, Business Interruption from a Security Breach, and Hardware Replacement Costs. 
 
The Cyber Coverage proposal is attached and contains a review of the changes in the coverage for FY 
22/23. The extreme hard market for cyber coverage continues as indicated by a rate increase of 102%, 
but the marketing team has been able to maintain coverage as expiring with one exception - the addition 
of an aggregate sublimit for business interruption. The total aggregate limit is increasing from $40M to   
$45 million though the aggregate for pool members will remain at $40M.   
 
The proposal and remaining changes will be reviewed during the meeting.  
  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and continue to include purchase of the APIP Cyber coverage as part 
of the annual renewal.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None from this item. Total cost of $114,564 included in the overall APIP renewal. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: The JPA’s property policy through APIP includes Cyber Liability coverage. Each 
member of the JPA has its own $2 million Cyber Liability annual aggregate limit with sublimit of up to 
$1 million for Privacy Notification costs. The Privacy Notification costs erode the annual aggregate.  
 
 

ATTACHMENT(S): APIP Cyber Insurance Summary Proposal 

  

 
Page 360 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 1 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 
ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 

ALLIANT PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM (APIP) 
 

CYBER INSURANCE SUMMARY PROPOSAL 
 
 

 

TYPE OF COVERAGE: 

 
PROGRAM: 
 
 
 
NAMED INSURED: 
 

Information Security & Privacy Insurance with Electronic Media Liability Coverage 
 

Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) inclusive of  
Public Entity Property Insurance Program (PEPIP), and  
Hospital All Risk Property Program (HARPP) 
 
Any member(s), entity(ies), agency(ies), organization(s), enterprise(s) and/or individual(s), 
attaching to each Declaration insured under the ALLIANT PROPERTY INSURANCE 
PROGRAM (APIP), inclusive of PUBLIC ENTITY PROPERTY INSURANCE PROGRAM 
(PEPIP) and HOSPITAL ALL RISK PROPERTY PROGRAM (HARPP) as their respective 
rights and interests may appear which now exist or which hereafter may be created or 
acquired and which are owned, financially controlled or actively managed by the herein 
named interest, all jointly, severally or in any combination of their interests, for account of 
whom it may concern (all hereinafter referred to as Member(s) / Entity(ies). 

  
DECLARATION:  Various Declarations as on file with Insurer 
  
POLICY PERIOD:  July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2023 
  
POLICY #:  TBD 
  
TERRITORY: WORLD-WIDE 

RETROACTIVE DATE:   APIP/PEPIP 
For new insureds – the retro active date will be the date of addition 

July 1, 2022 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2022/23 policy 

July 1, 2021 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2021/22 policy 

July 1, 2020 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2020/21 policy  

July 1, 2019 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2019/20 policy  

July 1, 2018 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2018/19 policy 

July 1, 2017 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2017/18 policy 

July 1, 2016 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2016/17 policy 

July 1, 2015 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2015/16 policy 

July 1, 2014 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2014/15 policy 

July 1, 2013 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2013/14 policy 

July 1, 2012 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2012/13 policy 

July 1, 2011 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2011/12 policy 

July 1, 2010 For existing insured’s included on the July 1, 2010/11 policy 

 
CSU 
July 1, 2008 California State University and CSU Auxiliary Organizations  
  
  

  
  
INSURER: Lloyd’s of London - Beazley Syndicate:  

 
Page 361 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 2 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 
COVERAGES & 

LIMITS: 
Ai. $ 45,000,000 Annual Policy and Program Aggregate Limit of Liability 

(subject to policy exclusions) for all Insureds/Members 
combined (Aggregate for all coverages combined, including 
Claims Expenses), subject to the following limits and sub-limits 
as noted.  

 
 Aii. $ 40,000,000 JPA/Pool Annual Aggregate Limit of Liability, (subject to 

policy exclusions) for each JPA/Pool, within the Annual Policy 
and Program Aggregate Limit of Liability (Aggregate for all 
coverages combined, including Claim Expenses) subject to 
the following limits and sub-limits as noted 

   
 Aiii. $ 2,000,000 Insured/Member Annual Aggregate Limit of Liability 

(subject to policy exclusions) for each Insured/Member, within 
the Annual Policy and Program Aggregate Limit of Liability 
and JPA/Pool Annnual Aggregate Limit of Liability (Aggregate 
for all coverages combined, including Claim Expenses) 
subject to the following limits and sub-limits as noted. 

BREACH RESPONSE 

Breach Response 
Costs: 

  
 
 
$ 500,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member (Limit 

is increased to $1,000,000 if Beazley Nominated Services 
Providers are used) 

FIRST PARTY LOSS 

Business Interruption 
and Dependent 
Business Interruption 
Aggregate Sublimit 

Business Interruption 
Loss Resulting from 

Security Breach: 

  
Business Interruption 

Loss Resulting from 
System Failure: 

  
 
 
$ 750,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  
 
 
 
 
 
$ 750,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 

(Within the $750,000 Business Interruption and Dependent 
Business Interruption Aggregate Sublimit) 

 
$ 500,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 

(Within the $750,000 Business Interruption and Dependent 
Business Interruption Aggregate Sublimit) 

   

Syndicates 2623 - 623   - 100% 
Liberty Surplus Insurance Corporation (Ironshore) 
Associated Industries Insurance Company, Inc. (AmTrust Financial) 

 
Page 362 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 3 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Dependent Business 
Loss Resulting from 

Security Breach: 
 

Dependent Business 
Loss Resulting from 

System Failure: 
 
 

Cyber Extortion Loss: 
 
 

Data Recovery Costs: 
 

 $ 750,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 
                                     (Within the $750,000 Business Interruption and Dependent 

Business Interruption Aggregate Sublimit)  
 
$ 100,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 

(Within the $750,000 Business Interruption and Dependent 
Business Interruption Aggregate Sublimit) 

 
 
$ 750,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  
 
 
$ 750,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  

Data & Network 
Liability: 

Regulatory Defense & 
Penalties:  

  
$ 2,000,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member for all 

Damages and Claims Expenses  
 
$ 2,000,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  

   
Payment Card 

Liabilities & Costs: 
 

Media Liability: 

 $ 2,000,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  
 
 
$ 2,000,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member for all 

Damages and Claims Expenses  

eCRIME 

Fraudulent Instruction: 

Funds Transfer Fraud: 

Telephone Fraud: 

  
 
 
$ 75,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  
 
$ 75,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 
  
$ 75,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  

CRIMINAL REWARD 

Criminal Reward: 

  
 
 
$ 25,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  

COVERAGE 
ENDORSEMENT(S) 

Reputation Loss: 

Claims Preparation 
Costs for Reputation 

Loss Claims Only: 

  
 
 
 
$ 100,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  
 
$                     50,000   Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 

 
Page 363 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 4 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Computer Hardware 
Replacement Costs: 

Invoice Manipulation: 

Cryptojacking: 

  
$ 100,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member  
 
 
$ 100,000 Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 
 
$                    25,000   Aggregate Limit of Liability for each Insured/Member 
 

 
RETENTION: 

  
$ TBD CSU Auxiliary Organizations only  
$ 50,000 Per Claim for each Member/Insured with Total Insured Value 

(TIV) up to $250,000,000 at the time of policy inception 
 8 Hour waiting period for Dependent/Business Interruption Loss 
$ 100,000 Per Claim for each Member/Insured with Total Insured Value 

(TIV) greater than $250,000,000 and up to $750,000,000 at 
the time of policy inception 

 8 Hour waiting period for Dependent/Business Interruption Loss  
$ 250,000 Per Claim for each Member/Insured with Total Insured Value 

(TIV) greater than $750,000,000 at the time of policy inception 
                               8  Hour waiting period for Dependent/Business Interruption Loss 

   

NOTICES: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Policy coverage of this policy provides coverage on a claims made and reported 
basis; except as otherwise provided, coverage under noted coverage schedule 
applies only to claims first made against the Insured/Member and reported to 
underwriters during the policy period. Claims expenses shall reduce the applicable 
limit of liability and are subject to the applicable retention.  
 
This is a shared limit policy among the Named Insureds.  The per 
Insured/Member policy limits are on a per claim or incident for each 
Insured/Member basis, sub-limits listed are aggregated per Insured/Member and 
are within the total Insured/Member aggregate limit. In the event of a 
claim/incident with multiple Insureds/Members exhausting the program 
aggregate limit provided by the Insurer to Insureds/Members, payment to all 
Insureds/Members for the claim/incident will be determined by the 
Insurer.  Where coverages are aggregated, sub-limit and limits apply to all 
Insureds/Members for the entire Policy Period unless specifically stated 
otherwise.  The policy aggregate limit is not a per Insured/Member maximum 
limit. 

 
EXTENDED 
REPORTING PERIOD: 

  
For Named Insured - To be determined at the time of election (additional premium will 
apply)  
 

 
SPECIFIC COVERAGE 
PROVISIONS: 

 
A. 

 
Breach Response indemnifies the Insured/Member for Breach Response Costs 
incurred by the Insured/Member because of an actual or reasonably suspected Data 
Breach or Security Breach that the Insured first discovers during the Policy Period. 

 
Page 364 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 5 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

  
B. 

 
First Party Loss  
 
Business Interruption Loss indemnifies the Insured/Member for a Business 
Interruption Loss sustained as a result of a Security Breach or System Failure that the 
Insured first discovers during the Policy Period. 
 
Dependent Business Interruption Loss indemnifies the Insured/Member for a 
Dependent Business Interruption Loss sustained as a result of a Security Breach or a 
System Failure that the Insured first discover during the Policy Period. 
 
Cyber Extortion Loss indemnifies the Insured/Member for a Cyber Extortion Loss 
incurred as a result of an Extortion Threat first made against the Insured/Member 
during the Policy Period. 
 
Data Recovery Costs indemnifies the Insured/Member for Data Recovery Costs 
incurred as a direct result of a Security Breach or System Failure that the Insured first 
discovers during the Policy Period. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

C. 
 
 
 
 

Liability 
Data & Network Liability pays Damages and Claims Expenses, which the Insured is 
legally obligated to pay because of any Claim first made against any Insured during 
the Policy Period for a Data Breach, a Security Breach, the Insured’s failure to disclose 
a Data Breach or Security Breach, or failure of the Insured to comply with the part of 
a Privacy Policy that specifically is related to disclosure, access or procedures related 
to Personally Identifiable Information. 
 
Regulatory Defense & Penalties pays Penalties and Claims Expenses, which the 
Insured is legally obligated to pay because of a Regulatory Proceeding first made 
against any Insured during the Policy Period for a Data Breach or a Security Breach. 
 
Payment Card Liabilities & Costs indemnifies the Insured/Member for PCI Fines, 
Expenses and Costs which it is legally obligated to pay because of a Claim first made 
against any Insured during the Policy Period. 
 
Media Liability pays Damages and Claims Expenses, which the Insured is legally 
obligated to pay because of any Claim first made against any Insured during the Policy 
Period for electronic Media Liability. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Coverage 
Endorsement(s) 
 

D. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
E. 

eCrime indemnifies the Insured/Member for any direct financial loss sustained 
resulting from: 

 Fraudulent Instruction 
 Funds Transfer Fraud 
 Telephone Fraud 

That the Insured first discovers during the Policy Period. 
 
Criminal Reward indemnifies the Insured/Member for Criminal Reward Funds. 
 
 
Reputational Loss indemnifies the Insured Organization for Reputation Loss that the 
Insured Organization sustains solely as a result of an Adverse Media Event that 
occurs during the Policy Period, concerning: a Data Breach, Security Breach, or 
Extortion Threat that the Insured first discovers during the Policy Period 
 
Computer Hardware Replacement Costs is part of the Extra Expense coverage. 
Extra Expense means reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the Insured 
Organization during the Period of Restoration to minimize, reduce or avoid Income 
Loss, over and above those expenses the Insured Organization would have incurred 
had no Security Breach, System Failure, Dependent Security Breach or Dependent 
System Failure occurred; and includes reasonable and necessary expenses incurred 

 
Page 365 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 6 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

by the Insured Organization to replace computers or any associated devices or 
equipment operated by, and either owned by or leased to, the Insured Organization 
that are unable to function as intended due to corruption or destruction of software or 
firmware directly resulting from a Security Breach 
 
Invoice Manipulation indemnifies the Insured Organization for Direct Net Loss 
resulting directly from the Insured Organization’s inability to collect Payment for any 
goods, products or services after such goods, products or services have been 
transferred to a third party, as a result of Invoice Manipulation that the Insured first 
discovers during the Policy Period.  Invoice Manipulation means the release or 
distribution of any fraudulent invoice or fraudulent payment instruction to a third party 
as a direct result of a Security Breach or a Data Breach. 
 
Cryptojacking indemnifies the Insured Organization for any direct financial loss 
sustained resulting from Cryptojacking that the Insured first discovers during the Policy 
Period. Cryptojacking means the Unauthorized Access or Use of Computer Systems 
to mine for Digital Currency that directly results in additional costs incurred by the 
Insured Organization for electricity, natural gas, oil, or internet.  

   

 
Page 366 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 7 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

EXCLUSIONS:  
(Including but not  
limited to) 

 
 
  

Coverage does not apply to any claim or loss from: 
 Bodily Injury or Property Damage 
 Trade Practices and Antitrust 
 Gathering or Distribution of Information 
 Prior Known Acts & Prior Noticed Claims 
 Racketeering, Benefit Plans, Employment Liability & Discrimination 
 Sale or Ownership of Securities & Violation of Securities Laws 
 Criminal, Intentional of Fraudulent Acts 
 Patent, Software Copyright, Misappropriation of Information 
 Governmental Actions 
 Other Insureds & Related Enterprises 
 Trading Losses, Loss of Money & Discounts 
 Media-Related Exposures – Contractual liability or obligation 
 Nuclear Incident 
 Radioactive Contamination 
 Sanctions Limitation 
 War and Civil War  
 Asbestos, Pollution and Contamination              
 First Party Loss – with respects: 1. seizure, nationalization, confiscation, or 

destruction of property or data by order of any governmental or public authority; 
2. costs or expenses incurred by the Insured to identify or remediate software 
program errors or vulnerabilities or update, replace, restore, assemble, 
reproduce, recollect or enhance data or Computer Systems to a level beyond 
that which existed prior to a Security Breach, System Failure, Dependent Security 
Breach, Dependent System Failure or Extortion Threat; 3. failure or malfunction 
of satellites or of power, utility, mechanical or telecommunications (including 
internet) infrastructure or services that are not under the Insured Organization’s 
direct operational control; or 4. fire, flood, earthquake, volcanic eruption, 
explosion, lightning, wind, hail, tidal wave, landslide, act of God or other physical 
event. 

   
 
NOTICE OF CLAIM: 

 
 IMMEDIATE NOTICE  must be made to Beazley NY of all potential claims and 

circumstances (assistance, and cooperation clause applies) 
 Claim notification under this policy is to: 

Beazley Group 
Attn:  TMB Claims Group 
1270 Avenue of the Americas 
New York, NY 10020 

            bbr.claims@beazley.com 
 

 
 
NOTICE OF 
CANCELLATION: 

 
 
10 days for non-payment of premium 

 
CYBER COST: 

 
Cost is included in Total Property Premium 
 

OTHER SERVICES Unlimited Access to Beazley Breach Solutions website 
  

  BROKER:   ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 

  License No. 0C36861 

 
 
 

 
Page 367 of 526



 

 
 

2022-2023 Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP) Cyber Liability Summary    Page 8 of 8 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

 
SUMMARY OF CYBER INSURANCE PROPOSED CHANGES 

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE PROPOSED CHANGES FOR THE 2022-2023 POLICY TERM 
 

Coverage 2021-2022 
2022-2023 Proposed 

Changes  
Status 

Beazley Breach 
Response Endorsement 

Coverage not offered to NEW 
Members 

Coverage offered to NEW 
Members – Underwriting 

required 
Change in Availability 

Business Interruption and 
Dependent Business 
Interruption Aggregate 
Sublimit 

Did not have a Business 
Interruption and Dependent 

Business Interruption Aggregate 
Sublimit 

Addition of a Business 
Interruption and Dependent 

Business Interruption 
Aggregate Sublimit  

Decrease in Aggregate 
Sublimit 

Policy Aggregate Limit $40,000,000 $45,000,000 
Increase in Policy 
Aggregate Limit 

JPA/Pool Aggregate Limit 
$40,000,000 (Within the Policy 

Aggregate Limit) 
$40,000,000 (Within the 
Policy Aggregate Limit) 

Language Revision 

 
  
NOTES: 

• Some coverage, limits, sub-limits, terms and conditions will change, as negotiations are 
ongoing.  Changes will be documented and accompany the Binder Confirmation for July 1, 2022 
bound terms. 

• Major pending and approved changes to the APIP Program are described in the Executive 
Summary for renewing insureds. 

• This indication is based on the current loss experience and is subject to change if this insured’s 

loss ratio deteriorates further and/or if the markets suffer a catastrophic event 

• Coverage outlined in this Summary is subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the policy. 

• Please refer to Policy for specific terms, conditions and exclusions – not yet finalized. 

• Change in Total Insurable Values and loss experience will result in adjustment in premium 

 

 
Page 368 of 526



Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861          Page 6 

APIP Claims Reporting Acknowledgement(s) Receipt Form 

The Claims Reporting Forms are being included with your packet to ensure claims reporting procedures are known 
and available for future reference. Please review the information. We ask that you share these critical documents 
with all members of your team (and Pool Members and their staffs where applicable.) 

We request that you review the items indicated as attached, then complete the bottom portion, sign and 
submit to your Alliant Insurance Services representative either by a scanned e-mail or mail to have it 
be included in your insurance records. 

�  APIP Property Claims Reporting

� Cyber Claims Reporting (this is a claims made policy) if coverage is purchased

� Pollution Liability Claims Reporting (this is a claims made policy) if coverage is purchased

Acknowledgement for Claims reporting procedures under Alliant Property Insurance Programs In effect: 
July 1, 2022 until further notice 

I have read and been informed about these separate reporting requirements under the coverage parts 
that apply to our entity as indicated above and provided through APIP by Alliant. 

Insured Entity Name: Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

X 

Signature of Authorized Insured Representative: 

Title: Date:

Print / Type Insured Representative Full Name: 

 
Page 369 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.2.d. 
 

 
APIP CLAIMS REPORTING ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

 
INFORMATION ITEM 

 
 
ISSUE: Members are asked to review and acknowledge receipt of the Claims Reporting Requirements 
for the Alliant Property Insurance Program (APIP). It is critical that members and their staff recognize 
and respond to property claims in a timely manner to mitigate the damages and ensure they receive the 
full benefits of their property coverage. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and acknowledge receipt by each Member signing a copy of the 
attached notice. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: Given the importance of responding quickly to property claims, and the threat of 
reduced or denied coverage for late reporting of claims, Alliant has requested that all APIP members 
understand and acknowledge the claim reporting requirements. Members can sign and return this 
document at the meeting or respond to an email that will be sent later in June to those that have not 
signed. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): APIP Claims Reporting Acknowledgements Receipt Form 
 
  

 
Page 370 of 526



Last Updated: May 2022    Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861          Page 6 

APIP Claims Reporting Acknowledgement(s) Receipt Form 

The Claims Reporting Forms are being included with your packet to ensure claims reporting procedures are known 
and available for future reference. Please review the information. We ask that you share these critical documents 
with all members of your team (and Pool Members and their staffs where applicable.) 

We request that you review the items indicated as attached, then complete the bottom portion, sign and 
submit to your Alliant Insurance Services representative either by a scanned e-mail or mail to have it 
be included in your insurance records. 

�  APIP Property Claims Reporting

� Cyber Claims Reporting (this is a claims made policy) if coverage is purchased

� Pollution Liability Claims Reporting (this is a claims made policy) if coverage is purchased

Acknowledgement for Claims reporting procedures under Alliant Property Insurance Programs In effect: 
July 1, 2022 until further notice 

I have read and been informed about these separate reporting requirements under the coverage parts 
that apply to our entity as indicated above and provided through APIP by Alliant. 

Insured Entity Name: Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

X 

Signature of Authorized Insured Representative: 

Title: Date:

Print / Type Insured Representative Full Name: 

 
Page 371 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.2.e. 
 

ALLIANT DEADLY WEAPON RESPONSE PROGRAM (ADWRP) 
 

ACTION ITEM 
 

ISSUE: Attached is a proposal to renew Deadly Response Coverage as expiring and offered as a stand-
alone coverage to members of APIP. The coverage provides a $500,000 per occurrence limit with a 
$2,500,000 policy aggregate for the pool and $10,000 deductible.  
 
The coverage is a combination of first and third-party coverages, with sub-limits of $250,000 for crisis 
management services, counseling services, funeral expenses, and demo/clearance/memorialization. The 
coverage includes Medical Expenses of $25,000 and Accidental Death and Dismemberment of $50,000 
Per Person and with a $500,000 annual aggregate.   
 
The coverage is primary for property and business interruption, coverages also provided by APIP, and 
adds coverage to include crisis management, counseling and funeral services for events happening on 
insured property. The event must occur at a location on a member’s APIP Schedule of Values. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and discuss option and renew coverage, decline, or provide direction.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: NCCSIF’s FY 21/22 premium is $12,664.65. Premium for FY 22/23 is $13,341.97 
 
 
BACKGROUND: This type of insurance, often labeled “Active Shooter” Coverage, began being 
offered by a number of insurance companies over the last several years and NCCSIF Property Program 
members first purchased the coverage for FY 18/19.  
 
NCCSIF members have also opted to provide themselves a specific type of this coverage tailored to 
their unique responsibilities in responding to these events. Members added a Violent Event Coverage 
endorsement to the Liability Program MOC, using a similar “trigger” for coverage, and it is not limited 
to an event at an insured location. The coverage only requires that a Violent Event occurred requiring 
emergency response, though it is limited to a Member’s Banking Layer.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Alliant Deadly Weapon Response Program (ADWRP) FY 22/23 Renewal Proposal 

2. FY 22/23 ADWRP Member allocation of premium 

3. ADWRP Brochure 

  

 
Page 372 of 526



Alliant Insurance Services, Inc.  CA License No. 0C36861  www.alliant.com  

Northern California Cities 

Self Insurance Fund 

(NCCSIF) 

2022 – 2023 

Alliant Deadly Weapon  
Response Program (ADWRP) Proposal 

Issued on June 1, 2022 

Page 373 of  526 



Date Issued: 6/1/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 2 

ALLIANT DEADLY WEAPON RESPONSE PROGRAM (ADWRP) PROPOSAL 

INSURED Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

(NCCSIF) 

INSURANCE COMPANY: Underwriters at Lloyd’s of London 

A.M. BEST RATING: A (Excellent) XV; Greater than $2,000,000,000 

STANDARD AND POOR’S RATING: A+, Strong Financial Security  

STATE LICENSE STATUS: Non-Admitted 

POLICY TERM:  July 1, 2022 – July 1, 2023 

COVERAGE FORM: Claims Made & Reported 

COVERAGE TYPE: Third Party Bodily Injury Liability, First Party 

Property Damage, Business Interruption & Crisis 

Management for events occurring at a location 

appearing on your Schedule of Values on file with 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
LIMITS: 

Each and Every Deadly Weapon Event 

including Claim Expenses 

$ 500,000 

Annual Aggregate (Shared by Members 

of Pool/JPA) 

$ 2,500,000 

DEDUCTIBLE: $10,000 Each and every Deadly Weapon Event 

including Claims Expenses 

RETROACTIVE DATE: 7/1/2018 

Page 374 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Date Issued: 6/1/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 3 

ALLIANT DEADLY WEAPON RESPONSE PROGRAM (ADWRP) PROPOSAL – CONTINUED 

SUB-LIMITS: 

(Each Sublimit is part of the Overall Limit of 

Liability and not in addition to it) 

$ 250,000 Crisis Management Services - 

specified in endorsement 

$   250,000   Crisis Management Services – 

unspecified 

$ 250,000 Counseling Services ($15,000 per 

person maximum) 

$ 250,000 Funeral Expenses ($1M Aggregate; 

$15,000 per person maximum) 

$ 250,000 Business Interruption 

$ 250,000 Demo/Clearance/Memorialization 

$ 250,000 Extra Expense 

$ 250,000 Threat 

$ 250,000 Transit Extension – Response Fees 

for events associated with reported 

rolling stock exposures 

$ 25,000 Per Person for Medical Expenses 

with a $500,000 annual aggregate 

$ 50,000 Per Person Accidental Death and 

Dismemberment with a $500,000 

annual aggregate 

 Included Circumstantial Costs for Prevention 

Services ($0 Deductible) 

ENDORSEMENTS: 

(Including But Not Limited To) 

• Deadly Weapon & Security Vulnerability Post

Underwriting Review

• Deadly Weapon Safety Action Plan Webinar

• Crisis Management Services

• Circumstance Extension

• Property Damage Extension

• Counselling Services

• Funeral Expenses

• Short Rate Cancellation Table

• Premium Payment Clause

• Reinsurers Liability Clause

• Lloyd’s Privacy Policy

• Sanction Limitation & Exclusion Clause

• Notice of Terrorism Insurance Coverage

• Business Interruption (if applicable)

• Automatic Acquisitions limit – locations up to

$25,000,000

Page 375 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Date Issued: 6/1/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 4 

ALLIANT DEADLY WEAPON RESPONSE PROGRAM (ADWRP) PROPOSAL – CONTINUED 

ENDORSEMENTS - CONTINUED: 

(Including But Not Limited To) 

• 90 day grace period for reporting of new

locations

• Offsite events coverage for K-12 School

insureds (Field Trips) only – No Liability

coverage applies.

• E&O clause – to cover locations not exceeding 

$10,000,000 in value unintentionally not

included in SOV provided to insurer

• Transit Extension - $250,000 sublimit for event

response fees associated with reported rolling 

stock values.

• Crisis Management/Event Responder Fees
do not erode policy limits

• Crisis Services Provided by CrisisRisk:
https://www.crisisrisk.com/ 

EXCLUSIONS: 

(Including But Not Limited To) 

• Confiscation, nationalization, requisition or

destruction of or damage to property by

government, public or local authority

• Loss of market, loss of use or any other

consequential loss at property physically lost or

damaged

• Any explosive devices unless used in

conjunction with a Deadly Weapon Event.

• Euthanasia

• Fraudulent Claims
• Any actual or alleged negligent act, error,

omission, misstatement, misleading statement,
neglect or breach of duty by the Directors or
Officers, in the discharge of their duties solely
in their capacity as Directors or Officers of the
Named Insured

• Any vehicle not defined as a road vehicle

• Any weapon mounted (or designed to be

mounted) on a vehicle

• Any weapon, device or substance delivered by

an airborne weapon delivery system including,

but not limited to, fixed wing aircraft, helicopter

or drone

Page 376 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/
http://www.crisisrisk.com/
http://www.crisisrisk.com/
http://www.crisisrisk.com/


Date Issued: 6/1/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 5 

ALLIANT DEADLY WEAPON RESPONSE PROGRAM (ADWRP) PROPOSAL – CONTINUED 

EXCLUSIONS - CONTINUED: 

(Including But Not Limited To) 

• Injury or death to any employees of any third

party whom the Named insured has contracted

for services.

• Any claim or claims made by or on behalf of an

Assailant.

• Use or operation as a means to inflict harm of

any computer, computer system, computer

software, malicious code, computer virus or

any other electronic system.

• Workers Compensation

• Employment Practices

• Ionizing radiations or contamination by

radioactivity from nuclear waste or fuel

• Radioactive, toxic, explosive or other

hazardous or contaminating properties of any

nuclear installation, reactor, assembly or

component

• Mercy Killing(s)

• Cross Suits

• Strikes, labor unrest, riots or civil commotion

• Suicide

• War, insurrection, civil commotion

• Mental injury or mental anguish related claim

where no Bodily Injury occurred to claimant

(Except as included by endorsement for

counselling services)

• Any weapon or device employing atomic or

nuclear fission, fusion or other like reaction or

force or matter

• Loss, injury or damage caused by or resulting

from Named Insured’s recklessness or

deliberate misconduct

• Chemical, biological, bio-chemical or

electromagnetic weapon

• Nuclear reaction, radiation or contamination,

however caused

• Any Pollutant or Contaminant however

introduced or arisen

377 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Date Issued: 6/1/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 6 

ALLIANT DEADLY WEAPON RESPONSE PROGRAM (ADWRP) PROPOSAL – CONTINUED 

EXCLUSIONS - CONTINUED: 

(Including But Not Limited To) 

• Property Damage in care, custody or control of

Named Insured or person under contract

(except as maybe provided by the 1st Party

Property coverage)

• Punitive or exemplary damages, sanctions or

additional damages

• COVID19

• Any Deadly Weapon Event that occurs at a

Location(s) which has been specifically leased

or loaned by the Named Insured to any other

entity or individual to host a permitted event

planned and ticketed for more than 500

attendees over the duration of the event,

except with the prior written agreement of the

Underwriters. Agreement to add any event as

covered may incur additional premium.

ADDITIONAL EXCLUSIONS RELATING TO 

PROPERTY & BUSINESS INTERRUPTION: 

(Including But Not Limited To) 

• Land or land values

• Aircraft, watercraft or any vehicle licensed for

highway use

• Animals

• Money, currency, checks, coins, stamps,

securities, valuable papers, evidences of debt,

precious stones, precious metals (unless

forming an integral part of Insured Property),

jewelry, furs, fine arts and antiques

• Electronic data

• Any property in Transit

• Increase in loss caused by suspension, lapse,

cancellation of any lease, license, contract or

order, unless loss results directly from the

insured Interruption of Business

• Fines, penalties or damages incurred by or

imposed upon the Named Insured at order of

any Government Agency, Court or other

Authority

Page 378 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Date Issued: 6/1/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 7 

ALLIANT DEADLY WEAPON RESPONSE PROGRAM (ADWRP) PROPOSAL – CONTINUED 

ANNUAL PREMIUM: $ 12,922.00 Premium 

$ 387.66 Surplus Lines Taxes 

$  32.31 Surplus Lines Fees 

$ 13,341.97 Total Cost 

DEFENSE INSIDE/OUTSIDE THE LIMITS: Inside 

MINIMUM EARNED PREMIUM: 25% Minimum Earned Premium 

PROPOSAL VALID UNTIL: No expiry date, however, insurers may withdraw it 

at any time without notice. 

SUBJECTIVITIES: • Completed and Signed Request to Bind

Coverage Form (See last page)

• Completed and Signed Surplus Lines

Document(s) (If applicable)

• Complete Schedule of Values on file to share

with the carrier.

• No known or reported losses or incidents likely

to give rise to a claim over the last 12 months.

• Payment is required 20 days prior to the

settlement due date of 60 days from inception

to enable us to pay insurers in a timely

manner. If payment is not received by insurers

on this date they may issue notice of

cancellation of coverage. In the event of

cancellation for non payment of premium, the

time on risk premium will be due and payable,

calculated at pro rata from inception to the 

date cancellation is effective.

See Disclaimer Page for Important Notices and Acknowledgement

379 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Date Issued: 6/1/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 8 

Disclosures 

This proposal of insurance is provided as a matter of convenience and information only.  All 
information included in this proposal, including but not limited to personal and real property values, 
locations, operations, products, data, automobile schedules, financial data and loss experience, is 
based on facts and representations supplied to Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. by you.  This 
proposal does not reflect any independent study or investigation by Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
or its agents and employees. 

Please be advised that this proposal is also expressly conditioned on there being no material 
change in the risk between the date of this proposal and the inception date of the proposed policy 
(including the occurrence of any claim or notice of circumstances that may give rise to a claim 
under any policy which the policy being proposed is a renewal or replacement).  In the event of 
such change of risk, the insurer may, at its sole discretion, modify, or withdraw this proposal, 
whether or not this offer has already been accepted. 

This proposal is not confirmation of insurance and does not add to, extend, amend, change, or alter 
any coverage in any actual policy of insurance you may have.  All existing policy terms, conditions, 
exclusions, and limitations apply.  For specific information regarding your insurance coverage, 
please refer to the policy itself.  Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. will not be liable for any claims 
arising from or related to information included in or omitted from this proposal of insurance. 

Alliant embraces a policy of transparency with respect to its compensation from insurance transactions. 
Details on our compensation policy, including the types of income that Alliant may earn on a placement, 
are available on our website at www.alliant.com. For a copy of our policy or for any inquiries regarding 
compensation issues pertaining to your account you may also contact us at: Alliant Insurance Services, 
Inc., Attention: General Counsel, 701 B Street, 6th Floor, San Diego, CA  92101.   

Analyzing insurers' over-all performance and financial strength is a task that requires specialized skills and 
in-depth technical understanding of all aspects of insurance company finances and operations. Insurance 
brokerages such as Alliant Insurance typically rely upon rating agencies for this type of market analysis. 
Both A.M. Best and Standard and Poor's have been industry leaders in this area for many decades, utilizing 
a combination of quantitative and qualitative analysis of the information available in formulating their ratings. 

A.M. Best has an extensive database of nearly 6,000 Life/Health, Property Casualty and International
companies. You can visit them at www.ambest.com. For additional information regarding insurer financial
strength ratings visit Standard and Poor's website at www.standardandpoors.com.

Our goal is to procure insurance for you with underwriters possessing the financial strength to perform. 
Alliant does not, however, guarantee the solvency of any underwriters with which insurance or reinsurance 
is placed and maintains no responsibility for any loss or damage arising from the financial failure or 
insolvency of any insurer.  We encourage you to review the publicly available information collected to enable 
you to make an informed decision to accept or reject a particular underwriter.  To learn more about 
companies doing business in your state, visit the Department of Insurance website for that state.  

 380 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/
http://www.alliantinsurance.com/
http://www.ambest.com/
http://www.standardandpoors.com/


Date Issued: 6/1/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 9 

Other Disclosures / Disclaimers - Continued 

NY Regulation 194  

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. is an insurance producer licensed by the State of New York. Insurance 
producers are authorized by their license to confer with insurance purchasers about the benefits,  terms and 
conditions of insurance contracts; to offer advice concerning the substantive benefits of particular insurance 
contracts; to sell insurance; and to obtain insurance for purchasers.  The role of the producer in any 
particular transaction typically involves one or more of these activities. 

Compensation will be paid to the producer, based on the insurance contract the producer sells.  Depending 
on the insurer(s) and insurance contract(s) the purchaser selects, compensation will be paid by the 
insurer(s) selling the insurance contract or by another third party.  Such compensation may vary depending 
on a number of factors, including the insurance contract(s) and the insurer(s) the purchaser selects.  In 
some cases, other factors such as the volume of business a producer provides to an insurer or the 
profitability of insurance contracts a producer provides to an insurer also may affect compensation.   

The insurance purchaser may obtain information about compensation expected to be received by the 
producer based in whole or in part on the sale of insurance to the purchaser, and (if applicable) 
compensation expected to be received based in whole or in part on any alternative quotes presented to the 
purchaser by the producer, by requesting such information from the producer. 

FATCA: 
The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires the notification of certain financial accounts 

to the United States Internal Revenue Service.  Alliant does not provide tax advice so please contact 

your tax consultant for your obligation regarding FATCA.  

Claims Reporting: 

Your policy will come with specific claim reporting requirements.  Please make sure you understand 

these obligations.  Contact your Alliant Service Team with any questions. 

NRRA: 

The Non-Admitted and Reinsurance Reform Act (NRRA) went into effect on July 21, 2011.  Accordingly, 

surplus lines tax rates and regulations are subject to change which could result in an increase or 

decrease of the total surplus lines taxes and/or fees owed on this placement.  If a change is required, 

we will promptly notify you.  Any additional taxes and/or fees must be promptly remitted to Alliant 

Insurance Services, Inc. 

381 of 526 

http://www.alliant.com/


Date Issued: 6/1/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 10 

Other Disclosures / Disclaimers - Continued 

Changes and Developments 

It is important that we be advised of any changes in your operations, which may have a bearing on the 

validity and/or adequacy of your insurance.  The types of changes that concern us include, but are not 

limited to, those listed below: 

▪ Changes in any operations such as expansion to another states, new products, or new applications
of existing products.

▪ Travel to any state not previously disclosed.
▪ Mergers and/or acquisition of new companies and any change in business ownership, including

percentages.
▪ Any newly assumed contractual liability, granting of indemnities or hold harmless agreements.
▪ Any changes in existing premises including vacancy, whether temporary or permanent, alterations,

demolition, etc.  Also, any new premises either purchased, constructed or occupied
▪ Circumstances which may require an increased liability insurance limit.
▪ Any changes in fire or theft protection such as the installation of or disconnection of sprinkler

systems, burglar alarms, etc.  This includes any alterations to the system.
▪ Immediate notification of any changes to a scheduled of equipment, property, vehicles, electronic

data processing, etc.
▪ Property of yours that is in transit, unless previously discussed and/or currently insured.

Certificates / Evidence of Insurance 

▪ A certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate
holder.  The certificate does not affirmatively or negatively amend, extend or alter the coverage
afforded by a policy.  Nor does it constitute a contract between the issuing insurer(s), authorized
representative, producer or certificate holder.

▪ You may have signed contracts, leases or other agreements requiring you to provide this evidence.
In those agreements, you may assume obligations and/or liability for others (Indemnification, Hold
Harmless) and some of the obligations that are not covered by insurance.  We recommend that
you and your legal counsel review these documents.

In addition to providing a certificate of insurance, you may be required to name your client or 
customer on your policy as an additional insured.  This is only possible with permission of the 
insurance company, added by endorsement and, in some cases, an additional premium. 

By naming the certificate holder as additional insured, there are consequences to your risks and 
insurance policy including: 

• Your policy limits are now shared with other entities; their claims involvement may reduce or
exhaust your aggregate limit.

• Your policy may provide higher limits than required by contract; your full limits can be exposed to
the additional insured.

• There may be conflicts in defense when your insurer has to defend both you and the additional
insured.

382 of 526 

http://www.alliant.com/


Date Issued: 6/1/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 11 

Other Disclosures / Disclaimers - Continued 

Commercial Property Coverage 

*Property Co-insurance:  Most property insurance policies contain a co-insurance clause.  In exchange

for a reduced rate,   the insured agrees to carry at least the stated percentage of insurance to the total

insurable value of the property.  If, at the time of loss, the amount of insurance carried is less than this

percentage, the loss payment will be reduced proportionately.

Glossary of Insurance Terms

Below are a couple of links to assist you in understanding the insurance terms you may find within your 

insurance coverages: 

http://insurancecommunityuniversity.com/UniversityResources/InsuranceGlossaryFREE.aspx 

http://www.ambest.com/resource/glossary.html 

http://www.irmi.com/online/insurance-glossary/default.aspx 

Optional Coverages 
The following represents a list of insurance coverages that are not included in this proposal, but are 

optional and may be available with further underwriting information.  Note some of these coverages 

may be included with limitations or insured elsewhere.  This is a partial listing as you may have 

additional risks not contemplated here or are unique to your organization.  

• Crime / Fidelity Insurance

• Directors & Officers Liability

• Earthquake Insurance

• Employed Lawyers

• Employment Practices Liability

• Event Cancellation

• Fiduciary Liability

• Fireworks Liability

• Flood Insurance

• Foreign Insurance

• Garage Keepers Liability

• Kidnap & Ransom

• Law Enforcement Liability

• Media and Publishers Liability

• Medical Malpractice Liability

• Network Security / Privacy Liability and

Internet Media Liability

• Pollution Liability

• Owned/Non-Owned Aircraft

• Owned Watercraft

• Special Events Liability

• Student Accident

• Volunteer Accidental Death &

Dismemberment (AD&D)

• Workers’ Compensation

• Workplace Violence

383 of 526 

http://www.alliant.com/
http://insurancecommunityuniversity.com/UniversityResources/InsuranceGlossaryFREE.aspx
http://www.ambest.com/resource/glossary.html
http://www.irmi.com/online/insurance-glossary/default.aspx


Date Issued: 6/1/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861  Page 12 

Request to Bind Coverage

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

We have reviewed the proposal and agree to the terms and conditions of the coverages presented. 

We are requesting coverage to be bound as outlined by coverage line below: 

This Authorization to Bind Coverage also acknowledges receipt and review of all disclaimers and 

disclosures, including exposures used to develop insurance terms, contained within this proposal.  

Signature of Authorized Insurance Representative Date 

Title 

Printed / Typed Name 

This proposal does not constitute a binder of insurance.  Binding is subject to final carrier 

approval.  The actual terms and conditions of the policy will prevail. 

Coverage Line Annual Premium Bind Decline 

DEADLY WEAPON RESPONSE PROGRAM 2022-2023 

Limit $500,000 per Event with Annual Aggregate 

(Shared by Members of Pool/JPA) $2,500,000 

$13,341.97 ☐  ☐

Premium will be prorated based on join date 

384 of  526

http://www.alliant.com/


Formula or Allocation

% Total TIV x 

Premium

Members in the 

Property Program 

(APIP) Deductible

ALL RISK (TIV)

(Real, Personal,

BI/Rents, and Fine 

Arts, Minus COC)

22/23 ADWRP

Member Premium 

Allocation  

Values $13,342

Anderson $10,000 38,852,488 $306

Auburn $10,000 58,382,143 $461

Colusa $10,000 57,913,486 $457

Corning

Dixon $10,000 117,540,714 $927

Elk Grove

Folsom $10,000 308,097,799 $2,430

Galt $10,000 127,714,473 $1,007

Gridley $10,000 40,266,793 $318

Ione $10,000 38,159,340 $301

Jackson $10,000 38,717,832 $305

Lincoln  $10,000 240,671,082 $1,898

Marysville  $10,000 28,713,965 $226

Nevada City

Oroville $10,000 61,227,051 $483

Placerville

Paradise $10,000 20,020,825 $158

Red Bluff $10,000 70,457,124 $556

Rio Vista $10,000 55,888,249 $441

Rocklin $10,000 103,400,455 $816

Willows

Yuba City  $10,000 285,468,230 $2,252

TOTAL  $1,691,492,049 $13,342

Don't Participate

22/23 ALLIANT DEADLY WEAPON RESPONSE PROGRAM (ADWRP)

July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2023

 
Page 385 of 526



Alliant Specialty Group 

Alliant.com | Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. CA License No. 0C36861. © 2018 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. All rights reserved. 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

Deadly Weapons 

Response Program 

 
 
 
 
 

In the modern world, threats come from many sources. 

One of the most difficult to defend against is the incursion of 

an armed individual intent on inflicting harm. Your 

organization may have a “duty of care” to maintain a 

secure environment for your staff, students, patients, 

visitors and the general public. In the event of a deadly 

attack, you could be liable for regulatory or civil actions. 

 

There are significant challenges to securing places of 

business, particularly ones where visitors come and go 

frequently. 

In addition to the tragic human costs associated with   a deadly 

weapons attack, many organizations are also concerned about 

the financial impact associated with such events. While general 

liability, property and workers’ compensation policies can 

respond meaningfully to such events, not all anticipated costs 

will be covered in every situation. These costs can be significant, 

and for this reason, the Alliant Deadly Weapons Response 

Program (ADWRP) is designed to grant immediate access to 

crisis management resources and to address uncovered 

expenses.   

 

How and when does my General Liability policy 
respond? 
General liability insurance is designed to cover financial loss 

when the insured is deemed negligent in causing or 

contributing to the injuries of a third party. It is not always 

immediately clear in a deadly weapons event if an employer or 

property owner was negligent in such situations. Further, 

general liability insurance is not designed to cover first-party 

expenses such as funeral costs, crisis management consultants, 

public relations expenses or immediate counseling of victims 

and their families, which can all arise from such an event.  

Lastly, liability claims can take many rounds of negotiating to 

settle a matter, usually well after a deadly weapon event has 

occurred.  ADWRP grants swift access to crisis management 

resources and tools not offered under a standard General 

Liability policy. 

 

What about my Property policy? 
If your operations needs to cease temporarily, or even 

permanently because of an event, your building must sustain 

direct physical damage in order for your commercial property 

policy to compensate you for lost revenue. Without physical 

damage, there still can be stigma associated with an event site 

which not only is hard to quantify, but also creates difficulty in 

continuing on as before, which a property policy is not designed 

to address.  Coverage afforded under the ADWRP policy will 

respond to loss of revenue claims, related to a deadly weapon 

event, even if no physical damage to insured assets has 

occurred.  Memorialization coverages are built in as a means to 

honor victims.  

 

 

Retail: Malls, Shopping Centers 

Condominium Associations, 
Public Works Healthcare: Hospitals, Nursing 

Homes, Clinics 

Amusement Parks and 
Attractions Special events including: Sports, 

Parades, Graduations, Rodeos, 
Concerts 

Education: Elementary Schools, 
High Schools, Universities 

Religious: Churches, Synagogues Hospitality: Hotels, Resorts, 
Nightclubs 

INDUSTRIES EXPOSED 

Municipalities: Counties, Cities, 
Townships 

 
Page 386 of 526



Alliant.com | Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. CA License No. 0C36861. © 2018 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Deadly Weapons in the Workplace: Are You Covered? Alliant Specialty Group 
 

 

 
 

 

Since 2002, no incident has been 

declared as a “Certified Terrorist Attack.” 
 

How would Workers’ Compensation apply? 
While workplace injuries sustained in the course and scope of employment 

are covered, there can be delays in assisting employees with trauma when 

no obvious physical injury has been sustained. Employers will want crisis 

counseling services provided immediately. 

 
Won’t Terrorism cover us? 
Insureds may also believe that deadly weapon incidents are covered by the 

Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization Act of 2015 (TRIPRA) or 

a stand-alone terrorism insurance policy. However, not all violent actions 

fall neatly into the definition of Terrorism which normally requires some 

ideological motivation on the part of the perpetrator. TRIPRA requires 

significant financial thresholds to be breached before this coverage can be 

made available and events must be declared a “Certified Terrorist Attack” by 

the heads of three federal agencies to qualify. Since 2002, no incident has 

been declared as a “Certified Terrorist Attack.” 

 
How can Alliant help me? 
As the nation’s premier specialty retail insurance brokerage company, 

Alliant Insurance Services has developed the Alliant Deadly Weapon 

Response Program. Deadly weapons protection insurance aims to address 

an entity’s needs after a violent incident. 

 
Why purchase Deadly Weapons Protection? 
The coverage offered is a three-fold product providing Third Party Liability 

(inclusive of Defense and Settlements), Physical Damage to your assets 

(including Business Interruption whether or not there is physical damage 

sustained) and Crisis Management Services component before and after an 

incident.  Key benefits are to provide immediate access to resources after 

a deadly weapon event. The limits identified here-in are all customizable to 

meet the buyer’s needs.   

 

As the number of violent incidents continues to grow, the ADWRP option 

secures valuable services, obtains some level of liability coverage and/or 

can act as a buy-down for a large retention liability program. No 

applications or lengthy underwriting process is necessary.  A proposal can 

be turned around in just a few days based on a statement of values. For 

more information please contact the program managers below.  

 

ABOUT ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES 

Alliant Insurance Services is one of the nation’s leading and fastest growing distributors 

of diversified insurance products and services. In the face of increasing complexity, our 

approach is simple:  bring on the best people and invest more deeply in the industries 

and clients we serve. We operate through a network of specialized national platforms 

and regional offices to offer a comprehensive portfolio of services to our clients. Our 

goal is to ensure that they get the most innovative products—and the most innovative 

thinking—in the industry. www.alliant.com 

 
CONTACT 

Courtney Ramirez  
First Vice President  
cramirez@alliant.com 
949-660-8133 
 
Anne Shackelford 
Vice President  
Anne.Shackelford@alliant.com  
206-454-8021 

COVERAGE 
 

Standard Offering 

Policy Limit of $500,000 per Deadly Weapon 
Event/Annual Aggregate (Pool aggregate 
$2,500,000) 
 
Policy Limit includes Property Damage 
coverage; not sub-limited 

Sublimits for: 

• $250,000 Crisis Management Services 
–Specified & Unspecified 

• $250,000 Counseling Services/$1M 
Aggregate 

• $15,000 per person max 

• $250,000 Funeral Expenses/$1M 
Aggregate 

• $15,000 per person max  

• $250,000 Business Interruption 

• $250,000 Demo/Clearance and 
Memorialization 

• $250,000 Threat 

• $25,000 Medical Expense per person, 
$500,000 annual aggregate 

• $50,000 Accidental Death and 
Dismemberment per person, 
$500,000 annual aggregate 

• Circumstantial costs for Prevention 
Services and Crisis Response by Crisis 
Mgmt Firm included ($0 Deductible) 

• Crisis Management/Event 
Responder Fees do not erode policy 
limits 

$10,000 Policy Deductible per Deadly 

Weapon Event including Claim Expenses 

 
Page 387 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.2.f. 
 

 
FLOOD COVERAGE  

 
ACTION ITEM 

 
 

ISSUE: Members are reminded of the availability and importance of flood coverage in protecting their 
properties. Flood is excluded under the APIP coverage for real property but can be purchased through 
that program, as a standalone, or through the National Flood Insurance Program.  
 
In order to ensure that each Member is aware of and has been offered the opportunity to purchase flood 
insurance Alliant is requesting each client acknowledge the offering and indicate whether or not you 
wish to purchase flood insurance.  
 
Please see the attached for further information and the form to sign.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and respond to flood offering per request.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: TBD – will vary based on property details and location.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: Flooding is considered a high risk based on the location of a subject property and 
generally excluded from property coverage unless purchased separately.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Flood Offering Form 
 

  

 
Page 388 of 526



 
 

Date Issued: MM/DD/YY            Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861            Page 1 

Flood Offering 
 

Flooding is a serious threat to both personal and commercial clients.  Flooding can happen anywhere, not just 
zone referred to as high-risk areas (Special Flood Hazard Area).  Your Alliant team is ready to explain how it 
works and the associated costs.  

Basic Facts	
Congress created the NFIP in 1968 in response to the rising cost of taxpayer-funded disaster relief for flood victims 
and the increasing amount of damage caused by floods. The NFIP makes federally backed flood insurance available 
in communities that agree to adopt and enforce floodplain management ordinances to reduce future flood damage. 
The NFIP is self-supporting for the average historical loss year. This means that unless there is a widespread 
disaster, operating expenses and flood insurance claims are financed through premiums collected. 

 
Commercial buildings or residential dwellings owned by commercial entities are considered commercial property.  
All others are residential dwellings 

 
The FEMA Summary for Commercial Property and FEMA Standard Summary of Coverage provides information on 
the following: 

 Types of Flood Insurance Coverage 
 What is a Flood- “a General and temporary condition of partial or complete inundation of two or more acres 

of normally dry land area”… 
 Deductibles – various options to meet your financial needs  
 What is Covered and What is Not 
 The valuation of the Property – Actual Cash Value or Replacement Cost 

Additional Information	
 Flood Zones-  

o https://www.fema.gov/flood-zones  
 Excess Flood Insurance (contact your Producer for additional information) 

o Increased limits over the maximum flood limit provided by NFIP 
 

FEMA Glossary of Flood Terms	
https://www.fema.gov/national-flood-insurance-program/definitions  

 
 
If you do NOT wish to purchase flood insurance your signature is required below: 
 
Signature:  Date:  

Name Printed / Typed:  

Company Name:  

 
 

 
Page 389 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.2.g. 
 

EXCESS CYBER COVERAGE RENEWAL  
 

ACTION ITEM 
 
 

ISSUE: The proposal for excess cyber coverage is not ready at the time of the agenda preparation and 
will be provided under separate cover when received and shared at the meeting.  As in the last couple 
of years, we expect a significant increase in premium though retentions and limits for most coverages 
should remain as expiring. The key challenge this year has been completing applications to evidence 
use of minimum security standards as well as best practices to prevent the most common types of claims.    
 
The options are available for NCCSIF members as a group or on a stand-alone basis. 
 

OPTIONS 

1. Maintain the current excess cyber option of $3M xs $2M with $4M aggregate. 

2. Decline the excess option for the Program group.  

3. Members individually may request a quote for the coverage - please express 
interest at the meeting or contact any member of the Administrator team. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: TBD  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: TBD – expecting increase of 100% or more.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: The Property Program Members purchased an option for Excess Cyber Coverage 
effective April 23, 2020, due to ongoing concern about the adequacy of the APIP cyber limits given the 
increasing frequency and severity of claims. Members chose an option covering the program members 
with an additional $3M aggregate and policy aggregate of $4M. This has also effectively doubled the 
various coverage sublimits. Purchasing the coverage as a group lowers the premium to about half of the 
per Member rates. 
  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): To be provided at meeting  
 

  

 
Page 390 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.3. 
 

FY 22/23 CRIME COVERAGE RENEWAL  
 

ACTION ITEM 
 

ISSUE: The Crime coverage program renews July 1, 2022. This program offers coverage for monetary 
loss due to Employee Dishonesty, including Faithful Performance and fraud exposures. The current 
coverage is placed through the Alliant Crime Insurance Program (ACIP). 
 
The only change is the addition of the Cyberextortion Exclusion endorsement, with more a more 
detailed description of the types of incidents not covered with no material impact on the current 
coverage. The current policy will be extended by endorsement and the number will remain the same.  

The premium is increasing $1,322, or 2%, while the total number of employees has decreased (-7%), 
reflecting an underlying rate increase of 9.7%, from $0.21 per employee to $0.23.  

Members are also provided a quote for a $5M limit and $25,000 deductible at a rate of $0.29 per 
employee, for a total of $70,065.  

NorCal Cities Members may request an increase to their Impersonation Fraud limit from $250k to 
$500k subject to underwriter review and approval of a completed Impersonation Fraud 
Questionnaire.  If approved by the underwriter, an additional premium of 18.75% subject to a $7,500 
minimum premium will apply. The additional premium will apply to each member of the pool. 
Members will need to complete a questionnaire if interested in increasing the limit.  

RECOMMENDATION: Review and continue to include purchase of the ACIP coverage as part of 
the annual renewal. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Estimated premium for $3M limit/$5K deductible = $54,845. Premium for $5M 
and $25,000 deductible is $70,065.  
 
BACKGROUND: The current NorCal Cities crime policy is with the Alliant Crime Insurance Program 
(ACIP). The coverage is written with AIG and National Union and provides numerous enhancements 
for public entities, including Faithful Performance and coverage for employees required to be bonded.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. 22-23 ACIP Proposal 
2. 22-23 ACIP Estimated Allocation by member  
3. ACIP Brochure  

  

 
Page 391 of 526



Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
18100 Von Karman Avenue, 10th Floor 
Irvine, CA 92612 
O 949 756 0271 
F 619 699 0906 

CA License No. 0C36861 www.alliant.com 

Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

2022 – 2023 

ALLIANT CRIME INSURANCE PROGRAM (ACIP) 
Government Crime Insurance Proposal 

Presented by: 

Tom E. Corbett, Senior Vice President 
Mariana C. Salyer, CISR, Account Manager 

392 of 526



Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 1

2022-2023 Alliant Crime Insurance Program 
Government Crime Insurance Proposal 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

Named Insured / Additional Named Insureds 

First Named Insured(s) 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

Additional Named Insured(s) 
See attached Named Insured List 

NAMED INSURED DISCLOSURE 

 The first named insured is granted certain rights and responsibilities that do not apply to other policy named insureds and is designated to
act on behalf of all insureds for making policy changes, receiving correspondence, distributing claim proceeds, and making premium
payments.

 Are ALL entities listed as named insureds? Coverage is not automatically afforded to all entities unless specifically named. Confirm
with your producer and service team that all entities to be protected are on the correct policy. Not all entities may be listed on all policies
based on coverage line.

 Additional named insured is (1) A person or organization, other than the first named insured, identified as an insured in the policy
declarations or an addendum to the policy declarations. (2) A person or organization added to a policy after the policy is written with the
status of named insured. This entity would have the same rights and responsibilities as an entity named as an insured in the policy
declarations (other than those rights and responsibilities reserved to the first named insured).

 Applies to Professional Liability, Pollution Liability, Directors & Officers Liability, Employment Practices Liability, Fiduciary Liability policies
(this list not all inclusive). Check your Policy language for applicability. These policies provide protection to the Named Insured for claims
made against it alleging a covered wrongful act. Coverage is not afforded to any other entities (unless specifically added by endorsement
or if qualified as a “Subsidiary” pursuant to the policy wording) affiliated by common individual insured ownership or to which
indemnification is otherwise contractually owed. If coverage is desired for affiliated entities or for contractual indemnities owed, please
contact your Alliant Service Team with a full list of entities for which coverage is requested. With each request, include complete financials
and ownership information for submission to the carrier. It should be noted, that the underwriter’s acceptance of any proposed
amendments to the policy, including expansion of the scope of “Insureds” under the policy could result in a potential diminution of the
applicable limits of liability and/or an additional premium charge.

393 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 2

2022-2023 Alliant Crime Insurance Program 
Government Crime Insurance Proposal 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

Line of Coverage 
Government Crime Coverage 

INSURANCE COMPANY: National Union Fire Insurance Company of Pittsburgh, PA (AIG) 

A.M. BEST RATING: A (Excellent); Financial Size Category: XV ($2 Billion or greater) 
Verified on May 12, 2022 

STANDARD & POOR’S RATING: A+; Strong Financial Security Verified on May 12, 2022 

STATE STATUS: Admitted 

PROGRAM POLICY/COVERAGE TERM: July 1, 2022 – July 1, 2023 

RETROACTIVE DATE: N/A 

COVERAGE: Government Crime Policy on Discovery form including the 
following coverages: 
• Employee Theft – Per Loss Coverage - including Faithful

Performance of Duty
• Forgery or Alteration - including Credit, Debit, or Charge Card

Forgery
• Inside the Premises – Theft of Money and Securities
• Inside the Premises – Robbery & Safe Burglary of Other

Property
• Outside the Premises - Money, Securities and Other Property
• Computer Fraud
• Funds Transfer Fraud
• Money Orders & Counterfeit Money

2021-2022 CURRENT 2022-2023 PROPOSED 
LIMITS: $3,000,000 $3,000,000 

DEDUCTIBLE: $5,000 $5,000 

ANNUAL PREMIUM: $53,523 $54,845 

394 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 3

2022-2023 Alliant Crime Insurance Program 
Government Crime Insurance Proposal 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

Line of Coverage 
Government Crime Coverage - Continued 

MINIMUM EARNED PREMIUM: None 

POLICY AUDITABLE: No 

DESIGNATED AGENTS AS ENDORSED: James Marta and Company 

ENDORSEMENTS (including but not limited 
to): 

• California Changes
• Additional Named Insured – Identifies individual member limit

and deductible
• Add Faithful Performance of Duty Coverage for Government

Employees – Employee Theft Per Loss Limit
• Revision of Discovery and Prior Theft or Dishonesty $25,000

Sub-Limit, Risk Management Department or other department
designated to handle insurance matters for the named
insured.

• Cancellation of Policy Amended –120 Days
• Bonded Employees Exclusion Deleted endorsement
• Add Credit, Debit or Charge Card Forgery
• Include Specified Non-Compensated Officers as Employees -

ALL
• Include Chairperson and Members of Specified Committees –

ALL
• Include Designated Persons or Classes of Persons as

Employees – Any Directors or Trustees of any of those named
as insured; Any board members of any of those named as
insured, Any elected or appointed officials

• Include Volunteer Workers as Employees
• Include Treasurers or Tax Collectors as Employees
• Include Expenses Incurred to Establish Amount of Covered

Loss - $75,000 Sub-limit
• Employee Post Termination Coverage – 90 Days
• Cancellation Amendatory (Return Pro-Rata)
• Include Leased Workers as Employees Endorsement
• Notice of Claim Reporting by Email
• Economic Sanctions (excludes loss payments in violation of

economic or trade sanctions)

395 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 4

2022-2023 Alliant Crime Insurance Program 
Government Crime Insurance Proposal 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

ENDORSEMENTS (including but not limited 
to) Cont.: 

• Omnibus Named Insured
• Vendor Theft - $1,000,000 Limit excess of vendor insurance

policy limit ($500,000 minimum) required by contract
Coverage not applicable if crime insurance is not required in a
written agreement.

• Conditions Amended – Subrogation of Faithful Performance of
Duty Claims

• Third Party Coverage – Loss of or damage to ‘Client
Property’– Sublimit $250,000 with a $25,000 Deductible.

• Impersonation Fraud Endorsement –Sublimit $250,000 with
$25,000 Retention – Does not apply to any losses prior to
07/01/2015

• Blanket Joint Loss Payable- Where legally permissible

EXCLUSIONS (Including but not limited 
to): 

• Cyberextortion (Resulting Directly)- New
• Unauthorized disclosure of confidential information
• Governmental Action
• Indirect or Consequential Loss
• Protected Information (Carveback)
• Legal Fees and Expenses
• Nuclear Hazard
• Pollution
• War and Military Action
• Inventory Shortages
• Trading losses
• Accounting or Arithmetical Errors or Omissions
• Exchanges or Purchases
• Fire
• Money Operated Devices
• Motor Vehicles or Equipment and Accessories
• Transfer or Surrender or Property
• Vandalism
• Voluntary Parting of Title to Possession of Property

PROPOSAL VALID UNTIL: June 30, 2022 

396 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 5

2022-2023 Alliant Crime Insurance Program 
Government Crime Insurance Proposal 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

CLAIMS REPORTING PROCEDURE: AIG 
Financial Lines Claims 
P.O. Box 25947 
Shawnee Mission, KS 66225 
Fax: 866-227-1750 
Email: c-claim@aig.com 

Please forward a copy of the loss to the following Alliant Claim 
Advocates: 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
Attn: Robert Frey, Senior Vice President 

 560 Mission Street, 6th Floor 
 San Francisco, CA 94105 
 Phone: 415-403-1400 
 Fax: 415-403-1466 
E-Mail: rfrey@alliant.com

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
Attn: Elaine Tizon, Assistant Vice President 

 560 Mission Street, 6th Floor 
 San Francisco, CA 94105 
 Phone: 415-403-1400 
 Fax: 415-403-1466 
E-Mail: Elaine.Tizon@alliant.com

SUBJECTIVITIES: • Signed and dated Request to Bind Coverage page
• Payment to Alliant is due within 25 Days of Binding

BROKER: ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES, INC. 
Newport Beach, CA 

Tom E. Corbett, Senior Vice President 
Mariana C. Salyer, CISR, Account Manager 

See Disclaimer Page for Important Notices and Acknowledgement 

397 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/
mailto:c-claim@aig.com
mailto:rfrey@alliant.com
mailto:Elaine.Tizon@alliant.com


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 6

2022-2023 Alliant Crime Insurance Program 
Government Crime Insurance Proposal 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

Disclosures 

This proposal of insurance is provided as a matter of convenience and information only.  All 
information included in this proposal, including but not limited to personal and real property values, 
locations, operations, products, data, automobile schedules, financial data and loss experience, is 
based on facts and representations supplied to Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. by you.  This 
proposal does not reflect any independent study or investigation by Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
or its agents and employees. 

Please be advised that this proposal is also expressly conditioned on there being no material change 
in the risk between the date of this proposal and the inception date of the proposed policy (including 
the occurrence of any claim or notice of circumstances that may give rise to a claim under any policy 
which the policy being proposed is a renewal or replacement).  In the event of such change of risk, 
the insurer may, at its sole discretion, modify, or withdraw this proposal, whether or not this offer 
has already been accepted. 

This proposal is not confirmation of insurance and does not add to, extend, amend, change, or alter 
any coverage in any actual policy of insurance you may have.  All existing policy terms, conditions, 
exclusions, and limitations apply.  For specific information regarding your insurance coverage, 
please refer to the policy itself.  Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. will not be liable for any claims 
arising from or related to information included in or omitted from this proposal of insurance. 

Alliant embraces a policy of transparency with respect to its compensation from insurance transactions. 
Details on our compensation policy, including the types of income that Alliant may earn on a placement, are 
available on our website at www.alliant.com. For a copy of our policy or for any inquiries regarding 
compensation issues pertaining to your account you may also contact us at: Alliant Insurance Services, 
Inc., Attention: General Counsel, 701 B Street, 6th Floor, San Diego, CA  92101.   

Analyzing insurers' over-all performance and financial strength is a task that requires specialized skills and 
in-depth technical understanding of all aspects of insurance company finances and operations. Insurance 
brokerages such as Alliant Insurance typically rely upon rating agencies for this type of market analysis. 
Both A.M. Best and Standard and Poor's have been industry leaders in this area for many decades, utilizing 
a combination of quantitative and qualitative analysis of the information available in formulating their ratings. 

A.M. Best has an extensive database of nearly 6,000 Life/Health, Property Casualty and International
companies. You can visit them at www.ambest.com. For additional information regarding insurer financial
strength ratings visit Standard and Poor's website at www.standardandpoors.com.

Our goal is to procure insurance for you with underwriters possessing the financial strength to perform. 
Alliant does not, however, guarantee the solvency of any underwriters with which insurance or reinsurance 
is placed and maintains no responsibility for any loss or damage arising from the financial failure or 
insolvency of any insurer.  We encourage you to review the publicly available information collected to enable 
you to make an informed decision to accept or reject a particular underwriter.  To learn more about 
companies doing business in your state, visit the Department of Insurance website for that state. 

398 of 526 

http://www.alliant.com/
http://www.alliantinsurance.com/
http://www.ambest.com/
http://www.standardandpoors.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 7

2022-2023 Alliant Crime Insurance Program 
Government Crime Insurance Proposal 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

NY Regulation 194 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. is an insurance producer licensed by the State of New York. Insurance producers are 
authorized by their license to confer with insurance purchasers about the benefits, terms and conditions of insurance 
contracts; to offer advice concerning the substantive benefits of particular insurance contracts; to sell insurance; and to 
obtain insurance for purchasers.  The role of the producer in any particular transaction typically involves one or more of 
these activities. 

Compensation will be paid to the producer, based on the insurance contract the producer sells.  Depending on the insurer(s) 
and insurance contract(s) the purchaser selects, compensation will be paid by the insurer(s) selling the insurance contract 
or by another third party.  Such compensation may vary depending on a number of factors, including the insurance 
contract(s) and the insurer(s) the purchaser selects.  In some cases, other factors such as the volume of business a producer 
provides to an insurer or the profitability of insurance contracts a producer provides to an insurer also may affect 
compensation.   

The insurance purchaser may obtain information about compensation expected to be received by the producer based in 
whole or in part on the sale of insurance to the purchaser, and (if applicable) compensation expected to be received based 
in whole or in part on any alternative quotes presented to the purchaser by the producer, by requesting such information 
from the producer. 

Other Disclosures / Disclaimers 

FATCA: 
The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires the notification of certain financial accounts to the United 
States Internal Revenue Service.  Alliant does not provide tax advice so please contact your tax consultant for your 
obligation regarding FATCA.  

Claims Reporting: 
Your policy will come with specific claim reporting requirements.  Please make sure you understand these obligations. 
Contact your Alliant Service Team with any questions. 

Certificates / Evidence of Insurance 
A certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder.  The certificate does 
not affirmatively or negatively amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by a policy.  Nor does it constitute a contract 
between the issuing insurer(s), authorized representative, producer or certificate holder.   

You may have signed contracts, leases or other agreements requiring you to provide this evidence.  In those agreements, 
you may assume obligations and/or liability for others (Indemnification, Hold Harmless) and some of the obligations that are 
not covered by insurance.  We recommend that you and your legal counsel review these documents. 

399 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 8

2022-2023 Alliant Crime Insurance Program 
Government Crime Insurance Proposal 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

Other Disclosures / Disclaimers - Continued 

In addition to providing a certificate of insurance, you may be required to name your client or customer on your policy as an 
additional insured.  This is only possible with permission of the insurance company, added by endorsement and, in some 
cases, an additional premium. 

By naming the certificate holder as additional insured, there are consequences to your risks and insurance policy including: 
• Your policy limits are now shared with other entities; their claims involvement may reduce or exhaust your aggregate

limit.
• Your policy may provide higher limits than required by contract; your full limits can be exposed to the additional

insured.
• There may be conflicts in defense when your insurer has to defend both you and the additional insured.

See Request to Bind Coverage page for acknowledgment of all disclaimers and disclosures. 

400 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 9

2022-2023 Alliant Crime Insurance Program 
Government Crime Insurance Proposal 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

Request to Bind Coverage 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

We have reviewed the proposal and agree to the terms and conditions of the coverages presented.  We are 
requesting coverage to be bound as outlined by coverage line below: 

Coverage Line  Bind 
Coverage for: 

Annual Premium 

ACIP Government Crime 
Program Policy Period:  
July 1, 2022- July 1, 2023 

☐ $5,000 Deductible
$3,000,000 Limit

$54,845 

This Authorization to Bind Coverage also acknowledges receipt and review of all disclaimers and disclosures, including 
exposures used to develop insurance terms, contained within this proposal. 

Signature of Authorized Insurance Representative Date 

Title 

Printed / Typed Name 

This proposal does not constitute a binder of insurance.  Binding is subject to final carrier approval.  The 
actual terms and conditions of the policy will prevail. 

401 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


ALLIANT CRIME INSURANCE PROGRAM (ACIP) 
GOVERNMENT CRIME POLICY 
JULY 1, 2022 TO JULY 1, 2023 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 
2180 Harvard Street, Ste. 460 
Sacramento, CA 95815 

COVERAGE EFFECTIVE DATE: 07/01/2022 

INSURED: 
  

NAMED INSURED: 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF)  
City of Anderson; Anderson Public Financing Authority; Successor Agency; Successor 

Agency Oversight Board 
City of Auburn 
City of Colusa 
City of Corning 
City of Dixon 
City of Galt 
City of Gridley 
City of Ione 
City of Lincoln 
City of Marysville 
City of Oroville 
City of Red Bluff 
City of Rio Vista 
City of Rocklin 
City of Willows 
City of Yuba City 
Town of Paradise  

402 of 526



Limit Options:  $3 MILLION $5 MILLION Limit Options:  $3 MILLION $5 MILLION
Deductible Options $5,000 $25,000 Deductible Options: $5,000 $25,000
Premium: $53,523 $67,974 Premium: $54,845 $70,065

% CHANGE $ Change % Change
Member Entity # EMPLOYEES PREMIUM PREMIUM # EMPLOYEES PREMIUM PREMIUM # EMPLOYEES* PREMIUM PREMIUM
Anderson 70 $1,466 $1,862 74 $1,700 $2,172 6% $234 16%
Auburn 100 $2,094 $2,660 111 $2,551 $3,258 11% $456 22%
Colusa 48 $1,005 $1,277 49 $1,126 $1,438 2% $121 12%
Corning 88 $1,843 $2,341 89 $2,045 $2,613 1% $202 11%
Dixon 206 $4,314 $5,479 184 $4,228 $5,401 ‐11% ($86) ‐2%
Elk Grove
Folsom
Galt 195 $4,084 $5,187 222 $5,101 $6,517 14% $1,017 25%
Gridley 75 $1,571 $1,995 64 $1,471 $1,879 ‐15% ($100) ‐6%
Ione 50 $1,047 $1,330 52 $1,195 $1,526 4% $148 14%
Jackson
Lincoln 224.11 $4,694 $5,961 293.16 $6,736 $8,606 31% $2,043 44%
Marysville 92 $1,927 $2,447 100 $2,298 $2,936 9% $371 19%
Nevada City
Oroville  141 $2,953 $3,750 122 $2,803 $3,581 ‐13% ($150) ‐5%
Paradise 77 $1,613 $2,048 96.05 $2,207 $2,820 25% $594 37%
Placerville
Red Bluff 114 $2,388 $3,032 148 $3,401 $4,345 30% $1,013 42%
Rio Vista 62 $1,298 $1,649 61 $1,402 $1,791 ‐2% $103 8%
Rocklin 283 $5,927 $7,527 279.3 $6,418 $8,199 ‐1% $491 8%
Willows 73 $1,529 $1,942 61 $1,402 $1,791 ‐16% ($127) ‐8%
Yuba City 657.5 $13,770 $17,488 381.3 $8,762 $11,193 ‐42% ($5,009) ‐36%
TOTAL: 2556 $53,523 $67,974 2387 $54,845 $70,065 ‐7% $1,322 2%

Don't Participate
Rate Per Employee $0.21 $0.23 9.7%

$0.29

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND

Alliant Crime Insurance Program (ACIP)

July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2023

FY 22/23 PREMIUM ALLOCATION

*Employees = Full Time, Part Time (full 

time equivalent), Elected/Appointed 

Officials and Volunteers (full time 

equivalent)

FY 21/22 PREMIUM ALLOCATION PRIOR YEAR CHANGE AT $3M LIMIT

 
Page 403 of 526



www.alliant.com | © 2021 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Alliant Insurance Services created the Alliant Crime Insurance Program (ACIP) to protect Government 
entities from the scourge of crime. The program offers broad coverage for illegal acts committed by 
employees while on the job, offering valuable peace of mind and an iron-clad layer of protection against 
crime-related damages.  

Protection from the Constant Threat 
Crime is swift and unpredictable. It can strike at a moment’s notice, creating staggering costs and long-
term damage. It occurs in the light of day and the dark of night and, in its many manifestations, poses 
an insidious and constant threat to your organization. It doesn’t have to.  

Program Features 
ACIP is a flexible insurance solution with a broad array of best-in-class features. It is customized to meet 
the wide-ranging needs of public entities, providing access to:  

› Basic program limits of $1 million with higher limits available, and deductibles starting at $5,000
› Faithful performance of duty up to the full employee theft limit
› Impersonation Fraud/Social Engineering coverage available
› Forgery or Alteration including credit, debit or charge card forgery coverage
› Inside/Outside premises theft of money, securities and other property coverage
› Computer fraud coverage
› Funds transfer fraud coverage
› Coverage for the treasurer/tax collector and any employees required by statute to carry

individual bonds
› Coverage for volunteers

Public Entity 

ALLIANT CRIME 
INSURANCE 
PROGRAM (ACIP) 

404 of 526 



www.alliant.com | © 2021 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. All rights reserved. 

Size and Stability 
ACIP is among the largest programs of its kind and is comprised primarily of public entities with fewer 
than 1,000 employees. ACIP has a strong track record of results and a historically low loss ratio. This 
combination of size and stability empowers Alliant to offer competitive rates that are impervious to 
fluctuations in the general insurance market. Additionally, as a group purchase program, there is no 
risk sharing and, therefore, no possibility of assessments. 

The Alliant Advantage 
The Alliant public entity team is comprised of 150 professionals with targeted expertise servicing a 
broad range of public entities throughout the U.S. We ensure that our clients have access to time-
tested expertise and powerful risk resources regardless of location.

Contact: 
Tom E. Corbett 
Senior Vice President 
949 660 8132 
tecorbett@alliant.com 

ABOUT ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES 
Alliant Insurance Services is the nation’s leading specialty broker. In the face of increasing complexity, our approach is simple: 
hire the best people and invest extensively in the industries and clients we serve. We operate through national platforms to 
all specialties. We draw upon our resources from across the country, regardless of where the resource is located. 

405 of 526 



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.4. 
 

 
FY 22/23 IDENTITY FRAUD EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT  

COVERAGE RENEWAL 
 

ACTION ITEM 
 

ISSUE: The Board is provided the attached proposal to renew Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement 
coverage for full and part time employees and their spouses, children under 25 years of age, or parents 
residing in the same household.  There was a slight decrease in premium due to a reduction in 
participation. 
 
ID Fraud Coverage provides tools to recover from ID Theft. The coverage provides: 
 

 Expense reimbursement for expenses associated with resolving a fraud event 

 Online education resources to help prevent becoming a victim 

 24/7 access to an expert fraud specialist  

 Document replacement help (social security card, birth certificate, passport, etc.) 

 Assistance through the resolution process 
 
OPTIONS: 

1. Renew coverage as expiring. 

2. Decline to renew coverage. 

3. Provide different direction to Program Administrators. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The Program Administrator recommends approval of the FY 22/23 Identity 
Fraud Reimbursement Coverage Renewal with Travelers Excess and Surplus Lines Company. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: NCCSIF’s FY 21/22 premium is $13,228.97. Premium for FY 22/23 is $13,971.79. 
 
BACKGROUND: NCCSIF first purchased ID Fraud coverage for the FY 15/16 policy year. The 
coverage renews July 1, 2021. The limit of liability is $25,000 per insured person with $0 retention per 
insured person for Identity Fraud Reimbursement Coverage per attached proposal. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. FY 22/23 Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement Renewal Proposal 
2. Identity Fraud Brochure  

 

 
Page 406 of 526



 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 

2180 Harvard Street, Suite 460 

Sacramento, CA 95815 

O 916 643 2700 

F 916 643 2750 

CA License No. 0C36861 www.alliant.com 

Northern California Cities  
  Self Insurance Fund   
    (NCCSIF) 

2022 – 2023 

Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement Insurance Proposal 
 
Presented on June 8, 2022 by:  
 
Marcus Beverly  
First Vice President  
 
 

 
Page 407 of 526



 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 1 

Table of Contents  
Company Profile ...................................................................................................................................... 2 

Alliant Advantage ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

Your Service Team .................................................................................................................................. 4 

Named Insured / Additional Named Insureds .......................................................................................... 5 

Line of Coverage ..................................................................................................................................... 6 

Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement Coverage .............................................................................................................. 6 

Disclosures .............................................................................................................................................. 8 

NY Regulation 194 ............................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Privacy ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

FATCA: ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

NRRA: ......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Guarantee Funds ................................................................................................................................................................................. 10 

Claims Reporting: ............................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Claims Made Policy: ........................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Changes and Developments ........................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Certificates / Evidence of Insurance .......................................................................................................................................... 11 

Optional Coverages ............................................................................................................................... 12 

Glossary of Insurance Terms ................................................................................................................ 12 

Request to Bind Coverage .................................................................................................................... 13 

 

 
Page 408 of 526



 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 2 

Company Profile 
 

With a history dating back to 1925, Alliant Insurance Services is one of the nation’s leading distributors of 
diversified insurance products and services. Operating through a national network of offices, Alliant offers 

a comprehensive portfolio of services to clients, including: 
 

 Risk Solutions 

 Employee Benefits 
 Strategy 
 Employee Engagement 

 Procurement 
 Analytics 
 Wellness 

 Compliance 
 Benefits Administration 
 Global Workforce 

 Industry Solutions 
 Construction 
 Energy and Marine 

 Healthcare 
 Law Firms 
 Public Entity 

 Real Estate 
 Tribal Nations 
 And many other industries 

 Co-Brokered Solutions 

 Automotive Specialty 
 Energy Alliance Program 
 Hospital All Risk Property 

Program 
 Law Firms 
 Parking/Valet 

 Public Entity Property 
Insurance Program  

 Restaurants/Lodging 

 Tribal Nations 
 Waste Haulers/Recycling 

 Business Services 

 Risk Control Consulting 
 Human Resources Consulting 
 Property Valuation 

 

 
The knowledge that Alliant has gained in its more than eight decades of working with many of the top 

insurance companies in the world allows us to provide our clients with the guidance and high-quality 
performance they deserve. Our solution-focused commitment to meeting the unique needs of our clients 
assures the delivery of the most innovative insurance products, services, and thinking in the industry. 

 
Alliant ranks among the 15 largest insurance brokerage firms in the United States. 
 

 
Page 409 of 526



 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 3 

Alliant Advantage 
 

 Alliant Competition 

 

1. Satisfying the insurance needs of business for nearly  
90 years  

2. Privately owned and operated.  

3. A full-service insurance agency for all your business, 
life and health, and personal insurance.  

4. Representing over 40 insurance companies to provide  

the best and most affordable coverage.  

5. State-licensed support staff.  

6. Dedicated Certificate of Insurance personnel.  

7. Risk management services to help identify hazards  
and present options.  

8. Workers’ compensation insurance claims management  

at no additional charge.  
 
 

 
Page 410 of 526



 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 4 

Your Service Team 
 
 

Marcus Beverly 
First Vice President  
Marcus.Beverly@alliant.com 

Phone: 916 643 2704 

  

Jenna Wirkner  

Account Representative  
Jenna.Wirkner@alliant.com 

Phone: 916 643 2741 

  

 

 
Page 411 of 526



 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 5 

Named Insured / Additional Named Insureds 
 
 

Named Insured(s) 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 
 

 
 
Additional Named Insured(s) 

None 
 
 

 

NAMED INSURED DISCLOSURE 

 
 The first named insured is granted certain rights and responsibilities that do not apply to other policy named insureds and 

is designated to act on behalf of all insureds for making policy changes, receiving correspondence, distributing claim 

proceeds, and making premium payments. 

 Are ALL entities listed as named insureds? Coverage is not automatically afforded to all entities unless specifically 

named. Confirm with your producer and service team that all entities to be protected are on the correct policy. Not all 

entities may be listed on all policies based on coverage line. 

 Additional named insured is (1) A person or organization, other than the first named insured, identified as an insured in 

the policy declarations or an addendum to the policy declarations. (2) A person or organization added to a policy after the 

policy is written with the status of named insured. This entity would have the same rights and responsibilities as an entity 

named as an insured in the policy declarations (other than those rights and responsibilities reserved to the first named 

insured). 

 Applies to Professional Liability, Pollution Liability, Directors & Officers Liability, Employment Practices Liability, Fiduciary 

Liability policies (this list not all inclusive). Check your Policy language for applicability. These policies provide protection 

to the Named Insured for claims made against it alleging a covered wrongful act. Coverage is not afforded to any other 

entities (unless specifically added by endorsement or if qualified as a “Subsidiary” pursuant to the policy wording) affiliated 

by common individual insured ownership or to which indemnification is otherwise contractually owed. If coverage is 

desired for affiliated entities or for contractual indemnities owed, please contact your Alliant Service Team with a full list of 

entities for which coverage is requested. With each request, include complete financials and ownership information for 

submission to the carrier. It should be noted, that the underwriter’s acceptance of any proposed amendments to the 

policy, including expansion of the scope of “Insureds” under the policy could result in a potential diminution of the 

applicable limits of liability and/or an additional premium charge. 

 

 
Page 412 of 526



 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 6 

Line of Coverage 
Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement Coverage 

 
INSURANCE COMPANY:  Travelers Excess and Surplus Lines Company 

A.M. BEST RATING:  A++ (Superior); Financial Size Category: XV 
($2 Billion or greater) as of November 4, 2021 

STANDARD & POOR’S RATING:  AA (Very Strong) as of July 14, 2021 

CALIFORNIA STATUS:  Non-Admitted 

POLICY/COVERAGE TERM:  July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2023 

   

Coverage Form:  Per Policy 

   

Named Insured:  Members of the Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund Full Time and Part Time Employees 

   

Limits:  $ 25,000 Per Insured Person 

   

Retention:   $ 0 Per Insured Person 

   

Coverage:   Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement for Full 
Time and Part Time Employees and their 
spouses, children under 25 years of age or 
parents residing in the same household. 

 Reimburses the costs and expenses associated 
with identity recovery, including lost wages, 
attorney fees, and document replacement fees. 

   

Endorsement:  
(including but not limited to) 

  Schedule of Membership Programs 
 Family Coverage Endorsement 

 Identity Fraud Resolution Services  
 Certificate of Insurance 
 Service of Lawsuit Endorsement 

   

Exclusions: 
(including but not limited to) 

  Fraudulent, dishonest or criminal acts 
 Loss other than expenses 
 Former employees 
 Nuclear 
 War 

   

 
Page 413 of 526



 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 7 

Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement Coverage - Continued 
 

Total Cost Excluding TRIA:  $ 13,532.00 Policy Premium 
$ 405.96 CA Surplus Lines Tax (3%) 
$ 33.83 CA Stamping Fee (0.25%) 

$ 13,971.79 Total Cost 

   

Total Cost Including TRIA:  Not Applicable 

   

Minimum Earned Premium:  Per Policy 

   

Quote Valid Until:  July 1, 2022 

   

Policy Auditable:  Per Policy 

   

Binding Conditions:   A written request to bind coverage 
 All Surplus Lines Taxes / Fees are Fully Earned 

 Surplus Lines Disclosure Form 

 
 

See Disclaimer Page for Important Notices and Acknowledgement 

 

 
Page 414 of 526



 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 8 

Disclosures 
 

This proposal of insurance is provided as a matter of convenience and information only.  All information 
included in this proposal, including but not limited to personal and real property values, locations, operations, 
products, data, automobile schedules, financial data and loss experience, is based on facts and 
representations supplied to Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. by you.  This proposal does not reflect any 
independent study or investigation by Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. or its agents and employees. 
 
Please be advised that this proposal is also expressly conditioned on there being no material change in the 
risk between the date of this proposal and the inception date of the proposed policy (including the occurrence 
of any claim or notice of circumstances that may give rise to a claim under any policy which the policy being 
proposed is a renewal or replacement).  In the event of such change of risk, the insurer may, at its sole 
discretion, modify, or withdraw this proposal, whether or not this offer has already been accepted. 
 
This proposal is not confirmation of insurance and does not add to, extend, amend, change, or alter any 
coverage in any actual policy of insurance you may have.  All existing policy terms, conditions, exclusions, 
and limitations apply.  For specific information regarding your insurance coverage, please refer to the policy 
itself.  Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. will not be liable for any claims arising from or related to information 
included in or omitted from this proposal of insurance. 
 
Alliant embraces a policy of transparency with respect to its compensation from insurance transactions. 
Details on our compensation policy, including the types of income that Alliant may earn on a placement, are 
available on our website at www.alliant.com. For a copy of our policy or for any inquiries regarding 
compensation issues pertaining to your account you may also contact us at: Alliant Insurance Services, 
Inc., Attention: General Counsel, 701 B Street, 6th Floor, San Diego, CA  92101.   
 
Analyzing insurers' over-all performance and financial strength is a task that requires specialized skills and 
in-depth technical understanding of all aspects of insurance company finances and operations. Insurance 
brokerages such as Alliant Insurance typically rely upon rating agencies for this type of market analysis. 
Both A.M. Best and Standard and Poor's have been industry leaders in this area for many decades, utilizing 
a combination of quantitative and qualitative analysis of the information available in formulating their ratings. 
 
A.M. Best has an extensive database of nearly 6,000 Life/Health, Property Casualty and International 
companies. You can visit them at www.ambest.com. For additional information regarding insurer financial 
strength ratings visit Standard and Poor's website at www.standardandpoors.com. 

Our goal is to procure insurance for you with underwriters possessing the financial strength to perform.  
Alliant does not, however, guarantee the solvency of any underwriters with which insurance or reinsurance 
is placed and maintains no responsibility for any loss or damage arising from the financial failure or 
insolvency of any insurer.  We encourage you to review the publicly available information collected to enable 
you to make an informed decision to accept or reject a particular underwriter.  To learn more about 
companies doing business in your state, visit the Department of Insurance website for that state. 

 
Page 415 of 526



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 9 

NY Regulation 194  
 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. is an insurance producer licensed by the State of New York. Insurance producers 
are authorized by their license to confer with insurance purchasers about the benefits, terms and conditions of 
insurance contracts; to offer advice concerning the substantive benefits of particular insurance contracts; to sell 
insurance; and to obtain insurance for purchasers.  The role of the producer in any particular transaction typically 
involves one or more of these activities. 
 
Compensation will be paid to the producer, based on the insurance contract the producer sells.  Depending on the 
insurer(s) and insurance contract(s) the purchaser selects, compensation will be paid by the insurer(s) selling the 
insurance contract or by another third party.  Such compensation may vary depending on a number of factors, 
including the insurance contract(s) and the insurer(s) the purchaser selects.  In some cases, other factors such as 
the volume of business a producer provides to an insurer or the profitability of insurance contracts a producer 
provides to an insurer also may affect compensation. 
 
The insurance purchaser may obtain information about compensation expected to be received by the producer 
based in whole or in part on the sale of insurance to the purchaser, and (if applicable) compensation expected to 
be received based in whole or in part on any alternative quotes presented to the purchaser by the producer, by 
requesting such information from the producer. 
 

Privacy 
 
At Alliant, one of our top priorities is making sure that the information we have about you is protected and secure. 
We value our relationship with you and work hard to preserve your privacy and ensure that your preferences are 
honored. At the same time, the very nature of our relationship may result in Alliant’s collecting or sharing certain 
types of information about you in order to provide the products and services you expect from us. Please take the 
time to read our full Privacy Policy posted at www.alliant.com, and contact your Alliant service team should you 
have any questions. 
 

 
Other Disclosures / Disclaimers 
 
FATCA: 
The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires the notification of certain financial accounts to the 
United States Internal Revenue Service.  Alliant does not provide tax advice so please contact your tax consultant 
for your obligation regarding FATCA.  
 
NRRA:	
The Non-Admitted and Reinsurance Reform Act (NRRA) went into effect on July 21, 2011.  Accordingly, surplus 
lines tax rates and regulations are subject to change which could result in an increase or decrease of the total 
surplus lines taxes and/or fees owed on this placement.  If a change is required, we will promptly notify you.  Any 
additional taxes and/or fees must be promptly remitted to Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
  

 
Page 416 of 526



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 10 

Other Disclosures / Disclaimers - Continued 
 

Guarantee Funds 
Established by law in every state, guaranty funds are maintained by a state's insurance commissioner to protect 
policyholders in the event that an insurer becomes insolvent or is unable to meet its financial obligations. If your 
insurance carrier is identified as ‘Non-Admitted’, your policy is not protected by your state’s Guaranty Fund.  

Claims Reporting: 
Your policy will come with specific claim reporting requirements.  Please make sure you understand these 
obligations.  Contact your Alliant Service Team with any questions. 
 

Claims Made Policy:  
This claims-made policy contains a requirement stating that this policy applies only to any claim first made 
against the Insured and reported to the insurer during the policy period or applicable extended reporting period.  
Claims must be submitted to the insurer during the policy period, or applicable extended reporting period, as 
required pursuant to the Claims/Loss Notification Clause within the policy in order for coverage to apply.  Late 
reporting or failure to report pursuant to the policy’s requirements could result in a disclaimer of coverage by 
the insurer. 
 
Any Employment Practices Liability (EPL) or Directors & Officers (D&O) with EPL coverage must give notice to the 
insurer of any charges / complaints brought by any state / federal agency (i.e. EEOC and similar proceedings) 
involving an employee.  To preserve your rights under the policy, it is important that timely notice be given to the 
insurer, whether or not a right to sue letter has been issued. 
 

Changes and Developments 
It is important that we be advised of any changes in your operations, which may have a bearing on the validity 
and/or adequacy of your insurance.  The types of changes that concern us include, but are not limited to, those 
listed below: 
 
 Changes in any operations such as expansion to another state, new products, or new applications of existing 

products. 
 Travel to any state not previously disclosed. 
 Permanent operations outside the United States, Canada or Puerto Rico. 
 Mergers and/or acquisition of new companies and any change in business ownership, including percentages. 
 Any newly assumed contractual liability, granting of indemnities or hold harmless agreements. 
 Any changes in existing premises including vacancy, whether temporary or permanent, alterations, 

demolition, etc.  Also, any new premises either purchased, constructed or occupied 
 Circumstances which may require an increased liability insurance limit. 
 Any changes in fire or theft protection such as the installation of or disconnection of sprinkler systems, burglar 

alarms, etc.  This includes any alterations to the system. 
 Immediate notification of any changes to a scheduled of equipment, property, vehicles, electronic data 

processing, etc. 
 Property of yours that is in transit, unless previously discussed and/or currently insured. 

 
Page 417 of 526



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 11 

Other Disclosures / Disclaimers - Continued 
 

Certificates / Evidence of Insurance 
A Certificate or Evidence is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder.  
The certificate does not affirmatively or negatively amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by a policy, nor 
does it constitute a contract between the issuing insurer(s), authorized representative, producer or recipient.   

 
You may have signed contracts, leases or other agreements requiring you to provide this evidence.  In those 
agreements, you may assume obligations and/or liability for others (Indemnification, Hold Harmless) and some of 
the obligations that are not covered by insurance.  We recommend that you and your legal counsel review these 
documents. 

 
In addition to providing a Certificate or Evident of Insurance, you may be required to name your landlord, client or 
customer on your policy as a loss payee on property insurance or as an additional insured on liability insurance.  
This is only possible with permission of the insurance company, added by endorsement and, in some cases, an 
additional premium. 
 
By naming the certificate holder as additional insured, there are consequences to your risks and insurance policy 
including: 
 Your policy limits are now shared with other entities; their claims involvement may reduce or exhaust your 

aggregate limit. 
 Your policy may provide higher limits than required by contract; your full limits can be exposed to the additional 

insured. 
 There may be conflicts in defense when your insurer has to defend both you and the additional insured. 
 An additional insured endorsement will most likely not provide notification of cancellation.  Some insurance 

companies use a “blanket” additional insured endorsement that provides coverage automatically when it is 
required in a written contract.  Most insurance companies do not want to be notified of all additional 
insureds when there is a blanket endorsement on the policy.  If a notice of cancellation is required for the 
additional insured party, you must notify us immediately and we will request an endorsement from your 
insurance company.  There may be an additional premium for adding a notice of cancellation endorsement 
for an additional insured. 

 
See Request to Bind Coverage page for acknowledgment of all disclaimers and disclosures. 

  

 
Page 418 of 526



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 12 

Optional Coverages  
 
The following represents a list of insurance coverages that are not included in this proposal, but are 
optional and may be available with further underwriting information. 

Note some of these coverages may be included with limitations or insured elsewhere.  This is a partial 
listing as you may have additional risks not contemplated here or are unique to your organization.  

 Crime / Fidelity Insurance 

 Directors & Officers Liability 

 Earthquake Insurance 

 Employed Lawyers 

 Employment Practices Liability 

 Event Cancellation 

 Fiduciary Liability 

 Fireworks Liability 

 Flood Insurance 

 Foreign Insurance 

 Garage Keepers Liability 

 Kidnap & Ransom 

 Law Enforcement Liability 

 Media and Publishers Liability 

 Medical Malpractice Liability 

 Network Security / Privacy Liability and 

Internet Media Liability 

 Pollution Liability 

 Owned/Non-Owned Aircraft 

 Owned Watercraft 

 Special Events Liability 

 Student Accident 

 Volunteer Accidental Death & 

Dismemberment (AD&D) 

 Workers’ Compensation  

 Workplace Violence 

 

Glossary of Insurance Terms 

 
Below are a couple of links to assist you in understanding the insurance terms you may find within your 
insurance coverages: 
 

http://insurancecommunityuniversity.com/UniversityResources/InsuranceGlossaryFREE.aspx 
http://www.ambest.com/resource/glossary.html 

http://www.irmi.com/online/insurance-glossary/default.aspx 

 
Page 419 of 526



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Issued: 6/8/22 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 13 

Request to Bind Coverage 

 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF) 

We have reviewed the proposal and agree to the terms and conditions of the coverages presented.  We 
are requesting coverage to be bound as outlined by coverage line below: 
 

Coverage Line Bind Coverage for: 
   

Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement  ☐ 

   
 

Did you know that Alliant works with premium financing companies? 
Are you interested in financing your annual premium?  

Yes, please provide us with a 

financing quote.  

No, we do not wish to finance 

our premium.  

☐ ☐ 

 

This Authorization to Bind Coverage also acknowledges receipt and review of all disclaimers and 

disclosures, including exposures used to develop insurance terms, contained within this proposal. 

 

  

Signature of Authorized Insured Representative  Date 

  

Title  

  

Printed / Typed Name  
 

This proposal does not constitute a binder of insurance.  Binding is subject to final carrier 
approval.  The actual terms and conditions of the policy will prevail. 

 

 
Page 420 of 526



Why you need protection

Becoming a victim of identity fraud is a frightening, frustrating 
experience. It can happen to anyone at any time in a variety of 
ways, ranging from a stolen wallet or home burglary to online 
theft of your personal information.

Recovering from identity fraud means more than just canceling 
credit cards. Not only can it be a complicated and stressful 
experience, but it can cost your employee or member of your 
organization hours of time and out-of-pocket expenses to 
re-establish their credit and clear their name. The hard reality 
is that victims must painstakingly prove, often to disbelieving 
creditors, that the debts are not their own. Purchasing identity 
fraud expense reimbursement coverage for your employees or 
members can be an affordable and compelling addition to your 
benefits suite.

Coverage highlights

Travelers Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement coverage pays 
for expenses associated with resolving an identity fraud event and 
perhaps most importantly, gives people tools and information to 
reduce their risk of future additional fraud.

In addition to expense reimbursement, Travelers also offers 
Identity Fraud Resolution Service through Identity Theft 911, 
which includes:

•	 Exclusive online education resources providing tips and 
information to help avoid becoming a victim

•	 24/7 personal access to an expert fraud specialist

•	 Document replacement help (i.e., Social Security card,  
birth certificate, passport, etc.)

In the event of an actual identity fraud, services include:

•	 Step-by-step guidance through the resolution process,  
including unlimited assistance to restore a victim’s identity

•	 3-in-1 credit reporting

•	 One year of free credit, cyber and fraud monitoring

Identity fraud is the fastest-growing
white-collar crime in America,
impacting one in every 20 consumers.*

*Javelin Strategy & Research, February 2013 Report

Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement
COVERAGE HIGHLIGHTS

Each year, the number of identity fraud cases 
rises; most recently 12.6 million adults in the 
United States were victims. On average, it 
takes an individual more than 37 hours and 
$535 in out-of-pocket expenses* to clean up 
the mess caused by an identity thief.

 
Page 421 of 526



Travelers knows ID Fraud.  
To learn more, talk to your independent agent or visit travelersbond.com.

Available through the Travelers Wrap+®, SelectOne+® and Executive Choice+® suite of products.

travelersbond.com 

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America and its property casualty affiliates. One Tower Square, Hartford, CT 06183

This material does not amend, or otherwise affect, the provisions or coverages of any insurance policy or bond issued by Travelers. It is not a representation that coverage does or 
does not exist for any particular claim or loss under any such policy or bond. Coverage depends on the facts and circumstances involved in the claim or loss, all applicable policy or 
bond provisions, and any applicable law. Availability of coverage referenced in this document can depend on underwriting qualifications and state regulations.

© 2014 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved. Travelers and the Travelers Umbrella logo are registered trademarks of The Travelers Indemnity Company in the 
U.S. and other countries. 59434 Rev. 10-14

Claim scenarios 

Bogus charge accounts while on business travel

An executive was on business in Brazil when his identity was stolen 
and significant charges were made to his corporate card. In order 
to file an affidavit of loss with the local Brazilian authorities, he was 
required to provide a sworn statement in person. Total expenses 
for time off work, travel expenses, phone charges and the cost to 
replace the executive’s passport were $4,500.

Medical identity fraud

A woman from Illinois discovered a number of questionable 
billings on her medical insurance annual summary of benefits. 
Someone had stolen her and her children’s identities to secure 
medical services in their names. 

After struggling with the health care institution to release the 
personal medical information, she hired an attorney to help. The 
attorney was able to contest the services and clean up her medical 
history. It took more than six months to resolve the identity fraud 
and cost nearly $6,000 in attorney’s fees, lost wages and fees for 
copies of X-rays and other medical records.

Why Travelers?

•	 We’ve provided effective insurance solutions for more than 
150 years and address the needs of a wide range of industries.

•	 We consistently receive high marks from independent ratings 
agencies for our financial strength and claims-paying ability.

•	 With offices nationwide, we possess national strength and 
local presence.

•	 Our dedicated underwriters, and claim professionals offer 
extensive industry and product knowledge.

 
Page 422 of 526



Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement
COVERAGE CHECKLIST

Identity Fraud Expense Reimbursement is available through the 
Travelers Wrap+®, SelectOne+® and Executive Choice+® suite of 
products and delivers a robust coverage solution. The following 
checklist illustrates key coverages and features every insured 
should have as part of their insurance program to help protect their 
employees or members should any become a victim of the rising 
crime of identity fraud.

Coverage
Travelers 

policy
Their 
policy

Lost wages – up to a maximum payment of $1,000 per week for a maximum period of five weeks,  
as a result of absence from employment, including for wrongful incarceration

No

Attorneys’ fees – with Travelers’ prior consent, including:
• Removing criminal or civil judgments wrongly entered against the victim
• Challenging information in a credit report
• Defending suits brought incorrectly by merchants or their collection agencies
• Pursuing the release of medical records solely for the purpose of investigating medical-related 

identity fraud
• Contesting wrongfully incurred tax liability
• Contesting the wrongful transfer of ownership of an insured person’s tangible property

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
No 
No 
No 
No 
  
No 
No

Fees for the re-application and re-issuance of government-issued personal  
identification documentation – including passports, commercial and non-commercial drivers 
licenses, state and federal personal identification cards, and Social Security cards compromised  
as a result of identity fraud

No 
 
No

Fees charged for copies of medical records – including X-rays, obtained solely for the purpose of 
investigating medical-related identity fraud

No 
No

Dedicated identity fraud claim unit – experts who can provide guidance to insured victim to assist 
in the recovery of their identity and credit history

No 
No

Reasonable costs for travel and accommodations incurred by the insured person – up
to a maximum payment of $1,000 per week for a maximum period of five weeks, to:
• Participate in the defense of lawsuits brought against the insured person by financial institutions, 

health care providers, merchants, other credit grantors or their collection agencies
• Challenge the accuracy or completeness of any information in a consumer credit report
• Participate in the criminal prosecution of the perpetrators of the identity fraud
• File in-person loss affidavits and civil or criminal complaints with local law enforcement in the 

jurisdiction in which the identity fraud occurred, as required by local law

 
 
 
 
 
 

No 
 

No 

 
No 
No 
No

Why your clients need our protection

 
Page 423 of 526



Coverage
Travelers 

policy
Their 
policy

Family coverage – including residents of the insured person’s household, provided they are either a 
spouse, child under the age of 18 or parent

No

Daycare and eldercare expenses – incurred solely as a direct result of any identity fraud discovered 
during the policy period

No

Coverage for thefts committed by family members No

Insureds choose their own attorney No

Limit options – ranging from $1,000 to $25,000 No

Retention options – ranging from $0 to $250
No

In addition to expense reimbursement, Travelers also offers 
Identity Fraud Resolution Service through CyberScout,  
which includes:
• Exclusive online education resources providing tips and 

information to help avoid becoming a victim
• 24/7 personal access to an expert fraud specialist
• Document replacement help (i.e., Social Security card,  

birth certificate, passport, etc.)

In the event of an actual identity fraud, services include:
• Step-by-step guidance through the resolution process,  

including unlimited assistance to restore a victim’s identity
• 3-in-1 credit reporting
• One year of free credit, cyber and fraud monitoring

Travelers knows ID Fraud.
To learn more, talk to your independent agent or visit travelers.com.

Available through the Travelers Wrap+®, SelectOne+® and Executive Choice+® suite of products.

travelers.com  
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America and its property casualty affiliates. One Tower Square, Hartford, CT 06183   
This material does not amend, or otherwise affect, the provisions or coverages of any insurance policy or bond issued by Travelers. It is not a representation that coverage does or does not exist 
for any particular claim or loss under any such policy or bond. Coverage depends on the facts and circumstances involved in the claim or loss, all applicable policy or bond provisions, and any 
applicable law. Availability of coverage referenced in this document can depend on underwriting qualifications and state regulations.  
© 2022 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved. Travelers and the Travelers Umbrella logo are registered trademarks of The Travelers Indemnity Company in the U.S. and other 
countries. 59221 Rev. 4-22

Identity Fraud Resolution Service

 
Page 424 of 526

https://www.travelers.com/
https://www.travelers.com/


Identity Fraud
A CONSUMER’S TOP 10 TIPS TO PREVENT IDENTITY FRAUD

Traditional shopping

1. Review your wallet or purse contents before you go 
 shopping. Common theft is the easiest way for a criminal to 
 steal your identity and commit fraud. Before you go shopping, 
 think about how much information a thief would obtain if your  
 wallet or purse was stolen.

• Avoid carrying Social Security cards, birth certificates or 
 passports unless absolutely necessary.

• Don’t carry extra credit cards unless you plan to use them.

2. Create a list of all your credit card and bank account 
 information and store in a secure place.

• Be sure to include account numbers, expiration dates and 
 credit limits. Also include the telephone numbers or emails 
 or the customer service and fraud departments.

• If you find your card missing or stolen, refer to this list 
 and immediately notify your credit card provider of the 
 loss. This not only prevents fraudulent charges, but it also 
 notifies your provider if the card is used again.

3. Protect your passwords and PIN numbers.

• When creating passwords and PINs, do not use the last 
 four digits of your Social Security number, mother’s 
 maiden name, your birth date, middle name, pet’s name, 
 consecutive numbers or anything else that could easily be 
 discovered by thieves. It’s best to create passwords that 
 combine letters and numbers.

• Ask your financial institutions to add extra security 
 protection to your account. Most will allow you to use an 
 additional code or password (a number or word) when 
 accessing your account. If asked to create a reminder 
 question, do not use one that is easily answered by others.

• Memorize all your passwords. Don’t record them on 
 anything in your wallet.

4. Review your credit report now. One of the easiest ways   
 to see if a criminal is fraudulently using your identity is to   
 review your credit report.

• Be sure to report mistakes to the credit bureaus. A federal 
 law gives consumers the right to receive one free copy of 
 their credit report every 12 months from each of the three 
 main credit bureaus (Experian, Equifax, TransUnion).

• Order a report today from one bureau and review it, 
 looking for discrepancies. In four months, order another  
 report from a second bureau. In another four months, 
 order a report from the third bureau. Doing this will enable  
 you to see snapshots of your credit throughout the year at  
 no cost.

5. Never provide confidential information over the phone 
 to an unsolicited caller claiming that they represent a 
 financial institution or creditor. Criminals often will use  
 your Social Security number to open up fraudulent accounts  
 or gain access to financial information or assets.

• Do not have your Social Security number printed on your 
 checks and do not allow merchants to write your Social 
 Security number on your checks.

• If a business requests your Social Security number, ask  
 them why they need it. If it is not a valid reason, don’t  
 provide it.

• If you receive an unsolicited call and are asked to provide 
 information, get the caller’s name, location, telephone 
 number and reason that they are calling. Call them back at 
 the phone number on your billing statements to verify the 
 caller’s identification.

6. Never put outgoing checks or bill payments in your home 
 mailbox, as they are easy to steal. While sending checks is  
 a popular and desired holiday gift, it also has its risks, as  
 thieves can steal mail containing checks and gain other  
 personal information from bills and financial statements.

• Where practical, drop all items containing checks or  
 financial information in a secure postal mailbox or at the  
 post office.

 
Page 425 of 526



Online shopping

7. Log off completely when finished with online  
 transactions. Closing or minimizing your browser or  
 typing a new Web address may not be enough to prevent 
 others from accessing your online information.

• Instead, click “log off” to terminate your online session. 
 In addition, don’t allow your browser to “remember” your 
 username and password information.

8. Increase your own computer’s security. Personal firewalls 
 and security software packages (with anti-virus, anti-spam  
 and spyware detection features) are a must-have for those 
 who plan on shopping online.

• Make sure your computer has the latest security patches, 
 and make sure that you access your online financial  
 accounts only on a secure Web page using encryption.

9. Avoid emailing personal and financial information. 
 Although your computer may be “well protected” with proper 
 firewall, antivirus, Internet security or encryption software, 
 the individual or company receiving your information may not 
 have similar security in place.

• Always confirm with online retailers that they have 
 proper Internet security in place before responding to 
 any email request.

10. Delete, without replying to, any suspicious email requests. 
 Hackers and spammers often impersonate retailers to lure 
 personal financial information.

• If there is any reason to doubt the authenticity of an email 
 message from a company you do business with, don’t click 
 on links or buttons in the message. Instead, type the  
 Internet address of the company into your browser, log on  
 as you usually do, and examine your account information. You  
 may also telephone a company to ask if an email is legitimate.

Travelers knows ID Fraud. 
To learn more, talk to your independent agent or visit travelers.com.

travelers.com 

Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America and its property casualty affiliates. One Tower Square, Hartford, CT 06183 

This material does not amend, or otherwise affect, the provisions or coverages of any insurance policy or bond issued by Travelers. It is not a representation that coverage does 
or does not exist for any particular claim or loss under any such policy or bond. Coverage depends on the facts and circumstances involved in the claim or loss, all applicable 
policy or bond provisions, and any applicable law. Availability of coverage referenced in this document can depend on underwriting qualifications and state regulations.

© 2022 The Travelers Indemnity Company. All rights reserved. Travelers and the Travelers Umbrella logo are registered trademarks of The Travelers Indemnity Company in the 
U.S. and other countries. 59592 Rev. 4-22

 
Page 426 of 526

travelers.com
http://travelersbond.com


BACK TO AGENDA  

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.5. 

FY 22/23 APPL COVERAGE  

ACTION ITEM 

ISSUE: The Board is presented a proposal for Trustee Errors and Omissions Insurance through the 
Alliant Public Pool Liability Program (APPL). The coverage provides a $1M limit for claims arising 
from Wrongful Acts committed by an Insured, including the governing board, officers, and professional 
liability of the pool.  

Typical claims are outlined in the attached and include disputes regarding board decisions such as 
coverage and membership, board member v. board member actions, and regulatory proceedings.  

The policy has a $25,000 deductible for those claims in which the JPA is able to indemnify the insured 
member and no deductible if the claim is solely against a member and/or it may not be indemnified by 
the JPA. See attached Government Code sections 995 to 996.6 for reference on that topic.  

RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve coverage as presented, reject the coverage, or provide 
direction.     

FISCAL IMPACT: Annual Premium for FY 22/23 is $18,068.75.  

BACKGROUND: Members have requested a quote for this coverage in case of a claim against a Board 
member, officer, or others acting for or on behalf of the organization. While claims are rare, this 
coverage protects the group’s assets when required to indemnify a member and covers the individual’s 
exposure when the JPA is not involved or can’t indemnify the member.   

ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. FY 22/23 APPL JPA Primary Claims Made Trustees Errors and Omissions Proposal
2. APPL Brochure
3. Government Code reference

 
Page 427 of 526



 

APPL JPA Primary Claims 
Made Trustees Errors and 
Omissions 

Insurance Proposal 
2022 – 2023 
Presented by: 

David Evans, Senior Vice President 
Jenna Wirkner, Account Representative 
Daniel Rettura, Account Manager 

Northern California Cities Self 
Insurance Fund 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
1301 Dove Street, Suite 200 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 
O 949 756 0271 
F 619 699 0907 

CA License No. 0C36861 

www.alliant.com 

428 of 526 



Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 1

Named Insured / Additional Named Insureds 
Named Insured(s) 
Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 

Additional Named Insured(s) 
None reported 

NAMED INSURED DISCLOSURE 

 The first named insured is granted certain rights and responsibilities that do not apply to other policy named insureds and is designated to act on behalf of all insureds for making policy
changes, receiving correspondence, distributing claim proceeds, and making premium payments.

 Are ALL entities listed as named insureds? Coverage is not automatically afforded to all entities unless specifically named. Confirm with your producer and service team that all
entities to be protected are on the correct policy. Not all entities may be listed on all policies based on coverage line.

 Additional named insured is (1) A person or organization, other than the first named insured, identified as an insured in the policy declarations or an addendum to the policy 
declarations. (2) A person or organization added to a policy after the policy is written with the status of named insured. This entity would have the same rights and responsibilities as an
entity named as an insured in the policy declarations (other than those rights and responsibilities reserved to the first named insured).

 Applies to Professional Liability, Pollution Liability, Directors & Officers Liability, Employment Practices Liability, Fiduciary Liability policies (this list not all inclusive). Check your Policy
language for applicability. These policies provide protection to the Named Insured for claims made against it alleging a covered wrongful act. Coverage is not afforded to any other
entities (unless specifically added by endorsement or if qualified as a “Subsidiary” pursuant to the policy wording) affiliated by common individual insured ownership or to which
indemnification is otherwise contractually owed. If coverage is desired for affiliated entities or for contractual indemnities owed, please contact your Alliant Service Team with a full list
of entities for which coverage is requested. With each request, include complete financials and ownership information for submission to the carrier. It should be noted, that the
underwriter’s acceptance of any proposed amendments to the policy, including expansion of the scope of “Insureds” under the policy could result in a potential diminution of the
applicable limits of liability and/or an additional premium charge.

429 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 2

Line of Coverage 
Primary Claims Made Trustees Errors and Omissions Coverage 

Proposed Coverage 

INSURANCE COMPANY:   Lloyds of London 
Aspen Syndicate 4711 

A.M. BEST RATING:   A (Excellent), Financial Size Category XV ($2 Billion or 
greater) as of July 12, 2021 

   Aspen Syndicate: Not Rated 
STANDARD & POOR’S RATING:   A+ (Strong) as of April 23, 2021 

   Aspen Syndicate: Not Rated 

STATE STATUS:   Non-Admitted 

COVERAGE TERM:   July 1, 2022 - July 1, 2023 

RETROACTIVE DATE:     Inception 

COVERAGE:   Primary Claims Made Trustees Errors and Omissions 

Option 1: 
LIMIT:   $1,000,000 Any One Claim including 

Claims Expenses per 
Individual Organization. 

  $1,000,000 In the Aggregate including 
Claims Expenses 

  Included in limit Breach of Confidentiality 
Libel and Slander 

430 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 3

Option 2: 
  $2,000,000 Any One Claim including 

Claims Expenses per 
Individual Organization. 

  $2,000,000 In the Aggregate including 
Claims Expenses 

  Included in limit Breach of Confidentiality 
  Included in limit Libel and Slander 

431 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 4

Proposed Coverage 

EXTENSIONS OF COVERAGE: 
(Including but not limited to) 

  Option 1: 
$1,000,000 

Option 2: 
$2,000,000 

One Direct Reinstatement* 

*Subject to an additional premium equal to   Option 1: 
$100,000 

Option 2: 
$200,000    

Additional Defense Limit 

100% of the annual premium 
**Sublimits are a part of and not in addition to 
the overall policy limit 

  Option 1 & 2: 
$   100,000 

Loss of Documents 
  Sublimit** 

  Option 1: 
$1,000,000 

Option 2: 
$2,000,000 

Employment Practices 
Violation Sublimit** Any one 
claim including Claims 
Expenses / $1,000,000 
Aggregate 

Employment Practices 
Violation Sublimit** Any one 
claim including Claims 
Expenses / $1,000,000 
Aggregate 

432 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 5

Proposed Coverage 

DEDUCTIBLES: 
The Deductibles only apply to Loss incurred by 
the Organization or for which the Insured 
Individual is Indemnifiable. For Losses which 
the Individual Insured is not Indemnifiable by 
the Organization Nil Deductible(s) shall apply. 

Option 1 & 2: 
$     25,000 

Any one claim including 
Claims Expenses  

Option 1 & 2: 
$     25,000 Employment Practices 

Violation/Aggregate 

ENDORSEMENTS AND EXCLUSIONS: 
(Including but not limited to) 

 Same as expiring 

DEFENSE INSIDE/OUTSIDE THE LIMIT:   Inside the Limits except for the additional defense limit 

WHO HAS THE DUTY TO DEFEND:   Insurer 

ANNNUAL COST: Option 1: 
$17,500.00 Annual Premium 
$     525.00 Surplus Lines Tax (3%) 
$       43.75 Service Fee (.25%) 
$18,068.75 Total Annual Cost 

Option 2: 
  $27,000.00 Annual Premium 
$     810.00 Surplus Lines Tax (3%) 
$       67.50 Service Fee (.25%) 
$27,877.50 Total Annual Cost 

433 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 6

Proposed Coverage 

TERRORISM:     1% of Allocated Premium included in Premium shown 

  IMPORTANT NOTICE:  THE NONADMITTED &

REINSURANCE REFORM ACT (NRRA) GOES INTO EFFECT ON 

JULY 21, 2011.  ACCORDINGLY, SURPLUS LINES TAX RATES 

AND REGULATIONS ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE WHICH COULD 

RESULT IN AN INCREASE OR DECREASE OF THE TOTAL 

SURPLUS LINES TAXES AND/OR FEES OWED ON THIS 

PLACEMENT.  IF A CHANGE IS REQUIRED, WE WILL PROMPTLY 

NOTIFY YOU.  ANY ADDITIONAL TAXES AND/OR FEES OWED 

MUST BE PROMPTLY REMITTED TO ALLIANT INSURANCE 

SERVICES, INC 

EXTENDED REPORTING PERIOD:   An optional discovery period is available based on the 
premium schedule shown here: 
• 1 year for 100% of the total premium paid
• 2 years for 150% of the total premium paid
• 3 years for 200% of the total premium paid

CHOICE OF LAW:  California 

TERRITORIAL LIMITS: 
This insurance applies to any Wrongful Act 
which takes place anywhere in the world 
provided that Claim is first made against the 
Insured during the Policy Period (or Discovery 
Period, if purchased) 

Anywhere in the World 

434 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 7

Proposed Coverage 

BINDING CONDITIONS:  • Signed and currently dated, “Request to Bind”
page.

• Confirmation of No Material Changes since
submission

• Payment is due to Alliant within 20 days of binding

PROPOSAL DATE:   May 26, 2022 

PROPOSAL VALID UNTIL:   July 1, 2022 

CLAIMS REPORTING:   Robert Frey 
Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
100 Pine Street, 11th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94111-5101 
Phone: 415-403-1445 
Fax :    415-402-0773 
rfrey@alliant.com 

See Disclaimer Page for Important Notices and Acknowledgement

435 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/
mailto:rfrey@alliant.com


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 8

Disclosures 

This Proposal of insurance is provided as a matter of convenience and information only.  All information included in this Proposal, including but no
real property values, locations, operations, products, data, automobile schedules, financial data and loss experience, is based on facts and representa
Insurance Services, Inc. by you.  This Proposal does not reflect any independent study or investigation by Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. or its agen

Please be advised that this Proposal is also expressly conditioned on there being no material change in the risk between the date of this Proposal a   
the proposed policy (including the occurrence of any claim or notice of circumstances that may give rise to a claim under any policy which the po
renewal or replacement).  In the event of such change of risk, the insurer may, at its sole discretion, modify, or withdraw this Proposal, whether or n
been accepted. 

This Proposal is not confirmation of insurance and does not add to, extend, amend, change, or alter any coverage in any actual policy of insurance yo
policy terms, conditions, exclusions, and limitations apply.  For specific information regarding your insurance coverage, please refer to the policy 
Services, Inc. will not be liable for any claims arising from or related to information included in or omitted from this Proposal of insurance. 

Alliant embraces a policy of transparency with respect to its compensation from insurance transactions. Details on our compensation policy, including the types  
earn on a placement, are available on our website at www.alliant.com. For a copy of our policy or for any inquiries regarding compensation issues pertaining to y
contact us at: Alliant Insurance Services, Inc., Attention: General Counsel, 701 B Street, 6th Floor, San Diego, CA  92101.   

Analyzing insurers' over-all performance and financial strength is a task that requires specialized skills and in-depth technical understanding of all aspects of ins
and operations. Insurance brokerages such as Alliant Insurance typically rely upon rating agencies for this type of market analysis. Both A.M. Best and Stand
industry leaders in this area for many decades, utilizing a combination of quantitative and qualitative analysis of the information available in formulating their rati

A.M. Best has an extensive database of nearly 6,000 Life/Health, Property Casualty and International companies. You can visit them at www.ambest.com.  
regarding insurer financial strength ratings visit Standard and Poor's website at www.standardandpoors.com.

Our goal is to procure insurance for you with underwriters possessing the financial strength to perform. Alliant does not, however, guarantee the solvency of an
insurance or reinsurance is placed and maintains no responsibility for any loss or damage arising from the financial failure or insolvency of any insurer. We en
publicly available information collected to enable you to make an informed decision to accept or reject a particular underwriter. To learn more about compan
state, visit the Department of Insurance website for that state.  

436 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/
http://www.alliant.com/
http://www.ambest.com/
http://www.standardandpoors.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 9

NY Regulation 194 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. is an insurance producer licensed by the State of New York. Insurance producers are authorized by their license to confer with i
the benefits, terms and conditions of insurance contracts; to offer advice concerning the substantive benefits of particular insurance contracts; to sell insuran
for purchasers.  The role of the producer in any particular transaction typically involves one or more of these activities. 

Compensation will be paid to the producer, based on the insurance contract the producer sells.  Depending on the insurer(s) and insurance contract(s) the purch
will be paid by the insurer(s) selling the insurance contract or by another third party.  Such compensation may vary depending on a number of factors, includin
and the insurer(s) the purchaser selects.  In some cases, other factors such as the volume of business a producer provides to an insurer or the profitability of insu
provides to an insurer also may affect compensation.   

The insurance purchaser may obtain information about compensation expected to be received by the producer based in whole or in part on the sale of insuran
applicable) compensation expected to be received based in whole or in part on any alternative quotes presented to the purchaser by the producer, by requestin
producer. 

Other Disclosures / Disclaimers 

FATCA: 
The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires the notification of certain financial accounts to the United States Internal Revenue Service.  Alliant 
so please contact your tax consultant for your obligation regarding FATCA.  

Claims Reporting: 
Your policy will come with specific claim reporting requirements.  Please make sure you understand these obligations.  Contact your Alliant Service Team with 

Claims Made Policy: 
This claims-made policy contains a requirement stating that this policy applies only to any claim first made against the Insured and reported to the insurer 
applicable extended reporting period.  Claims must be submitted to the insurer during the policy period, or applicable extended reporting period, as required p
Notification Clause within the policy in order for coverage to apply.  Late reporting or failure to report pursuant to the policy’s requirements could result in a dis
insurer. 

437 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 10

Other Disclosures / Disclaimers - Continued 

Changes and Developments 
It is important that we be advised of any changes in your operations, which may have a bearing on the validity and/or adequacy of your insurance.  The type
include, but are not limited to, those listed below: 

• Changes in any operations such as expansion to another states, new products, or new applications of existing products.
• Travel to any state not previously disclosed.
• Mergers and/or acquisition of new companies and any change in business ownership, including percentages.
• Any newly assumed contractual liability, granting of indemnities or hold harmless agreements.
• Any changes in existing premises including vacancy, whether temporary or permanent, alterations, demolition, etc.  Also, any new premises either purchase
• Circumstances which may require     an increased liability insurance limit.
• Any changes in fire or theft protection such as the installation of or disconnection of sprinkler systems, burglar alarms, etc.  This includes any alterations to
• Immediate notification of any changes to a scheduled of equipment, property, vehicles, electronic data processing, etc.
• Property of yours that is in transit, unless previously discussed and/or currently insured.

Certificates / Evidence of Insurance 
A certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder.  The certificate does not affirmatively or negatively amend
afforded by a policy.  Nor does it constitute a contract between the issuing insurer(s), authorized representative, producer or certificate holder.   

You may have signed contracts, leases or other agreements requiring you to provide this evidence.  In those agreements, you may assume obligations and/or liab
Hold Harmless) and some of the obligations that are not covered by insurance.  We recommend that you and your legal counsel review these documents. 

In addition to providing a certificate of insurance, you may be required to name your client or customer on your policy as an additional insured.  This is only p
insurance company, added by endorsement and, in some cases, an additional premium. 

By naming the certificate holder as additional insured, there are consequences to your risks and insurance policy including: 
• Your policy limits are now shared with other entities; their claims involvement may reduce or exhaust your aggregate limit.
• Your policy may provide higher limits than required by contract; your full limits can be exposed to the additional insured.
• There may be conflicts in defense when your insurer has to defend both you and the additional insured.

438 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 11

Optional Coverages 

The following represents a list of insurance coverages that are not included in this Proposal, but are optional and may be available with further underwriting info

Note some of these coverages may be included with limitations or insured elsewhere.  This is a partial listing as you may have additional risks not contemplate
organization.  

• Directors & Officers Liability

• Earthquake Insurance

• Employed Lawyers

• Employment Practices Liability

• Event Cancellation

• Fiduciary Liability

• Fireworks Liability

• Flood Insurance

• Foreign Insurance

• Garage Keepers Liability

• Kidnap & Ransom

• Law Enforcement Liability

• Media and Publishers Liability

• Medical Malpractice Liability

• Network Security / Privacy Liability and Internet Media Liability

• Pollution Liability

• Owned/Non-Owned Aircraft

• Owned Watercraft

• Special Events Liability

• Student Accident

• Volunteer Accidental Death & Dismemberment (AD&D)

• Workers’ Compensation

• Workplace Violence

Glossary of Insurance Terms

Below are a couple of links to assist you in understanding the insurance terms you may find within your insurance coverages: 

http://insurancecommunityuniversity.com/UniversityResources/InsuranceGlossaryFREE.aspx 
http://www.ambest.com/resource/glossary.html 

http://www.irmi.com/online/insurance-glossary/default.aspx  

439 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/
http://insurancecommunityuniversity.com/UniversityResources/InsuranceGlossaryFREE.aspx
http://www.ambest.com/resource/glossary.html


Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. |  www.alliant.com  | CA License No. 0C36861 Page 12

We have reviewed the proposal and agree to the terms and conditions of the coverages presented.  We are requesting coverage to be bound as outlined 
by coverage line below: 

Coverage Line Bind Coverage for: Annual Cost 

APPL JPA PRIMARY CLAIMS MADE TRUSTEES ERRORS & OMISSIONS 
Policy Period: July 1, 2022 to July 1, 2023 ☐ (Option 1) $18,068.75

☐ (Option 2) $27,877.50

Did you know that Alliant works with premium financing companies? 
Are you interested in financing your annual premium? 

Yes, please provide us with a financing quote. No, we do not wish to finance our premium. 

☐ ☐
This Authorization to Bind Coverage also acknowledges receipt and review of all disclaimers and disclosures, including exposures used to develop 

insurance terms, contained within this proposal. 

Signature of Authorized Insurance Representative Date 

Title 

Printed / Typed Name 

This proposal does not constitute a binder of insurance.  Binding is subject to the final carrier approval.  The actual 
terms and conditions of the policy will prevail.  

440 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ALLIANT PUBLIC POOL 
LIABILITY PROGRAM (APPL) 
Protecting the vision 

 
 

 

Your leadership works tirelessly to move your organization forward. Their vision, tenacity, and 
sense of purpose have propelled you to new levels of success and serve as a roadmap to your 
future. They are the heart of your organization and must be shielded from liability. 

 
Page 441 of 526



The Alliant Public Pool Liability Program (APPL) provides liability 
coverage for the leadership of pooling organizations and similar groups. 
This best-in-class program covers the governing board, officers, and 
professional liability exposure of the pool, enabling you to conduct your 
business unencumbered by the confines of liability exposures. 

COMPREHENSIVE COVERAGE 
Alliant Insurance Services designed APPL 
to address the unique exposures faced by 
public pool organizations and their governing 
bodies. This includes claims arising from: 

■ Failure to buy adequate insurance

■ Claims handling errors and 
omissions

■ Board member versus board member 
actions

■ Member dispute over coverage

■ Member dispute over withdrawal

■ Employment practices arising from a 
pool employee

■ Non-compliance with
statutes/governing documents

■ Unfair claims practicesW■   e have created a propriety policy form that 
will respond to your exposure as it exists. 
This important coverage is integral to 
organizations of all sizes. In fact, even pooling 
organizations with no staff and third-party 
contracts face a liability exposure simply 
because they exist. 

ELIGIBLE ENTITIES 
APPL was designed with the flexibility to 
cover a broad range of entities. Furthermore, 
our long-standing experience servicing public 
sector clients and our high level of 
sophistication enables us to customize 
programs to meet the specific needs of the 
entities we serve. Eligible entities include: 

■ Risk-sharing pools

■ Joint powers authorities (JPAs)

■ Joint insurance funds (JIFs)

■ Insurance trusts

■ Inter-local agreements

■ Self-insurance groups (SIGs)

■ Group purchasing programs Not-for-profit
group captives

PROGRAM FEATURES 
APPL’s broad range of program features 
ensures that your entity will receive extensive 
protection from the myriad liabilities facing 
both its leadership and its mission, including: 

■ Basic program limits of $5 million with
flexible deductible options

■ Employment practices liability insurance
available if organization has employees

■ Coverage limits in excess of $5 million
available

■ Sub-limits available for the following:

■ Employment practices violation

■ Additional defense limit

■ Loss of documents

■ Breach of confidentiality extension

■ Libel and slander

■ Fidelity and dishonesty

■ A.M. Best “A” rating with full financial
security of Lloyd’s

ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES: 
THE PARTNER YOU DESERVE. 

With a history dating back to 1925, Alliant 
Insurance Services is one of the nation’s 
leading distributors of diversified insurance 
products and services. Operating through a 
national network of offices, Alliant provides 
property and casualty, workers’ compensa- 
tion, employee benefits, surety, and financial 
products and services to more than 26,000 
clients nationwide. 

www.alliant.com

CA License No. 0C36861 
© 2015 Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. All rights reserved. [2013-2230] 

Contact: David Evans 
First Vice President 
415 403 1484 
devans@alliant.com 

 
Page 442 of 526

http://www.alliant.com/
mailto:devans@alliant.com


Code: Select Code Section:

 
Page 443 of 526



995.3.

995.4.

995.6.

the public entity and the employee or former employee. For the purposes of this section, “specific conflict of
interest” means a conflict of interest or an adverse or pecuniary interest, as specified by statute or by a rule or
regulation of the public entity.

(b) If an employee or former employee requests in writing that the public entity, through its designated legal
counsel, provide for a defense, the public entity shall, within 20 days, inform the employee or former employee
whether it will or will not provide a defense, and the reason for the refusal to provide a defense.

(c) If an actual and specific conflict of interest becomes apparent subsequent to the 20-day period following the
employee’s written request for defense, nothing herein shall prevent the public entity from refusing to provide
further defense to the employee. The public entity shall inform the employee of the reason for the refusal to provide
further defense.

(Amended by Stats. 1982, Ch. 1046, Sec. 1.)

(a) If a state employee provides his or her own defense against an action brought for an alleged violation of
Section 8547.3, and if it is established that no violation of Section 8547.3 occurred, the public entity shall reimburse
the employee for any costs incurred in the defense.

(b) A public entity which does provide for the defense of a state employee charged with a violation of Section
8547.3 shall reserve all rights to be reimbursed for any costs incurred in that defense. If a state employee is found
to have violated Section 8547.3, he or she is liable for all defense costs and shall reimburse the public entity for
those costs.

(Amended by Stats. 1995, Ch. 277, Sec. 1. Effective January 1, 1996.)

A public entity may, but is not required to, provide for the defense of:

(a) An action or proceeding brought by the public entity to remove, suspend or otherwise penalize its own employee
or former employee, or an appeal to a court from an administrative proceeding by the public entity to remove,
suspend or otherwise penalize its own employee or former employee.

(b) An action or proceeding brought by the public entity against its own employee or former employee as an
individual and not in his official capacity, or an appeal therefrom.

(Added by Stats. 1963, Ch. 1683, Sec. 16.)

A public entity is not required to provide for the defense of an administrative proceeding brought against an
employee or former employee, but a public entity may provide for the defense of an administrative proceeding

 
Page 444 of 526



995.8.

995.9.

brought against an employee or former employee if:

(a) The administrative proceeding is brought on account of an act or omission in the scope of his employment as an
employee of the public entity; and

(b) The public entity determines that such defense would be in the best interests of the public entity and that the
employee or former employee acted, or failed to act, in good faith, without actual malice and in the apparent
interests of the public entity.

(Added by Stats. 1963, Ch. 1683, Sec. 16.)

A public entity is not required to provide for the defense of a criminal action or proceeding (including a
proceeding to remove an officer under Sections 3060 to 3073, inclusive, of the Government Code) brought against
an employee or former employee, but a public entity may provide for the defense of a criminal action or proceeding
(including a proceeding to remove an officer under Sections 3060 to 3073, inclusive, of the Government Code)
brought against an employee or former employee if:

(a) The criminal action or proceeding is brought on account of an act or omission in the scope of his employment as
an employee of the public entity; and

(b) The public entity determines that such defense would be in the best interests of the public entity and that the
employee or former employee acted, or failed to act, in good faith, without actual malice and in the apparent
interests of the public entity.

(Added by Stats. 1963, Ch. 1683, Sec. 16.)

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, upon a request made in writing to a public entity, the public
entity may defend or indemnify or defend and indemnify any witness who has testified on behalf of the public entity
in any criminal, civil, or administrative action. The decision of the public entity to defend or indemnify or defend and
indemnify such a witness shall rest within the sound discretion of the public entity and may be based on any
relevant factors, including, but not limited to, whether the provision of defense or indemnity would serve the public
interest. The public entity may defend or indemnify or defend and indemnify the witness only if it is determined by
the public entity that the action being brought against the witness is based directly upon the conduct which the
public entity requested of the witness related to the witness’ testimony or provision of evidence. The public entity
has the discretion to provide a defense alone apart from indemnity, and the public entity may offer to defend or
indemnify or defend and indemnify while reserving all rights to subsequently withdraw these offers upon reasonable
notice.

 
Page 445 of 526



996.

996.4.

996.6.

Neither defense nor indemnification shall be provided if the testimony giving rise to the action against the witness
was false in any material respect, or was otherwise not given by the witness with a good faith belief in its truth; nor
shall representation or indemnification under this section be offered or promised unless the action has been
commenced and the witness has requested the public entity to act for the witness’ benefit under this section. The
public entity shall not be liable for indemnification of a defendant witness for punitive damages awarded to the
plaintiff in such an action. If the plaintiff prevails in a claim for punitive damages in an action defended at the
expense of the public entity, the defendant shall be liable to the public entity for the full costs incurred by the public
entity in providing representation to the defendant witness.

(Added by Stats. 1995, Ch. 799, Sec. 2. Effective January 1, 1996.)

A public entity may provide for a defense pursuant to this part by its own attorney or by employing other
counsel for this purpose or by purchasing insurance which requires that the insurer provide the defense. All of the
expenses of providing a defense pursuant to this part are proper charges against a public entity. A public entity has
no right to recover such expenses from the employee or former employee defended.

(Added by Stats. 1963, Ch. 1683, Sec. 16.)

If after request a public entity fails or refuses to provide an employee or former employee with a defense
against a civil action or proceeding brought against him and the employee retains his own counsel to defend the
action or proceeding, he is entitled to recover from the public entity such reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and
expenses as are necessarily incurred by him in defending the action or proceeding if the action or proceeding arose
out of an act or omission in the scope of his employment as an employee of the public entity, but he is not entitled
to such reimbursement if the public entity establishes (a) that he acted or failed to act because of actual fraud,
corruption or actual malice, or (b) that the action or proceeding is one described in Section 995.4.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to deprive an employee or former employee of the right to petition for a
writ of mandate to compel the public entity or the governing body or an employee thereof to perform the duties
imposed by this part.

(Added by Stats. 1963, Ch. 1683, Sec. 16.)

The rights of an employee or former employee under this part are in addition to and not in lieu of any rights
he may have under any contract or under any other enactment providing for his defense.

(Added by Stats. 1963, Ch. 1683, Sec. 16.)

 
Page 446 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.6. 
 

FY 22/23 NCCSIF ADMINISTRATIVE AND 
GROUP PURCHASE PROGRAM BUDGET 

 
ACTION ITEM 

 
ISSUE: The Executive Committee reviews and recommends to the Board the budget for the next 
fiscal year. Attached is the preliminary budget for review and discussion. Since the last Board review, 
the budget has been amended to include Trustee’s E&O Coverage approved by the Board and a total 
of $10,000 for website upgrades, including ADA and security enhancements.   
 
The Administrative Costs are discussed in more detail below.  
 

Administrative Expenses 
 
 Claim Audits - Every year either the Liability or Workers’ Compensation claims are 

audited. The Liability Claims audit was budgeted at $7,500 for FY 21/22. The Workers’ 
Compensation Claims audit is budgeted at $15,000 based on last audit.    

 Actuarial Services are increasing by $820 (5.9%) per current service agreement.   

 Accounting Services are expected to increase $25,962 (22.9%), including software 
licensing, per current contract.  

 Sedgwick’s Risk Control services are increasing 3.3%, or $5,840, based on the renewal 
contract, and the Lexipol renewal is increasing 3%, or $4,264.   

 State Funding/Fraud Assessment has been estimated at $325,000 (-8.5%) based on the 
experience of the last two years ($345,404 in FY 20/21 and $235,274 in FY 21/22). This 
is hard to predict as it is based on the amount of indemnity payments during the year.      

 The Program Administration and Brokerage Fee is increasing by $11,745 (3.3%) per the 
terms of the current agreement. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and recommend to Board as presented or provide direction 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Total administrative expenses are estimated to be $1,475,771, an increase of 
$43,921 (3.1%) over FY 21/22.  A small amount of surplus offset may be available to reduce the funding, 
to be determined as we get closer to the fiscal year end.  
 
BACKGROUND: The administration budget is presented as a separate item for approval with most 
expenses allocated evenly between the Liability and Worker’s Compensation programs.   
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Draft FY 22/23 NCCSIF Admin Budget as of 6/14/22 

 
Page 447 of 526



WORK COMP LIABILITY

GROUP

PURCHASE

FY 22/23

TOTAL

FY 21/22

TOTAL $ CHANGE % CHANGE

REVENUES  

Est WC Program Banking Layer $7,476,000 $7,476,000 $7,487,000 ($11,000) 0%

Est WC Program Shared Layer $4,207,000 $4,207,000 $4,146,000 $61,000 1%

Est WC Program Admin Expense $974,923 $974,923 $984,379 ($9,456) ‐1%

Est Excess WC Coverage (PRISM) $2,175,514 $2,175,514 $1,978,742 $196,772 10% Final Bill > Version Used in Allocation

Est Liability Program Banking Layer $2,662,000 $2,662,000 $2,234,000 $428,000 19%

Est Liability Program Shared Layer $3,728,000 $3,728,000 $3,000,000 $728,000 24%

Est Liability Program Admin Expense $506,468 $506,468 $449,772 $56,696 13%

Est Excess Liability Coverage (CJPRMA) $4,822,202 $4,822,202 $3,833,207 $988,995 26%

Est Group Purchase Property Coverage (APIP) $5,165,132 $5,165,132 $4,068,301 $1,096,831 27%

Est Group Purchase Crime Coverage (ACIP) $54,845 $54,845 $53,523 $1,322 2%

Est Group Purchase Coverage (ADWRP) $13,342 $12,665 $677 5%

Est Pass through Cost ‐ Lexipol Fire Manuals  $33,368 $33,368 $0 0%

N/A Pass through Cost ‐ Appraisal Services N/A N/A N/A Next appraisal in 2023
Est Pass through Cost ‐ Drone Coverage N/A $5,000

Total Revenues $14,833,437 $11,718,670 $5,219,977 $31,818,793 $28,285,956

EXPENSES WORK COMP LIABILITY

FY 22/23

TOTAL

FY 21/22

TOTAL $ CHANGE % CHANGE

Administrative Expenses:

Consultants
52101 Claims Audit $15,000 $15,000 $7,500 $7,500 100.0% Biannual WC audit is more expensive than GL

52102 Financial Audit $14,125 $14,125 $28,250 $28,250 $0 0.0%

52103 Legal Services $2,000 $15,000 $17,000 $17,000 $0 0.0%

52104 Actuarial Review $5,900 $7,900 $14,620 $13,800 $820 5.9% Per engagement letter including 6/30 Updates

52105 Computer Services N/A N/A N/A N/A Moved as part of Accounting Services

52106 CAJPA Accreditation (every 3 years: not until 2021) N/A N/A N/A N/A Paid Jan 2021, budget for 2024/2025 

52109 Misc. Consulting/Contingency $2,500 $2,500 $5,000 $5,000 $0 0.0%

Total Consultant Expenses $39,525 $39,525 $79,050 $71,550 $7,500 10.5%

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND

ADMIN BUDGET ‐  Draft 6‐15‐22
July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 

 
Page 448 of 526



WORK COMP LIABILITY

GROUP

PURCHASE

FY 22/23

TOTAL

FY 21/22

TOTAL $ CHANGE % CHANGE

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND

ADMIN BUDGET ‐  Draft 6‐15‐22
July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 

Safety Services:

52204 Risk Control Services Agreement $92,160 $92,160 $184,320 $178,480 $5,840 3.3% Per 2019‐22 contract

52201 Outside Training & Safety Award $15,000 $15,000 $30,000 $30,000 $0 0.0% Including $10k for safety award here

52202 Risk Mgmt Comm Mtg Expense $750 $750 $1,500 $1,500 $0 0.0%

52207 Member Training and Risk Management  $50,000 $38,000 $88,000 $88,000 $0 0.0%

$4,000 per member annual allocation for 

training/conferences

52208 Lexipol Police Manual Updates & DTBs $146,404 $146,404 $142,140 $4,264 3.0% 3% increase 

52209 Police Risk Management Funds $25,000 $25,000 $50,000 $50,000 $0 0.0% Pending RMC recommendation

Total Safety Services Expenses $329,314 $170,910 $500,224 $490,120 $10,104 2.1%

Claims Administration

52302 Claims Administration Fee (Reports, etc.) Annu $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Claims Adjustment Fee* Flat fee pricing beginning FY 19/20

52304 State Funding/Fraud Assessment $325,000 $325,000 $355,000 ($30,000) ‐8.5% Actual 21/22= $235,274

Total Claims Admininstration Expenses $325,000 $0 $325,000 $355,000 ($30,000) ‐8.5%

Program Administration

52401 Program Administration and Brokerage Fee $169,601 $203,522 $373,123 $361,378 $11,745 3.3% Per 2019‐24 contract 

52403 Accounting Services $69,726 $69,726 $139,452 $113,490 $25,962 22.9% Per 2022‐25 contract + software

Total Program Admininstration Expenses $239,327 $273,248 $512,575 $474,868 $37,707 7.9%

Board Expenses

52501 Executive Committee $1,250 $1,250 $2,500 $2,500 $0 0.0%

52502 Executive Committee Member Travel $2,000 $2,000 $4,000 $4,000 $0 0.0%

52503 Board of Directors Meetings (includes Travel) $4,000 $4,000 $8,000 $8,000 $0 0.0%

52509

Board of Directors Long Range Planning

(every 3 years, last LRP January 2020) $4,000 $4,000 $8,000 $8,000 $0 0.0% Includes Board Training Day in December

52xxx Trustee's E&O Coverage (APPL) $9,035 $9,035 New coverage approved by BOD

52504

Association Memberships

(PARMA, CAJPA, AGRIP) $2,500 $2,500 $5,000 $5,000 $0 0.0% 21 AGRiP membership increased by 10%

Total Board Expenses $22,785 $22,785 $45,570 $27,500 $18,070 65.7%

52000 Administrative Expense ‐ Website Upgrade $5,000 $5,000 $0 $0 $0 0.0% One‐time charge for refresh, ADA & security

52001 Administration Expense ‐ Other $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0.0%

52900 Member Identity Theft Protection $13,972 0 $13,972 $12,812 $1,160 9.1%

Total Other Admin $18,972 $0 $13,972 $12,812 $1,160 0.0%

Total Admin Expenses $974,923 $506,468 $1,476,391 $1,431,850 $44,541 3.1%

OTHER Administration Expenses

(Not identified with above budget line items)

 
Page 449 of 526



BACK TO AGENDA  

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.7.a. 

ADOPTION OF FY 22/23 LIABILITY PROGRAM BUDGET 

ACTION ITEM 

ISSUE: At the last Board meeting members approved preliminary program calculations based on 
actuarial projections at the 80% Confidence Level (CL). The Board also agreed to fund the program 
based on a $7500,000 SIR with CJPRMA, an increase from the current $500,000 SIR that will no longer 
be offered.  

Marketing efforts for reinsurance have gone much more smoothly than last year, with the incumbent 
markets offering terms as expiring with rate increases under 4%. The estimate of $4,822,202 includes 
a surcharge of $336,433 for past losses but should not be exceeded once the final amount is known.   

The attached funding exhibit reflects the latest estimate with the previously approved variable premium 
cap of 40%. The cap varies by member with funding increases over 40% to make sure they contribute 
at least 50% of their estimated Banking Layer funding. The $326,005 reduced from the six capped 
members’ funding is not being reallocated to other members, as it has in the past.     

RECOMMENDATION: Review and approve funding with a 40% variable cap as presented or revised. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Total deposit is estimated at $11,392,664, an increase of 23%, including an 
increase in payroll of 7%, for a net 16% increase over expiring.   

BACKGROUND:  The excess liability insurance market for public entities, particularly those with 
police departments, has continued to be extremely volatile, with increasing rates and retentions as well 
as coverage restrictions. CJPRMA has experienced their share of claims that have exceeded their 
retention and impacted the reinsurance layers, and the current reinsurance offering reflects that reality. 
Compounding the reinsurance increase is a significant increase in CJPRMA’s underlying rates in FY 
21/22 due to a change in their funding formula to put more with on recent experience.  

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Final FY 22/23 Liability Deposit Calculations at the 80% CL, with 50% and 60% caps

2. Liability Program Funding Changes FY 21/22 to FY 22/23

 
Page 450 of 526



FY 22/23 NCCSIF General Liability Funding Allocation 

80% Confidence Level $506,468

A B C D E F G H I

Formula/Allocation Payroll (P)

Member 

Weighted

Share Last 5 

Years

25% Payroll, 

75% Losses

Member Share 

of EX MOD 

Adjusted Payroll 

X Total Funding

Member 

Weighted

Share Last 5 

Years

75% Payroll, 

25% Losses

 (Admin/2) X 

Member % of 

Total Payroll 

(Admin/2) ÷  

19 Equal 

Shares C+D+E+F+G

Member

2021

Calendar Year

Payroll (DE 9)

BANKING LAYER

$0 to $50K

(*Folsom $0 to 

$100K)

SHARED LAYER

$50K to $500K 

at 80% CL

CJPRMA

EXCESS LAYER

$500k to $40M 

ADMIN

EXPENSE 50%

ADMIN

EXPENSE 

50%

FY 22/23

TOTAL DEPOSIT

FY 21/22

TOTAL DEPOSIT

Rate/Amount Exposure Base $2,662,000 $3,728,000 $4,822,202 $253,234 $253,234 80% CL 80% CL

Anderson $4,712,278 $92,880 $120,528 $133,919 $6,055 $13,328 $366,710 $177,419

Auburn $7,212,513 $210,738 $224,064 $251,419 $9,268 $13,328 $708,817 $605,772

Colusa $2,871,320 $68,557 $67,215 $84,760 $3,690 $13,328 $237,549 $187,810

Corning $3,565,563 $42,218 $80,946 $86,614 $4,582 $13,328 $227,689 $202,349

Dixon $10,326,168 $70,654 $173,091 $201,970 $13,269 $13,328 $472,313 $258,537

Elk Grove

Folsom $49,252,555 $548,188 $648,336 $1,096,382 $63,291 $13,328 $2,369,525 $2,385,537

Galt $11,687,045 $115,767 $228,506 $273,440 $15,018 $13,328 $646,059 $452,721

Gridley $3,753,546 $60,534 $103,486 $109,097 $4,823 $13,328 $291,269 $244,839

Ione $1,741,897 $18,733 $37,352 $37,669 $2,238 $13,328 $109,320 $133,980

Jackson $3,215,294 $30,445 $67,632 $67,131 $4,132 $13,328 $182,668 $92,854

Lincoln $16,748,517 $260,225 $348,170 $426,789 $21,522 $13,328 $1,070,034 $955,079

Marysville $4,853,691 $141,871 $121,655 $154,106 $6,237 $13,328 $437,198 $446,225

Nevada City

Oroville $7,126,132 $89,035 $149,751 $166,470 $9,157 $13,328 $427,741 $395,031

Paradise $5,608,999 $46,933 $104,830 $111,557 $7,208 $13,328 $283,856 $246,661

Placerville

Red Bluff $6,972,768 $118,212 $162,275 $185,947 $8,960 $13,328 $488,723 $373,363

Rio Vista $4,047,976 $162,571 $149,566 $173,673 $5,202 $13,328 $504,340 $291,254

Rocklin $23,537,071 $232,872 $418,303 $554,076 $30,246 $13,328 $1,248,825 $780,857

Willows $907,730 $58,249 $38,598 $58,372 $1,166 $13,328 $169,713 $166,150

Yuba City $28,924,226 $293,319 $483,696 $648,810 $37,168 $13,328 $1,476,321 $1,126,956

Total: $197,065,291 $2,662,000 $3,728,000 $4,822,202 $253,234 $253,234 $11,718,670 $9,523,393

Total Admin Expense =

 
Page 451 of 526



A

Formula/Allocation

Member

Rate/Amount

Anderson

Auburn

Colusa

Corning

Dixon

Elk Grove

Folsom

Galt

Gridley

Ione

Jackson

Lincoln

Marysville

Nevada City

Oroville

Paradise

Placerville

Red Bluff

Rio Vista

Rocklin

Willows

Yuba City

Total:

FY 22/23 NCCSIF General Liability Funding Allocation 

J K L M

H‐I J/I

H + Member % of 

Total Uncapped 

Payroll X Capped 

Amount (L‐I)/I

$ Change

Overall

% Change

Overall

2022 

Payroll 

Increase 

from

2021

Net  % 
Increase

Total FY 22/23 

Deposit With 

Variable* Cap of 

40%

% 

Change 

After 

Cap

Net % 

Increase

$189,291 107% 1% 105% $271,983 53% 52%

$103,045 17% 4% 13% $708,817 17% 13%

$49,739 26% 14% 13% $237,549 26% 13%

$25,340 13% ‐2% 14% $227,689 13% 14%

$213,777 83% 7% 76% $433,049 68% 61%

‐$16,013 ‐1% 12% ‐13% $2,369,525 ‐1% ‐13%

$193,338 43% 6% 37% $646,059 43% 37%

$46,430 19% ‐12% 31% $291,269 19% 31%

‐$24,660 ‐18% 11% ‐30% $109,320 ‐18% ‐30%

$89,814 97% 12% 85% $170,201 83% 71%

$114,955 12% 7% 5% $1,070,034 12% 5%

‐$9,027 ‐2% 7% ‐9% $437,198 ‐2% ‐9%

$32,710 8% 7% 1% $427,741 8% 1%

$37,195 15% 16% ‐1% $283,856 15% ‐1%

$115,360 31% 9% 21% $488,723 31% 21%

$213,086 73% 2% 71% $417,949 44% 41%

$467,968 60% 3% 57% $1,155,668 48% 45%

$3,563 2% ‐7% 9% $169,713 2% 9%

$349,365 31% 9% 22% $1,476,321 31% 22%

$2,195,277 23% 7% 16% $11,392,664 20%

 
Page 452 of 526



A

Formula/Allocation

Member

Rate/Amount

Anderson

Auburn

Colusa

Corning

Dixon

Elk Grove

Folsom

Galt

Gridley

Ione

Jackson

Lincoln

Marysville

Nevada City

Oroville

Paradise

Placerville

Red Bluff

Rio Vista

Rocklin

Willows

Yuba City

Total:

FY 22/23 NCCSIF General Liability Funding Allocation 

N

H‐L

Amount 

Capped ‐ NOT 
Redistributed

Banking Layer 

‐ Capped 

Amount

Banking Layer 

Assessment

Total Banking 

Contribution

Minimum 

Banking 

Contibution 

50%

Net Dividends  

and 

Assessments

6 Capped

$94,727 ($1,847) $53,892 $52,045 $46,440 ($15,804)

$0 $75,681

$0 $42,802

$0 $53,688

$39,264 $31,390 $12,325 $43,715 $35,327 $123,354

$50,722

$0 $698,659

$0 $0 $0 $249,515

$0 $234,166

$10,000 $4,670

$12,466 $17,979 $0 $17,979 $15,223 $103,731

$26,777 $201,762

$0 $36,051

$70,510

$0 $229,222

$0 $330,629

$88,715

$0 ($21,071)

$86,391 $76,180 $13,279 $89,459 $81,286 $32,341

$93,157 $139,715 $0 $139,715 $116,436 $451,871

$20,460 $33,208

$0 $551,562

326,005$           3,625,982$      

 
Page 453 of 526



FY 22/23 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 21/22
Base Rate* 3.243$            2.851$          4,822,202$    3,833,207$    Includes surcharge of $336,433

% of total increase =   53%

Member

Entity

Current Year

FY 22/23 

$750K SIR

80% CL; 40% 

Variable Cap 

Prior Year

FY 21/22 

$500K SIR

80% CL, 60% 

Cap

% 

Change

2021 Calendar 

Year Payroll

2020 Calendar 

Year Payroll

% 

Change

5‐Year Avg 

FYE 2016‐20

5‐Year 

Avg FYE 

2015‐19

% 

Change

Shared Layer 

Totals

FYE 2016‐20

Shared Layer 

Totals

FYE 2015‐19 % Change

FY 

22/23 FY 21/22

% 

Change

City of Anderson $271,983 $177,419 53% $4,712,278 $4,654,184 1% $53,197 $6,408 730% $345,394 $110,656 212% 1.57 1.38 14%

City of Auburn $708,817 $605,772 17% $7,212,513 $6,948,048 4% $128,222 $42,362 203% $789,956 $618,079 28% 1.83 1.78 3%

City of Colusa $237,549 $187,810 26% $2,871,320 $2,527,589 14% $41,287 $11,615 255% $218,946 $270,178 ‐19% 1.57 1.71 ‐8%

City of Corning $227,689 $202,349 13% $3,565,563 $3,631,789 ‐2% $20,488 $20,804 ‐2% $78,437 $61,822 27% 1.34 1.37 ‐2%

City of Dixon $433,049 $258,537 68% $10,326,168 $9,695,118 7% $26,108 $8,155 220% $116,344 $20,001 0% 1.10 1.04 6%

Elk Grove

City of Folsom $2,369,525 $2,385,537 ‐1% $49,252,555 $43,894,742 12% $270,082 $174,420 55% $1,070,198 $928,605 15% 0.86 0.86 0%

City of Galt $646,059 $452,721 43% $11,687,045 $11,027,133 6% $51,025 $20,024 155% $276,787 $234,668 18% 1.14 1.15 ‐1%

City of Gridley $291,269 $244,839 19% $3,753,546 $4,275,659 ‐12% $31,542 $13,247 138% $210,886 $123,381 71% 1.45 1.37 5%

City of Ione $109,320 $133,980 ‐18% $1,741,897 $1,563,176 11% $9,200 $9,202 0% $45,336 $89,545 ‐49% 1.44 1.54 ‐7%

City of Jackson $170,201 $92,854 83% $3,215,294 $2,875,922 12% $14,105 $1,105 1177% $95,000 $122,740 ‐23% 1.41 1.50 ‐6%

City of Lincoln $1,070,034 $955,079 12% $16,748,517 $15,614,334 7% $141,644 $92,132 54% $692,703 $464,903 49% 1.31 1.25 5%

City of Marysville $437,198 $446,225 ‐2% $4,853,691 $4,529,402 7% $88,494 $36,403 143% $524,048 $414,204 27% 1.80 1.79 1%

Nevada City

City of Oroville $427,741 $395,031 8% $7,126,132 $6,629,871 7% $45,530 $27,969 63% $246,477 $172,082 43% 1.35 1.31 3%

Town of Paradise $283,856 $246,661 15% $5,608,999 $4,839,826 16% $20,586 $11,131 85% $85,960 $377,171 ‐77% 1.28 1.68 ‐24%

Placerville

City of Red Bluff $488,723 $373,363 31% $6,972,768 $6,369,163 9% $65,482 $26,056 151% $343,877 $253,298 36% 1.44 1.41 2%

City of Rio Vista $417,949 $291,254 44% $4,047,976 $3,964,129 2% $101,824 $13,878 634% $747,021 $694,535 8% 2.01 2.05 ‐2%

City of Rocklin $1,155,668 $780,857 48% $23,537,071 $22,914,454 3% $102,061 $26,675 283% $645,936 $700,157 ‐8% 1.03 1.11 ‐7%

City of Willows $169,713 $166,150 2% $907,730 $979,430 ‐7% $37,036 $12,139 205% $237,802 $184,524 29% 1.69 1.65 2%

City of Yuba City $1,476,321 $1,126,956 31% $28,924,226 $26,621,274 9% $135,595 $61,642 120% $813,043 $714,235 14% 1.04 1.07 ‐3%

Grand Total $11,392,664 $9,523,393 20% $197,065,291 $183,555,242 7% $1,383,505 $615,366 125% $7,584,150 $6,554,784 16%

NCCSIF Liability Program Funding Changes 21/22 to 22/23 DRAFT 6/14/22

Difference
26%

$988,995

Excess Insurance

*$750K SIR v. $500k, Confidence Level Remains at 80%  

Difference
14%

Experience ModDeposit Premium Change Payroll Banking Layer Losses $0‐$50K  Shared Layer Losses $75k XS $5K 

 
Page 454 of 526



BACK TO AGENDA  

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.7.b. 

ADOPTION OF FY 22/23 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION  
PROGRAM BUDGET 

ACTION ITEM 

ISSUE: At the last Board meeting members approved preliminary program calculations based on 
actuarial projections at the 80% Confidence Level (CL). 

Total funding at an 80% Confidence Level (CL) is estimated at $14,832,817, an increase of 1.8% over 
current funding at the 80% CL. This compares favorably to the total payroll increase of 7%. The 
individual funding increase cap of 40% does not apply to any members this year.  

Excess coverage through PRISM is $2,175,514, or $0.82 per $100 of payroll, an 11% increase in the 
current rate of $0.79. The excess premium increase of $220,514 represents 85% of the total increase in 
funding of $260,438.     

A breakdown of funding by layer and member is provided in the attached spreadsheet. Also attached 
is a year-to-year comparison of the changes in the components of total program and member funding, 
including payroll (7% increase), Banking Layer losses (3% increase), and Shared Layer losses (35% 
increase). Members’ Ex Mod changes are also provided, along with changes in the base rate (-4.5%) 
and excess insurance (11% increase) common to all members. Also added are columns for comparing 
member rates to the total rate and the impact that has on the final premium.   

RECOMMENDATION: Approve funding as presented at the 80% CL for FY 22/23 as presented, 
revised, or provide direction. 

FISCAL IMPACT: Total funding of $14,832,817 for the Workers’ Compensation Program. 

BACKGROUND: Members have steadily increased the Confidence Level of annual funding over the 
years, from 65% to 70%, 75%, and as of FY 18/19 to the current 80% CL. Over the same period the 
Discount Factor has decreased from 3% to 1.5%. Both of these changes have contributed to an increase 
in total funding, in addition to increases in payroll. NCCSIF’s Funding Policy sets a goal of annual 
funding at an 80% CL. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Final FY 22/23 Workers’ Compensation Deposit Calculations at the 80% CL

2. Workers’ Compensation Program Funding Changes FY 21/22 to FY 22/23

3. FY 22/23 Net Program Funding Summary

 
Page 455 of 526



80% Confidence Level Total Admin Expense =  $974,923

A B C D E F G H I J K

Formula/Allocation

Member 

Share of: 

Last 5 Years 

Average 

Losses, 

Weighted 

75%;  FY 

18/19 

Member 

Share of EX 

MOD 

Adjusted 

Payroll

Member 

Share of: 

Last 5 Years 

Average 

Losses, 

Weighted 

25%;  FY 

18/19 

Member 

Share of 

Banking, 

Shared & 

Excess 

Premium 

22 Equal 

Shares C+D+E+F+G

Member % of 

Total Payroll 

Without 

Capped 

Members x 

Capped 

Amount

Member 

FY 22/23 

Estimated

PAYROLL (P)

BANKING

LAYER       

$0 to $100K

SHARED

LAYER       

$100K to 

$500K

PRISM 

EXCESS 

LAYER 

$500K TO 

STATUTORY 

Variable 

ADMIN

EXPENSE 

65%

Fixed 

ADMIN

EXPENSE 

35%

Preliminary

FY 22/23

DEPOSIT

FY 21/22

DEPOSIT

% Change

DEPOSIT

Total

FY 22/23 

Deposit With 

Cap of 40%

Payroll 

Change from

FY 21/22 

Rate/Amount Exposure Base $7,476,000 $4,207,000 $2,175,514 $633,700 $341,223 80% CL 80% CL ‐$                

Anderson $4,988,754 $125,284 $70,627 $39,878 $10,782 $15,510 $262,080 $291,106 ‐10.0% $262,080 21.8%

Auburn $7,277,687 $326,571 $154,546 $76,629 $25,504 $15,510 $598,760 $603,254 ‐0.7% $598,760 1.2%

Colusa $2,761,870 $64,196 $40,975 $26,446 $6,018 $15,510 $153,147 $171,026 ‐10.5% $153,147 6.0%

Corning $3,280,017 $86,158 $54,383 $25,951 $7,613 $15,510 $189,616 $185,443 2.2% $189,616 ‐1.0%

Dixon $11,926,891 $392,297 $217,170 $120,585 $33,383 $15,510 $778,945 $722,766 7.8% $778,945 8.9%

Elk Grove $46,204,226 $1,034,223 $685,991 $244,894 $89,857 $15,510 $2,070,475 $2,028,389 2.1% $2,070,475 0.4%

Folsom $49,786,271 $1,404,853 $766,319 $438,565 $119,334 $15,510 $2,744,581 $2,622,496 4.7% $2,744,581 4.6%

Galt $13,384,683 $360,644 $210,818 $107,981 $31,068 $15,510 $726,022 $728,472 ‐0.3% $726,022 5.0%

Gridley $4,007,337 $83,157 $69,164 $32,346 $8,444 $15,510 $208,621 $181,152 15.2% $208,621 12.2%

Ione $1,743,640 $50,826 $25,316 $15,037 $4,169 $15,510 $110,858 $97,551 13.6% $110,858 3.8%

Jackson $2,287,230 $81,041 $43,073 $22,251 $6,693 $15,510 $168,568 $198,023 ‐14.9% $168,568 5.3%

Lincoln $21,077,980 $353,059 $198,841 $150,205 $32,105 $15,510 $749,720 $657,452 14.0% $749,720 25.5%

Marysville $5,005,611 $204,360 $76,903 $47,654 $15,040 $15,510 $359,468 $286,446 25.5% $359,468 10.5%

Nevada City $2,579,640 $88,221 $50,416 $22,867 $7,385 $15,510 $184,399 $273,182 ‐32.5% $184,399 ‐7.9%

Oroville $8,994,623 $219,301 $121,839 $75,100 $19,033 $15,510 $450,782 $509,028 ‐11.4% $450,782 6.2%

Paradise $6,179,996 $132,108 $81,663 $34,545 $11,355 $15,510 $275,181 $365,698 ‐24.8% $275,181 27.2%

Placerville $7,355,262 $167,164 $116,264 $62,108 $15,800 $15,510 $376,846 $396,306 ‐4.9% $376,846 ‐5.6%

Red Bluff $7,896,458 $493,607 $181,548 $105,602 $35,701 $15,510 $831,969 $671,721 23.9% $831,969 9.8%

Rio Vista $4,234,918 $109,963 $76,517 $43,314 $10,508 $15,510 $255,811 $261,728 ‐2.3% $255,811 0.9%

Rocklin $26,613,000 $809,485 $476,825 $213,773 $68,593 $15,510 $1,584,186 $1,501,302 5.5% $1,584,186 ‐2.7%

Willows $1,399,999 $65,744 $29,001 $17,448 $5,130 $15,510 $132,833 $129,048 2.9% $132,833 11.7%

Yuba City $24,949,087 $823,739 $458,800 $252,336 $70,184 $15,510 $1,620,569 $1,690,789 ‐4.2% $1,620,569 5.0%

Total: $263,935,180 $7,476,000 $4,207,000 $2,175,514 $633,700 $341,223 $14,833,437 $14,572,379 1.8% $14,833,437 5.2%

Actuary/Verif $263,935,180 $7,476,000 $4,207,000 Final 

FY 22/23 NCCSIF Workers' Compensation Allocation PRELIMINARY 6/14/22

 
Page 456 of 526



FY 22/23 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 21/22
Base Rate* 3.243$            2.851$          4,822,202$    3,833,207$    Includes surcharge of $336,433

% of total increase =   53%

Member

Entity

Current Year

FY 22/23 

$750K SIR

80% CL; 40% 

Variable Cap 

Prior Year

FY 21/22 

$500K SIR

80% CL, 60% 

Cap

% 

Change

2021 Calendar 

Year Payroll

2020 Calendar 

Year Payroll

% 

Change

5‐Year Avg 

FYE 2016‐20

5‐Year 

Avg FYE 

2015‐19

% 

Change

Shared Layer 

Totals

FYE 2016‐20

Shared Layer 

Totals

FYE 2015‐19 % Change

FY 

22/23 FY 21/22

% 

Change

City of Anderson $271,983 $177,419 53% $4,712,278 $4,654,184 1% $53,197 $6,408 730% $345,394 $110,656 212% 1.57 1.38 14%

City of Auburn $708,817 $605,772 17% $7,212,513 $6,948,048 4% $128,222 $42,362 203% $789,956 $618,079 28% 1.83 1.78 3%

City of Colusa $237,549 $187,810 26% $2,871,320 $2,527,589 14% $41,287 $11,615 255% $218,946 $270,178 ‐19% 1.57 1.71 ‐8%

City of Corning $227,689 $202,349 13% $3,565,563 $3,631,789 ‐2% $20,488 $20,804 ‐2% $78,437 $61,822 27% 1.34 1.37 ‐2%

City of Dixon $433,049 $258,537 68% $10,326,168 $9,695,118 7% $26,108 $8,155 220% $116,344 $20,001 0% 1.10 1.04 6%

Elk Grove

City of Folsom $2,369,525 $2,385,537 ‐1% $49,252,555 $43,894,742 12% $270,082 $174,420 55% $1,070,198 $928,605 15% 0.86 0.86 0%

City of Galt $646,059 $452,721 43% $11,687,045 $11,027,133 6% $51,025 $20,024 155% $276,787 $234,668 18% 1.14 1.15 ‐1%

City of Gridley $291,269 $244,839 19% $3,753,546 $4,275,659 ‐12% $31,542 $13,247 138% $210,886 $123,381 71% 1.45 1.37 5%

City of Ione $109,320 $133,980 ‐18% $1,741,897 $1,563,176 11% $9,200 $9,202 0% $45,336 $89,545 ‐49% 1.44 1.54 ‐7%

City of Jackson $170,201 $92,854 83% $3,215,294 $2,875,922 12% $14,105 $1,105 1177% $95,000 $122,740 ‐23% 1.41 1.50 ‐6%

City of Lincoln $1,070,034 $955,079 12% $16,748,517 $15,614,334 7% $141,644 $92,132 54% $692,703 $464,903 49% 1.31 1.25 5%

City of Marysville $437,198 $446,225 ‐2% $4,853,691 $4,529,402 7% $88,494 $36,403 143% $524,048 $414,204 27% 1.80 1.79 1%

Nevada City

City of Oroville $427,741 $395,031 8% $7,126,132 $6,629,871 7% $45,530 $27,969 63% $246,477 $172,082 43% 1.35 1.31 3%

Town of Paradise $283,856 $246,661 15% $5,608,999 $4,839,826 16% $20,586 $11,131 85% $85,960 $377,171 ‐77% 1.28 1.68 ‐24%

Placerville

City of Red Bluff $488,723 $373,363 31% $6,972,768 $6,369,163 9% $65,482 $26,056 151% $343,877 $253,298 36% 1.44 1.41 2%

City of Rio Vista $417,949 $291,254 44% $4,047,976 $3,964,129 2% $101,824 $13,878 634% $747,021 $694,535 8% 2.01 2.05 ‐2%

City of Rocklin $1,155,668 $780,857 48% $23,537,071 $22,914,454 3% $102,061 $26,675 283% $645,936 $700,157 ‐8% 1.03 1.11 ‐7%

City of Willows $169,713 $166,150 2% $907,730 $979,430 ‐7% $37,036 $12,139 205% $237,802 $184,524 29% 1.69 1.65 2%

City of Yuba City $1,476,321 $1,126,956 31% $28,924,226 $26,621,274 9% $135,595 $61,642 120% $813,043 $714,235 14% 1.04 1.07 ‐3%

Grand Total $11,392,664 $9,523,393 20% $197,065,291 $183,555,242 7% $1,383,505 $615,366 125% $7,584,150 $6,554,784 16%

NCCSIF Liability Program Funding Changes 21/22 to 22/23 DRAFT 6/14/22

Difference
26%

$988,995

Excess Insurance

*$750K SIR v. $500k, Confidence Level Remains at 80%  

Difference
14%

Experience ModDeposit Premium Change Payroll Banking Layer Losses $0‐$50K  Shared Layer Losses $75k XS $5K 

 
Page 457 of 526



40% Variable 
CAP

Member 
Entity

Work Comp 
Deposit

Banking 
Layer Shared Layer

Banking 
Layer

Shared 
Layer

NET 
AMOUNT

Liability 
Deposit

Banking 
Layer

Shared 
Layer

Banking 
Layer

Shared 
Layer

NET 
AMOUNT

Net 
Dividends 
and 
Assessments

Anderson $262,080 $23,664 $14,424 $223,992 $271,983 $53,892 $325,875 ($15,804)
Auburn $598,760 $44,898 $22,945 $530,917 $708,817 $7,838 $700,979 $75,681
Colusa $153,147 $20,825 $8,360 $123,962 $237,549 $13,617 $223,932 $42,802
Corning $189,616 $22,840 $10,486 $156,290 $227,689 $20,362 $207,327 $53,688
Dixon $778,945 $105,198 $30,481 $643,266 $433,049 $12,325 $445,374 $123,354
Elk Grove $2,070,475 $10,677 $40,045 $2,019,753 $50,722
Folsom $2,744,581 $194,297 $135,250 $2,415,034 $2,369,525 $369,112 $2,000,413 $698,659
Galt $726,022 $140,185 $33,143 $552,694 $646,059 $76,187 $569,872 $249,515
Gridley $208,621 $201,124 $14,955 ‐$7,458 $291,269 $18,087 $273,182 $234,166
Ione $110,858 $10,909 $3,761 $96,189 $109,320 $10,000 $119,320 $4,670
Jackson $168,568 $59,263 $8,276 $101,029 $170,201 $36,192 $134,009 $103,731
Lincoln $749,720 $185,571 $42,968 $521,181 $1,070,034 $26,777 $1,096,811 $201,762
Marysville $359,468 $0 $14,640 $11,738 $356,566 $437,198 $33,149 $404,049 $36,051
Nevada City $184,399 $62,245 $8,265 $113,889 $70,510
Oroville $450,782 $177,106 $26,112 $247,564 $427,741 $26,004 $401,737 $229,222
Paradise $275,181 $235,406 $22,334 $17,441 $283,856 $72,889 $210,967 $330,629
Placerville $376,846 $65,123 $23,592 $288,131 $88,715
Red Bluff $831,969 $0 $26,170 $69,667 $875,466 $488,723 $22,426 $466,297 ($21,071)
Rio Vista $255,811 $33,230 $12,390 $210,191 $417,949 $13,279 $431,228 $32,341
Rocklin $1,584,186 $164,483 $66,939 $1,352,764 $1,155,668 $220,449 $935,219 $451,871
Willows $132,833 $45,179 $8,489 $79,165 $169,713 $20,460 $190,173 $33,208
Yuba City $1,620,569 $436,597 $71,977 $1,111,996 $1,476,321 $42,988 $1,433,333 $551,562
Total: ######### $2,238,820 $646,000 $81,405 $0 $12,030,022 $11,392,664 $959,300 $0 $136,733 $0 $10,570,097 $3,625,982

FY 22/23 NCCSIF Net Program Funding Summary as of 6/15/22

Work Comp Funding 80% CL Liability Funding 80% CL $750K SIR

DIVIDEND Assessment DIVIDEND Assessment

 
Page 458 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

 

Agenda Item H.8. 
 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE  
 

ACTION ITEM 
 

 
ISSUE: The Board of Directors reviews and approves the Conflict of Interest Code every even-
numbered year, then authorizes sending the Multi-County Agenda Biennial Notice to the California Fair 
Political Practices Commission (FPPC) advising whether there are updates. 
 
There are no recommended changes to the Code at this time.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Conflict of Interest Code as presented, with no changes.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
 
BACKGROUND: NCCSIF’s Conflict of Interest Code was last updated in 2014. The Multi-County 
Agenda Biennial Notice to the FPPC must be submitted every even-numbered year. 
 
The approved changes at the December 2018 Board meeting are reflected in the attached Draft Conflict 
of Interest Code. Members of the Risk Management Committee are no longer subject to the Code and 
are not required to file a form 700 since they make recommendations that are later approved by the 
Executive Committee and/or Board. This change was made at the request of a committee member in 
order to encourage more participation. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): NorCal Cities SIF Conflict of Interest Code 

 

 

  

 
Page 459 of 526



� �

1 
�

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
FOR THE 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF-INSURANCE FUND  
 

 
The Political Reform Act (Government Code Section 81000, et seq.) requires state and 

local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes.  The Fair 

Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation (2 California Code of Regulations 

Section 18730) that contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code, which can be 

incorporated by reference in an agency’s code.  After public notice and hearing, the standard 

code may be amended by the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments 

in the Political Reform Act.  Therefore, the terms of 2 California Code of Regulations Section 

18730 and any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political Practices Commission are 

hereby incorporated by reference.  This regulation and the attached Appendices, designating 

positions and establishing disclosure categories, shall constitute the conflict of interest code of 

the Northern California Cities Self-Insurance Fund (Authority). 

Individuals holding designated positions shall file their statements of economic interests 

with the Authority, which will make the statements available for public inspection and 

reproduction.  (Gov. Code Sec. 81008)  Upon receipt of the statements, the Authority shall 

make and retain copies and forward the originals to the Fair Political Practices 

Commission.  Statements may be filed electronically with the Fair Political Practices 

Commission. All statements will be retained by the Fair Political Practices Commission. 

 
Page 460 of 526



� �

2 
�

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
FOR THE 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF-INSURANCE FUND  
 

Appendix A-Designated Positions 
 
Designated Position    Assigned Disclosure Category 
 

Program Administrator      1, 2, 3, 4, 5 
Claims Administrator      1, 2, 3, 4, 5 
Auditor        1, 2, 3, 4, 5 
Board Counsel       1, 2, 3, 4, 5 

 
Note: The positions of Program Administrator, Claims Administrator, Board Counsel, and 
Auditor are filled by outside consultants, but act in a staff capacity. 
 
Consultants/New Positions * 
 
*Consultants/new positions shall be included in the list of designated positions and shall 
disclose pursuant to the broadest disclosure category in the code subject to the following 
limitation:   �

The President may determine in writing that a particular consultant or new position, although 
a “designated position,” is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and thus 
is not required to comply fully with the disclosure requirements described in this section.  
Such determination shall include a description of the consultant’s or new position’s duties 
and, based upon that description, a statement of the extent of disclosure requirements.  The 
President’s determination is a public record and shall be retained for public inspection in the 
same manner and location as this conflict of interest code. (Gov. Code Sec. 81008) 
 

The following positions are not covered by the code because the positions manage 
public investments.  Individuals holding such positions must file under Government Code 
Section 87200 and are listed for informational purposes only.  

 
 Members of the Board of Directors 
 Alternate Members of the Board of Directors 
 Treasurer 
 Consultants who manage public investments 

 
An individual holding one of the above listed positions may contact the Fair Political 

Practices Commission for assistance or written advice regarding their filing obligations if they 
believe their position has been categorized incorrectly.  The Fair Political Practices 
Commission makes the final determination whether a position is covered by Section 87200. 

 
 

 
Page 461 of 526



� �

3 
�

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
FOR THE 

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF-INSURANCE FUND  
 

Appendix B-Disclosure Categories 
 
Designated positions must disclosure pursuant to the categories below. 
 
1. Investments and business positions in business entities, and income (including receipt 

of loans, gifts, and travel payments), from sources of the type that contract with the 
Authority to supply goods, services, materials, or supplies. 

 
2. Investments and business positions in business entities, and income (including receipt 

of loans, gifts, and travel payments), from sources that are engaged in the 
performance of work or services of the type utilized by the Authority, including 
insurance companies, carriers, holding companies, underwriters, brokers, solicitors, 
agents, adjusters, claims managers, and actuaries. 

 
3. Investments and business positions in business entities, and income (including receipt 

of loans, gifts, and travel payments), from sources that have filed a claim or have a 
claim pending that are reviewed and administered by the Authority. 

 
4. Interests in real property located within the Authority’s jurisdiction of the type 

purchased or leased by the Authority for its use. 
 
5. Investments and business positions in business entities, and income (including receipt 

of loans, gifts, and travel payments), which are financial institutions including banks, 
savings and loan associations and credit unions. 

 
 
 
�

 
Page 462 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item. H.9. 
 

RESOLUTION 22-01 AUTHORIZING SIGNERS FOR THE INVESTMENT OF 
THE MONIES IN THE LOCAL AGENCY FUND (LAIF) 

 
ACTION ITEM 

 
 

ISSUE: The Board is asked to approve the attached Resolution to add Liz Cottrell, as President of 
NCCSIF, as an authorized signer for the investment of monies in LAIF. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approval of Resolution 22-01, authorizing the President, Treasurer and 
Financial Consultant authority to order deposits or withdrawals of monies in LAIF. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: The Board of Directors must approve a Resolution to authorize the NCCSIF 
President, Treasurer and Financial Consultant to order the deposits or withdrawal of monies in the Local 
Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Records are updated with the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
as needed to reflect the newly elected officers of NCCSIF who have the authority to transfer funds to or 
from LAIF. The transfers are restricted to/from LAIF and NCCSIF’s trust account. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Proposed NCCSIF Resolution 22-01 

 

REFERENCE: Government Code Section: 
 

16429.1.(b) Notwithstanding any other law, a local governmental official, with the 
consent of the governing body of that agency, having money in its treasury not required 
for immediate needs, may remit the money to the Treasurer for deposit in the Local 
Agency Investment Fund for the purpose of investment. 

  

 
Page 463 of 526



 
 

 

 
RESOLUTION 22-01 

 
 

AUTHORIZING INVESTMENT OF MONIES IN THE  
LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF)  

AND RESCINDING RESOLUTION 20-04  
 

WHEREAS, The Local Agency Investment Fund is established in the State Treasury under Government 
Code section 16429.1 et. seq. for the deposit of money of a local agency for purposes of investment by the State 
Treasurer; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors hereby finds that the deposit and withdrawal of money in the Local 
Agency Investment Fund in accordance with Government Code 16429.1 et. seq. for the purpose of investment 
as stated therein is in the best interests of the Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund (NCCSIF). 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the NCCSIF Board of Directors hereby authorizes the 
deposit and withdrawal of NCCSIF monies in the Local Agency Investment Fund in the State Treasury in 
accordance with Government Code section 16429.1 et. seq. for the purpose of investment as provided therein.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, as follows:  

 
Section 1. The following NCCSIF officers and consultants holding the title(s) specified herein below or their 
successors in office are each hereby authorized to order the deposit or withdrawal of monies in the Local Agency 
Investment Fund and may execute and deliver any and all documents necessary or advisable in order to effectuate 
the purposes of this resolution and the transactions contemplated hereby: 
 

1) President 
2) NCCSIF Treasurer 
3) James Marta – NCCSIF Financial Consultant 
4) Jesse Deol – NCCSIF Financial Consultant 
5) Ritesh Sharma – NCCSIF Financial Consultant 

 
Section 2. This resolution rescinds Resolution 20-04 and any prior authorizations and shall remain in full force 
and effect until rescinded by the Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund Board of Directors by resolution 
and a copy of the resolution rescinding this resolution is filed with the State Treasurer’s Office. 
 
***************************************************************************************** 

 
Page 464 of 526



 
 

 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 22-01 duly and regularly 
adopted and passed at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Northern California Cities Self Insurance 
Fund held on the 23rd day of June 2022, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN: None 
 
 

 _______________________________ 
NCCSIF President 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
NCCSIF Secretary 

 
Page 465 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.10. 
 

FY 22/23 MEETING CALENDAR 
 

ACTION ITEM 
 

 
ISSUE: The proposed NCCSIF FY 22/23 Meeting Calendar is presented for review to determine if any 
dates should be modified due to conflicts. 
 
Also note members are asked to provide direction regarding meeting locations. The Board previously 
indicated an interest in continuing to meet in person while leaving the option for Zoom Executive 
Committee or other meetings up to those members.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review the proposed dates and locations and approve the Meeting Calendar 
as presented or revised after review.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: Annually, the Executive Committee reviews and recommends the meeting calendar 
for NCCSIF Board, Executive, Risk Management, Claims, Police Risk Management and Finance 
Committees. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Preliminary FY 22/23 Meeting Calendar 

 

  

 
Page 466 of 526



 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

 

 
PROGRAM YEAR 22/23 MEETING CALENDAR 

 
 

 

 

 
Thursday, August 4, 2022, .......................................  Police Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Thursday, September 22, 2022* ............................................................... Claims Committee at 10:00 a.m. 
 Executive Committee at 11:30 a.m. 

 
Thursday, October 20, 2022**.............................................  Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 
 Board of Directors at 12 noon 

 
Thursday, November 3, 2022,..................................  Police Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Thursday, December 15, 2022** ............................................................  Board of Directors at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Thursday, February 9, 2023, ....................................  Police Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Thursday, March 23, 2023* ...................................................................... Claims Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

Executive Committee at 11:30 a.m. 

 
Thursday, April 20, 2023, ....................................................  Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 
 Board of Directors at 12 noon 

 
Thursday, May 4, 2023, ...........................................  Police Risk Management Committee at 10:00 a.m. 

 
Thursday, May 25, 2023* ......................................................................... Claims Committee at 10:00 a.m. 
 Executive Committee at 11:30 a.m. 

 
Thursday, June 22, 2023** .....................................................................  Board of Directors at 10:00 a.m. 
 
 
Meeting Location: Rocklin Event Center - Garden Room  

 2650 Sunset Blvd., Rocklin, CA 95677 
 
Rocklin Event Center – Ballroom ** 
                                       Zoom Teleconference* 
 

 
Note: Additional Claims Committee Meetings may be scheduled as needed for Claims Authority approval 
which will be held via teleconference. 

 
Page 467 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.11. 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING UPDATE 
 

INFORMATION ITEM 
 
ISSUE: Attached is the latest update to the Strategic Plan the Board completed at their October 27, 
2021, meeting.  
 
Six goals were identified, with a review of the Property Program structure getting the most votes as a 
priority. We have received and presented renewal quotes with analysis of the options.  
 
Members also prioritized adding Company Nurse and exploring the use of an employee 
advocate for the Workers’ Compensation Program. Since that time Company Nurse has been engaged 
and members have agreed to issue an RFP for Work Comp claims options. 
  
Strategic growth by adding members and/or partnering with other JPAs was also discussed and voted 
on as a priority. So far that has meant partnering with other JPAs to share resources and training.  
 
Other priorities focused on updating the Bylaws, creating a Board Member Academy, and setting a 
plan for member visits by risk control and program administrator staff. 
 
And while cyber program issues were discussed extensively, the topic did not garner any votes from 
members. The Program Administrators have provided extensive resources and the cyber application 
for members to use in anticipation of a review of cyber coverage options for July 1, 2022. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and discuss the current Strategic Plan and provide feedback or 
direction as needed.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None expected from this item.  
 
BACKGROUND: Prior to 2021, the last facilitated strategic planning meeting was held in 2011. Since 
that time the Strategic Plan has been updated by the Board at regular Training Day/Planning sessions. 
The focus of the most recent Plan has been updating the Funding Policy and strengthening some of its 
performance benchmarks.  
 
Implementing these increased funding benchmarks has helped NorCal Cities weather the current 
environment better than many, but pressure to take on more risk will continue and members will see 
increased retentions as a result. Additional funding and/or coverage options will be needed to meet the 
challenges, and risk management will become even more important to keep the costs down.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S): Revised Strategic Plan as of June 15, 2022    

 

 
Page 468 of 526



Goals Drafted: 10/27/2021 BOD Long Range Planning meeting Updated: 6/15/22

GOAL ACTION/TASK RESPONSIBLE ENTITY DEADLINE STATUS VOTES
LRP‐1

1. Conduct study of estimated premiums at various self‐insured 
retentions (SIRs) to bring stability to program Alliant

Draft Budget for EC 
3/24. For BOD 4/21

Presented to 
BOD 6/23/22 11

2. Alliant to analyze banking layer options for members  Alliant June, 2022
Presented to 
BOD 6/23/22 3

3. Alliant to present a State of the Market for all Programs at 
December BOD meeting Alliant 12/16/21 Completed

LRP‐2

1. Serve notice of intent to non‐renew to CJPRMA   Alliant/BOD By 12/31

Notice not 
given per 

Board direction  2

2. Evaluate SIR options for CJPRMA coverage for FY 22/23 Alliant/BOD
Draft budget to BOD 

4/21
 Raising SIR to 

$750K

3. Analyze risk for loss leaders and trends  Sedgwick/Alliant on RMC agenda 12/16

Using for 
current service 

plan 2

4. Address the risks of intersections (historical v current traffic 
usage numbers) and police liability Sedgwick/Members on RMC agenda 12/16

Offer to review 
intersection 
not yet 
accepted 2

LRP‐3
1. Alliant to send members application early  Alliant by 12/1/21 Done 0

2. Create more robust risk control program Members  by 6/22 BOD meeting  ongoing  0

3. Staff to analyze if all, most or none scenarios will be 
available from excess insurers Alliant by 6/22 BOD meeting 

Marketing 
coverage for 

7/1/22  0

Note: Allmembers have completed cyber applications

The Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund, or NorCal Cities, is an association of municipalities joined to protect member resources by stabilizing 

Property 
Program: 
Objective ‐ 
Review the 
Property 
Program 
structure

Note: Risk control efforts to include multi factor authentication, redundant systems, phishing simulation training and more

Note: Consider working with Beazley and other providers of services directly if must self‐insure or very high SIR. 

Notes: Have actuary report ‐ will plug in to budget at various SIRs 

Notes: Will review options for auto and property  

Cyber Program 
‐ Objective: 
Analyze 

purchasing 
excess 

insurance

NCCSIF STRATEGIC GOALS & ACTION PLAN

Liability 
Program ‐ 

Flattening the 
curve of 
increasing 

premiums and 
risk

MISSION STATEMENT

Note: Pending decision on 12/9 from CJPRMA regarding premium surcharge formula. Board agreed not to serve notice of withdrawl 

based on CJPRMA surcharge formula revisions and current options. 

Note: Look at risk from the pool level as well as individual member level 

Notes: On BOD agenda 12/16/21

Notes: 

Note: the current $500K SIR will not be offered. Reviewed $750K and $1M options and agreed to $750K. 

 
Page 469 of 526



GOAL ACTION/TASK RESPONSIBLE ENTITY DEADLINE STATUS VOTES
LRP‐4

1. Investigate hiring an employee advocate to navigate claims 
in the WC system Alliant/BOD on RMC agenda 12/16

Webinar 
1/12/22 and 
review of 
options 
underway  10

2. Investigate hiring Company Nurse for 24/7 nurse triage 
services Alliant Approved by EC 12/2/21

Service Begins 
1/1/2022 10

LRP‐5

1. Investigate Strategic Growth  Alliant/BOD To EC 3/24; BOD 4/21

Benchmark of 

other pools 

and options 

tbd 10

2. Evaluate NCCSIF Bylaws for entrance/exit provisions Alliant/BOD By 12/31/22 
Review with EC 

& BOD 6

3. Refresh marketing collateral prior to any marketing efforts Alliant
RM site by 1/1/22; 
Main site by 9/1/22

New portal for 
sewer, cyber, 

wildfire 
completed. 

Revison to NCC 
site underway 

now 2

LRP‐6

1. Create a Board member Academy Alliant/BOD
Present to BOD by 

12/31/22

Funding 
Allocation 
Formula 

Presentation 
conducted for 
BOD 4/12/22 7

2. Create a plan for staff visits Sedgwick/Alliant Present to BOD 12/16 Underway

Note: Growth could be achieved by gaining individual members or by partnering with other JPAs. Elk Grove quoted for Liability 

Program.

Note ‐ signup forms have been delivered ‐ can start as soon as 1/1/2022. Training scheduled and available online any time. 

Organizational 
Growth

Workers' 
Compensation 
Program ‐ 
Objective: 
Investigate 

tools/services 
to mitigat cost 

of claims

Note: Include roles and responsibilities of Sedgwick examiner versus the employee advocate  or other point of contact in the analysis. 

Note: The Academy will include education on Board member responsibilities, Program details, and build on the existing  

Board Member Guidebook. A Board Budget webinar will be scheduled for the FY 22/23 budget process. 

Note: Staff member visits are valued by members and creating a plan will ensure visits are done on a timely basis

Note: Focus should include the website and creating new marketing materials. Revisions uderway. 

Member 
Engagement 
and Education

Note: Bylaws should discourage "shopping" and focus on long term membership to benefit the pool 

 
Page 470 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.12. 
 

 
FY 22/23 SERVICE CALENDAR 

 
INFORMATION ITEM 

 
 
ISSUE: An annual Service Calendar is provided to the Board showing a timeline of the annual activities 
to be completed on behalf of the organization. The calendar serves several purposes, including notifying 
members of meetings and typical agenda topics, when to expect requests for information and deadlines 
for responding, and giving members a fuller understanding of all the “behind the scenes” activities 
completed by the Program Administrators. 
 
Note we have highlighted the meetings in blue, requests for information in yellow, and training 
conferences in grey to make it easier for members to spot the key items that require their participation. 
Feedback regarding the color highlighting and use of the calendar is appreciated. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: None - Information Only 
 
 
BACKGROUND: None. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): FY 22/23 NCCSIF Service Calendar 
 
 

  

 
Page 471 of 526



2022-2023 SERVICE CALENDAR 
 

AS = 
JM = 
SCA = 
SRC = 
CA = 
FA = 

Alliant Insurance Services 
James Marta & Company, CPAs 
Sedgwick Claims Administrator 
Sedgwick Risk Control 
Claims Auditor 
Financial Auditor 

BD = 
EC = 
RM = 

PRM = 
FC = 
PA = 

Board of Directors 
Executive Committee 
Risk Management 
Police Risk Management 
Finance Committee 
Property Appraiser 

 

Page 1 of 6 Updated 6/08/2022 

 
     

JULY 2022 

07/01/22  NCCSIF Joint Powers Authority 43rd Anniversary  ALL 

07/01/22  Send Program Invoices to James Marta & Company for payment  AS 

07/05/22  Email Renewal Binders to Members including: GL, WC, Property, Crime 

 GL (NCCSIF & CJPRMA) ‐ MOC, Dec Page & Summary 

 WC (NCCSIF & CSAC EIA) ‐ MOC, Dec Page & Summary 

 Property (APIP) ‐ Summary of Insurance 

 Crime (ACIP) ‐ Summary of Insurance 
(Upload binders to AlliantConnect pending receipt of the Policy) 

AS 

07/12/22  Request Certificate of Insurance from Service Providers and Contractors: Sedgwick, Marta  AS 

07/15/22  Collect Q2 DE9 (6/30) from members  AS 

07/22/22  Annual Report due by October Meeting    

07/28/22  PRMC Agenda for 8/4/22 meeting ‐ email to Committee members and upload agenda packet 
to AlliantConnect and NCCSIF website 

AS, BM 

07/28/22  Request 06/30 Quarterly Financial Report, Treasurer’s Report and LAIF Report from James 
Marta & Company 

AS 

     

AUGUST 2022 

08/01/22  NCCSIF Financial Audit ‐ begin preparation of documents  AS, JM, FA 

08/04/22  Police Risk Management Committee Meeting  PRM 

08/03/22  Send PRISM 23/24 WC Renewal application to Members ‐ due 09/06/22  AS 

08/4/22  Send Service Providers Survey to Members (Alliant, Sedgwick WC, Sedgwick GL, Sedgwick RC)  AS 

08/05/22  Finance Committee Meeting (determine need)  AS 

08/05/22  Submit Q2 (6/30) DE9 reports to CJPRMA  AS 
08/22/22  Begin Public Self‐Insurer’s Annual Report on DIR OSIP website (need total employee count 

and 6/30 payroll) 
AS 

     

SEPTEMBER 2022 

09/06/22  Investment Policy ‐ review and update  JM 

09/06/22  Financial Audit ‐ review and update  JM 

Mtg  Finance Committee Meeting (if needed)  FC 

Mtg  Review audit or DRAFT  FC 

Mtg  Investment portfolio ‐ review  FC 

Mtg  Investment policy ‐ review  FC 

09/07/22  PRISM WC Renewal Application deadline from Members  AS 

09/07/22  PRISM WC Renewal Additional Covered parties deadline from Members   AS 

09/23/22  WC Payroll Audit due to EIA  AS 

09/13/22  1st Installment of Assessments ‐ begin collecting as needed  JM 

09/13‐
09/16/22 

CAJPA 2021 Fall Conference ‐ South Lake Tahoe, CA   

 

 
Page 472 of 526



2022-2023 SERVICE CALENDAR 
 

AS = 
JM = 
SCA = 
SRC = 
CA = 
FA = 

Alliant Insurance Services 
James Marta & Company, CPAs 
Sedgwick Claims Administrator 
Sedgwick Risk Control 
Claims Auditor 
Financial Auditor 

BD = 
EC = 
RM = 

PRM = 
FC = 
PA = 

Board of Directors 
Executive Committee 
Risk Management 
Police Risk Management 
Finance Committee 
Property Appraiser 

 

Page 2 of 6 Updated 6/08/2022 

09/15/22  EC & Claims Committee Agendas for 09/22/22 meetings ‐ email to Committee members and 
upload agenda packet to AlliantConnect and NCCSIF website 

AS, SCA 

09/12/22  ALL Service Providers Survey due from members  AS 

09/22/22  EC & Claims Committee Meetings  EC 

N/A  Status of CAJPA Accreditation (every 3 years: last accreditation 2021, next 2024)  EC 

Mtg  Quarterly Investment Report (06/30) ‐ submit for approval  EC 

Mtg  Review financial audit or DRAFT  FC, EC 

Mtg  Investment policy ‐ review  FC, EC 

Mtg  FY 21/22 WC Claims Auditor Proposal ‐ submit for approval 
Note: (GL odd‐numbered years | WC even‐numbered years) 

EC 

09/19/22  Compile and complete PRISM Renewal Application on PRISM website  AS 

     

OCTOBER 2022 

10/03/22  Annual Report of Financial Transactions ‐ deadline  JM 

10/03/22  OSIP Filling    

10/03/22  Public Self Insurer's Annual Report for JPA & Members ‐ deadline to file  AS, SCA 

10/03/22  Multi‐County Agency Biennial Notice (Conflict of Interest Code) ‐ deadline to FPPC every 
even‐numbered years 

AS 

10/08/22  APIP Pre‐Renewal ‐ trending of Property Schedules  AS 

10/15/22  File Controller’s Report with the State of California  AS, JM 

10/13/22  Collect Q3 DE9 (9/30) from members  AS 

10/13/22  RMC & BOD Agendas for 10/20/22 meeting ‐ email to Board and Committee members and 
upload agenda packet to AlliantConnect and NCCSIF website 

AS 

10/22/22  Opt Out Letter  AS 

10/20/22  Risk Management Committee (Claims Analysis Focus) & BOARD (Finance Focus) Meetings  ALL 

Mtg  Quarterly Investment Reports (06/30) ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  Quarterly Financial Report (06/30) ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  FY 21/22 Financial Audit ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  LAIF Report ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  Investment portfolio ‐ review  FC, EC 

Mtg  Target Equity Presentation  BD 

Mtg  Loss Analysis charts (as of 06/30)  RM 

Mtg  Alliant Commission Disclosure Letter and Facts Retail v. Wholesale Commissions  BD 

Mtg  Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Quarterly Claims Report  SCA 

Mtg  ALL Service Providers Survey Result ‐ submit for review  BD 

10/27/22  PRMC Agenda for 11/03/22 meeting ‐ email to Committee members and upload agenda 
packet to AlliantConnect and NCCSIF website 

AS, SRC 

10/31/22  Request 09/30 Quarterly Financial Report, Treasurer’s Report and LAIF Report from James 
Marta 

AS 

     

NOVEMBER 2022 

11/01/22  Prepare NCCSIF Annual Report  AS 

11/03/22  Police Risk Management Committee Meeting  PRM 

 
Page 473 of 526



2022-2023 SERVICE CALENDAR 
 

AS = 
JM = 
SCA = 
SRC = 
CA = 
FA = 

Alliant Insurance Services 
James Marta & Company, CPAs 
Sedgwick Claims Administrator 
Sedgwick Risk Control 
Claims Auditor 
Financial Auditor 

BD = 
EC = 
RM = 

PRM = 
FC = 
PA = 

Board of Directors 
Executive Committee 
Risk Management 
Police Risk Management 
Finance Committee 
Property Appraiser 

 

Page 3 of 6 Updated 6/08/2022 

11/04/22  Alliant Opt out Commission Letter   AS 

11/04/22  Submit Q3 (9/30) DE9 reports to CJPRMA  AS 

11/14‐18/22  CalPELRA 2022 Annual Conference ‐ Monterey, CA   

TBD  Perform FY 21/22 GL Claims Audit  CA 

     

DECEMBER 2022 

12/01/22  Mail out Christmas Cards to Members  AS 

12/08/22  BOD Agenda for 12/15/22 meeting ‐ email to Board members and upload agenda packet to 
AlliantConnect and NCCSIF website 

AS 

12/15/22  Board of Directors Meeting   RM, BD 

Mtg  Quarterly Investment Reports (09/30) ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  Quarterly Financial Report (as of 09/30) ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  CAJPA Final Accreditation report (every 3 years: last accreditation 2018, next 2021)  BD 

Mtg  FY 21/22 Marketing Plan & Renewal Timeline ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  FY 21/22 GL Claims Audit ‐ submit for approval ‐ Auditor makes presentation  BD, CA 

Mtg  Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Quarterly Claims Report  SCA 

12/02/22  2nd Installment of Assessments ‐ begin collecting (as needed)  JM 

12/13/22  Financial Audit ‐ confirm with Marta’s office the date they filed to State Controller’s office 
and members’ County Auditors 

JM 

12/20/22  Statement of Facts ‐ Roster of Public Agencies ‐ file with State and County  AS 
12/20/22  Determine WCIRB Class Codes Rates from WCIRB.com 

(update Member Payroll Allocations spreadsheet) 
AS 

     

JANUARY 2023 

01/04/23 
 

Request Loss Runs (as of 12/31) from SCA for Liability and WC (separate 4850) ‐ deadline 
1/18/23 

AS 

01/11/23  Preparation for CAJPA Accreditation (every 3 years: last accreditation 2021, next 2024)  AS 

01/13/23  Form 700 electronic filing through FPPC’s eDisclosure system ‐ email reminder to BOD, Board 
Alternates and Service Provider Consultants ‐ April 2023 

AS 

01/15/23  Begin working on Preliminary FY 22/23 Budget  AS, BD 

01/15/23  Property Program ‐ prepare and send property schedule to members to review/update ‐ 
deadline 30 days 

AS 

01/18/23  Loss and Renewal Instructions ‐ send to Actuary and Marta  AS 

01/18/23  Request 12/31 Quarterly Financial Report, Treasurer’s Report and LAIF Report from James 
Marta 

AS 

01/18/23  Liability and WC renewal loss information ‐ deadline for receipt from SCA  AS 

01/18/23  Collect Q4 DE9 (12/31) from members  AS 

01/18/23  Input loss data into Budget Spreadsheet  AS 

01/18/23  Review service providers/contractors’ agreements regarding renewal terms  AS 

01/25/23  22/23 APIP Property Policy Notebook (post to AlliantConnect)  AS 

02/02/23  PRMC Agenda for 02/2/23 meeting ‐ email to Committee members and upload agenda 
packet to AlliantConnect and NCCSIF website 

AS, SRC 

     

 
Page 474 of 526



2022-2023 SERVICE CALENDAR 
 

AS = 
JM = 
SCA = 
SRC = 
CA = 
FA = 

Alliant Insurance Services 
James Marta & Company, CPAs 
Sedgwick Claims Administrator 
Sedgwick Risk Control 
Claims Auditor 
Financial Auditor 

BD = 
EC = 
RM = 

PRM = 
FC = 
PA = 

Board of Directors 
Executive Committee 
Risk Management 
Police Risk Management 
Finance Committee 
Property Appraiser 

 

Page 4 of 6 Updated 6/08/2022 

FEBRUARY 2023 

02/01/23  Renewal Certificate Holder List ‐ send spreadsheet to members to review/update ‐ due 
03/01/22 

AS 

02/2/23  Police Risk Management Committee Meeting  PRM 

02/06/23  Submit Q4 (12/31) DE9 reports to CJPRMA  AS 

02/08/23  Receive Dividend Calculations and info from CJPRMA Premium Funding  AS, BD 

02/08/23  PA to meet to discuss updates to Administrative Costs for Budget  AS 

02/08/23  Crime Program ‐ follow up with ACIP for specification, prepare and send renewal applications 
to Members ‐ due 03/01/22 

AS 

02/08/23  ID Fraud Renewal Questionnaire ‐ follow up with Travelers for specification, prepare and 
send to Members ‐ due 03/01/22 

AS 

02/08/23  EAP ‐ follow up with ACI for renewal specification    

02/08/23  Airport Liability ‐ prepare and send renewal applications to Members ‐ due 03/01/2  AS 

02/08/23  Pollution Program ‐ prepare and send renewal applications to Members ‐ due 03/01/22  AS 

02/15/23  Property Schedule Renewal due from Members  AS 

02/22/23  Property Program ‐ prepare specifications and input to Oasys  AS 

02/22/23  Actuarial Study ‐ receive draft and send to Jim Marta  AS, 
Actuary 

02/22/23  Reminder: Form 700s to BOD, Board Alternates and Service Provider Consultants  AS 

02/22/23‐
03/01/23 

Banking and Shared Risk Layer Program Deposits ‐ prepare preliminary worksheets, and 
Shared Risk layer adjustments for FY 23/23 

AS 

02/22/23  Request Banking Layer adjustments from Jim Marta  AS 

02/07‐10/23  PARMA Annual Risk Management Conference – Sacramento Convention Center    

     

MARCH 2023 

03/01/23  Certificate Holder list due from members  AS 

03/08/22  Crime Renewal App (including Treasurer Crime) ‐ prepare and submit renewal applications to 
ACIP for quotation 

AS 

03/08/23  ID Fraud Coverage ‐ prepare and submit renewal applications to Travelers for quotation  AS 

03/08/23  EAP ‐ confirm headcount for quotation  AS 

03/08/23  Airport Liability ‐ prepare and submit renewal applications  AS 

03/08/23  Pollution Program ‐ prepare and submit renewal applications  AS 

03/15/23  Reminder: Form 700s to BOD, Board Alternates, RM Committee members and Service 
Provider Consultants 

AS 

03/18/23  EC & Claims Committee Agendas for 03/24/22 meetings ‐ email to Committee members and 
upload agenda packet to AlliantConnect and NCCSIF website 

AS, SCA 

03/23/23  Executive & Claims Committee Meetings  EC 

Mtg  Quarterly Investment Reports (12/31) ‐ submit for review  EC 

Mtg  Review and approve actuarial studies  EC 

Mtg  Preliminary FY 23/24 Budget ‐ submit for review  EC 

Mtg  Liability and WC Banking & Shared Layer ‐ preliminary deposit calculation for review  EC 

Mtg  FY 22/23 WC Claims Audit Report ‐ for review and approval ‐ auditor makes presentation  EC, CA 

 
Page 475 of 526



2022-2023 SERVICE CALENDAR 
 

AS = 
JM = 
SCA = 
SRC = 
CA = 
FA = 

Alliant Insurance Services 
James Marta & Company, CPAs 
Sedgwick Claims Administrator 
Sedgwick Risk Control 
Claims Auditor 
Financial Auditor 

BD = 
EC = 
RM = 

PRM = 
FC = 
PA = 

Board of Directors 
Executive Committee 
Risk Management 
Police Risk Management 
Finance Committee 
Property Appraiser 

 

Page 5 of 6 Updated 6/08/2022 

Mtg  FY 22/23 Claims Audit for GL ‐ evaluate and consider RFP for Claims Auditor 
(GL odd‐numbered years | WC even‐numbered years) 

EC 

Mtg  Accounting Services Contract ‐   JM 

03/29/23  Renewal Certificate Holder List updates due to CJPRMA and PRISM  AS 

     

APRIL 2023 

04/01/23  Form 700s deadline to FPPC  AS 

04/15/23  RMC & BOD Agendas for 04/20/23 meetings ‐ email to Board and Committee members and 
upload agenda packet to AlliantConnect and NCCSIF website 

AS 

04/16/23  Collect Q1 DE9 (03/31) from members  AS 

04/20/23  Risk Management Committee & Board Meetings  RM, BD 

Mtg  22/23 Officers ‐ submit for election  BD 

Mtg  22/23 Meeting Calendar ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  22/23 Service Calendar ‐ information  BD 

Mtg  Quarterly Investment Reports (12/31) ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  Quarterly Financial Report (12/31) ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  Preliminary FY 23/24 Budget ‐ submit for review  BD 

Mtg  Liability and WC Banking & Shared Risk Layers ‐ deposit calculations for review (excess WC & 
Liability & Admin costs pending) 

BD 

Mtg  Banking Plan Fund Adjustments ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  Shared Risk Layer Plan Fund Adjustments ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  Actuarial Study ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Quarterly Claims Report  SCA 

Mtg  FY 21/22 WC Claims Audit Report ‐ for review and approval ‐ auditor makes presentation  CA, SCA 

04/27/23 
 

PRMC Agenda for 05/4/23 meeting ‐ email to Committee members and upload agenda 
packet to AlliantConnect and NCCSIF website 

AS, SCA 

04/30/23  Request 03/31 Quarterly Financial Report, Treasurer’s Report and LAIF Report from James 
Marta 

AS 

     

MAY 2023 

05/03/23  Banking and Shared Risk Layer Adjustments/Assessments ‐ mail to JM for distribution to 
members 

AS 

05/03/23  WC Renewal Quotations ‐ check status  AS 

05/03/23  Submit Q1 (03/31) DE9 reports to CJPRMA  AS 

05/04/23  Police Risk Management Committee Meeting  PRM 

05/19/23  EC & Claims Committee Agendas for 05/19/22 meetings ‐ email to Committee members and 
upload agenda packet to AlliantConnect and NCCSIF website 

AS, SCA 

05/25/23  Executive & Claims Committee Meetings  EC 

Mtg  2023 Nominating Committee ‐ select & nominate  EC 

Mtg  2023/2024 Officers ‐ select & recommend to BOD  EC 

Mtg  2023/2024 EC Rotation Schedule ‐ submit for approval  EC 

Mtg  Preliminary 2023/2024 Meeting Calendar ‐ submit for approval and recommend to BOD  EC 

Mtg  Quarterly Investment Reports (03/31) ‐ submit for approval  EC 

 
Page 476 of 526



2022-2023 SERVICE CALENDAR 
 

AS = 
JM = 
SCA = 
SRC = 
CA = 
FA = 

Alliant Insurance Services 
James Marta & Company, CPAs 
Sedgwick Claims Administrator 
Sedgwick Risk Control 
Claims Auditor 
Financial Auditor 

BD = 
EC = 
RM = 

PRM = 
FC = 
PA = 

Board of Directors 
Executive Committee 
Risk Management 
Police Risk Management 
Finance Committee 
Property Appraiser 

 

Page 6 of 6 Updated 6/08/2022 

Mtg  Liability and WC Program Deposits ‐ review 2022 revisions  EC 

Mtg  FY 23/24 Budget ‐ submit for review  EC 

Mtg  Program Administration Contract ‐ submit for approval (as needed)  EC 

Mtg  Safety & Risk Control Services Contract ‐ submit for approval (as needed)  EC 

Mtg  Liability Claims Administration Contract ‐ submit for approval (as needed)  EC 

Mtg  WC Claims Administration Contract ‐ submit for approval (as needed)  EC 

Mtg  Accounting Services Contract ‐ submit for approval (as needed)  EC 

Mtg  Legal Services Contract ‐ submit for approval (as needed)  EC 

Mtg  Conflict of Interest Code‐submit for approval (every even years)  EC 

Mtg  Property renewal status review  EC 

Mtg  Crime renewal quotations review  EC 

Mtg  ACI renewal quotations ‐ EAP ‐ submit for approval (as needed)  EC 

Mtg  FY 23/24 Liability Memorandum of Coverage ‐ submit for approval  EC 

Mtg  FY 23/24WC Memorandum of Coverage ‐ submit for approval  EC 

05/24/23  Obtain necessary signatures to finalize contracts with consultants  AS 

05/31/23  Property Program ‐ receive preliminary renewal quotation  AS 

     

JUNE 2023 

06/10/23  RMC and BOD Agendas for 06/22/23 meeting ‐ email to Board and Committee members and 
upload agenda packet to AlliantConnect and NCCSIF website 

AS 

06/22/23  Board Meeting  BD 

Mtg  Risk Management Budget ‐ submit for approval  RM 

Mtg  Quarterly Investment Reports (03/31) ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  Quarterly Financial Report (03/31) ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  FY 22/23 Budget ‐ submit final for approval  BD 

Mtg  FY 22/23 Liability and WC Banking & Shared Risk Layer Program Deposits ‐ submit final for 
approval  

BD 

Mtg  FY 22/23 Liability Memorandum of Coverage ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  FY 22/23 WC Memorandum of Coverage ‐ submit for approval  BD 

Mtg  Conflict of Interest Code ‐ submit for approval (every even years)  BD 

Mtg  APIP Property Program ‐ provide report and allocations on renewal quotes  BD 

Mtg  ACIP Crime Program ‐ provide report and allocations on renewal quotes  AS 

     

Mtg  Sedgwick Workers’ Compensation Quarterly Claims Report  SCA 

06/21/23  Generate and email Auto ID Cards to Members  AS 

06/25/23  Generate Certificate Holder Renewal Certificates  AS 

06/28/23  Mail Renewal Certificates to Certificate Holders and email scan copy to Members  AS 

 

 
Page 477 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.13. 
 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION RFP  
& AD HOC COMMITTEE  

 
ACTION ITEM 

 
ISSUE: NCC members have requested the Program Administrators issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) 
for Workers” Compensation Claims Administration. The final draft of the RFP is still being prepared, 
with the goal to follow the timeline below for the process:   
 
Tentative Schedule of Events: 
 Issue RFP July 15, 2022 
 Questions Due July 29, 2022 
 Answers Provided August 5, 2022 
 Proposal due date  August 19, 2022 
 Ad Hoc Committee Review  August 29, 2022 
 Executive Committee Review September 22, 2022 
 Interview with Selected Firms (if needed) TBD 
 Board of Directors Review October 20, 2022  
 Selected Firm Notified October 2022  
 Board of Directors Approve Contract December 15, 2022 
 Services Begin with Awarded Firm July 1, 2023 
 
The Program Administrators are requesting the Board appoint volunteers to review the RFP and 
responses to make a recommendation to the Executive Committee and/or the Board. Rachel Ancheta 
from the City of Dixon is slated to be NCC Vice President and as such would Chair the Claims 
Committee and likely oversee the Committee’s work.  
 
A tentative schedule of events for the Ad Hoc Committee is provided below: 
 

Review draft of RFP as needed    July 11, 2022 
Review Responses       August 22-26, 2022 
Committee Meeting to Review    August 29 or 30 
Committee Recommendation to EC    By September 22, 2022 
Interviews if needed      TBD Week of 10/2 or 10/9   
Recommendation to Board      By October 20, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 478 of 526



  BACK TO AGENDA  
 

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 
 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.13. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Review and provide feedback regarding the RFP process and schedule and 
appoint volunteers to an Ad Hoc Committee to review the responses.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None expected from this item.  
 
 
BACKGROUND: NCCSIF has never changed Third Party Administrators for Workers’ 
Compensation, having Started with Bragg & Associates that was purchased by York and later Sedgwick 
Claims Management. Members have requested an RFP for a service period to begin July 1, 2023.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): None  

  

 
Page 479 of 526



BACK TO AGENDA  

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item H.14. 

ACI EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM  
RENEWAL ENGAGEMENT LETTER 

ACTION ITEM 

ISSUE: NorCal Cities has contracted with ACI Specialties for EAP benefits services for 18 years. The 
attached Engagement Letter will extend their services for another two years on behalf of 13 members.  

The renewal terms include a 3% increase in the rate, from $2.16 and $2.34 Per Employee Per Month to 
$2.22 & $2.41 PEPM for 3 or 6 sessions, respectively. The rate is guaranteed for two years from 2022-
2024. ACI is also now charging a fee for virtual trainings but have given NCCSIF a pool of 8 hours to 
utilize onsite or online services at no cost.   

ACI has also introduced new reports that will provide members more useful information on how the 
EAP is responding to employee concerns.  

RECOMMENDATION: Review and authorize Dave Warren to sign the renewal engagement letter.  

FISCAL IMPACT: None. Members are billed directly by ACI - $2.22 per employee for up to 3 
counseling sessions and $2.41 for up to 6 sessions in addition to the other services.  

BACKGROUND: ACI Specialty Benefits has provided EAP benefits to NorCal Cities for the 
past 18 years. ACI Specialty Benefits will provide employee assistance program (EAP) 
services, including assessment, referral, and short-term problem resolution.  

ATTACHMENT(S): ACI Agreement  

Page 480 of 526



NCCSIF EAP Service Renewal 2022 

March 28, 2022 

Dave Warren, President 

2180 Harvard Street, Suite 460 

Sacramento, CA 95815 

This letter is a confirmation of renewal for the EAP benefits offered by ACI Specialty Benefits for NCCSIF.  It 

has been a pleasure to provide service to your employees and their family members for the past 20 years. 

On behalf of the entire ACI staff, we appreciate your continued trust in ACI’s benefits and services. Please 

take a moment to review and confirm the renewal terms.  

Renewal Date July 1, 2022 

Renewal Term Two Years 

Programs Provided Employee Assistance Program 

Rate See Chart Below 

City Participants 

City of Anderson 3 Session $2.22 

City of Colusa 6 Session $2.41 

City of Corning 6 Session $2.41 

City of Lincoln 6 Session $2.41 

City of Jackson 6 Session $2.41 

City of Dixon 6 Session $2.41 

City of Folsom 3 Session $2.22 

City of Gridley 6 Session $2.41 

Page 481 of 526



City of Ione 3 Session $2.22 

City of Marysville 3 Session $2.22 

City of Red Bluff 6 Session $2.41 

City of Rio Vista 3 Session $2.22 

City of Willows 6 Session $2.41 

Town of Paradise 6 Session $2.41 

This Service Renewal is subject to the same terms and conditions as the Master Service Agreement. Non-

renewal notices must be sent in writing 120 days prior to termination date. Please find the updated Exhibit 

A which outlines the current service offerings attached to this Service Renewal. After reviewing the Service 

Renewal and Exhibit A, please sign and return this document. A fully executed copy will be provided to 

you for your files. If you have any questions or comments about this renewal, please contact your ACI 

Account Manager, Sasha Abrahms.  

_______________________________________________ ____________________ 

Keith Wasley, President Date 

ACI Specialty Benefits 

_______________________________________________ ____________________ 

Dave Warren, President Date 

NCCSIF 

Page 482 of 526



CUSTOMER SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This CUSTOMER SERVICES AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of July 1, 2022, is entered into by and between 
ACI Enterprises, Inc, dba ACI Specialty Benefits, a California corporation with its principal place of business located 
at 5405 Morehouse Drive, Suite 200, San Diego, CA 92121, AllOne Health Resources, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation 
with its principal place of business located at 100 North Pennsylvania Avenue, Wilkes-Barre PA 18701, (collectively 
referred to herein as “Company”) and NCCSIF, a California corporation with its principal place of business located at 
2180 Harvard Street, Suite460, Sacramento, CA 95815, (“Customer”). 

ARTICLE I. PREAMBLE 

WHEREAS, Customer wishes to engage the Company to provide employee assistance services and the Company 
wishes to provide such services; and 

WHEREAS, Customer desires to engage the Company to render services upon certain terms and conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals listed above and the mutual promises, covenants, agreements 
and undertakings of the parties set forth below, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the parties, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows: 

ARTICLE II. ALLONE HEALTH RESPONSIBILITIES 

2.01 Description of Services. The Company shall provide services to Customer pursuant to the attached Statement 
of Work/Fee Schedule (Exhibit A), which is incorporated herein by reference, (sometimes collectively referred to as 
“Services”). The Company will deliver the Services in any country, territory, city or area specified by Customer, unless 
the delivery of Services would be prohibited or limited by the U.S. Department of Treasury, Office of Foreign Assets 
Control (“OFAC”) or other applicable trade sanctions. 

2.02 The Company’s Intellectual Property. The Agreement is not a work-for-hire agreement.  The Company retains 
exclusive right, title and interest in intellectual property developed, delivered or used in the performance of the 
Agreement.  Neither the Agreement nor any Statement of Work changes the ownership of any pre-existing materials. 
Customer shall have no ownership interest in software used by the Company.  All work product generated or 
acquired by the Company shall be the exclusive property of the Company.  Work product shall include all clinical 
data and supporting records and other information.  All such work product is confidential pursuant to Article 3 of 
the Agreement. 

ARTICLE III. CONFIDENTIALITY 

3.01 Confidential Information. “Confidential Information” means information or data of a Disclosing Party 
concerning its business operations, methods and strategies, financial condition, technology or prospects, in any form 
or medium (including writings, drawings and electronically stored information and data), whether or not marked or 
labeled as “confidential.” In addition, a Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information also includes: (i) protected health 
information; (ii) Business information and data and; (iii) technical information and data or trade secrets; (iv) 
Intellectual property (“IP”) (for example, inventions, discoveries, designs, methods, processes and ideas (whether or 
not patented or patentable), logos, trade names, trademarks, and service marks (whether or not registered), mask 
works, works of authorship (whether copyrighted or copyrightable); and (v) all tangible manifestations (however 
embodied) of information or data referred to in clauses (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) above (for example, computer software, 
firmware, scripts or objects, hardware, programmer’s notes, databases, manuals, training manuals and materials, 
memoranda, reports, drawings, sketches, flowcharts, models, prototypes, files, films, records or forms).  

3.02 Receiving Party. A party that acquires knowledge of the other party’s (a “Disclosing Party”) Confidential 
Information is considered the “Receiving Party.” The Receiving Party shall keep Confidential Information in 
confidence using the same degree of care as the Receiving Party uses with its own Confidential Information or a 
reasonable degree of care, whichever is greater. The Receiving Party will not use, exploit, disseminate, disclose or 
divulge Confidential Information to any person, firm, corporation, partnership, association or other entity, without 

Page 483 of 526



Member Customer Services Agreement 
Page 2 of 8 

the prior written consent of the Disclosing Party. 

3.03 Applicability of Confidentiality. A Receiving Party’s is not required to hold a Disclosing Party’s information or 
data “confidential” if the information or data: (i) becomes public through no act or omission of the Receiving Party; 
(ii) was known to the Receiving Party prior to disclosure by the Disclosing Party; (iii) becomes known to the Receiving
Party through a third party without the Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information; (iv) is required to be disclose
pursuant to judicial or governmental judgment, writ, decree, or order; or (v) becomes relevant to the Receiving Party
in any claim, demand, suit, action or proceeding instituted or defended by it in connection with the enforcement of
its right or obligations. If the Receiving Party is required to disclose Confidential Information as contemplated in
Article III, Section 3.03(iv), the Receiving Party may disclose only such information as, in the opinion of counsel, is
legally required. The Receiving Party shall provide Disclosing Party, to the extent reasonably possible, advance notice
to allow the Disclosing Party to seek, at its own expense, a protective order. The Receiving Party shall, at the
Disclosing Party’s expense, reasonably cooperate with the Disclosing Party’s efforts to seek such a protective order.

3.04 Retention. The Company shall retain, for its own general analytic purposes, after termination of the Agreement, 
de-identified aggregate data that is: (i) compiled from the raw data disclosed by Customer to the Company; or (ii) 
compiled from raw data collected from Customer’s employees or their health care providers. 

3.05 Information Security Program. The Company maintains an information security program to protect personally 
identifiable information. The information security program includes administrative, technical and physical 
safeguards: (a) to ensure security and confidentiality; (b) to protect information against any anticipated threats or 
hazards to security and integrity; and (c) to protect information against unauthorized access to or use that could 
result in harm, liability or inconvenience to Customer or to its employees. The Company will report breaches of 
security to Customer. 

ARTICLE IV. TERM, PAYMENT AND TERMINATION 

4.01 Term. The Agreement commences on the effective date set forth on Exhibit A (“Effective Date”) and ends at 
5:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time on June 30, 2024, or until terminated sooner pursuant to Article IV, Section 4.03 of 
the Agreement (the “Term”). The Agreement automatically renews for two (2) year terms unless written notice is 
provided at least 120 days prior to the expiration date or any extension or renewal thereof. 

(________________________) BY INITIALING HERE, CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT 
HAS RECEIVED A COPY OF, READ AND UNDERSTANDS THE 
FOREGOING AUTOMATIC RENEWAL DISCLOSURE. 

4.02 Payment. In consideration for the Company rendering the Services, Customer agrees to pay the Company such 
amounts as set forth in Exhibit A (“Service Fees”). These fees will be fixed for the Initial 12-month term.  Any other 
adjustments to fees will go into effect each successive term on or after the anniversary date at the Company’s sole 
discretion, but not to exceed the Consumer Price Index (CPI) or rate of inflation at that time, unless otherwise 
mutually agreed upon. The Company will send Customer an annual invoice for all contracts under $4,000 annually, 
quarterly for contracts up to $10,000 annually or monthly for contracts over $10,000 annually, for services rendered 
to Customer.  Customer shall make payment upon receipt of the invoice. If the invoice is not paid within fifteen (15) 
days following the invoice date, the invoice amount accrues interest at a rate of 1.25% per month. However, 
Customer’s total interest liability will not exceed the limits imposed by law.  If the Company charges Customer for 
interest in excess of the limits imposed by law, the Company will credit Customer the excess interest on the 
Company’s next invoice.  If the excess interest is greater than the amount of the Company’s next invoice, the 
Company will refund the Customer the amount of excess interest owed above the next invoice amount. 

4.03 Termination. Either party may terminate the Agreement if the other party materially breaches the Agreement 
and fails to cure such breach within sixty (60) days after receipt of written notice of such breach from the other 
party. Termination shall not prejudice any other remedy to which the terminating party may be entitled at law, in 
equity or under the Agreement.  

Initials of Authorized Signatory 

Page 484 of 526



Member Customer Services Agreement 
Page 3 of 8 

4.04 Effect of Termination. The Company is entitled to full compensation for work performed prior to termination. 

4.05 Indebtedness. If Customer is unable to pay its debts as they become due, the Company may terminate the 
Agreement at its discretion and proceed to enforce Customer’s performance.  This section supersedes all prior 
contract terms and conditions. 

4.06 Bankruptcy. The Company may terminate the Agreement and proceed to enforce performance by Customer  if 
Customer: (i) ceases doing business as a going concern; (ii) makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; (iii) 
admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as they become due; (iv) files a voluntary petition in bankruptcy; or (v) 
files a petition seeking for itself any reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, 
dissolution or similar arrangements under any present or future statute, law or regulation or files an answer 
admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against it in any such proceeding, consents to or acquiesces in 
the appointment of a custodian, trustee, receiver, liquidator of it or of all or any substantial part of its asset or 
properties, or if within 45 days after the commencement of any proceeding against Customer seeking reorganization, 
similar arrangements, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution or similar relief under any present or future statue, law 
or regulation, such proceedings shall not have been dismissed, or if within 45 days after appointment of any 
custodian, trustee, receiver or liquidator of it or all or any substantial part of its assets and properties without 
Customer’s consent or acquiescence, and the appointment has not been vacated. 

ARTICLE V. INDEMNIFICATION 

5.01 Mutual Indemnification. Each party shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the other party and their 
respective parent, affiliates, subsidiaries, directors, officers, employees, representatives and agents (“Indemnified 
Party”), from and against any and all liabilities, claims, suits, demands, causes of action, costs, damages, fines, 
penalties and expenses incurred by Indemnified Party (including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ and 
experts’ fees and disbursements) arising out of or resulting from the negligence of the other party. 

ARTICLE VI. WARRANTY, DISCLAIMER AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

6.01 Warranty. The Company will use commercially reasonable efforts to perform the Services in a professional 
manner, consistent with industry standards.  Except as described in the Agreement or a Statement of Work, the 
Company makes no other warranties. The Company warranties extend solely to Customer. This warranty gives 
Customer specific legal rights, and Customer may also have other rights, which vary from state to state. Except for 
non-payment, neither party will bring a legal action under the Agreement more than two (2) years after the cause 
of action arose. 

6.02 Disclaimer. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW AND AS PROVIDED HEREIN, ALLONE HEALTH DISCLAIMS ALL 
IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE FOR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES. 

6.03 Limitation of Liability. IN NO EVENT SHALL ALLONE HEALTH BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL 
OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCURRED BY CUSTOMER OR ANY THIRD PARTY, WHETHER IN AN ACTION IN 
CONTRACT OR TORT, EVEN IF THE OTHER PARTY OR ANY OTHER PERSON HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF 
SUCH DAMAGES. ALLONE HEALTH'S LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES HEREUNDER SHALL IN NO EVENT EXCEED THE 
AMOUNT OF FEES PAID BY CUSTOMER, FOR THE PERIOD OF 12 MONTHS PRECEDING THE INCIDENT GIVING RISE TO 
SUCH DAMAGES, UNDER THE AGREEMENT FOR THE RELEVANT SERVICES.  

ARTICLE VII. THIRD PARTY INFORMATION/LIMITATIONS OF RESPONSIBILITY 

7.01 Responsibility and Liability for Third Parties. It is specifically understood and agreed by the parties that neither 
party assumes responsibility or liability for the accuracy, completeness, propriety, necessity or advisability of the 
medical information which is provided to the Company or Customer by or from third parties. “Third Parties” as used 

Page 485 of 526



Member Customer Services Agreement 
Page 4 of 8 

herein shall include, but not be limited to, the following sources: counselors, affiliates, clinics or any other entities 
providing information to the Company or Customer. 

7.02 Limitations of Responsibility. The parties understand and agree that the Company shall have no responsibility 
of any kind to Customer and any individual employee of Customer or any other person, firm, corporation, or entity 
for any of the following: (1) Verification of any individual’s eligibility, or entitlement to group medical/health plan 
coverage, or coverage contained within or excluded from said group health plan; (2) Verification for any participant’s 
provider’s network status; (3) Payment of any individual’s medical, hospital, or other bills, debts, obligations, or 
other liabilities of any kind relating to medical or surgical treatment of confinement; (4) Benefit decisions – the role 
of the Company being limited to making clinical recommendations to a health benefit plan’s named fiduciary; and 
(5) Notification to any individual of an adverse benefit determination based upon, or related to, a clinical
recommendation by the Company.

7.03 Customer Obligations. The Company shall not be liable for any obligation, indebtedness or liability of Customer, 
whether now existing or hereafter arising, and the Company shall not, by entering into the Agreement, assume or 
become liable for any of such obligations, indebtedness or liabilities. 

ARTICLE VIII. AUTHORIZATION FOR COMMUNICATIONS 

8.01 Communications. Customer shall not distribute descriptive materials of any type which reference the various 
components of the services provided by the Company without first submitting such proposed materials to the 
Company for review and obtaining prior written authorization from the Company. Customer further expressly 
acknowledges that any and all intellectual property rights of the Company, its successors and/or assigns, shall remain 
the sole and exclusive property of the Company, its successors and/or assigns consistent and in accordance with the 
prior approval obtained by the Company from the United States Patent and Trademark Office and any other available 
remedies or protection(s) available unto the Company. 

8.02 Irreparable Harm to the Company. It is further expressly agreed that a breach by Customer of any provision of 
the preceding covenant will cause the Company irreparable harm which cannot be adequately compensated by 
monetary relief.  Accordingly, in the event of any such breach, the Company can and will be entitled to equitable 
relief (including but not limited to temporary restraining orders, preliminary and/or permanent injunctions), in 
addition to any other remedies available at law or in equity now or hereinafter in force. 

ARTICLE IX. GENERAL PROVISIONS 

9.01 Notice. All notices and other communications required or permitted hereunder or in connection herewith, shall 
be deemed to have been duly given if they are in writing and delivered personally or sent by registered or certified 
mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid. They shall be addressed as follows: 

AllOne Health Resources, Inc. 
Attn: Legal Department 
100 North Pennsylvania Avenue 
Wilkes-Barre PA 18701-3503 

Customer: 
NCCSIF 
Attn: President 
2180 Harvard Street, Suite 460 
Sacrament, CA 95815 

Provided, however, that either party may change such party’s address by written notice of such change in accordance 
with this Section to the other party. 

Page 486 of 526



Member Customer Services Agreement 
Page 5 of 8 

9.02 Governing Law. The Agreement shall be governed by and construed under the laws of the California, without 
giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws thereof. If the Agreement includes the sale of goods, the rights and 
obligations of the parties shall not be governed by the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International 
Sales of Goods (CISG) and its application is excluded. Additionally, the parties agree that any legal action or 
proceeding brought by or against them under this agreement shall be exclusively brought in the courts in and for 
San Diego County, California, and San Diego Division of the United States District Court for the Southern District of 
California and that the parties submit to such jurisdiction and waive any and all objections which they may have with 
respect to the venue of the above courts. 

9.03 Entire Agreement. The Agreement, together with the exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire 
understanding and agreement between the parties with respect to the provisions of the Services and supersedes 
any and all prior agreements whether written or oral, that may exist between the parties solely with respect to such 
subject matter. Article I and Exhibit A are incorporated into the Agreement by reference. When international 
services are contemplated by the Agreement, Exhibit B is incorporated into the Agreement by reference. 

9.04 Modifications and Amendments. No modification, alteration, change or waiver of any provision of the 
Agreement shall be valid unless it is in writing and signed by the party against whom it is sought to be enforced.  No 
waiver at any time of any provision of the Agreement shall be deemed a waiver of any other provision of the 
Agreement at that time or a waiver of that or any other provision at any other time.  

9.05 Statement of Work/Fee Schedule Amendments. Notwithstanding Article IX, Section 9.04, Customer may 
request the Company to make changes to its Statement of Work/Fee Schedule or to perform additional Services 
(“Modified Services”).  Upon such request by Customer, the Company shall submit in writing a proposal for 
accomplishing the Modified Services and any associated increase or decrease in the Service Fees.  If Customer elects 
to have the Company perform the Modified Services, the Company shall prepare an amended Statement of 
Work/Fee Schedule that describes and outlines the terms of the Modified Services to be performed.  Such amended 
Statement of Work/Fee Schedule shall be mutually agreed upon, signed and dated by both parties. The Company 
shall not be obligated to perform the Modified Services prior to the execution of the amended Statement of 
Work/Fee Schedule. 

9.06 Assignment and Third-Party Beneficiaries. Neither party may assign the Agreement without the expressed 
written consent of the other party, which consent shall not be unreasonably conditioned, withheld or delayed. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, either party may assign the Agreement to its parent, a subsidiary or an affiliated 
company without the expressed written consent of the other party. Furthermore, either party may assign the 
Agreement to a third party solely in connection with a sale or other disposition of substantially all the assets of the 
assigning party’s business without the expressed written consent of the other party. The Agreement does not, nor 
is it intended to, create any rights, benefits or interests in any third party, person or organization. 

9.07 Captions and Headings. Captions and headings contained herein are solely for convenience of reference and 
shall not constitute a part of, or affect the interpretation or construction of, the Agreement. 

9.08 Waiver and Severability. The waiver by either party of any default or breach of the Agreement shall not 
constitute a waiver of any other or subsequent default or breach. If any provision of the Agreement shall be deemed 
partially or wholly unenforceable, such unenforceability shall not affect the remaining provisions hereof and such 
affected provision shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.  

9.09 Attorney’s Fees, Costs and Expenses. If any action at law or in equity is necessary to enforce or interpret the 
terms of the Agreement, each party shall bear its own attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses incurred in maintaining 
such action in addition to any other relief that may be deemed proper.  

Page 487 of 526



Member Customer Services Agreement 
Page 6 of 8 

9.10 Counterparts and Facsimile Signatures or PDF Signatures. The Agreement may be executed in counterparts, 
each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  
Customer and the Company agree that transmission to each other of the Agreement with the transmitting party’s 
facsimile signature or portable document format (“PDF”) signature shall suffice to bind the party signing and 
transmitting same to the Agreement in the same manner as if the Agreement with an original signature had been 
delivered. 

9.11 Independent Contractor Status. For purposes of the Agreement and all the Services to be provided hereunder, 
the Company shall not be considered a partner, co-venturer, agent, employee or representative of Customer, but 
shall remain in all respects an independent contractor, and neither party shall have any right or authority to make 
or undertake any promise, warranty or representation, to execute any contract or otherwise to assume any 
obligation or responsibility in the name of or on behalf of the other party. 

9.12 Solicitation of Employees. Customer agrees that during the term of the Agreement and for a period of twenty-
four (24) months commencing on the date that such term expires or is terminated, Customer shall not for any reason, 
either directly or indirectly, on Customer’s own behalf or in the service or on behalf of others, solicit, recruit or 
attempt to persuade any person to terminate such person’s employment or consulting arrangement with the 
Company, or an affiliated company, whether or not such person is a full-time employee or whether or not such 
employment is pursuant to a written agreement or is at-will. 

9.13 Survival. The provisions of Articles III, IV, V, VI, VII, VIII and IX shall survive the expiration or sooner termination 
of the term of the Agreement. 

9.14 Force Majeure. The Company shall not be considered in default of the performance of its obligations under the 
Agreement to the extent that performance of its obligations is prevented or delayed by any cause beyond its 
reasonable control, including, but not limited to, acts of God, acts or omissions of governmental authorities, strikes, 
lockouts or other industrial disturbances, acts of public enemies, wars, blockades, riots, civil disturbances, 
pandemics, epidemics, floods, hurricanes, tornadoes and any other similar acts, events or omissions. 

9.15 Advertising and Public Announcement. Customer agrees that the Company may: (1) use Customer’s name in 
any form of publicity; (2) release to the public any information relating to the Services to be performed hereunder; 
and (3) otherwise disclose or advertise that the Customer has entered into the Agreement. 

9.16 Subcontracting. The Company provides short-term, in-the-moment mental health counseling, among other 
services, which may require privacy, time sensitivity and confidentiality in the delivery of services. This service 
delivery model relies on the fact that Company may in its sole discretion, from time to time, outsource services to a 
mental health counselor or other third party when such outsourcing is deemed to enhance the quality of the service. 

9.17 ERISA Disclaimer. The parties acknowledge and agree that the Company will provide services to Customer under 
the Agreement. In providing such service, the parties agree that the Company will not exercise any discretionary 
authority over the management or disposition of assets of any welfare benefit plan (as such term is defined in the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”).  The Company’s duties will be limited to providing 
certain contractually agreed upon services as herein set forth.  Therefore, the parties agree that the Company is not 
a fiduciary (as such term is defined by ERISA Section 3(21)) with regard to Customer’s Health Benefits or any Health 
and Welfare Benefit Plan. The Company will provide services by using its employees who are unfamiliar with and 
have no responsibility to determine or verify the coverage requirements of any specific benefit plan.  In the event 
that knowledge of the Company shall be a prerequisite to imposing a duty upon or to determine the liability of the 
Company under the Agreement or under any statute regulating the conduct of the Company, the Company will not 
be deemed to have participated in any act or omission of any fiduciary (as such term is defined under ERISA) with 
regard to the coverage requirements of any welfare benefit plan as a result of performing its contractually agreed 
upon duties hereunder. 

Page 488 of 526



Member Customer Services Agreement 
Page 7 of 8 
 

9.18 Privacy Protection Standard. With regard to private health information and other personal information, the 
parties shall comply, to the extent applicable, with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 
(“HIPAA”) and the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (“HITECH”) and any all applicable 
laws and regulations including the European Commission Data Protection Directive (95/46/EC), and the European 
Commission Data Protection in the Electronic Communications Sector Directive (2002/58/EC). The parties shall 
adhere to adequate safeguards required for the international transfers of personal data outside of the European 
Economic Area. The customer hereby agrees that (i) the Company and its subcontractors will transfer data outside 
of European Union in accordance with standards set forth by the European Union laws, the EU model clauses and/or 
the EU-US Privacy Shield framework for transatlantic data transmission as adopted;  (ii) the Company is authorized 
to process and transfer data between its offices constituting the Company’s Group of Companies, and between any 
sub-contractor(s), partners and affiliates engaged by the Company to perform part or all of the Services thereby 
allowing global access to the data on a ‘need-to–know’ basis in order to perform Services under the Agreement in 
the countries and territories specified by Customer; and (iii) the Company shall not disclose to anyone private 
information of data subjects as defined in HIPAA other than in the aggregate reports or in de-identified form without 
the written consent of data subject unless otherwise required or permitted by law. 
 
9.19 Anti-Corruption Compliance. When international services are contemplated by the Agreement, the parties shall 
conduct themselves in an ethical, lawful, businesslike and professional manner in performance of the Agreement 
and shall comply with all applicable laws, regulations and directives that may apply to them. Each party shall 
reasonably assist the other party to assure such compliance at all times during the term of the Agreement. Without 
limiting the foregoing and for avoidance of doubt, Customer shall obey all applicable laws or regulations in the 
relevant jurisdiction and shall also obey the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”) (15 USC §§ 78dd-1, et seq.) 
and any similar anti-bribery provisions or regulations including the UK Bribery Act 2010. 
 
9.20 Trade Sanctions and Export Control. When international services are contemplated by the Agreement, the 
parties agree not to use or otherwise export or re-export anything exchanged or transferred between them pursuant 
to the Agreement except as authorized by laws of the United States. In particular, but without limitation, items or 
services exchanged may not be exported or re-exported (a) into any U.S. sanctioned countries or (b) to anyone on 
the U.S. Treasury Department’s list of Specially Designated Nationals or the U.S. Department of Commerce Denied 
Person’s List or Entity List. If the Agreement involves provision of Services outside of the United States, the parties 
shall comply with all applicable laws (e.g. United Kingdom, Canadian, European Union trade sanctions and export 
control laws and regulations). 
 
9.21 Record Storage and Delivery. Upon termination of the Agreement and to the extent that such records exist, the 
Company shall compile, collect and deliver to Customer all Customer records subject to the Agreement as soon as is 
practicable after such termination. Customer agrees to accept delivery upon receipt of such Customer records and 
pay the Company any and all reasonable and customary storage, shipping and handling fees and expenses upon 
receipt of such record delivery and invoicing. Customer understands that any federal and/or state law, rule, 
regulation or policy requiring the safekeeping of records for a prescribed period of time, after termination of the 
Agreement, is the sole responsibility of Customer and not an obligation of the Company. 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]  

 
Page 489 of 526



Member Customer Services Agreement 
Page 8 of 8 

SIGNATURE PAGE 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and delivered the Agreement as of the date first above written. 

ACI ENTERPRISES, INC. 
ALLONE HEALTH RESOURCES, INC. 

__________________________________________________ 
Keith Wasley 
President 

NCCSIF 

__________________________________________________ 
Authorized Signatory 

Name: Dave Warren 

Title: President 

Telephone: (916) 643-2700

Email: dwarren@cityofplacerville.org 

Copyright © 2021-2026 AllOne Health Resources, Inc. All rights reserved. (v. AOHLD 2020-12-14) 

Page 490 of 526

mailto:dwarren@cityofplacerville.org


EXHIBIT A 
Member Customer Services Agreement 

Statement of Work/Fee Schedule 

Items to Add to Standard Statement of Work/Fee Schedule 

Effective Date: July 1, 2022 

Employee Counts: 933 for all member cities (subject to updates from each city) 

[*Customer agrees to provide an accurate employee count to Company on the Effective Date and on the first of the 
month thereafter. Customer acknowledges that Company has based its pricing model for the Agreement on an 
accurate employee count provided to Company by Customer on the Effective Date. If the accurate employee count 
provided by Customer to Company on the Effective Date decreases at any point during the Term and any renewals 
terms by ten percent (10%), Company may adjust its pricing on a pro-rata basis accordingly without further notice 
to Customer.] 

Pricing: $ 2.22 PEPM – 3 session model 

$2.41 PEPM – 6 session model 

Services:  SEE ATTACHED 

Page 491 of 526



For nearly 40 years, ACI Specialty Benefits has provided a top-ranked employee assistance program (EAP) that 
improves mental health, reduces stress and maximizes business performance.  

With a unique approach to whole person care and powerful workforce solutions, ACI’s EAP reduces the need 
for more expensive health care resources, supports risk management, improves workforce resilience, and helps 
organizations achieve Healthiest Company and Best Place to Work rankings. Driven by the strongest benefits 
technology, ACI remains powered by people, not bots. Every phone call, email, text and app request is 
answered by real people, ready to respond. 

Award-winning EAP 
Technology: 

• HIPAA-compliant video chat
sessions and text therapy

• 24/7 Program access – live
answer call, text, email,
mobile app, web services

• 25% Utilization increases after
EAP promotional campaigns

2025 Workforce 
Offerings: 

• Comprehensive work-life,
personal concierge and
financial wellness referrals

• Proactive critical incident
response

• All family members covered–
regardless of location or
relationship

Dedicated Account 
Management Team: 

• Record-breaking EAP
utilization, double national
averages

• Year-round program
promotion and mental health
awareness campaigns

• 92% of users say ACI’s EAP
improved quality of life

INSERT LOGO HERE 

Page 492 of 526



ACI will provide comprehensive EAP services including 
clinical assessment, referral and short-term problem 
resolution, as well as integrated work-life referrals. 

Clinical Assessment and Mental Health Sessions 
• Telephonic assessment, referral, and short-term

problem resolution
• Face-to-face mental health sessions
• Video chat and text therapy sessions
• Life Coaching to assist with personal and

professional goals
• Licensed provider network of over 55,000

nationwide and customized for client location
• All contact is confidential and compliant with

HIPAA, ACA and relevant state and federal
regulations

Clinical support for any issue affecting emotional well-
being, including but not limited to: 
• Emotional wellness
• Stress management
• Family/relationship/pet issues
• Anxiety and depression
• Coping with grief
• Anger management
• Substance abuse

Legal and Financial Wellness 
• Telephonic legal assistance for a number of issues

per year. Includes one 60-minute in-office or
telephonic consultation with local attorney and
25% discount for continued services.

• Telephonic financial assistance for a number of
issues per year. Includes optional 30-day financial
coaching benefit with 90-day action plan.

• Identity theft prevention/recovery. Includes 60-
minute consultation.

Work-Life Referrals and Resources 
• Child care, elder care, pet care and education

referrals
• Referrals and resources for Personal Services and

Community-based Resources
• Personal Assistant referrals such as travel, errands,

and professional services
• Medical Advocates available to assist in

interpreting medical information related to claims,
coverage, and medical diagnosis

• Access to My Assistance member portal, a library of
work-life topics and resources

EAP Clinical Services and Work-Life Benefits 

Page 493 of 526



ACI partners with clients to tackle today’s workforce challenges, support HR goals, build resiliency in times of 
stress, and maximize the performance potential of the entire organization.  

HR Support Services 
• Unlimited clinical consulting for any workforce challenge or employee concern
• Management Referral Program to professionally address performance issues
• Consultation for Substance Abuse Case Management and Drug-free Workplace Act compliance

ACI’s Critical Incident Response (CIR) supports organizations in the event of a natural disaster, workplace 
tragedy or critical incident: 

• Unlimited telephonic consultation with ACI’s Crisis Response Team
• Critical Incident Stress Debriefing (CISD) sessions included as part of annual pool of hours for onsite services
• 24/7 access to ACI’s Disaster Preparedness and Crisis Resource Center landing page featuring information,

videos, and emergency resources

ACI offers comprehensive training services in flexible 
formats to drive EAP program awareness and support 
HR goals. 

Virtual and Onsite Training Services: 
• Unlimited employee orientation webinars
• 24/7 access to training and orientation videos on

ACI’s YouTube Channel
• Library of training topics for any organizational

need
• Just-Do-It training templates

ACI provides diverse program implementation and promotional materials with best practices in employee 
benefits communication to achieve maximum utilization rates: 

• Digital Marketing Announcement Campaign: Kick-off announcement email, EAP orientation video, library of
EAP promotional flyers, summary plan description, training and management referral materials

• Year-round EAP Promotion: Monthly email newsletter, mental health awareness campaigns, social media
marketing content, video marketing with ACI’s library of EAP promotional videos and 24/7 access to AllOne
Health’s Monthly Mental Health Blog

• Assistance Program Leadership Toolkit: ACI creates a toolkit for management that includes all EAP
promotional materials, training materials, account management team contact information, and
management referral information for convenient access

Printed materials are available at an additional cost.  

Training and Orientations 

Program Promotion 

HR Support Services 

Page 494 of 526



ACI Specialty Benefits is passionate about breaking 
down all barriers to program access with industry-
leading technology: 

• 24/7/365 access by text, email, online, and always
live-answer phone

• HIPAA-compliant video chat sessions
• HIPAA-compliant text therapy
• Employee Assistance Program Benefits Landing

Page

Resources: 
• Assistance Program Leadership Toolkit for HR and

management
• Library of content on the AllOne Health Blog

ACI’s dedicated Account Management Team provides seamless program integration with each client’s 
existing capabilities and culture. 

Program Implementation 
• Stakeholders Meeting: ACI partners with client to establish targeted program goals
• Engagement Strategy: Promotional plan customized to fit client culture and needs
• Plan Execution: Proactive communication and implementation led by Account Management Team
• Analysis and Consultation: ACI works with client to analyze reports and maximize positive outcomes

Reporting 
• Utilization reports provided including demographic data, key metrics, usage trends and program

engagement activities

Each employee’s definition of family is ACI’s definition of family. EAP services are all-inclusive, with no barriers to 
access for family members, regardless of location or relationship. 

• All Employees
• All Dependents: Spouse, domestic partners, and all family members regardless of location

Program Access and Technology 

Dedicated Account Management 

Eligibility 

Page 495 of 526



  

EAP & Work-Life Session Model Employee Count Per Employee Per Month 

Employee Assistance 
Program  

3 sessions per year or 6* 
sessions per year 

N/A $2.22 or $2.41 

 

 
Rate: 
• Rate guaranteed for 2 years 
• Rate assume no broker commission  

Onsite: 
• 8 hours per year to be used for onsite orientations, onsite/virtual trainings, onsite/virtual Critical Incident 

Stress Debriefing (CISD) services, onsite/virtual Health Fair or other services. Once the pool has been 

exhausted, further organizational services are available at an additional cost. 
• CISD and Layoff/RIF Support includes two onsite hours per incident  
• Facilitator/Provider travel fees are included in pool of 8 hours  
• Attendance minimums may apply to webinars and onsite services 

• Due to the extensive nature of responding to data risk assessment questions and requirements, ACI 

Specialty Benefits requires 30 days for completion and may charge an additional fee, to be determined 

based on scope of response required 
Materials: 
• ACI Specialty Benefits provides unlimited virtual marketing materials from ACI’s library of templates. Printed 

and custom materials, which includes translation into languages other than English, are available at an 
additional cost. 

Compliance: 
• *Six session model limited to 3 sessions per 6 months for CA employees 

 

 
ACI provides a variety of services over and above package inclusions, available per the fee schedule below. 
 

Type of Service 
Fee-for-service  

(Over contracted hours) 

Onsite Orientations $350 per hour 

Onsite or Virtual EAP Seminars or Trainings $350 per hour 

Webinar Minimum Participation (5 Attendees) Not Met $250 per hour 

Late Cancellation Fee (Less than 3 business days) $250 per hour 

Onsite or Virtual Health Fairs $200 per hour 

Onsite or Virtual Critical Incident Stress Debriefing (CISD) $325 per hour 

CISD Cancellation Fee If Provider Has Been Confirmed $325 per hour 

Onsite or Virtual Lay-Off/RIF Support $325 per hour 

Rate Summary 

Program Assumptions 

Additional Fees 

 
Page 496 of 526



Lay-Off/RIF Cancellation Fee If Provider Has Been Confirmed $325 per hour 

Formal Management Referrals (Face-to-Face for Telephonic Models) $450 flat fee 

Substance Abuse Professional (SAP) Cases $950 flat fee 

Fitness for Duty Evaluation Cases $2,250 flat fee 

Conflict Resolution/Mediation Contact ACI for Pricing 

Executive Coaching Contact ACI for Pricing 

Page 497 of 526



BACK TO AGENDA  

Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Board of Directors Meeting 

June 23, 2022 

A Public Entity Joint Powers Authority 

c/o Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. | 2180 Harvard St., Ste. 460, Sacramento, CA 95815 | Phone: 916.643.2700 | Fax: 916.643.2750 

Agenda Item I. 

INFORMATION ITEMS 

INFORMATION ITEM 

ISSUE: The following items are being presented as information for NCCSIF members. 

RECOMMENDATION: None. This item is offered as information only. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None. 

BACKGROUND: None 

ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Glossary of Terms

2. NorCal Cities Organizational Chart

3. NorCal Cities Resource Contact Guide

4. Sedgwick Who’s Who in Claims - WC and Liability Contacts

5. 2022 CAJPA Conference September 13-16th 2022

6. CJPRMA Ethics in Public Service Webinar July 12, 2022

7. Travel Mileage Reimbursement form

Page 498 of 526



Term Definition 
4850 Labor Code Section 4850 provide a special benefit for certain public employees who 

are essentially in safety and law enforcement positions. 

AB 1234 Ethics Education for Local Officials 

AB 1825 Harassment Prevention Training for Supervisors 

Active Negligence The party that was negligent took an active part in doing whatever caused the 
damage. For example, a city digging a hole and someone falls in 

ACV (Actual Cash Value) The amount equal to the replacement cost minus depreciation of a damaged or stolen 
property at the time of the loss. It is the actual value for which the property could be 
sold, which is always less than what it would cost to replace it. 

Adhesion When one party has greater power over the other party in drafting the contract (i.e. 
the provisions of the contract are prepared by one party --the insurer. The other party 
the insured does not take part in the preparation of the contract). 

ATD (Aerosol Transmissible 
Diseases) 

An epidemiologically significant disease that is transmitted via droplet or airborne 
route. 

Aggregate The term used to describe the cumulative amount of all losses for a period of time. 

Aggregate Stop Loss A financial arrangement with a JPA’s excess carrier that caps the aggregate to a 
predetermined limit at which point the excess carrier would “drop down” and pay 
losses within the JPIA’s SIR, or pooled layer. 

AME (Agreed Upon Medical 
Examiner) 

A medical provider who has been certified by the Division of Workers’ Compensation 
by passing an administrative exam. An AME is selected (or agreed upon) by two 
parties in order to help resolve a dispute about a WC claim. 

Aleatory An insurance contract is aleatory meaning it is contingent on an uncertain event (a 
loss) that provides for unequal transfer of value between the parties. 

ACIP (Alliant Crime Insurance 
Program) 

Program offered by Alliant that created to bring the advantages of group purchase to 
public entities seeking very broad coverage for illegal acts committed by their 
employees while on the job. 

APIP (Alliant Property 
Insurance Program) 

The largest single property insurance placement in the world. Formed by Alliant 
Insurance Services in 1993 to meet the unique property insurance needs faced by 
public entities. 

ADA (American Disability Act) A federal law that prohibits discrimination against people with disabilities in 
employment, transportation, public accommodation, communications, and 
governmental activities. The ADA also establishes requirements for 
telecommunications relay services. For the U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission office (EEOC office) in your area, call 1-800-669- 4000 or 1-800-669-6820 
(TTY). 

Assessment company Providing primarily fire and windstorm insurance for small towns and farmers (charge 
members a pro rata share of losses at the end of each policy period) 

AIS (Associate in Insurance 
Services) 

Professional designation awarded by the Insurance Institute of America (IIA) upon 
successful completion of four national exams, one specifically designed for this 
program and the three examinations in the IIA Program in General Insurance. 

AGRIP (Association of 
Governmental Risk Pools) 

A national organization of JPA’s and public agency insurance pools. Formed for 
educational, information gathering and political lobbying purposes. 
Affiliated with PRIMA 

Page 499 of 526



ALCM (Associate in Loss 
Control Management) 

A professional designation earned after the successful completion of five national 
examinations given by the Insurance Institute of America (IIA). 

ARM (Associate in Risk 
Management) 

A nationally recognized educational program for dedicated risk management 
professionals, developed by the Insurance Institute of America. 

Attachment Point The dollar amount of a loss where the next layer of insurance begins to pay for the 
loss. 

Automobile Liability Designed to afford bodily injury and property damage liability coverage associated 
with owned, non-owned and hired vehicles. May include medical payments, 
uninsured/underinsured motorists’ liability coverages. 

Automobile Physical Damage Usually a first party coverage; however, some entities have “Bailment” or “care, 
custody and control” liability exposures such as garages, maintenance facilities that 
service vehicles of others, and parking lots 

Best’s Rating A rating system that indicates the operating and financial condition of insurance 
companies. Information is developed and published annually by the A. M. Best 
company. Generally one looks for a company with a rating of A VII or better. 

BOD/BD (Board of Directors) Body of elected or appointed members who jointly oversee the activities of a 
company or organization. 

BI (Business Interruption) A form of insurance coverage that replaces business income lost as a result of an 
event that interrupts the operations of the business, such as fire or a natural disaster. 

CAJPA (California Association 
of Joint Powers Authorities) 

Performs regulatory and legislative lobbying as well as accreditation of Joint Powers 
Authorities to promote the financial stability of JPAs. 

CIPRA (California Institute for 
Public Risk Analysis) 

Organized to develop, analyze and disseminate information on risk management in 
California’s public sector, especially self-insured entities and Joint Powers Authorities 

CJPRMA (California Joint 
Powers Risk Management 
Authority) 

CJPRMA provides the excess coverage to NCCSIF’s Liability Program 

CSAC (California State 
Association of Governments) 

CSAC is a lobbying, advocacy and service organization representing the state's 58 
counties at the state and federal level. Areas of focus include the state budget, 
health-care reform, corrections reform, transportation funding, water and climate 
change 

CSAC-EIA (California State 
Association of Governments - 
Excess Insurance Authority) 

CSAC-EIA is a member directed insurance risk sharing pool. The EIA has developed 
effective risk management solutions to help California public entities proactively 
control losses and prepare for different exposures. 

CSAC-EIA provides excess coverage to NCCSIF’s workers’ compensation pool. 

CalTIP (California Transit 
Insurance Pool) 

In 1986 the California Transit Association formed an insurance committee and 
authorized the preparation of a study of alternative methods of providing liability 
insurance coverage and began providing liability coverage in 1987. 

Catastrophic Loss Reserve A separate JPIA reserve account designated to pay losses without additional premium 
assessments to members. 

CIC (Certified Insurance 
Counselor) 

An insurance agent professional certification designation 

Page 500 of 526



CIH (Certified Industrial 
Hygienist) 

CIH is a professional whose job it is to protect the health of workers and the general 
public. A CIH is educated, trained and certified to recognize health hazards, test the 
environment for those hazards and determine when they pose a risk to those who 
might be exposed to them. 

CPCU (Chartered Property 
Casualty Underwriter) 

CPCU is a professional designation in property-casualty insurance and risk 
management 

Claim A demand of a right. In general a demand for compensatory damages, resulting from 
the actions of another. 

Claims Made A provision of an insurance policy that requires it to pay only for claims presented 
during the policy period with no regard for when the action causing the claim took 
place. Typically, a claims-made form also includes a retroactive date setting the 
earliest date for which a covered occurrence can happen. (Also see “Occurrence”) 

C&R (Compromise and 
Release) 

A type of settlement in which you receive a lump sum payment and become 
responsible for paying for your future medical care. A settlement like this must be 
approved by a workers' compensation judge. 

Conditional An insurance policy includes a number of conditions that both the insured and the 
insurer must comply with. (i.e. a covered loss occurs, the insured must notify the 
insurer about the loss and the insurer must use the valuation methods specified in the 
policy to settle the loss- thus the contact is conditional) 

Conditions Describe the responsibilities and the obligations of both the insured and the insurance 
company. 

CL (Confidence Level) An estimated probability that a given level of funding will be sufficient to pay actual 
claim costs. The higher a CL the greater the certainty the actuary has that losses will 
not exceed the dollar value used to attain the CL. 

Contract A legal agreement between two competent parties that promises a certain 
performance in exchange for a certain consideration. 

Contract of Utmost Good 
Faith 

As the insurance company relies on the truthfulness and integrity of the applicant 
when issuing a policy. In return, the insured relies on the company’s promise and 
ability to provide coverage and pay claims. 

CSP (Certified Safety 
Professional) 

CSP’s are qualified persons that are competent and trained to detect and appraise 
hazardous materials, procedures and activities of workers, materials and work 
environments. They are highly educated, trained and experienced in the field of 
safety. 

Cumis Counsel Cumis refers to a lawsuit against the Cumis Insurance Society in which they were 
found to have controlled the defense attorney to the detriment of their insured. The 
court determined that the Society should have assigned separate counsel to represent 
the exclusive interests of the insured. The need for cumis counsel arises in situations 
where there are significant coverage issues and defense counsel is conflicted between 
his duty to his client and the obligations to the insurance carrier. 

DE9 Quarterly Contribution Return and Report of Wages 

Declarations Contain information such as the name of the insured, the address, the amount of 
coverage provided, a description of property, and the cost of the policy 

Deductible It is that portion of each claim that is paid by the member at the time of loss. It is in 
addition to any premium already paid 

Defense A defendant's denial to a complaint or cause of action 

Page 501 of 526



Definitions Clarify the meaning of certain terms used in the policy 

Deposit Premium Premium required at the beginning of a policy period based on estimated costs 

DIC (Difference In Conditions) A specialized property insurance policy written to provide coverage for perils not 
covered in a standard property policy or in the JPIA’s Memorandum of Property 
Coverage. In particular, it is most often used to provide coverage for earthquake 
and/or flood losses. 

D&O (Directors and Officers) Liability insurance payable to the directors and officers of a company, or to the 
organization(s) itself, as indemnification (reimbursement) for losses or advancement 
of defense costs in the event an insured suffers such a loss as a result of a legal action 
brought for alleged wrongful acts in their capacity as directors and officers. 

Directors, Officers and 
Trustees Liability 

Intended to protect nonprofit board members, officers, and directors for faulty 
decisions, which imperil the entity. Usually written to include entity reimbursement 
for legal actions and personal liability of specific wrongdoers 

DOL (Date of Loss) Regarding property claims this is usually the date of occurrence of physical damage to 
property. In WC claims this is usually the date a physical injury occurred to an 
employee. 

Doctrine of reasonable 
expectations 

a policy includes coverages that an average person would reasonably expect it to 
include regardless of what the policy actually provides 

EQ (Earthquake) a sudden and violent shaking of the ground, sometimes causing great destruction, as 
a result of movements within the earth's crust or volcanic action 

Employers’ Liability Included as part of a worker’s compensation insurance policy. Covers liability for 
losses arising out of injuries to employees that are not covered by statutory workers’ 
compensation benefits 

EPL (Employment Practices 
Liability) 

Written to protect an entity from liabilities arising from allegations of discrimination, 
failure to promote or hire, harassment, ADA responsibilities, wrongful termination, 
etc. 

Endorsement Any change to the original policy (attached to the policy itself) 

Environmental Impairment 
Liability 

Also referred to as “Pollution” and “Pollution Legal” Liability; can be written to protect 
an entity from actions resulting from contamination of air, water, property. First party 
(damage to owned property) and third party (liability for damage to others) 
protections are often provided on the same policy 

E&O (Errors and Omissions 
Insurance) 

Professional liability insurance that protects companies and individuals against claims 
made by clients for inadequate work or negligent actions, usually includes both court 
costs and any settlements up to the amount specified on the insurance contract. 

Errors and Omissions Liability Excludes bodily injury and property damage; intended to afford protection for the 
“misfeasance, malfeasance or non-feasance” of public officials, employees and 
volunteers. May also include incidental medical personnel (paramedics), police and 
fire personnel, architects and plan checkers, engineers, and on-staff attorneys 

Excess Insurance Insurance that is purchased to provide higher limits than the primary policy or 
coverage provides 

Excess Loss The portion of a loss that is allocated to, or paid by, excess coverage 

Exclusions Describe the losses for which the insured is not covered 

EC (Executive Committee) Committee within that organization which has the authority to make decisions and 
ensures that these decisions are carried out. 

Page 502 of 526



Expected liabilities Outstanding reserves plus Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and Loss Adjustment 
Expense, discounted at the “Expected” Confidence Level (CL). 

Exposure A condition or situation that presents a possibility of loss (i.e. home built on flood 
plain is exposed to the possibility of flood damage). 

FASB (Financial Accounting 
Standards Board) 

FASB standards, known as generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), govern 
the preparation of corporate financial reports and are recognized as authoritative by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Fidelity Bonds Written as financial guarantees of employees’ honesty. Personnel with money- 
handling responsibilities are considered exposures to loss. 

Fiduciary Liability Covers board members, executives and other decision-making personnel with 
responsibilities for pension funds, retirement plans and employee benefit monies for 
negligent decisions that result in losses to such funds. 

GAAP (Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles) 

GAAP refers to the standard framework of guidelines for financial accounting used in 
any given jurisdiction; generally known as accounting standards or standard 
accounting practice 

GASB (Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board) 

GASB) is the source of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) used by State 
and Local governments in the United States. As with most of the entities involved in 
creating GAAP in the United States, it is a private, non- governmental organization. 

General Liability Written to protect the member's assets against liability for property damage of or 
bodily injury to third parties (see definition of parties). 

Hazard Anything that increases the chance of loss (also see Physical Hazard, Morale Hazard 
and Moral Hazard). 

HIPAA (Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability 
Act) 

A federal law enacted in 1996 that protects continuity of health coverage when a 
person changes or loses a job, that limits health-plan exclusions for preexisting 
medical conditions, that requires that patient medical information be kept private and 

IBNR (Incurred But Not 
Reported) 

It is that part of the total claims that is unknown at any point in time. At any time, 
NCCSIF has claims that have not been reported or recognized by NCCSIF or has claims 
recognized by NCCSIF but without knowledge of the cost when such claim is finally 
closed. NCCSIF uses an actuary to project the costs of these unknown liabilities to 
NCCSIF 
- the estimate of funds needed to pay for covered losses that have occurred but have
not been reported to the member and/or NCCSIF and expected future development
on claims already reported

Incurred Loss This is the ultimate expected total value of any claim. It includes the amount already 
paid, plus the estimated amount yet to be paid (reserves) 

IIPP (Injury Illness Prevention 
Program) 

Proactive process of assessing workplace hazards prior to an injury being reported 

Insurable Interest Before you can benefit from insurance; you must have a chance of financial loss or a 
financial interest in the property 

Insurance A contract or device for transferring risk from a person, business, or organization to 
an insurance company that agrees, in exchange for a premium, to pay for losses 
through an accumulation of premiums 

IRIC (Insurance Requirements 
in Contracts) 

In insurance, the insurance policy is a contract (generally a standard form contract) 
between the insurer and the insured, known as the policyholder, which determines 
the claims which the insurer is legally required to pay. 

Page 503 of 526



ISO (Insurance Services 
Office, Inc.) 

An insurance industry association that collects statistical data for rate making and 
develops standard insurance policy forms. ISO is the organization that drafted the 
standard commercial general liability (CGL) commonly used by insurers 

Insuring agreements State in general what is to be covered, also includes a description of what type of 
property is covered and the perils against which it is insured (i.e. the losses for which 
the insured will be indemnified) 

Inverse Condemnation Both the United States Constitution and the California Constitution require that a 
private citizen be compensated if property is "taken" by a public entity. When the 
property is taken proactively it is called eminent domain. When the property is taken 
"accidentally," without due course, it is called inverse condemnation. 
Negligence need not be proven. The claimant’s legal expenses are payable in addition 
to actual damages. 

Limit The most that will be paid in a loss 

LRP (Long Range Planning) Exercise aimed at formulating a long-term plan, to meet future needs estimated 
usually by extrapolation of present or known needs. It begins with the current status 
and charts out a path to the projected status, and generally includes short- term 
(operational or tactical plans) for achieving interim goals. 

LAE (Loss Adjustment 
Expense) 

Administrative expense to manage a claim to conclusion - Allocated LAE (ALEA) are 
expenses attributable to a specific claim such as attorney fees - Unallocated LAE 
(ULAE) are overhead expenses not attributable to a specific claim such as salaries or 
office rental. 

Loss Ratio The amount of loss divided by the amount of premium, contributions, payroll or 
property values. 

Master Plan Documents A document issued by a JPA defining the structure, rights and obligations of the 
participants and procedures of an insurance or self- funded program 

MMI (Maximum Medical 
Improvement) 

When an injured employee’s condition is well stabilized and unlikely to change 
substantially in the next year, with or without medical treatment. Once an employee 
reaches MMI, a doctor can assess how much, if any, permanent disability resulted 
from the work injury. See also P&S 

MOC (Memorandum of 
Coverage) 

A document issued by a JPA defining the coverage provided to the members 

Moral Hazard A person might create a loss situation on purpose just to collect from the insurance 
company (i.e. a pre-arranged faked theft of an older vehicle so the owner could 
collect insurance money and buy something new). 

Morale Hazard An individual, through carelessness or by irresponsible actions, can increase the 
possibility for a loss (i.e. a person who drives a car carelessly because he knows a loss 
will be insured if an accident occurs). 

Mutual interest company The insureds are also owners of the company and so they can vote to elect the 
management of the company (profits are returned to the insureds in the form of 
dividends or reductions in future premiums) 

Named Insured Any person, firm, or corporation, or any of its members specifically designated by 
name as insured(s) in the policy as distinguished from others who, although unnamed, 
are protected by the policy definition. A named insured under the policy has rights 
and responsibilities not attributed to additional insureds, such as premium payment, 
premium return, notice of cancellation, and dividend participation 

Page 504 of 526



Net Assets (Equity, surplus or Net Position) Total assets less Expected liabilities- the amount of 
funds remaining after subtracting liabilities at the actuarially determined “Expected” 
Confidence Level (approx. 50% CL) 

Net Contribution A total contribution for losses less excess insurance costs 

Non Vacant land Refers to land that is occupied and used, and/or has structures on it (i.e. shack, 
building, park with benches). 

Obligee Is an individual, partnership, corporation, or a government entity which requires the 
guarantee that an action or service will be performed. If not properly performed, the 
surety pays the obligee for any damages or fulfills the obligation. 

Occurrence A) In order for NCCSIF to pay a liability claim, it must arise out of an occurrence. This is
an accident, event, act or omission to act which results in "damages," "bodily injury,"
or "property damage" neither expected nor intended from the covered parties’
conduct.
B) A provision of an insurance policy that requires it to pay for a claim caused during
the policy period regardless of when it is presented.

Passive Negligence The party that was negligent did not take part in the action that caused the damage, 
but was responsible for somehow allowing it to take place. For example, a city 
allowed a contractor to dig a hole on city property and someone fell in. 

Peril Cause of a loss 

P&S (Permanent and 
Stationary) 

When an employee’s medical condition has reached maximum medical improvement. 
Once an employee is declared P&S, a doctor can assess how much, if any, permanent 
disability resulted from the work injury. If the disability is rated under the 2005 
schedule you will see the term maximal medical improvement (MMI) used in place of 
P&S. See also MMI 

PD (Permanent Disability) Any lasting disability that results in a reduced earning capacity after maximum 
medical improvement is reached. 

PPE (Personal Protective 
Equipment) 

PPE refers to protective clothing, helmets, goggles, or other garments or equipment 
designed to protect the wearer's body from injury. 

Physical Hazard A hazard that arises from the condition, occupancy, or use of the property itself (i.e. 
skateboard left on the porch steps). 

Plaintiff The party who complains or sues in a personal action. A claimant becomes a plaintiff 
by filing suit. 

Pooled Loss The portion of a loss that is allocated to, or paid by, the self-insured pool. NCCSIF’s 
Liability Program pools, or self-insures, the first $500,000 of each occurrence. Loss 
costs exceeding this amount are paid by excess insurance. 

Principal Is an individual, partnership, or corporation who offers an action or service and is 
required to post a bond. Once bonded, the surety guarantees that he will perform as 
promised. 

Principle of Indemnity When a loss occurs an individual should be restored to the approximate financial 
condition he was in before the loss no more and no less. 

Property Insurance This covers the member for damage to its own property, sometimes called first- party 
coverage. 

PARMA (Public Agency Risk 
Managers Association) 

A statewide association for risk managers in the public sector. Educational and 
lobbying activities. 

Page 505 of 526



PRIMA (Public Risk 
Management Association) 

A national association for risk managers in the public sector. Formed for educational, 
information gathering and political lobbying purposes. 

Pure Risk Involves only the possibility of loss 

QME (Qualified Medical 
Examiner) 

A medical provider who has been certified by the Division of Workers’ Compensation 
by passing an administrative exam. 

Reciprocal company (to give/take), a member of a reciprocal agrees to share the insurance responsibilities 
with all other members of the unincorporated group (all members insure each other 
and share the losses with each other) NOTE: managed by an attorney-in-fact who is 
empowered to handle all of the business of the reciprocal. 

RC (Replacement Cost) The cost to replace damaged property with like kind and quality, with no deduction 
for depreciation, but still subject to a “limit” 

Reserve In order to budget for its expected costs and to know when a claim must be reported 
to the excess coverage, NCCSIF estimates the ultimate expected total value of each 
claim and "reserves" part of the not paid. As moneys are paid out for a claim, the 
reserve amount is decreased 

Retrospective Premium 
Adjustment 

At the beginning of each policy period, NCCSIF collects a deposit premium 
representing the estimated costs for that year.   Each year a calculation of expenses 
associated with the policy period are subtracted from the deposit premium.  At some 
point the excess funds will be returned, or shortage of funds will be charged. This 
process is repeated annually for each coverage year until all claims for that year are 
closed out and there is no IBNR allocated to that policy year. 

Risk The chance or uncertainty of loss (also see Speculative Risks and Pure Risks) 

RIMS (Risk and Insurance 
Management Society) 

National professional organization to promote principles of risk management and 
assist risk managers in their daily activities 

Risk Control Those risk management techniques designed to minimize the frequency and/or 
severity of claims. Risk control techniques include exposure avoidance, loss 
prevention, loss reduction, segregation of loss exposures, and contractual transfer to 
shift losses to others 

Risk Financing Techniques for generating funds to pay for losses that risk control methods do not 
entirely eliminate. There are two types of risk financing techniques -- retention and 
transfer. Retention involves paying for losses using an organization’s own assets; 
transfer involves covering losses by an unrelated entity for a consideration (such as a 
payment of a premium) 

Risk Management One of the specialties within the general field of management, the process of 
managing an organization’s activities to minimize the adverse effects of accidental 
losses on a cost-effective basis. Risk management has two components -- risk control 
and risk financing. 

Self-Insured Coverage of losses from the insured’s own funds, rather than an insurance policy. 
Generally refers to a planned program for financing or otherwise recognizing losses 

SIR (Self-Insured Retention) The maximum amount of exposure to a single loss retained by NCCSIF 

Page 506 of 526



Severability of Interests 
Clause 

An insurance policy provision clarifying that the word “insured,” as it appears within 
various parts of a policy, applies severally and not collectively. When there is more 
than one insured, the effect is as though a separate policy is issued to each insured. 
Thus, a policy containing such a clause will cover a cross liability claim – a claim made 
by one insured against another insured. The one exception to the separate application 
to each insured of a policy containing a severability of interest clause is that the limits 
are not cumulative; that is, one set of limits applies to all insureds collectively 

Special Events Designed to cover your sponsorship of events, such as fireworks shows, festivals, 
community/entity celebrations; often written to protect other policies’ loss integrity. 
Another type of special event coverage, known as a “tenants and permittees” policy, 
can be issued for third parties who rent or use your owned facilities. 

Speculative Risk Risks in which there exists both the possibility of gain and the possibility of loss (i.e. 
poker game) 

Spread of Risk The greater the spread of risk the less likely that there will be a catastrophic loss for 
the insurance company (i.e. NOT insuring every person in a single town that could be 
hit by a fire which destroys the town= catastrophic loss for the insurance company vs. 
insuring several people in MANY towns to spread out the risk of a catastrophic loss) 

Stock company Sells stock to stockholders to raise the money necessary to operate the business 
(profits attributed to the operation of the company are returned as dividends to the 
stockholders, not the insureds) 

Subrogation The insurer’s right to proceed against a third person if that third person was 
responsible for a claim paid by the insurer.  Employee dishonesty can be subrogated 
by the insurance company against a dishonest employee 

Surety Is usually a corporation which determines if an applicant (principal) is qualified to be 
bonded for the performance of some act or service. If so, the surety issues the bond. 
If the bonded individual does not perform as promised, the surety performs the 
obligation or pays for any damages. 

TD (Temporary Disability 
Benefits) 

Payments an employee receives if they lose wages because of a work related injury 
which prevents them from doing their usual job while recovering. 

TPA (Third Party 
Administrator) 

TPA is a person or organization that processes claims and performs other 
administrative services in accordance with a service contract, usually in the field of 
employee benefits. 

TIV (Total Insured Values) The values shown on a member city’s schedule or appraisal for property coverage. 
Only those items shown on the schedule are covered for loss. 

TRIA (Terrorism Risk 
Insurance Act) 

TRIA is a United States federal law signed into law by President George W. Bush on 
November 26, 2002. The Act created a federal "backstop" for insurance claims related 
to acts of terrorism. 

Vacant land Refers to land that is unoccupied and unused, and/or has no structures on it. 

VIN (Vehicle Identification 
Number) 

Unique code including a serial number, used by the automotive industry to identify 
individual motor vehicles, towed vehicles, motorcycles, scooters and mopeds as 
defined in ISO 3833. 

Page 507 of 526



NORTHERN CALIFORNIA CITIES SELF INSURANCE FUND 
21/22 Organizational Chart
Updated as of 6/15/2022

MEMBER ENTITY BOARD ALTERNATES

RISK MANAGEMENT

COMMITTEE

POLICE

RISK MANAGEMENT

COMMITTEE

City of ANDERSON Liz Cottrell Jeff Kiser Liz Cottrell Chief Michael Johnson

City of AUBURN Nathan Bagwill April Hildalgo April Hildalgo  Chief Ryan L. Kinnan(Vice‐Chair)

City of COLUSA Ishrat Aziz‐Khan  Shelly Kittle  Ishrat Aziz‐Khan  Chief Josh Fitch

City of CORNING EC / CC *Kristina Miller Tom Watson Tom Watson Chief Jeremiah Fears

City of DIXON Rachel Ancheta Kate Zawadzki

Rachel Ancheta

Kim Staile  Chief Robert Thompson 

City of ELK GROVE *EC *Kara Reddig Jim Ramsey 

Jim Ramsey

Anjmin Mahil ‐ Alternate

Assistant Chief Paul Soloman

City of FOLSOM Vacant Steven Wang Vacant  Chief Rick Hillman

City of GALT Stephanie Van Steyn Lorenzo Hines Stephanie Van Steyn Chief Brian Kalinowksi 

City of GRIDLEY Vacant Elisa Arteaga Elisa Arteaga Chief Rodney Harr

City of IONE EC / CC *Michael Rock Chris Hancock Michael Rock  Chief Jeff Arnold

City of JACKSON EC *Yvonne Kimball Dalacie Blankenship Yvonne Kimball Interim Chief Chris Mynderup

City of LINCOLN Veronica Rodriguez Ruthann Codina Veronica Rodriguez Chief Doug Lee

City of MARYSVILLE  S /  EC /CC *Jennifer Styczynski Vacant Jennifer Styczynski Chief Chris Sachs

City of NEVADA CITY Sean Grayson  Gabrielle Christakes  Sean Grayson  Chief Chad Ellis

City of OROVILLE VP Liz Ehrenstrom  None Appointed Liz Ehrenstrom (Chair) Lt. Gil Zarate

Town of PARADISE Ross Gilb  Crystal Peters Crystal Peters Chief Eric Reinbold

City of PLACERVILLE  *P / *EC **Dave Warren (Chair) Cleve Morris Dave Warren Chief Joseph Wren

City of RED BLUFF EC  Tom Westbrook Anita Rice Tom Westbrook Chief Kyle Sanders (Chair)

City of RIO VISTA T/*EC/*CC Jennifer Schultz  **Jen Lee, CPA Jose Jasso Chief Jon Mazer 

City of ROCKLIN Andrew Schiltz, CPA Amanda Tonks  Andrew Schiltz, CPA Chief Chad Butler

City of WILLOWS Marti Brown None Appointed Marti Brown  N/A

City of YUBA CITY EC /CC **Spencer Morrison Natalie Springer  Sheleen Loza Chief Brian Baker 

Term of Office

President (P) Dave Warren 10/29/2020 ‐ 6/30/2022

Vice President (VP) Elizabeth Ehrenstrom 4/21/22‐6/30/2022

Treasurer (T) Jen lee 10/29/2020 ‐ 6/30/2022

Secretary (S) Jennifer Styczynski 7/1/2020‐ 6/30/2022

CJPRMA Board 

Representative
Elizabeth Ehrenstrom  appointed 6/17/2021

CLAIMS ADMINISTRATORS

(Sedgwick formerly York )

RISK CONTROL CONSULTANTS

(Sedgwick formerly 

York/Bickmore) ADVISORS

Marcus Beverly Conor Boughey Bernie Gargain (WC) Eric Lucero  Byrne Conley (Board Counsel)

Jenna Wirkner Erik Baumle (WC) Tom Kline (Police RM) James Marta, CPA (Accountant)

Summer Simpson (Liability)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATORS

(Alliant Insurance Services)

OFFICERS

Executive Committee (EC) ‐ membership on the EC rotates annually based on a rotation schedule and each 

member serves for a two‐year term, with the President serving as Chair of the Committee.

Claims Committee (CC) ‐ members of the CC are annually selected by the EC. CC is traditionally made up of at 

least five members of the EC, with the Vice President serving as Chair of the Committee.

Page 508 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

Updated: 10/14/2021 

T A B L E   O F   C O N T E N T S

As a member of NCCSIF, your City/Town has many risk management resources available. This Services Matrix is designed to assist you with identifying and 
locating these resources. 

CONTACT INFORMATION 
Pg. 1‐2  Program Service Providers 

Pg. 3  Other Coverage Providers 

Pg. 4‐6  Contracted Vendor Services (additional member cost) 

RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICE CATEGORY 

SED
G
W
IC
K
 

P
R
ISM

 

TA
R
G
ET 

SO
LU

TIO
N
S 

O
CCU

 ‐ M
ED

 

A
P
IP
 

LEX
IP
O
L 

A
C
I EA

P
 

C
A
L‐TIP

 

D
K
F 

SO
LU
TIO

N
S/ 

C
SR

M
A
 

Pg. 7  Telephone Hotline ‐ Questions & Guidance  X

Pg. 7  Hazard & Safety Assessment  X X 

Pg. 8  Program/Policy Development  X  X X X 

Safety Materials/Web‐based Courses/Videos  X  X  X X 

Pg. 8  On‐Site Training  X  X X 

Pg. 8  Ergonomic Evaluations  X

Pg. 9  Risk Management Webinars  X  X   X

Pg. 9  Employer Pull Notice Program X

Pg. 10  Pre‐Employment Medical Services   X

Pg. 10  Employee Assistance Program ‐ Health & Wellness   X

Pg. 11  Transit Resources (available to CalTIP members)   X

* Services and resources are available at no additional cost, unless specifically noted.

Page 509 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

Page 1 

PROGRAM SERVICE PROVIDERS 

SERVICE PROVIDERS  CONTACT INFORMATION  SERVICES PROVIDED 

PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION 

Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
2180 Harvard Street, Suite 460 
Sacramento, CA 95815 
Main: (916) 643‐2700 
Fax: (916) 643‐2750 
www.alliant.com 

Marcus Beverly 
Office: (916) 643‐2704 
Cell: (916) 660‐2725 
Marcus.Beverly@alliant.com 

Conor Boughey 
Office: (415) 403‐1400 
Cell: (415) 744‐4889 
cboughey@alliant.com 

Jenna Wirkner 
Office: (916) 643‐2741 
Jenna.Wirkner@alliant.com 

JPA MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 Governance ‐ policies and procedures,

program budget/funding, financial
analysis, program management,
personnel, contracts, consultants.

 Coverage ‐ coverage questions,
quotations, new members, development
of shared risk program coverage
agreements, RFPs for services, actuary
liaison, excess insurance/additional
coverage marketing (Crime coverage,
etc.), program development.

 Risk Management ‐ Insurance
Requirements in Contracts (IRIC), third
party contract review, hold harmless and
indemnification clauses, risk management
program planning, RFPs for JPA payment
approval of budgeted funds.

MAIN CONTACT 
Marcus Beverly 
Jenna Wirkner 
Conor Boughey 

JPA ADMINISTRATIVE ISSUES 
 Meetings & Compliance ‐ agendas;

minutes; development/maintenance of
governing documents,
development/interpretation of policies
& procedures, JPA state compliance,
Form 700, changes in Board members,
website updates.

 Certificates ‐ certificates of coverage,
additions/deletions of coverages, special
events liability coverage, automobile
identification cards, auto/mobile
equipment physical damage programs.

MAIN CONTACT 
Jenna Wirkner 
Marcus Beverly 

Page 510 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

Page 2 

PROGRAM SERVICE PROVIDERS 

SERVICE PROVIDERS  CONTACT INFORMATION  SERVICES PROVIDED 

ACCOUNTING SERVICES 

James Marta & Company LLP 
701 Howe Avenue, Suite E3 
Sacramento, CA 95825 
Main: (916) 993‐9494 
Fax: (916) 993‐9489 
www.jpmcpa.com 

Jim Marta, CPA 
jmarta@jpmcpa.com 

David Becker, CPA 

Orysya V. Savchuk 
osavchuk@jpmcpa.com 

 Billing, accounting and financial managements

SAFETY AND RISK CONTROL SERVICES 

Sedgwick 
formerly York/Bickmore 
1750 Creekside Oaks Drive, Suite 200, 
Sacramento, CA 95833 
Main: (800) 541‐4591 
Fax: (855) 242‐8919 
www.sedgwick.com 

Eric Lucero 
Office: (916) 869‐0772 
Eric.Lucero@sedgwick.com 

Tom Kline ‐ Police Risk Management 
Office: (916) 244‐1121 
Tom.Kline@sedgwick.com 

 Telephone Hotline ‐ Questions & Guidance
 Hazard & Safety Assessment
 Program/Policy Development
 Ergonomic Evaluations
 On‐site Training
 Safety Materials
 On‐line Streaming Videos
 Webinars ‐ WC and Liability Risk Management Topics

CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION 

Sedgwick 
formerly York Risk Services Group, Inc. 
P.O. Box 14522 
Lexington, KY 40512 
Main: (916) 783‐0100 
Fax: (866) 548‐2637 
www.sedgwick.com 

Erik Baumle‐ Client Service Director  
Office: (714) 258‐5313 
Erik.baumle@sedgwick.com 

Steven Scott – Team Lead 
 Workers’ Compensation  
Office: (916) 960‐0946 
steven.scott@sedgwick.com 

Summer Simpson ‐ Claims Team Lead 
Office: (916) 746‐6332 
summer.simpson@sedgwick.com 

Third‐Party Workers’ Compensation (WC) and Liability Claims 
Administrator ‐‐refer to Sedgwick’s Who’s Who in Claims for specific 
Claim Adjuster’s contact information. 

Report New WC Claims via Global Intake or via email 
7374NCCSIF@sedgwick.com 

Report New Liability Claims to: 
7374NCCSIF@sedgwick.com 

Page 511 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

Page 3 

OTHER COVERAGE PROVIDERS 

SERVICE PROVIDERS  CONTACT INFORMATION  SERVICES PROVIDED 

PRISM 
Excess Workers’ Compensation Coverage 

Travis Clemmer 
Kristen Calderon (video library) 
Office: (916) 850‐7300 
Email: tclemmer@csac‐eia.org 
https://www.prismrisk.gov/dashboard/ 

 Program/Policy Development (*additional member cost)
 On‐site Training
 Safety Materials
 Video Library
 Webinars ‐ WC Risk Management Topics

Vector/Target Solutions 
Web‐based Resources available through 
partnership with PRISM. 

https://www.prismrisk.gov/services/risk‐
control/training/vector‐solutions/ 

 Web‐based Courses*
 Records Management
*EIA members are able to access the standard course library at
no cost. However, there is a cost to the member for the premium
content listed under “Additional Courses”

CJPRMA (California Joint Powers 
Risk Management Authority) 
Excess Liability Coverage 

Tony Giles ‐ General Manager 
Office: (925) 290‐1316 
Email: tony@cjprma.org 
http://www.cjprma.org/ 

 Regional Training provided on a variety of Liability‐related
Topics

APIP ‐ Alliant Property Insurance Program  Contact Marcus Beverly, Alliant Insurance 
Services, for questions. 

 Webinars ‐ Property Risk Management Topics

In addition, Boiler and Machinery coverage is provided through 
your participation in APIP. 

 For  resources  with  your  boiler,  electrical, mechanical,  and
HVAC equipment, visit www.hsb.com/calc/ENG and use  the
online  tools  and  calculators  developed  by  Hartford  Steam
Boiler’s engineering staff.

 Useful information specific to equipment care, operating logs
and maintenance  fact  sheets on  the website www.hsb.com
which has several resources available under the  ‘Knowledge
Center’ tab.

Page 512 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 4 

Lexipol 
Law Enforcement and Fire risk management 
 
Website: www.lexipol.com 
 

Sean Brannon 
Strategic Partnerships Manager 
Office: (469) 553‐0676 
Email: SBrannon@lexipol.com 

 Police Risk Management Policies and Procedures 
 Fire Training (*additional member cost) 

CalTIP ‐ California Transit Indemnity Pool 
Self‐insurance program for public transit 
operators 

Terrie Norris, Sedgwick 
Office: (916) 290‐4655 
Email: terrie.norris@sedgwick.com 
Website: http://www.caltiponline.org/ 
 

 Transit Specific Risk Management Resources for Member 
Cities (Auburn and Dixon) 

 
Page 513 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

Page 4 

CONTRACTED VENDOR SERVICES (additional member cost) 

VENDOR SERVICES  CONTACT INFORMATION  SERVICES PROVIDED 

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 

ACI Specialty Benefits Corporation 
6480 Weathers Place, Suite 300 
San Diego, CA 92121 
Main: (800) 932‐0034 
Fax: (858) 452‐7819 
www.acieap.com 

Sasha Abrahms, Account Manager 
Office: (858) 736‐3976 
Email: sabrahms@acieap.com 

 Employee Assistance Program

Pre‐employment Medical Services 

Occu‐Med 

Bill Vogeler 
Office: (559) 435‐2800, ext. 101 
Email: bvogeler@occu‐med.com 
Website: www.occu‐med.com 

 Review of Pre‐placement Medical Exams
 Job Analysis

Sewer Risk Management 

DKF Solutions Group, LLC 

David Patzer 
Office: 707.373.9709 
Email: dpatzer@dkfsolutions.com 
Website: http://www.dkfsolutions.com 

 Sewer Risk Management

Aquatics Risk Management 

Total Aquatic Management 
www.totalaquaticmanagement.webs.com 

Jim Wheeler 
Office: (510) 523‐3155 
Email: jim@totalaquaticmanagement.com 

swimnjim@hotmail.com 

 Aquatic Safety services
 Certified Pool Operator (CPO) Trainings

Sidewalk Repair Services 

Precision Concrete Cutting 
Main: (866) 792‐8006 
Fax: (650) 240‐3866 
www.dontgrind.com 

Katrina Lynch 
(916) 847‐7346
Klynch@dontgrind.com

Joseph Ortega 
jortega@DontGrind.com 

 Sidewalk cutting to repair defects
 Will inspect to your specifications
 Map defects
 Repairs @ $35 to $50 per location

Page 514 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

 

Page 5 

CONTRACTED VENDOR SERVICES (additional member cost) 

VENDOR SERVICES  VENDOR CONTACT INFORMATION  SERVICES PROVIDED 

ADA Compliance  City Consulting Engineer ‐ CEC Inc. Yuba City 
1110 Civic Center Blvd. Ste. 404 
Yuba City, CA 95993 
Email: Swartz@cecusa.net 
(530) 751‐0952 
 

 

ADA Compliance  Sally Swanson Architects 
220 Sansome Street. STE 800 
San Francisco, CA 94104 
(415) 445‐3045 ext. 118 
 

 

ADA Compliance  SZC Consulting Group 
 
Sacramento Office 
2377 Gold Meadow Way, # 100 
Gold River, CA 95670 
(916) 669‐8750 
 
Silicon Valley Office 
228 Hamilton Avenue, 3rd Floor 
Palo Alto, CA 94301 
(866) 694‐7637 
 

 

Arborist 
 
ASCA Registered Consulting Arborist #480 
ISA Certified Arborist & Municipal Specialist 
#WE‐0151 AM 
ISA TRAQ Risk Assessment Qualified 
 

Gordon Mann ‐ Consulting Arborist 
California Tree and Landscape Consulting, Inc. & 
Mann Made Resources 
10556 Combie Road 
Auburn, CA 95602 
Cell: (650) 740‐3461 
Email: gordon@mannandtrees.com 
website: https://mannandtrees.com/ 

 Contract Preparation and Supervision 
 Diagnosis of Tree and Landscape Problems 
 Insect and Disease Identification and Management 
 Municipal Ordinance Development 
 Training and Education, Tree, Landscape, and Nursery 

Appraisals 
 Tree Plant Inventories 
 Tree Protection for Construction Projects 
 Tree Risk Assessments and Surveys 

 
Page 515 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

Page 6 

CONTRACTED VENDOR SERVICES (additional member cost) 

VENDOR SERVICES  VENDOR CONTACT INFORMATION  SERVICES PROVIDED 

Arborist  Professional Landscape Solutions 
6108 27th Street, Ste. C 
Sacramento, CA 95822 
(916) 424‐3815

Drug & Alcohol Testing  Datco Services Corporation 
2280 Grass Valley Highway Suite 232 
Auburn, CA 95603 
530‐268‐8101  
(800) 95‐DATCO (32826)

Drug & Alcohol Testing  Feather River Hospital 
5974 Pentz Road 
Paradise, CA 95969 
(530) 876‐7919

Janitorial Services  City Wide 
6108 27th Street STE C 
Sacramento, CA 95822 
(916) 424‐3815

Janitorial Services  Peerless Building Maintenance 
4665 Mountain Lakes Blvd. 
Redding, CA 96003 
(530) 222‐6369

Janitorial Services  Ultimate Building Maintenance Inc 
598 Garden Hwy Suite 5 
Yuba City, CA 95591 
(530) 671‐1564

Page 516 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

Page 7 

RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICE CATEGORY 

Telephone Hot Line 
Questions/Guidance 

SEDGWICK (formerly York/Bickmore) 
Sedgwick is NCCSIF’s risk control services provider. Dave Beal is your point of contact for risk management questions and 
guidance. 

Hazard & Safety 
Assessment 

SEDGWICK (formerly York/Bickmore) 
A comprehensive Hazard & Safety Assessment is completed for each city to help identify risk management strengths and 
improvement opportunities. The assessment is used as a tool to help prioritize risk management efforts. It includes best 
practices in the following areas: 

1. Risk Management Program Overview
2. Aerial Lift Operations
3. Aerosol Transmissible Diseases (ATD) Control
4. ADA Compliance
5. Animal Control Services
6. Automobile & Fleet Liability
7. Blood Borne Pathogens ECP
8. Business Continuity Plan
9. Confined Space Entry Program
10. Contractor Selection & Control
11. Contractual Transfer of Risk

12. Emergency Response & Management
13. Employment Practices Liability
14. Ergonomic Injury Management
15. Fire Department Operations
16. Fire Prevention Program
17. Forklifts & Powered Industrial Trucks
18. Hazard Communication Program
19. Hearing Conservation Program
20. Heat Illness Prevention Program
21. Information Technology
22. Injury & Illness Prevention Program

23. Lockout‐Tagout
24. Parks & Recreation Operations
25. Personal Protection Equipment
26. Police Department Operations
27. Respiratory Protection Program
28. Return‐to‐Work & Transitional Duty
29. Sewers Liability Management
30. Sidewalks Liability Management
31. Traffic Engineering
32. Trenching & Excavation Operations
33. Urban Forest Management
34. Work Zone Safety

Page 517 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

Page 8 

Program & Policy 
Development 

SEDGWICK (formerly York/Bickmore) 
Our  risk  control  service  includes  assistance with  the development  and  implementation of Cal/OSHA  required written 
programs such as Injury & Illness Prevention Program, Hazard Communication Program, Aerosol Transmissible Diseases 
Procedures  for  fire  and  police,  Bloodborne  Pathogens  Exposure  Control  Plan,  etc. Our website  also  includes  sample 
programs and guides. 

PRISM (Additional Cost) 
PRISM loss prevention specialists are available to provide assistance with program development at an additional cost to 
NCCSIF members. Contact PRISM directly for assistance. 

LEXIPOL 
NCCSIF members have access to the law enforcement and fire risk management policies offered through Lexipol. 

On‐Site Training  SEDGWICK (formerly York/Bickmore) 
On‐site training is available to members on a variety of workers’ compensation, liability, and EPL exposures. Training topics 
include,  but  are  not  limited  to,  Cal/OSHA  program  requirements,  hazard  inspections,  accident  investigation,  forklift 
certification, driver training, sexual harassment, CPR certification, various workplace safety topics, and more. Contact Dave 
to discuss and schedule on‐site training. 

PRISM 
PRISM is available to conduct a variety of workers’ compensation related safety training at an additional cost to members. 
Contact Travis Clemmer to discuss available topics and scheduling. 

CJPRMA 
Every year CJPRMA conducts up to five regional training workshops throughout California. In the past, topics have included 
contractual risk transfer, police liability, parks and recreation liability, and sidewalk liability controls. CJPRMA will send the 
training announcement to Alliant, who will then forward to all NCCSIF members. 

Ergonomic 
Evaluations 

SEDGWICK (formerly York/Bickmore) 
Sedgwick is available to conduct office and industrial ergonomic evaluations for all members. Contact Dave Beal to discuss 
and schedule ergonomic evaluations. 

Page 518 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

Page 9 

Risk Management 
Webinars 

SEDGWICK (formerly York/Bickmore) 
Throughout the year, Sedgwick risk control staff conducts webinars on a wide range of safety topics such as heat illness 
prevention, scaffold safety, disaster management, and new safety regulations. Our goal is to communicate relevant safety 
information in an all‐inclusive and cost‐effective way. NCCSIF members will receive webinar announcements via email. The 
one‐hour webinars are recorded and available to view at any time on the Sedgwick Risk Control website. 

PRISM 
PRISM conducts several workers’ compensation related webinars throughout the year, which are available to all NCCSIF 
members. Contact Travis Clemmer to ensure your city is included in the announcement distribution. 

APIP 
NCCSIF members have access to all APIP property related webinars. Contact Marcus Beverly to ensure your city is included 
in the announcement distribution. 

Employer Pull 
Notice Program 

PRISM & TARGET SOLUTIONS (Additional cost to members) 
PRISM and Target Solutions have partnered with A‐Check America to automate your Employer Pull Notice (EPN) program. 
Using this program, you can electronically monitor your employees’ driving records and receive notification within hours 
of a reportable incident. 

You can access your driver roster and key data from a dashboard within Target Solutions. This data is accessible only to 
you and A‐Check America and  features a summary of  the number of drivers added and removed  from  the system, an 
overview of the violations and accidents that have occurred, and a breakdown of your employees’ license renewal status. 
For additional information go to www.prismrisk.gov, Services/Loss Prevention/Target Solutions Platform. 

Page 519 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

Page 10 

Pre‐Employment 
Medical Services 

OCCU‐MED 
Services offered at an additional cost: 
 Review of Pre‐Placement Medical Exams
 Job Analysis
 Maintaining a network of qualified and trained medical providers and medical specialists for necessary exams
 Conducting job analyses and preparing job profiles and medical examination profiles
 Providing orientation of client staff in the legal/medical/risk management and human resources aspects of our service
 Scheduling and harvesting of pre‐placement medical exams
 Organizing and managing return‐to‐work and fitness‐for‐duty exams
 Evaluating medical information in relation to the essential duties of jobs in a legally defensible manner (EXAMQA®)
 Communicating directly with applicants to obtain the confidential medical information that is needed for clearance for
a particular job (RDQA)

 Developing “Occu‐Panels” with a national laboratory that allows for the selection of only those tests for the blood
chemistry panel that are compliant with state law for each job class

 Performing bill review for the medical exams performed by clinics
 Providing customized services such as OSHA Respirator Questionnaire Evaluations, Bloodborne Pathogen Programs,
and clinic trainings

Employee 
Assistance Program 

ACI 
Services offered at an additional cost: 
 Employee Assistance Program (Additional cost to members)
Employees and their family members can receive up to three counseling visits per year. The family members do not need
to be within the same residence. The visits are considered short‐term resolution. If the person needs additional counseling,
ACI will help them transition into their private insurance plan.

 Legal and Financial Services (Additional cost to members)
Employees and their family members have unlimited access to telephonic legal and financial services.

Page 520 of 526



RESOURCE CONTACT GUIDE 
SERVICE PROVIDERS AND VENDOR MATRIX 

Page 11 

Transit 
Resources 

CalTIP ‐ California Transit Insurance Pool 
Self‐insurance program for public transit operators. Member cities include Auburn and Dixon. 

Programs and Safety Materials 

 System Safety Program Plan (SSPP) Development
 SSPP Implementation Assessment & Follow‐up Process
 SAMPA Fleet Watch Paperless DMV EPN Program
 Bus Operator Selection Survey (BOSS)
 CalTIP Risk Profile
 APTA Membership
 Bus Stop Location & Design Evaluation Program

 Digital Video Event Recorder System
 Mobility Device Marking & Tethering Program
 APTA Safety Standards
 Best Practices
 Bus Stop Toolkit
 Pedestrian Safety Guide for Transit Agencies
 Safety Posters and Flyers

Page 521 of 526



5© 2019 Sedgwick 

NCCSIF Workers’ Compensation Update: June 2022

Page 522 of 526



      Who’s Who in Claims 
 Liability Contacts 

            Shawn Millar 
(530) 210-4910
shawn.millar@sedgwick.com
Anderson, Colusa, Corning, Gridley,
Marysville, Oroville, Paradise, Red Bluff
Willows, Yuba City

Brooke Crickitt 
(916)746.8802
brooke.crickitt@sedgwick.com
Handles All Cities As Needed 

Kristin Echeverria 
(916) 746-6334

     kristin.echeverria@sedgwick.com 
Handles All Cities As Needed 

            Summer Simpson 
            Claims Team Lead 

(916) 746-6332
summer.simpson@sedgwick.com

To File a New Claim:  
7374NCCSIF@sedgwick.com 

cc: Kathryn.greene2@sedgwick.com 
Office Hours Emergency (916) 960-0980 

After Hours Emergency Call-Out (916) 971-2701 

Resources 

Jill Petrarca 
           Claims Assistant Manager 

(916) 746-8849
jill.petrarca@sedgwick.com

Erik Baumle 
Client Service Director 
(360) 749-5877
Erik.Baumle@sedgwick.com

Sedgwick 
P. O. Box 14012 

Lexington, KY 40512 
(916) 783-0100 ꞏ Fax (866) 548-2637

http://www.sedgwick.com

Page 523 of 526



������������	�
� ��
���������������������
������������������ �!

 ��"!�������������#��$"�#��� ���Page 524 of 526



California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority 
Training Announcement 

Ethics in Public Service 

Presented by  
Lisa Charbonneau, Associate Attorney, Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 

 
 

This session has been designed to cover Government Code sections 53234 et seq., codified in 2005 as 
AB 1234, mandate that ethics training be provided by any local agency that pays any type of 
compensation, salary, or stipend to, or provides reimbursement for the expenses of, a member of a 
legislative body. Each member of a legislative body, each elected official, and any employees who may 
be designated by their agency must receive the training. 

Any individual holding office must retake the training every two years. This interactive training covers 
all topics the Government Code requires, including conflicts of interest, gift limitations, honoraria 
prohibitions, conduct upon leaving office, and government transparency laws. 

WHO SHOULD ATTEND? This training is required for all CJPRMA Directors and Alternates. This training 
is also open for any person designated by a CJPRMA member agency as 
needing Ethics training under AB 1234. 

 MCLE CREDIT: LCW is an approved provider for Minimum Continuing Legal Education (MCLE) Credit. 
Attorneys attending this course will receive 2.75 hours of MCLE credit. An MCLE sign-in 
sheet and certificate will be available for the workshop. 

QUESTIONS?  Contact: Marcia Hart at marcia@cjprma.org or (925) 290-1317 

The California Joint Powers Risk Management Authority (CJPRMA) is a statewide risk retention pool that 
was established in 1986 to provide excess general liability coverage for its members. Currently, its 
membership is composed of 16 cities and 4 joint powers authorities. The combined membership represents 
about 86 public entities throughout the state. 
 

DATE: Tuesday, July 12, 2022 

TIME: 1:30 p.m. to 3:30 p.m. 

LOCATION: Zoom (A link to the training will be email 1 week prior to the session) 

REGISTER: Go to https://www.cjprma.org/training/registration-form-07-12-2022 

Page 525 of 526

mailto:marcia@cjprma.org
https://www.cjprma.org/training/registration-form-07-12-2022


Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 
Travel Reimbursement Expense Form 

Member Representative:   

Entity:   

Payee Address:   

Meeting or Committee:   

Date of Meeting:   

Location of Meeting:   

Total Mileage:   

Payment Made to:   

Signature________________________ Date_______________ 

Page 526 of 526


	NCCSIF BOD 2022 06 23 Agenda Page Final no page numbers or links
	D. Consent Calendar
	D.1.2022 04 21 NCCSIF BOD Meeting Minutes
	D.2.Check Reigster March- May
	10- April 2022
	10- April 2022

	D.3.a.Chanlder Investment Reports MARCH - APRIL
	D.3.c.LAIF Report
	D.3.c.Signed Treasurer's Report 03.31.2022
	LIAF Statement
	Chandler #170
	Chandler #171
	BNY Mellon

	D.4.NCCSIF 2021 Fire Pricing 6.1 (1)
	D.6.Audit_Engagement_Letter_from_Icertis_Inc_for_-1
	D.5.Lexipol Law Enforcement
	E. General Risk Management
	F.4. EC Meeting Summary
	G.1. Quarterly Financial Report for Period Ending March 31, 2022
	G.1.NCCSIF Report 3.31.22
	G.2. Budget to Actual as of March 31, 2022
	H.1.a. 22-23 Liability MOC
	H.1.a.1.22-23 NCCSIF Liability MOC and Endts
	H.1.b. 22-23 WC MOC
	H.1.b.22-23 NCCSIF WC MOC Draft BOD 6.23
	H.2.a. 22-23 APIP Renewal
	H.2.a.1.21-22 APIP 25K deductible
	H.2.a.2.NCCSIF APIP Proposal FY 21-22 $25K deductible
	2022-2023 APIP PROPOSAL - COVER PAGE-NCCSIF
	2022-2023 APIP PROPOSAL - EXEC SUMMARY 2 YEAR-NCCSIF
	APIP Named Insured List-NCCSIF
	2022-2023 APIP PROPOSAL - PROPERTY-NCCSIF
	2022-2023 APIP PROPOSAL - B_M-NCCSIF
	2022-2023 APIP CYBER LIABILITY COVERAGE PROPOSAL-NCCSIF
	22-23 APIP Proposed SOC AmBest Ratings (California)
	2022-2023 APIP TRIA SELECTION_DOC-NCCSIF
	APIP Surplus Lines Disclosure - CA-NCCSIF

	H.2.b. Pollution Renewal
	H.2.b.2022-2023 APIP POLLUTION LIABILITY PROPOSAL-NCCSIF
	H.2.c. Cyber Renewal
	H.2.c.2022-2023 APIP CYBER LIABILITY COVERAGE PROPOSAL-NCCSIF
	H.2.d.NCCSIF 22-23 APIP Claims Reporting Acknowledgement Receipt Form
	H.2.d. APIP Claims Reporting
	H.2.e. 22-23 ADWRP Renewal
	H.2.e.1.22-23 ADWRP Renewal Proposal Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund
	H.2.e.2.FY 22-23 ADWRP Member allocation by premiun
	H.2.e.3.DeadlyWeapons_Onesheet
	H.2.f. Flood Coverage
	H.2.f.Flood Offering 2-2019v2
	H.2.g. Excess Cyber
	H.3. 22-23 ACIP Renewal
	H.3.1.NCCSIF-22_23 ACIP Proposal
	Named Insured / Additional Named Insureds
	Disclosures
	NY Regulation 194
	FATCA:
	Claims Reporting:
	Certificates / Evidence of Insurance


	H.3.2.22-23 ACIP Estimated Allocation by member
	H.3.3.Alliant Crime Insurance Program ACIP Flyer 2021
	H.4. 22-23 ID Fraud
	H.4.a.22-23 ID Fraud Expense Reimbursement Proposal
	H.4.b.Identity Fraud Brochure
	H.5. 22-23 APPL Coverage
	H.5.1.Northern California Cities Self Insurance Fund 22-23 APPL Prospect Proposal
	Named Insured / Additional Named Insureds
	Line of Coverage
	Primary Claims Made Trustees Errors and Omissions Coverage

	Disclosures
	NY Regulation 194
	FATCA:
	Claims Reporting:
	Claims Made Policy:
	Changes and Developments
	Certificates / Evidence of Insurance

	Optional Coverages
	Glossary of Insurance Terms

	H.5.2. APPL Brochure
	COMPREHENSIVE COVERAGE
	ELIGIBLE ENTITIES
	PROGRAM FEATURES
	ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES: THE PARTNER YOU DESERVE.

	H.5.3. Gov Codes Re Indemnity
	H.6. 22-23 Admin Budget
	H.6.22-23 Admin Budget
	H.7.a. 22-23 Liability Budget
	H.7.a.1.22-23 Liability Deposit Calculations
	H.7.b. 22-23 WC Budget
	H.7.b.1.FY 22-23 WC Deposit Calculations 80% CL
	H.7.b.2.WC Program Funding Changes FY 21-22 to FY 22-23
	H.7.b.3. FY 22-23 Net Program Funding Summary
	H.8. Conflict of Interest
	H.8.NCCSIF Conflict of Interest Code Final 2019
	H.9. Resolution 22-01
	H.9.Resolution 22-01 Authorizing Transfer of Funds 6-23-22 BOD Meeting
	H.10. Meeting Calendar
	H.10.22-23 Meeting Calendar Proposed
	H.11. Strategic Plan
	H.11.1. NCCSIF Strategic Goals as of 6.15.22
	H.12. Service Calendar
	H.12.NCCSIF 2022-23 Service Calendar (12 mos up to 6-30-2023) draft 2
	H.13. RFP
	I. Information Items
	I.1.Glossary of Terms
	I.2.2021-2022 Organizational Chart as of 6-15-22
	I.3..Resource Contact Guide as of 12-21-21
	I.4.NCCSIF WC Who's Who at Sedgwick and Liability
	I.5.CAJPA Conference – Taking Pooling to New Heights
	I.6.Flyer - Ethics in Public Service 7-12-22
	Ethics in Public Service

	I.7. NCCSIF Travel Mileage Reimbursement Form
	2022-03-31- Renewal (NCCSIF-ACI).pdf
	2022-03-28- Renewal Letter (NCCSIF-ACI).pdf (p.1-2)
	2022-01-07 - EAP CSA_NCCSIF_July 1, 2022.pdf (p.3-11)
	2022-03-30- Renewal EA (NCCSIF- ACI).pdf (p.12-17)

	FY 22/23 Lexipol Fire Subscription Services pricing
	BACK TO AGENDA



